
 

 

 

7 North Dixie Highway 

Lake Worth, FL 33460 

561.586.1600 

  
AGENDA 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 
REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

CITY HALL COMMISSION CHAMBER 
TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 17, 2020 - 6:00 PM 

ROLL CALL: 

INVOCATION OR MOMENT OF SILENCE: led by Commissioner Scott Maxwell 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: led by Vice Mayor Andy Amoroso 

AGENDA - Additions / Deletions / Reordering: 

PRESENTATIONS: (there is no public comment on Presentation items) 

A. PBSO Presentation by Captain Todd Baer 

B. Proclamation for the Police 

C. Proclamation for First Appearance 

D. Presentation to Communications and Electric Utilities 

COMMISSION LIAISON REPORTS AND COMMENTS: 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION OF NON-AGENDAED ITEMS AND CONSENT AGENDA: 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

A. Regular Meeting - October 20, 2020 

CONSENT AGENDA: (public comment allowed during Public Participation of Non-
Agendaed items) 

A. Proclamation declaring November 2020 as Native American Indian Heritage Month 

B. Proclamation declaring November 2020 as Retinoblastoma Awareness Month 

C. First Amendment to the existing agreement with R2 Unified Technologies, LLC, for 
information technology consulting services 

D. Microsoft Enterprise Agreement Contract Renewal 

E. Purchase Order with Nextran Truck for the purchase of a Mack Front Load Garbage 
Truck 

F. Purchase Order with Isuzu Truck of Ocala for the purchase of a Mini-Rear Load 
Garbage Truck 

G. Agreement with Shannon Chemical Corporation to purchase SNC-N2 (blend of 
phosphates) for distribution system corrosion inhibitor 



H. Resolution No. 49-2020 - Public Meeting - Approve a Historic Preservation Ad 
Valorem Tax Exemption for the property located at 631 Lucerne Avenue (The 
Hummingbird) 

I. Resolution No. 50-2020 – Public Meeting - Approve a Historic Preservation Ad 
Valorem Tax Exemption for the property located at 910 North M Street 

J. Resolution No. 51-2020 - Budget Amendment for the Regional Sewer fund for FY 
2019 - 2020 Budget 

K. Ratification of Agreement with Coast Professional, Inc. 

L. Ratification of Contract Expenditures for CliftonLarsonAllen LLP and Robert Busch in 
FY 2019 -2020  

M. Third Agreement Extension Request from 14 S East Coast, LLC, for property located 
at 14 S. East Coast Street, Lake Worth Beach, Florida 

N. Third Amendment to Robert Half International, Inc., agreement 

O. Administrative Ratification of Bond Resolutions (No. 45-2020 and 47-2020) for the 
Consolidated Utility Revenue Bonds 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

A. **Ordinance No. 2020-19 - Second Reading - adopting the Florida Building Code 
2020 7th Edition has been moved to the December 1, 2020 meeting 

NEW BUSINESS: 

A. Ordinance No. 2020-15 – First Reading - amending Chapter 23 “Land Development 
Regulations” regarding changes to commercial vehicle parking, open air operations, 
temporary banner signage for new construction, landscaping requirements and 
artificial turf  

B. Ordinance No. 2020-17 – First Reading - Approve the establishment of a mixed-use 
urban planned development for Village Flats 

C. Ordinance 2020-18 (PZB 20-01300002) - First Reading - Request for a City-initiated 
rezoning for 118 North A Street, 116 North A Street, 127 North B Street, 121 North B 
Street, 119 North B Street, 113 North B Street, 1500 Lucerne Avenue, and 128 North 
C Street from either Single Family – Two Family Residential (SF-TF-14) or Multi-family 
Residential 20 (MF-20) to Mixed Use – East (MU-E) 

LAKE WORTH BEACH ELECTRIC UTILITY: 

CONSENT AGENDA: (public comment allowed during Public Participation of Non-
Agendaed items) 

1) Seventh Amendment to the existing agreement with Vantage Services Consulting 
LLC for additional consulting services for Fiscal Year 2021 

2) Amended and Restated Directive with Gas South, LLC 



3) Work Order No. 5 with The L.E. Myers Co., for Electric Distribution System 
construction services 

4) First Amendment to the agreement with Leidos Engineering LLC for additional cost 
of rate design consulting services for Fiscal Year 2021 

CITY ATTORNEY'S REPORT: 

CITY MANAGER'S REPORT: 

ADJOURNMENT: 

 
If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the board, agency or commission 
with respect to any matter considered at such meeting or hearing, he or she will need a 
record of the proceedings, and that, for such purpose, he or she may need to ensure that 
a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and 
evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.  (F.S. 286.0105) 



 

 

PRESS RELEASE 
FOR RELEASE UPON RECEIPT 

City of Lake Worth Beach 

7 North Dixie Highway 

Lake Worth Beach, FL 33460 

www.lakeworthbeachfl.gov  
 

 

 

October 30, 2020 
 

  

 

Contact: Ben Kerr 

Phone: 561.586.1631 

Email:bkerr@lakeworthbeachfl.gov  
 

  

LAKE WORTH, FL – The Florida Municipal Electric Association (FMEA) 

recently recognized Lake Worth Beach Electric Utility with a “Building Strong 

Communities” award for offering our community extra services and programs 

beyond those normally supplied. Lake Worth Beach was recognized for our 

Customer Outreach Program and our partnership with Palm Beach County 

School District in the School Wifi Project. 

  

Winners were selected for community programs that included: environmental 

improvement, community education, public safety, charitable donations and 

sponsorships and other special services, such as lighting ball fields and 

playgrounds, parade and festival participation and building car and phone 

charging stations. 

  

Efforts related to the COVID-19 pandemic were also recognized. Public power 

utilities across the state suspended disconnects for unpaid bills, waived late 

https://lakeworth.us11.list-manage.com/track/click?u=98b2cf10ff7e1f3c7f249c5e4&id=e5699b593f&e=d3ca313aa7
mailto:bkerr@lakeworthbeachfl.gov


and reconnect fees and offered payment assistance plans to help customers 

financially impacted by the pandemic. In response to the COVID-19 Pandemic, 

the City of Lake Worth Beach Electric Utility suspended utility cutoffs on March 

18, 2020. Knowing that just suspending the cut off was only a partial solution 

the energy audit team and other members of our customer service teams 

pivoted their roles to provide residents who would have been cut off, or who 

were displaying signs of a potential future cut off, assistance in applying for 

funding through the CARES act and other funding opportunities that had 

become available. Throughout the pandemic this team reached out tirelessly to 

residents and assisted them in their applications and to date they have secured 

195 grants totaling $91,377 for customers in need and have submitted a further 

700 applications that are currently being processed. In addition the team 

recognized that residents who were in this predicament may struggle to pay off 

their balance in future and so they made 8667 phone calls and were able to 

assist 1274 residents with getting on to a payment plan so as to reduce the 

burden. Between these two actions this team has successfully been able to 

minimize the number of customers at risk of having their utilities cut off. 

  

Lake Worth Beach Electric Utility will be announced as an award recipient on 

November 2 at the FMEA Energy Connections Virtual Conference, which runs 

through November 6. Lake Worth Beach Electric Utility joins 21 other Florida 

public power communities in receiving this award. 

  

“Public power utilities have always been community-focused and invested in 

programs that give back to their communities. This year, with the pandemic 

impacting nearly every facet of our daily lives, public power utilities have found 

many ways to assist their communities during this difficult time. From easing 

financial hardships for customers to providing distance learning resources to 



 

students and teachers to providing food for those in need, public power utilities 

have stepped forward to help community members navigate the challenges 

COVID-19 has brought,” said Amy Zubaly, FMEA Executive Director. 

  

“We commend Lake Worth Beach Electric Utility for everything they have done 

to positively impact the lives of their families, friends and neighbors, especially 

in a year that has been everything but normal. We thank all the recipients for 

doing what they do best by putting the community they serve first,” added 

Zubaly. 

  

Florida’s 33 public power utilities, combined, are the third largest electric 

provider in the state, serving 14 percent of Florida’s customers. Florida’s public 

power utilities serve more than 3 million customers and are a statewide 

employment leader with more than 5,400 employees. 

Here in Lake Worth Beach, our citizen owned electric utility serves all of Lake 

Worth Beach’s residents. For 107 years, Lake Worth Beach Electric Utility has 

made it possible for residents of Lake Worth Beach to own and control their 

energy future while receiving affordable, reliable and environmentally 

responsible power. 

 

Please contact Ben Kerr, the City of Lake Worth Beach Public Information 

Officer with any questions or comments. 

 

  

 

Located in central Palm Beach County, Lake Worth Beach is a dynamic, multi-cultural city with an 

individualistic style.  People are drawn to the City by its acceptance of different cultures and lifestyles, 

historic districts, hip downtown and colorful arts district. 

#### 
 

  



  

 

Ben Kerr 

Public Information Officer 

  

City of Lake Worth Beach 

7 North Dixie Highway 

Lake Worth, FL 33460 

561.586.1631 

bkerr@lakeworth.org 

City of Lake Worth Beach 

  

"We are LAKE WORTH BEACH.  A hometown City that is committed to delivering the highest level of 

customer service through a commitment to integrity, hard work and a friendly attitude.  We strive to 

exceed the expectations of our citizens, our businesses, our elected officials and our fellow employees." 

  

  

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH E-MAIL DISCLAIMER: 

Please note: Florida has a very broad public records law.  Most written communications to or from local 

mailto:bkerr@lakeworth.org
https://lakeworth.us11.list-manage.com/track/click?u=98b2cf10ff7e1f3c7f249c5e4&id=9f1a6f114f&e=d3ca313aa7


 

officials regarding city business are public records available to the public and media upon request.  Your 

e-mail communications may therefore be subject to public disclosure. 
 

  

 

  

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

    

  
  

  

 

Copyright © 2020 City of Lake Worth, All rights reserved. 

You are receiving this email because you opted in on the City's website. 

 

Our mailing address is: 
City of Lake Worth 

7 North Dixie Highway 
Lake Worth, FL 33460 

 

Add us to your address book 
 

 

Want to change how you receive these emails? 

You can update your preferences or unsubscribe from this list. 

 

 
  

 

https://lakeworth.us11.list-manage.com/track/click?u=98b2cf10ff7e1f3c7f249c5e4&id=7126229f01&e=d3ca313aa7
https://lakeworth.us11.list-manage.com/track/click?u=98b2cf10ff7e1f3c7f249c5e4&id=5def5daf9d&e=d3ca313aa7
https://lakeworth.us11.list-manage.com/track/click?u=98b2cf10ff7e1f3c7f249c5e4&id=c085675f34&e=d3ca313aa7
https://lakeworth.us11.list-manage.com/vcard?u=98b2cf10ff7e1f3c7f249c5e4&id=aaec69863b
https://lakeworth.us11.list-manage.com/profile?u=98b2cf10ff7e1f3c7f249c5e4&id=aaec69863b&e=d3ca313aa7
https://lakeworth.us11.list-manage.com/unsubscribe?u=98b2cf10ff7e1f3c7f249c5e4&id=aaec69863b&e=d3ca313aa7&c=87e64e6183
http://www.mailchimp.com/email-referral/?utm_source=freemium_newsletter&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=referral_marketing&aid=98b2cf10ff7e1f3c7f249c5e4&afl=1


 

 

MINUTES 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 

REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

BY TELECONFERENCE 

TUESDAY, OCTOBER 20, 2020 - 6:00 PM 

 

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Triolo on the above date at 6:00 PM by 

teleconference from City Hall, 7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth Beach, Florida. 

 

ROLL CALL:  Present were Mayor Pam Triolo; Vice Mayor Andy Amoroso; and 

Commissioners Scott Maxwell and Herman Robinson.  Also present were City Manager 

Michael Bornstein, City Attorney Christy L. Goddeau and City Clerk Deborah M. Andrea. 

INVOCATION OR MOMENT OF SILENCE: was led by Commissioner Herman 

Robinson. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: was led by Vice Mayor Andy Amoroso. 

 

AGENDA - Additions/Deletions/Reordering: 

There were no changes to the agenda. 

 

Commissioner Robinson stated that an item he had requested to be on the agenda was not 

included and asked that a discussion about the process of appointments based on the charter be 

added. 

 

Mayor Triolo said that the matter was to be brought up in the future and asked City Manager 

Bornstein to update her on the timeline. 

 

City Manager Bornstein stated that the issue related to the District 2 vacancy was to be 

discussed in December after the qualifying period ended.  He said that Commissioner Robinson 

and City Attorney Goddeau had spoken about the issue. 

 

Commissioner Robinson clarified that his item was to discuss the policy to fill Commission 

vacancies, not regarding a vote. 

 

City Attorney Goddeau explained that the intent of the motion to table the item had been 

interpreted that the entire issue was tabled until after qualifications. 

 

Commissioner Robinson stated that his interest was in the process to fill the seat and said that 

the residents of District 2 deserved to know how the vacant seat would be filled. 

 

Mayor Triolo said that the issue would not be discussed because it was not on the current 

agenda, but that Commissioner Robinson had a valid point.  She requested that Commissioner 

Robinson continue his conversation with City Attorney Goddeau and then speak with City 

Manager Bornstein about adding the item to an agenda.  She suggested a two-phase approach, 

one regarding the process and the second regarding an appointment. 

 

City Attorney Goddeau asked for direction to work with Commissioner Robinson to assist him 

with putting his item on an upcoming agenda. 

 



Pg. 2, Regular Meeting, October 20, 2020 

 

PRESENTATIONS: (there was no public comment on Presentation items) 

 

A. Mayor Triolo read the proclamation celebrating Florida City Government Week.  She 

announced that there would be messages from staff on the City’s social media websites. 

 

B. Mayor Triolo read the proclamation declaring October 2020 as Breast Cancer Awareness 

Month. 

 

C. Mayor Triolo said that she had been a victim and the City would support and assist any 

victims in the City.  She read the proclamation declaring October 2020 as Domestic 

Violence Awareness Month. 

 

COMMISSION LIAISON REPORTS AND COMMENTS: 

 

Commissioner Maxwell:  had no comments. 

 

Commissioner Robinson:  thanked PBSO for all of their hard work and said that the City’s 

Electric Company should be recognized for its compassionate and excellent work.  He said 

that Drew Martin received a special service award from the Sierra Club and had expressed 

interest in working with Vice Mayor Amoroso on banning plastics in the City.  He reported 

that he attended the long Treasure Coast Regional Planning Council meeting and said that he 

looked forward to addressing the look of outdoor dining downtown.  He said that he would 

miss the passion and thought process that Commissioner Hardy put into his efforts as 

Commissioner.  He questioned whether there would be a presentation on public private 

partnerships for the oceanfront park. 

 

Vice Mayor Amoroso:  thanked the City staff and its residents for their participation in the 

2020 Census.  He announced that there would be a house decorating contest for Halloween, 

Little Scream at Bryant Park with social distancing and Day of the Dead events would take 

place in November.  He stated that there would be virtual events for Veterans’ Day.  He said 

that there should be a work session regarding term limits in the future. 

 

Mayor Triolo:  said that children have returned to school either in person or virtually.  She 

thanked Principal Denise at Barton Elementary who had been disseminating information.  She 

stated that the Commission would work with all of the schools.  She announced that there 

would be a “if I were elected Mayor” contest for 6th through 8th grade students with a deadline 

in January.  She reported that she had met with the TPA and that there would be funding 

available for projects; she thanked Jamie Brown, Public Works Director, who applied for 

several grants for work west of Dixie Highway. 

 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION OF NON-AGENDAED ITEMS AND CONSENT 

AGENDA: 

 

Deborah Andrea, City Clerk read the comment submitted by the following: 

 

Todd Kimberlain recommended postponing any increase to the sewer rates until after the 

pandemic ended. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

 



Pg. 3, Regular Meeting, October 20, 2020 

 

 

Action:  Motion made by Vice Mayor Amoroso and seconded by Commissioner Robinson to approve 

the following minutes: 

 

A. Regular Meeting - October 6, 2020 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES: Mayor Triolo, Vice Mayor Amoroso and Commissioners Maxwell 

and Robinson.  NAYS:  None.  

 

CONSENT AGENDA: (public comment allowed during Public Participation of Non-

Agendaed items) 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Maxwell and seconded by Commissioner Robinson to approve 

the Consent Agenda. 

A. Resolution No. 46-2020 – Local Agency Program Supplemental Agreement 442094-1-58-

01 (SA#1) with Florida Department of Transportation 

B. Work Order #5 for The Paving Lady  

C. Task Order 22 with Wantman Group (WGI) for the Neighborhood Road Program Year 4 

projects 

D. Resolution No. 48-2020 - Establish the rates, fees and charges for the Local Sewer System 

E. Amendment 1 to Task Order No. 18 with Wantman Group, Inc., for construction 

engineering and inspection services for Park of Commerce Phase 1B Infrastructure 

Improvements project 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES: Mayor Triolo, Vice Mayor Amoroso and Commissioners Maxwell 

and Robinson.  NAYS:  None. 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

 

A. Ordinance No. 2020-13 – Second Reading - Amend the City’s Code of Ordinances Chapter 

23 Land Development Regulations (development orders) 

City Attorney Goddeau read the ordinance by title only. 
 

ORDINANCE 2020-13 - AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, 

FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 23 “LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS,” 

ARTICLE 2, “ADMINISTRATION,”  DIVISION 3 “PERMITS,” BY ADDING A NEW 

SECTION “EXPIRATION OF DEVELOPMENT ORDERS” TO PROVIDE FINALITY 

TO APPROVALS AND CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS; AMENDING ARTICLE 1 

“GENERAL PROVISIONS,” DIVISION 1 “GENERALLY,” SECTION 23.1-11 “TIME 

LIMITATIONS OF APPROVALS,” TO PROVIDE UNIFORM TIME LIMITATIONS 

ON BUILDING PERMITS FOR ALL USES IN THE LAND DEVELOPMENT 

REGULATIONS AND AMENDING THE SPECIFIC REGULATIONS TO REFLECT 

THE UNIFORMITY; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, THE REPEAL OF LAWS 

IN CONFLICT, CODIFICATION; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

Action:   Motion made by Vice Mayor Amoroso and seconded by Commissioner Robinson to approve 

Ordinance 2020-13 amending the City’s Code of Ordinances Chapter 23 Land Development 

Regulations (development orders). 



Pg. 4, Regular Meeting, October 20, 2020 

 

Mayor Triolo stated that the ordinance was back for a second reading. 

 

City Clerk Andrea stated that there were no public comments. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES: Mayor Triolo, Vice Mayor Amoroso and Commissioners Maxwell 

and Robinson.  NAYS:  None. 

 

B. Ordinance No. 2020-14 – Second Reading - Amend the City’s Code of Ordinances Chapter 

23 Land Development Regulations to update and clarify the quasi-judicial process for land 

use and zoning matters 

 

City Attorney Goddeau read the ordinance by title only. 

 

ORDINANCE 2020-14 - AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, 

FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 23 “LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS,” 

ARTICLE 2, “ADMINISTRATION”, DIVISION 2 “PROCEDURES,” SECTION 23.2-

16 “QUASI-JUDICIAL PROCEDURES” AND SECTION 23.2-17 “APPEALS” TO 

UPDATE AND CLARIFY THE QUASI-JUDICIAL PROCESS FOR LAND USE AND 

ZONING MATTERS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, THE REPEAL OF LAWS 

IN CONFLICT, CODIFICATION; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

Action:   Motion made by Vice Mayor Amoroso and seconded by Commissioner Maxwell to approve 

Ordinance 2020-14 amending the City’s Code of Ordinances Chapter 23 Land Development 

Regulations to update and clarify the quasi-judicial process for land use and zoning matters. 

 

Comments/requests summary: 

 

1. Commissioner Maxwell asked where the requested changes concerning notifications 

could be found. 

 

William Waters, Community Sustainability Director, responded that the changes were 

under 13G; the applicant or affected party could request a 30 day or longer continuance. 

 

Commissioner Maxwell stated that he had requested that the 10 day notification be 

extended to 30 days.  He explained that affected parties would be given an automatic 

right to a 30 day continuance. 

 

Mr. Waters stated that the verbiage would be included in all public notices and there 

would not be a fee for a continuance. 

 

Commissioner Maxwell thanked Mr. Waters for the compromise. 

 

2. Commissioner Robinson thanked Mr. Waters and spoke positively about the 

compromise. 

 

3. Mayor Triolo stated that residents should be comfortable to reach out to City staff for 

assistance.  She thanked Mr. Waters and staff. 

 

City Clerk Andrea stated that there were no public comments. 

 



Pg. 5, Regular Meeting, October 20, 2020 

 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES: Mayor Triolo, Vice Mayor Amoroso and Commissioners Maxwell 

and Robinson.  NAYS:  None. 

C. Ordinance No. 2020-16 – Second Reading -- providing authority for the issuance of taxable 

utility bonds to fully fund reserves 

 

City Attorney Goddeau read the ordinance by title only. 

ORDINANCE NO. 2020-16 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, 

AUTHORIZING THE INCURRENCE BY THE CITY OF DEBT OBLIGATIONS TO 

FUND RESERVES FOR CASH FLOW PURPOSES RELATED TO THE CITY’S 

CONSOLIDATED UTILITY SYSTEM; PROVIDING THAT SUCH OBLIGATIONS 

OF THE CITY DO NOT CREATE A GENERAL DEBT OR OBLIGATION OF THE 

CITY OR THE STATE BUT SHALL BE PAYABLE SOLELY FROM UTILITY 

REVENUES; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

Action:   Motion made by Commissioner Maxwell and seconded by Vice Mayor Amoroso to approve 

Ordinance 2020-16 providing authority for the issuance of taxable utility bonds to fully fund 

reserves. 

 

Mayor Triolo announced that this was the second reading and asked if anyone had any 

questions or if there was a presentation.  There were no questions nor any presentation. 

 

City Clerk Andrea stated that there were no public comments. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES: Mayor Triolo, Vice Mayor Amoroso and Commissioners Maxwell 

and Robinson.  NAYS:  None 

 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 

There were no Unfinished Business items on the agenda. 

  

NEW BUSINESS: 

 

A. Ordinance No. 2020-19 - First Reading - adopting the Florida Building Code 2020 7th 

Edition with recommended local amendments to Chapter One 

 

City Attorney Goddeau read the ordinance by title only. 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2020-19 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, 

AMENDING CHAPTER 9, “BUILDINGS AND STRUCTURAL REGULATIONS”, 

ARTICLE I, “IN GENERAL”, SECTION 9-2, “BUILDING CODE ADOPTED”, BY 

ADOPTING THE 2020 BUILDING CODE; AMENDING SECTION 9-2.1, “CITY OF 

LAKE WORTH ADMINISTRATIVE AMENDMENTS TO THE FLORIDA BUILDING 

CODES ADOPTED”, BY ADOPTING BY REFERENCE THE CITY OF LAKE 

WORTH BEACH ADMINISTRATIVE AMENDMENTS TO THE FLORIDA 

BUILDING CODE 2020 EDITION; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, THE REPEAL 

OF LAWS IN CONFLICT, CODIFICATION, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

Action:   Motion made by Commissioner Maxwell and seconded by Vice Mayor Amoroso to approve 

Ordinance No. 2020-19 on first reading and set the second reading and public hearing for 

November 17, 2020. 



Pg. 6, Regular Meeting, October 20, 2020 

 

Mr. Waters said that there was no formal presentation, but a lot of time had been spent 

clarifying the administrative code by Peter Ringle, the City’s Building Official, and Pamala 

Ryan, Assistant City Attorney.  He stated that the City had adopted the Building Codes 

three previous times. 

 

City Clerk Andrea stated that there were no public comments. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES: Mayor Triolo, Vice Mayor Amoroso and Commissioners Maxwell 

and Robinson.  NAYS:  None. 

 

B. Resolution No. 47-2020 – authorizing the issuance of Consolidated Utility Revenue Bonds 

of the City 

 

City Attorney Goddeau did not read the resolution. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 47-2020 OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF LAKE 

WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, AMENDING AND SUPPLEMENTING RESOLUTION 

NO. 45-2020 OF THE CITY; AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF NOT EXCEEDING 

$123,000,000 IN AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF CITY OF LAKE WORTH 

BEACH, FLORIDA CONSOLIDATED UTILITY REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2020A 

AND SERIES 2020B (FEDERALLY TAXABLE), TO PROVIDE FUNDS FOR THE 

PURPOSE OF FINANCING THE ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION AND 

EQUIPPING OF CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS TO THE CITY'S CONSOLIDATED 

UTILITY SYSTEM AND FINANCING CERTAIN COSTS OF THE CITY; MAKING 

CERTAIN OTHER COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS IN CONNECTION WITH 

THE ISSUANCE OF SUCH BONDS; PROVIDING CERTAIN TERMS AND DETAILS 

OF SUCH BONDS, INCLUDING AUTHORIZING A NEGOTIATED SALE OF SAID 

BONDS AND THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A BOND PURCHASE 

CONTRACT WITH RESPECT THERETO UPON COMPLIANCE WITH CERTAIN 

PARAMETERS; APPOINTING THE PAYING AGENT AND REGISTRAR WITH 

RESPECT TO SAID BONDS; AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY 

OF AN OFFICIAL STATEMENT WITH RESPECT THERETO; AUTHORIZING THE 

EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE; 

AUTHORIZING THE PURHASE OF BOND INSURANCE AND THE EXECUTION 

AND DELIVERY OF AN INSURANCE AGREEMENT WITH RESPECT THERETO 

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION  AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

Action:   Motion made by Commissioner Maxwell and seconded by Vice Mayor Amoroso to approve 

Resolution No. 47-2020 authorizing the issuance of Consolidated Utility Revenue Bonds of 

the City and authorizing Bond Counsel to make any necessary updates to the resolution. 

 

Mayor Triolo asked if there were any questions from the Commissioners or if City Manager 

Bornstein would give a brief overview. 

 

City Manager Bornstein explained that the bonds would fuel the anticipated changes in the 

utilities as money was invested back into the electric utility for system hardening.  He 

thanked the Commission for their leadership. 

 

Mayor Triolo said that the City was making an investment in its utilities as they did with 

the roads.  She stated that great strides had been made. 



Pg. 7, Regular Meeting, October 20, 2020 

 

 

City Attorney Goddeau announced that there were some changes to the documentation 

since the agenda had been published.  She suggested that authorization be given to Bond 

Counsel for any changes; authorization was added to the motion. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES: Mayor Triolo, Vice Mayor Amoroso and Commissioners Maxwell 

and Robinson.  NAYS:  None. 

 

CITY ATTORNEY'S REPORT:  

 

City Attorney Goddeau did not provide a report. 

 

CITY MANAGER'S REPORT: 

 

City Manager Bornstein did not provide a report. 

 

ADJOURNMENT: 

 

Action:  Motion made by Vice Mayor Amoroso and seconded by Commissioner Maxwell to adjourn 

the meeting at 6:54 PM. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES: Mayor Triolo, Vice Mayor Amoroso and Commissioners Maxwell 

and Robinson.  NAYS:  None. 

 

 

_________________________ 

Pam Triolo, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Deborah M. Andrea, CMC, City Clerk 

 

Minutes Approved: November 17, 2020 



 
 

City of Lake Worth Beach 

Lake Worth Beach, Florida 

 
PROCLAMATION 

 
WHEREAS, The history and culture of our great nation have been 

significantly influenced by American Indians and indigenous 

peoples; and 

 

WHEREAS, The contributions of American Indians have enhanced the 

 freedom, prosperity, and greatness of America today; and 

 

WHEREAS, Their customs and traditions are respected and celebrated as part 

of a rich legacy throughout the United States; and 

 

WHEREAS, Native American Awareness Week began in 1976 and 

 recognition was expanded by Congress and approved by 

 President Bush in August 1990, designating the month of 

 November as National American Indian Heritage Month. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, PAM TRIOLO, Mayor of the City of Lake Worth 

Beach, Florida by virtue of the authority vested in me, do hereby proclaim: 

 

NOVEMBER 2020 

as 

NATIONAL AMERICAN INDIAN HERITAGE MONTH 

 

 and urge all citizens to observe this month with appropriate programs, ceremonies, 

and activities. 

 

IN   WITNESS   WHEREOF, I   have   hereunto   set   my   hand   and   caused   

the Seal   of   the   City   of   Lake   Worth   Beach, Florida, to   be affixed   this   

17th   day of November, 2020. 

 
 

__________________________ 

Pam Triolo, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 

 

__________________________ 

Deborah M. Andrea, City Clerk 



City of Lake Worth Beach 

Lake Worth Beach, Florida 

 
PROCLAMATION 

 
WHEREAS, Retinoblastoma, the most common eye tumor in children, is a rare 

disease now occurring in 1 out of every 12,000 children; and 

 

WHEREAS, Retinoblastoma is a disease that causes the growth of malignant 

tumors in the retinal cell layer of the eye; and 

 

WHEREAS, Left untreated, Retinoblastoma is almost always fatal; therefore, 

early diagnosis and treatment are crucial in saving lives and 

preserving visual function; and 

 

WHEREAS, Eye dilation examinations performed on infants at birth during the 

six to eight week and six to nine month well-baby exams are vital 

to saving the vision and lives of our children.  Such infant eye 

dilation exams are very inexpensive; and 

 

WHEREAS, The City of Lake Worth Beach supports eye pathology screening at 

birth and at each well-baby exam thereafter to assist in the detection 

of all ocular diseases in newborns, infants, and toddlers; and 

 

WHEREAS, Vision and lives have been saved through awareness. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Pam Triolo, Mayor of the City of Lake Worth Beach, 

Florida, by virtue of the authority vested in me, do hereby proclaim: 

 

NOVEMBER 2020 

as 

“JOEY BERGSMA RETINOBLASTOMA AWARENESS MONTH” 

 

and urge all citizens of the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida to make themselves 

and their families aware of the risk of Retinoblastoma and the need for appropriate 

screening, early diagnosis, and referral. 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal of the 

City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida, to be affixed this 17th day of November, 2020.  

 
____________________________ 
Pam Triolo, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 

 
____________________________ 

Deborah M. Andrea, City Clerk 



EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 
  

AGENDA DATE: November 17, 2020 DEPARTMENT: Information Technology 

TITLE: 

First Amendment to the existing agreement with R2 Unified Technologies, LLC, for information 
technology consulting services 

 
SUMMARY: 

The First Amendment authorizes a one (1) year renewal with R2 Unified Technologies, LLC, to 
provide further services to the City for a not-to-exceed amount of $50,000.  

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

In 2020, the City’s Information Technology Department entered into an agreement with R2 
Unified Technologies, LLC. (R2) to provide information technology support and services to the 
City. 

The purpose of this First Amendment is to renew the term for one (1) year and set for the terms 
and conditions for the provision of additional services by the consultant to the City. R2 Unified 
Technologies has submitted a proposal for services as requested by the City. The City’s 
Information Technology Department has reviewed the proposal and concluded the scope of 
services and rates are acceptable. The not-to-exceed amount for the First Amendment is 
$50,000. It is anticipated that further services may be needed; thus, City Commission approval 
is sought for this First Amendment. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove First Amendment to the existing agreement with R2 Unified 
Technologies, LLC, for consulting services in an amount not to exceed $50,000. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 
First Amendment 



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Fiscal Years 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 
 
Capital Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0 
Operating Expenditures $50,000 0 0 0 0 
External Revenues 0 0 0 0 0 
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
In-kind Match  0 0 0 0 0 
 
Net Fiscal Impact $50,000 0 0 0 0 
 
No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 

 

B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Account Number Account 

Description 
Project 
Number 

FY21 
Budget 

Current 
Balance 

Agenda 
Expenditure 

Balance 
 

510-1520-519.31-90 Professional 
Services / Other 

N/A $227,450 $170,590 $50,000 $120,590 

 



FIRST AMENDMENT TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

FOR INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT ("Amendment") to the Professional Services Agreement for 
Information Technology Services is made as of _ __ _ _ __ , by and between the City of 
Lake W 01th Beach, Florida, a municipal corporation of the State of Florida ("CITY") and R2 
Unified Technologies, LLC, a Florida limited liability company ("CONSUL TANT"). 

WHEREAS, on April 13, 2020 the CITY and Consultant entered into a Professional 
Services Agreement for Consultant to provide Information Technology Services to the CITY (the 
"Agreement"); and 

WHEREAS, the initial term of the Agreement was from April 13, 2020 to November 1, 
2020;and 

WHEREAS, the Agreement had an initial one (1) year term with the option to extend the 
term by written agreement of the patties for two (2) additional one (1) year terms; and 

WHEREAS, the CITY and the CONSULTANT wish to amend the Agreement to extend 
the terms of the Agreement for an additional one (1) year term with all other terms and conditions 
remaining the same: and 

WHEREAS, the CITY' s City Manager may extend this Agreement annually under the 
same terms and conditions; and 

WHEREAS, the CITY finds amending the Agreement as set forth herein is in the best 
interest of the CITY and serves a valid public purpose. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein, the 
sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged by each party hereto, the CITY and the 
CONSULTANT agree to amend the Agreement, as follows: 

1. Recitals. The above recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein by
reference. 

2. Term of Agreement. The parties agree that the term of the Agreement is hereby
amended to run from November 2, 2020 to November 1, 2021 unless earlier terminated. 

3. Scope of Services. The parties agree that the CONSULT ANT shall perform all
services as specified in the Agreement. 

4. Amount Not To Exceed. The maximum not to exceed amount for this Agreement

1s $50,000.00 (Fifty Thousand Dollars) annually. The CITY shall not reimburse the 

CONSUL TANT for any additional costs incurred as a direct or indirect result of the 

CONSULTANT providing the services as specified in the Agreement to the CITY. If the CITY 

needs any additional services from the CONSULT ANT that are not specified in the Agreement, 

Page 1 of3 



the CONSULT ANT and CITY shall mutually agree in writing to such additional services and the 

cost for the same prior to such additional services being provided. 

5. Entire Agreement. The CITY and the CONSULTANT agree that the Agreement
and this Amendment set faith the entire agreement between the patties, and that there are no 
promises or understandings other than those stated herein. None of the provisions, terms and 
conditions contained in this Amendment may be added to, modified, superseded or otherwise 
altered, except by written instrument executed by the patties hereto. All other terms and conditions 
of the Agreement (except as amended herein) remain in full force and effect. 

6. Counterparts. This Amendment may be simultaneously executed in several
counterpatts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the 
same instrument. Either or both patties may sign this Amendment via facsimile, email or 
electronically and such signature is as valid as the original signature of such patty. 

REST OF PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS 

Page 2 of 3 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the patties hereto have made and executed this Amendment 
to the Professional Services Agreement for Information Technology Services on the day and year 
first above written. 

ATTEST: 

By: _________ _ 
Deborah M. Andrea, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND 
LEGAL SUFFICIENCY: 

By: _ ________ _ 
Glen J. Torcivia, City Attorney 

[Corporate Seal] 

STATE OF FLORIDA ) 
COUNTY OF PALM BEACH) 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA 

By:-- - - ------ - 
Pam Triolo, Mayor 

APPROVED FOR FINANCIAL 
SUFFICIENCY 

By: _________ _ 
Bruce T. Miller, Financial Services Director 

R2 UNIFIED TECHNOLOGIES, LLC 

By: Cb ¾ 
. _,-.- 'j') J_ Prmt Name: -'tA '">to? 1

A. /4t7r_�

Title: D f'tc/4.r // � /e;: 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this -3 nf 
day oft) d-ohA,. 2020, by

¾So•'\ \).)�1"', , who was physically present, as l),Y.td>,_ �f Sd.-, (title), ofR2 Unified
Technologies, LLC, a Florida lim"ted liability company, and who is personally known to me or 
who has produced t Bowing nV.R..-,'S as identification 

Notary Public: 

#Y �c,., Notary Public State of Florid
]·· ! 't;_ Pllyllis R Garcia 

� c .. . ;f My Commission GG 346848 
"?Ji-

,:;,, 
,�oT Expiroo 09/15/2023 

.f'�••,t'••/"VV'V">#'�• 

Page 3 of3 



EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

AGENDA DATE: November 17, 2020 DEPARTMENT: Information Technology 

TITLE: 

Microsoft Enterprise Agreement Contract Renewal 

 
SUMMARY: 
The Contract Renewal provides for the renewal of a three (3) year enterprise agreement 
between Microsoft Corporation and the City of Lake Worth Beach for Microsoft Office 
Professional Plus, SQL software licensing, Visio Pro licensing, and Microsoft Azure Subscription 
for cloud backup.  

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 
The City is currently using Office for word processing, spreadsheets, databases, and general 
automation, Visio Pro used to conceptualize ideas visually, Exchange Server for email services, 
SQL for database server services and Microsoft Azure for cloud backup. 
 
The renewal of the City’s enterprise agreement guarantees the maintenance of the City’s current 
licenses through software assurance which provides 24x7 support, the latest software releases, 
deployment planning services, enhanced technical capabilities, end-user and technical training, 
and home use. Furthermore, it will continue to help standardize IT and simplify license 
management. 
 
Annual cost for the EAL of Office, Exchange Server, Visio Pro and SQL is $39,061.98 excluding 
additional license purchases required to remain in compliance with the estimated additional cost 
of $10,000. The cost for Microsoft Azure subscription is based on the amount of storage used 
by the City and, therefore, varies. The estimated Azure cost for FY 2020 is $60,000, FY 2021 is 
$65,000 and FY 2022 is $70,000. The total purchase for a not-to-exceed amount of $345,000 is 
being made through CDW-Government, supplier for Microsoft Software under master 
agreement 43230000-NASPO-16-ACS-SVAR as a sole source and exempt software renewal 
purchase. 

 
MOTION: 
I move to approve/disapprove the renewal of a three (3) year agreement with Microsoft 
Corporation for an amount not to exceed $345,000.00.  

 

ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 
Microsoft Enterprise Agreement FY2021-FY2023 
Microsoft Enterprise Agreement Amendment-M97 Azure 
Microsoft Enterprise Agreement Signature Form 
Microsoft Enterprise Enrollment (Indirect) 
Microsoft Enrollment Product Selection Form 



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Fiscal Years 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 
 
Capital Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0 
Operating Expenditures $110,000 $115,000 $120,000 0 0 
External Revenues 0 0 0 0 0 
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
In-kind Match  0 0 0 0 0 
 
Net Fiscal Impact $110,000 $115,000 $120,000 0 0 
 
No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 

 

B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Account 
Number 

Account 
Description 

Project 
Number 

FY20 
Budget 

Current 
Balance 

Agenda 
Expenditure 

Balance 
 

       

510-1520-
519.52-65 

Operating 
Supplies/Computer 
Software 

N/A $561,900.00 $493,025.38 $110,000.00 $383,025.38 

 

CDWG Microsoft Enterprise Agreement Renewal Quote 
 



 

EA20201AgrGov(US)SLG(ENG)(Oct2019) Page 1 of 11 
Document X20-10210 

 

Enterprise Agreement State and Local 
Not for Use with Microsoft Business Agreement or Microsoft Business and Services Agreement 

This Microsoft Enterprise Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into between the entities identified on the 
signature form. 

Effective date. The effective date of this Agreement is the earliest effective date of any Enrollment entered 
into under this Agreement or the date Microsoft accepts this Agreement, whichever is earlier. 

This Agreement consists of (1) these Agreement terms and conditions, including any amendments and the 
signature form and all attachments identified therein, (2) the Product Terms applicable to Products licensed 
under this Agreement, (3) the Online Services Terms, (4) any Affiliate Enrollment entered into under this 
Agreement, and (5) any order submitted under this Agreement. 

Please note: Documents referenced in this Agreement but not attached to the signature form may be found 
at http://www.microsoft.com/licensing/contracts and are incorporated in this Agreement by reference, 
including the Product Terms and Use Rights. These documents may contain additional terms and 
conditions for Products licensed under this Agreement and may be changed from time to time. Customer 
should review such documents carefully, both at the time of signing and periodically thereafter, and fully 
understand all terms and conditions applicable to Products licensed. 

Terms and Conditions 

1. Definitions. 

“Affiliate” means 

a. with regard to Customer, 

(i) any government agency, department, office, instrumentality, division, unit or other entity of 
the state or local government that is supervised by or is part of Customer, or which 
supervises Customer or of which Customer is a part, or which is under common supervision 
with Customer; 

(ii) any county, borough, commonwealth, city, municipality, town, township, special purpose 
district, or other similar type of governmental instrumentality established by the laws of 
Customer’s state and located within Customer’s state jurisdiction and geographic 
boundaries; and 

(iii) any other entity in Customer’s state expressly authorized by the laws of Customer’s state 
to purchase under state contracts; provided that a state and its Affiliates shall not, for 
purposes of this definition, be considered to be Affiliates of the federal government and its 
Affiliates; and 

b. with regard to Microsoft, any legal entity that Microsoft owns, that owns Microsoft, or that is 
under common ownership with Microsoft. 

“Customer” means the legal entity that has entered into this Agreement with Microsoft. 

“Customer Data” means all data, including all text, sound, software, image, or video files that are provided 
to Microsoft by, or on behalf of, an Enrolled Affiliate and its Affiliates through use of Online Services. 

"day" means a calendar day, except for references that specify “business day”. 

“Enrolled Affiliate” means an entity, either Customer or any one of Customer’s Affiliates that has entered 
into an Enrollment under this Agreement. 

http://www.microsoft.com/licensing/contracts


 

EA20201AgrGov(US)SLG(ENG)(Oct2019) Page 2 of 11 
Document X20-10210 

 

“Enrollment” means the document that an Enrolled Affiliate submits under this Agreement to place orders 
for Products. 

“Enterprise” means an Enrolled Affiliate and the Affiliates for which it is responsible and chooses on its 
Enrollment to include in its enterprise. 

“Fixes” means Product fixes, modifications or enhancements, or their derivatives, that Microsoft either 
releases generally (such as Product service packs) or provides to Customer to address a specific issue. 

“License” means the right to download, install, access and use a Product.  For certain Products, a License 
may be available on a fixed term or subscription basis (“Subscription License”). Licenses for Online 
Services will be considered Subscription Licenses. 

“Microsoft” means the Microsoft Affiliate that has entered into this Agreement or an Enrollment and its 
Affiliates, as appropriate. 

“Online Services” means the Microsoft-hosted services identified as Online Services in the Product Terms. 

“Online Services Terms” means the additional terms that apply to Customer’s use of Online Services 
published on the Volume Licensing Site and updated from time to time. 

“Product” means all products identified in the Product Terms, such as all Software, Online Services and 
other web-based services, including pre-release or beta versions. 

“Product Terms” means the document that provides information about Microsoft Products and Professional 
Services available through volume licensing.  The Product Terms document is published on the Volume 
Licensing Site and is updated from time to time. 

“SLA” means Service Level Agreement, which specifies the minimum service level for Online Services and 
is published on the Volume Licensing Site. 

“Software” means licensed copies of Microsoft software identified on the Product Terms. Software does not 
include Online Services, but Software may be part of an Online Service. 

“Software Assurance” is an offering by Microsoft that provides new version rights and other benefits for 
Products as further described in the Product Terms. 

“Trade Secret” means information that is not generally known or readily ascertainable to the public, has 
economic value as a result, and has been subject to reasonable steps under the circumstances to maintain 
its secrecy. 

“use” or “run” means to copy, install, use, access, display, run or otherwise interact. 

“Use Rights” means, with respect to any licensing program, the use rights or terms of service for each 
Product and version published for that licensing program at the Volume Licensing Site and updated from 
time to time. The Use Rights include the Product-Specific License Terms, the License Model terms, the 
Universal License Terms, the Data Protection Terms, and the Other Legal Terms. The Use Rights 
supersede the terms of any end user license agreement (on-screen or otherwise) that accompanies a 
Product. 

“Volume Licensing Site” means http://www.microsoft.com/licensing/contracts or a successor site. 

2. How the Enterprise program works. 

a. General.  The Enterprise program consists of the terms and conditions on which an Enrolled 
Affiliate may acquire Product Licenses. Under the Enterprise program, Customer and its 
Affiliates may order Licenses for Products by entering into Enrollments. 

b. Enrollments.  The Enterprise program gives Customer and/or its Affiliates the ability to enter 
into one or more Enrollments to order Products. Subscription Enrollments may be available for 
some of these Enrollments.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, only 
Enrolled Affiliates identified in an Enrollment will be responsible for complying with the terms 

http://www.microsoft.com/licensing/contracts


 

EA20201AgrGov(US)SLG(ENG)(Oct2019) Page 3 of 11 
Document X20-10210 

 

of that Enrollment, including the terms of this Agreement incorporated by reference in that 
Enrollment. 

c. Licenses.  The types of Licenses available are (1) Licenses obtained under Software 
Assurance (L&SA), and (2) Subscription Licenses. These License types, as well as additional 
License Types, are further described in the Product List. 

3. Licenses for Products. 

a. License Grant.  Microsoft grants the Enterprise a non-exclusive, worldwide and limited right 
to download, install and use software Products, and to access and use the Online Services, 
each in the quantity ordered under an Enrollment.  The rights granted are subject to the terms 
of this Agreement, the Use Rights and the Product Terms.  Microsoft reserves all rights not 
expressly granted in this Agreement. 

b. Duration of Licenses.  Subscription Licenses and most Software Assurance rights are 
temporary and expire when the applicable Enrollment is terminated or expires, unless the 
Enrolled Affiliate exercises a buy-out option, which is available for some Subscription Licenses.  
Except as otherwise noted in the applicable Enrollment or Use Rights, all other Licenses 
become perpetual only when all payments for that License have been made and the initial 
Enrollment term has expired. 

c. Applicable Use Rights. The latest Use Rights as updated from time to time, apply to the use 
of all Products, subject to the following exceptions. 

(i) For products with metered usage-based pricing (e.g. metered Microsoft Azure 
Services)  Material adverse changes published after the start of a calendar month will 
apply beginning the following month.     

(ii) For Versioned Software.  Material adverse changes published after the date a Product is 
first licensed will not apply to any licenses for that Product acquired during the applicable 
Enrollment term unless the changes are published with the release of a new version and 
Customer chooses to update to that version. Renewal of Software Assurance does not 
change which Use Rights apply to perpetual Licenses acquired during a previous term or 
Enrollment 

(iii) For all other Products (e.g. Office 365 services).  Material adverse changes published 
after the start of the subscription term will not apply to any licenses for that Product acquired 
during the applicable Enrollment term. 

(iv) For use rights granted through Software Assurance. Material adverse changes 
published after the date a Product is first licensed will not apply to any licenses for that 
Product during the applicable enrollment term unless the changes are published with the 
release of a new version and Customer chooses to update to that version.  

d. Downgrade rights.  Enrolled Affiliate may use an earlier version of a Product other than Online 
Services than the version that is current on the effective date of the Enrollment.  For Licenses 
acquired in the current Enrollment term, the Use Rights for the current version apply to the use 
of the earlier version.  If the earlier Product version includes features that are not in the new 
version, then the Use Rights applicable to the earlier version apply with respect to those 
features. 

e. New Version Rights under Software Assurance.  Enrolled Affiliate must order and maintain 
continuous Software Assurance coverage for each License ordered.  With Software Assurance 
coverage, Enterprise automatically has the right to use a new version of a licensed Product as 
soon as it is released, even if Enrolled Affiliate chooses not to use the new version immediately. 

(i) Except as otherwise permitted under an Enrollment, use of the new version will be subject 
to the new version’s Use Rights. 



 

EA20201AgrGov(US)SLG(ENG)(Oct2019) Page 4 of 11 
Document X20-10210 

 

(ii) If the License for the earlier version of the Product is perpetual at the time the new version 
is released, the License for the new version will also be perpetual.  Perpetual Licenses 
obtained through Software Assurance replace any perpetual Licenses for the earlier 
version. 

f. License confirmation.  This Agreement, the applicable Enrollment, Enrolled Affiliate’s order 
confirmation, and any documentation evidencing transfers of perpetual Licenses, together with 
proof of payment, will be Enrolled Affiliate’s evidence of all Licenses obtained under an 
Enrollment. 

g. Reorganizations, consolidations and privatizations.  If the number of Licenses covered by 
an Enrollment changes by more than ten percent as a result of (1) a reorganization, 
consolidation or privatization of an entity or an operating division, (2) a privatization of an 
Affiliate or an operating division of Enrolled Affiliate or any of its Affiliates, or (3) a consolidation 
including a merger with a third party that has an existing agreement or Enrollment, Microsoft 
will work with Enrolled Affiliate in good faith to determine how to accommodate its changed 
circumstances in the context of this Agreement. 

4. Making copies of Products and re-imaging rights. 

a. General.  Enrolled Affiliate may make as many copies of Products, as it needs to distribute 
them within the Enterprise. Copies must be true and complete (including copyright and 
trademark notices) from master copies obtained from a Microsoft approved fulfillment source.  
Enrolled Affiliate may use a third party to make these copies, but Enrolled Affiliate agrees it will 
be responsible for any third party’s actions.  Enrolled Affiliate agrees to make reasonable efforts 
to notify its employees, agents, and any other individuals who use the Products that the 
Products are licensed from Microsoft and subject to the terms of this Agreement. 

b. Copies for training/evaluation and back-up.  For all Products other than Online Services, 
Enrolled Affiliate may: (1) use up to 20 complimentary copies of any licensed Product in a 
dedicated training facility on its premises for purposes of training on that particular Product, (2) 
use up to 10 complimentary copies of any Products for a 60-day evaluation period, and (3) use 
one complimentary copy of any licensed Product for back-up or archival purposes for each of 
its distinct geographic locations.  Trials for Online Services may be available if specified in the 
Use Rights. 

c. Right to re-image.  In certain cases, re-imaging is permitted using the Product media.  If the 
Microsoft Product is licensed (1) from an original equipment manufacturer (OEM), (2) as a full 
packaged Product through a retail source, or (3) under another Microsoft program, then media 
provided under this Agreement may generally be used to create images for use in place of 
copies provided through that separate source.  This right is conditional upon the following: 

(i) Separate Licenses must be acquired from the separate source for each Product that is re-
imaged. 

(ii) The Product, language, version, and components of the copies made must be identical to 
the Product, language, version, and all components of the copies they replace, and the 
number of copies or instances of the re-imaged Product permitted remains the same. 

(iii) Except for copies of an operating system and copies of Products licensed under another 
Microsoft program, the Product type (e.g., Upgrade or full License) re-imaged must be 
identical to the Product type licensed from the separate source. 

(iv) Enrolled Affiliate must adhere to any Product-specific processes or requirements for re-
imaging identified in the Product Terms. 

Re-imaged Products remain subject to the terms and use rights of the License acquired from 
the separate source. This subsection does not create or extend any Microsoft warranty or 
support obligation. 



 

EA20201AgrGov(US)SLG(ENG)(Oct2019) Page 5 of 11 
Document X20-10210 

 

5. Transferring and reassigning Licenses. 

a. License transfers.  License transfers are not permitted, except that Customer or an Enrolled 
Affiliate may transfer only fully paid perpetual Licenses to: 

(i) an Affiliate, or 

(ii) a third party solely in connection with the transfer of hardware or employees to whom the 
Licenses have been assigned as part of (1) a privatization of an Affiliate or agency or of an 
operating division of Enrolled Affiliate or an Affiliate, (2) a reorganization, or (3) a 
consolidation. 

Upon such transfer, Customer or Enrolled Affiliate must uninstall and discontinue using the 
licensed Product and render any copies unusable. 

b. Notification of License Transfer.  Enrolled Affiliate must notify Microsoft of a License transfer 
by completing a license transfer form, which can be obtained from 
http://www.microsoft.com/licensing/contracts and sending the completed form to Microsoft 
before the License transfer.  No License transfer will be valid unless Enrolled Affiliate provides 
to the transferee, and the transferee accepts in writing, documents sufficient to enable the 
transferee to ascertain the scope, purpose and limitations of the rights granted by Microsoft 
under the licenses being transferred (includingthe applicable Use Rights, use and transfer 
restrictions, warranties and limitations of liability).  Any License transfer not made in compliance 
with this section will be void. 

c. Internal Assignment of Licenses and Software Assurance.  Licenses and Software 
Assurance must be assigned to a single user or device within the Enterprise.  Licenses and 
Software Assurance may be reassigned within the Enterprise as described in the Use Rights. 

6. Term and termination. 

a. Term.  The term of this Agreement will remain in effect unless terminated by either party as 
described below. Each Enrollment will have the term provided in that Enrollment. 

b. Termination without cause.  Either party may terminate this Agreement, without cause, upon 
60 days’ written notice. In the event of termination, new Enrollments will not be accepted, but 
any existing Enrollment will continue for the term of such Enrollment and will continue to be 
governed by this Agreement. 

c. Mid-term termination for non-appropriation of Funds.  Enrolled Affiliate may terminate this 
Agreement or an Enrollment without liability, penalty or further obligation to make payments if 
funds to make payments under the Agreement or Enrollment are not appropriated or allocated 
by the Enrolled Affiliate for such purpose. 

d. Termination for cause.  Without limiting any other remedies it may have, either party may 
terminate an Enrollment if the other party materially breaches its obligations under this 
Agreement, including any obligation to submit orders or pay invoices.  Except where the breach 
is by its nature not curable within 30 days, the terminating party must give the other party 30 
days’ notice of its intent to terminate and an opportunity to cure the breach. 

If Microsoft gives such notice to an Enrolled Affiliate, Microsoft also will give Customer a copy 
of that notice and Customer agrees to help resolve the breach.  If the breach affects other 
Enrollments and cannot be resolved between Microsoft and Enrolled Affiliate, together with 
Customer’s help, within a reasonable period of time, Microsoft may terminate this Agreement 
and all Enrollments under it. If an Enrolled Affiliate ceases to be Customer’s Affiliate, it must 
promptly notify Microsoft, and Microsoft may terminate the former Affiliate’s Enrollment. If an 
Enrolled Affiliate terminates its Enrollment as a result of a breach by Microsoft, or if Microsoft 
terminates an Enrollment because Enrolled Affiliate ceases to be Customer’s Affiliate, then 
Enrolled Affiliate will have the early termination rights described in the Enrollment. 

http://www.microsoft.com/licensing/contracts


 

EA20201AgrGov(US)SLG(ENG)(Oct2019) Page 6 of 11 
Document X20-10210 

 

e. Early termination.  If (1) an Enrolled Affiliate terminates its Enrollment as a result of a breach 
by Microsoft, or (2) if Microsoft terminates an Enrollment because the Enrolled Affiliate has 
ceased to be an Affiliate of Customer, or (3) Enrolled Affiliate terminates an Enrollment for non-
appropriation of funds, or (4) Microsoft terminates an Enrollment for non-payment due to non-
appropriation of funds, then the Enrolled Affiliate will have the following options: 

(i) It may immediately pay the total remaining amount due, including all installments, in which 
case, the Enrolled Affiliate will have perpetual rights for all Licenses it has ordered; or 

(ii) It may pay only amounts due as of the termination date, in which case the Enrolled Affiliate 
will have perpetual Licenses for: 

1) all copies of Products (including the latest version of Products ordered under SA 
coverage in the current term) for which payment has been made in full, and 

2) the number of copies of Products it has ordered (including the latest version of 
Products ordered under Software Assurance coverage in current term) that is 
proportional to the total of installment payments paid versus total amounts due (paid 
and payable) if the early termination had not occurred. 

(iii) In the case of early termination under subscription Enrollments, Enrolled Affiliate will have 
the following options: 

1) For eligible Products, Enrolled Affiliate may obtain perpetual Licenses as described in 
the section of the Enrollment titled “Buy-out option,” provided that Microsoft receives 
the buy-out order for those Licenses within 60 days after Enrolled Affiliate provides 
notice of termination. 

2) In the event of a breach by Microsoft, if Customer chooses not to exercise a buy-out 
option, Microsoft will issue Enrolled Affiliate a credit for any amount paid in advance 
for Subscription Licenses that the Enterprise will not be able to use to do the 
termination of the Enrollment. 

Nothing in this section shall affect perpetual License rights acquired either in a separate 
agreement or in a prior term of the terminated Enrollment. 

f. Effect of termination or expiration.  When an Enrollment expires or is terminated, 

(i) Enrolled Affiliate must order Licenses for all copies of Products it has run for which it has 
not previously submitted an order.  Any and all unpaid payments for any order of any kind 
remain due and payable. Except as provided in the subsection titled “Early termination,” all 
unpaid payments for Licenses immediately become due and payable. 

(ii) Enrolled Affiliate’s right to Software Assurance benefits under this Agreement ends if it 
does not renew Software Assurance. 

g. Modification or termination of an Online Service for regulatory reasons.  Microsoft may 
modify or terminate an Online Service where there is any current or future government 
requirement or obligation that: (1) subjects Microsoft to any regulation or requirement not 
generally applicable to businesses operating in the jurisdiction; (2) presents a hardship for 
Microsoft to continue operating the Online Service without modification; and/or (3) causes 
Microsoft to believe these terms or the Online Service may conflict with any such requirement 
or obligation. 

h. Program updates.  Microsoft may make changes to this program that will make it necessary 
for Customer and its Enrolled Affiliates to enter into new agreements and Enrollments at the 
time of an Enrollment renewal. 



 

EA20201AgrGov(US)SLG(ENG)(Oct2019) Page 7 of 11 
Document X20-10210 

 

7. Use, ownership, rights, and restrictions. 

a. Products.  Unless otherwise specified in a supplemental agreement, use of any Product is 
governed by the Use Rights specific to each Product and version and by the terms of the 
applicable supplemental agreement. 

b. Fixes.  Each Fix is licensed under the same terms as the Product to which it applies. If a Fix is 
not provided for a specific Product, any use rights Microsoft provides with the Fix will apply. 

c. Non-Microsoft software and technology.  Enrolled Affiliate is solely responsible for any non-
Microsoft software or technology that it installs or uses with the Products or Fixes. 

d. Restrictions.  Enrolled Affiliate must not (and is not licensed to) (1) reverse engineer, 
decompile, or disassemble any Product or Fix; (2) install or use non-Microsoft software or 
technology in any way that would subject Microsoft’s intellectual property or technology to any 
other license terms; or (3) work around any technical limitations in a Product or Fix or 
restrictions in Product documentation.  Customer must not (and is not licensed to) (1) separate 
and run parts of a Product or Fix on more than one device, upgrade or downgrade parts of a 
Product or Fix at different times, or transfer parts of a Product or Fix separately; or (2) distribute, 
sublicense, rent, lease, lend any Products or Fixes, in whole or in part, or use them to offer 
hosting services to a third party. 

e. Reservation of rights.  Products and Fixes are protected by copyright and other intellectual 
property rights laws and international treaties. Microsoft reserves all rights not expressly 
granted in this agreement.  No rights will be granted or implied by waiver or estoppel.  Rights 
to access or use Software on a device do not give Customer any right to implement Microsoft 
patents or other Microsoft intellectual property in the device itself or in any other software or 
devices. 

8. Confidentiality. 

“Confidential Information” is non-public information that is designated “confidential” or that a reasonable 
person should understand is confidential, including Customer Data. Confidential Information does not 
include information that (1) becomes publicly available without a breach of this agreement, (2) the receiving 
party received lawfully from another source without a confidentiality obligation, (3) is independently 
developed, or (4) is a comment or suggestion volunteered about the other party’s business, products or 
services. 

Each party will take reasonable steps to protect the other’s Confidential Information and will use the other 
party’s Confidential Information only for purposes of the parties’ business relationship. Neither party will 
disclose that Confidential Information to third parties, except to its employees, Affiliates, contractors, 
advisors and consultants (“Representatives”) and then only on a need-to-know basis under nondisclosure 
obligations at least as protective as this agreement. Each party remains responsible for the use of the 
Confidential Information by its Representatives and, in the event of discovery of any unauthorized use or 
disclosure, must promptly notify the other party. 

A party may disclose the other’s Confidential Information if required by law; but only after it notifies the other 
party (if legally permissible) to enable the other party to seek a protective order. 

Neither party is required to restrict work assignments of its Representatives who have had access to 
Confidential Information. Each party agrees that the use of information retained in Representatives’ unaided 
memories in the development or deployment of the parties’ respective products or services does not create 
liability under this Agreement or trade secret law, and each party agrees to limit what it discloses to the 
other accordingly. 

These obligations apply (1) for Customer Data until it is deleted from the Online Services, and (2) for all 
other Confidential Information, for a period of five years after a party receives the Confidential Information. 



 

EA20201AgrGov(US)SLG(ENG)(Oct2019) Page 8 of 11 
Document X20-10210 

 

9. Privacy and compliance with laws. 

a. Enrolled Affiliate consents to the processing of personal information by Microsoft and its agents 
to facilitate the subject matter of this Agreement.  Enrolled Affiliate will obtain all required 
consents from third parties under applicable privacy and data protection law before providing 
personal information to Microsoft. 

b. Personal information collected under this agreement (1) may be transferred, stored and 
processed in the United States or any other country in which Microsoft or its service providers 
maintain facilities and (2) will be subject to the privacy terms specified in the Use Rights.  
Microsoft will abide by the requirements of European Economic Area and Swiss data protection 
law regarding the collection, use, transfer, retention, and other processing of personal data 
from the European Economic Area and Switzerland. 

c. U.S. export.  Products and Fixes are subject to U.S. export jurisdiction.  Enrolled Affiliate must 
comply with all applicable international and national laws, including the U.S. Export 
Administration Regulations and International Traffic in Arms Regulations, and end-user, end 
use and destination restrictions issued by U.S. and other governments related to Microsoft 
products, services and technologies. 

10. Warranties. 

a. Limited warranties and remedies. 

(i) Software.  Microsoft warrants that each version of the Software will perform substantially 
as described in the applicable Product documentation for one year from the date the 
Enterprise is first licensed for that version.  If it does not and the Enterprise notifies 
Microsoft within the warranty term, then Microsoft will, at its option (1) return the price 
Enrolled Affiliate paid for the Software license, or (2) repair or replace the Software. 

(ii) Online Services.  Microsoft warrants that each Online Service will perform in accordance 
with the applicable SLA during the Enterprise’s use.  The Enterprise’s remedies for breach 
of this warranty are in the SLA. 

The remedies above are the Enterprise’s sole remedies for breach of the warranties in this 
section.  Customer waives any breach of warranty claims not made during the warranty period. 

b. Exclusions.  The warranties in this agreement do not apply to problems caused by accident, 
abuse, or use in a manner inconsistent with this Agreement, including failure to meet minimum 
system requirements.  These warranties do not apply to free, trial, pre-release, or beta 
products, or to components of Products that Enrolled Affiliate is permitted to redistribute. 

c. Disclaimer.  Except for the limited warranties above, Microsoft provides no other 
warranties or conditions and disclaims any other express, implied, or statutory 
warranties, including warranties of quality, title, non-infringement, merchantability, and 
fitness for a particular purpose. 

11. Defense of third party claims. 

The parties will defend each other against the third-party claims described in this section and will pay the 
amount of any resulting adverse final judgment or approved settlement, but only if the defending party is 
promptly notified in writing of the claim and has the right to control the defense and any settlement of it. The 
party being defended must provide the defending party with all requested assistance, information, authority, 
and must take all reasonable action to mitigate its losses arising from the third-party claim. The defending 
party will reimburse the other party for reasonable out-of-pocket expenses it incurs in providing assistance. 
This section describes the parties’ sole remedies and entire liability for such claims. 

a. By Microsoft.  Microsoft will defend Enrolled Affiliate against any third-party claim to the extent 
it alleges that a Product or Fix made available by Microsoft for a fee and used within the scope 



 

EA20201AgrGov(US)SLG(ENG)(Oct2019) Page 9 of 11 
Document X20-10210 

 

of the license granted (unmodified from the form provided by Microsoft and not combined with 
anything else) misappropriates a trade secret or directly infringes a patent, copyright, 
trademark or other proprietary right of a third party.  If Microsoft is unable to resolve a claim of 
infringement under commercially reasonable terms, it may, at its option, either (1) modify or 
replace the Product or Fix with a functional equivalent; or (2) terminate Enrolled Affiliate’s 
license and refund any prepaid license fees (less depreciation on a five-year, straight-line 
basis) for perpetual licenses and any amount paid for Online Services for any usage period 
after the termination date.  Microsoft will not be liable for any claims or damages due to Enrolled 
Affiliate’s continued use of a Product or Fix after being notified to stop due to a third-party claim. 

b. By Enrolled Affiliate.  To the extent permitted by applicable law, Enrolled Affiliate will defend 
Microsoft against any third-party claim to the extent it alleges that: (1) any Customer Data or 
non-Microsoft software hosted in an Online Service by Microsoft on Enrolled Affiliate's behalf 
misappropriates a trade secret or directly infringes a patent, copyright, trademark, or other 
proprietary right of a third party; or (2) Enrolled Affiliate’s use of any Product or Fix, alone or in 
combination with anything else, violates the law or damages a third party. 

12. Limitation of liability. 

For each Product, each party’s maximum, aggregate liability to the other under this Agreement is limited 
to direct damages finally awarded in an amount not to exceed the amounts Enrolled Affiliate paid for the 
applicable Products during the term of this Agreement, subject to the following: 

a. Online Services.  For Online Services, Microsoft’s maximum liability to Enrolled Affiliate for 
any incident giving rise to a claim will not exceed the amount Enrolled Affiliate paid for the 
Online Service during the 12 months before the incident. 

b. Free Products and Distributable Code.  For Products provided free of charge and code 
that Enrolled Affiliate is authorized to redistribute to third parties without separate payment to 
Microsoft, Microsoft’s liability is limited to direct damages finally awarded up to US$5,000. 

c. Exclusions.  In no event will either party be liable for indirect, incidental, special, punitive, or 
consequential damages, or for loss of use, loss of business information, loss of revenue, or 
interruption of business, however caused or on any theory of liability. 

d. Exceptions.  No limitation or exclusions will apply to liability arising out of either party’s (1) 
confidentiality obligations (except for all liability related to Customer Data, which will remain 
subject to the limitations and exclusions above); (2) defense obligations; or (3) violation of the 
other party’s intellectual property rights. 

13. Verifying compliance. 

a. Right to verify compliance.  Enrolled Affiliate must keep records relating to all use and 
distribution of Products by Enrolled Affiliate and its Affiliates.  Microsoft has the right, at its 
expense, to the extent permitted by applicable law, to verify such compliance with the Product’s 
license terms.  Microsoft will engage an independent auditor and Enrolled Affiliate must provide 
the independent auditor with any information the auditor reasonably requests in furtherance of 
the verification, including visible access to systems running the Products and evidence of 
Licenses for Products Enrolled Affiliate hosts, sublicenses, or distributes to third parties.  
Enrolled Affiliate must provide, without undue delay, the foregoing information and access upon 
request of the independent auditor  

b. Verification process.  Microsoft will notify Enrolled Affiliate at least 30 calendar days in 
advance of its intent to verify Enrolled Affiliate’s compliance with the license terms for the 
Products Enrolled Affiliate use or distribute.  The independent auditor is subject to a 
confidentiality obligation sufficient to cover the auditor’s engagement with Enrolled Affiliate for 
the verification process. Enrolled Affiliate may, at its discretion, also require a mutually 
agreeable confidentiality agreement with the independent auditor for access to premises, data 



 

EA20201AgrGov(US)SLG(ENG)(Oct2019) Page 10 of 11 
Document X20-10210 

 

and systems.  Such confidentiality agreement between Enrolled Affiliate and auditor must be 
completed within fourteen (14) days of such request, and shall not restrict the ability for the 
independent auditor to accurately verify compliance and share the resulting information with 
Microsoft. Any information collected will be used solely for purposes of determining Enrolled 
Affiliate’s compliance.  This verification will take place during normal business hours and the 
auditor will make best efforts not to interfere with Enrolled Affiliate’s operations during the 
course of the audit. 

c. Remedies for non-compliance.  If verification reveals any use of Products without applicable 
license rights, then within 30 days Enrolled Affiliate must order sufficient licenses to cover its 
use, and, if such use or distribution is determined to be in excess of Enrolled Affiliate’s existing 
licenses by 5% or more of the audited environment(s) in aggregate, then Enrolled Affiliate must 
reimburse Microsoft for the costs Microsoft incurred in obtaining the verification and acquire 
the necessary additional licenses.  Such licenses will be obtained at 125% of the price, based 
on the then-current price list. The use percentage is based on the total number of Products 
used without applicable liscense rights (as described above) compared to the total Product 
use. If it is verified that Product use is sufficiently licensed, Microsoft will not require the 
Enterprise to engage in another verification for at least one year.  By exercising the rights and 
procedures described above, Microsoft does not waive its rights to enforce its rights under 
these Additional Use Rights and Restrictions or to protect its intellectual property by any other 
legal or contractual means. 

14. Miscellaneous. 

a. Use of contractors.  Microsoft may use contractors to perform services but will be responsible 
for their performance subject to the terms of this Agreement. 

b. Microsoft as independent contractor.  The parties are independent contractors. Enrolled 
Affiliate and Microsoft each may develop products independently without using the other’s 
Confidential Information. 

c. Notices.  Notices to Microsoft must be sent to the address on the signature form.  Notices must 
be in writing and will be treated as delivered on the date shown on the return receipt or on the 
courier or fax confirmation of delivery.  Microsoft may provide information to Enrolled Affiliate 
about upcoming ordering deadlines, services, and subscription information in electronic form, 
including by email to contacts provided by Enrolled Affiliate. Emails will be treated as delivered 
on the transmission date. 

d. Agreement not exclusive.  Customer is free to enter into agreements to license, use or 
promote non-Microsoft products. 

e. Amendments.  Any amendment to this Agreement must be executed by both parties, except 
that Microsoft may change the Product Terms and the Use Rights from time to time in 
accordance with the terms of this Agreement.  Any conflicting terms and conditions contained 
in an Enrolled Affiliate’s purchase order will not apply.  Microsoft may require Customer to sign 
a new agreement or an amendment before an Enrolled Affiliate enters into an Enrollment under 
this agreement. 

f. Assignment.  Either party may assign this Agreement to an Affiliate but must notify the other 
party in writing of the assignment. Any other proposed assignment must be approved by the 
non-assigning party in writing. Assignment will not relieve the assigning party of its obligations 
under the assigned agreement. Any attempted assignment without required approval will be 
void.  

g. Applicable law; dispute resolution.  The terms of this Agreement will be governed by the 
laws of Customer’s state, without giving effect to its conflict of laws.  Disputes relating to this 
Agreement will be subject to applicable dispute resolution laws of Customer’s state. 



 

EA20201AgrGov(US)SLG(ENG)(Oct2019) Page 11 of 11 
Document X20-10210 

 

h. Severability.  If any provision in this agreement is held to be unenforceable, the balance of the 
agreement will remain in full force and effect. 

i. Waiver.  Failure to enforce any provision of this agreement will not constitute a waiver. Any 
waiver must be in writing and signed by the waiving party. 

j. No third-party beneficiaries.  This Agreement does not create any third-party beneficiary 
rights. 

k. Survival.  All provisions survive termination or expiration of this Agreement except those 
requiring performance only during the term of the Agreement. 

l. Management and Reporting.  Customer and/or Enrolled Affiliate may manage account details 
(e.g., contacts, orders, Licenses, software downloads) on Microsoft’s Volume Licensing 
Service Center (“VLSC”) web site (or successor site) at: 
https://www.microsoft.com/licensing/servicecenter. Upon the effective date of this Agreement 
and any Enrollments, the contact(s) identified for this purpose will be provided access to this 
site and may authorize additional users and contacts. 

m. Order of precedence.  In the case of a conflict between any documents in this Agreement that 
is not expressly resolved in those documents, their terms will control in the following order from 
highest to lowest priority: (1) this Enterprise Agreement, (2) any Enrollment, (3) the Product 
Terms, (4) the Online Services Terms, (5) orders submitted under this Agreement, and (6) any 
other documents in this Agreement.  Terms in an amendment control over the amended 
document and any prior amendments concerning the same subject matter. 

n. Free Products.  It is Microsoft's intent that the terms of this Agreement and the Use Rights be 
in compliance with all applicable federal law and regulations.  Any free Product provided to 
Enrolled Affiliate is for the sole use and benefit of the Enrolled Affiliate and is not provided for 
use by or personal benefit of any specific government employee. 

o. Voluntary Product Accessibility Templates.  Microsoft supports the government’s obligation 
to provide accessible technologies to its citizens with disabilities as required by Section 508 of 
the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, and its state law counterparts. The Voluntary Product 
Accessibility Templates (“VPATs”) for the Microsoft technologies used in providing the Online 
Services can be found at Microsoft’s VPAT page.  Further information regarding Microsoft’s 
commitment to accessibility can be found at http://www.microsoft.com/enable. 

p. Natural disaster.  In the event of a “natural disaster,” Microsoft may provide additional 
assistance or rights by posting them on http://www.microsoft.com at such time. 

q. Copyright violation.  Except as set forth in the section above entitled “Transferring and 
reassigning Licenses”, the Enrolled Affiliate agrees to pay for, and comply with the terms of this 
Agreement and the Use Rights, for the Products it uses.  Except to the extent Enrolled Affiliate 
is licensed under this Agreement, it will be responsible for its breach of this contract and 
violation of Microsoft’s copyright in the Products, including payment of License fees specified 
in this Agreement for unlicensed use. 

https://www.microsoft.com/licensing/servicecenter
http://www.microsoft.com/enable
http://www.microsoft.com/


 

AmendmentApp v4.0 M97 B 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 

Amendment to Contract Documents  

Enrollment Number 

 
  5-0000005886677 

 

This amendment (“Amendment”) is entered into between the parties identified on the attached program 
signature form. It amends the Enrollment or Agreement identified above.  All terms used but not defined 
in this Amendment will have the same meanings provided in that Enrollment or Agreement. 

 

Enterprise Enrollment (Indirect) 
Invoice for Quoted Price 
Amendment ID M97 

The price quoted to Enrolled Affiliate’s Reseller is a fixed price based on an estimated order submission 
date.   Microsoft will invoice Enrolled Affiliate’s Reseller based on this fixed price quote.  If this order is 
submitted later than the estimated order submission date, Enrolled Affiliate’s Reseller will be charged 
for net new Monthly Subscriptions (including Online Services) for the period during which these services 
were not provided.  Pricing to Enrolled Affiliate is agreed between Enrolled Affiliate and Enrolled 
Affiliate’s Reseller. 

 

 

SKU Number SKU Description Existing Quantity Incremental 
quantities 

J5U-00004 AzureprepaymentG 
ShrdSvr ALNG SubsVL 
MVL Commit Provision 

1 
      

                        

                        

                        

                        

                        

                        

                        

                        

                        

 
Except for changes made by this Amendment, the Enrollment or Agreement identified above remains 
unchanged and in full force and effect. If there is any conflict between any provision in this Amendment 
and any provision in the Enrollment or Agreement identified above, this Amendment shall control. 

 

This Amendment must be attached to a signature form to be valid. 



 

AmendmentApp v4.0 M97 B 

Page 2 of 2 
 

  

 

Microsoft Internal Use Only: 

(M97)EnrAmend(Ind)(InvoiceforQuotedPrice)(
WW)(ENG)(Dec2019)(IU) .docx 

 M97 B 

 



 

ProgramSignForm(MSSign)(NA,LatAm)ExBRA,MLI(ENG)(May2020) Page 1 of 2 
Document X20-12883 

 

Program Signature Form 

MBA/MBSA number  
 

5-0000005886677 

Agreement number E7231140 
  

Note:  Enter the applicable active numbers associated with the documents below.  Microsoft requires the 

associated active number be indicated here, or listed below as new. 

 

For the purposes of this form, “Customer” can mean the signing entity, Enrolled Affiliate, 
Government Partner, Institution, or other party entering into a volume licensing program agreement. 

This signature form and all contract documents identified in the table below are entered into between 
the Customer and the Microsoft Affiliate signing, as of the effective date identified below. 

Contract Document Number or Code 

Enterprise Agreement X20-10210 

Enterprise Enrollment (Indirect) X20-10635 

Product Selection Form 0994363.005 (New) 

Enterprise Amendment M97 (New) 

By signing below, Customer and the Microsoft Affiliate agree that both parties (1) have received, read 
and understand the above contract documents, including any websites or documents incorporated by 
reference and any amendments and (2) agree to be bound by the terms of all such documents. 

Customer 

Name of Entity (must be legal entity name)* City of Lake Worth 

Signature*  

Printed First and Last Name*  

Printed Title  

Signature Date*  

Tax ID  

* indicates required field 

Microsoft Affiliate 

Microsoft Corporation 

Signature   

Printed First and Last Name  

Printed Title  

Signature Date  
(date Microsoft Affiliate countersigns) 

Agreement Effective Date  
(may be different than Microsoft’s signature date) 



 

ProgramSignForm(MSSign)(NA,LatAm)ExBRA,MLI(ENG)(May2020) Page 2 of 2 
Document X20-12883 

 

Optional 2nd Customer signature or Outsourcer signature (if applicable) 

Customer 

Name of Entity (must be legal entity name)*  

Signature*  

Printed First and Last Name*  

Printed Title  

Signature Date*  

* indicates required field 

Outsourcer 

Name of Entity (must be legal entity name)*  

Signature*  

Printed First and Last Name*  

Printed Title  

Signature Date*  

* indicates required field 

If Customer requires additional contacts or is reporting multiple previous Enrollments, include the 
appropriate form(s) with this signature form. 

After this signature form is signed by the Customer, send it and the Contract Documents to Customer’s 
channel partner or Microsoft account manager, who must submit them to the following address.  When 
the signature form is fully executed by Microsoft, Customer will receive a confirmation copy. 

Microsoft Corporation 
Dept. 551, Volume Licensing 
6880 Sierra Center Parkway 
Reno, Nevada  89511 
USA  



 

EA20201EnrGov(US)SLG(ENG)(Oct2019) Page 1 of 10 

Document X20-10635 
 

Enterprise Enrollment State and Local 

Enterprise Enrollment number 
(Microsoft to complete) 77495388 

Framework ID  
(if applicable)       

Previous Enrollment number 
(Reseller to complete) 

6014252   

 

This Enrollment must be attached to a signature form to be valid. 

This Microsoft Enterprise Enrollment is entered into between the entities as identified in the signature form 
as of the effective date. Enrolled Affiliate represents and warrants it is the same Customer, or an Affiliate of 
the Customer, that entered into the Enterprise Agreement identified on the program signature form. 

This Enrollment consists of: (1) these terms and conditions, (2) the terms of the Enterprise Agreement 
identified on the signature form, (3) the Product Selection Form, (4) the Product Terms, (5) the Online 
Services Terms, (6) any Supplemental Contact Information Form, Previous Agreement/Enrollment form, 
and other forms that may be required, and (7) any order submitted under this Enrollment. This Enrollment 
may only be entered into under a 2011 or later Enterprise Agreement.  By entering into this Enrollment, 
Enrolled Affiliate agrees to be bound by the terms and conditions of the Enterprise Agreement. 

All terms used but not defined are located at http://www.microsoft.com/licensing/contracts. In the event of 
any conflict the terms of this Agreement control. 

Effective date.  If Enrolled Affiliate is renewing Software Assurance or Subscription Licenses from one or 
more previous Enrollments or agreements, then the effective date will be the day after the first prior 
Enrollment or agreement expires or terminates. If this Enrollment is renewed, the effective date of the 
renewal term will be the day after the Expiration Date of the initial term.  Otherwise, the effective date will 
be the date this Enrollment is accepted by Microsoft.  Any reference to “anniversary date” refers to the 
anniversary of the effective date of the applicable initial or renewal term for each year this Enrollment is in 
effect. 

Term.  The initial term of this Enrollment will expire on the last day of the month, 36 full calendar months 
from the effective date of the initial term.  The renewal term will expire 36 full calendar months after the 
effective date of the renewal term. 

Terms and Conditions 

1. Definitions. 

Terms used but not defined in this Enrollment will have the definition in the Enterprise Agreement.  The 
following definitions are used in this Enrollment: 

“Additional Product” means any Product identified as such in the Product Terms and chosen by Enrolled 
Affiliate under this Enrollment. 

“Community” means the community consisting of one or more of the following: (1) a Government, (2) an 
Enrolled Affiliate using eligible Government Community Cloud Services to provide solutions to a 
Government or a qualified member of the Community, or (3) a Customer with Customer Data that is subject 
to Government regulations for which Customer determines and Microsoft agrees that the use of 
Government Community Cloud Services is appropriate to meet Customer’s regulatory requirements.  

http://www.microsoft.com/licensing/contracts


 

EA20201EnrGov(US)SLG(ENG)(Oct2019) Page 2 of 10 

Document X20-10635 
 

Membership in the Community is ultimately at Microsoft’s discretion, which may vary by Government 
Community Cloud Service. 

“Enterprise Online Service” means any Online Service designated as an Enterprise Online Service in the 
Product Terms and chosen by Enrolled Affiliate under this Enrollment.  Enterprise Online Services are 
treated as Online Services, except as noted. 

“Enterprise Product” means any Desktop Platform Product that Microsoft designates as an Enterprise 
Product in the Product Terms and chosen by Enrolled Affiliate under this Enrollment.  Enterprise Products 
must be licensed for all Qualified Devices and Qualified Users on an Enterprise-wide basis under this 
program. 

“Expiration Date” means the date upon which the Enrollment expires. 

“Federal Agency” means a bureau, office, agency, department or other entity of the United States 
Government. 

“Government” means a Federal Agency, State/Local Entity, or Tribal Entity acting in its governmental 
capacity. 

“Government Community Cloud Services” means Microsoft Online Services that are provisioned in 
Microsoft’s multi-tenant data centers for exclusive use by or for the Community and offered in accordance 
with the National Institute of Standards and Technology (NIST) Special Publication 800-145.  Microsoft 
Online Services that are Government Community Cloud Services are designated as such in the Use Rights 
and Product Terms. 

“Industry Device” (also known as line of business device) means any device that: (1) is not useable in its 
deployed configuration as a general purpose personal computing device (such as a personal computer), a 
multi-function server, or a commercially viable substitute for one of these systems; and (2) only employs an 
industry or task-specific software program (e.g. a computer-aided design program used by an architect or 
a point of sale program) (“Industry Program”).  The device may include features and functions derived from 
Microsoft software or third-party software.  If the device performs desktop functions (such as email, word 
processing, spreadsheets, database, network or Internet browsing, or scheduling, or personal finance), 
then the desktop functions: (1) may only be used for the purpose of supporting the Industry Program 
functionality; and (2) must be technically integrated with the Industry Program or employ technically 
enforced policies or architecture to operate only when used with the Industry Program functionality. 

“Managed Device” means any device on which any Affiliate in the Enterprise directly or indirectly controls 
one or more operating system environments. Examples of Managed Devices can be found in the Product 
Terms. 

“Qualified Device” means any device that is used by or for the benefit of Enrolled Affiliate’s Enterprise and 
is: (1) a personal desktop computer, portable computer, workstation, or similar device capable of running 
Windows Pro locally (in a physical or virtual operating system environment), or (2) a device used to access 
a virtual desktop infrastructure (“VDI”).  Qualified Devices do not include any device that is: (1) designated 
as a server and not used as a personal computer, (2) an Industry Device, or (3) not a Managed Device.  At 
its option, the Enrolled Affiliate may designate any device excluded above (e.g., Industry Device) that is 
used by or for the benefit of the Enrolled Affiliate’s Enterprise as a Qualified Device for all or a subset of 
Enterprise Products or Online Services the Enrolled Affiliate has selected. 

“Qualified User” means a person (e.g., employee, consultant, contingent staff) who: (1) is a user of a 
Qualified Device, or (2) accesses any server software requiring an Enterprise Product Client Access 
License or any Enterprise Online Service.  It does not include a person who accesses server software or 
an Online Service solely under a License identified in the Qualified User exemptions in the Product Terms. 

“Reseller” means an entity authorized by Microsoft to resell Licenses under this program and engaged by 
an Enrolled Affiliate to provide pre- and post-transaction assistance related to this agreement; 

“Reserved License” means for an Online Service identified as eligible for true-ups in the Product Terms, 
the License reserved by Enrolled Affiliate prior to use and for which Microsoft will make the Online Service 
available for activation. 



 

EA20201EnrGov(US)SLG(ENG)(Oct2019) Page 3 of 10 

Document X20-10635 
 

"State/Local Entity" means (1) any agency of a state or local government in the United States, or (2) any 
United States county, borough, commonwealth, city, municipality, town, township, special purpose district, 
or other similar type of governmental instrumentality established by the laws of Customer’s state and 
located within Customer’s state’s jurisdiction and geographic boundaries. 

“Tribal Entity” means a federally recognized tribal entity performing tribal governmental functions and 
eligible for funding and services from the U.S. Department of Interior by virtue of its status as an Indian 
tribe. 

“Use Rights” means, with respect to any licensing program, the use rights or terms of service for each 
Product and version published for that licensing program at the Volume Licensing Site and updated from 
time to time. The Use Rights include the Product-Specific License Terms, the License Model terms, the 
Universal License Terms, the Data Protection Terms, and the Other Legal Terms. The Use Rights 
supersede the terms of any end user license agreement (on-screen or otherwise) that accompanies a 
Product. 

“Volume Licensing Site” means http://www.microsoft.com/licensing/contracts or a successor site. 

2. Order requirements. 

a. Minimum order requirements.  Enrolled Affiliate’s Enterprise must have a minimum of 250 
Qualified Users or Qualified Devices.  The initial order must include at least 250 Licenses for 
Enterprise Products or Enterprise Online Services. 

(i) Enterprise commitment.  Enrolled Affiliate must order enough Licenses to cover all 
Qualified Users or Qualified Devices, depending on the License Type, with one or more 
Enterprise Products or a mix of Enterprise Products and the corresponding Enterprise 
Online Services (as long as all Qualified Devices not covered by a License are only used 
by users covered with a user License). 

(ii) Enterprise Online Services only.  If no Enterprise Product is ordered, then Enrolled 
Affiliate need only maintain at least 250 Subscription Licenses for Enterprise Online 
Services. 

b. Additional Products.  Upon satisfying the minimum order requirements above, Enrolled 
Affiliate may order Additional Products. 

c. Use Rights for Enterprise Products.  For Enterprise Products, if a new Product version has 
more restrictive use rights than the version that is current at the start of the applicable initial or 
renewal term of the Enrollment, those more restrictive use rights will not apply to Enrolled 
Affiliate’s use of that Product during that term. 

d. Country of usage.  Enrolled Affiliate must specify the countries where Licenses will be used 
on its initial order and on any additional orders. 

e. Resellers.  Enrolled Affiliate must choose and maintain a Reseller authorized in the United 
States. Enrolled Affiliate will acquire its Licenses through its chosen Reseller. Orders must be 
submitted to the Reseller who will transmit the order to Microsoft. The Reseller and Enrolled 
Affiliate determine pricing and payment terms as between them, and Microsoft will invoice the 
Reseller based on those terms. Throughout this Agreement the term “price” refers to reference 
price. Resellers and other third parties do not have authority to bind or impose any obligation 
or liability on Microsoft. 

f. Adding Products. 

(i) Adding new Products not previously ordered.  New Enterprise Products or Enterprise 
Online Services may be added at any time by contacting a Microsoft Account Manager or 
Reseller.  New Additional Products, other than Online Services, may be used if an order is 
placed in the month the Product is first used.  For Additional Products that are Online 
Services, an initial order for the Online Service is required prior to use. 

http://www.microsoft.com/licensing/contracts


 

EA20201EnrGov(US)SLG(ENG)(Oct2019) Page 4 of 10 

Document X20-10635 
 

(ii) Adding Licenses for previously ordered Products.  Additional Licenses for previously 
ordered Products other than Online Services may be added at any time but must be 
included in the next true-up order.  Additional Licenses for Online Services must be ordered 
prior to use, unless the Online Services are (1) identified as eligible for true-up in the 
Product Terms or (2) included as part of other Licenses. 

g. True-up requirements.  Enrolled Affiliate must submit an annual true-up order that accounts 
for any changes since the initial order or last order.  If there are no changes, then an update 
statement must be submitted instead of a true-up order. 

(i) Enterprise Products.  For Enterprise Products, Enrolled Affiliate must determine the 
number of Qualified Devices and Qualified Users (if ordering user-based Licenses) at the 
time the true-up order is placed and must order additional Licenses for all Qualified Devices 
and Qualified Users that are not already covered by existing Licenses, including any 
Enterprise Online Services. 

(ii) Additional Products.  For Additional Products that have been previously ordered under 
this Enrollment, Enrolled Affiliate must determine the maximum number of Additional 
Products used since the latter of the initial order, the last true-up order, or the prior 
anniversary date and submit a true-up order that accounts for any increase. 

(iii) Online Services.  For Online Services identified as eligible for true-up in the Product 
Terms, Enrolled Affiliate may place a reservation order for the additional Licenses prior to 
use and payment may be deferred until the next true-up order.  Microsoft will provide a 
report of Reserved Licenses ordered but not yet invoiced to Enrolled Affiliate and its 
Reseller.  Reserved Licenses will be invoiced retrospectively to the month in which they 
were ordered. 

(iv) Subscription License reductions.  Enrolled Affiliate may reduce the quantity of 
Subscription Licenses at the Enrollment anniversary date on a prospective basis if 
permitted in the Product Terms, as follows: 

1) For Subscription Licenses that are part of an Enterprise-wide purchase, Licenses may 
be reduced if the total quantity of Licenses and Software Assurance for an applicable 
group meets or exceeds the quantity of Qualified Devices and Qualified Users (if 
ordering user-based Licenses) identified on the Product Selection Form, and includes 
any additional Qualified Devices and Qualified Users added in any prior true-up orders.  
Step-up Licenses do not count towards this total count. 

2) For Enterprise Online Services that are not a part of an Enterprise-wide purchase, 
Licenses can be reduced as long as the initial order minimum requirements are 
maintained. 

3) For Additional Products available as Subscription Licenses, Enrolled Affiliate may 
reduce the Licenses.  If the License count is reduced to zero, then Enrolled Affiliate’s 
use of the applicable Subscription License will be cancelled. 

Invoices will be adjusted to reflect any reductions in Subscription Licenses at the true-up 
order Enrollment anniversary date and effective as of such date. 

(v) Update statement.  An update statement must be submitted instead of a true-up order if, 
since the initial order or last true-up order, Enrolled Affiliate’s Enterprise: (1) has not 
changed the number of Qualified Devices and Qualified Users licensed with Enterprise 
Products or Enterprise Online Services; and (2) has not increased its usage of Additional 
Products.  This update statement must be signed by Enrolled Affiliate’s authorized 
representative. 

(vi) True-up order period.  The true-up order or update statement must be received by 
Microsoft between 60 and 30 days prior to each Enrollment anniversary date.  The third-
year true-up order or update statement is due within 30 days prior to the Expiration Date, 
and any license reservations within this 30 day period will not be accepted. Enrolled Affiliate 



 

EA20201EnrGov(US)SLG(ENG)(Oct2019) Page 5 of 10 

Document X20-10635 
 

may submit true-up orders more often to account for increases in Product usage, but an 
annual true-up order or update statement must still be submitted during the annual order 
period. 

(vii) Late true-up order.  If the true-up order or update statement is not received when due, 
Microsoft will invoice Reseller for all Reserved Licenses not previously invoiced and 
Subscription License reductions cannot be reported until the following Enrollment 
anniversary date (or at Enrollment renewal, as applicable). 

h. Step-up Licenses.  For Licenses eligible for a step-up under this Enrollment, Enrolled Affiliate 
may step-up to a higher edition or suite as follows: 

(i) For step-up Licenses included on an initial order, Enrolled Affiliate may order according to 
the true-up process. 

(ii) If step-up Licenses are not included on an initial order, Enrolled Affiliate may step-up 
initially by following the process described in the Section titled “Adding new Products not 
previously ordered,” then for additional step-up Licenses, by following the true-up order 
process. 

i. Clerical errors.  Microsoft may correct clerical errors in this Enrollment, and any documents 
submitted with or under this Enrollment, by providing notice by email and a reasonable 
opportunity for Enrolled Affiliate to object to the correction.  Clerical errors include minor 
mistakes, unintentional additions and omissions.  This provision does not apply to material 
terms, such as the identity, quantity or price of a Product ordered. 

j. Verifying compliance.  Microsoft may, in its discretion and at its expense, verify compliance 
with this Enrollment as set forth in the Enterprise Agreement. 

3. Pricing. 

a. Price Levels.  For both the initial and any renewal term Enrolled Affiliate’s Price Level for all 
Products ordered under this Enrollment will be Level “D” throughout the term of the Enrollment. 

b. Setting Prices.  Enrolled Affiliate’s prices for each Product or Service will be established by its 
Reseller.  Except for Online Services designated in the Product Terms as being exempt from 
fixed pricing, As long as Enrolled Affiliate continues to qualify for the same price level, 
Microsoft’s prices for Resellers for each Product or Service ordered will be fixed throughout the 
applicable initial or renewal Enrollment term.  Microsoft’s prices to Resellers are reestablished 
at the beginning of the renewal term. 

4. Payment terms. 

For the initial or renewal order, Microsoft will invoice Enrolled Affiliate’s Reseller in three equal annual 
installments.  The first installment will be invoiced upon Microsoft’s acceptance of this Enrollment and 
remaining installments will be invoiced on each subsequent Enrollment anniversary date. Subsequent 
orders are invoiced upon acceptance of the order and Enrolled Affiliate may elect to pay annually or upfront 
for Online Services and upfront for all other Licenses. 

5. End of Enrollment term and termination. 

a. General.  At the Expiration Date, Enrolled Affiliate must immediately order and pay for Licenses 
for Products it has used but has not previously submitted an order, except as otherwise 
provided in this Enrollment. 

b. Renewal option.  At the Expiration Date of the initial term, Enrolled Affiliate can renew 
Products by renewing this Enrollment for one additional 36-month term or by signing a new 
Enrollment.  Microsoft must receive a Renewal Form, Product Selection Form, and renewal 
order prior to or at the Expiration Date. Microsoft will not unreasonably reject any renewal. 



 

EA20201EnrGov(US)SLG(ENG)(Oct2019) Page 6 of 10 

Document X20-10635 
 

Microsoft may make changes to this program that will make it necessary for Customer and its 
Enrolled Affiliates to enter into new agreements and Enrollments at renewal. 

c. If Enrolled Affiliate elects not to renew. 

(i) Software Assurance.  If Enrolled Affiliate elects not to renew Software Assurance for any 
Product under its Enrollment, then Enrolled Affiliate will not be permitted to order Software 
Assurance later without first acquiring a new License with Software Assurance. 

(ii) Online Services eligible for an Extended Term.  For Online Services identified as eligible 
for an Extended Term in the Product Terms, the following options are available at the end 
of the Enrollment initial or renewal term. 

1) Extended Term.  Licenses for Online Services will automatically expire in accordance 
with the terms of the Enrollment. An extended term feature that allows Online Services 
to continue month-to-month (“Extended Term”) is available.  During the Extended 
Term, Online Services will be invoiced monthly at the then-current published price as 
of the Expiration Date plus a 3% administrative fee for up to one year. If Enrolled 
Affiliate wants an Extended Term, Enrolled Affiliate must submit a request to Microsoft 
at least 30 days prior to the Expiration Date. 

2) Cancellation during Extended Term.  At any time during the first year of the 
Extended Term, Enrolled Affiliate may terminate the Extended Term by submitting a 
notice of cancellation to Microsoft for each Online Service.  Thereafter, either party 
may terminate the Extended Term by providing the other with a notice of cancellation 
for each Online Service.  Cancellation will be effective at the end of the month following 
30 days after Microsoft has received or issued the notice. 

(iii) Subscription Licenses and Online Services not eligible for an Extended Term.  If 
Enrolled Affiliate elects not to renew, the Licenses will be cancelled and will terminate as 
of the Expiration Date. Any associated media must be uninstalled and destroyed and 
Enrolled Affiliate’s Enterprise must discontinue use.  Microsoft may request written 
certification to verify compliance. 

d. Termination for cause.  Any termination for cause of this Enrollment will be subject to the 
“Termination for cause” section of the Agreement.  In addition, it shall be a breach of this 
Enrollment if Enrolled Affiliate or any Affiliate in the Enterprise that uses Government 
Community Cloud Services fails to meet and maintain the conditions of membership in the 
definition of Community. 

e. Early termination.  Any early termination of this Enrollment will be subject to the “Early 
Termination” Section of the Enterprise Agreement. 

For Subscription Licenses, in the event of a breach by Microsoft, or if Microsoft terminates an 
Online Service for regulatory reasons, Microsoft will issue Reseller a credit for any amount paid 
in advance for the period after termination. 

6. Government Community Cloud. 

a. Community requirements.  If Enrolled Affiliate purchases Government Community Cloud 
Services, Enrolled Affiliate certifies that it is a member of the Community and agrees to use 
Government Community Cloud Services solely in its capacity as a member of the Community 
and, for eligible Government Community Cloud Services, for the benefit of end users that are 
members of the Community.  Use of Government Community Cloud Services by an entity that 
is not a member of the Community or to provide services to non-Community members is strictly 
prohibited and could result in termination of Enrolled Affiliate’s license(s) for Government 
Community Cloud Services without notice.  Enrolled Affiliate acknowledges that only 
Community members may use Government Community Cloud Services. 

b. All terms and conditions applicable to non-Government Community Cloud Services also apply 



 

EA20201EnrGov(US)SLG(ENG)(Oct2019) Page 7 of 10 

Document X20-10635 
 

to their corresponding Government Community Cloud Services, except as otherwise noted in 
the Use Rights, Product Terms, and this Enrollment. 

c. Enrolled Affiliate may not deploy or use Government Community Cloud Services and 
corresponding non-Government Community Cloud Services in the same domain. 

d. Use Rights for Government Community Cloud Services.  For Government Community 
Cloud Services, notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Use Rights: 

(i) Government Community Cloud Services will be offered only within the United States. 

(ii) Additional European Terms, as set forth in the Use Rights, will not apply. 

(iii) References to geographic areas in the Use Rights with respect to the location of Customer 
Data at rest, as set forth in the Use Rights, refer only to the United States. 



 

EA20201EnrGov(US)SLG(ENG)(Oct2019) Page 8 of 10 

Document X20-10635 
 

Enrollment Details 

1. Enrolled Affiliate’s Enterprise. 

a. Identify which Agency Affiliates are included in the Enterprise. (Required)  Enrolled Affiliate’s 
Enterprise must consist of entire offices, bureaus, agencies, departments or other entities of 
Enrolled Affiliate, not partial offices, bureaus, agencies, or departments, or other partial entities.  
Check only one box in this section. If no boxes are checked, Microsoft will deem the Enterprise 
to include the Enrolled Affiliate only. If more than one box is checked, Microsoft will deem the 
Enterprise to include the largest number of Affiliates: 

  Enrolled Affiliate only 

  Enrolled Affiliate and all Affiliates 

 Enrolled Affiliate and the following Affiliate(s) (Only identify specific affiliates to be included 
if fewer than all Affiliates are to be included in the Enterprise):  

 

  Enrolled Affiliate and all Affiliates, with following Affiliate(s) excluded:  

 

b. Please indicate whether the Enrolled Affiliate’s Enterprise will include all new Affiliates acquired 
after the start of this Enrollment: Include future Affiliates 

2. Contact information. 

Each party will notify the other in writing if any of the information in the following contact information page(s) 
changes.  The asterisks (*) indicate required fields.  By providing contact information, Enrolled Affiliate 
consents to its use for purposes of administering this Enrollment by Microsoft, its Affiliates, and other parties 
that help administer this Enrollment.  The personal information provided in connection with this Enrollment 
will be used and protected in accordance with the privacy statement available at 
https://www.microsoft.com/licensing/servicecenter. 

a. Primary contact.  This contact is the primary contact for the Enrollment from within Enrolled 
Affiliate’s Enterprise.  This contact is also an Online Administrator for the Volume Licensing 
Service Center and may grant online access to others. The primary contact will be the default 
contact for all purposes unless separate contacts are identified for specific purposes 

Name of entity (must be legal entity name)* City of Lake Worth 
Contact name* First Nelly  Last Peralta 
Contact email address* nperalta@lakeworth.org 
Street address* 7 North Dixie Hwy    
City* Lake Worth 
State* FL 
Postal code* 33460-3342- 
(Please provide the zip + 4, e.g. xxxxx-xxxx) 
Country* United States 
Phone* 561-533-7342 
Tax ID  
* indicates required fields 

b. Notices contact and Online Administrator.  This contact (1) receives the contractual notices, 
(2) is the Online Administrator for the Volume Licensing Service Center and may grant online 
access to others, and (3) is authorized to order Reserved Licenses for eligible Online Servies, 
including adding or reassigning Licenses and stepping-up prior to a true-up order. 

https://www.microsoft.com/licensing/servicecenter


 

EA20201EnrGov(US)SLG(ENG)(Oct2019) Page 9 of 10 

Document X20-10635 
 

  Same as primary contact (default if no information is provided below, even if the box is not 
checked). 

Contact name* First Nelly  Last Peralta 
Contact email address* nperalta@lakeworth.org  
Street address* 7 North Dixie Hwy    
City* Lake Worth 
State* FL 
Postal code* 33460-3342- 
(Please provide the zip + 4, e.g. xxxxx-xxxx) 
Country* United States 
Phone* 561-533-7342 
Language preference.  Choose the language for notices.  English 
  This contact is a third party (not the Enrolled Affiliate).  Warning: This contact receives 
personally identifiable information of the Customer and its Affiliates. 
* indicates required fields 

c. Online Services Manager.  This contact is authorized to manage the Online Services ordered 
under the Enrollment and (for applicable Online Services) to add or reassign Licenses and 
step-up prior to a true-up order. 

  Same as notices contact and Online Administrator (default if no information is provided below, 
even if box is not checked) 

Contact name*: First   Last  
Contact email address*  
Phone*  
 This contact is from a third party organization (not the entity).  Warning:  This contact receives 
personally identifiable information of the entity. 
* indicates required fields 

d. Reseller information.  Reseller contact for this Enrollment is: 

Reseller company name* CDW Logistics, Inc. 
Street address (PO boxes will not be accepted)* 200 N. Milwaukee Avenue    
City* Vernon Hills   
State* IL   
Postal code* 60061 
Country* United States  
Contact name* Brent Cameron 
Phone* 847-465-6000 
Contact email address* brencam@cdw.com 
* indicates required fields 

By signing below, the Reseller identified above confirms that all information provided in this 
Enrollment is correct. 

Signature*   

Printed name*   
Printed title*  
Date*  

* indicates required fields 

Changing a Reseller.  If Microsoft or the Reseller chooses to discontinue doing business with 
each other, Enrolled Affiliate must choose a replacement Reseller.  If Enrolled Affiliate or the 
Reseller intends to terminate their relationship, the initiating party must notify Microsoft and the 



 

EA20201EnrGov(US)SLG(ENG)(Oct2019) Page 10 of 10 

Document X20-10635 
 

other party using a form provided by Microsoft at least 90 days prior to the date on which the 
change is to take effect. 

e. If Enrolled Affiliate requires a separate contact for any of the following, attach the Supplemental 
Contact Information form.  Otherwise, the notices contact and Online Administrator remains 
the default. 

(i) Additional notices contact 
(ii) Software Assurance manager 
(iii) Subscriptions manager 
(iv) Customer Support Manager (CSM) contact 

3. Financing elections. 

Is a purchase under this Enrollment being financed through MS Financing?    Yes,   No. 

If a purchase under this Enrollment is financed through MS Financing, and Enrolled Affiliate chooses not to 
finance any associated taxes, it must pay these taxes directly to Microsoft. 



Date 8/4/20

Account Manager John Vrablik

VSL Specialist Brent Cameron

Channel Price Sheet Month Aug.

Unless otherwise noted, All Quotes expire upon current month's end

Microsoft Part # Description Level Quantity Price Extended Price Extended Price Extended

J5U-00004 AzureMntryCmmtmntG ShrdSvr ALNG SubsVL MVL Commit Provision  D 1 -$             -$                    -$                -$                  -$                -$               

395-02504 ExchgSvrEnt ALNG SA MVL D 2 751.59$       1,503.18$           751.59$          1,503.18$          751.59$          1,503.18$      

269-05704 OfficeProPlus ALNG SA MVL D 300 103.70$       31,110.00$         103.70$          31,110.00$        103.70$          31,110.00$    

7NQ-00292 SQLSvrStdCore ALNG SA MVL 2Lic CoreLic D 4 607.95$       2,431.80$           607.95$          2,431.80$          607.95$          2,431.80$      

D87-01159 VisioPro ALNG SA MVL D 10 103.82$       1,038.20$           103.82$          1,038.20$          103.82$          1,038.20$      

9EA-00278 WinSvrDCCore ALNG SA MVL 2Lic CoreLic D 20 130.54$       2,610.80$           130.54$          2,610.80$          130.54$          2,610.80$      

9EM-00270 WinSvrSTDCore ALNG SA MVL 2Lic CoreLic D 20 18.40$         368.00$              18.40$            368.00$             18.40$            368.00$         

Total 39,061.98$         Total 39,061.98$        Total 39,061.98$    

Three Year Total 117,185.94$       

No Tax Referenced

Current Enrollment# 6014252

Agreement End Date: 10/31/2020

Terms and Conditions of sales and services projects are governed by the terms at: 

http://www.cdwg.com/content/terms-conditions/product-sales.aspx

Budgetary EA Renewal Quote
Customer to make three annual payments to CDW•G

CDW Government, LLC

Microsoft Enterprise 6.6 Agreement Pricing

Enterprise Quote

City of Lake Worth

for

Year 3Year 1 Year 2

Notes

http://www.cdwg.com/content/terms-conditions/product-sales.aspx


EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 
  

AGENDA DATE: November 17, 2020 DEPARTMENT: Public Works 

TITLE: 

Purchase Order with Nextran Truck for the purchase of a Mack Front Load Garbage Truck 

 
SUMMARY: 

The Purchase Order with Nextran Truck authorizes the purchase of the Mack Front Load 
Garbage Truck at a cost not to exceed $282,723.00. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The Solid Waste and Recycling Division is actively engaged in the collection of commercial solid 
waste City wide.  The current front load garbage truck is nearing the end of its useful and is 
becoming too costly to repair and maintain.  The purchase of the new Mack Front Load garbage 
truck with Nextran Centers is being performed through the Florida Sheriffs Association 
Cooperative Purchase agreement at a cost not to exceed $282,723.00.  The funds are 
appropriated within the Solid Waste enterprise funds. 

 

https://www.flsheriffs.org/law-enforcement-programs/purchasing/fsa20veh18ht 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove the Purchase Order with Nextran Truck Centers for a cost not to 
exceed $282,723.00. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 
Nextran Truck – Mack Front Load Truck quote  

https://www.flsheriffs.org/law-enforcement-programs/purchasing/fsa20veh18ht


FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Fiscal Years 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 
 
Capital Expenditures 282,723 0 0 0 0 
Operating Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0 
External Revenues 0 0 0 0 0 
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
In-kind Match  0 0 0 0 0 
 
Net Fiscal Impact 282,723 0 0 0 0 
 
No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 

 

B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Account 
Number 

Account 
Description 

Project 
Number 

FY21 
Budget 

Current 
Balance 

Agenda 
Expenditure 

Balance 
 

       

410-5081-
534-64-30 

Machinery 
and Equip / 
Vehicles 

N/A 500,000 500,000 282,723 217,277.00 

 









EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 
  

AGENDA DATE: November 17, 2020 DEPARTMENT: Public Works 

TITLE: 

Purchase Order with Isuzu Truck of Ocala for the purchase of a Mini-Rear Load Garbage Truck 

 
SUMMARY: 

The Purchase order with Isuzu Truck of Ocala authorizes the purchase of the Isuzu Mini Rear 
Load Garbage Truck at a cost not to exceed $108,451.00. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The Solid Waste and Recycling Division is actively engaged in the collection of commercial and 
residential solid waste and recycling City wide.  The demand for alley way, development and 
narrow road service is increasing in the downtown corridor and in the historic neighborhoods.  
The purchase of the new Isuzu Rear Load garbage truck with Isuzu Truck of Ocala is being 
performed through the Florida Sheriffs Association Cooperative Purchase agreement at a cost 
not to exceed $108,451.00.  The funds are appropriated within the Solid Waste enterprise funds. 

 

https://www.flsheriffs.org/law-enforcement-programs/purchasing/fsa20veh18ht 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove the Purchase Order with Isuzu Truck of Ocala for a cost not to 
exceed $108,451.00.   

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 
Isuzu Truck of Ocala – Mini Rear Load Truck quote  

https://www.flsheriffs.org/law-enforcement-programs/purchasing/fsa20veh18ht


FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Fiscal Years 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 
 
Capital Expenditures 108,451 0 0 0 0 
Operating Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0 
External Revenues 0 0 0 0 0 
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
In-kind Match  0 0 0 0 0 
 
Net Fiscal Impact 108,451 0 0 0 0 
 
No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 

 

B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Account 
Number 

Account 
Description 

Project 
Number 

FY21 
Budget 

Current 
Balance 

Agenda 
Expenditure 

Balance 
 

       

410-5081-
534-64-30 

Machinery 
and Equip / 
Vehicles 

N/A 500,000 500,000 108,451 391,549.00 

 













EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
AGENDA DATE: November 17, 2020  DEPARTMENT: Water Utilities 

 

TITLE: 
Agreement with Shannon Chemical Corporation to purchase SNC-N2 (blend of phosphates) for 
distribution system corrosion inhibitor 

 
SUMMARY: 
This Agreement authorizes the purchase SNC-N2 (blend of phosphates) for the City of Lake 
Worth Beach Water Utilities for the period of three years from Shannon Chemical Corporation. 

 

BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 
The National Primary Drinking Water Regulations require all community water systems to 
monitor for lead and copper and establishes corrosion control treatment requirements. 
Phosphate is a necessary chemical at the City of Lake Worth Beach Water Treatment Plant 
(WTP) to control corrosion, thereby limiting lead and copper in the drinking water. Since the 
WTP began dosing SNC-N2 Phosphate, it has proven to be a successful method of corrosion 
control. 
 
This product also meets the no zinc requirement of the City of Lake Worth Beach Power Plant, 
which uses the WTP water in its cooling towers. The maximum contaminant level (MCL) for zinc 
cannot exceed 0.49 mg/L as zinc discharged off the cooling towers into sanitary sewers. The 
requirement to meet this zinc discharge is part of the permit C95103113 of the City of West 
Palm Beach Sewer Use Ordinance 4414-12. 
 
Shannon Chemical Corporation specifically formulated SNC-N2 Phosphate to meet the WTP no 
zinc requirements and has been the single source provider of this product for the past 25 years. 
It is the City’s intent to enter into the Agreement for the purchase of SNC-N2 Phosphate, and 
the procurement division concurs with this sole source purchase. 

 

MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove the agreement to purchase SNC-N2 (blend of phosphates) from 
Shannon Chemical Corporation. 

 

ATTACHMENT(S): 
Fiscal Impact Analysis 
Agreement 
  



 
FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

 

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Fiscal Years 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 
 
Capital Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0 
Operating Expenditures $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 0 0 
External Revenues 0 0 0 0 0 
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
In-kind Match  0 0 0 0 0 
 
Net Fiscal Impact $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 0 0 
 
No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 

 

B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Account 
Number 

Account 
Description 

Project 
Number 

FY21 Budget Current 
Balance 

Agenda 
Expenditure 

Balance 
 

       

402-7022-
533.52-30 

Operating 
Supplies/ 
Chemicals 

N/A $450,000.00 $167,281.70 -$50,000.00 $117,281.70 

 

































EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
AGENDA DATE: November 17, 2020 DEPARTMENT: Community Sustainability 

TITLE: 

Resolution No. 49-2020 - Public Meeting - Approve a Historic Preservation Ad Valorem Tax 
Exemption for the property located at 631 Lucerne Avenue (The Hummingbird) 

 
SUMMARY: 
Resolution 49-2020 authorizes a property tax exemption from the increased assessed value as 
a result of the historic preservation rehabilitation as allowed by Section 23.5-5 of the Land 
Development Regulations. 

 

BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

On July 12, 2017, the Historic Resources Preservation Board (HRPB) approved a request by the 
applicant for a Certificate of Appropriateness for exterior alterations and a Pre-Construction 
Historic Preservation Ad Valorem Tax Exemption application for the subject property. On October 
14, 2020, the HRPB approved the Completed Work Application and recommended approval of 
the application to the City Commission.  The HRPB approval certified that the renovation work 
was completed in accordance with national and local historic preservation guidelines, and met 
the criteria for obtaining an ad valorem tax exemption approval.  The owner agreed to enter into 
a covenant with the City to maintain the qualifying improvements for the exemption period, not 
to exceed 10 years. The exemption only applies to the increase in assessed value as a result of 
the improvements and does not relieve the owner of all tax liability. Subsequent to an approval 
for a municipal tax exemption, the application will be forwarded to Palm Beach County to be 
reviewed for a county tax exemption. The Historic Preservation Ad Valorem Tax Exemption 
program is authorized by Florida Statute and is used throughout the State to encourage property 
improvements in historic districts. 

 

MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Resolution No. 49-2020 for a Historic Preservation Ad Valorem 
Property Tax Exemption for the property located at 631 Lucerne Avenue. 

 

ATTACHMENT(S): 

Resolution 49-2020 
Covenant 

 
 



49-2020 
 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 49-2020 OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY 
OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, GRANTING AN AD VALOREM TAX 
EXEMPTION FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 631 LUCERNE 
AVENUE (THE HUMMINGBIRD), LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, AS A 
RESULT OF THE HISTORIC PRESERVATION/ REHABILITATION OF 
THE PROPERTY; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER 
PURPOSES. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Lake Worth Beach has adopted the Historic Preservation 

Program that is designed to preserve, protect, enhance, and perpetuate resources 
which represent distinctive and significant elements of the City's historical, cultural, 
social, economic, political, archaeological, and architectural identity; and/or serve as 
visible reminders of the City's culture and heritage; and 

 
WHEREAS, the citizens of Florida amended the Florida Constitution, Article VII, 

Section 3, to authorize counties and municipalities to grant a partial ad valorem tax 
exemption to owners of historic properties for improvements to such properties which are 
the result of the restoration, renovation, or rehabilitation of the historic properties; and 

 
WHEREAS, Section 196.1997, Florida Statutes, establishes the process by which 

such exemption may be granted to property owners; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Lake Worth Beach is an approved Certified Local 

Government to perform the review functions necessary for Historic Tax Exemption 
applications; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City passed Ordinance No. 97-26, which approved an ad valorem 

tax exemption for the restoration, renovation, and/or improvement of historic properties, 
which provides that upon completion of the review of a Final Application/Request for 
Review of Completed Work that the Historic Preservation Planner shall present such 
Final Application in a regularly scheduled meeting of the Historic Resources 
Preservation Board with a recommendation that the Historic Resources Preservation 
Board recommend approval or deny the exemption to the City Commission; and 

 
WHEREAS, the property owner filed a preconstruction application and received 

preliminary approval from the Historic Resources Preservation Board on July 12, 2017, 
for an ad valorem tax exemption upon completion of the historic renovation and 
restoration of the property located at 631 Lucerne Avenue, Lake Worth Beach (the 
"Property"); and 

 
WHEREAS, on October 14, 2020, the Historic Resource Preservation Board 

reviewed the Completed Work Application and determined that the completed 
improvements were consistent with the United States Secretary of Interior's Standards 
for Rehabilitation, that the requirements of Section 196.1997, Florida Statutes, have been 
met, and recommended granting an ad valorem City tax exemption for the Property. 

 



Pg. 2, Reso. 49-2020 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, that: 

 
SECTION 1. The foregoing recitals are incorporated into this resolution as true 

and correct statements. 
 
SECTION 2. The Property is designated as a contributing property to a historic 

district under the terms of the Lake Worth Beach Historic Preservation Program. 
 
SECTION 3. The City Commission of the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida, 

hereby finds that the completed improvements to the Property, as described in the 
application for ad valorem tax exemption filed with the City and in HRPB Case No. 20-
00100061 is consistent with the United States Secretary of Interior's Standards for 
Rehabilitation, the City of Lake Worth Beach Land Development Regulations 23.5-4 
and 23.5-5, and the property meets the requirements of Section 196.1997, Florida 
Statutes. 

 
SECTION 4. In accordance with this finding, the City Commission hereby 

approves an ad valorem tax exemption for a ten-year period, commencing on January 1, 
2021, and expiring December 31, 2030, from that portion of ad valorem taxes levied on 
the increase in assessed value resulting from the restoration, renovation, and 
rehabilitation improvements, for the real property described as: 

 
Property Owner: HUMMINGBIRD PARTNERS, LLC 

 
Address: 631 Lucerne Avenue 
 Lake Worth Beach, Florida 33460 

 
Legal Description:  Lot 1, Block K, of TOWNSITE OF LUCERNE 
(NOW KNOWN AS LAKE WORTH), according to the plat thereof as 
recorded in Plat Book 2, page 29, of the Public Records of Palm 
Beach County, Florida 

 
SECTION 5. Prior to the ad valorem tax exemption described herein being 

effective, the Property Owner shall execute and record in the Public Records of Palm 
Beach County, a restrictive covenant in a form established by the State of Florida, 
Department of State, Division of Historical Resources, requiring that the qualifying 
improvements must be maintained during the period for which the tax exemption is 
granted. A copy of the recorded covenant shall be provided to the City's Historic 
Preservation Planner. 

 
SECTION 6. A certified copy of this resolution shall be provided to the Palm Beach 

County Property Appraiser. 
 
SECTION 7. This resolution shall take effect upon its passage and approval.  
 
The passage of this resolution was moved by _______________, seconded by 

________________, and upon being put to a vote, the vote was as follows: 



Pg. 3, Reso. 49-2020 

 

 
Mayor Pam Triolo 
Vice Mayor Andy Amoroso 
Commissioner Scott Maxwell 
Commissioner Herman Robinson 
 
The Mayor thereupon declared this resolution duly passed and adopted on the 

____ day of ________________, 2020. 
 

 
LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION 
 
 
By: __________________________ 

Pam Triolo, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Deborah M. Andrea, CMC, City Clerk 
 











EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
AGENDA DATE: November 17, 2020 DEPARTMENT: Community Sustainability 

TITLE: 

Resolution No. 50-2020 – Public Meeting - Approve a Historic Preservation Ad Valorem Tax 
Exemption for the property located at 910 North M Street 

 
SUMMARY: 
Resolution 50-2020 authorizes a property tax exemption from the increased assessed value as 
a result of the historic preservation rehabilitation as allowed by Section 23.5-5 of the Land 
Development Regulations. 

 

BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

On March 11, 2020, the Historic Resources Preservation Board (HRPB) approved a request by 
the applicant for a Certificate of Appropriateness for Exterior Alterations and a Pre-Construction 
Historic Preservation Ad Valorem Tax Exemption application. On October 14, 2020, the HRPB 
approved the Completed Work Application and recommended approval of the application to the 
City Commission.  The HRPB approval certifies that the renovation work was completed in 
accordance with national and local historic preservation guidelines, and met the criteria for 
obtaining an ad valorem tax exemption approval.  The owner agreed to enter into a covenant 
with the City to maintain the qualifying improvements for the exemption period, not to exceed ten 
(10) years. The exemption applies only to the increase in assessed value as a result of the 
improvements and does not relieve the owner of all tax liability. Subsequent to an approval for a 
municipal tax exemption, the application will be forwarded to Palm Beach County to be reviewed 
for a county tax exemption. The Historic Preservation Ad Valorem Tax Exemption program is 
authorized by Florida Statutes and is used throughout the State to encourage property 
improvements in historic districts. 

 

MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Resolution No. 50-2020 for a Historic Preservation Ad Valorem 
Property Tax Exemption for the property located at 910 North M Street. 

 

ATTACHMENT(S): 

Resolution 50-2020 
Covenant 

 
 



50-2020 
 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 50-2020 OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY 
OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, GRANTING AN AD VALOREM TAX 
EXEMPTION FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 910 NORTH M 
STREET, LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, AS A RESULT OF THE 
HISTORIC PRESERVATION/ REHABILITATION OF THE PROPERTY; 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Lake Worth Beach has adopted the Historic Preservation 

Program that is designed to preserve, protect, enhance, and perpetuate resources 
which represent distinctive and significant elements of the City's historical, cultural, 
social, economic, political, archaeological, and architectural identity; and/or serve as 
visible reminders of the City's culture and heritage; and 

 
WHEREAS, the citizens of Florida amended the Florida Constitution, Article VII, 

Section 3, to authorize counties and municipalities to grant a partial ad valorem tax 
exemption to owners of historic properties for improvements to such properties which are 
the result of the restoration, renovation, or rehabilitation of the historic properties; and 

 
WHEREAS, Section 196.1997, Florida Statutes, establishes the process by which 

such exemption may be granted to property owners; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Lake Worth Beach is an approved Certified Local 

Government to perform the review functions necessary for Historic Tax Exemption 
applications; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City passed Ordinance No. 97-26, which approved an ad valorem 

tax exemption for the restoration, renovation, and/or improvement of historic properties, 
which provides that upon completion of the review of a Final Application/Request for 
Review of Completed Work that the Historic Preservation Planner shall present such 
Final Application in a regularly scheduled meeting of the Historic Resources 
Preservation Board with a recommendation that the Historic Resources Preservation 
Board recommend approval or deny the exemption to the City Commission; and 

 
WHEREAS, the property owner filed a preconstruction application and received 

preliminary approval from the Historic Resources Preservation Board on March 11, 2020, 
for an ad valorem tax exemption upon completion of the historic renovation and 
restoration of the property located at 910 North M Street, Lake Worth Beach (the 
"Property"); and 

 
WHEREAS, on October 14, 2020, the Historic Resource Preservation Board 

reviewed the Completed Work Application and determined that the completed 
improvements were consistent with the United States Secretary of Interior's Standards 
for Rehabilitation, that the requirements of Section 196.1997, Florida Statutes, have been 
met, and recommended granting an ad valorem City tax exemption for the Property. 

 



Pg. 2, Reso. 50-2020 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, that: 

 
SECTION 1. The foregoing recitals are incorporated into this resolution as true 

and correct statements. 
 
SECTION 2. The Property is designated as a contributing property to a historic 

district under the terms of the Lake Worth Beach Historic Preservation Program. 
 
SECTION 3. The City Commission of the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida, 

hereby finds that the completed improvements to the Property, as described in the 
application for ad valorem tax exemption filed with the City and in HRPB Case No. 20-
00100061 is consistent with the United States Secretary of Interior's Standards for 
Rehabilitation, the City of Lake Worth Beach Land Development Regulations 23.5-4 
and 23.5-5, and the property meets the requirements of Section 196.1997, Florida 
Statutes. 

 
SECTION 4. In accordance with this finding, the City Commission hereby 

approves an ad valorem tax exemption for a ten-year period, commencing on January 1, 
2021, and expiring December 31, 2030, from that portion of ad valorem taxes levied on 
the increase in assessed value resulting from the restoration, renovation, and 
rehabilitation improvements, for the real property described as: 

 
Property Owner: Frank Viera 

 
Address: 910 North M Street 
 Lake Worth Beach, Florida 33460 

 
Legal Description:  Lot 3, Block 286, formerly Township of Lucerne,  

         Plat Book 2, page 29, of the Public Records of  
         Palm Beach County, Florida 

 
 
SECTION 5. Prior to the ad valorem tax exemption described herein being 

effective, the Property Owner shall execute and record in the Public Records of Palm 
Beach County, a restrictive covenant in a form established by the State of Florida, 
Department of State, Division of Historical Resources, requiring that the qualifying 
improvements must be maintained during the period for which the tax exemption is 
granted. A copy of the recorded covenant shall be provided to the City's Historic 
Preservation Planner. 

 
SECTION 6. A certified copy of this resolution shall be provided to the Palm Beach 

County Property Appraiser. 
 
SECTION 7. This resolution shall take effect upon its passage and approval.  
 
The passage of this resolution was moved by _______________, seconded by 

________________, and upon being put to a vote, the vote was as follows: 



Pg. 3, Reso. 50-2020 

 

 
Mayor Pam Triolo 
Vice Mayor Andy Amoroso 
Commissioner Scott Maxwell 
Commissioner Herman Robinson 
 
The Mayor thereupon declared this resolution duly passed and adopted on the 

____ day of ________________, 2020. 
 

 
LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION 
 
 
By: __________________________ 

Pam Triolo, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Deborah M. Andrea, CMC, City Clerk 
 



DOS Form No. HR3E111292

HISTORIC PRESERVATION PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTION COVENANT

This Covenant is made the

_________

day of

__________,

by Frank Viera,
(hereinafter referred to as the Owner) and in favor of the City of Lake Worth Beach,
Florida (hereinafter referred to as the Local Government) for the purpose of the
restoration, renovation or rehabilitation, of a certain Property located at 910 North M
Street, Lake Worth Beach, Florida which is owned in fee simple by the Owner and is
listed in the National Register of Historic Places or locally designated under the
terms of a local preservation ordinance or is a contributing property to a National
Register listed district or a contributing property to a historic district under the terms
of a local preservation ordinance. The areas of significance of this property, as
identified in the National Register nomination or local designation report for the
property or the district in which it is located are X architecture,

_________history,_____________

archaeology.

The Property is comprised essentially of grounds, collateral, appurtenances, and
improvements. The property is more particularly described as follows (include
city reference, consisting of repository, book, and page numbers): Lot 3, Block
286, Lake Worth, formerly Township of Lucerne, according to the plat thereof, on
file, in the office of the Clerk of the Circuit Court, in and for Palm Beach County,
Florida, Plat Book 2, Page 29.

In consideration of the tax exemption granted by the Local Government, the
Owner hereby agrees to the following for the period of the tax exemption which is
from January 1, 2021 to December 31, 2030.

1. The Owner agrees to assume the cost of the continued maintenance and
repair of said Property so as to preserve the architectural, historical, or
archaeological integrity of the same in order to protect and enhance those
qualities that made the Property eligible for listing in the National Register of
Historic Places or designation under the provisions of the local preservation
ordinance.

Page 1 of 4



2. The Owner agrees that no visual or structural alterations will be made to the
Property without prior written permission of the Local Historic Preservation Office.
The address of the certified Local Historic Preservation Office is:

City of Lake Worth Beach, Division of Planning, Zoning, and Historic Preservation
1900 2d Avenue North

Lake Worth Beach, Florida 33401
Telephone: (561) 586-1687

The address of the Division of Historical Resources is:

Bureau of Historic Preservation
Division of Historical Resources

R.A. Gray Building, 500 South Bronough Street
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0250

Telephone Number: (850) 245-6333 or (800) 847-PAST (7278)

3. [Only for properties of archaeological significance] The Owner agrees to ensure the
protection of the site against willful damage or vandalism. Nothing in the Covenant shall
prohibit the Owner from developing the site in such a manner that will not threaten or
damage the archaeological resource, provided that permission for alteration of the site
is obtained pursuant to 2. above.

4. The Owner agrees that the Local Historic Preservation Office and appropriate
representatives of the Local Government, its agents and designees shall have the right
to inspect the Property at all reasonable times in order to ascertain whether or not the
conditions of this Covenant are being observed.

5. In the event of the non-performance or violation of the maintenance provision of
the Covenant by the Owner or any successor-in-interest during the term of the
Covenant, the Local Historic Preservation Office will report such violation to the
Property Appraiser and Tax Collector who shall take action pursuant to s.1 96.1997 (7),
F.S. The Owner shall be required to pay the difference between the total amount of
taxes which would have been due in March in each of the previous years in which the
Covenant was in effect had the property not received the exemption and the total
amount of taxes actually paid in those years, plus interest on the difference calculated
as provided in s.212.12 (3), F.S.

6. If the Property is damaged by accidental or natural causes during the Covenant
period, the Owner will inform the Local Historic Preservation Office in writing of the
damage to the Property, including (1) an assessment of the nature and extent of the
damage; and (2) an estimate of the cost of restoration or reconstruction work
necessary to return the Property to the condition existing at the time of project
completion. In order to maintain the tax exemption, the Owner shall complete the
restoration or reconstruction work necessary to return the Property to the condition

Page 2 of 4



existing at the time of project completion on a time schedule agreed upon by the Owner
and the Local Historic Preservation Office.

7. If the Property has been destroyed or severely damaged by accidental or natural
causes, that is, if the historical integrity of the features, materials, appearance,
workmanship, and environment, or archaeological integrity which made the property
eligible for listing in the National Register of Historic Places or designation under the
terms of the local preservation ordinance have been lost or so damaged that
restoration is not feasible, the Owner will notify the Local Historic Preservation Office in
writing of the loss. The Local Historic Preservation Office will evaluate the information
provided and notify the Owner in writing of its determination regarding removal of the
Property from eligibility for tax exemption. If the Local Historic Preservation Office
determines that the property should be removed from eligibility for tax exemption, it will
notify the Property Appraiser of the county in which the Property is located in writing so
that the tax exemption can be canceled for the remainder of the Covenant period. In
such cases, no penalty or interest shall be assessed against the Owner.

8. If it appears that the historical integrity of the features, materials, appearance,
workmanship, and environment, or archaeological integrity which made the Property
eligible for listing in the National Register of Historic Places or designation under the
terms of the local preservation ordinance have been lost or damaged deliberately or
through gross negligence of the Owner, the Local Historic Preservation Office shall
notify the owner in writing. For the purpose of this Covenant, “gross negligence” means
the omission of care which even inattentive and thoughtless persons never fail to take of
their own property. The Owner shall have 30 days to respond indicating any
circumstances which show that the damage was not deliberate or due to gross
negligence. If the Owner cannot show such circumstances, he shall develop a plan for
restoration of the property and a schedule for completion of the restoration. In order to
maintain the tax exemption, the Owner shall complete the restoration work necessary to
return the Property to the condition existing at the time of project completion on a time
schedule agreed upon by the Owner and the Local Historic Preservation Office. If the
Owner does not complete the restoration work on the agreed upon time schedule, the
Local Historic Preservation Office will report such violation to the Property Appraiser
and Tax Collector who shall take action pursuant to s.196.1997 (7), F.S. The Owner
shall be required to pay the difference between the total amount of taxes which would
have been due in March in each of the previous years ‘n which the Covenant was in
effect had the property not received the exemption and the total amount of taxes
actually paid in those years, plus interest on the difference calculated as provided in
s.212.12 (3), F.S.

9. The terms of this covenant shall be binding on the current Property Owner,
transferees, heirs, successors, or assigns.

Page 3 of 4



This Covenant shall be enforceable in specific perlormance by a court of competent
jurisdiction.

Date: CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA

WITNESSES AS TO THE CITY:

ATTEST:

City Clerk

By:
Pam Triolo, Mayor

Approved As To Form And Legal Sufficiency:

By:
Glen Torcivia, City Attorney

Florida Bar No. 343374

Date:

WITNESSES AS TO PROPERTY OWNER

dos c?e,s

PROPERT\%J1E7 /7
tJ It!’,

By: \ )t’C U—---’PIerty Owner, Frank Viera

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF PALM BEACH

The foregoing was acknowledged before me on this day of CT’’.2O2O, by,

Fit ‘.‘ . I? .- who is ki,nto , or produce

-— ID as identification.

Michael Schneider
COMMISSION I 00263368
EXPIRES: Sept 30, 2022
Bonded Th Aion Nob

ticNotary
My Corn ission Expires

Page 4 of 4



EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

AGENDA DATE: November 17, 2020 DEPARTMENT: Financial Services 

TITLE: 

Resolution No. 51-2020 - Budget Amendment for the Regional Sewer fund for FY 2019 - 2020 
Budget 

 
SUMMARY: 

Resolution No. 51-2020 amends the Fiscal Year 2019 - 2020 budget and appropriates the 
Regional Sewer fund balance and operating expenses  

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida (the “City”) entered into an interlocal wastewater 
service and wastewater facilities cost sharing agreement in 2013 with the City of Atlantis, 
Town of Lantana, Town of Manalapan, Town of Palm Beach, Village of Palm Springs, Town of 
South Palm Beach, Town of Lake Clarke Shores and the Palm Beach State College (“Sub-
Regional Participants”). 

Pursuant to the cost sharing agreement, at the conclusion of the fiscal year, the City shall 
perform a true up of the revenues and expenses of the operations and maintenance accounts 
of the Sub-Regional Sewer System and each Sub-Regional Participant, including the City, 
shall receive a refund if overbilled, or be billed and be responsible for any amount that was 
under billed.  

The Fiscal Year (FY) 2019 - 2020 true up determined a refund is due to the Sub-Regional 
Participants, including the City, of a total sum of $780,115.67, broken down proportionally as 
stated below:  

City of Atlantis $ 39,965.81  

Town of Lantana $ 108,012.48  

Town of Manalapan $ 5,984.97  

Village of Palm Springs $ 199,171.92  

Town of South Palm Beach $  16,134.62  

Town of Lake Clarke Shores $  39,105.88  

Palm Beach State College $ 3,348.30  

City of Lake Worth Beach  $ 368,391.69  

TOTAL: $780,115.67 

On September 24, 2019, the City Commission adopted the FY 2019 - 2020 annual budget. If 
approved, this Resolution will appropriate the FY 2019 - 2020 Regional Sewer fund balance 
and operating expenses in order to make the aforementioned refunds. Pursuant to section 



 
 

166.241, Florida Statutes, the City is authorized to amend the FY 2019- 2020 budget within 
60-days of the end of that fiscal year. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Resolution No. 51-2020 Budget Amendment for the Regional 
Sewer Fund for FY 2019 - 2020 Budget. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Resolution 51-2020 
Memo 



51-2020 1 

 2 

 3 

RESOLUTION NO. 51-2020 – A GENERAL APPROPRIATION 4 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, A MUNICIPAL 5 

CORPORATION OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA, MAKING A BUDGET 6 

AMENDMENT AND CORRESPONDING APPROPRIATION FOR THE 7 

REFUND DUE TO THE CITY’S SUB-REGIONAL PARTICIPANTS IN THE 8 

AMOUNT OF $780,115.67 FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING 9 

OCTOBER 1, 2019 AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2020; AND 10 

PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE 11 

 12 

WHEREAS, the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida (the “City”) entered into an interlocal 13 

wastewater service and wastewater facilities cost sharing agreement in 2013 with the City 14 

of Atlantis, Town of Lantana, Town of Manalapan, Town of Palm Beach, Village of Palm 15 

Springs, Town of South Palm Beach, Town of Lake Clarke Shores and the Palm Beach 16 

State College (“Sub-Regional Participants); 17 

  18 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the cost share agreement, at the conclusion of each fiscal year, the 19 

City shall perform a true up of the revenues and expenses of the operations and 20 

maintenance accounts of the Sub-Regional Sewer System and each participant, including 21 

the City, shall receive a refund if overbilled, or be billed and be responsible for any amount 22 

that was under billed; 23 

WHEREAS, the Fiscal Year (FY) 2019 – 2020 true up determined a refund is due to the 24 

Sub-Regional Participants, including the City, of a total sum of $780,115.67, broken down 25 

proportionally as stated in Exhibit “A”;  26 

WHEREAS, the City previously adopted the FY 2019 - 2020 Budget pursuant to Resolution 27 

No. 49-2019 on September 24, 2019;  28 

WHEREAS, pursuant to section 166.241, Florida Statutes, the City may amend the FY 2019 29 

– 2020 Budget up to 60 days after September 30, 2020;  30 

WHEREAS, the City finds it is necessary and essential to amend the FY 2019 - 2020 Budget 31 

as set forth in this resolution; and 32 

WHEREAS, adoption of this resolution to amend the FY 2019 - 2020 Budget serves a valid 33 

public purpose. 34 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 35 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, that: 36 

 37 

Section 1. The above recitals are hereby ratified and confirmed as being true and 38 

correct and are hereby incorporated into this resolution. 39 

 40 

Section 2. As hereinafter stated in this resolution, the term “fiscal year” shall mean the 41 

period of time beginning October 1, 2019, and ending on and including September 30, 42 

2020. 43 

 44 



Pg. 2, Reso. 51-2020 

 

Section 3 The funds and available resources and revenues that are set out and 45 

attached as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by reference, be, and the same hereby 46 

are, appropriated to provide the monies to be used to pay the necessary expenses of the 47 

Regional Sewer Fund of the City for the fiscal year. 48 

 49 

Section 4. The sums, which are set out in Exhibit “A” and herein incorporated by 50 

reference, listed as expenses of the Regional Sewer Fund of the City, be, and the same 51 

hereby are, appropriated and shall be paid out of the revenues herein appropriated for 52 

the fiscal year. 53 

 54 

Section 5. The revenues and the expenses for which appropriations are hereby made, 55 

all set forth above, shall be as set out in the Amended Budget for the fiscal year. 56 

 57 

Section 6. The sums set out in Exhibit “A” are herein before incorporated by reference 58 

and based upon departmental estimates prepared by the Director of Water Utilities shall 59 

be, and the same hereby are, fixed and adopted as the amended budget for the operation 60 

of the City and its other enterprises for the fiscal year. 61 

 62 

Section 7. This resolution shall become effective immediately upon passage. 63 

 64 

The passage of this resolution was moved by Commissioner xxx, seconded by 65 

Commissioner xxx, and upon being put to a vote, the vote was as follows: 66 

 67 

Mayor Pam Triolo 68 

Vice Mayor Andy Amoroso  69 

Commissioner Scott Maxwell 70 

Commissioner Herman Robinson 71 

 72 

The Mayor thereupon declared this resolution duly passed and adopted on the 17th 73 

day of November, 2020.  74 

 75 

LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION 76 

 77 

 78 

By: __________________________ 79 

Pam Triolo, Mayor 80 

 81 

ATTEST: 82 

 83 

 84 

______________________________ 85 

Deborah M. Andrea, CMC, City Clerk 86 

  87 



Pg. 3, Reso. 51-2020 

 

Exhibit A 

GL ACCOUNT # DESCRIPTION 

FY 2019 - 
2020 

BUDGET  
BUDGET 

AMENDMENT 
FY 2019 - 2020 
FINAL BUDGET 

405-0000-395.00-00 Other Sources/Use of Fund Balance -- 780,115.67  780,115.67  

405-9010-535.92-20 Settlements/Year-End True-Up -- 780,115.67  780,115.67  

 88 

Sub Regional Participants Refund Due 

City of Atlantis  $39,965.81  

Town of Lantana  $108,012.48  

Town of Manalapan  $5,984.97  

Village of Palm Springs  $199,171.92  

Town of South Palm Beach  $16,134.62  

Town of Lake Clarke Shores  $39,105.88  

Palm Beach State College  $3,348.30  

City of Lake Worth Beach  $ 368,391.69  

TOTAL  $ 780,115.67  

 89 





EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 
  

AGENDA DATE: November 17, 2020 DEPARTMENT: Financial Services 

TITLE: 

Ratification of Agreement with Coast Professional, Inc. 

 
SUMMARY: 

Ratification of Agreement with Coast Professional, Inc. for code lien recovery services after re-
evaluation and re-scoring required due to incorrectly posted public notice. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The Code Compliance Division of the Community Sustainability Department requested 
proposals from qualified firms to provide private collections of outstanding code compliance 
liens, fines and fees. The City advertised Request for Proposal 20-207 for Code Enforcement 
Lien Recovery Services on May 31, 2020, and the city received two responses.  An evaluation 
committee met via a Webex meeting and reviewed and scored the responses on July 16, 2020.  
The response proposal from Coast Professional, Inc. was ranked highest, and a contract with 
the company was presented to and approved by the City Commission at the September 15, 
2020 commission meeting.  

Sometime after, the City discovered that the public meeting was incorrectly posted/advertised 
and in order to correct the error, staff organized a new public meeting to re-evaluate and re-
score all proposals.  An evaluation committee met for the second time via a Webex meeting and 
reviewed and re-scored the responses on November 5, 2020.  The response proposal from 
Coast Professional, Inc. was again ranked with the highest score.  At this time staff is requesting 
a ratification of the Agreement with Coast Professional.  

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove the ratification of the Agreement with Coast Professional, Inc. for 
private code lien recovery services.  

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 
Coast Professional Inc. Agreement  



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Fiscal Years 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 
 
Capital Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0 
Operating Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0 
External Revenues 100,000 100,000 100,000 0 0 
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
In-kind Match  0 0 0 0 0 
 
Net Fiscal Impact 0 0 0 0 0 
 
No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 

 

B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Account 
Number 

Account 
Description 

Project 
Number 

FY20 
Budget 

Current 
Balance 

Agenda 
Expenditure 

Balance 
 

       

       

 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 20A8DF36-B6D0-46E7-9499-0A0D0FD011F0

10/5/2020

       C-2415
   9/15/20 RM
        CON-B



DocuSign Envelope ID: 20A8DF36-B6D0-46E7-9499-0A0D0FD011F0



DocuSign Envelope ID: 20A8DF36-B6D0-46E7-9499-0A0D0FD011F0



DocuSign Envelope ID: 20A8DF36-B6D0-46E7-9499-0A0D0FD011F0



DocuSign Envelope ID: 20A8DF36-B6D0-46E7-9499-0A0D0FD011F0



DocuSign Envelope ID: 20A8DF36-B6D0-46E7-9499-0A0D0FD011F0



DocuSign Envelope ID: 20A8DF36-B6D0-46E7-9499-0A0D0FD011F0



DocuSign Envelope ID: 20A8DF36-B6D0-46E7-9499-0A0D0FD011F0



DocuSign Envelope ID: 20A8DF36-B6D0-46E7-9499-0A0D0FD011F0



DocuSign Envelope ID: 20A8DF36-B6D0-46E7-9499-0A0D0FD011F0



DocuSign Envelope ID: 20A8DF36-B6D0-46E7-9499-0A0D0FD011F0



DocuSign Envelope ID: 20A8DF36-B6D0-46E7-9499-0A0D0FD011F0



EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 

AGENDA DATE: November 17, 2020 DEPARTMENT: Financial Services 

TITLE: 

Ratification of Contract Expenditures for CliftonLarsonAllen LLP and Robert Busch in FY 2019 
-2020  

 
SUMMARY: 

Ratification of the additional contract expenditures from FY 2019-2020 is sought for financial 
consultants who were engaged to assist the City’s Financial Services Department during the 
audit preparation.   

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The City entered into the agreements with CliftonLarsonAllen LLP and Robert Busch to provide 
qualified senior financial consulting services to assist the Financial Services Department in 
preparation of financial statements for closing of the fiscal year FY 2019 - 2020. Services 
included performing reconciliation to support the balances in the year-end trial balance, 
preparing the financial schedules, performing analytical reviews of year-end balances within the 
trial balance and other pre-audit activities. These services were necessary and required to cover 
staffing gaps in Financial Services Department.   

Since the Financial Services Department exceeded the authorized cost thresholds in the 
agreements with CliftonLarsonAllen LLP and Robert Busch, the additional expenditures require 
ratification by the City Commission. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve to approve/disapprove additional contract expenditures for CliftonLarsonAllen 
LLP in the total amount of $123,631.16 and Robert Busch in total amount of $59,118.75. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Analysis – N/A 
Engagement letter with CliftonLarsonAllen LLP  
Independent Contractor Agreement with Robert Busch 



























EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 

AGENDA DATE:  November 17, 2020 DEPARTMENT:  City Attorney 

TITLE: 

Third Agreement Extension Request from 14 S East Coast, LLC, for property located at 14 S. 
East Coast Street, Lake Worth Beach, Florida 

 
SUMMARY: 

Bhavin Shah, as principal for 14 S East Coast, LLC, is the new owner of property located at 14 
S. East Coast Street, in Lake Worth Beach. On two prior occasions (April 9, 2020 and July 21, 
2020), the City granted 14 S East Coast, LLC, an extension to have the building on the property 
demolished and replaced with a surface parking lot. At this time, Mr. Shah is requesting a third 
extension. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

Bhavin Shah, as principal for 14 S East Coast, LLC, is developing property at 14 S. East Coast. 
He received an extension to demolish the buildings on the property from the City as required by 
a settlement agreement entered into between the City and the previous owner of the property, 
Viva Verde South, LLC.  The City granted the extensions partly due to the National emergency 
caused by COVID-19. The extension was also granted to give Mr. Shah an opportunity to bring 
a vendor to the site. Mr. Shah has not been able to accomplish his goals in the two-90 day 
extension timeframes and is now requesting an additional extension until April 9, 2021. During 
this extension, Mr. Shah will present the City Manager and team with plans for a phased 
development of the property.  If preliminarily accepted at that time, staff will bring back an 
amendment to the Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions to include a timeline for 
development of the property. On the other hand, if negotiations fail, the conditions of the 
Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions will be enforced. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove the request from 14 S East Coast, LLC, granting a third extension 
until April 9, 2021, to demolish the building on the subject property and replace it with a surface 
parking lot as required by the Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions.   

An approval motion is with the understanding that Mr. Shah will present the City Manager with 
plans for a phased development of the property by April 2021, and if preliminarily accepted at 
that time, staff will bring back an amendment to the Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions 
to include a timeline for development of the property. Failure to do so will result in the conditions 
of the Declaration being enforced. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis- N/A 



EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 
  

AGENDA DATE: November 17, 2020 DEPARTMENT: Financial Services 

TITLE: 

Third Amendment to Robert Half International, Inc., agreement 

 
SUMMARY: 

The third amendment to the City’s agreement with Robert Half International will ratify the second 
amendment and extend the term of the agreement for an additional year for a not-to-exceed 
amount of $70,000. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The City entered into the agreement with Robert Half International on September 17, 2018 to 
provide staff augmentation and temporary staff services for the City’s Financial Services 
Department. On September 16, 2019, the City issued the first and second amendments to 
address further gaps in staffing in the Financial Services Department and to assist with the 
recruitment process of qualified staff. These amendments extended the initial term of the 
agreement to September 16, 2020 and increased the not-to-exceed amount of the agreement. 
The second amendment was approved by the City Manager pursuant to his emergency powers 
under the City’s procurement code and as authorized by the Governor’s Executive Order (Dated 
March 9, 2020).  

The purpose of this third amendment is to ratify second amendment in accordance with the 
City’s procurement code and policy and to extend the term of the agreement for additional one 
(1) year until September 15, 2021 on as-needed basis for a not-to exceed amount of $70,000. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Third Amendment to Robert Half International, Inc., agreement for 
a not-to-exceed amount of $70,000.00. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 
Robert Half International Third Amendment  



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Fiscal Years 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 
 
Capital Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0 
Operating Expenditures 70,000 0 0 0 0 
External Revenues 0 0 0 0 0 
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
In-kind Match  0 0 0 0 0 
 
Net Fiscal Impact 0 0 0 0 0 
 
No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 

 

B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Account 
Number 

Account 
Description 

Project 
Number 

FY21 
Budget 

Current 
Balance 

Agenda 
Expenditure 

Balance 
 

       

001-1220-
513.34.50 

Contractual 
Services 

   70,000  

 



1  

THIRD AMENDMENT TO ACCOUNTEMPS TERMS 
 

This Third Amendment to the Accountemps (“Third Amendment”) is made as 
  , by and between the City of Lake Worth Beach, a Florida municipal corporation 
(“CITY”), and Robert Half International Inc., through its division Accountemps, a company 
authorized to do business in Florida (“CONSULTANT”). 

 
WHEREAS, on September 17, 2018, the City entered into a one year agreement with the 

CONSULTANT for the CONSULTANT to provide staff augmentation services to the CITY 
(“Agreement”) for a not to exceed amount of Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000); and 

 
WHEREAS, the CITY and CONSULTANT entered that First Amendment to the 

Agreement which extended the initial term of the Agreement to September 16, 2020 with a not to 
exceed amount of Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000); and 

 
WHEREAS, on April 2, 2020, the CITY and CONSULTANT entered a Second 

Amendment to the Agreement to increase the not to exceed amount to One Hundred Fifty 
Thousand Dollars ($150,000); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Second Amendment was approved by the City Manager pursuant to his 

emergency powers under the City’s procurement code and as authorized by the Governor’s 
Executive Order (dated March 9, 2020); and 

 
WHEREAS, the purpose of this Amendment is to: (1) have the Second Amendment 

ratified by the City Commission in accordance with the City’s procurement code and policy; (2) 
extend the term of the Agreement for an additional one (1) year until September 15, 2021; and, (3) 
to increase the not to exceed amount of the Agreement by Seventy Thousand Dollars ($70,000) 
for a total Agreement (as amended) not to exceed amount of Two Hundred Ninety-Five Thousand 
Dollars ($295,000); and 

 
WHEREAS, the CITY is authorized to extend the term of the Agreement under the CITY’s 

procurement code and policy which authorizes the CITY to utilize consultants (professional 
services) with a distinctive field of expertise as an exempt procurement; and 

 
WHEREAS, the CITY finds the CONSULTANT possesses the requisite distinctive field 

of expertise to extend the Agreement as an exempt procurement and finds entering this Third 
Amendment to the Agreement serves a valid public purpose. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein, the 

sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged by each party hereto, the CITY and the 
CONSULTANT agree to amend the Agreement, as follows: 

 
1. Recitals. The above recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein by 

reference. 



2  

2. Ratification. By approving this Third Amendment, the City Commission ratifies 
the Second Amendment entered on an emergency basis by the City Manager. 

 
3. Amount Not To Exceed. The total amount of compensation that will be paid to the 

CONSULTANT by the CITY under the Agreement, the First Amendment, Second Amendment 
and this Third Amendment is Two Hundred Ninety-Five Thousand Dollars ($295,000). No 
additional sums shall be paid to the CONSULTANT unless agreed to by the CITY in a further 
written amendment to the Agreement. 

 
4. Entire Agreement. The CITY and the CONSULTANT agree that this Third 

Amendment, the First and Second Amendment, and the Agreement set forth the entire agreement 
between the parties, and that there are no promises or understandings other than those stated herein. 
None of the provisions, terms and conditions contained in the Agreement including the First, the 
Second and this Third Amendment may be added to, modified, superseded or otherwise altered, 
except by written instrument executed by the parties hereto. All other terms and conditions of the 
Agreement and the First and Second Amendment not amended by this Third Amendment remain 
in full force and effect. 

 
5. Counterparts. This Third Amendment may be simultaneously executed in 

several counterparts and electronically, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall 
constitute but one and the same instrument. Either or both parties may sign this Third Amendment 
via facsimile or email and such signature is as valid as the original signature of such party. 



3  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have made and executed this Third 
Amendment to the Agreement (Addendum to the Accountemps General Conditions of Assignment 
and Terms of Payment) on the day and year first above written. 

 
 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA 
 

By:   
Pam Triolo, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 

 
By:   

Deborah M. Andrea, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND  APPROVED FOR FINANCIAL 
LEGAL SUFFICIENCY: SUFFICIENCY 

 

By:   By:    
Glen J. Torcivia, City Attorney Bruce T. Miller, Financial Services Director 

 
 

CONSULTANT: ROBERT HALF INTERNATIONAL INC. 
 
 

By:    
 
[Corporate Seal] Print Name: 

Chad Leibundguth 
 

 

 
Title: 

 
District Director 

 

 
 

STATE OF Florida ) 
COUNTY OF Miami-Dade ) 

 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this   18 day of August, 2020, by 
 Chad Leibundguth, who was physically present, as District Director (title), of ROBERT HALF 
INTERNATIONAL INC., A Corporation, which is authorized to do business in the State of  
Florida,   and   who   is   personally  known  to   me   or  who   has   produced   the   following 
   as identification. 

 
Notary Public    

Print Name: Ailin Gonzalez 
 

 

My commission expires: November 13, 2023  

ailgon01
Notary



EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 

AGENDA DATE:  November 17, 2020 DEPARTMENT:  City Attorney 

TITLE: 

Administrative Ratification of Bond Resolutions (No. 45-2020 and 47-2020) for the Consolidated 
Utility Revenue Bonds 

 
SUMMARY: 

Bond Resolution Nos. 45-2020 and 47-2020 were approved by the City Commission on October 
6, 2020 and October 20, 2020 (respectively). However, due to last minute, necessary changes 
by multiple parties involved in the bond process, Commission administrative ratification of the 
finalized versions is sought to have a clear record of approved resolutions. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

On October 6, 2020, the City Commission considered and approved Resolution No. 45-2020 
which authorized the issuance of the Consolidated Utility Revenue Bonds. Resolution No. 45-
2020 is a master resolution designed to facilitate the need for the current combined utility 
financing and future utility financing. Minor changes were made to Resolution No. 45-2020 which 
were not reflected in the published agenda; however, the City Commission were made aware 
of the minor changes prior to approval.  

On October 20, 2020, the City Commission considered and approved Resolution No. 47-2020 
which supplemented Resolution No. 45-2020 and authorized the issuance of the Series 2020 
Consolidated Revenue Bonds. Changes were made to Resolution No. 47-2020 which were not 
reflected in the published agenda; however, the City Commission were made aware of the 
changes prior to approval. 

By administratively ratifying the above resolutions (with the original adoption dates remaining 
the same), the City will have a clear record of the approved resolutions for future references. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to administratively ratify /not administratively ratify Bond Resolutions (No. 45-2020 and 
47-2020) for the Consolidated Utility Revenue Bonds (with the original adoption dates remaining 
the same). 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Bond Resolution 45-2020 
Bond Resolution 47-2020 



 EXECUTION COPY 

 

 

 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA 

 

 

 

_______________________ 

 

 

 

CONSOLIDATED UTILITY REVENUE BONDS RESOLUTION 

 

 

 

_______________________ 

 

 

 

 

ADOPTED OCTOBER 6, 2020 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 



 

 
i 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

 PAGE 

ARTICLE I 

GENERAL 

SECTION 1.01. DEFINITIONS ................................................................................... 1 

SECTION 1.02. AUTHORITY FOR RESOLUTION ................................................ 12 

SECTION 1.03. RESOLUTION TO CONSTITUTE CONTRACT .......................... 12 

SECTION 1.04. FINDINGS ....................................................................................... 12 

ARTICLE II 

AUTHORIZATION, TERMS, EXECUTION AND REGISTRATION OF BONDS 

SECTION 2.01. AUTHORIZATION OF BONDS .................................................... 14 

SECTION 2.02. EXECUTION OF BONDS .............................................................. 14 

SECTION 2.03. AUTHENTICATION....................................................................... 15 

SECTION 2.04. TEMPORARY BONDS ................................................................... 15 

SECTION 2.05. BONDS MUTILATED, DESTROYED, STOLEN OR LOST ....... 15 

SECTION 2.06. INTERCHANGEABILITY, NEGOTIABILITY AND 

TRANSFER ..................................................................................... 16 

SECTION 2.07. FORM OF BONDS .......................................................................... 17 

ARTICLE III 

REDEMPTION OF BONDS 

SECTION 3.01. PRIVILEGE OF REDEMPTION .................................................... 26 

SECTION 3.02. SELECTION OF BONDS TO BE REDEEMED ............................ 26 

SECTION 3.03. NOTICE OF REDEMPTION .......................................................... 26 

SECTION 3.04. REDEMPTION OF PORTIONS OF BONDS ................................. 27 

SECTION 3.05. PAYMENT OF REDEEMED BONDS ........................................... 27 

ARTICLE IV 

SECURITY; FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS; APPLICATION OF GROSS REVENUES 

SECTION 4.01. BONDS NOT TO BE INDEBTEDNESS OF ISSUER ................... 28 

SECTION 4.02. SECURITY FOR BONDS ............................................................... 28 

SECTION 4.03. SEPARATE ACCOUNTS ............................................................... 28 

SECTION 4.04. CONSTRUCTION FUND ............................................................... 29 

SECTION 4.05. CREATION OF FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS ................................. 30 

SECTION 4.06. DISPOSITION OF GOVERNMENT GRANTS AND GROSS 

REVENUES ..................................................................................... 31 

SECTION 4.07. REBATE FUND .............................................................................. 38 

SECTION 4.08. RATE STABILIZATION FUND .................................................... 39 

SECTION 4.09. INVESTMENTS .............................................................................. 39 



 

 
ii 

ARTICLE V 

COVENANTS 

SECTION 5.01. GENERAL ....................................................................................... 41 

SECTION 5.02. OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE ........................................... 41 

SECTION 5.03. ANNUAL BUDGET ........................................................................ 41 

SECTION 5.04 RATES ............................................................................................. 41 

SECTION 5.05. BOOKS AND RECORDS ............................................................... 42 

SECTION 5.06. ANNUAL AUDIT ............................................................................ 42 

SECTION 5.07. NO MORTGAGE OR SALE OF THE SYSTEM ........................... 43 

SECTION 5.08. INSURANCE ................................................................................... 44 

SECTION 5.09. NO FREE SERVICE ........................................................................ 45 

SECTION 5.10. NO IMPAIRMENT OF RIGHTS; NO COMPETING 

SYSTEM .......................................................................................... 45 

SECTION 5.11. COMPULSORY CONNECTIONS ................................................. 45 

SECTION 5.12. ENFORCEMENT OF CHARGES .................................................. 45 

SECTION 5.13. UNIT BILLS .................................................................................... 46 

SECTION 5.14. COVENANTS WITH CREDIT BANKS AND INSURERS .......... 46 

SECTION 5.15. CONSULTING ENGINEERS ......................................................... 46 

SECTION 5.16. FEDERAL INCOME TAXATION COVENANTS; TAXABLE 

BONDS ............................................................................................ 46 

SECTION 5.17. COVENANTS RELATING TO FEDERAL SUBSIDY 

BONDS ............................................................................................ 47 

SECTION 5.18 INSPECTION ................................................................................... 47 

ARTICLE VI 

SUBORDINATED INDEBTEDNESS AND ADDITIONAL BONDS 

SECTION 6.01. SUBORDINATED INDEBTEDNESS ............................................ 49 

SECTION 6.02. ISSUANCE OF ADDITIONAL BONDS ........................................ 49 

SECTION 6.03. BOND ANTICIPATION NOTES ................................................... 52 

SECTION 6.04. ACCESSION OF SUBORDINATED INDEBTEDNESS TO 

PARITY STATUS WITH BONDS ................................................. 52 

ARTICLE VII 

DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES 

SECTION 7.01. EVENTS OF DEFAULT ................................................................. 53 

SECTION 7.02. REMEDIES ...................................................................................... 53 

SECTION 7.03. DIRECTIONS TO TRUSTEE AS TO REMEDIAL 

PROCEEDINGS .............................................................................. 54 

SECTION 7.04. REMEDIES CUMULATIVE .......................................................... 54 

SECTION 7.05. WAIVER OF DEFAULT................................................................. 54 

SECTION 7.06. APPLICATION OF MONEYS AFTER DEFAULT ....................... 54 

SECTION 7.07. CONTROL BY INSURER .............................................................. 55 



 

 
iii 

SUPPLEMENTAL RESOLUTIONS 

SECTION 8.01. SUPPLEMENTAL RESOLUTION WITHOUT 

BONDHOLDERS' CONSENT ........................................................ 57 

SECTION 8.02. SUPPLEMENTAL RESOLUTION WITH BONDHOLDERS' 

AND INSURER'S CONSENT ......................................................... 57 

SECTION 8.03. AMENDMENT WITH CONSENT OF INSURER ONLY ............ 59 

ARTICLE IX 

DEFEASANCE 

SECTION 9.01. DEFEASANCE ................................................................................ 60 

ARTICLE X 

MISCELLANEOUS 

SECTION 10.01. CAPITAL APPRECIATION BONDS ............................................ 62 

SECTION 10.02. SALE OF BONDS ........................................................................... 62 

SECTION 10.03. SEVERABILITY OF INVALID PROVISIONS ............................. 62 

SECTION 10.04. VALIDATION AUTHORIZED ...................................................... 62 

SECTION 10.05. EFFECT OF COVENANTS ............................................................ 62 

SECTION 10.06. FURTHER ACTS ............................................................................ 63 

SECTION 10.07. HEADINGS NOT PART OF RESOLUTION ................................. 63 

SECTION 10.08. BENEFICIARIES UNDER RESOLUTION ................................... 63 

SECTION 10.09. ACTION REQUIRED ON NON-BUSINESS DAY ....................... 63 

SECTION 10.10. GOVERNING LAW; VENUE ........................................................ 63 

SECTION 10.11. REPEAL OF INCONSISTENT RESOLUTIONS........................... 63 

SECTION 10.12. EFFECTIVE DATE ......................................................................... 63 

 

 

 

 

 



 

RESOLUTION NO. _______-2020 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF LAKE 

WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF 

CONSOLIDATED UTILITY REVENUE BONDS FROM TIME TO TIME 

FOR THE PRINCIPAL PURPOSES OF FINANCING AND 

REFINANCING THE ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION AND 

EQUIPPING OF CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS TO THE CITY'S 

CONSOLIDATED UTILITY SYSTEM AND FOR OTHER LAWFUL 

PURPOSES; PLEDGING THE NET REVENUES OF THE CITY’S 

CONSOLIDATED UTILITY SYSTEM TO SECURE PAYMENT OF THE 

PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON BONDS ISSUED HEREUNDER; 

PROVIDING FOR PAYMENT OF THE BONDS FROM SUCH 

REVENUES; PROVIDING FOR THE RIGHTS OF THE HOLDERS OF 

BONDS ISSUED HEREUNDER; MAKING CERTAIN OTHER 

COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS IN CONNECTION WITH BONDS 

ISSUED HEREUNDER; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

FOR THIS RESOLUTION.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA that: 

ARTICLE I 

GENERAL 

SECTION 1.01. DEFINITIONS.  When used in this Resolution, the following 

terms shall have the following meanings, unless the context clearly otherwise requires: 

"Accreted Value" shall mean, as of any date of computation with respect to any Capital 

Appreciation Bond, an amount equal to the principal amount of such Capital Appreciation Bond 

(the principal amount at its initial offering) plus the interest accrued on such Capital 

Appreciation Bond from the date of delivery to the original purchasers thereof to the Interest 

Date next preceding the date of computation or the date of computation if an Interest Date, such 

interest to accrue at a rate not exceeding the legal rate, compounded semiannually, plus, with 

respect to matters related to the payment upon redemption or acceleration of the Capital 

Appreciation Bonds, if such date of computation shall not be an Interest Date, a portion of the 

difference between the Accreted Value as of the immediately preceding Interest Date and the 

Accreted Value as of the immediately succeeding Interest Date, calculated based on the 

assumption that Accreted Value accrues during any semi-annual period in equal daily amounts 

on the basis of a 360-day year. 

"Act" shall mean the City Charter, Chapter 166, Part II, Florida Statutes, and other 

applicable provisions of law. 

"Additional Bonds" shall mean the obligations issued at any time under the provisions 

of Section 6.02 hereof on parity with any Outstanding Bonds. 



 

 
2 

"Annual Audit" shall mean the annual audit prepared pursuant to the requirements of 

Section 5.06 hereof. 

"Annual Budget" shall mean the annual budget prepared pursuant to the requirements of 

Section 5.03 hereof. 

"Annual Debt Service" shall mean the aggregate amount of Debt Service on the Bonds 

for each applicable Fiscal Year.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, any interest payments or 

principal payments or Sinking Fund Installments with respect to any Outstanding Bonds or 

proposed Additional Bonds that are due and payable on October 1, shall be considered to be due 

and payable on the immediately preceding September 30 for purposes of determining Annual 

Debt Service for such Bonds hereunder. 

"Authorized Investments" shall mean any investments that may be made by the Issuer 

under applicable law and which are allowed under the Issuer's investment policy. 

"Authorized Issuer Officer" shall mean the City Manager (or such person’s designee), 

and when used in reference to any act or document, also means any other person authorized by 

resolution of the Issuer to perform such act or sign such document. 

"Bond Counsel" shall mean Nabors, Giblin & Nickerson, P.A. or any other attorney at 

law or firm of attorneys, of nationally recognized standing in matters pertaining to the federal tax 

exemption of interest on obligations issued by states and political subdivisions, and duly 

admitted to practice law before the highest court of any state of the United States of America. 

"Bond Insurance Policy" shall mean the municipal bond new issue insurance policy or 

policies issued by an Insurer guaranteeing the payment of the principal of and interest on any 

portion of the Bonds.   

"Bondholder" or "Holder" or "holder" or any similar term, when used with reference 

to a Bond or Bonds, shall mean any person who shall be the registered owner of any Outstanding 

Bond or Bonds as provided in the registration books of the Issuer. 

"Bonds" shall mean any Bonds, notes or other forms of indebtedness issued and 

designated as Bonds pursuant to this Resolution and any Subordinated Indebtedness which 

accedes to the status of Bonds pursuant to Section 6.04 hereof. 

"Business Day" shall mean a day other than (i) a Saturday, Sunday or day on which 

banks located in the city in which the designated corporate trust office of the Registrar and 

Paying Agent is located are required or authorized by law or executive order to close for 

business, and (ii) a day on which the New York Stock Exchange is closed. 

"Capital Appreciation Bonds" shall mean those Bonds of a Series so designated under 

the authority of the Issuer, whether by Supplemental Resolution, purchase contract, or otherwise, 

which may be either Serial Bonds or Term Bonds and which shall bear interest payable at 

maturity or redemption.  In the case of Capital Appreciation Bonds that are convertible to Bonds 

with interest payable prior to maturity or redemption of such Bonds, such Bonds shall be 

considered Capital Appreciation Bonds only during the period of time prior to such conversion. 



 

 
3 

"Capital Government Grant," when used with respect to the System, shall mean any 

sum of money heretofore or hereafter received by the Issuer from the United States of America 

or any agency thereof or from the State of Florida or any agency or political subdivision thereof 

as or on account of a grant or contribution, not repayable by the Issuer, for or with respect to the 

construction, acquisition or other development of an addition, extension or improvement to any 

part of the System or any costs of any such construction, acquisition or development. 

"Clerk" shall mean the City Clerk of the Issuer, or such other person as may be duly 

authorized to act on his or her behalf. 

"Code" shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the regulations 

and rules thereunder in effect or proposed. 

"Connection Fees" shall mean, collectively, the Sewer Connection Fees, the Water 

Connection Fees, and any similar charge imposed and related to capacity of any other portion of 

the System. 

"Construction Fund" shall mean the fund established pursuant to Section 4.04 hereof. 

"Consulting Engineers" shall mean any engineering firm of reputation for skill and 

experience with respect to the construction, maintenance and operation of facilities similar to the 

facilities that make up all or a portion of the System, which is duly licensed under the laws of the 

State of Florida and designated by the Issuer to perform the duties of the Consulting Engineers 

under the provisions hereof. 

"Cost," when used in connection with a Project, shall mean (1) the Issuer's cost of 

physical construction; (2) costs of acquisition by or for the Issuer of such Project; (3) costs of 

land and interests therein and the cost of the Issuer incidental to such acquisition; (4) the cost of 

any indemnity and surety bonds and premiums for insurance during construction; (5) all interest 

due to be paid on the Bonds and other obligations relating to the System during the period of 

acquisition and construction of such Project and for such period subsequent to completion as the 

Issuer shall determine and shall be allowable under applicable provisions of the Code; (6) 

engineering, legal and other consultant fees and expenses; (7) costs and expenses of the 

financing, including audits, fees and expenses of any Paying Agent, Registrar, escrow agent or 

depository; (8) amounts, if any, required by this Resolution to be paid into the Interest Account 

upon the issuance of any Series of Bonds; (9) payments, when due (whether at the maturity of 

principal or the due date of interest or upon redemption) on any indebtedness of the Issuer (other 

than the Bonds) incurred for a Project for the System; (10) costs of machinery, equipment and 

supplies and reserves required by the Issuer for the commencement of operation of such Project; 

and (11) any other costs properly attributable to such construction or acquisition, as determined 

by generally accepted accounting principles applicable to public utility systems similar to the 

System, and shall include reimbursement to the Issuer for any such items of Cost heretofore paid 

by the Issuer and interest on any interfund loan related thereto.  Any Supplemental Resolution 

may provide for additional items to be included in the aforesaid Costs. 



 

 
4 

"Counterparty" shall mean the entity entering into a Hedge Agreement with the Issuer.  

Counterparty shall also include any guarantor of such entity's obligations under such Hedge 

Agreement. 

"Credit Bank" shall mean as to any particular Series of Bonds, the Person (other than an 

Insurer) providing a letter of credit, a line of credit or other credit or liquidity facility, as 

designated in the Supplemental Resolution providing for the issuance of such Bonds. 

"Credit Facility" shall mean as to any particular Series of Bonds, an irrevocable letter of 

credit, a line of credit or other credit or legal liquidity facility (other than a Bond Insurance 

Policy), as approved in the Supplemental Resolution providing for the issuance of such Bonds. 

"Debt Service" shall mean, at any time, the aggregate amount in the then applicable 

period of time of (1) interest required to be paid on the Outstanding Bonds during such period of 

time, except to the extent that such interest is to be paid from deposits in the Interest Account or 

Construction Fund made from Bond proceeds for such purpose, (2) principal of Outstanding 

Serial Bonds maturing in such period of time, and (3) the Sinking Fund Installments scheduled to 

be paid during such period of time.  For purposes of this definition, (A) all amounts payable on a 

Capital Appreciation Bond shall be considered a principal payment in the year it becomes due, 

(B) with respect to debt service on any Bonds which relate to a Qualified Hedge Agreement, 

interest on such Bonds during the term of such Qualified Hedge Agreement shall be deemed to 

be the Hedge Payments coming due during such period of time, (C) if any Series of Bonds has 

25% or more of the aggregate principal amount of such Series coming due in any one year, Debt 

Service shall be determined on such Series during such period of time as if the principal of and 

interest on such Series were being paid from the date of issuance thereof in substantially equal 

annual amounts over a period of 25 years, (D) the amount, if any, on deposit in the Reserve 

Account (or any subaccount thereof), on any date of calculation of Debt Service shall be 

deducted from the amount of principal due at the final maturity of the Bonds which are secured 

by such Reserve Account (or subaccount thereof) and in each preceding year until such amount 

is exhausted, and (E) with respect to debt service on any Federal Subsidy Bonds, when 

determining the interest on such Bonds for any particular Interest Date the amount of the 

corresponding Federal Subsidy Payment shall be deducted from the amount of interest which is 

due and payable to the holders of such Bonds on the Interest Date, but only to the extent that the 

Issuer reasonably believes that it will be in receipt of such Federal Subsidy Payment on or prior 

to such Interest Date.  

"Debt Service Reserve Fund Policy Agreement" shall mean any agreement securing 

the obligation of the Issuer to repay Policy Costs associated with a Reserve Account Letter of 

Credit or Reserve Account Insurance Policy. 

"Federal Securities" shall mean non-callable direct obligations of the United States of 

America (including obligations issued or held in book-entry form on the books of the 

Department of Treasury) or non-callable obligations the principal of and interest on which are 

unconditionally guaranteed by the United States of America.  All such obligations shall not 

permit redemption prior to maturity at the option of the obligor. 



 

 
5 

"Federal Subsidy Bonds" shall mean bonds issued under Section 54AA of the Code, 

Section 1400U-2 of the Code or any other applicable provision of the Code, the interest on which 

is not exempt from federal income taxation, with respect to which the Issuer elects to receive, or 

is otherwise entitled to receive, Federal Subsidy Payments from the United States Department of 

the Treasury. 

"Federal Subsidy Payments" shall mean the direct payments made by the United States 

Department of the Treasury to the Issuer with respect to any Federal Subsidy Bonds pursuant to 

Sections 54AA(g), 6431 and 1400U-2 of the Code, or any other applicable provision of the 

Code. 

"Fiscal Year" shall mean the period commencing on October 1 of each year and 

continuing through the next succeeding September 30, or such other period as may be prescribed 

by law. 

"Fitch" means Fitch Ratings and any assigns and successors thereto. 

"Governing Body" shall mean the City Commission of the City of Lake Worth Beach, 

Florida, or its successor in function. 

"Gross Revenues" shall mean all income and moneys received by the Issuer from the 

rates, fees, rentals, charges and other income to be made and collected by the Issuer for the use 

of the products, services and facilities to be provided by the System, or otherwise received by the 

Issuer or accruing to the Issuer in the management and operation of the System, calculated in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles applicable to public utility systems 

similar to the System, including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, (1) proceeds 

from use and occupancy insurance on the System, (2) Investment Earnings, and (3) Operating 

Government Grants.  "Gross Revenues" shall not include (A) Capital Government Grants, (B) 

proceeds of Bonds or other Issuer debt, (C) moneys deposited to the Rate Stabilization Fund 

from the Utility Reserve Fund, (D) Connection Fees, (E) proceeds of Special Assessments, and 

(F) any gain resulting from the valuation of investment securities or Hedge Agreements at 

market value and any other gain that does not require or result in the receipt of cash. 

"Hedge Agreement" shall mean an agreement in writing between the Issuer and the 

Counterparty pursuant to which (1) the Issuer agrees to pay to the Counterparty an amount, either 

at one time or periodically, which may, but is not required to, be determined by reference to the 

amount of interest (which may be at a fixed or variable rate) payable on a notional amount 

specified in such agreement during the period specified in such agreement and (2) the 

Counterparty agrees to pay to the Issuer an amount, either at one time or periodically, which 

may, but is not required to, be determined by reference to the amount of interest (which may be 

at a fixed or variable rate) payable on all or a portion of a notional amount specified in such 

agreement during the period specified in such agreement.  Hedge Agreement shall also include 

any financial product or agreement which is used by the Issuer as a hedging device with respect 

to its obligations to pay interest on Bonds, or any portion thereof, which is designated by the 

Issuer as a "Hedge Agreement." 



 

 
6 

"Hedge Payments" shall mean any amounts payable by the Issuer as interest on the 

related notional amount under a Qualified Hedge Agreement; excluding, however, any payments 

due as a penalty or a fee or by virtue of termination of a Qualified Hedge Agreement or any 

obligation to provide collateral. 

"Hedge Receipts" shall mean any amounts receivable by the Issuer on the related 

notional amount under a Qualified Hedge Agreement. 

"Insurer" shall mean such Person as shall be in the business of insuring or guaranteeing 

the payment of principal of and interest on municipal securities and whose credit is such that, at 

the time of any action or consent required or permitted by the Insurer pursuant to the terms of 

this Resolution, all municipal securities insured or guaranteed by it are then rated, because of 

such insurance or guarantee, in one of the three highest categories (without regard to gradations, 

such as "+" or "-" or "1, 2 or 3" of such categories) by at least one of the Rating Agencies. 

"Interest Account" shall mean the separate account in the Sinking Fund established 

pursuant to Section 4.05(C) hereof. 

"Interest Date" or "interest payment date" shall be such date or dates for the payment 

of interest on the Bonds as provided pursuant to Section 2.01 hereof and by Supplemental 

Resolution.  

"Investment Earnings" shall mean all income and earnings derived from the investment 

of moneys in the funds and accounts established hereunder, other than the Rebate Fund. 

"Issuer" shall mean the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida, a municipal corporation and 

public body corporate and politic of the State of Florida, or any successor thereto.  

"Maximum Annual Debt Service" shall mean the largest aggregate amount of the 

Annual Debt Service becoming due in any Fiscal Year in which Bonds are Outstanding. 

"Maximum Interest Rate" shall mean, with respect to any particular Variable Rate 

Bonds, a numerical rate of interest, which shall be set forth in, or determined in accordance with, 

the Supplemental Resolution authorizing the issuance of such Bonds, or in such other 

documentation relating to such Variable Rate Bonds, that shall be the maximum rate of interest 

such Bonds may at any particular time bear. 

"Mayor" shall mean the Mayor or Vice-Mayor of the City of Lake Worth Beach, 

Florida, and such other person as shall be duly authorized to act on his or her behalf. 

"Moody's" shall mean Moody's Investors Service, and any assigns and successors 

thereto. 

"Net Revenues" shall mean Gross Revenues less Operating Expenses. 

"Operating Expenses" shall mean the Issuer's expenses for operation, maintenance and 

repairs with respect to the System and shall include, without limiting the generality of the 

foregoing, administration and other indirect expenses of the Issuer related and apportioned to the 



 

 
7 

System, payments for the purchase of materials essential to or used in the operation of the 

System, including bulk purchases of water, sewage, or electric services, fees for the management 

of the System or any portion thereof, accounting, legal and engineering expenses, ordinary and 

current rentals of equipment or other property, refunds of moneys lawfully due to others, 

payments to others for disposal of sewage or other wastes, payments to pension, retirement, 

health and hospitalization funds, and any other expenses required to be paid for or with respect to 

proper operation or maintenance of the System, including appropriate reserves therefor, all to the 

extent properly attributable to the System in accordance with generally accepted accounting 

principles applicable to public utility systems similar to the System, and disbursements for the 

expenses, liabilities and compensation of any Paying Agent or Registrar under this Resolution, 

but does not include any costs or expenses in respect of original construction or improvement 

other than expenditures necessary to prevent an interruption or continuance of an interruption of 

service or of Gross Revenues or minor capital expenditures necessary for the proper and 

economical operation or maintenance of the System, or any payments in lieu of taxes or 

franchise fees made to the Issuer's general fund, or any provision for interest, depreciation, 

amortization or similar charges, any non-cash charges, or any loss resulting from the valuation of 

investment securities or Hedge Agreements at market value and any other loss that does not 

require or result in the expenditure of cash. 

"Operating Government Grant," when used with respect to the System, shall mean 

any sum of money heretofore or hereafter received by the Issuer from the United States of 

America or any agency thereof or from the State of Florida or any agency or political subdivision 

thereof as or on account of a grant or contribution, not repayable by the Issuer, for the purpose of 

funding Operating Expenses or paying Debt Service on Bonds or otherwise allowed by the terms 

thereof to be used to pay Operating Expenses or Debt Service. 

"Operation and Maintenance Fund" shall mean the fund created pursuant to Section 

4.05(B) hereof. 

"Outstanding," when used with reference to Bonds and as of any particular date, shall 

describe all Bonds theretofore and thereupon being authenticated and delivered except, (1) any 

Bond in lieu of which other Bond or Bonds have been issued under agreement to replace lost, 

mutilated or destroyed Bonds, (2) any Bond surrendered by the Holder thereof in exchange for 

other Bond or Bonds under Sections 2.05 and 2.06 hereof, (3) Bonds deemed to have been paid 

pursuant to Section 9.01 hereof and (4) Bonds cancelled after purchase in the open market or 

because of payment at, or redemption prior to, maturity. 

"Paying Agent" shall mean for each Series of Bonds, the paying agent appointed by the 

Issuer for such Series of Bonds and its successor or assigns, if any. 

"Person" shall mean an individual, a corporation, a partnership, an association, a joint 

stock company, a trust, any unincorporated organization, governmental entity or other legal 

entity. 

"Pledged Funds" shall mean (1) the Net Revenues, and (2) until applied in accordance 

with the provisions of this Resolution, all moneys, including investments thereof, in the funds 

and accounts established hereunder, except (A) the Rebate Fund, (B) to the extent moneys 



 

 
8 

therein shall be required to pay the Operating Expenses of the System in accordance with the 

terms hereof, and (C) any moneys set aside in a particular subaccount of the Reserve Account if 

such moneys shall be pledged solely for the payment of a Series of Bonds for which it was 

established in accordance with the provisions hereof. 

"Policy Costs" shall mean, collectively, the repayment of draws, reasonable expenses 

and interest related to a Reserve Account Insurance Policy and/or Reserve Account Letter of 

Credit. 

"Prerefunded Obligations" shall mean any bonds or other obligations of any state of 

the United States of America or of any agency, instrumentality or local governmental unit of any 

such state (1) which are (A) not callable prior to maturity or (B) as to which irrevocable 

instructions have been given to the fiduciary for such bonds or other obligations by the obligor to 

give due notice of redemption and to call such bonds for redemption on the date or dates 

specified in such instructions, (2) which are fully secured as to principal, redemption premium, if 

any, and interest by a fund held by a fiduciary consisting only of cash or Federal Securities, 

secured in substantially the manner set forth in Section 9.01 hereof, which fund may be applied 

only to the payment of such principal of, redemption premium, if any, and interest on such bonds 

or other obligations on the maturity date or dates thereof or the specified redemption date or 

dates pursuant to such irrevocable instructions, as the case may be, (3) as to which the principal 

of and interest on the Federal Securities, which have been deposited in such fund along with any 

cash on deposit in such fund are sufficient, as verified by an independent certified public 

accountant or other expert in such matters, to pay principal of, redemption premium, if any, and 

interest on the bonds or other obligations on the maturity date or dates thereof or on the 

redemption date or dates specified in the irrevocable instructions referred to in clause (1) above 

and are not available to satisfy any other claims, including those against the fiduciary holding the 

same, and (4) which are rated in the highest rating category (without regard to gradations, such 

as "+" or "-" or "1, 2 or 3" of such categories) of one of the Rating Agencies. 

"Principal Account" shall mean the separate account in the Sinking Fund established 

pursuant to Section 4.05(C) hereof. 

"Project" shall mean any structure, property or facility for public use which the Issuer 

from time to time may determine to construct, acquire or equip as part of the System, together 

with all equipment, structures and other facilities necessary or appropriate in connection 

therewith which are financed in whole or in part with the indebtedness secured by this 

Resolution.  This term is to be broadly construed as including any lawful undertaking which will 

accrue to the benefit of the System, including, without limitation, financing improvements to the 

Issuer's facilities, joint ventures and acquisition of partial interests or contractual rights, and 

including modification, disposal, replacement or cancellation of a Project previously authorized, 

should such modification, disposal, replacement or cancellation be permitted under this 

Resolution. 

"Qualified Hedge Agreement" shall mean a Hedge Agreement with a Counterparty that 

at the time it enters into such Hedge Agreement is rated "A-" or better by Standard & Poor's and 

"A3" or better by Moody's. 



 

 
9 

"Rate Consultant" shall mean any accountant, engineer or consultant or firm of 

accountants, engineers or consultants chosen by the Issuer with reputation for skill and 

experience in reviewing and recommending rates, fees and charges for utility systems similar to 

the System. 

"Rate Stabilization Fund" shall mean the "Rate Stabilization Fund" established 

pursuant to Section 4.05(F) hereof. 

"Rating Agencies" means Fitch, Moody's and Standard & Poor's. 

"Rebate Fund" shall mean the Rebate Fund established pursuant to Section 4.05(E) 

hereof. 

"Redemption Price" shall mean, with respect to any Bond or portion thereof, the 

principal amount or portion thereof, plus the applicable premium, if any, payable upon 

redemption thereof pursuant to such Bond or this Resolution. 

"Refunding Securities" shall mean Federal Securities and Prerefunded Obligations. 

"Registrar" shall mean for each Series of Bonds, the bond registrar appointed by the 

Issuer for such Series of Bonds and its successor or assigns, if any. 

"Renewal and Replacement Fund" shall mean the fund created pursuant to Section 

4.05(D) hereof. 

"Renewal and Replacement Fund Requirement" shall mean, on the date of 

calculation, an amount of money equal to (1) five percent of the Gross Revenues received by the 

Issuer in the immediately preceding Fiscal Year, or (2) such greater or lesser amount as may be 

certified to the Issuer by the Consulting Engineers as an amount appropriate for the purposes of 

this Resolution. 

"Reserve Account" shall mean the separate account in the Sinking Fund established 

pursuant to Section 4.05(C) hereof. 

"Reserve Account Insurance Policy" shall mean the insurance policy deposited in the 

Reserve Account in lieu of or in partial substitution for cash on deposit therein pursuant to 

Section 4.06(B)(4). 

"Reserve Account Letter of Credit" shall mean a letter of credit or line of credit or 

other credit facility (other than a Reserve Account Insurance Policy) deposited in the Reserve 

Account in lieu of or in partial substitution for cash on deposit therein pursuant to Section 

4.06(B)(4) hereof. 

"Reserve Account Requirement" shall mean, as of any date of calculation for the 

Reserve Account or subaccount therein, an amount equal to the lesser of (1) Maximum Annual 

Debt Service for all Outstanding Bonds secured thereby, (2) 125% of the average Annual Debt 

Service for all Outstanding Bonds secured thereby, or (3) the maximum amount of Bond 

proceeds which may be deposited to the Reserve Account without subjecting the same to yield 



 

 
10 

restriction under the Code, or causing interest on any of the Bonds secured thereby (other than 

Taxable Bonds) to be included in gross income for purposes of federal income taxation or 

otherwise violating applicable provisions of the Code; provided, however, the Issuer may 

establish by Supplemental Resolution a different Reserve Account Requirement with respect to 

any particular Series of Bonds pursuant to Section 4.06(B)(4) hereof, which Reserve Account 

Requirement may be $0.00.  In computing the Reserve Account Requirement in respect of a 

Series of Bonds that constitutes Variable Rate Bonds, the interest rate on such Bonds shall be 

assumed to be (A) if such Variable Rate Bonds have been Outstanding for at least 12 months 

prior to the date of calculation, the highest of (i) the actual rate of interest on the date of 

calculation, (ii) the average interest rate borne by such Variable Rate Bonds for the 12-month 

period immediately preceding each date of calculation, and (iii) the Bond Buyer Revenue Bond 

Index most recently published prior to the time of calculation, and (B) if such Variable Rate 

Bonds have not been Outstanding for at least 12 months prior to the date of calculation, the 

higher of (i) the actual rate of interest on the date of calculation, and (ii) the Bond Buyer 

Revenue Bond Index most recently published prior to the time of calculation.  The Reserve 

Account Requirement shall be calculated as of April 1 of each year with respect to the next 

succeeding Fiscal Year. 

"Resolution" shall mean this Resolution, as the same may from time to time be 

amended, modified or supplemented by Supplemental Resolution. 

"Revenue Fund" shall mean the fund created pursuant to Section 4.05(A) hereof. 

"Serial Bonds" shall mean all of the Bonds other than the Term Bonds. 

"Series" shall mean all the Bonds delivered on original issuance in a simultaneous 

transaction and identified pursuant to Section 2.01 hereof or a Supplemental Resolution 

authorizing the issuance by the Issuer of such Bonds as a separate Series, regardless of variations 

in maturity, interest rate, Sinking Fund Installments or other provisions. 

"Sewer Connection Fees" shall mean the fees and charges, if any, which relate to 

acquiring, constructing, equipping or expanding the capacity of the sewer facilities of the System 

for the purpose of paying or reimbursing the equitable share of the capital cost relating to such 

acquisition, construction, expansion or equipping of capacity of the sewer facilities or expansion 

thereof in order to serve new users of the sewer facilities of the System, to the extent the same 

are lawfully levied, collected and pledged.  "Sewer Connection Fees" include those fees and 

charges currently known under Florida law as "impact fees" but shall not include fees and 

charges imposed for the cost of physically hooking up or connecting to the System. 

"Sinking Fund" shall mean the fund established pursuant to Section 4.05(C) hereof. 

"Sinking Fund Installment" shall mean an amount designated as such by Supplemental 

Resolution and established with respect to the Term Bonds. 

"Special Assessments" means any and all assessments against property benefited by the 

System or any part thereof. 



 

 
11 

"Standard and Poor's" or "S&P" shall mean S&P Global Ratings, a business unit of 

Standard & Poor’s Financial Services LLC, and any assigns and successors thereto. 

"State" shall mean the State of Florida. 

"Subordinated Indebtedness" shall mean that indebtedness of the Issuer, subordinate 

and junior to the Bonds, issued in accordance with the provisions of Section 6.01 hereof or 

deemed subordinate and junior to the Bonds in accordance with the provisions hereof or in 

accordance with the provisions of such Subordinated Indebtedness. 

"Supplemental Resolution" shall mean any resolution of the Issuer amending or 

supplementing this Resolution enacted and becoming effective in accordance with the terms of 

Sections 8.01, 8.02 and 8.03 hereof. 

"System" shall mean any and all water production, transmission, treatment and 

distribution facilities, sewage collection, transmission, treatment and disposal facilities, 

reclaimed water (reuse) facilities, and electric production, transmission and distribution facilities 

now owned or hereafter owned by the Issuer, which System shall also include any and all 

improvements, extensions and additions thereto hereafter constructed or acquired either from the 

proceeds of Bonds or from any other sources, together with all property, real or personal, 

tangible or intangible, now or hereafter owned or used in connection therewith, including all 

contractual rights, rights to capacity and obligations or undertakings associated therewith.  

"System" shall also include any other utility facilities if and to the extent the Issuer determines 

by Supplemental Resolution to include such utility or facilities within the System as described 

herein.   

"Taxable Bonds" means any Bond, other than Federal Subsidy Bonds, which states, in 

the body thereof, that the interest income thereon is includable in the gross income of the Holder 

thereof for federal income taxation purposes or that such interest is subject to federal income 

taxation.  Except as otherwise provided herein, Taxable Bonds shall not include Federal Subsidy 

Bonds. 

"Term Bonds" shall mean those Bonds which shall be designated as Term Bonds hereby 

or by Supplemental Resolution. 

"Term Bonds Redemption Account" shall mean the separate account in the Sinking 

Fund established pursuant to Section 4.05(C) hereof. 

"Utility Reserve Fund" shall mean the fund created pursuant to Section 4.05(G) hereof. 

"Variable Rate Bonds" shall mean Bonds issued with a variable, adjustable, convertible 

or other similar rate which is not fixed in percentage for the entire term thereof at the date of 

issue. 

"Water Connection Fees" shall mean the fees and charges, if any, which relate to 

acquiring, constructing, equipping or expanding the capacity of the water facilities of the System 

for the purpose of paying or reimbursing the equitable share of the capital cost relating to such 

acquisition, construction, expansion or equipping of capacity of the water facilities or expansion 



 

 
12 

thereof in order to serve new users of the water facilities of the System, to the extent the same are 

lawfully levied, collected and pledged.  "Water Connection Fees" include those fees and charges 

currently known under Florida law as "impact fees" but shall not include fees and charges 

imposed for the cost of physically hooking up or connecting to the System. 

The terms "herein," "hereunder," "hereby," "hereto," "hereof," and any similar terms, shall refer 

to this Resolution; the term "heretofore" shall mean before the date of adoption of this 

Resolution; and the term "hereafter" shall mean after the date of adoption of this Resolution. 

 

Words importing the masculine gender include every other gender. 

Words importing the singular number include the plural number, and vice versa. 

SECTION 1.02. AUTHORITY FOR RESOLUTION.  This Resolution is adopted 

pursuant to the provisions of the Act.  The Issuer has ascertained and hereby determined that 

adoption of this Resolution is necessary to carry out the powers, purposes and duties expressly 

provided in the Act, that each and every matter and thing as to which provision is made herein is 

necessary in order to carry out and effectuate the purposes of the Issuer in accordance with the 

Act and to carry out and effectuate the plan and purpose of the Act, and that the powers of the 

Issuer herein exercised are in each case exercised in accordance with the provisions of the Act 

and in furtherance of the purposes of the Issuer. 

SECTION 1.03. RESOLUTION TO CONSTITUTE CONTRACT.  In 

consideration of the purchase and acceptance of any or all of the Bonds by those who shall hold 

the same from time to time, the provisions of this Resolution shall be a part of the contract of the 

Issuer with the Holders of the Bonds, and shall be deemed to be and shall constitute a contract 

between the Issuer, the Holders from time to time of the Bonds and any Insurer or Credit Bank.  

The pledge made in the Resolution and the provisions, covenants and agreements herein set forth 

to be performed by or on behalf of the Issuer shall be for the equal benefit, protection and 

security of the Holders of any and all of said Bonds and any Insurer or Credit Bank, but only to 

the extent and in accordance with the terms hereof.  All of the Bonds, regardless of the time or 

times of their issuance or maturity, shall be of equal rank without preference, priority or 

distinction of any of the Bonds over any other thereof except as expressly provided in or 

pursuant to this Resolution. 

SECTION 1.04. FINDINGS.  It is hereby ascertained, determined and declared 

that: 

(A) The Issuer has heretofore determined that it is necessary and in the best interests 

of the health, safety and welfare of the Issuer and its inhabitants that the Issuer own, operate, 

maintain, improve, manage and expand the System. 

(B) It is necessary and desirable and in the best interests of the Issuer to borrow 

moneys from time to time to improve and expand the System and to refinance certain 

indebtedness related to the System. 

(C) The Bonds issued hereunder shall be secured by the Pledged Funds as provided 

herein and such Pledged Funds have not been pledged or encumbered except with respect to 



 

 
13 

certain previously issued indebtedness which shall be refunded simultaneously with or prior to 

the first issuance of Bonds hereunder.  

(D) The estimated Gross Revenues to be derived in each year hereafter from the 

operation of the System will be sufficient to pay all the Operating Expenses, the principal of and 

interest on the Bonds and Subordinated Indebtedness, as the same become due, and all other 

payments provided for in this Resolution. 

(E) The principal of and interest on the Bonds and Subordinated Indebtedness and all 

other payments provided for in this Resolution will be paid solely from the Pledged Funds in 

accordance with the terms hereof; and the ad valorem taxing power of the Issuer will never be 

necessary or authorized to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds and Subordinated 

Indebtedness, or to make any other payments provided for in this Resolution, and neither the 

Bonds nor any Subordinated Indebtedness shall constitute a lien upon the System or upon any 

other property whatsoever of or in the Issuer. 

 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank] 



 

 
14 

ARTICLE II 

AUTHORIZATION, TERMS, EXECUTION AND REGISTRATION OF BONDS 

SECTION 2.01. AUTHORIZATION OF BONDS.  This Resolution creates an 

issue of Bonds of the Issuer to be designated as "City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida 

Consolidated Utility Revenue Bonds" which may be issued in one or more Series as hereinafter 

provided.  The aggregate principal amount of the Bonds which may be executed and delivered 

under this Resolution is not limited except as is or may hereafter be provided in this Resolution 

or as limited by the Act.   

The Bonds may, if and when authorized by the Issuer pursuant to this Resolution, be 

issued in one or more Series, with such further appropriate particular designations added to or 

incorporated in such title for the Bonds of any particular Series as the Issuer may determine and 

as may be necessary to distinguish such Bonds from the Bonds of any other Series.  Each Bond 

shall bear upon its face the designation so determined for the Series to which it belongs. 

The Bonds shall be issued for such purpose or purposes; shall bear interest at such rate or 

rates not exceeding the maximum rate permitted by law; and shall be payable in lawful money of 

the United States of America on such dates; all as determined by Supplemental Resolution. 

The Bonds shall be issued in such denominations and such form, whether coupon or 

registered; shall be dated such date; shall bear such numbers; shall be payable in such manner 

and at such place or places; shall contain such redemption provisions; shall have such Paying 

Agents and Registrars; shall mature in such years and amounts; shall have such Interest Dates 

and the proceeds shall be used in such manner; all as determined or provided for by 

Supplemental Resolution.  The Issuer may issue Bonds which may be secured by a Credit 

Facility or by a Bond Insurance Policy all as shall be determined by Supplemental Resolution.  

All other terms and provisions with respect to any Series of Bonds shall be determined in 

accordance with a Supplemental Resolution.  The Governing Body may delegate approval of the 

terms, details and sale of a Series of Bonds to an Authorized Issuer Officer pursuant to a 

Supplemental Resolution. 

SECTION 2.02. EXECUTION OF BONDS.  The Bonds shall be executed in the 

name of the Issuer with the manual or facsimile signature of the Mayor, and the official seal of 

the Issuer shall be imprinted thereon, attested and countersigned with the manual or facsimile 

signature of the Clerk.  In case any one or more of the officers who shall have signed or sealed 

any of the Bonds or whose facsimile signature shall appear thereon shall cease to be such officer 

of the Issuer before the Bonds so signed and sealed have been actually sold and delivered, such 

Bonds may nevertheless be sold and delivered as herein provided and may be issued as if the 

person who signed or sealed such Bonds had not ceased to hold such office.  Any Bond may be 

signed and sealed on behalf of the Issuer by such person who at the actual time of the execution 

of such Bond shall hold the proper office of the Issuer, although at the date of such Bond such 

person may not have held such office or may not have been so authorized.  The Issuer may adopt 

and use for such purposes the facsimile signatures of any such persons who shall have held such 

offices at any time after the date of the adoption of this Resolution, notwithstanding that either or 



 

 
15 

both shall have ceased to hold such office at the time the Bonds shall be actually sold and 

delivered. 

SECTION 2.03. AUTHENTICATION.  No Bond of any Series shall be secured 

hereunder or entitled to the benefit hereof or shall be valid or obligatory for any purpose unless 

there shall be manually endorsed on such Bond a certificate of authentication by the Registrar or 

such other entity as may be approved by the Issuer for such purpose.  Such certificate on any 

Bond shall be conclusive evidence that such Bond has been duly authenticated and delivered 

under this Resolution.  The form of such certificate shall be substantially in the form provided in 

Section 2.07 hereof. 

SECTION 2.04. TEMPORARY BONDS.  Until the definitive Bonds of any Series 

are prepared, the Issuer may execute, in the same manner as is provided in Section 2.02 hereof, 

and deliver, upon authentication by the Registrar pursuant to Section 2.03 hereof, in lieu of 

definitive Bonds, but subject to the same provisions, limitations and conditions as the definitive 

Bonds, except as to the denominations thereof, one or more temporary Bonds substantially of the 

tenor of the definitive Bonds in lieu of which such temporary Bond or Bonds are issued, in 

denominations authorized by the Issuer by subsequent resolution and with such omissions, 

insertions and variations as may be appropriate to temporary Bonds.  The Issuer, at its own 

expense, shall prepare and execute definitive Bonds, which shall be authenticated by the 

Registrar.  Upon the surrender of such temporary Bonds for exchange, the Registrar, without 

charge to the Holder thereof, shall deliver in exchange therefor definitive Bonds, of the same 

aggregate principal amount and Series and maturity as the temporary Bonds surrendered.  Until 

so exchanged, the temporary Bonds shall in all respects be entitled to the same benefits and 

security as definitive Bonds issued pursuant to this Resolution.  All temporary Bonds 

surrendered in exchange for another temporary Bond or Bonds or for a definitive Bond or Bonds 

shall be forthwith cancelled by the Registrar. 

SECTION 2.05. BONDS MUTILATED, DESTROYED, STOLEN OR LOST.  

In case any Bond shall become mutilated, or be destroyed, stolen or lost, the Issuer may, in its 

discretion, issue and deliver, and the Registrar shall authenticate, a new Bond of like tenor as the 

Bond so mutilated, destroyed, stolen or lost, in exchange and substitution for such mutilated 

Bond upon surrender and cancellation of such mutilated Bond or in lieu of and substitution for 

the Bond destroyed, stolen or lost, and upon the Holder furnishing the Issuer and the Registrar 

proof of his ownership thereof and satisfactory indemnity and complying with such other 

reasonable regulations and conditions as the Issuer or the Registrar may prescribe and paying 

such expenses as the Issuer and the Registrar may incur.  All Bonds so surrendered shall be 

cancelled by the Registrar.  If any of the Bonds shall have matured or be about to mature, instead 

of issuing a substitute Bond, the Issuer may pay the same or cause the Bond to be paid, upon 

being indemnified as aforesaid, and if such Bonds be lost, stolen or destroyed, without surrender 

thereof. 

Any such duplicate Bonds issued pursuant to this Section 2.05 shall constitute original, 

additional contractual obligations on the part of the Issuer whether or not the lost, stolen or 

destroyed Bond be at any time found by anyone, and such duplicate Bond shall be entitled to 

equal and proportionate benefits and rights as to lien on the Pledged Funds to the same extent as 

all other Bonds issued hereunder. 



 

 
16 

SECTION 2.06. INTERCHANGEABILITY, NEGOTIABILITY AND 

TRANSFER.  Bonds, upon surrender thereof at the designated corporate trust office of the 

Registrar with a written instrument of transfer satisfactory to the Registrar, duly executed by the 

Holder thereof or his attorney duly authorized in writing, may, at the option of the Holder 

thereof, be exchanged for an equal aggregate principal amount of registered Bonds of the same 

Series and maturity of any other authorized denominations. 

The Bonds issued under this Resolution shall be and have all the qualities and incidents 

of negotiable instruments under the law merchant and the Uniform Commercial Code of the 

State of Florida, subject to the provisions for registration and transfer contained in this 

Resolution and in the Bonds.  So long as any of the Bonds shall remain Outstanding, the Issuer 

shall maintain and keep, at the designated corporate trust office of the Registrar, books for the 

registration and transfer of the Bonds. 

Each Bond shall be transferable only upon the books of the Issuer, at the designated 

corporate trust office of the Registrar, under such reasonable regulations as the Issuer may 

prescribe, by the Holder thereof in person or by his attorney duly authorized in writing upon 

surrender thereof together with a written instrument of transfer satisfactory to the Registrar duly 

executed and guaranteed by the Holder or his duly authorized attorney.  Upon the transfer of any 

such Bond, the Issuer shall issue, and cause to be authenticated, in the name of the transferee a 

new Bond or Bonds of the same aggregate principal amount and Series and maturity as the 

surrendered Bond.  The Issuer, the Registrar and any Paying Agent or fiduciary of the Issuer may 

deem and treat the Person in whose name any Outstanding Bond shall be registered upon the 

books of the Issuer as the absolute owner of such Bond, whether such Bond shall be overdue or 

not, for the purpose of receiving payment of, or on account of, the principal or Redemption Price, 

if applicable, and interest on such Bond and for all other purposes, and all such payments so 

made to any such Holder or upon his order shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge 

the liability upon such Bond to the extent of the sum or sums so paid and neither the Issuer nor 

the Registrar nor any Paying Agent or other fiduciary of the Issuer shall be affected by any 

notice to the contrary. 

The Registrar, in any case where it is not also the Paying Agent in respect to any Series 

of Bonds, forthwith (A) following the fifteenth day prior to an Interest Date for such Series; (B) 

following the fifteenth day next preceding the date of first mailing of notice of redemption of any 

Bonds of such Series; and (C) at any other time as reasonably requested by the Paying Agent of 

such Series, shall certify and furnish to such Paying Agent the names, addresses and holdings of 

Bondholders and any other relevant information reflected in the registration books.   Any Paying 

Agent of any fully registered Bond shall effect payment of interest on such Bonds by mailing a 

check to the Holder entitled thereto or may, in lieu thereof, upon the request of such Holder, 

transmit such payment by bank wire transfer for the account of such Holder. 

In all cases in which the privilege of exchanging Bonds or transferring Bonds is 

exercised, the Issuer shall execute and deliver Bonds and the Registrar shall authenticate such 

Bonds in accordance with the provisions of this Resolution.  Execution of Bonds by the Mayor 

and Clerk for purposes of exchanging, replacing or transferring Bonds may occur at the time of 

the original delivery of the Series of which such Bonds are a part. All Bonds surrendered in any 

such exchanges or transfers shall be held by the Registrar in safekeeping until directed by the 



 

 
17 

Issuer to be cancelled by the Registrar.  For every such exchange or transfer of Bonds, the Issuer 

or the Registrar may make a charge sufficient to reimburse it for any tax, fee, expense or other 

governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such exchange or transfer, but no other 

charge shall be made to any owner of Bonds for the privilege of exchanging or registering the 

transfer of Bonds under the provisions of this Resolution. 

 

The Issuer and the Registrar shall not be obligated to make any such exchange or transfer 

of Bonds of any Series during the 15 days next preceding an Interest Date on the Bonds of such 

Series (other than Capital Appreciation Bonds and Variable Rate Bonds), or, in the case of any 

proposed redemption of Bonds of such Series, then, for the Bonds subject to redemption, during 

the 15 days next preceding the date of the first mailing of notice of such redemption and 

continuing until such redemption date. 

The Issuer may elect to issue any Bonds as uncertificated registered public obligations 

(not represented by instruments), commonly known as book-entry obligations, provided it shall 

establish a system of registration therefor by Supplemental Resolution. 

SECTION 2.07. FORM OF BONDS.  The text of the Bonds, except for Capital 

Appreciation Bonds and Variable Rate Bonds, the form of which shall be provided by 

Supplemental Resolution, shall be in substantially the following form with such omissions, 

insertions and variations as may be necessary and/or desirable and approved by the Mayor prior 

to the issuance thereof (which necessity and/or desirability and approval shall be presumed by 

such officer's execution of the Bonds and the Issuer's delivery of the Bonds to the purchaser or 

purchasers thereof): 

 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank] 



 

 
18 

No. R- $           

 

 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

STATE OF FLORIDA 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA 

CONSOLIDATED UTILITY REVENUE BONDS, 

SERIES _____ 

 

 

 Interest Maturity Date of 

   Rate     Date   Original Issue CUSIP 

 

 

 

 

Registered Holder: 

 

Principal Amount: 

 

 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that the City of Lake Worth Beach, 

Florida, a municipal corporation and public body corporate and politic of the State of Florida (the 

"Issuer"), for value received, hereby promises to pay, solely from the Pledged Funds hereinafter 

described, to the Registered Holder identified above, or registered assigns as hereinafter 

provided, on the Maturity Date identified above, the Principal Amount identified above and to 

pay interest on such Principal Amount from the Date of Original Issue identified above or from 

the most recent interest payment date to which interest has been paid at the Interest Rate per 

annum identified above on _________________ and ____________________ of each year 

commencing _______________________________, until such Principal Amount shall have 

been paid, except as the provisions hereinafter set forth with respect to redemption prior to 

maturity may be or become applicable hereto. 

Such Principal Amount and interest and the premium, if any, on this Bond are payable in 

any coin or currency of the United States of America which, on the respective dates of payment 

thereof, shall be legal tender for the payment of public and private debts.  Such Principal Amount 

and the premium, if any, on this Bond, are payable at the designated corporate trust office of 

______________, _________, ________, as Paying Agent.  Payment of each installment of 

interest shall be made to the person in whose name this Bond shall be registered on the 

registration books of the Issuer maintained by _______________, ________, _______, as 

Registrar, at the close of business on the date which shall be the fifteenth day (whether or not a 

business day) of the calendar month next preceding each interest payment date and shall be paid 

by a check of such Paying Agent mailed to such Registered Holder at the address appearing on 

such registration books or, at the request of such Registered Holder, by bank wire transfer for the 

account of such Holder.  Interest shall be calculated on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-

day months. 



 

 
19 

This Bond is one of an authorized issue of Bonds in the aggregate principal amount of 

$___________ (the "Bonds") of like date, tenor and effect, except as to maturity date, interest 

rate, denomination and number, issued to finance ___________________________, in and for 

the Issuer, under the authority of and in full compliance with the Constitution and laws of the 

State of Florida, particularly the City Charter, Chapter 166, Part II, Florida Statutes, and other 

applicable provisions of law (the "Act"), and Resolution No._________, adopted by the City 

Commission of the Issuer on October 6, 2020, as the same may be amended and supplemented 

(collectively, the "Resolution"), and is subject to all the terms and conditions of the Resolution. 

This Bond and the interest hereon are payable solely from and secured by a lien upon and 

a pledge of (1) the Net Revenues (as defined in the Resolution) to be derived from the operation 

of the Issuer's consolidated utility system (the "System"), and (2) until applied in accordance 

with the provisions of the Resolution, all moneys, including investments thereof, in the funds and 

accounts established by the Resolution, except (A) the Rebate Fund, (B) to the extent moneys 

therein shall be required to pay the Operating Expenses (as defined in the Resolution) and (C) 

any moneys set aside in a particular subaccount of the Reserve Account, if such moneys shall be 

pledged solely for the payment of a different Series of Bonds for which it was established in 

accordance with the provisions of the Resolution, subject in each case to the application thereof 

for the purposes and on the conditions permitted by the Resolution (collectively, the "Pledged 

Funds").  It is expressly agreed by the Registered Holder of this Bond that the full faith and 

credit of the Issuer are not pledged to the payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and 

interest on this Bond and that such Holder shall never have the right to require or compel the 

exercise of any taxing power of the Issuer to the payment of such principal, premium, if any, and 

interest.  This Bond and the obligation evidenced hereby shall not constitute a lien upon the 

System or any other property of the Issuer, but shall constitute a lien only on, and shall be 

payable solely from, the Pledged Funds in accordance with the terms of the Resolution. 

IT IS EXPRESSLY AGREED BY THE REGISTERED HOLDER OF THIS BOND 

THAT THE FULL FAITH AND CREDIT OF THE ISSUER, THE STATE OF FLORIDA, OR 

ANY POLITICAL SUBDIVISION OR AGENCY THEREOF, ARE NOT PLEDGED TO THE 

PAYMENT OF THE PRINCIPAL OF, PREMIUM, IF ANY, AND INTEREST ON THIS 

BOND AND THAT SUCH HOLDER SHALL NEVER HAVE THE RIGHT TO REQUIRE OR 

COMPEL THE EXERCISE OF ANY TAXING POWER OF THE ISSUER, THE STATE OF 

FLORIDA, OR ANY POLITICAL SUBDIVISION OR AGENCY THEREOF, TO THE 

PAYMENT OF SUCH PRINCIPAL, PREMIUM, IF ANY, AND INTEREST.  THIS BOND 

AND THE OBLIGATION EVIDENCED HEREBY SHALL NOT CONSTITUTE A LIEN 

UPON ANY PROPERTY OF THE ISSUER, BUT SHALL CONSTITUTE A LIEN ONLY ON, 

AND SHALL BE PAYABLE SOLELY FROM, THE PLEDGED FUNDS.  THE ISSUER MAY 

ISSUE ADDITIONAL OBLIGATIONS ON PARITY WITH THE BONDS IN ACCORDANCE 

WITH THE TERMS OF THE RESOLUTION. 

[The Issuer has established a book-entry system of registration for the Bonds. Except as 

specifically provided otherwise in the Resolution, an agent will hold this Bond on behalf of the 

beneficial owner thereof. By acceptance of a confirmation of purchase, delivery or transfer, the 

beneficial owner of this Bond shall be deemed to have agreed to such arrangement.] 



 

 
20 

This Bond is transferable in accordance with the terms of the Resolution only upon the 

books of the Issuer kept for that purpose at the designated corporate trust office of the Registrar 

by the Registered Holder hereof in person or by his attorney duly authorized in writing, upon the 

surrender of this Bond together with a written instrument of transfer satisfactory to the Registrar 

duly executed by the Registered Holder or his attorney duly authorized in writing, and thereupon 

a new Bond or Bonds in the same aggregate principal amount shall be issued to the transferee in 

exchange therefor, and upon the payment of the charges, if any, therein prescribed.  The Bonds 

are issuable in the form of fully registered Bonds in the denomination of [$5,000 and any integral 

multiple thereof,] not exceeding the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds.  The Issuer, the 

Registrar and any Paying Agent may treat the Registered Holder of this Bond as the absolute 

owner hereof for all purposes, whether or not this Bond shall be overdue, and shall not be 

affected by any notice to the contrary.  The Issuer shall not be obligated to make any exchange or 

transfer of the Bonds during the 15 days next preceding an interest payment date or, in the case 

of any proposed redemption of the Bonds, then, for the Bonds subject to such redemption, during 

the 15 days next preceding the date of the first mailing of notice of such redemption. 

(INSERT REDEMPTION PROVISIONS) 

 

Redemption of this Bond under the preceding paragraphs shall be made as provided in 

the Resolution upon notice given by first class mail sent at least 30 days prior to the redemption 

date to the Registered Holder hereof at the address shown on the registration books maintained 

by the Registrar; provided, however, that failure to mail notice to the Registered Holder hereof, 

or any defect therein, shall not affect the validity of the proceedings for redemption of other 

Bonds as to which no such failure or defect has occurred.  In the event that less than the full 

principal amount hereof shall have been called for redemption, the Registered Holder hereof 

shall surrender this Bond in exchange for one or more Bonds in an aggregate principal amount 

equal to the unredeemed portion of principal, as provided in the Resolution. 

[As long as the book-entry only system is used for determining beneficial ownership of 

the Bonds, notice of redemption will only be sent to Cede & Co. Cede & Co. will be responsible 

for notifying the DTC Participants, who will in turn be responsible for notifying the beneficial 

owners of the Bonds. Any failure of Cede & Co. to notify any DTC Participant, or of any DTC 

Participant to notify the beneficial owner of any such notice, will not affect the validity of the 

redemption of the Bonds.] 

Reference to the Resolution and any and all resolutions supplemental thereto and 

modifications and amendments thereof and to the Act is made for a description of the pledge and 

covenants securing this Bond, the nature, manner and extent of enforcement of such pledge and 

covenants, and the rights, duties, immunities and obligations of the Issuer. 

It is hereby certified and recited that all acts, conditions and things required to exist, to 

happen and to be performed precedent to and in the issuance of this Bond, exist, have happened 

and have been performed, in regular and due form and time as required by the laws and 

Constitution of the State of Florida applicable thereto, and that the issuance of the Bonds does 

not violate any constitutional or statutory limitations or provisions. 



 

 
21 

Neither the members of the City Commission of the Issuer nor any person executing this 

Bond shall be liable personally hereon or be subject to any personal liability or accountability by 

reason of the issuance hereof. 

[This Bond is one of a series of Bonds which were validated by judgment of the Circuit 

Court of the Fifteenth Judicial Circuit of Florida in and for Palm Beach County, Florida, 

rendered on ____________, _____.] 

This Bond shall not be valid or become obligatory for any purpose until the certificate of 

authentication hereon shall have been signed by the Registrar. 



 

 
22 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida has issued this Bond 

and has caused the same to be executed by the manual or facsimile signature of its Mayor and 

attested by the manual or facsimile signature of its Clerk, and its official seal or a facsimile 

thereof to be affixed or reproduced hereon, all as of Date of Original Issue. 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA 

 

(SEAL) 

 

  

Mayor  

 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

  

City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

       

Nabors, Giblin & Nickerson, P.A.  



 

 
23 

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION 

 

This Bond is one of the Bonds of the Issue described in the within-mentioned Resolution. 

DATE OF AUTHENTICATION: 

 

______________________________ 

 

_____________________________________ 

Registrar 

 

 

By:___________________________________ 

    Authorized Officer 



 

 
24 

[Unless this certificate is presented by an authorized representative of The Depository 

Trust Company to the Issuer or its agent for registration of transfer, exchange or payment, and 

any certificate issued is registered in the name of Cede & Co. or such other name as requested by 

the authorized representative of The Depository Trust Company and any payment is made to 

Cede & Co., ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR 

OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL since the registered owner hereof, 

Cede & Co., has an interest herein.] 

  

ASSIGNMENT 

 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned sells, assigns and transfers unto 

 

                                                                                                                                        

     Insert Social Security or Other Identifying Number of Assignee 

 

                                                                                                                                        

 (Name and Address of Assignee) 

 

                                                                                                                                       

 

the within Bond and does hereby irrevocably constitute and appoint 

__________________________________, as attorneys to register the transfer of the said Bond 

on the books kept for registration thereof with full power of substitution in the premises. 

 

 

Dated:                                                        

 

Signature guaranteed: 

 

                                                                  

NOTICE:  Signature must be guaranteed by 

an institution which is a participant in the 

Securities Transfer Agent Medallion 

Program (STAMP) or similar program. 

  

NOTICE:  The signature to this assignment 

must correspond with the name of the 

Registered Holder as it appears upon the 

face of the within Bond in every particular, 

without alteration or enlargement or any 

change whatever and the Social Security or 

other identifying number of such assignee 

must be supplied. 



 

 
25 

The following abbreviations, when used in the inscription on the face of the within Bond, 

shall be construed as though they were written out in full according to applicable laws or 

regulations: 

TEN COM -- as tenants in common 

 

TEN ENT -- as tenants by the entireties 

 

JT TEN  -- as joint tenants with right of  

                 survivorship and not as tenants 

in common 

 

UNIF TRANS MIN ACT --                                                                     

  (Cust.) 

 

Custodian for                                                                                           

 

under Uniform Transfers to Minors Act of                                              

        (State) 

 

Additional abbreviations may also be used though not in list above. 

 

 



 

 
26 

ARTICLE III 

REDEMPTION OF BONDS 

SECTION 3.01. PRIVILEGE OF REDEMPTION.  The terms of this Article III 

shall apply to the redemption of Bonds other than Capital Appreciation Bonds or Variable Rate 

Bonds.  The terms and provisions relating to redemption of Capital Appreciation Bonds and 

Variable Rate Bonds shall be provided by Supplemental Resolution.  The provisions of this 

Article III may also be modified pursuant to Supplemental Resolution to accommodate any 

redemption provisions with respect to Federal Subsidy Bonds. 

SECTION 3.02. SELECTION OF BONDS TO BE REDEEMED.  The Bonds 

shall be redeemed only in the principal amount of $5,000 each and integral multiples thereof.  

The Issuer shall, at least 35 days prior to the redemption date (unless a shorter time period shall 

be satisfactory to the Registrar) notify the Registrar of such redemption date and of the principal 

amount of Bonds to be redeemed and, if less than all of the Outstanding Bonds are to be 

redeemed, the particular maturities and portions thereof to be redeemed.  For purposes of any 

redemption of less than all of the Outstanding Bonds of a single maturity, the particular Bonds or 

portions of Bonds to be redeemed shall be selected not more than 45 days and not less than 35 

days prior to the redemption date by the Registrar from the Outstanding Bonds of the maturity or 

maturities designated by the Issuer by such method as the Registrar shall deem fair and 

appropriate (which may include a pro-rata or pass-through distribution) and which may provide 

for the selection for redemption of Bonds or portions of Bonds in principal amounts of $5,000 

and integral multiples thereof.  If less than all of a Term Bond is to be redeemed the aggregate 

principal amount to be redeemed shall be allocated to the Sinking Fund Installments on a pro-

rata basis unless the Issuer, in its discretion, designates a different allocation. 

If less than all of the Outstanding Bonds of a single maturity are to be redeemed, the 

Registrar shall promptly notify the Issuer and Paying Agent (if the Registrar is not the Paying 

Agent for such Bonds) in writing of the Bonds or portions of Bonds selected for redemption and, 

in the case of any Bond selected for partial redemption, the principal amount thereof to be 

redeemed. 

SECTION 3.03. NOTICE OF REDEMPTION.  Notice of such redemption, 

which shall specify the Bond or Bonds (or portions thereof) to be redeemed and the date and 

place for redemption, shall be given by the Registrar on behalf of the Issuer, and (A) shall be 

filed with the Paying Agents of such Bonds, (B) shall be mailed first class, postage prepaid, not 

less than 30 days nor more than 45 days prior to the redemption date to all Holders of Bonds to 

be redeemed at their addresses as they appear on the registration books kept by the Registrar as 

of the date of mailing of such notice, and (C) shall be mailed, certified mail, postage prepaid, at 

least 35 days prior to the redemption date to the registered securities depositories and one or 

more nationally recognized municipal bond information services as hereinafter provided in this 

Section 3.03.  Failure to mail such notice to such depositories or services or the Holders of the 

Bonds to be redeemed, or any defect therein, shall not affect the proceedings for redemption of 

Bonds as to which no such failure or defect has occurred.  Such notice shall also be mailed to the 

Insurer or Credit Bank, if any, of such Bonds to be redeemed.  Failure of any Holder to receive 

any notice mailed as herein provided shall not affect the proceedings for redemption of such 



 

 
27 

Holder's Bonds. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Issuer may establish separate redemption 

provisions by a Supplemental Resolution in connection with any Series of Bonds. 

Each notice of redemption shall state: (1) the CUSIP numbers and any other 

distinguishing number or letter of all Bonds being redeemed, (2) the original issue date of such 

Bonds, (3) the maturity date and rate of interest borne by each Bond being redeemed, (4) the 

redemption date, (5) the Redemption Price, (6) the date on which such notice is mailed, (7) if less 

than all Outstanding Bonds are to be redeemed, the certificate number (and, in the case of a 

partial redemption of any Bond, the principal amount) of each Bond to be redeemed, (8) that on 

such redemption date there shall become due and payable upon each Bond to be redeemed the 

Redemption Price thereof, or the Redemption Price of the specified portions of the principal 

thereof in the case of Bonds to be redeemed in part only, together with interest accrued thereon 

to the redemption date, and that from and after such date interest thereon shall cease to accrue 

and be payable, (9) that the Bonds to be redeemed, whether as a whole or in part, are to be 

surrendered for payment of the Redemption Price at the designated office of the Registrar at an 

address specified, (10) the name and telephone number of a person designated by the Registrar to 

be responsible for such redemption, (11) unless sufficient funds have been set aside by the Issuer 

for such purpose prior to the mailing of the notice of redemption, that such redemption is 

conditioned upon the deposit of sufficient funds for such purpose on or prior to the date set for 

redemption, and (12) any other conditions that must be satisfied prior to such redemption. 

The Issuer may provide that a redemption may be contingent upon the occurrence of 

certain condition(s) and that if such condition(s) do not occur the notice of redemption will be 

rescinded, provided notice of rescission shall be mailed in the manner described above to all 

affected Bondholders as soon as practicable. 

SECTION 3.04. REDEMPTION OF PORTIONS OF BONDS.  Any Bond which 

is to be redeemed only in part shall be surrendered at any place of payment specified in the 

notice of redemption (with due endorsement by, or written instrument of transfer in form 

satisfactory to the Registrar duly executed by, the Holder thereof or his attorney duly authorized 

in writing) and the Issuer shall execute and the Registrar shall authenticate and deliver to the 

Holder of such Bond, without service charge, a new Bond or Bonds, of any authorized 

denomination, as requested by such Holder in an aggregate principal amount equal to and in 

exchange for the unredeemed portion of the principal of the Bonds so surrendered. 

SECTION 3.05. PAYMENT OF REDEEMED BONDS.  Notice of redemption 

having been given substantially as aforesaid, the Bonds or portions of Bonds so to be redeemed 

shall, on the redemption date, become due and payable at the Redemption Price therein specified, 

and from and after such date (unless the Issuer shall default in the payment of the Redemption 

Price) such Bonds or portions of Bonds shall cease to bear interest.  Upon surrender of such 

Bonds for redemption in accordance with said notice, such Bonds shall be paid by the Registrar 

and/or Paying Agent at the appropriate Redemption Price, plus accrued interest.  All Bonds 

which have been redeemed shall be cancelled and destroyed by the Registrar and shall not be 

reissued. 

 



 

 
28 

ARTICLE IV 

SECURITY; FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS; APPLICATION OF GROSS REVENUES 

SECTION 4.01. BONDS NOT TO BE INDEBTEDNESS OF ISSUER.  The 

Bonds shall not be or constitute general obligations or indebtedness of the Issuer as "bonds" 

within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory provision, but shall be special obligations of 

the Issuer, payable solely from and secured by a lien upon and pledge of the Pledged Funds, in 

the manner and to the extent provided in this Resolution.  No Holder of any Bond shall ever have 

the right to compel the exercise of any ad valorem taxing power to pay such Bond, or be entitled 

to payment of such Bond from any moneys of the Issuer except from the Pledged Funds in the 

manner and to the extent provided herein.  The Bonds and the obligations evidenced thereby 

shall not constitute a lien upon the System or any other property of the Issuer, but shall constitute 

a lien only on, and shall be payable solely from, the Pledged Funds. 

SECTION 4.02. SECURITY FOR BONDS.  The payment of the principal of or 

Redemption Price, if applicable, and interest on the Bonds shall be secured forthwith equally and 

ratably by a pledge of and lien upon the Pledged Funds; provided, however, a Series of Bonds 

may be further secured by a Credit Facility or Bond Insurance Policy in addition to the security 

provided herein; and provided further that a Series of Bonds may be secured independently of 

any other Series of Bonds by the establishment of a separate subaccount in the Reserve Account 

for such Series of Bonds or by not being secured in any manner by the Reserve Account as 

provided in a Supplemental Resolution.  Issuers of a Reserve Account Insurance Policy or 

Reserve Account Letter of Credit shall be secured in accordance with the provisions hereof.  In 

addition, the Issuer does hereby irrevocably pledge and grant a lien upon the Pledged Funds to 

the payment of the Policy Costs in accordance with the provisions hereof; provided, however, 

such pledge and lien shall be junior and subordinate in all respects to the pledge of and lien upon 

such Pledged Funds granted hereby to the Bondholders.  The Issuer does hereby irrevocably 

pledge the Pledged Funds to the payment of the principal of or Redemption Price, if applicable, 

and interest on the Bonds in accordance with the provisions hereof.  Except as otherwise 

provided by Supplemental Resolution, the obligation of the Issuer to make Hedge Payments to a 

Counterparty pursuant to a Qualified Hedge Agreement shall be on parity with the Bonds as to 

lien on and pledge of the Pledged Funds in accordance with the terms hereof (any other 

payments related to a Qualified Hedge Agreement, including fees, penalties, termination 

payments and the obligation to collateralize, shall be Subordinated Indebtedness of the Issuer). 

The Pledged Funds shall immediately be subject to the lien of this pledge without any 

physical delivery thereof or further act, and the lien of this pledge shall be valid and binding as 

against all parties having claims of any kind in tort, contract or otherwise against the Issuer. 

SECTION 4.03. SEPARATE ACCOUNTS.  The moneys required to be accounted 

for in each of the funds, accounts and subaccounts established in this Resolution, particularly 

those described in this Article IV, may be deposited in a single bank account, and funds allocated 

to the various funds, accounts and subaccounts established herein may be invested in a common 

investment pool, provided that adequate accounting records are maintained to reflect and control 

the restricted allocation of the moneys on deposit therein and such investments for the various 

purposes of such funds, accounts and subaccounts as herein provided. The Issuer may, by 



 

 
29 

Supplemental Resolution, establish a third-party depository to hold any of the funds and accounts 

established hereunder.   

The designation and establishment of the various funds, accounts and subaccounts in and 

by this Resolution shall not be construed to require the establishment of any completely 

independent, self-balancing funds as such term is commonly defined and used in governmental 

accounting, but rather is intended solely to constitute an earmarking of certain revenues for 

certain purposes and to establish certain priorities for application of such revenues as herein 

provided. 

SECTION 4.04. CONSTRUCTION FUND.  The Issuer covenants and agrees to 

establish a special fund to be known as the "City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida Consolidated 

Utility System Construction Fund," which shall be used only for payment of the Cost of a 

Project.  Moneys in the Construction Fund, until applied in payment of any item of the Cost of a 

Project in the manner hereinafter provided, shall be subject to a lien and charge in favor of the 

Holders of the Bonds and for the further security of such Holders. 

There shall be paid into the Construction Fund the amounts required to be so paid by the 

provisions of this Resolution, and there may be paid into the Construction Fund, at the option of 

the Issuer, any moneys received for or in connection with a Project by the Issuer from any other 

source.  The Issuer shall establish within the Construction Fund a separate account for each 

Project the Cost of which is to be paid in whole or in part out of the Construction Fund. 

The proceeds of insurance maintained pursuant to this Resolution against physical loss of 

or damage to a Project, or of contractors' performance bonds with respect thereto pertaining to 

the period of construction thereof, shall be deposited into the appropriate account of the 

Construction Fund. 

Any moneys received by the Issuer from the State or from the United States of America 

or any agencies thereof for the purpose of financing part of the Cost of a Project shall be 

deposited into the appropriate account of the Construction Fund and used in the same manner as 

other Bond proceeds are used therein; provided that separate accounts or subaccounts may be 

established in the Construction Fund for moneys received pursuant to the provisions of this 

paragraph whenever required by federal or State law. 

The Issuer covenants that the acquisition, construction and installation of each Project 

will be completed without delay and in accordance with sound engineering practices.  The Issuer 

shall make disbursements or payments from the applicable account of the Construction Fund to 

pay Costs of the Project for which it was established, except as otherwise provided below.  The 

Issuer shall keep records of such disbursements and payments and shall retain all such records 

for such period of time as required by applicable law.  The Issuer shall make available the 

records at all reasonable times for inspection by any Holder of any of the Bonds or the agent or 

representative of any Holder of any of the Bonds. 

Notwithstanding any of the other provisions of this Section 4.04, to the extent that other 

moneys are not available therefor, amounts in an account of the Construction Fund shall be 

applied to the payment of principal and interest on Bonds. 



 

 
30 

The date of completion of the acquisition, construction and equipping of a Project shall 

be documented by an Authorized Issuer Officer or the Clerk in the appropriate records of the 

Issuer.  Promptly after the date of the completion of a Project, and after paying or making 

provision for the payment of all unpaid items of the Cost of such Project, the Issuer shall deposit 

in the following order of priority any balance of moneys remaining in an account in the 

Construction Fund in (A) another account of the Construction Fund for which an Authorized 

Issuer Officer has determined that there are insufficient moneys present to pay the Cost of the 

related Project, (B) the Reserve Account, to the extent of a deficiency therein, and (C) such other 

fund or account established hereunder as shall be determined by the Issuer or for any other 

lawful purpose, provided the Issuer has received the prior approval of Bond Counsel to the effect 

that such transfer shall not adversely affect the exclusion, if any, of interest on the Bonds (other 

than Taxable Bonds) from gross income for purposes of federal income taxation or shall not 

otherwise affect the status of any Outstanding Bonds issued as Federal Subsidy Bonds or the 

Issuer's receipt of Federal Subsidy Payments with respect to any Outstanding Federal Subsidy 

Bonds. 

SECTION 4.05. CREATION OF FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS.  The Issuer 

covenants and agrees to establish the following funds and accounts: 

(A) The "City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida Consolidated Utility Revenue Fund." 

(B) The "City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida Consolidated Utility Operation and 

Maintenance Fund." 

(C) The "City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida Consolidated Utility Sinking Fund."  The 

Issuer shall maintain four separate accounts in the Sinking Fund:  the "Interest Account," the 

"Principal Account," the "Term Bonds Redemption Account" and the "Reserve Account." 

(D) The "City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida Consolidated Utility Renewal and 

Replacement Fund." 

(E) The "City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida Consolidated Utility Rebate Fund." 

(F) The "City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida Consolidated Utility Rate Stabilization 

Fund." 

(G) The "City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida Consolidated Utility Reserve Fund". 

Moneys in the aforementioned funds and accounts (except for moneys in the Rebate 

Fund), until applied in accordance with the provisions hereof, shall be subject to a lien and 

charge in favor of the Holders of the Bonds and for the further security of such Holders, to the 

extent provided herein. 

The Issuer may at any time and from time to time appoint one or more depositaries to 

hold, for the benefit of the Bondholders, any one or more of the funds and accounts established 

hereby.  Such depositary or depositaries shall perform at the direction of the Issuer the duties of 

the Issuer in depositing, transferring and disbursing moneys to and from each of such funds or 

accounts as herein set forth, and all records of such depositary in performing such duties shall be 



 

 
31 

open at all reasonable times to inspection by the Issuer and its agents and employees.  Any such 

depositary shall be a bank or trust company duly authorized to exercise corporate trust powers 

and subject to examination by federal or state authority, of good standing, and be qualified under 

applicable State law. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, none of the aforementioned funds and accounts are 

required to be established prior to the time any such fund or account is required to be funded or 

otherwise utilized hereunder. 

SECTION 4.06. DISPOSITION OF GOVERNMENT GRANTS AND GROSS 

REVENUES.  (A) (1) In the event the Issuer receives a Government Grant, the use and 

withdrawal of moneys from such Government Grant shall be governed by the terms of the 

Government Grant and applicable law. 

(2) The Issuer shall deposit promptly, as received, all Gross Revenues into the 

Revenue Fund. 

Moneys in the Revenue Fund shall first be used each month to deposit in the Operation 

and Maintenance Fund such sums as are necessary to pay Operating Expenses for the ensuing 

month; provided the Issuer may transfer moneys from the Revenue Fund to the Operation and 

Maintenance Fund at any time to pay Operating Expenses to the extent there is a deficiency in 

the Operation and Maintenance Fund for such purpose.  Amounts in the Operation and 

Maintenance Fund shall be paid out from time to time by the Issuer for Operating Expenses, 

including any expenses relating to the purchase or redemption of Term Bonds as provided in 

Section 4.06(B)(3) hereof. 

The remaining moneys in the Revenue Fund shall be applied in accordance with Section 

4.06(B) hereof. 

(B) Any deposits remaining in the Revenue Fund after the aforementioned transfers to 

the Operation and Maintenance Fund shall be disposed of by the Issuer on or before the 25th day 

of each month, commencing in the month immediately following the delivery of any of the 

Bonds to the purchasers thereof, or such later date as hereinafter provided, in the following 

manner and in the following order of priority: 

(1) Interest Account.  The Issuer shall deposit or credit to the Interest Account the 

sum which, together with the balance in said Account, shall equal the interest on all Bonds 

Outstanding (except as to Capital Appreciation Bonds) accrued and unpaid and to accrue to the 

end of the then current calendar month.  All Hedge Receipts and Federal Subsidy Payments shall 

be deposited directly to the Interest Account upon receipt.  With respect to interest on Bonds 

which have corresponding Hedge Payments, interest on such Bonds during the term of the 

Qualified Hedge Agreement shall also be deemed to include the corresponding Hedge Payments.  

Moneys in the Interest Account shall be applied by the Issuer (a) for deposit with the Paying 

Agents to pay the interest on the Bonds on or prior to the date the same shall become due and (b) 

for Hedge Payments.  Any Federal Subsidy Payments deposited to the Interest Account shall be 

deemed to have been applied to the payment of interest on the Federal Subsidy Bonds to which 

such Payments relate.  The Issuer shall adjust the amount of the deposit to the Interest Account 



 

 
32 

not later than a month immediately preceding any Interest Date so as to provide sufficient 

moneys in the Interest Account to pay the interest on the Bonds coming due on such Interest 

Date.  No further deposit need be made to the Interest Account when the moneys therein are 

equal to the interest coming due on the Outstanding Bonds on the next succeeding Interest Date.  

With respect to debt service on any Bonds which are subject to a Qualified Hedge Agreement, 

any Hedge Payments due to the Counterparty to the Qualified Hedge Agreement relating to such 

Bonds shall be paid to such Counterparty on a parity basis with the aforesaid required payments 

into the Sinking Fund.  In computing the interest on Variable Rate Bonds which shall accrue 

during a calendar month, the interest rate on such Variable Rate Bonds shall be assumed to be 

(A) if such Variable Rate Bonds have been Outstanding for at least 24 months prior to the 

commencement of such calendar month, the highest average interest rate borne by such Variable 

Rate Bonds for any 30-day period, and (B) if such Variable Rate Bonds have not been 

Outstanding for at least 24 months prior to the date of calculation, the Bond Buyer Revenue 

Bond Index most recently published prior to the commencement of such calendar month. 

(2) Principal Account.  Commencing in the month which is one year prior to the first 

principal payment date, the Issuer shall next deposit into the Principal Account the sum which, 

together with the balance in said Account, shall equal the principal amounts on all Bonds 

Outstanding accrued and unpaid and that portion of the principal next due which would have 

accrued on such Bonds during the then current calendar month if such principal amounts were 

deemed to accrue monthly (assuming that a year consists of 12 equivalent calendar months 

having 30 days each) except for the Sinking Fund Installments to be deposited pursuant to 

Section 4.06(B)(3) hereof, in equal amounts from the next preceding principal payment due date, 

or, if there be no such preceding payment due date, from a date no later than one year preceding 

the due date of such principal amount.  Moneys in the Principal Account shall be applied by the 

Issuer for deposit with the Paying Agents to pay the principal of the Bonds on or prior to the date 

the same shall mature, and for no other purpose.  Serial Capital Appreciation Bonds shall be 

payable from the Principal Account in the years in which such Bonds mature and monthly 

payments into the Principal Account on account of such Bonds shall commence in the twelfth 

month immediately preceding the maturity date of such Bonds.  The Issuer shall adjust the 

amount of the deposit to the Principal Account not later than the month immediately preceding 

any principal payment date so as to provide sufficient moneys in the Principal Account to pay the 

principal on Bonds becoming due on such principal payment date.  No further deposit need be 

made to the Principal Account when the moneys therein are equal to the principal coming due on 

the Outstanding Bonds on the next succeeding principal payment date. 

(3) Term Bonds Redemption Account.  Commencing in the month which is one year 

prior to the first Sinking Fund Installment due date, there shall be deposited to the Term Bonds 

Redemption Account the sum which, together with the balance in such Account, shall equal the 

Sinking Fund Installments on all Bonds Outstanding accrued and unpaid and that portion of the 

Sinking Fund Installments of all Bonds Outstanding next due which would have accrued on such 

Bonds during the then current calendar month if such Sinking Fund Installments were deemed to 

accrue monthly (assuming that a year consists of 12 equivalent calendar months having 30 days 

each) in equal amounts from the next preceding Sinking Fund Installment due date, or, if there is 

no such preceding Sinking Fund Installment due date, from a date not later than one year 

preceding the due date of such Sinking Fund Installment.  Moneys in the Term Bonds 

Redemption Account shall be used to purchase or redeem Term Bonds in the manner herein 



 

 
33 

provided, and for no other purpose.  Term Capital Appreciation Bonds shall be payable from the 

Term Bonds Redemption Account in the years in which such Bonds mature and monthly 

payments into the Term Bonds Redemption Account on account of such Bonds shall commence 

in the twelfth month immediately preceding the due date of the related Sinking Fund 

Installments.  The Issuer shall adjust the amount of the deposit to the Term Bonds Redemption 

Account in the month immediately preceding any Sinking Fund Installment Date so as to provide 

sufficient moneys in the Term Bonds Redemption Account to pay the Sinking Fund Installments 

becoming due on such date.  Payments to the Term Bonds Redemption Account shall be on 

parity with payments to the Principal Account. 

Amounts accumulated in the Term Bonds Redemption Account with respect to any 

Sinking Fund Installment (together with amounts accumulated in the Interest Account with 

respect to interest, if any, on the Term Bonds for which such Sinking Fund Installment was 

established) may be applied by the Issuer, on or prior to the 60th day preceding the due date of 

such Sinking Fund Installment, (a) to the purchase of Term Bonds of the Series and maturity for 

which such Sinking Fund Installment was established, or (b) to the redemption at the applicable 

Redemption Prices of such Term Bonds, if then redeemable by their terms.  Amounts in the 

Term Bonds Redemption Account which are used to redeem Term Bonds shall be credited 

against the next succeeding Sinking Fund Installment which shall become due on such Term 

Bonds.  The applicable Redemption Price (or principal amount of maturing Term Bonds) of any 

Term Bonds so purchased or redeemed shall be deemed to constitute part of the Term Bonds 

Redemption Account until such Sinking Fund Installment date, for the purposes of calculating 

the amount of such Account.  As soon as practicable after the 60th day preceding the due date of 

any such Sinking Fund Installment, the Issuer shall proceed to call for redemption on such due 

date, by causing notice to be given as provided in Section 3.03 hereof, Term Bonds of the Series 

and maturity for which such Sinking Fund Installment was established (except in the case of 

Term Bonds maturing on a Sinking Fund Installment date) in such amount as shall be necessary 

to complete the retirement of the unsatisfied balance of such Sinking Fund Installment.  The 

Issuer shall pay out of the Term Bonds Redemption Account and the Interest Account to the 

appropriate Paying Agents, on or before the day preceding such redemption date (or maturity 

date), the amount required for the redemption (or for the payment of such Term Bonds then 

maturing), and such amount shall be applied by such Paying Agents to such redemption (or 

payment).  All expenses in connection with the purchase or redemption of Term Bonds shall be 

paid by the Issuer from the Operation and Maintenance Fund. 

(4) Reserve Account.  There shall be deposited to the Reserve Account an amount 

which would enable the Issuer to restore the funds on deposit in the Reserve Account to an 

amount equal to the Reserve Account Requirement applicable thereto.  All deficiencies in the 

Reserve Account must be made up no later than 12 months from the date such deficiency first 

occurred, whether such shortfall was caused by an increase in the applicable Reserve Account 

Requirement, a decrease in the aggregate market value of the investments therein of more than 

5% or withdrawal (whether from cash or a Reserve Account Insurance Policy or Reserve 

Account Letter of Credit).  On or prior to each principal payment date and Interest Date for the 

Bonds (in no event earlier than the 25th day of the month next preceding such payment date), 

moneys in the Reserve Account shall be applied by the Issuer to the payment of the principal of 

or Redemption Price, if applicable, and interest on the Bonds to the extent moneys in the Interest 

Account, the Principal Account and the Term Bonds Redemption Account shall be insufficient 



 

 
34 

for such purpose, but only to the extent the moneys transferred from the Utility Reserve Fund for 

such purposes pursuant to Section 4.06(B)(8) hereof shall be inadequate to fully provide for such 

insufficiency.  Whenever there shall be surplus moneys in the Reserve Account by reason of a 

decrease in the Reserve Account Requirement or as a result of a deposit in the Reserve Account 

of a Reserve Account Letter of Credit or a Reserve Account Insurance Policy, such surplus 

moneys, to the extent practicable, shall be deposited by the Issuer into the Utility Reserve Fund.  

The Issuer shall promptly inform each Insurer and Credit Bank of any draw upon the Reserve 

Account for purposes of paying the principal of and interest on the Bonds. 

Upon the issuance of any Series of Bonds under the terms, limitations and conditions as 

herein provided, the Issuer shall fund the Reserve Account in an amount at least equal to the 

applicable Reserve Account Requirement to the extent such Series of Bonds are to be secured by 

the Reserve Account or any subaccount therein; provided, however, nothing herein shall be 

construed to require the Issuer to fund the Reserve Account or any subaccount for any Series of 

Bonds.  Upon the adoption of the Supplemental Resolution authorizing the issuance of a Series 

of Bonds, the Issuer shall determine whether such Series of Bonds shall be secured by the 

Reserve Account or any subaccount therein and, if the Issuer determines that the Series of Bonds 

will be secured by the Reserve Account or any subaccount therein, the Issuer shall also establish 

the Reserve Account Requirement applicable thereto.  Such required amount, if any, shall be 

paid in full or in part from the proceeds of such Series of Bonds or may be accumulated in equal 

monthly payments to the Reserve Account over a period of months from the date of issuance of 

such Series of Bonds, which shall not exceed 36 months.   

Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions, in lieu of or in substitution of any required 

deposits into the Reserve Account, the Issuer may cause to be deposited into the Reserve 

Account a Reserve Account Insurance Policy and/or Reserve Account Letter of Credit for the 

benefit of the Bondholders in an amount equal to the difference between the Reserve Account 

Requirement applicable thereto and the sums then on deposit in the Reserve Account, if any.  

The Issuer may also substitute a Reserve Account Insurance Policy and/or Reserve Account 

Letter of Credit for cash on deposit in the Reserve Account upon compliance with the terms of 

this Section 4.06(B)(4).  Such Reserve Account Insurance Policy and/or Reserve Account Letter 

of Credit shall be payable to the Paying Agent (upon the giving of notice as required thereunder) 

on any Interest Date or redemption date on which a deficiency exists which cannot be cured by 

moneys in any other fund or account held pursuant to this Resolution and available for such 

purpose.  Upon the initial deposit of any such Reserve Account Insurance Policy and/or Reserve 

Account Letter of Credit, the provider thereof shall be either (a) an insurer whose municipal 

bond insurance policies insuring the payment, when due, or the principal of and interest on 

municipal bond issues results in such issues being rated in one of the three highest rating 

categories by a Rating Agency (without regard to gradations, such as "plus" or "minus" or "1," 

"2" or "3"), or (b) a commercial bank, insurance company or other financial institution which has 

been assigned a rating in one of the two highest rating categories by a Rating Agency (without 

regard to gradations, such as "plus" or "minus" or "1," "2" or "3").  Any Reserve Account 

Insurance Policy and/or Reserve Account Letter of Credit shall equally secure all Bonds secured 

by the Reserve Account or subaccount into which such Policy or Letter of Credit is deposited. 

Each Reserve Account Insurance Policy and Reserve Account Letter of Credit shall 

provide for a revolving feature under which the amount available thereunder will be reinstated to 



 

 
35 

the extent of any reimbursement of draws or claims paid.  If the revolving feature is suspended or 

terminated for any reason, the right of the provider of the Reserve Account Insurance Policy or 

Reserve Account Letter of Credit to reimbursement will be further subordinated to cash 

replenishment of the Reserve Account to an amount equal to the difference between the full 

original amount available under the Reserve Account Insurance Policy or Reserve Account 

Letter of Credit and the amount then available for further draws or claims.  If the provider of a 

Reserve Account Insurance Policy or Reserve Account Letter of Credit becomes insolvent, the 

obligation to reimburse the provider of the Reserve Account Insurance Policy or Reserve 

Account Letter of Credit shall be subordinate to the cash replenishment of the Reserve Account.  

Where applicable, the amount available for draws or claims under a Reserve Account Insurance 

Policy or Reserve Account Letter of Credit may be reduced by the amount of cash or investments 

deposited in the Reserve Account pursuant to the provisions hereof. 

If three days prior to an interest or principal payment date, or such other period of time as 

shall be required by the terms of the Reserve Account Insurance Policy or Reserve Account 

Letter of Credit, the Issuer shall determine that a deficiency exists in the amount of moneys 

available to pay in accordance with the terms hereof interest and/or principal due on the Bonds 

on such date, the Issuer shall immediately notify (a) the issuer of the applicable Reserve Account 

Insurance Policy and/or the issuer of the Reserve Account Letter of Credit and submit a demand 

for payment pursuant to the provisions of such Reserve Account Insurance Policy and/or the 

Reserve Account Letter of Credit, (b) the Paying Agent, and (c) the Insurer or Credit Bank, if 

any, of the amount of such deficiency and the date on which such payment is due. 

In the event the Reserve Account or any subaccount therein contains both a Reserve 

Account Insurance Policy or Reserve Account Letter of Credit and cash, the cash shall be drawn 

down completely prior to any draw on the Reserve Account Insurance Policy or Reserve 

Account Letter of Credit.  In the event more than one Reserve Account Insurance Policy or 

Reserve Account Letter of Credit meeting the criteria set forth herein is on deposit in the Reserve 

Account, amounts required to be drawn thereon shall be done on a pro-rata basis.  The Issuer 

agrees to pay all Policy Costs owing in regard to any Reserve Account Insurance Policy or 

Reserve Account Letter of Credit from the Pledged Funds.  Pledged Funds shall be applied in 

accordance with this Section 4.06(B)(4), first, to reimburse the issuer of the Reserve Account 

Insurance Policy or Reserve Account Letter of Credit for amounts advanced under such 

instruments, second, to replenish any cash deficiencies in the Reserve Account, and, third, to pay 

the issuer of the Reserve Account Insurance Policy or Reserve Account Letter of Credit 

applicable expenses and interest on amounts advanced under such instruments.  This Resolution 

shall not be discharged or defeased while any obligations are owing in regard to a Reserve 

Account Insurance Policy or Reserve Account Letter of Credit on deposit in the Reserve 

Account.  The Issuer agrees not to optionally redeem Bonds unless all amounts owing in regard 

to a Reserve Account Insurance Policy or Reserve Account Letter of Credit on deposit in the 

Reserve Account have been paid in full. 

The Issuer may evidence its obligation to reimburse the issuer of any Reserve Account 

Letter of Credit or Reserve Account Insurance Policy by executing and delivering to such issuer 

a promissory note or other evidence therefor; provided, however, any such note or evidence (a) 

shall not be a general obligation of the Issuer the payment of which is secured by the full faith 

and credit or taxing power of the Issuer, and (b) shall be payable solely from the Pledged Funds 



 

 
36 

in the manner provided herein.  The obligation to reimburse the provider of a Reserve Account 

Insurance Policy or Reserve Account Letter of Credit for any Policy Costs shall be subordinate 

to the payment of debt service on the Bonds. 

Any consent or approval of any Insurer described in this Section 4.06(B)(4) shall be 

required only so long as there are Outstanding Bonds secured by a Bond Insurance Policy issued 

by such Insurer which is in full force and effect and the commitments of which have been 

honored by such Insurer.  The term "Paying Agent" as used in this Section 4.06(B)(4) may 

include one or more Paying Agents for the Outstanding Bonds. 

Whenever the amount of cash in the Reserve Account, together with the other amounts in 

the Debt Service Fund, are sufficient to fully pay all Outstanding Bonds in accordance with their 

terms (including principal or applicable Redemption Price and interest thereon), the funds on 

deposit in the Reserve Account may be transferred to the other Accounts of the Sinking Fund for 

the payment of the Bonds.  

The Issuer may also establish a separate subaccount in the Reserve Account for any 

Series of Bonds and provide a pledge of such subaccount to the payment of such Series of Bonds 

apart from the pledge provided herein.  To the extent a Series of Bonds is secured separately by a 

subaccount of the Reserve Account, the Holders of such Bonds shall not be secured by any other 

moneys in the Reserve Account.  Moneys in a separate subaccount of the Reserve Account shall 

be maintained at the Reserve Account Requirement applicable to such Series of Bonds secured 

by the subaccount; provided the Supplemental Resolution authorizing such Series of Bonds may 

establish the Reserve Account Requirement relating to such separate subaccount of the Reserve 

Account at such level as the Issuer deems appropriate.  In the event the Issuer by Supplemental 

Resolution establishes the Reserve Account Requirement for a particular Series of Bonds to be 

zero (0.00) or it shall determine that such Series are not to be secured in any manner by the 

Reserve Account or a subaccount, then it shall not be required to establish a separate subaccount; 

provided, however, such Series of Bonds shall have no lien on or pledge of any moneys on 

deposit in the Reserve Account.  Moneys used to replenish the Reserve Account shall be 

deposited in the separate subaccounts in the Reserve Account and in the Reserve Account on a 

pro-rata basis.  In the event the Issuer shall maintain a Reserve Account Insurance Policy or 

Reserve Account Letter of Credit and moneys in any subaccount, the moneys shall be used prior 

to making any disbursements under such Reserve Account Insurance Policy or Reserve Account 

Letter of Credit. 

 (5) Renewal and Replacement Fund.  There shall be deposited to the Renewal and 

Replacement Fund monthly such sums as shall be sufficient to pay 1/12 of the Renewal and 

Replacement Fund Requirement until the amount accumulated in such Fund is equal to the 

Renewal and Replacement Fund Requirement, taking into account the market value of 

investments in such Fund; provided, however, that (a) such Renewal and Replacement Fund 

Requirement may be increased or decreased as the Consulting Engineers shall certify to the 

Issuer is necessary for the purposes of the Renewal and Replacement Fund, and (b) in the event 

that the Consulting Engineers shall certify that the Renewal and Replacement Fund Requirement 

is excessive for the purposes of the Renewal and Replacement Fund, such excess amount as may 

be on deposit therein may be transferred by the Issuer from the Renewal and Replacement Fund 

for deposit into the Utility Reserve Fund.  The moneys in the Renewal and Replacement Fund 



 

 
37 

shall be applied by the Issuer for the purpose of paying the cost of major extensions, 

improvements or additions to, or the replacement or renewal of capital assets of, the System, or 

extraordinary repairs of the System; provided, however, that on or prior to each principal and 

interest payment date for the Bonds (in no event earlier than the 25th day of the month next 

preceding such payment date), moneys in the Renewal and Replacement Fund shall be applied 

for the payment into the Interest Account, the Principal Account, and the Term Bonds 

Redemption Account when the moneys therein are insufficient to pay the principal of and 

interest on the Bonds coming due, but only to the extent moneys transferred from the Utility 

Reserve Fund for such purpose pursuant to Section 4.06(B)(8) hereof, together with moneys 

available in the Reserve Account for such purpose pursuant to Section 4.06(B)(4) hereof, shall be 

inadequate to fully provide for such insufficiency.  Moneys in the Renewal and Replacement 

Fund may also be transferred to the Operation and Maintenance Fund to fund Operating 

Expenses to the extent Gross Revenues shall be insufficient for such purpose; provided, 

however, such transfer shall be treated as an interfund loan and shall be repaid from Gross 

Revenues as described in this Section 4.06(B)(5) within one year from the date of such transfer. 

(6) Subordinated Indebtedness.  Gross Revenues in the Revenue Fund shall next be 

applied by the Issuer for the payment of any accrued debt service on Subordinated Indebtedness 

incurred by the Issuer in connection with the System and in accordance with the proceedings 

authorizing such Subordinated Indebtedness. 

(7) Sinking Fund.  There shall be deposited to the Interest Account, the Principal 

Account and the Term Bonds Redemption Account, in that order, sufficient moneys such that the 

amounts on deposit therein shall equal, respectively, the interest, principal and Sinking Fund 

Installment next coming due on the Bonds Outstanding; provided, however, no deposit need be 

made to the Principal Account or Term Bonds Redemption Account until a date one year 

preceding the due date of such principal amount or Sinking Fund Installment. 

(8) Utility Reserve Fund.  The balance of any Gross Revenues remaining in said 

Revenue Fund shall be deposited in the Utility Reserve Fund and applied to the payment, on or 

prior to each principal and interest payment date for the Bonds (in no event earlier than the 25th 

day of the month next preceding such payment date), into the Interest Account, the Principal 

Account and the Term Bonds Redemption Account when the moneys therein shall be insufficient 

to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds coming due.  Moneys not required to meet such 

a deficiency shall be deposited to the Reserve Account to make up any deficiency therein, and 

thereafter to the Rebate Fund to the extent moneys are required to be deposited therein.  

Thereafter, moneys in the Utility Reserve Fund may be applied for (A) the purchase or 

redemption of Bonds, (b) payment of Subordinated Indebtedness, (c) payment of other 

obligations incurred with respect to the System, (d) deposit to the Rate Stabilization Fund, (e) 

improvements, renewals and replacements to the System or for (f) any lawful purpose of the 

Issuer up to a maximum amount with respect to clause (f) of 10% of the Gross Revenues of the 

System for such Fiscal Year; provided, however, that none of such revenues shall ever be used 

for the purposes provided in this Section 4.06(B)(8) unless all payments required in Sections 

4.06(B)(1) through 4.06(B)(6) hereof, including any deficiencies for prior payments, have been 

made in full to the date of such use. 



 

 
38 

(C) Whenever moneys on deposit in the Sinking Fund are sufficient to fully pay all 

Outstanding Bonds in accordance with their terms (including principal or applicable Redemption 

Price and interest thereon), no further deposits to the Sinking Fund need be made.  If on any 

payment date the Gross Revenues are insufficient to deposit the required amount in any of the 

funds or accounts or for any of the purposes provided above, the deficiency shall be made up on 

the subsequent payment dates. 

The Issuer, in its discretion, may use moneys in the Principal Account and the Interest 

Account to purchase or redeem Bonds coming due on the next principal payment date, provided 

such purchase or redemption does not adversely affect the Issuer's ability to pay the principal or 

interest coming due on such principal payment date on the Bonds not so purchased or redeemed. 

(D) In the event the Issuer shall issue a Series of Bonds secured by a Credit Facility, 

the Issuer may establish separate subaccounts in the Interest Account, the Principal Account and 

the Term Bonds Redemption Account to provide for payment of the principal of and interest on 

such Series; provided payment from the Pledged Funds of one Series of Bonds shall not have 

preference over payment of any other Series of Bonds.  The Issuer may also deposit moneys in 

such subaccounts at such other times and in such other amounts from those provided in Section 

4.06(B) as shall be necessary to pay the principal of and interest on such Bonds as the same shall 

become due, all as provided by the Supplemental Resolution authorizing such Bonds. 

In the case of Bonds secured by a Credit Facility, amounts on deposit in the Sinking Fund 

may be applied as provided in the applicable Supplemental Resolution to reimburse the Credit 

Bank for amounts drawn under such Credit Facility to pay the principal of, premium, if any, and 

interest on such Bonds or to pay the purchase price of any such Bonds which are tendered by the 

holders thereof for payment; provided such Credit Facility shall have no priority over 

Bondholders or an Insurer to amounts on deposit in the Sinking Fund.  Other payments due to a 

Credit Bank in relation to obligations arising under its Credit Facility may be on parity with the 

Bonds as to source of and security for payment to the extent provided in the Supplemental 

Resolution relating thereto. 

SECTION 4.07. REBATE FUND.  Amounts on deposit in the Rebate Fund shall 

be held in trust by the Issuer and used solely to make required rebates to the United States 

(except to the extent the same may be transferred to the Revenue Fund) and the Bondholders 

shall have no right to have the same applied for debt service on the Bonds.  For any Series of 

Bonds for which the rebate requirements of Section 148(f) of the Code are applicable, the Issuer 

agrees to undertake all actions required of it in its arbitrage certificate relating to such Series of 

Bonds, including, but not limited to: 

(A) making a determination in accordance with the Code of the amount required to be 

deposited in the Rebate Fund; 

(B) depositing the amount determined in clause (A) above into the Rebate Fund; 

(C) paying on the dates and in the manner required by the Code to the United States 

Treasury from the Rebate Fund and any other legally available moneys of the Issuer such 

amounts as shall be required by the Code to be rebated to the United States Treasury; and 



 

 
39 

(D) keeping such records of the determinations made pursuant to this Section 4.07 as 

shall be required by the Code, as well as evidence of the fair market value of any investments 

purchased with proceeds of the Bonds. 

The provisions of the above-described arbitrage certificates may be amended without the 

consent of any Holder, Credit Bank or Insurer from time to time as shall be necessary, in the 

opinion of Bond Counsel, to comply with the provisions of the Code. 

SECTION 4.08. RATE STABILIZATION FUND.  The Issuer may transfer into 

the Rate Stabilization Fund such moneys which are on deposit in the Utility Reserve Fund as it 

deems appropriate.  The Issuer may transfer such amount of moneys from the Rate Stabilization 

Fund to the Revenue Fund as it deems appropriate; provided, however, that on or prior to each 

principal and interest payment date for the Bonds (in no event earlier than the 25th day of the 

month next preceding such payment date), moneys in the Rate Stabilization Fund shall be 

applied for the payment into the Interest Account, the Principal Account and the Term Bonds 

Redemption Account when the moneys therein are insufficient to pay the principal of and 

interest on the Bonds coming due, but only to the extent moneys transferred from the Utility 

Reserve Fund and Renewal and Replacement Fund for such purposes pursuant to Sections 

4.06(B)(8) and 4.06(B)(5) hereof, together with moneys available in the Reserve Account for 

such purpose pursuant to Section 4.06(B)(4) hereof, shall be inadequate to fully provide for such 

insufficiency. 

SECTION 4.09. INVESTMENTS.  Moneys on deposit in the Revenue Fund, the 

Construction Fund, the Sinking Fund, the Operation and Maintenance Fund, the Utility Reserve 

Fund, the Rate Stabilization Fund and the Renewal and Replacement Fund shall be continuously 

secured in the manner by which the deposit of public funds are authorized to be secured by the 

laws of the State.  Moneys on deposit in the Construction Fund, the Revenue Fund, the Operation 

and Maintenance Fund, the Principal Account, the Interest Account, the Term Bonds 

Redemption Account, the Renewal and Replacement Fund, the Rate Stabilization Fund and the 

Utility Reserve Fund shall be invested and reinvested by the Issuer in Authorized Investments, 

maturing not later than the dates on which such moneys will be needed for the purposes of such 

fund or account.  Moneys on deposit in the Reserve Account shall be invested in Authorized 

Investments, maturing no later than ten years from the date of investment.  All investments shall 

be valued at cost; provided, however, that the amounts on deposit in the Reserve Account shall 

be valued at the market price thereof.  Investments in the Reserve Account shall be valued by the 

Issuer on an annual basis as of April 1 of each year. 

Any and all income received from the investment of moneys in each separate account of 

the Revenue Fund, the Construction Fund, the Interest Account, the Principal Account, the Term 

Bonds Redemption Account, the Utility Reserve Fund, the Renewal and Replacement Fund (to 

the extent such income and other amounts in such Fund do not exceed the Renewal and 

Replacement Fund Requirement), the Rate Stabilization Fund and the Reserve Account (to the 

extent such income and the other amounts in the Reserve Account does not exceed the Reserve 

Account Requirement), shall be retained in such respective Fund or Account. 

Any and all income received from the investment of moneys in the Renewal and 

Replacement Fund (only to the extent such income and the other amounts in such Fund exceed 



 

 
40 

the Renewal and Replacement Fund Requirement) and the Reserve Account (only to the extent 

such income and the other amounts in the Reserve Account exceeds the Reserve Account 

Requirement), shall be deposited upon receipt thereof in the Revenue Fund. 

Nothing in this Resolution shall prevent any Authorized Investments acquired as 

investments of or security for funds held under this Resolution from being issued or held in 

book-entry form on the books of the Department of the Treasury of the United States. 



 

 
41 

ARTICLE V 

COVENANTS 

SECTION 5.01. GENERAL.  The Issuer hereby makes the following covenants, in 

addition to all other covenants in this Resolution, with each and every successive Holder of any 

of the Bonds so long as any of said Bonds remain Outstanding. 

SECTION 5.02. OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE.  The Issuer will maintain 

or cause to be maintained the System and all portions thereof in good condition and will operate 

or cause to be operated the same in an efficient and economical manner, making or causing to be 

made such expenditures for equipment and for renewals, repairs and replacements as may be 

proper for the sound and economical operation and maintenance thereof.  The Issuer may 

contract with a responsible Person which has experience in the operation of utility systems 

similar to the System for the operation and maintenance of the System. 

SECTION 5.03. ANNUAL BUDGET.  The Issuer shall annually prepare and 

adopt, prior to the beginning of each Fiscal Year, an Annual Budget in accordance with 

applicable law.  No expenditure for Operating Expenses shall be made in any Fiscal Year in 

excess of the aggregate amount provided for Operating Expenses in the Annual Budget until the 

Governing Body shall have approved the increased expenditures by resolution or ordinance. The 

amount expended for Operating Expenses in any Fiscal Year will not exceed the reasonable and 

necessary amount therefor, and the Issuer will not expend any amount for maintenance, repair 

and operation of the System from Gross Revenues in excess of the total amount provided for 

Operating Expenses in the Annual Budget, as the same may be amended.  Nothing in this Section 

shall limit the amount which the Issuer may expend for Operating Expenses in any Fiscal Year, 

provided any amounts expended therefor in excess of the total amount provided in the Annual 

Budget shall be received by the Issuer from some source other than the Gross Revenues. 

If for any reason the Issuer shall not have adopted the Annual Budget before the first day 

of any Fiscal Year, other than the first Fiscal Year, the preliminary budget for such year, if it be 

approved by the Consulting Engineers or Rate Consultant, or otherwise the Annual Budget for 

the preceding Fiscal Year, shall be deemed to be in effect for such Fiscal Year until the Annual 

Budget for such Fiscal Year is adopted. 

The Issuer shall mail copies of such Annual Budgets and amended Annual Budgets and 

all resolutions and ordinances authorizing increased expenditures for operation and maintenance 

to any Credit Bank or Insurer of Bonds who shall file its address with an Authorized Issuer 

Officer or the Clerk and request in writing that copies of all such Annual Budgets and resolutions 

and ordinances be furnished to it and shall make available all such Annual Budgets and 

resolutions and ordinances authorizing increased expenditures for operation and maintenance of 

the System at all reasonable times to any Holder or Holders of Bonds or to anyone acting for and 

on behalf of such Holder or Holders. 

SECTION 5.04 RATES.  The Issuer shall fix, establish, maintain and collect such 

rates, fees and charges for the product, services and facilities of the System, and revise the same 

from time to time, whenever necessary, so as always to provide (A) Net Revenues in each Fiscal 

Year (excluding from the computation of Operating Expenses for any Fiscal Year any amount 



 

 
42 

received from any source other than Gross Revenues and applied to the payment of Operating 

Expenses in such Fiscal Year) equal to at least (1) 120% of the Annual Debt Service becoming 

due in such Fiscal Year, plus (2) 105% of debt service in such Fiscal Year on all Subordinated 

Indebtedness, plus (3) 100% of (i) any amounts required by the terms hereof to be deposited in 

the Reserve Account or with any issuer of a Reserve Account Letter of Credit or Reserve 

Account Insurance Policy in such Fiscal Year to pay Policy Costs, and (ii) all required deposits 

during such Fiscal Year to the Renewal and Replacement Fund.  

 

Such rates, fees or other charges shall not be so reduced so as to be insufficient to provide 

adequate Net Revenues for the purposes provided therefor by this Resolution. 

 

If, in any Fiscal Year, the Issuer shall fail to comply with the requirements contained in 

this Section 5.04, it shall promptly cause the Rate Consultant to review its rates, fees, charges, 

income, Gross Revenues, Operating Expenses and methods of operation and to make written 

recommendations in a timely manner as to the methods by which the Issuer may seek to comply 

with the requirements set forth in this Section 5.04.  The Issuer shall forthwith commence to 

implement such recommendations to the extent required so as to cause it to thereafter comply 

with said requirements.  So long as the Issuer implements such recommendations within 120 

days of the receipt thereof, the Issuer's failure to comply with this Section 5.04 shall not be 

considered an Event of Default under Section 7.01 hereof, so long as the Gross Revenues, 

together with moneys in the Funds and Accounts created in Article IV of this Resolution and 

available for the purposes described therein, are sufficient to pay in cash the Operating Expenses 

and Annual Debt Service for such Fiscal Year. 

 

Anything in this Resolution to the contrary notwithstanding, if the Issuer shall fail to 

comply with the recommendations of the Rate Consultant described above, the registered owners 

of not less than ten percent (10%) in principal amount of all Bonds then Outstanding may 

institute and prosecute an action or proceeding in any court or before any board or commission 

having jurisdiction to compel the Issuer to comply with the recommendations and the 

requirements of the preceding paragraph of this Section 5.04.  So long as the issuer of a Bond 

Insurance Policy or Credit Facility issued for the benefit of any Outstanding Bonds shall not be 

in default in its payment obligations under such Bond Insurance Policy or Credit Facility, the 

Insurer or Credit Bank, as applicable, shall be deemed to be the registered owner of all Bonds 

covered by the applicable Bond Insurance Policy or Credit Facility for purposes of this 

paragraph. 
 

SECTION 5.05. BOOKS AND RECORDS.  The Issuer shall keep books, records 

and accounts of the revenues and operations of the System, which shall be kept separate and 

apart from all other books, records and accounts of the Issuer, and the Holders of any Bonds 

Outstanding or the duly authorized representatives thereof shall have the right at all reasonable 

times to inspect all books, records and accounts of the Issuer relating thereto. 

 

SECTION 5.06. ANNUAL AUDIT.  The Issuer shall, immediately after the close 

of each Fiscal Year, cause the books, records and accounts relating to the System to be properly 

audited by a recognized independent firm of certified public accountants, and shall require such 

accountants to complete their report of such Annual Audit in accordance with applicable law.  



 

 
43 

Each Annual Audit shall be in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles as 

applied to governmental entities, and shall, either as part of said Annual Audit or in a separate 

report, demonstrate compliance by the Issuer with the rate covenant set forth in Section 5.04 

hereof.  A copy of each Annual Audit shall regularly be furnished to any Credit Bank or Insurer 

who shall have furnished its address to the Clerk and requested in writing that the same be 

furnished to it. 

SECTION 5.07. NO MORTGAGE OR SALE OF THE SYSTEM.  The Issuer 

irrevocably covenants, binds and obligates itself not to sell, lease, encumber or in any manner 

dispose of the System as a whole or any substantial part thereof (except as provided below) until 

all of the Bonds and all interest thereon shall have been paid in full or provision for payment has 

been made in accordance with Section 9.01 hereof. 

The foregoing provision notwithstanding, the Issuer shall have and hereby reserves the 

right to sell, lease or otherwise dispose of any of the property comprising a part of the System in 

the following manner, if any one of the following conditions exist:  (A) such property is not 

necessary for the operation of the System, (B) such property is not useful in the operation of the 

System, (C) such property is not profitable in the operation of the System, or (D) in the case of a 

lease of such property, such lease will be advantageous to the System and will not materially 

adversely affect the security for the Bondholders. 

Prior to any such sale, lease or other disposition of said property:  (1) if the amount to be 

received therefor is not in excess of five percent (5%) of the market value of the gross plant of 

the System, an Authorized Issuer Officer shall make a finding in writing determining that one or 

more of the conditions for sale, lease or disposition of property provided for in the second 

paragraph of this Section 5.07 have been met; or (2) if the amount to be received from such sale, 

lease or other disposition of said property shall be in excess of five percent (5%) of the market 

value of the gross plant of the System, (a) an Authorized Issuer Officer and the Consulting 

Engineers shall each first make a finding in writing determining that one or more of the 

conditions for sale, lease or other disposition of property provided for in the second paragraph of 

this Section 5.07 have been met, (b) the Governing Body shall, by resolution, duly adopt, 

approve and concur in the finding of the Authorized Issuer Officer and the Consulting Engineers, 

and (c) the Issuer shall obtain an opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect that such sale, lease or 

other disposition is not in violation of the Act and will not adversely affect the exclusion from 

gross income of interest on the Bonds (other than Taxable Bonds) for federal tax purposes or 

shall not otherwise affect the status of any Outstanding Bonds issued as Federal Subsidy Bonds 

or the Issuer's receipt of Federal Subsidy Payments with respect to any Outstanding Federal 

Subsidy Bonds. 

Except as otherwise required under applicable provisions of the Code, the proceeds from 

any such sale or other disposition shall be deposited, first, into the Renewal and Replacement 

Fund to the extent necessary to make the amount therein equal to the Renewal and Replacement 

Fund Requirement, and, second, into the Utility Reserve Fund.  Proceeds from any lease of 

assets of the System shall constitute Gross Revenues and shall be deposited in the Revenue Fund.   

The transfer of the System as a whole from the control of the Governing Body to some 

other board or authority which may hereafter be created for the purpose of owning, operating or 



 

 
44 

controlling the System and which constitutes a governmental entity, interest on obligations 

issued by which are excluded from gross income for purposes of federal income taxation (other 

than obligations similar to Taxable Bonds or Federal Subsidy Bonds), shall not be deemed 

prohibited by this Section 5.07 and such successor board or authority shall fall within the 

definition of "Issuer" in Section 1.01 hereof. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section 5.07, the Issuer shall have the 

authority to sell for fair and reasonable consideration any land comprising a part of the System 

which is no longer necessary or useful in the operation of the System and the proceeds derived 

from the sale of such land shall be disposed of in accordance with the provisions of the fourth 

paragraph of this Section 5.07. 

The Issuer may make contracts or grant licenses for the operation of, or grant easements 

or other rights with respect to, any part of the System if such contract, license, easement or right 

does not, in the opinion of the Consulting Engineers, as evidenced by a certificate to that effect 

filed with the Issuer, impede or restrict the operation by the Issuer of the System, but any 

payments to the Issuer under or in connection with any such contract, license, easement or right 

in respect of the System or any part thereof shall constitute Gross Revenues and shall be 

deposited in the Revenue Fund. 

SECTION 5.08. INSURANCE.  The Issuer will carry such insurance as is 

ordinarily carried by private or public entities owning and operating utilities similar to the 

System with a reputable insurance carrier or carriers, in such amounts as the Issuer shall 

determine to be sufficient, and such other insurance against loss or damage by fire, explosion, 

hurricane, tornado or other hazards and risks, and said property loss or damage insurance shall at 

all times be in an amount or amounts equal to the fair appraisal value of the buildings, properties, 

furniture, fixtures and equipment of the System, or such other amount or amounts as the 

Consulting Engineers or an insurance consultant who has a favorable reputation and experience 

and is qualified to survey risks and to recommend insurance coverage for Persons engaged in 

operations similar to the System, shall recommend or approve as sufficient. 

The Issuer may establish certain levels of insurance for which the Issuer may self-insure.  

Such levels of insurance shall be in amounts as recommended in writing by an insurance 

consultant who has a favorable reputation and experience and is qualified to survey risks and to 

recommend insurance coverage for Persons engaged in operations similar to the System. 

The proceeds from property loss and casualty insurance shall be deposited in the Renewal 

and Replacement Fund and, together with other available funds of the Issuer, shall be used to 

repair or replace the damaged portion of the System; provided, however, if the Issuer makes a 

determination in accordance with Section 5.07 hereof that such portion of the System is no 

longer necessary or useful in the operation of the System, such proceeds shall (1) if such 

proceeds equal or exceed $500,000, (a) be applied to the redemption or purchase of Bonds or (b) 

be deposited in irrevocable trust for the payment of Bonds in the manner set forth in Section 

9.01, provided the Issuer has received an opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect that such deposit 

shall not adversely affect the exclusion, if any, from gross income of interest on the Outstanding 

Bonds for purposes of federal income taxation (other than Taxable Bonds) and will not otherwise 

affect the status of any Outstanding Bonds issued as Federal Subsidy Bonds or the Issuer's 



 

 
45 

receipt of Federal Subsidy Payments with respect to any Outstanding Federal Subsidy Bonds, or 

(2) if such proceeds are less than $500,000, be deposited in the Revenue Fund. 

SECTION 5.09. NO FREE SERVICE.  The Issuer will not render or cause to be 

rendered any free services of any nature by its System, nor will any preferential rates be 

established for users of the same class; provided, however, the foregoing clause shall not be 

construed to prevent the Issuer from establishing various classes of users based on any factors 

deemed necessary or desirable by the Issuer.  Different rates may be established for different 

classes.  Whenever the Issuer, including its departments, agencies and instrumentalities, shall 

avail itself of the product, facilities or services provided by the System, or any part thereof, the 

same rates, fees or charges applicable to other customers receiving like services under similar 

circumstances shall be charged to the Issuer and any such department, agency or instrumentality.  

Such charges shall be paid as they accrue, and the Issuer shall transfer from its general funds to 

the Revenue Fund sufficient sums to pay such charges.  The revenues so received shall be 

deemed to be Gross Revenues derived from the operation of the System, and shall be deposited 

and accounted for in the same manner as other Gross Revenues derived from such operation of 

the System. 

SECTION 5.10. NO IMPAIRMENT OF RIGHTS; NO COMPETING 

SYSTEM.  (A)  The Issuer will not enter into any contract or contracts, nor take any action, the 

results of which might impair the rights of the Holders of the Bonds.  

(B) To the extent permitted by law, the Issuer will not hereafter grant, or cause, 

consent to or allow the granting of any franchise or permit to any Person for the operation of any 

competing electric, water or sewer service facilities or the furnishing of services similar to those 

provided by the System within the jurisdiction of the Issuer if such operations or services will 

have a material adverse effect on the Issuer's ability to meet its obligations hereunder.  

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Issuer reserves the right to permit the ownership and 

operation of water or sewer service facilities or both by itself or by others in any territory which 

is not in any service area now or hereafter served by the System. 

SECTION 5.11. COMPULSORY CONNECTIONS.  In order better to secure the 

prompt payment of principal and interest on the Bonds, as well as for the purpose of protecting 

the health and welfare of the inhabitants of the Issuer, and acting under authority of the general 

laws of Florida, the Issuer, to the extent permitted by law, will require, where service by the 

System is available, the owner of every lot or parcel of land within the jurisdiction of the Issuer 

to connect to the water and sewer facilities of the System.  The Issuer may establish reasonable 

rules and regulations regarding such connections and may provide for reasonable exemptions 

from such connection policy. 

SECTION 5.12. ENFORCEMENT OF CHARGES.  The Issuer shall compel the 

prompt payment of rates, fees and charges imposed in connection with the System, and to that 

end will vigorously enforce all of the provisions of any ordinance or resolution of the Issuer 

having to do with System connections and charges, and all of the rights and remedies permitted 

the Issuer under law, including the requirement for the making of a reasonable deposit by each 

user, the requirement for lawful disconnection of services for all premises delinquent in the 

payment of any duly invoiced bill, and the securing of injunction against the disposition of 



 

 
46 

sewage or industrial waste into the sewer facilities of the System by any premises delinquent in 

the payment of such charges. 

SECTION 5.13. UNIT BILLS.  In every instance in which a building or structure 

on a lot is connected to any portion of the facilities of the System, which building or structure is 

also connected to other facilities of the System and receives services therefrom, the Issuer shall 

submit to the owner or occupant of such lot a single bill for all applicable electric, water and 

sewer service and shall refuse to accept payment for any of the charge relating to a particular 

service of the System without payment of the charges for all other services of the System. 

SECTION 5.14. COVENANTS WITH CREDIT BANKS AND INSURERS.  

The Issuer may make such covenants as it may in its sole discretion determine to be appropriate 

with any Insurer, Credit Bank or other financial institution that shall agree to insure or to provide 

for Bonds of any one or more Series credit or liquidity support that shall enhance the security or 

the value of such Bonds.  Such covenants may be set forth in the applicable Supplemental 

Resolution or in an agreement approved by Supplemental Resolution and shall be binding on the 

Issuer, the Registrar, the Paying Agent and all the Holders of Bonds the same as if such 

covenants were set forth in full in this Resolution and shall not diminish the security for any of 

the Bonds Outstanding. 

SECTION 5.15. CONSULTING ENGINEERS.  The Issuer shall employ 

Consulting Engineers, whose duties shall be to make any certificates and perform any other acts 

required or permitted of the Consulting Engineers under this Resolution.  The Consulting 

Engineers shall, from time to time, recommend the amount of the Renewal and Replacement 

Fund Requirement.  Copies of any reports, recommendations and estimates of the Consulting 

Engineers shall be filed with the Issuer for inspection by Bondholders, Credit Banks and 

Insurers, if such inspection is requested. In addition, at least once every three years, the 

Consulting Engineers shall prepare an assessment of the condition of the System, a review of the 

capital improvement budget and operating budget and financial projections, which shall be 

compiled in a report and submitted to the Governing Body. 

SECTION 5.16. FEDERAL INCOME TAXATION COVENANTS; TAXABLE 

BONDS.  The Issuer covenants with the Holders of each Series of Bonds (other than Taxable 

Bonds and Federal Subsidy Bonds) that it shall not use the proceeds of such Series of Bonds in 

any manner which would cause the interest on such Series of Bonds to be or become included in 

gross income for purposes of federal income taxation. 

The Issuer covenants with the Holders of each Series of Bonds (other than Taxable 

Bonds) that neither the Issuer nor any Person under its control or direction will make any use of 

the proceeds of such Series of Bonds (or amounts deemed to be proceeds under the Code) in any 

manner which would cause such Series of Bonds to be "arbitrage bonds" within the meaning of 

the Code and neither the Issuer nor any other Person shall do any act or fail to do any act which 

would cause the interest on any Series of Bonds (other than Taxable Bonds and Federal Subsidy 

Bonds) to become subject to inclusion within gross income for purposes of federal income 

taxation. 



 

 
47 

The Issuer hereby covenants with the Holders of each Series of Bonds (other than 

Taxable Bonds and Federal Subsidy Bonds) that it will comply with all provisions of the Code 

necessary to maintain the exclusion from gross income of interest on the Bonds for purposes of 

federal income taxation, including, in particular, the payment of any amount required to be 

rebated to the U.S. Treasury pursuant to the Code. 

The Issuer may, if it so elects, issue one or more Series of Taxable Bonds the interest on 

which is (or may be) includable in the gross income of the Holder thereof for federal income 

taxation purposes, so long as each Bond of such Series states in the body thereof that interest 

payable thereon is (or may be) subject to federal income taxation and provided that the issuance 

thereof will not cause interest on any other Bonds theretofore issued hereunder to be or become 

subject to federal income taxation.  The other covenants set forth in this Section 5.19 shall not 

apply to any Taxable Bonds. 

SECTION 5.17. COVENANTS RELATING TO FEDERAL SUBSIDY 

BONDS.  The Issuer covenants with respect to any Bonds issued as Federal Subsidy Bonds that 

it will: 

(A) File, on a timely basis, Internal Revenue Service Form 8038-CP or such other 

form or forms required by the United States Department of Treasury to receive Federal Subsidy 

Payments in connection with any Bonds issued as Federal Subsidy Bonds. 

(B) Deposit promptly the Federal Subsidy Payments received from the United States 

Department of Treasury, if any, to the Interest Account of the Sinking Fund to pay interest on the 

Federal Subsidy Bonds. 

(C) Comply with all provisions of the Code, all Treasury Regulations promulgated 

thereunder, and any applicable notice, ruling or other formal interpretation issued by the United 

States Department of Treasury or the Internal Revenue Service, in order for the Bonds issued as 

Federal Subsidy Bonds to be and to remain Federal Subsidy Bonds.  

(D) Not take any action, or fail to take any action, if any such action or failure to take 

such action would adversely affect the Issuer's receipt of Federal Subsidy Payments or the status 

of the Bonds issued as Federal Subsidy Bonds, or any portion thereof, as Federal Subsidy Bonds.  

The Issuer covenants that it will not directly or indirectly use or permit the use of any proceeds 

of Bonds issued as Federal Subsidy Bonds or any other of its funds or take or omit to take any 

action that would cause the Bonds issued as Federal Subsidy Bonds to be or become "arbitrage 

bonds" within the meaning of Section 148(a) or to fail to meet any other applicable requirements 

of the Code. 

SECTION 5.18 INSPECTION.  The System shall be inspected and its operations 

reviewed every two Fiscal Years by the Issuer or, at the option of the Issuer, by the Consulting 

Engineer, and immediately following such inspection a written report on the condition of the 

System and manner of operations shall be filed with the Clerk.  A copy of the report shall be 

available for inspection at the offices of the Issuer and mailed to any Bondholder or to an Insurer 

or Credit Bank upon written request. 



 

 
48 

 If the report shows that the System is not in good operating condition, then the Issuer 

shall notify each Insurer and Credit Bank and, to the extent funds in the Operation and 

Maintenance Fund or the Renewal and Replacement Fund are available, shall immediately make 

or cause to be made such repairs as shall be necessary to place the System in good operating 

condition.  If the report shows that the operation or maintenance of the System are not in 

conformity with the provisions of this Resolution, the Issuer shall immediately take such 

reasonable steps as are necessary to comply with such provisions. 

 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank] 

 



 

 
49 

ARTICLE VI 

SUBORDINATED INDEBTEDNESS AND ADDITIONAL BONDS 

SECTION 6.01. SUBORDINATED INDEBTEDNESS.  The Issuer will not issue 

any other obligations, except under the conditions and in the manner provided herein, payable 

from the Pledged Funds or the Gross Revenues or voluntarily create or cause to be created any 

debt, lien, pledge, assignment, encumbrance or other charge having priority to or being on a 

parity with the lien thereon in favor of the Bonds and the interest thereon.  The Issuer may at any 

time or from time to time issue evidences of indebtedness payable in whole or in part out of 

Pledged Funds and which may be secured by a pledge of Pledged Funds; provided, however, that 

such pledge shall be, and shall be expressed to be, subordinated in all respects to the pledge of 

the Pledged Funds created by this Resolution and provided further that the issuance of such 

Subordinated Indebtedness shall be subject to any provisions contained in financing documents 

securing outstanding Subordinated Indebtedness to the extent such provisions impact on the 

ability of the Issuer to issue other Subordinated Indebtedness.  The Issuer shall have the right to 

covenant with the holders from time to time of any Subordinated Indebtedness to add to the 

conditions, limitations and restrictions under which any Additional Bonds may be issued under 

the provisions of Section 6.02 hereof.  The Issuer agrees to pay promptly any Subordinated 

Indebtedness as the same shall become due. 

SECTION 6.02. ISSUANCE OF ADDITIONAL BONDS.  No Additional Bonds, 

payable on a parity with the Bonds then Outstanding pursuant to this Resolution, shall be issued 

except upon the conditions and in the manner herein provided.  The Issuer may issue one or more 

Series of Additional Bonds for any one or more of the following purposes:  (i) financing or 

refinancing the Cost of a Project, or the completion thereof, or (ii) refunding any or all 

Outstanding Bonds, any Subordinated Indebtedness of the Issuer, or any other indebtedness of 

the Issuer that it may lawfully refund with proceeds of Bonds. 

No such Additional Bonds shall be issued unless the following conditions are complied 

with: 

(A) Except in the case of Additional Bonds issued for the purpose of refunding 

Outstanding Bonds, the Issuer shall certify that it is current in all deposits into the various funds 

and accounts established hereby and all payments theretofore required to have been deposited or 

made by it under the provisions of this Resolution, including a certification that all due and 

payable Policy Costs have been deposited or made, and the Issuer is in compliance with the 

covenants and agreements of this Resolution, or if not in compliance, that the issuance of such 

Additional Bonds will create such compliance. 

(B) An independent certified public accountant or the Rate Consultant shall certify to 

the Issuer that the amount of the Net Revenues (excluding Investment Earnings with respect to 

the Construction Fund) received by the Issuer during the immediately preceding Fiscal Year or 

any 12 consecutive months selected by the Issuer of the 24 months immediately preceding the 

issuance of said Additional Bonds, adjusted as hereinafter provided, were equal to (1) at least 

120% of the Maximum Annual Debt Service of the Outstanding Bonds and the Additional Bonds 

then proposed to be issued, plus (2) 105% of any debt service during such 12-month period on 

Subordinated Indebtedness, plus (3) 100% of (a) any amounts required by the terms hereof to be 



 

 
50 

deposited in the Reserve Account or with any issuer of a Reserve Account Letter of Credit or 

Reserve Account Insurance Policy to pay any Policy Costs, and (b) all required deposits to the 

Renewal and Replacement Fund during such 12-month period.  

(C) For the purpose of determining the Debt Service under this Section 6.02, the 

interest rate on Additional Bonds that are proposed to be issued as Variable Rate Bonds shall be 

deemed to be the Bond Buyer Revenue Bond Index most recently published prior to the sale of 

such Additional Bonds. 

(D) For the purpose of determining the Debt Service under this Section 6.02, the 

interest rate on Outstanding Variable Rate Bonds (not subject to a Qualified Hedge Agreement) 

shall be deemed to be (1) if such Variable Rate Bonds have been Outstanding for at least 12 

months prior to the date of sale of such Additional Bonds, the highest of (a) the actual rate of 

interest borne by such Variable Rate Bonds on the date of sale, and (b) the average interest rate 

borne by such Variable Rate Bonds during the 12-month period preceding the date of sale, or (2) 

if such Variable Rate Bonds have not been Outstanding for at least 12 months prior to the date of 

sale of such Additional Bonds, the higher of (a) the actual rate of interest borne by the Variable 

Rate Bonds on the date of sale, and (b) the Bond Buyer Revenue Bond Index most recently 

published prior to the sale of such Additional Bonds. 

(E) For the purpose of this Section 6.02, the phrase "immediately preceding Fiscal 

Year or any 12 consecutive months selected by the Issuer of the 24 months immediately 

preceding the issuance of said Additional Bonds" shall be sometimes referred to as "12 

consecutive months" or the "12-month period." 

(F) The Net Revenues calculated pursuant to the foregoing Section 6.02(B) may be 

adjusted upon the written advice of the Rate Consultant, at the option of the Issuer, as follows: 

(1) If the Issuer, prior to the issuance of the proposed Additional Bonds, shall have 

increased the rates, fees or other charges for the product, services or facilities of the System, the 

Net Revenues for the 12 consecutive months shall be adjusted to show the Net Revenues which 

would have been derived from the System in such 12 consecutive months as if such increased 

rates, fees or other charges for the product, services or facilities of the System had been in effect 

during all of such 12 consecutive months. 

(2) If the Issuer shall have acquired or has contracted to acquire any privately or 

publicly owned existing utility system that will become part of the System, the cost of which 

shall be paid from all or part of the proceeds of the issuance of the proposed Additional Bonds, 

then the Net Revenues derived from the System during the 12 consecutive months shall be 

increased by adding to the Net Revenues for said 12 consecutive months the Net Revenues 

which would have been derived from said existing utility system as if such existing utility system 

had been a part of the System during such 12 consecutive months.  For the purposes of this 

paragraph, the Net Revenues derived from said existing utility system during such 12 

consecutive months shall be adjusted to determine such Net Revenues by deducting the cost of 

operation and maintenance of said existing utility system from the gross revenues of said system.  

Such Net Revenues shall take into account any increase in rates imposed on customers of such 

utility system on or prior to the acquisition thereof by the Issuer. 



 

 
51 

(3) If the Issuer, in connection with the issuance of Additional Bonds, shall enter into 

a contract (with a duration not less than the final maturity of such Additional Bonds) with any 

public or private entity whereby the Issuer agrees to furnish services in connection with any 

utility system, then the Net Revenues of the System during the 12 consecutive months shall be 

increased by the least amount which said public or private entity shall guarantee to pay in any 

one year for the furnishing of said services by the Issuer, after deducting therefrom the 

proportion of operating expenses and repair, renewal and replacement cost attributable in such 

year to such services. 

(4) In the event the Issuer shall be constructing or acquiring additions, extensions or 

improvements to the System from the proceeds of such Additional Bonds and shall have 

established fees, rates or charges to be charged and collected from users of such facilities when 

service is rendered, such Net Revenues for the 12 consecutive months may be adjusted by adding 

thereto 100% of the Net Revenues estimated by the Rate Consultant to be derived during the first 

12 months of operation after completion of the construction or acquisition of said additions, 

extensions and improvements from the customers of the facilities to be financed by Additional 

Bonds together with other funds on hand or lawfully obtained for such purpose; provided such 

customers must represent existing occupied structures that will be added to the System upon 

completion of the proposed additions, extensions or improvements. 

(5) If the Issuer shall add new customers subsequent to the commencement of the 12 

consecutive months, the Rate Consultant may adjust the Net Revenues to reflect the Net 

Revenues that would have been received by the Issuer if such customers had been in place for 

the entire 12 consecutive months. 

(7) The Net Revenues shall be adjusted for any period the System or any portion 

thereof was not owned by the Issuer to reflect government ownership of the System or such 

portion. 

(G) Additional Bonds shall be deemed to have been issued pursuant to this Resolution 

the same as the Outstanding Bonds, and all of the other covenants and other provisions of this 

Resolution (except as to details of such Additional Bonds inconsistent therewith) shall be for the 

equal benefit, protection and security of the Holders of all Bonds issued pursuant to this 

Resolution.  Except as provided in Sections 4.02 and 4.06 hereof, all Bonds, regardless of the 

time or times of their issuance, shall rank equally with respect to their lien on the Pledged Funds 

and their sources and security for payment therefrom without preference of any Bonds over any 

other. 

(H) In the event any Additional Bonds are issued for the purpose of refunding any 

Bonds then Outstanding, the conditions of Section 6.02(B) shall not apply, provided that the 

issuance of such Additional Bonds shall result in a reduction of Debt Service.  The conditions of 

Section 6.02(B) shall apply to Additional Bonds issued to refund Subordinated Indebtedness and 

to Additional Bonds issued for refunding purposes which cannot meet the conditions of this 

paragraph. 

(I) In connection with the issuance of any Series of Additional Bonds, the Issuer shall 

receive an opinion of the City Attorney of the Issuer or Bond Counsel that the issuance of such 



 

 
52 

Additional Bonds has been duly authorized and that all legal requirements constituting a 

condition precedent to the delivery of such Additional Bonds have been fulfilled. 

SECTION 6.03. BOND ANTICIPATION NOTES.  The Issuer may issue notes in 

anticipation of the issuance of Bonds which shall have such terms and details and be secured in 

such manner, not inconsistent with this Resolution, as shall be provided by Supplemental 

Resolution. 

SECTION 6.04. ACCESSION OF SUBORDINATED INDEBTEDNESS TO 

PARITY STATUS WITH BONDS.  The Issuer may provide for the accession of Subordinated 

Indebtedness to the status of complete parity with the Bonds, if (A) the Issuer shall meet all the 

requirements imposed upon the issuance of Additional Bonds by Sections 6.02(A) and (B) 

hereof, assuming for purposes of said requirements, that such Subordinated Indebtedness shall be 

Additional Bonds, (B) and the facilities financed or refinanced by such Subordinated 

Indebtedness shall be, or become part of, the System.  If the aforementioned conditions are 

satisfied, the Subordinated Indebtedness shall be deemed to have been issued pursuant to this 

Resolution the same as the Outstanding Bonds, and such Subordinated Indebtedness shall be 

considered Bonds for all purposes provided in this Resolution. 

 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank] 

 



 

 
53 

ARTICLE VII 

 

DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES 

SECTION 7.01. EVENTS OF DEFAULT.  The following events shall each 

constitute an "Event of Default": 

(A) Default shall be made in the payment of the principal of, Sinking Fund 

Installment, redemption premium or interest on any Bond when due.  In determining whether a 

payment default has occurred, no effect shall be given to payment made under a Bond Insurance 

Policy. 

(B) There shall occur the dissolution or liquidation of the Issuer, or the filing by the 

Issuer of a voluntary petition in bankruptcy, or the commission by the Issuer of any act of 

bankruptcy, or adjudication of the Issuer as a bankrupt, or assignment by the Issuer for the 

benefit of its creditors, or appointment of a receiver for the Issuer, or the entry by the Issuer into 

an agreement of composition with its creditors, or the approval by a court of competent 

jurisdiction of a petition applicable to the Issuer in any proceeding for its reorganization 

instituted under the provisions of the Federal Bankruptcy Act, as amended, or under any similar 

act in any jurisdiction which may now be in effect or hereafter enacted. 

(C) The Issuer shall default in the due and punctual performance of any other of the 

covenants, conditions, agreements and provisions contained in the Bonds or in this Resolution on 

the part of the Issuer to be performed, and such default shall continue for a period of 90 days 

after written notice of such default shall have been received from the Holders of not less than 

25% of the aggregate principal amount of Bonds Outstanding.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, 

the Issuer shall not be deemed to be in default hereunder if such default can be cured within a 

reasonable period of time and if the Issuer in good faith institutes appropriate curative action and 

diligently pursues such action until default has been corrected. 

SECTION 7.02. REMEDIES.  Any Holder of Bonds issued under the provisions of 

this Resolution or any trustee or receiver acting for such Bondholders may either at law or in 

equity, by suit, action, mandamus or other proceedings in any court of competent jurisdiction, 

protect and enforce any and all rights under the Laws of the State of Florida, or granted and 

contained in this Resolution, and may enforce and compel the performance of all duties required 

by this Resolution or by any applicable statutes to be performed by the Issuer or by any officer 

thereof; provided, however, that no Holder, trustee or receiver shall have the right to declare the 

Bonds immediately due and payable. 

The Holder or Holders of Bonds in an aggregate principal amount of not less than 25% of 

the Bonds then Outstanding may by a duly executed certificate in writing appoint a trustee for 

Holders of Bonds issued pursuant to this Resolution with authority to represent such 

Bondholders in any legal proceedings for the enforcement and protection of the rights of such 

Bondholders and such certificate shall be executed by such Bondholders or their duly authorized 

attorneys or representatives, and shall be filed in the office of the Clerk. Notice of such 

appointment, together with evidence of the requisite signatures of the Holders of not less than 



 

 
54 

25% in aggregate principal amount of Bonds Outstanding and the trust instrument under which 

the trustee shall have agreed to serve shall be filed with the Issuer and the trustee and notice of 

such appointment shall be given to all Holders of Bonds in the same manner as notices of 

redemption are given hereunder.  After the appointment of the first trustee hereunder, no further 

trustees may be appointed; however, the Holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of 

all the Bonds then Outstanding may remove the trustee initially appointed and appoint a 

successor and subsequent successors at any time. 

SECTION 7.03. DIRECTIONS TO TRUSTEE AS TO REMEDIAL 

PROCEEDINGS.  The Holders of a majority in principal amount of the Bonds then 

Outstanding (or any Insurer insuring any then Outstanding Bonds) have the right, by an 

instrument or concurrent instruments in writing executed and delivered  to the trustee, to direct 

the method and place of conducting all remedial proceedings to be taken by the trustee hereunder 

with respect to the Series of Bonds owned by such Holders or insured by such Insurer, provided 

that such direction shall not be otherwise than in accordance with law or the provisions hereof, 

and that the trustee shall have the right to decline to follow any direction which in the opinion of 

the trustee would be unjustly prejudicial to Holders of Bonds not parties to such direction. 

SECTION 7.04. REMEDIES CUMULATIVE.  No remedy herein conferred upon 

or reserved to the Bondholders is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy or remedies, and 

each and every such remedy shall be cumulative, and shall be in addition to every other remedy 

given hereunder or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute. 

SECTION 7.05. WAIVER OF DEFAULT.  No delay or omission of any 

Bondholder to exercise any right or power accruing upon any default shall impair any such right 

or power or shall be construed to be a waiver of any such default, or an acquiescence therein; and 

every power and remedy given by Section 7.02 to the Bondholders may be exercised from time 

to time, and as often as may be deemed expedient. 

SECTION 7.06. APPLICATION OF MONEYS AFTER DEFAULT.  If an 

Event of Default shall happen and shall not have been remedied, the Issuer or a trustee or 

receiver appointed for the purpose shall apply all Pledged Funds (except as for amounts in the 

subaccounts of the Reserve Account which shall be applied to the payment of the Series of 

Bonds for which they were established) as follows and in the following order: 

A. To the payment of the reasonable and proper charges, expenses and liabilities of 

the trustee or receiver and Registrar hereunder; 

B. To the payment of the amounts required for reasonable and necessary Operating 

Expenses, and for the reasonable renewals, repairs and replacements of the System necessary to 

prevent loss of Gross Revenues, as certified by the Consulting Engineer; 

C. To the payment of the interest (including Hedge Payments) and principal or 

Redemption Price, if applicable, then due on the Bonds, as follows: 

(1) Unless the principal of all the Bonds shall have become due and payable, all such 

moneys shall be applied: 



 

 
55 

FIRST: to the payment to the Persons entitled thereto of all installments of 

interest (including Hedge Payments) then due, in the order of the maturity of such 

installments, and, if the amount available shall not be sufficient to pay in full any 

particular installment, then to the payment ratably, according to the amounts due 

on such installment, to the Persons entitled thereto, without any discrimination or 

preference; 

 

SECOND: to the payment to the Persons entitled thereto of the unpaid 

principal of any of the Bonds which shall have become due at maturity or upon 

mandatory redemption prior to maturity (other than Bonds called for redemption 

for the payment of which moneys are held pursuant to the provisions of Section 

9.01 of this Resolution), in the order of their due dates, with any accrued and 

unpaid interest upon such Bonds from the respective dates upon which they 

became due, and, if the amount available shall not be sufficient to pay in full 

Bonds due on any particular date, together with any accrued and unpaid interest, 

then to the payment first of such interest, ratably according to the amount of such 

interest due on such date, and then to the payment of such principal, ratably 

according to the amount of such principal due on such date, to the Persons entitled 

thereto without any discrimination or preference; and 

 

THIRD: to the payment of the Redemption Price of any Bonds called for 

optional redemption pursuant to the provisions of this Resolution plus any 

accrued and unpaid interest. 

 

(2) If the principal of all the Bonds shall have become due and payable, all such 

moneys shall be applied to the payment of the principal and interest (including Hedge Payments) 

then due and unpaid upon the Bonds, with interest thereon as aforesaid, without preference or 

priority of principal over interest or of interest over principal, or of any installment of interest 

over any other installment of interest, or of any Bond over any other Bond, ratably, according to 

the amounts due respectively for principal and interest, to the Persons entitled thereto without 

any discrimination or preference. 

D. To the payment of all amounts owed to the Insurers and Credit Banks not covered 

by A, B or C above and all amounts owed to Counterparties not covered by A, B or C above on a 

pro rata basis. 

SECTION 7.07. CONTROL BY INSURER.  To the extent an Insurer makes any 

payment of principal of or interest on Bonds in accordance with its Bond Insurance Policy, such 

Insurer shall become subrogated to the rights of the recipients of such payments in accordance 

with the terms of its Bond Insurance Policy.  Upon the occurrence and continuance of an Event 

of Default, an Insurer of a Series of Bonds, if such Insurer shall not be in payment default under 

its Bond Insurance Policy, shall be deemed to be the sole owner of such Bonds for purposes of 

(A) directing and controlling the enforcement of all rights and remedies with respect to such 

Series of Bonds, including any waiver of an Event of Default and removal of any trustee, and (B) 

exercising any voting right or privilege or giving any consent or direction or taking any other 

action that the Holders of such Bonds are entitled to take pursuant to this Article VII hereof.  No 

provision expressly recognizing or granting rights in or to an Insurer shall be modified without 



 

 
56 

the consent of such Insurer.  An Insurer's rights under this Section 7.07 shall be suspended 

during any period in which such Insurer is in default in its payment obligations under its Bond 

Insurance Policy (except to the extent of amounts previously paid by such Insurer and due and 

owing to such Insurer) and shall be of no force or effect if its Bond Insurance Policy is no longer 

in effect or if the Insurer asserts that its Bond Insurance Policy is not in effect or if the Insurer 

waives such rights in writing.  The rights granted to an Insurer under this Section 7.07 are 

granted in consideration of such Insurer issuing its Bond Insurance Policy.  The Issuer shall 

provide each Insurer immediate notice of any Event of Default described in Section 7.01(A) 

hereof and notice of any other Event of Default occurring hereunder within 30 days of the 

occurrence thereof.  Each Insurer of any Bonds hereunder shall be considered a third-party 

beneficiary to the Resolution with respect to such Bonds. 

 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]



 

 
57 

ARTICLE VIII 

SUPPLEMENTAL RESOLUTIONS 

SECTION 8.01. SUPPLEMENTAL RESOLUTION WITHOUT 

BONDHOLDERS' CONSENT.  The Issuer, from time to time and at any time, may adopt such 

Supplemental Resolutions without the consent of the Bondholders or the Insurers or the Credit 

Banks (which Supplemental Resolution shall thereafter form a part hereof) for any of the 

following purposes: 

(A) To cure any ambiguity or formal defect or omission or to correct any inconsistent 

provisions in this Resolution or to clarify any matters or questions arising hereunder. 

(B) To grant to or confer upon the Bondholders any additional rights, remedies, 

powers, authority or security that may lawfully be granted to or conferred upon the Bondholders. 

(C) To add to the conditions, limitations and restrictions on the issuance of Bonds 

under the provisions of this Resolution other conditions, limitations and restrictions thereafter to 

be observed. 

(D) To add to the covenants and agreements of the Issuer in this Resolution other 

covenants and agreements thereafter to be observed by the Issuer or to surrender any right or 

power herein reserved to or conferred upon the Issuer. 

(E) To specify and determine the matters and things referred to in Section 2.01 

hereof, including the issuance of Additional Bonds, and also any other matters and things relative 

to such Bonds which are not contrary to or inconsistent with this Resolution as theretofore in 

effect, or to amend, modify or rescind any such authorization, specification or determination at 

any time prior to the first delivery of such Bonds. 

(F) To authorize Projects or to change or modify the description of any Project. 

(G) To specify and determine matters necessary or desirable for the issuance of 

Variable Rate Bonds, Federal Subsidy Bonds or Capital Appreciation Bonds. 

(H) To provide for the establishment of a separate subaccount or subaccounts in the 

Reserve Account which shall independently secure one or more Series of Bonds. 

(I) To make any other change that, in the opinion of the Issuer, would not materially 

adversely affect the interests of the Holders of the Bonds.  In making such determination, the 

Issuer shall not take into consideration any Bond Insurance Policy. 

SECTION 8.02. SUPPLEMENTAL RESOLUTION WITH BONDHOLDERS' 

AND INSURER'S CONSENT.  Subject to the terms and provisions contained in this Section 

8.02 and Sections 8.01 and 8.03 hereof, the Holder or Holders of not less than a majority in 

aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding shall have the right, from time to 

time, anything contained in this Resolution to the contrary notwithstanding, to consent to and 

approve the adoption of such Supplemental Resolutions hereto as shall be deemed necessary or 

desirable by the Issuer for the purpose of supplementing, modifying, altering, amending, adding 



 

 
58 

to or rescinding, in any particular, any of the terms or provisions contained in this Resolution; 

provided, however, that if such modification or amendment will, by its terms, not take effect so 

long as any Bonds of any specified Series or maturity remain Outstanding, the consent of the 

Holders of such Bonds shall not be required and such Bonds shall not be deemed to be 

Outstanding for the purpose of any calculation of Outstanding Bonds under this Section 8.02. 

Any Supplemental Resolution which is adopted in accordance with the provisions of this Section 

8.02 shall also require the written consent of the Insurer of any Bonds which are Outstanding at 

the time such Supplemental Resolution shall take effect if such Insurer is not in payment default 

under its Bond Insurance Policy.  No Supplemental Resolution may be approved or adopted 

which shall permit or require, without the consent of all affected Bondholders, (A) an extension 

of the maturity of the principal of or the payment of the interest on any Bond issued hereunder, 

(B) reduction in the principal amount of any Bond or the Redemption Price or the rate of interest 

thereon, (C) the creation of a lien upon or a pledge of the Pledged Funds other than the lien and 

pledge created by this Resolution or except as otherwise permitted or provided hereby which 

materially adversely affects any Bondholders, (D) a preference or priority of any Bond or Bonds 

over any other Bond or Bonds (except as to the establishment of separate subaccounts in the 

Reserve Account provided in Section 4.06(B)(4) hereof), or (E) a reduction in the aggregate 

principal amount of the Bonds required for consent to such Supplemental Resolution.  Nothing 

herein contained, however, shall be construed as making necessary the approval by Bondholders 

or the Insurers or the Credit Banks of the adoption of any Supplemental Resolution as authorized 

in Section 8.01 hereof. 

If at any time the Issuer shall determine that it is necessary or desirable to adopt any 

Supplemental Resolution pursuant to this Section 8.02, the Clerk shall cause the Registrar to give 

notice of the proposed adoption of such Supplemental Resolution and the form of consent to 

such adoption to be mailed, postage prepaid, to all Bondholders at their addresses as they appear 

on the registration books.  Such notice shall briefly set forth the nature of the proposed 

Supplemental Resolution and shall state that copies thereof are on file at the offices of the Clerk 

and the Registrar for inspection by all Bondholders.  The Issuer shall not, however, be subject to 

any liability to any Bondholder by reason of its failure to cause the notice required by this 

Section 8.02 to be mailed and any such failure shall not affect the validity of such Supplemental 

Resolution when consented to and approved as provided in this Section 8.02. 

Whenever the Issuer shall deliver to the Clerk an instrument or instruments in writing 

purporting to be executed by the Holders of not less than a majority in aggregate principal 

amount of the Bonds then Outstanding, which instrument or instruments shall refer to the 

proposed Supplemental Resolution described in such notice and shall specifically consent to and 

approve the adoption thereof in substantially the form of the copy thereof referred to in such 

notice, thereupon, but not otherwise, the Issuer may adopt such Supplemental Resolution in 

substantially such form, without liability or responsibility to any Holder of any Bond, whether or 

not such Holder shall have consented thereto. 

If the Holders of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds 

Outstanding at the time of the adoption of such Supplemental Resolution shall have consented to 

and approved the adoption thereof as herein provided, no Holder of any Bond shall have any 

right to object to the adoption of such Supplemental Resolution, or to object to any of the terms 

and provisions contained therein or the operation thereof, or in any manner to question the 



 

 
59 

propriety of the adoption thereof, or to enjoin or restrain the Issuer from adopting the same or 

from taking any action pursuant to the provisions thereof. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the initial purchasers of Additional Bonds shall be 

deemed to have consented in writing to any amendments to the Resolution that are to become 

effective on or after the issuance of such Additional Bonds in accordance with this Section 8.02 

if the proposed amendments are reasonably disclosed in the offering documentation prepared and 

distributed in connection with the issuance of such Additional Bonds and the related 

Supplemental Resolution provides that such initial purchasers have so consented through their 

purchase. 

Upon the adoption of any Supplemental Resolution pursuant to the provisions of this 

Section 8.02, this Resolution shall be deemed to be modified and amended in accordance 

therewith, and the respective rights, duties and obligations under this Resolution of the Issuer and 

all Holders of Bonds then Outstanding shall thereafter be determined, exercised and enforced in 

all respects under the provisions of this Resolution as so modified and amended. 

SECTION 8.03. AMENDMENT WITH CONSENT OF INSURER ONLY.  For 

purposes of amending this Resolution pursuant to Section 8.02 hereof, an Insurer of Bonds shall 

be considered the Holder of such Bonds which it has insured.  The consent of the Holders of 

such Bonds shall not be required if the Insurer of such Bonds shall consent to the amendment as 

provided by this Section 8.03.  Prior to adoption of any amendment made pursuant to this 

Section 8.03, notice of such amendment shall be delivered to the rating agencies rating the 

Bonds. Upon filing with the Clerk of evidence of such consent the Insurer or Insurers as 

aforesaid, the Issuer may adopt such Supplemental Resolution.  After the adoption by the Issuer 

of such Supplemental Resolution, notice thereof shall be mailed in the same manner as notices of 

an amendment under Section 8.02 hereof. 

 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]



 

 
60 

ARTICLE IX 

DEFEASANCE 

SECTION 9.01. DEFEASANCE.  If (A) the Issuer shall pay or cause to be paid or 

there shall otherwise be paid to the Holders of any Series of Bonds the principal and interest or 

Redemption Price, plus accrued interest, due or to become due thereon, at the times and in the 

manner stipulated therein and in this Resolution, and (B) the Issuer shall pay all Policy Costs 

owing to any provider of a Reserve Account Letter of Credit or Reserve Account Insurance 

Policy and all amounts owing to any Insurer or Credit Bank relating to such Series of Bonds, 

then all covenants, agreements and other obligations of the Issuer to the holders of such Series of 

Bonds, shall thereupon cease, terminate and become void and be discharged and satisfied. In 

such event, the Paying Agents shall pay over or deliver to the Issuer all money or securities held 

by them pursuant to this Resolution which are not required for payment or redemption of any 

Series of Bonds not theretofore surrendered for such payment or redemption. 

Any Bonds or interest installments appertaining thereto shall be deemed to have been 

paid within the meaning of this Section 9.01 if (i) in case any such Bonds are to be redeemed 

prior to the maturity thereof, there shall have been taken all action necessary to call such Bonds 

for redemption and notice of such redemption shall have been duly given or provision shall have 

been made for the giving of such notice, and (ii) there shall have been deposited in irrevocable 

trust with a banking institution or trust company by or on behalf of the Issuer either moneys in an 

amount which shall be sufficient, or Refunding Securities verified by an independent certified 

public accountant or nationally recognized company that provides verification services for 

municipal bonds to be in such amount that the principal of and the interest on or redemption 

price which when due will provide moneys which, together with the moneys, if any, deposited 

with such banking institution or trust company at the same time shall be sufficient, to pay the 

principal or redemption price of and interest due and to become due on said Bonds on and prior 

to the maturity date thereof.  Except as hereafter provided, neither the Refunding Securities nor 

any moneys so deposited with such banking institution or trust company nor any moneys 

received by such bank or trust company on account of principal of or redemption price, if 

applicable, or interest on said Refunding Securities shall be withdrawn or used for any purpose 

other than, and all such moneys shall be held in trust for and be applied to, the payment, when 

due, of the principal of or redemption price of the Bonds for the payment of which they were 

deposited and the interest accruing thereon to the date of maturity or redemption; provided, 

however, the Issuer may substitute new Refunding Securities and moneys for the deposited 

Refunding Securities and moneys if the new Refunding Securities and moneys are sufficient to 

pay the principal of and interest on or redemption price of the refunded Bonds. 

For purposes of determining whether Variable Rate Bonds shall be deemed to have been 

paid prior to the maturity or the redemption date thereof, as the case may be, by the deposit of 

moneys, or specified Refunding Securities and moneys, if any, in accordance with this Section 

9.01, the interest to come due on such Variable Rate Bonds on or prior to the maturity or 

redemption date thereof, as the case may be, shall be calculated at the Maximum Interest Rate; 

provided, however, that if on any date, as a result of such Variable Rate Bonds having borne 

interest at less than the Maximum Interest Rate for any period, the total amount of moneys and 

specified Refunding Securities on deposit for the payment of interest on such Variable Rate 

Bonds is in excess of the total amount which would have been required to be deposited on such 



 

 
61 

date in respect of such Variable Rate Bonds in order to satisfy this Section 9.01, such excess 

shall be paid to the Issuer free and clear of any trust, lien, pledge or assignment securing the 

Bonds or otherwise existing under this Resolution. 

If Bonds are not to be redeemed or paid within 30 days after any such defeasance 

described in this Section 9.01, the Issuer shall cause the Registrar to mail a notice to the Holders 

of such Bonds that the deposit required by this Section 9.01 of moneys or Refunding Securities 

has been made and said Bonds are deemed to be paid in accordance with the provisions of this 

Section 9.01 and stating such maturity date upon which moneys are to be available for the 

payment of the principal of and interest on or redemption price of said Bonds. Failure to provide 

said notice shall not affect the Bonds being deemed to have been paid in accordance with the 

provisions of this Section 9.01. 

Nothing herein shall be deemed to require the Issuer to call any of the Outstanding Bonds 

for redemption prior to maturity pursuant to any applicable optional redemption provisions, or to 

impair the discretion of the Issuer in determining whether to exercise any such option for early 

redemption. 

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, in the event that the principal of or 

interest due on the Bonds shall be paid by an Insurer or Insurers, such Bonds shall remain 

Outstanding, shall not be defeased or otherwise satisfied and shall not be considered paid by the 

Issuer, and the pledge of the Pledged Funds and all covenants, agreements and other obligations 

of the Issuer to the Bondholders shall continue to exist and such Insurer or Insurers shall be 

subrogated to the rights of such Bondholders. 

 

 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank] 

 



 

 
62 

ARTICLE X 

MISCELLANEOUS 

SECTION 10.01. CAPITAL APPRECIATION BONDS.  For the purposes of 

(A) receiving payment of the Redemption Price if a Capital Appreciation Bond is redeemed prior 

to maturity, or (B) receiving payment of a Capital Appreciation Bond if the principal of all 

Bonds becomes due and payable under the provisions of this Resolution, or (C) computing the 

amount of Bonds held by the Holder of a Capital Appreciation Bond in giving to the Issuer or 

any trustee or receiver appointed to represent the Bondholders any notice, consent, request or 

demand pursuant to this Resolution for any purpose whatsoever, the principal amount of a 

Capital Appreciation Bond shall be deemed to be its Accreted Value. 

SECTION 10.02. SALE OF BONDS.  The Bonds shall be issued and sold at public 

or private sale at one time or in installments from time to time and at such price or prices as shall 

be consistent with the provisions of the Act, the requirements of this Resolution and other 

applicable provisions of law, all as provided in a Supplemental Resolution. 

SECTION 10.03. SEVERABILITY OF INVALID PROVISIONS.  If any one or 

more of the covenants, agreements or provisions of this Resolution shall be held contrary to any 

express provision of law or contrary to the policy of express law, though not expressly 

prohibited, or against public policy, or shall for any reason whatsoever be held invalid, then such 

covenants, agreements or provisions shall be null and void and shall be deemed separable from 

the remaining covenants, agreements and provisions of this Resolution and shall in no way affect 

the validity of any of the other covenants, agreements or provisions hereof or of the Bonds issued 

hereunder. 

SECTION 10.04. VALIDATION AUTHORIZED.  To the extent deemed 

necessary by Bond Counsel or desirable by the City Attorney, Bond Counsel is authorized to 

institute appropriate proceedings for validation of a Series of Bonds herein authorized pursuant 

to Chapter 75, Florida Statutes. 

SECTION 10.05. EFFECT OF COVENANTS.  All covenants, agreements, 

stipulations or obligations of the Issuer contained in this Resolution shall be deemed to be 

covenants, agreements, stipulations or obligations of the Issuer, the Governing Body and of each 

department, board or agency of the Issuer, to the full extent authorized or permitted by law, and 

all such covenants, agreements, stipulations and obligations shall bind or inure to the benefit of 

the successor or successors thereof from time to time. 

 

 Except as otherwise provided in this Resolution, all rights, powers and privileges 

conferred and duties and liabilities imposed upon the Issuer or upon the Governing Body by the 

provisions of this Resolution shall be exercised or performed by the Governing Body, or by such 

other officers, board, body or commission as may be required by law to exercise such powers or 

to perform such duties.  No covenant, agreement, stipulation or obligation contained in this 

Resolution shall be deemed to be a covenant, agreement, stipulation or obligation of any 

member, agent or employee of the Governing Body in his or her individual capacity. 

 



 

 
63 

 SECTION 10.06. FURTHER ACTS.  The officers and agents of the Issuer are 

hereby authorized and directed to do all the acts and things required of them by the Bonds and 

this Resolution, for the full, punctual and complete performance of all of the terms, covenants, 

provisions and agreements contained in the Bonds and this Resolution. 

 

 SECTION 10.07. HEADINGS NOT PART OF RESOLUTION.  Any 

headings preceding the texts of the several Articles and Sections hereof and any table of 

contents, marginal notes or footnotes appended to copies hereof shall be solely for convenience 

of reference, and shall not constitute a part of this Resolution, nor shall they affect its meaning, 

construction or effect. 

 

 SECTION 10.08. BENEFICIARIES UNDER RESOLUTION.  Except as 

otherwise expressly provided herein, nothing in this Resolution, expressed or implied, is 

intended or shall be construed to confer upon any person, firm or corporation, other than the 

Issuer, the Bondholders, the Insurers and the Credit Banks, any right, remedy or claim, legal or 

equitable, under or by reason of this Resolution or any provisions hereof, this Resolution and all 

its provisions being intended to be and being for the sole and exclusive benefit of the Issuer, the 

Bondholders, the Insurers and the Credit Banks, in the manner and to the extent expressly 

provided herein. 

 

 SECTION 10.09. ACTION REQUIRED ON NON-BUSINESS DAY.  In the 

event that any payment, action or notice required by this Resolution is required or scheduled for 

a day that is not a Business Day, except as otherwise provided in this Resolution, such payment, 

action or notice shall take place on the next succeeding Business Day with the same effect as if 

made on the required or scheduled date, and no Event of Default shall exist solely because of the 

failure to make such payment, take such action or give such notice on such required or scheduled 

date.    

 

 SECTION 10.10. GOVERNING LAW; VENUE.  This Resolution, each Series 

of Bonds to be issued hereunder and any other instruments necessary for the issuance of any 

Series of Bonds, shall be executed and delivered with the intent that, except to the extent 

specifically provided otherwise in such documents, the laws of the State of Florida shall govern 

their construction.  Venue shall lie in Palm Beach County, Florida. 

 

SECTION 10.11. REPEAL OF INCONSISTENT RESOLUTIONS.  All 

ordinances, resolutions or parts thereof in conflict herewith are hereby superseded and repealed 

to the extent of such conflict. 

 

SECTION 10.12. EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall become effective 

immediately upon its adoption. 



 

 
64 

The passage of this resolution was moved by __________________, seconded by 

________________, and upon being put to a vote, the vote was as follows: 

 

Mayor Pam Triolo   _____ 

Vice Mayor Andy Amoroso  _____ 

Commissioner Scott Maxwell  _____ 

Commissioner Omari Hardy  _____ 

Commissioner Herman Robinson _____ 

 



The Mayor thereupon declared this resolution duly passed and adopted on the 6th day of 
October, 2020. 

LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY 
COMMISSION 

Pam Triolo, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Deborah M. Andrea, CMC, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

65 



EXECUTION COPY 

RESOLUTION NO. ___ _ 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY 
OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, SUPPLEMENTING 
RESOLUTION NO. 45-2020 OF THE CITY; AUTHORIZING 
THE ISSUANCE OF NOT EXCEEDING $113,000,000 IN 
AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF CITY OF LAKE 
WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA CONSOLIDATED UTILITY 
REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2020, TO PROVIDE FUNDS FOR 
THE PURPOSE OF FINANCING THE ACQUISITION, 
CONSTRUCTION AND EQUIPPING OF CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENTS TO THE CITY'S CONSOLIDATED 
UTILITY SYSTEM; MAKING CERTAIN OTHER 
COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS IN CONNECTION WITH 
THE ISSUANCE OF SUCH BONDS; PROVIDING CERTAIN 
TERMS AND DETAILS OF SUCH BONDS, INCLUDING 
AUTHORIZING A NEGOTIATED SALE OF SAID BONDS 
AND THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A BOND 
PURCHASECONTRACTWITHRESPECTTHERETOUPON 
COMPLIANCE WITH CERTAIN PARAMETERS; 
APPOINTING THE PAYING AGENT AND REGISTRAR 
WITH RESPECT TO SAID BONDS; AUTHORIZING THE 
EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF AN OFFICIAL 
STATEMENT WITH RESPECT THERETO; AUTHORIZING 
THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A CONTINUING 
DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE; AUTHORIZING THE 
PURCHASE OF BOND INSURANCE AND A RESERVE 
ACCOUNT INSURANCE POLICY AND THE EXECUTION 
AND DELIVERY OF AN INSURANCE AGREEMENT OR 
AGREEMENTS WITH RESPECT THERETO; 
AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A 
CUSTODY AGREEMENT AND AN ESCROW DEPOSIT 
AGREEMENT; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF LAKE 
WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, as follows: 

SECTION 1. FINDINGS. It is hereby found and determined that: 

(A) On October 6, 2020, the City Commission of the City ofLake Worth Beach, Florida 
(the "City" or "Issuer") duly adopted Resolution No. 45-2020 (the "Original Resolution"). All 

I 



capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings set forth in the Original 
Resolution. 

(B) The Original Resolution, as supplemented hereby, is referr-ed to herein as the "Bond 
Resolution." 

(C) The Original Resolution provides for the issuance of the Bonds, upon meeting the 
requirements set forth in the Original Resolution. 

(D) The City deems it to be in the best interests of its citizens and taxpayers to issue its 
Consolidated Utility Revenue Bonds, Series 2020 (the "Bonds") for the purpose of financing and 
refinancing the acquisition and construction of ce1iain capital improvements to the City's 
consolidated utility system (the "Project," as described in the Original Resolution). 

(E) The principal of and interest on the Bonds and all required sinking fund, reserve and 
other payments shall be limited obligations of the City, payable solely from the Pledged Funds set 
forth in the Original Resolution. The Bonds shall not constitute a general obligation, or a pledge of 
the faith, credit or taxing power of the City, the State ofFlorida, or any political subdivision thereof, 
within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory provisions, except to the extent specifically set 
forth in the Original Resolution. Neither the State of Florida, nor any political subdivision thereof, 
nor the City shall be obligated (1) to exercise its ad valorem taxing power in any form on any real or 
personal property of or in the City to pay the principal of the Bonds, the interest thereon, or other 
costs incidental thereto or (2) to pay the same from any other funds of the City except from the Net 
Revenues and other amounts constituting the Pledged Funds, as described and in the manner 
provided in the Original Resolution. 

(F) Due to the present volatility of the market for tax-exempt obligations such as the 
Bonds, it is in the best interest of the City to sell the Bonds by a negotiated sale, allowing the City to 
enter the market at the most advantageous time, rather than at a specified advertised date, thereby 
permitting the City to obtain the best possible price and interest rate for the Bonds. The City shall 
receive the infonnation required by Section 218.385, Florida Statutes, in connection with the 
negotiated sale of the Bonds. A copy of the letter of the underwriters for the Bonds containing the 
aforementioned information is a condition precedent to the execution and delivery by the Issuer of 
the Purchase Contract referr-ed to below. 

(G) Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC and Raymond James & Associates, Inc. (collectively, the 
"Underwriters") expect to offer to purchase the Bonds from the City and submit a Bond Purchase 
Agreement in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A (the "Purchase Contract") expressing the terms 
of such offer, and, assuming compliance with the provisions of Section 5 hereof, the Issuer does 
hereby find and determine that it is in the best financial interest of the Issuer that the terms expressed 
in the Purchase Contract be accepted by the Issuer. 

(H) The Original Resolution provides that the Bonds shall mature on such dates and in 
such amounts, shall bear such rates of interest, shall be payable in such places and shall be subject to 

2 



such redemption provisions as shall be determined by Supplemental Resolution adopted by the City; 
and it is now appropriate that the City determine parameters for such terms and details. 

SECTION 2. AUTHORITY FOR THIS SUPPLEMENTAL RESOLUTION. This 
Supplemental Resolution is adopted pursuant to Articles II and VIII of the Original Resolution, the 
provisions of the Act (as defined in the Original Resolution), including the Ordinance, and other 
applicable provisions oflaw. 

SECTION 3. AUTHORIZATION AND DESCRIPTION OF THE BONDS. The City 
hereby determines to issue separate series of Bonds in an aggregate principal amount not exceeding 
$113,000,000, the exact respective principal amounts to be as set forth in the Purchase Contract, to 
be known as its "Consolidated Utility Revenue Bonds, Series 2020" for the principal purpose of 
financing the Cost of the Project. 

The Bonds shall be dated as of their date of delivery, shall be issued as fully registered 
Bonds, numbered consecutively from one upward in order of maturity with the prefix "R"; shall bear 
interest from their date of delivery, payable semi-annually, on April! and October 1 of each year, 
commencing on April 1, 2021, at such rates and maturing in such amounts on October I of such 
years as to be set forth in the Purchase Contract. The Bonds shall be issued in denominations of 
$5,000 and any integral multiple thereof. 

The Bonds shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity as set forth in the Purchase 
Contract. The Bonds shall be subject to a book -entry system of registration described in the Official 
Statement referenced below. 

SECTION 4. AUTHORIZATION OF THE PROJECT. The acquisition and 
implementation of the Project (including the reimbursement to the Issuer of certain costs incurred 
with respect thereto), is hereby authorized by the Issuer. 

SECTION 5. SALE OF THE BONDS. Upon delivery to the Mayor and the City Clerk 
of a Purchase Contract substantially in the form of Exhibit A attached hereto, evidencing: 

(A) Bonds in an aggregate principal amount not exceeding $113,000,000; 

(B) A final maturity of the Bonds of not later than October 1, 2051; 

(C) A true interest cost with respect to the Bonds of not greater than 5.0% per annum; 

(D) Optional redemption of the Bonds beginning no later than October I, 2030 at a price 
no greater than I 00% of par; and 

(E) An Underwriters' discount not in excess of$3.00 per $1,000 of Bonds; 

the Bonds shall be sold to the Underwriters pursuant to the Purchase Contract at the purchase price 
provided therein (including any original issue discounts or original issue premiums); all terms and 

3 



conditions set forth in the Purchase Contract being hereby approved. Upon compliance with the 
foregoing, the Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to execnte the Pnrchase Contract and to 
deliver the same to the Underwriters. 

SECTION 6. OFFICIAL STATEMENT; PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL 
STATEMENT; CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE. 

(A) The form, terms and provisions of the Official Statement (the "Official Statement"), 
dated the date of execution of the Purchase Contract, in substantially the form of the Preliminary 
Official Statement attached hereto as Exhibit B, which shall also include the terms and provisions set 
forth in the executed version of the Purchase Contract, relating to the Bonds, be and the same hereby 
are approved with respect to the information therein contained. The Mayor and the City Clerk, upon 
execution of the Pnrchase Contract described above, are hereby authorized and directed to execute 
and deliver the Official Statement in the name and on behalf of the City, and thereupon to cause the 
Official Statement to be delivered to the Underwriters with such changes, amendments, omissions 
and additions as may be approved by the Mayor. The use of the Preliminary Official Statement in 
substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit B (the "Preliminary Official Statement") in the 
marketing of the Bonds is hereby authorized, and the Official Statement, including any such 
changes, amendments, modifications, omissions and additions as approved by the Mayor, and the 
information contained therein are hereby authorized to be used in connection with the sale of the 
Bonds to the public. Execution by the Mayor and the City Clerk of the Official Statement shall be 
deemed to be conclusive evidence of approval of such changes, amendments, modifications, 
omissions and additions. The Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized to deem the Preliminary 
Official Statement "final," within the meaning ofSecnrities and Exchange Commission Rule 15c2-
12, except for permitted omissions as described therein. 

(B) In order to enable the Underwriters to comply with the provisions of SEC Rule 15c2-
12 relating to secondary market disclosure, the Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to execute 
and deliver the Continuing Disclosnre Certificate in the name and on behalf of the City substantially 
in the form attached hereto as Exhibit C, with such changes, amendments, omissions and additions 
as shall be approved by the Mayor, her execution and delivery thereofbeing conclusive evidence of 
such approval. 

SECTION 7. APPOINTMENT OF REGISTRAR AND PAYING AGENT. U.S. Bank 
National Association is hereby designated Registrar and Paying Agent for the Bonds. The Mayor 
and the City Clerk are hereby authorized to enter into any agreement which may be necessary to 
effect the transactions contemplated by this Section 7. 

SECTION 8. PURCHASE OF RESERVE POLICY AND BOND INSURANCE 
POLICY. The City hereby authorizes the pnrchase of a Reserve Account Insnrance Policy and a 
Bond Insnrance Policy from a nationally-recognized bond insurance company with respect to its 
issuance of the Bonds. The authority to select the bond insnrer is hereby delegated to the Mayor, 
based upon the advice of the City's financial advisor. In connection therewith, the City hereby 
authorizes and directs the Mayor to execute and deliver an Insnrance Agreement (including a 
separate agreement, if necessmy, with respect to the Reserve Account Insnrance Policy) and a bond 

4 



insurance commitment, and the City Clerk to attest the same under the official seal ofthe City. The 
Insurance Agreement shall be in substantially the form of the Insurance Agreement attached hereto 
as Exhibit D, with such changes, amendments, modifications, omissions and additions as may be 
approved by the Mayor. Execution by the Mayor of the Insurance Agreement and any separate 
Reserve Account Insurance Policy agreement shall be deemed to be conclusive evidence of approval 
of such changes. All of the provisions of the Insurance Agreement and any separate Reserve 
Account Insurance Policy agreement, when executed and delivered by the City as authorized herein 
and when duly authorized, executed and delivered by the insurer, shall be deemed to be a part of this 
Supplemental Resolution as fully and to the same extent as if incorporated verbatim herein. 

SECTION 9. CUSTODY AGREEMENT. The City hereby authorizes and directs the 
Mayor and City Clerk to enter into a Custody Agreement, in substantially the form attached hereto as 
Exhibit E (the "Custody Agreement"), with such modifications and changes as approved by the 
Mayor and City Clerk, including the investment of amounts held pursuant thereto, approval to be 
conclusively presumed by their execution thereof. U.S. Bank National Association is hereby 
appointed Custodian under the Custody Agreement. 

SECTION 10. ESCROW DEPOSIT AGREEMENT. The City hereby authorizes and 
directs the Mayor and City Clerk, if deemed necessary by the City's Bond Counsel to refund the 
City's Utility System Refunding Revenue Bond, Series 2013 and the City's obligation under the 
Master Lease Purchase Agreement dated September 27, 2015, to enter into an Escrow Deposit 
Agreement, in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit F (the "Escrow Deposit 
Agreement"), and which may take the form of separate agreements, with such modifications and 
changes as approved by the Mayor and City Clerk, including the investment of amounts deposited 
therein, approval to be conclusively presumed by their execution thereof. U.S. Bank National 
Association is hereby appointed Escrow Agent under the Escrow Deposit Agreement. 

SECTION 11. GENERAL AUTHORITY. The members of the City Commission of the 
City and the officers, attorneys and other agents or employees of the City and the City Clerk are 
hereby authorized to do all acts and things required of them by this Supplemental Resolution or the 
Original Resolution, or desirable or consistent with the requirements hereof or the Original 
Resolution, including the execution of such documents necessary to establish a book-entry system of 
registration with respect to the Bonds, for the full punctual and complete performance hereof or 
thereof. Each member, employee, attorney and officer of the City is hereby authorized and directed 
to execute and deliver any and all papers and instruments and to be and cause to be done any and all 
acts and things necessary or proper for carrying out the transactions contemplated hereunder. The 
Mayor and/or the City Clerk are hereby authorized to execute such tax forms or agreements as shall 
be necessary to effect the transactions contemplated hereby, including designating Bond Counsel to 
assist or act as agent with respect thereto. 

SECTION 12. ORIGINAL RESOLUTION TO CONTINUE IN FORCE. Except as 
herein expressly provided, the Original Resolution and all the terms and provisions thereof, 
including the covenants contained therein, are and shall remain in full force and effect. 

5 



SECTION 13. SEVERABILITY AND INVALID PROVISIONS. If any one or more of 
the covenants, agreements or provisions herein contained shall be held contrary to any express 
provision of law or contrary to the policy of express law, even though not expressly prohibited, or 
against public policy, or shall for any reason whatsoever be held invalid, then such covenants, 
agreements or provisions shall be null and void and shall be deemed separable from the remaining 
covenants, agreements or provisions and shall in no way affect the validity of any of the other 
covenants, agreements or provisions hereof or the Bonds issued hereunder. 

SECTION 14. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Supplemental Resolution shall become 
effective immediately upon its adoption. 

6 



The passage of this resolution was moved by , seconded by 
_________ , and upon being put to a vote, the vote was as follows: 

Mayor Pam Triolo 
Vice Mayor Andy Amoroso 
Commissioner Scott Maxwell 
Commissioner Herman Robinson 

The Mayor thereupon declared this resolution duly passed and adopted on the 20th day of 
October, 2020. 

LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION 

Pam Triolo, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Deborah M. Andrea, CMC, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Nabors, Giblin & Nickerson, P.A. 

7 



EXHIBIT A 

FORM OF PURCHASE CONTRACT 



SEB DRAFT -10/17/20 

$•-===-===-=c=:-:-CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA 
CONSOLIDATED UTILITY REVENUE BONDS 

SERIES 2020 

BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida 
7 North Dixie Highway 
Lake Worth Beach, Florida 33460 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

October ~-' 2020 

Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC (the "Representative"), on behalf of itself and Raymond James 
& Associates, Inc. (collectively, the "Underwriters") hereby offers to enter into this Bond Purchase 
Agreement (this "Purchase Agreement") with the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida (the "City") 
which, upon the City's acceptance hereof, will be binding upon the City and the Underwriters. 
This offer is made subject to acceptance by the City, which acceptance shall be evidenced by the 
execution of this Purchase Agreement by duly authorized officers of the City prior to II :59 p.m. 
Daylight Saving Time on the date hereof. If not so accepted, this offer will be subject to 
withdrawal by the Underwriters, upon notice delivered to the City, at any time prior to the 
acceptance hereof by the City. 

The Representative represents that it has heretofore been designated by the other 
Underwriter as its representative with respect to all matters pertaining to this Purchase Agreement. 
The Representative hereby acknowledges that it has been duly authorized by the other Underwriter 
to execute this Purchase Agreement and that it has been duly authorized to act hereunder on behalf 
of the other Underwriter. The Representative has full authority to take such actions as it may 
deem advisable with respect to all matters pertaining to this Purchase Agreement. 

Capitalized but undefined terms used in this Purchase Agreement shall have the meanings 
assigned to them in the Official Statement (as defined in Section 3(b) hereof) and the Resolution 
(as defined in Section 2(a) hereof), as applicable. 

Section 1. Purchase and Sale of Series 2020 Bonds. 

(a) Upon the terms and conditions and in reliance on the representations, warranties, 
and covenants contained in this Purchase Agreement, the Underwriters, jointly and severally, agree 
to purchase from the City for offering to the public, and the City hereby agrees to sell and deliver 
to the Underwriters, all (but not less than all) of the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida 



Consolidated Utility Revenue Bonds, Series 2020 (the "Series 2020 Bonds") described in Schedule 
I attached hereto, at the Purchase Price (as defined below). The purchase price for the Series 2020 
Bonds shall be $ (which price represents the par amount of the Series 2020 
Bonds of$ , plus a [net] original issue premium of$ , minus an 
Underwriters' discount of$ (the "Purchase Price"). The Purchase Price shall be 
payable by the Underwriters to the City on the Closing Date (as defined in Section 8 hereof), by 
wire transfer of federal funds, as provided in Section 8 of this Purchase Agreement, and shall be 
net of the Good Faith Wire (as defined in Section 6 hereof) and the amount of any payment made 
by the Underwriters on behalf of the City, as instructed by the City to facilitate the Closing (as 
defmed in Section 8 hereof). 

(b) The Series 2020 Bonds shall be as described in the Official Statement and as 
authorized by and issued and secured under the Resolution. The Series 2020 Bonds shall be dated 
the date of delivery and shall mature at the times and in the amounts, bear interest at the rates and 
be subject to redemption, all as set forth in Schedule I attached hereto. 

(c) The Underwriters acknowledge that: 

(i) the Series 2020 Bonds are being issued as Bonds under the Resolution, 
payable from and secured equally and ratably by a lien on and pledge of the Pledged Funds, 
consisting of (A) the Net Revenues of the consolidated electric, water and sewer utility system 
currently owned and operated by the City (the "System"), and (B) until applied in accordance with 
the provisions of the Resolution, all moneys, including investments thereof, in the funds and 
accounts established thereunder, except(!) the Rebate Fund, (2) to the extent moneys therein shall 
be required to pay the Operating Expenses of the System in accordance with the terms thereof, and 
(3) any moneys set aside in a particular subaccount of the Reserve Account if such moneys shall 
be pledged solely for the payment of a Series of Bonds for which it was established in accordance 
with the provisions of the Resolution, 

(ii) The Reserve Requirement for the Series 2020 Bonds has been established 
to be $ , which will be funded on the date of delivery of the Series 2020 Bonds 
by the deposit into [the Reserve Account I a subaccount within the Reserve Account to be held 
solely for the benefit of the Series 2020 Bonds] of [a portion of the proceeds of the Series 2020 
Bonds I a Reserve Account Insurance Policy issued by (the "Series 
2020 Insurer")] in the full amount of such Reserve Requirement. 

[(iii) the Series 2020 Bonds maturing on October 1, 20 __ through October I, 
20 __ (collectively, the "Insured Series 2020 Bonds"), will be further secured by a municipal 
bond insurance policy (the "Series 2020 Bond Insurance Policy") issued as of the date of delivery 
of the Insured Series 2020 Bonds by the Series 2020 Insurer,] 

(iv) the full faith and credit of the City, the State of Florida (the "State"), or any 
political subdivision or agency thereof, is not pledged to the payment of the principal of and 
interest on the Series 2020 Bonds and the holders thereof shall never have the right to require or 
compel the exercise of any taxing power of the City, the State, or any political subdivision or 

- 2-



agency thereof, to the payment of such principal and interest. The Series 2020 Bonds and the 
obligation evidenced thereby shall not constitute a lien upon any property of the City, but shall 
constitute a lien only on, and shall be payable solely from, the Pledged Funds, and 

(v) the City may issue additional obligations on parity with the Series 2020 
Bonds in accordance with the terms of the Resolution. 

(d) The Representative makes the following disclosures to the City, of which the City 
acknowledges receipt: 

(i) the purchase and sale of the Series 2020 Bonds pursuant to this Purchase 
Agreement is an am1's-length, commercial transaction between the City and the Underwriters in 
which each of the Underwriters is acting solely as a principal and is not acting as a municipal 
advisor (within the meaning of Section 15B of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended 
(the "Exchange Act")), financial advisor or fiduciary to the City, 

(ii) none of the Underwriters have assumed any advisory or fiduciary 
responsibility to the City with respect to this Purchase Agreement, the offering of the Series 2020 
Bonds and the discussions, undertakings and procedures relating thereto (irrespective of whether 
any Underwriter, or any affiliate of an Underwriter, has provided other services or is currently 
providing other services to the City on other matters), 

(iii) the only obligations the Underwriters have to the City with respect to the 
transactions contemplated hereby are set forth in this Purchase Agreement, 

(iv) the Underwriters have financial and other interests that differ from those of 
the City, and 

(v) the City should consult with its own legal, accounting, tax, financial and 
other advisors, as applicable, to the extent it deems appropriate in cmmection with the offering and 
sale of the Series 2020 Bonds. 

Section 2. Description of Financing. The following is provided for informational 
purposes only and shall not affect or control the actual terms and conditions of the Series 2020 
Bonds. 

(a) The Series 2020 Bonds are authorized to be issued pursuant to (i) the City Charter, 
the Constitution of the State, Chapter 166, Part II, Florida Statutes, as amended, and other 
applicable provisions of law (collectively, the "Act"), (ii) Resolution No. 45-2020 adopted by the 
City Commission of the City ofLake Worth Beach, Florida (the "City Commission") on October 
6, 2020 (the "Bond Resolution"), as supplemented by Resolution No. __ adopted by the City 
Commission on October 20, 2020 (the "Series 2020 Resolution" and, together with the Bond 
Resolution, the "Resolution"). 

- 3 -



(b) The Series 2020 Bonds are being issued for the purposes of (i) financing the 
acquisition, construction and equipping of certain improvements and additions to the System, (ii) 
[together with other legally available funds,] repaying certain existing indebtedness incurred for 
the benefit of the System, (iii) depositing [cash I a Reserve Account Letter of Credit I a Reserve 
Account h1surance Policy] to satisfy the Reserve Account Requirement for the Series 2020 Bonds, 
and (iv) paying the costs of issuance of the Series 2020 Bonds [(including the premium for the 
municipal bond insurance policy and the Reserve Account Letter of Credit I Reserve Account 
fusurance Policy to be obtained in connection with the issuance of the Series 2020 Bonds]. 

Section 3. Delivery of Preliminary Official Statement and Official Statement; 
Offering of Series 2020 Bonds. 

(a) The City hereby authorizes the distribution by the Underwriters of the Official 
Statement (as defined in Section 3(b) hereof) in connection with the public offering and sale of 
the Series 2020 Bonds. The City consents to and ratifies the use by the Underwriters of the 
Preliminary Official Statement dated October __ , 2020 (such Preliminary Official Statement, 
including the cover page and all appendices attached thereto and any amendments and supplements 
thereto that may be authorized by the City for use with respect to the Series 2020 Bonds, being 
herein called the "Preliminary Official Statement") relating to the Series 2020 Bonds for the 
purposes of marketing the Series 2020 Bonds in connection with the original public offer, sale and 
distribution of the Series 2020 Bonds by the Underwriters. As of its date, the Preliminary Official 
Statement was "deemed final" by the City for purposes of Rule 15c2 12 of the Securities and 
Exchange Commission (the "SEC") promulgated under the Exchange Act (the "Rule"), except for 
the permitted omissions described in paragraph (b )(1) of the Rule. 

(b) The City agrees to fumish the Underwriters with a final official statement relating 
to the Series 2020 Bonds dated October , 2020 (such final official statement, including the 
cover page and all appendices attached thereto and any amendments and supplements thereto that 
may be authorized by the City for use with respect to the Series 2020 Bonds, being herein called 
the "Official Statement") and shall cause copies of the Official Statement, in sufficient quantity 
for the Underwriters to comply with applicable rules of the SEC (including the Rule) and the 
Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (the "MSRB"), to be available to the Underwriters within 
seven (7) business days of execution of this Purchase Agreement by the City (but in no event shall 
an electronic copy be provided later than the Closing Date) and in sufficient time to accompany 
any confirmation that requests payment from any customer of the Underwriters. The City has 
delivered or agrees to deliver, as the case may be, to the Underwriters such reasonable quantities 
of the Preliminary Official Statement and Official Statement as may be necessary to permit the 
Underwriters to comply with paragraph (b)(4) of the Rule and the other applicable rules of the 
SEC and the MSRB. 

(c) To the extent required by the applicable rules of the SEC or the MSRB, the City 
hereby authorizes the Representative to file on or before the Closing Date, and the Representative 
hereby agrees to file or cause to be filed, the Official Statement with the MSRB or its designee 
(including submission to the MSRB' s Electronic Municipal Market Access system ("EMMA")) 
or other repositories approved from time to time by the SEC (either in addition to or in lieu of the 

- 4-



filings referred to above) within the time frame required by Rule G 32 of the MSRB. Failure of 
the printer to provide hard copies of the Official Statement within seven (7) business days after 
the execution of this Purchase Agreement by the City will not constitute a breach of this Purchase 
Agreement by the City if such failure is caused by the Underwriters or the agent or representative 
of any Underwriter. 

(d) From the date hereof until the earlier of: (i) ninety (90) days after the "End of the 
Underwriting Period" (as defined in Section 3(e) hereof), or (ii) the time when the Official 
Statement is available to any person from the MSRB, but in no case less than twenty five (25) 
days following the End of the Underwriting Period, if any event occurs as a result of which the 
City or the Representative believes it may be necessary to amend or supplement the Official 
Statement in order to conect any untrue statement of a material fact contained in the Official 
Statement or to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were 
made, not misleading, the City and the Representative will notifY each other thereof and, if in the 
opinion of Disclosure Counsel (as defined in Section 9 hereof) such event requires the preparation 
and publication of a supplement or amendment to the Official Statement, the City will prepare and 
furnish to the Underwriters an amendment or supplement to the Official Statement such that the 
Official Statement, as so· amended or supplemented, does not contain any untrue statement of a 
material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements therein, in light of 
the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading; provided, however, 
that the Underwriters shall not be liable to the City for any claims arising out of the City's 
decision not to amend or supplement the Official Statement. The cost of any such amendment or 
supplement shall be borne by the City. 

(e) For purposes of this Purchase Agreement, the "End of the Underwriting Period" is 
used as defined in the Rule and shall occur on the later of: (i) the Closing Date, or (ii) when the 
Underwriters no longer retain an unsold balance of the Series 2020 Bonds for sale to the public. 
Unless otherwise advised in writing by the Representative on or prior to the Closing Date, or 
otherwise agreed to by the City and the Representative, the City may assume that the End of the 
Underwriting Period is the Closing Date. 

(f) The Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement may be delivered in 
printed and/or electronic form to the extent permitted by applicable rules of the MSRB and as may 
be agreed by the City and the Representative. If the Preliminary Official Statement and the 
Official Statement are prepared for distribution in electronic form, the City hereby confirms that 
it does not object to distribution of the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement 
in electronic form. 

(g) The City agrees that it will cooperate with the Underwriters in the qualification of 
the Series 2020 Bonds for offering and sale and the determination of their eligibility for investment 
under the laws of such jurisdictions as the Undetwriters shall designate; provided, however, that 
the City shall not be required to register as a dealer or broker in any such jurisdiction, execute a 
general or special consent to service of process or qualify to do business in connection with any 
such qualification of the Series 2020 Bonds in any such jurisdiction, nor incur any costs or fees 
in connection with such qualification of the Series 2020 Bonds. 

- 5-



Section 4. Public Offering. The Underwriters agree to make a bona fide initial public 
offering of all of the Series 2020 Bonds in conformance with all applicable MSRB rules. The 
executed disclosure statement required of the Underwriters by Section 218.385, Florida Statutes, 
as amended, is attached to this Purchase Agreement as Schedule II. 

Section 5. Establishment of Issue Price. 

(a) The Representative, on behalf of the Underwriters, agrees to assist the City in 
establishing the issue price of Series 2020 Bonds and shall execute and deliver to the City at 
Closing an "issue price" or similar certificate, together with the supporting pricing wires or 
equivalent communications, substantially in the form attached to this Purchase Agreement as 
EXHIBIT A, with such modifications as may be appropriate or necessary, in the reasonable 
judgment of the Representative, the City and Bond Counsel (as defined in Section 9 hereof), to 
accurately reflect, as applicable, the sales price or prices or the initial offering price or prices to 
the public of Series 2020 Bonds. 

(b) [Except as otherwise set forth in EXHIBIT A attached hereto, ]the City will 
treat the first price at which ten percent (10%) of each maturity of the Series 2020 Bonds (the 
"1 0% test") is sold to the public as the issue price of that maturity (if different interest rates apply 
within a maturity, each separate CUSIP number within that maturity will be subject to the 10% 
test). [As of the date of this Purchase Agreement, all maturities of the Series 2020 Bonds 
have satisfied the 10% test. EXHIBIT A attached hereto sets forth the prices at which the 
Underwriters have sold each maturity of the Series 2020 Bonds to the public.] [At or 
promptly after the execution of this Purchase Agreement, the Representative shall report to 
the City the price or prices at which it has sold to the public each maturity of the Series 2020 
Bonds. If at that time the 10% test has not been satisfied as to any maturity of the Series 
2020 Bonds, the Representative agrees to promptly report to the City the prices at which it 
sells the unsold Series 2020 Bonds of that maturity to the public. That reporting obligation 
shall continue, whether or not the Closing Date has occurred, until the 10% test has been 
satisfied as to the Series 2020 Bonds of that maturity or until all Series 2020 Bonds of that 
maturity have been sold to the public.] 

(c) [The Representative confirms that the Underwriters have offered all maturities 
of the Series 2020 Bonds to the public on or before the date of this Purchase Agreement at 
the offering price or prices (the "initial offering price"), or at the corresponding yield or 
yields, set forth in EXHIBIT A attached hereto.] [EXHIBIT A also sets forth, as of the date 
of this Purchase Agreement, the maturities, if any, of the Series 2020 Bonds for which the 
10% test has not been satisfied and for which the City and the Representative, on behalf of 
the Underwriters, agree that the restrictions set forth in the next sentence shall apply, which 
will allow the City to treat the initial offering price to the public of each such maturity as 
of the sale date as the issue price of that maturity (the "hold-the-offering-price rule"). So 
long as the hold-the-offering-price rule remains applicable to any maturity of the Series 2020 
Bonds, the Underwriters will neither offer nor sell unsold Series 2020 Bonds of that maturity 
to any person at a price that is higher than the initial offering price to the public during the 
period starting on the sale date and ending on the earlier of the following: 

- 6-



(i) the close of the fifth (5'•) business day after tbe sale date, or 

(ii) the date on which the Underwriters have sold at least ten percent (10%) 
of that maturity of the Series 2020 Bonds to the public at a price that is no higher 
than the initial offering price to the public.] 

(d) The Representative confirms that: 

(i) any agreement among underwriters, any selling group agreement and each 
retail distribution agreement (to which the Representative is a party) relating to the initial sale of 
Series 2020 Bonds to the public, together with the related pricing wires, contains or will contain 
language obligating each Underwriter, each dealer who is a member of the selling group, and each 
broker-dealer that is a party to such retail distribution agreement, as applicable, to (A) report the 
prices at which it sells to the public the unsold Series 2020 Bonds of any maturity allotted to it 
until it is notified by the Representative that either the 10% test has been satisfied as to Series 
2020 Bonds of that maturity or all Series 2020 Bonds of that maturity have been sold to the public, 
and (B) comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule, if and for so long as directed by the 
Representative and as set forth in the related pricing wires, and 

(ii) any agreement among underwriters relating to the initial sale of Series 2020 
Bonds to the public, together with the related pricing wires, contains or will contain language 
obligating each Underwriter that is a party to a retail distribution agreement to be employed in 
connection with the initial sale of Series 2020 Bonds to the public to require each broker-dealer 
that is a party to such retail distribution agreement to (A) report the prices at which it sells to the 
public the unsold Series 2020 Bonds of each maturity allotted to it until it is notified by the 
Representative or the Underwriters that either the I 0% test has been satisfied as to Series 2020 
Bonds of that maturity or all Series 2020 Bonds of that maturity have been sold to the public and 
(B) comply with the hold-the-offe1ing-price rule, if applicable, in each case if and for so long as 
directed by the Representative or the Underwriters and as set forth in the related pricing wires. 

(e) The City acknowledges that, in making the representation set forth in this 
subsection, the Representative will rely on (i) the agreement of each Underwriter to comply with 
the hold-the-offering-price rule, as set forth in an agreement among nnderwriters and the related 
pricing wires, (ii) in the event a selling group has been created in connection with the initial sale 
of the Series 2020 Bonds to the public, the agreement of each dealer who is a member of the 
selling group to comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule, as set forth in a selling group 
agreement and the related pricing wires, and (iii) in the event that an Underwriter is a party to a 
retail distribution agreement that was employed in connection with the initial sale of the Series 
2020 Bonds to the public, the agreement of each broker-dealer that is a party to such agreement 
to comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule, as set forth in the retail distribution agreement and 
the related pricing wires. The City further acknowledges that each Underwriter shall be solely 
liable for its failure to comply with its agreement regarding the hold-the-offering-price rule and 
that no Underwriter shall be liable for the failure of any other Underwriter, or of any dealer who 
is a member of a selling group, or of any broker-dealer that is a party to a retail distribution 

- 7-



agreement, to comply with its conesponding agreement regarding the hold-the-offering-price rule 
as applicable to the Series 2020 Bonds. 

(f) The Underwriters acknowledge that sales of any Series 2020 Bonds to any person 
that is a related party to an Underwriter shall not constitute sales to the public for purposes of this 
section. Further, for purposes of this section: 

(i) "public" means any person (including an individnal, trust, estate, partnership, 
association, company or corporation) other than an unde1writer or a related party to an underwriter, 

(ii) "nnderwriter" means (A) any person that agrees pnrsuant to a written 
contract with the City (or with the lead nnderwriter to form an nnderwriting syndicate) to 
participate in the initial sale of Series 2020 Bonds to the public and (B) any person that agrees 
pnrsuant to a written contract directly or indirectly with a person described in clause (A) to 
participate in the initial sale of Series 2020 Bonds to the public (including a member of a selling 
group or a party to a retail distribution agreement participating in the initial sale of Series 2020 
Bonds to the public), 

(iii) a pnrchaser of any of the Series 2020 Bonds is a "related party" to an 
underwriter if the nnderwriter and the pnrchaser are subject, directly or indirectly, to (i) at least 
50% common ownership of the voting power or the total value of their stock, if both entities are 
corporations (including direct ownership by one corporation of another), (ii) more than 50% 
common ownership of their capital interests or profits interests, if both entities are partnerships 
(including direct ownership by one partnership of another), or (iii) more than 50% common 
ownership of the value of the outstanding stock of the corporation or the capital interests or profit 
interests of the partnership, as applicable, if one entity is a corporation and the other entity is a 
partnership (including direct ownership of the applicable stock or interests by one entity of the 
other), and 

(iv) "sale date" means the date of execution of this Purchase Agreement by all 
parties. 

Section 6. Good Faith Wire. Based on wire instructions previously provided to the 
Representative, the City hereby acknowledges, receipt of a wire transfer credited to the order of 
the City in immediately available federal funds in the amonnt of Dollars 
($ (the "Good Faith Wire") as secnrity for the performance by the Underwriters 
of their obligations to accept and pay for the Series 2020 Bonds at the Closing, subject to the 
terms of this Pnrchase Agreement. 

(a) If the City does not accept this offer, then the Good Faith Wire shall be immediately 
returned by the City to the Representative and this Pnrchase Agreement shall become null and 
void, and of no force or effect, without any other action by the parties hereto. If the City accepts 
this offer, the City agrees to hold the Good Faith Wire until the Closing Date and, subject to the 
terms set forth below, Good Faith Wire shall be applied towards the amount due from the 
Representative as payment of the Pnrchase Price for the Series 2020 Bonds at Closing. 

- 8-



(b) If the City fails for any reason (other than the Underwriters' non compliance with 
its obligations under this Purchase Agreement) to deliver the Series 2020 Bonds at the Closing, 
or if the City shall be unable to satisfy the conditions to the Underwriters' obligation contained 
in this Purchase Agreement (unless waived by the Representative), or if the Underwriters' 
obligations shall be terminated for any reason permitted by this Purchase Agreement, the Good 
Faith Wire shall be returned by the City to the Representative (without interest) and such return 
shall constitute a full release and discharge of all claims by the Underwriters and the City arising 
out of the transactions contemplated hereby, except that the City's obligations to pay those costs 
set forth in Section ll(a) hereof shall remain in full force and effect. 

(e) If the Underwriters fail (other than for a reason permitted by this Purchase 
Agreement) to accept delivery of and to pay for all of the Series 2020 Bonds at the Closing, the 
Good Faith Wire shall be retained by the City as and for full liquidated damages, and not as a 
penalty, for such failure and for any defaults hereunder on the part of the Unde1writers and such 
retention shall constitute a full release and discharge of all claims by the City and the Underwriters 
arising out of the transactions contemplated hereby, except that the Underwriters' obligation to pay 
those costs set forth in Section 11 (b) hereof shall remain in full force and effect. The 
Underwriters and the City each recognize that in such event the actual damages of the City may 
be greater or may be less than the amount of the Good Faith Wire. Accordingly, the Underwriters 
hereby waive any right to claim that the actual damages of the City are less than such sum and the 
acceptance of this offer by the City shall constitute a waiver of any right the City might otherwise 
have to additional damages from the Underwriters. 

Section 7. Representations, Warranties and Covenants of the City. By the City's 
acceptance hereof, it hereby represents, warrants and covenants to the Underwriters, as of the date 
of this Purchase Agreement (and it shall be a condition of the obligation of the Underwriters to 
purchase and accept delivery of the Series 2020 Bonds at the Closing that the City shall so 
represent and warrant as of the Closing Date), that: 

(a) The City is and will be as of the Closing Date a validly existing and lawful 
municipality of the State, with the powers and authority set forth in the Act. 

(b) The City duly adopted the Bond Resolution and the Series 2020 Resolution at 
meetings of the City Commission duly called and held by the City, and as of the date hereof the 
Bond Resolution and the Series 2020 Resolution have not been amended, modified or repealed in 
any material respect (other than as contemplated herein or as described in the Official Statement 
or with respect to the issuance of the Series 2020 Bonds) and are in full force and effect. 

(c) The Resolution duly and validly authorizes the issuance, sale and delivery of the 
Series 2020 Bonds and the execution and delivery of the City Documents (as defined in Section 
7 (d) hereof). 

(d) The City has full legal right, power and authority to consummate all transactions 
contemplated by this Purchase Agreement, the Resolution, the Continuing Disclosure Certificate 
(as defined in Section 9(b) hereof), the Escrow Deposit Agreement dated as of November 1, 2020 

- 9-



(the "Escrow Deposit Agreement") by and between the City and U.S. Bank National Association, 
as escrow agent, the Custody Agreement dated as ofNovembcr 1, 2020 by and between the City 
and U.S. Bank National Association, as custodian, [the Insurance Agreement dated November_, 
2020 by and between the City and the Series 2020 Insurer relating to the Series 2020 Bond 
Insurance Policy, the Agreement dated November _, 2020 by and between the City and the 
Series 2020 Insurer relating to the Reserve Account Letter of Credit I Reserve Account Insurance 
Policy delivered in connection with the issuance of the Series 2020 Bonds,] and any other 
agreements required to be executed by the City relating thereto (collectively, the "City 
Documents"). 

(e) The City is authorized to issue the Series 2020 Bonds for the purposes described 
in the Resolution. 

(f) The City duly and validly authorized all necessary actions to be taken by it for (i) 
the issuance, sale, and delivery of the Series 2020 Bonds upon the terms set forth herein, (ii) the 
execution, delivery, and performance of the City Documents, and (iii) the carrying out, giving 
effect to, and consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and by the City Documents, 
including, without limitation, the preparation of the Preliminary Official Statement and Official 
Statement and the consent to the distribution by the Underwriters of the Preliminary Official 
Statement and Official Statement. 

(g) The City Documents, when executed by the other parties thereto, if any, will have 
been duly and validly executed and delivered by the City and will be in full force and effect as to 
the City. 

(h) When delivered to and paid for by the Underwriters in accordance with the terms 
of this Purchase Agreement, the Series 2020 Bonds will be Bonds under the Bond Resolution. 

(i) The City will apply the proceeds of the Series 2020 Bonds in the manner described 
in the Official Statement and will not take or omit to take any action that will in any way cause 
or result in the proceeds of the sale of the Series 2020 Bonds to be applied in any material respect 
other than as described in the Official Statement. 

(j) Except as described in the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official 
Statement, there is no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation, at law or in equity before 
or by any court, govermnental agency, public board or body, pending or, to the best knowledge 
of the City, threatened which (i) may affect the existence of the City or the titles or rights of its 
officers to their respective offices, (ii) may affect or which seeks to prohibit, restrain or enjoin (A) 
the sale, issuance or delivery of the Series 2020 Bonds or (B) the collection or payment of the 
Pledged Funds or the pledge and assignment thereof by the City to make payments on the Series 
2020 Bonds, (iii) in any way contests or affects the validity or enforceability of any of the City 
Documents, (iv) contests in any way the completeness or accuracy of the Preliminary Official 
Statement or the Official Statement, (v) contests the powers of the City or, to the best knowledge 
of the City, any authority or proceedings for the issuance, sale or delivery of the Series 2020 
Bonds, the City Documents or any of them or the transactions contemplated thereby, nor, to the 

- 10-



best knowledge of the City, is there any basis therefor wherein an unfavorable decision, ruling or 
finding would materially adversely affect the validity or enforceability of the Series 2020 Bonds, 
the Resolution or any of the other City Documents, or (vi) if adversely determined against the City, 
would materially adversely impact the City's financial condition or operations or the Pledged 
Funds. 

(k) To the best of the City's knowledge, the execution and delivery of this Purchase 
Agreement and the other City Documents, and compliance with the provisions hereof and thereof, 
will not conflict with or constitute on the part of the City a violation or breach of, or a default 
under (i) any indenture, mortgage, lease, note agreement or other agreement or instrument to which 
the City is a party or by which the City is bound, or (ii) any constitutional provision, statute, order, 
rule or regulation of any court or governmental agency or body having jurisdiction over the City 
or any of its activities or properties. 

(I) All consents, approvals, authorizations and orders of governmental or regulatory 
authorities that are required to be obtained by the City in connection with the execution and 
delivery of this Purchase Agreement and the other City Documents, and the consummation of the 
transactions contemplated thereby, have been or will be, at Closing, duly obtained and in full force 
and effect. 

(m) (i) Other than the hereinafter defined Excluded Sections, the information contained 
in the Preliminary Official Statement is, and such information in the Official Statement as of its 
date and the Closing Date will be (and as the same may be supplemented or amended, consistent 
with Section 3( d) hereof) tme and correct in all material respects and does not and will not, as 
applicable, contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact which 
is necessary to make the statements contained therein, in the light of the circumstances under 
which they were made, not misleading, and (ii) notwithstanding the foregoing, the City has not 
provided the information in and does not provide any assurance that the information contained in 
the sections or appendices, as the case may be, captioned "DESCRIPTION OF THE 2020 BONDS 
- Book-Entry Only System," "UNDERWRITING" (bnt only with respect to the information 
contained therein provided by the Underwriters), "TAX MATTERS," and "APPENDIX C - FORM 
OF BOND COUNSEL OPINION" (collectively, the "Excluded Sections") in the Preliminary 
Official Statement and the Official Statement is tme and correct in all material respects; provided, 
however, that nothing has come to the attention of the City which would cause it to reasonably 
believe that anything contained in the Excluded Sections contains any untme statement of a 
material fact or omits to state a material fact which is necessary to make the statements contained 
therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading. 

(n) The City is not in breach of or default under any applicable law or admimstrative 
regulation of the State or any applicable judgment or decree or any agreement, indenture, note, 
bond or loan agreement to which the City is a party, which could materially adversely affect the 
ability of the City to perform its obligations under the City Documents. 

- 11 -



(o) Since December 31, 1975, the City has not been in default in the payment of the 
principal of, redemption premium, if any, or interest on any indebtedness issued or guaranteed by 
the City. 

(p) The City will cause the Registrar to authenticate and deliver the Series 2020 Bonds 
when ready for delivery. 

( q) Neither the SEC nor any state securities commission has issued or, to the best of 
the City's knowledge, threatened to issue any order preventing or suspending the use of the 
Preliminary Official Statement or the Official Statement or the offer, sale or delivery of the Series 
2020 Bonds. 

(r) Any certificate signed by any of the City's authorized officers and delivered to the 
Underwriters shall be deemed a representation and warranty by it to the Underwriters as to the 
statements made therein. 

(s) Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary in this Purchase Agreement, the City 
makes no representation or warranty with respect to compliance with applicable federal or state 
securities laws or Blue Sky laws of any jurisdiction in connection with the issuance and sale of 
the Series 2020 Bonds. 

Section 8. Closing. At or before 1:00 p.m., Eastem Standard Time, on November __ , 
2020, or at such other time or on such other date as shall have been mutually agreed upon by the 
City and the Representative (the "Closing Date"), (a) the City will deliver the Series 2020 Bonds 
to the Underwriters, in definitive form and duly executed and authenticated, in such authorized 
denominations and registered in such names as the Representative may request, through the FAST 
system of registration with The Depository Trust Company ("DTC"), New York, New York, at 
a place to be agreed upon by the City and the Representative, (b) the City will deliver to the 
Representative the closing documents hereinafter mentioned, and (c) the Underwriters will accept 
such delivery and pay the Purchase Price as set forth in Section 1 hereof by wire transfer of federal 
funds to the order of the "City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida" pursuant to the City's written 
instruction or as directed by the City for deposit in the various funds established under the Bond 
Resolution. Such delivery and such acceptance and payment are herein sometimes referred to as 
the "Closing." Delivery of the other documents as aforesaid shall be made at the offices of the 
City or at such other location as shall have been mutually agreed upon by the City and the 
Representative. The Series 2020 Bonds shall bear proper CUSIP numbers and shall be in 
typewritten fonn, with a single bond for each interest rate of the Series 2020 Bonds, each such 
bond to be in a principal amount equal to the principal amount thereof maturing on each maturity 
date. The Series 2020 Bonds shall be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, 
and will be made available for inspection by the Underwriters in the City not later than the 
Business Day prior to the Closing Date. 

Section 9. Conditions to Closing. The Unde1writers' obligation to purchase and pay for 
the Series 2020 Bonds shall be subject to (a) performance by the City of its obligations to be 
performed hereunder at and prior to the Closing or such earlier time as may be specified herein, 

- 12-



and (b) satisfaction of the following conditions, including the delivery by the City of such 
documents as are contemplated hereby in fmm and substance satisfactory to, and the taking of all 
such action as shall be necessary and appropriate in connection with the transactions contemplated 
hereby, in the opinion ofNabors, Giblin & Nickerson, P.A., Tampa, Florida ("Bond Counsel" and 
"Disclosure Counsel"), and Torcivia, Donlon & Goddeau, P.A., West Palm Beach, Florida 
("Issuer's Counsel"). 

(a) At the time of the Closing, the Resolution and each of the other City Documents 
shall be in full force and effect and shall not have been repealed or amended in any material way 
since the date of this Purchase Agreement, unless agreed to in writing by the Representative. 

(b) At or prior to the Closing, the Underwriters shall have received each of the 
following documents: 

(i) each of the following opinions of counsel: 

(A) the final approving opinion of Bond Counsel in substantially the 
fonn attached to the Official Statement as "APPENDIX C -FORM OF BOND COUNSEL 
OPINION" and a reliance letter to the Underwriters concerning same, 

(B) the supplemental opinion of Bond Counsel in substantially the form 
attached as EXHIBIT B to this Purchase Agreement, 

(C) the opinion of Bond Counsel relating to the defeasance of the 
Refunded Indebtedness (as defined in the Official Statement) and a reliance letter to the 
Underwriters concerning same, 

(D) the opinion ofissuer's Counsel in substantially the form attached as 
EXHIBIT C to this Purchase Agreement, 

(E) the opinion of Disclosure Counsel in substantially the form attached 
as EXHIBIT D to this Purchase Agreement and a reliance letter to the Underwriters 
concerning same, and 

(F) the opinion of the Law Offices of Steve E. Bullock, P.A., Miami, 
Florida ("Underwriters' Counsel") covering such matters as the Representative may 
reasonably request, 

(ii) the Preliminary Official Statement, the Official Statement and each 
supplement or amendment, if any, thereto, in accordance with Section 3 of this Purchase 
Agreement, 

(iii) a certificate, signed by the Mayor and the Clerk (or any other Authorized 
Issuer Officers), dated the date of the Preliminary Official Statement, deeming the Preliminary 
Official Statement "final" for purposes of the Rule, 

- 13 -



(iv) a certificate, dated the Closing Date, signed by the Mayor (or any other 
Authorized Issuer Officer), to the effect that as of such date, no action, suit, proceeding inquily 
or investigation, at law or in equity before or by any court governmental agency or public body 
is pending or, to the best knowledge of the City, threatened (A) challenging the creation, 
organization or existence of the City or the titles or rights of its officers to their respective offices, 
or (B) seeking to prohibit, restrain, enjoin, or otherwise contest the sale, issuance or delivery of 
the Series 2020 Bonds or any portion thereof, or the collection of Pledged Funds, or the pledge 
of any portion thereof, or (C) in any way contesting or affecting the validity or enforceability of 
the Series 2020 Bonds, any of the City Documents, or the power of the City to issue the Series 
2020 Bonds, to use the Pledged Funds in the manner contemplated in the City Documents to adopt 
the Bond Resolution or the Series 2020 Resolution, or (D) contesting in any way the completeness 
or accuracy of the Preliminary Official Statement or the Official Statement or (E) in which a final 
unfavorable decision, mling or finding is likely to materially adversely affect the financial 
condition or operations of the City or the Pledged Funds, or the validity or enforceability of the 
Series 2020 Bonds or any of the City Documents or the transactions contemplated thereby (except 
to the extent disclosed or refened to in the Official Statement); provided, however, that the City 
may, in the alternative, and in its sole discretion, provide an opinion of Counsel to the City in lieu 
of any one or more of the certifications required by clauses (A) through (E), and in the case of any 
such opinion to be rendered by Counsel to the City, such opinion(s) shall be included in the 
opinion of Issuer's Counsel, the form of which is attached as EXHIBIT C to this Purchase 
Agreement, 

(v) a certificate, dated the Closing Date, signed by the Mayor (or any other 
Authorized Issuer Officer) to the effect that, to the best of his or her knowledge, (A) the 
representations and warranties of the City contained in this Purchase Agreement are true and 
conect in all material respects on and as of the time of the Closing as if made at the time of the 
Closing; and (B) the statements described in the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official 
Statement (except with respect to the Excluded Sections, as to which no certification needs to be 
provided) did not, as of their respective dates, and do not as of the Closing Date, contain any 
untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact which should be included therein 
for the purpose for which the Official Statement is used, and which is necessary in order to make 
the statements contained therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not 
misleading, 

(vi) certified copies of the Bond Resolution and the Series 2020 Resolution, 

(vii) an executed copy of (A) the Continuing Disclosure Certificate of the City, 
dated the Closing Date, in substantially the form attached to the Official Statement as 
"APPENDIX E -FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE" (the "Continuing 
Disclosure Certificate"), and (B) each of the other City Documents, 

(viii) an executed copy of the (A) Tax Certificate executed by the City relating 
to the exclusion from gross income for federal income tax purposes of interest on the Series 2020 
Bonds, and (B) Internal Revenue Service Form 8038-G with respect to the Series 2020 Bonds, as 
completed for filing, 

- 14-



(ix) a request and authorization of the City signed by the Mayor (or any other 
Authorized Issuer Officer) to the Registrar to authenticate and deliver the Series 2020 Bonds to 
such person or persons named therein upon payment to or for the account of the City of the 
Purchase Price, net of the Good Faith Wire [and any amount paid directly to the Series 2020 
Insurer, at the direction of the City, to provide for payment of the premium for any Series 2020 
Bond Insurance Policy, the Reserve Account Letter of Credit or the Reserve Account Insurance 
Policy obtained in cormection with the issuance of the Series 2020 Bonds], 

(x) a copy of the City's DTC Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations, 

(xi) an executed copy of the report from --:----c-::--:--:------=--=-
addressed to the Underwriters, to the effect that such finn has verified the accuracy of the 
computations relating to the sufficiency of the cash and Federal Securities deposited under the 
Escrow Deposit Agreement to defease the Refunded Indebtedness, 

(xii) a copy of the executed certifications from the Registrar, Paying Agent and 
Escrow Agent, dated the Closing Date, to the effect that the Registrar, Paying Agent and Escrow 
Agent (i) is a national banking association, duly organized and validly existing under the laws of 
the United States of America and authorized to do business in the State, (ii) has duly accepted its 
duties under the Resolution and each of the City Documents to which it is a party, (iii) has taken 
all necessary corporate action required to act in its role as Registrar, Paying Agent and Escrow 
Agent under the Resolution and each of the City Documents to which it is a party, and (iv) has 
duly executed and delivered each of the City Documents to which it is a party, 

(xiii) one executed copy of the report ofStantec Consulting Services Inc., as the 
consulting engineers for the System in connection with the issuance of the Series 2020 Bonds (the 
"Consulting Engineer"), included as an appendix to the Preliminary Official Statement and the 
Official Statement (the "Consulting Engineer's Report"), 

(xiv) a certificate, dated the date of the Closing, signed by an authorized officer 
of the Consulting Engineer stating (A) that the Consulting Engineer consents to the inclusion of 
the Consulting Engineer's Report in the Preliminary Official Statement and in the Official 
Statement and to references to such finn contained in the Preliminary Official Statement and in 
the Official Statement, (B) that the information in the Preliminary Official and the Official 
Statement relating to the Consulting Engineer, the Consulting Engineer's Report, and the electric 
utility portion of the System, is accurate in all material respects and does not omit any matter that 
should be included therein or that is necessary to make the statements made therein regarding such 
matters, in light of the circumstances under which such statements are made, not misleading, and 
(C) such other matters as the Underwriters may reasonably require, 

(xv) one executed copy of the report of Stantec Consulting Services Inc., as the 
feasibility consultants for the System in cormection with the issuance of the Series 2020 Bonds 
(the "Feasibility Consultant"), included as an appendix to the Preliminary Official Statement and 
the Official Statement (the "Feasibility Report"), 

- 15-



(xvi) a certificate, dated the date of the Closing, signed by an authorized officer 
of the Feasibility Consultant stating (A) that the Feasibility Consultant consents to the inclusion 
of the Feasibility Report in the Preliminary Official Statement and in the Official Statement and 
to references to the Feasibility Consultant contained in the Preliminary Official Statement and in 
the Official Statement, (B) that the information in the Preliminary Official Statement and the 
Official Statement relating to the Feasibility Consultant, the Feasibility Report and the System, is 
accurate in all material respects and does not omit any matter that should be included therein or 
that is necessary to make the statements made therein regarding such matters, in light of the 
circumstances under which such statements arc made, not misleading, and (C) such other matters 
as the Underwriters may reasonably require, 

(xvii) evidence of[ratings on the Insured Series 2020 Bonds by Moody's Investors 
Service, Inc. ("Moody's") and S&P Global Ratings, a division of Standard & Poor's Financial 
Services LLC ("S&P"), based on the Series 2020 Bond Insurance Policy, of " __ ," with a 
" outlook," and " __ ," with a " outlook," respectively, and] 
underlying ratings on the Series 2020 Bonds by Moody's and S&P, without regard to the Series 
2020 Bond Insurance Policy, of" __ ," with a " outlook," and " __ ," with a 
" outlook," respectively, 

[(xviii) a copy, in standard form and substance, of the executed (A) Series 2020 
Bond Insurance Policy, (B) Reserve Account Letter of Credit I Reserve Account Insurance Policy 
to satisfy the Reserve Account Requirement for the Series 2020 Bonds, and (C) certificates of 
officers of the Series 2020 Insurer relating to the delivery of such instruments,] 

[(xix) an opinion of counsel to the Series 2020 Insurer, dated the Closing Date and 
addressed to the City and the Underwriters, or a certificate of a duly authorized officer of the 
Series 2020 Insurer, relating to (A) the corporate status of the Series 2020 Insurer and its eligibility 
for relief under federal bankruptcy laws, (B) the authority of the Series 2020 Insurer to issue the 
Series 2020 Bond Insurance Policy and the Reserve Account Letter of Credit I Reserve Account 
Insurance Policy and the enforceability of such instruments, and (C) the statements contained in 
the Official Statement relating to the Series 2020 Insurer, the Series 2020 Bond Insurance Policy 
and the Reserve Account Letter of Credit I Reserve Account Insurance Policy,] 

[(xx) such additional legal opinions and certificates as may be required by the 
Series 2020 Insurer in its commitment to issue the Series 2020 Bond Insurance Policy or the 
Reserve Account Letter of Credit I Reserve Account Insurance Policy, and] 

(xxi) such additional legal opinions, certificates, instruments and other documents 
as the Underwriters may reasonably require to evidence the accuracy or completeness, as of the 
date hereof and as of the Closing Date, of the representations and warranties contained herein and 
of the statements and information contained in the Preliminary Official Statement or in the Official 
Statement and the due performance or satisfaction on or prior to the Closing Date of the 
agreements then to be performed or conditions then to be satisfied by the City. 

- 16-



(c) All of the opinions, letters, certificates, instruments and other documents mentioned 
in this Purchase Agreement shall be deemed to be in compliance with the provisions of this 
Purchase Agreement if, and only if, in the reasonable judgment of the Underwriters and 
Underwriters' Counsel, they are satisfactory in form and substance. 

Section 10. Termination of Purchase Agreement. The Underwriters shall have the right 
to cancel the obligation to purchase and accept delivery of the Series 2020 Bonds hereunder by 
written notification from the Representative to the City of the election to cancel if at any time 
subsequent to the date of this Purchase Agreement and prior to the Closing Date if: 

(a) trading in securities generally on the New York Stock Exchange shall have been 
suspended or minimum or maximum prices for trading shall have been fixed and be in force, or 
maximum ranges for prices for securities shall have been required and be in force on the New 
York Stock Exchange, whether by virtue of a determination by that exchange or by order of the 
SEC or any other govermnental authority having jurisdiction, or 

(b) a general banking moratorium shall have been declared by federal, New York or 
Florida banking authorities and be in force, which in the reasonable opinion ofthe Representative 
materially adversely affects the market price or marketability of the Series 2020 Bonds or the 
ability of the Underwriters to enforce confirmations for the purchase, at the contemplated offering 
prices, of the Series 2020 Bonds, or 

(c) there shall have occurred any outbreak or escalation of hostilities, declaration by 
the United States of a national emergency or war or other calamity or crisis (including terrorism) 
the effect of which on financial markets is such as to, in the reasonable opinion of the 
Representative, materially adversely affect the market price or marketability of the Series 2020 
Bonds or the ability of the Underwriters to enforce confirmations for the purchase, at the 
contemplated offering prices, of the Series 2020 Bonds, or 

(d) legislation shall have been enacted by the Congress of the United States or the 
legislature of the State or shall have been favorably reported out of committee of either body or 
be pending in committee of either body, or shall have been recommended to the Congress for 
passage by the President of the United States or a member of the President's Cabinet, or a decision 
shall have been rendered by a court of the United States or the State or the Tax Court of the 
United States, or a ruling, resolution, regulation or temporary regulation, release or announcement 
shall have been made or shall have been proposed to be made by the Treasury Department of the 
United States or the Internal Revenue Service, or other federal or state authority with appropriate 
jurisdiction, with respect to federal or state taxation upon interest received on obligations of the 
general character of the Series 2020 Bonds as contemplated hereby which, in the reasonable 
opinion of the Representative, materially and adversely affects the market price or marketability 
of the Series 2020 Bonds or the ability of the Underwriters to enforce confirmations for the 
purchase, at the contemplated offering prices, of the Series 2020 Bonds, or 

(e) a decision by a court of the United States shall be rendered, or a stop order, ruling, 
regulation, release or no-action letter by or on behalf of the SEC or any other governmental agency 

- 17-



having jurisdiction over the subject matter shall be issued or made to the effect that the issuance, 
offering or sale of the Series 2020 Bonds, or of obligations of the same general character as the 
Series 2020 Bonds as contemplated hereby, or any document relating to the issuance, offering or 
sale of the Series 2020 Bonds is subject to registration or qualification under the Securities Act 
of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), or the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended (the 
"Trust Indenture Act"), or is or would be in violation of any provision of either of such acts or the 
Exchange Act, or 

(f) legislation shall have been enacted by the Congress of the United States or shall 
have been favorably reported out of committee or be pending in committee, or shall have been 
recommended to the Congress for passage by the President of the United States or a member of 
the President's Cabinet, or a decision by a court of the United States shall be rendered, or a ruling, 
regulation, proposed regulation or statement by or on behalf of the SEC or other governmental 
agency having jurisdiction of the subject matter shall be made, to the effect that any obligations 
of the general character of the Series 2020 Bonds, the Resolution, or any comparable securities 
of the City, are not exempt from the registration, qualification or other requirements of the 
Securities Act or the Trust Indenture Act or otherwise, or would be in violation of any provision 
of the federal securities laws, or 

(g) an event or circumstance shall exist which, in the reasonable judgment of the 
Representative (i) makes untrue or incorrect in any material respect, as of the time of such event, 
any statement of information contained in the Official Statement or (ii) would cause a material 
omission from the information contained in the Official Statement and which information should 
be reflected therein in order to make the statements and information contained therein, in light of 
the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading in any mate1ial respect, or 

(h) the purchase of and payment for the Series 2020 Bonds by the Underwriters, or their 
resale or reoffering by the Underwriters, on the terms and conditions contemplated by this 
Purchase Agreement and the Official Statement, is prohibited by any applicable law or 
governmental regulation or by order of any court, govemmental body, board, agency, or 
cormnission, or 

(i) any of the ratings or outlook on the Series 2020 Bonds, or any outstanding 
obligations having a parity lien on Net Revenues with the lien on Net Revenues in favor of the 
Series 2020 Bonds, shall have been withdrawn, downgraded or suspended, or 

(j) additional material restrictions not in force on the date of this Purchase Agreement 
shall have been imposed on trading in securities generally by a governmental authority, or 

(k) any litigation shall be instituted, pending or threatened to restrain or enjoin the 
issuance or sale of the Series 2020 Bonds or in any way protesting or affecting any authority for 
or the validity of the Series 2020 Bonds, or any of the City Documents or the transactions 
contemplated thereby, or the existence or powers of the City or the System, or 

- 18-



(I) any material amendment is made to the Official Statement pursuant to Section 3( d) 
of this Purchase Agreement which, in the reasonable judgment of the Underwriters, will materially 
adversely affect the market price or marketability of the Series 2020 Bonds or the ability of the 
Underwriters to enforce confirmations for the purchase, at the contemplated offering prices, of the 
Series 2020 Bonds. 

Section 11. Expenses. 

(a) Except as provided in paragraph (b) below, the City shall pay any expenses incident 
to the performance of its obligations hereunder, including but not limited to: (i) the cost of the 
preparation, reproduction, printing, distribution, mailing, execution, delivery, filing and recording, 
as the case may be, of the City Documents and all other agreements and instruments required in 
com1ection with the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby, (ii) the cost of the 
preparation, engraving, printing, execution and delivery of the defmitive Series 2020 Bonds, (iii) 
the fees and disbursements of Bond Counsel, Issuer's Counsel, Disclosure Counsel, and any other 
experts retained by the City, (iv) the initial or acceptance fee of the Registrar, Paying Agent and 
Escrow Agent, (v) any fees charged by investment rating agencies for the rating of the Series 2020 
Bonds, and (vi) any expenses (included in the expense component of the Underwriters' discount) 
incurred by the Representative on behalf of the City in com1ection with the marketing, issuance 
and delivery of the Series 2020 Bonds, including, but not limited to, meals, transportation, and 
lodging, of the City's employees and representatives, approved in advance by the City; provided, 
however, that the City shall have no obligation to pay any expenses of the Representative in the 
event the Underwriters fail (other than for a reason permitted by this Purchase Agreement) to 
accept delivery of and pay for all of the Series 2020 Bonds at Closing. Notwithstanding anything 
in this Purchase Agreement to the contrary, the City's obligation to pay expenses shall be limited 
to amounts available to it from the proceeds of the sale of the Series 2020 Bonds; provided, 
however, that in the event of an instance under Section 6(b) hereof when the City fails for any 
reason (other than each of the Underwriters' non compliance with its obligations under this 
Purchase Agreement), to deliver the Series 2020 Bonds at the Closing, the City's obligation to pay 
expenses under this Section ll(a) shall not be limited to amounts available to it from the proceeds 
of the sale of the Series 2020 Bonds. 

(b) The Underwriters shall pay (from the expense component of the Underwriters' 
discount), to the extent not included in item (vi) in paragraph (a) above, (i) the cost of qualifying 
the Series 2020 Bonds under state blue sky laws and determining their eligibility for investment 
under the laws of such jurisdictions as the Underwriters may designate, including filing fees and 
fees and disbursements of Underwriters' Counsel in com1ection with such qualification and 
detennination and the review of such laws, (ii) the cost of preparing and publishing all 
advertisements relating to the Series 2020 Bonds upon commencement of the offering of the Series 
2020 Bonds, (iii) the cost of the transportation and lodging for officials and representatives of the 
Representative to attend meetings and the Closing, (iv) all other expenses incurred by the 
Underwriters in coilllection with the public offering and distribution of the Series 2020 Bonds, 
including without limitation, the cost of preparing the Underwriters' documents, (v) any fees of 
the MSRB in com1ection with the issuance, offering or sale of the Series 2020 Bonds, and (vi) the 
cost of obtaining a CUSIP number assignment for the Series 2020 Bonds. Notwithstanding 

- 19-



anything in this Purchase Agreement to the contrary, the portion of the expense component of the 
Underwriters' discount representing the fees and expenses ofUnderwriters' Counsel shall be netted 
from the expense component of the Underwriters' discount at Closing and included in the costs 
paid by the City in connection with the issuance of the Series 2020 Bonds. 

Section 12. Successors and Assigns. This Purchase Agreement shall inure to the benefit 
of and be binding upon the City and the Underwriters and their successors and assigns. Nothing 
in this Purchase Agreement is intended or shall be construed to give any person, fitm or 
corporation, other than the parties hereto and their successors and assigns, any legal or equitable 
right, remedy or claim under or in respect of this Purchase Agreement or any provision herein 
contained. This Purchase Agreement and all conditions and provisions hereof are intended to be 
for the sole and exclusive benefit of the parties hereto and their successors and assigns, and not 
for the benefit of any other person, firm or corporation. No purchaser of the Series 2020 Bonds 
from the Underwriters or any other persons or entity shall be deemed to be a successor merely by 
reason of such purchase. 

Section 13. Notices. All notices, demands and formal actions required or permitted to be 
given pursuant to the terms of this Purchase Agreement shall be in writing sent by United States 
certified mail, return receipt requested, by a nationally recognized ovemight courier, or hand 
delivered, and shall be deemed to have been given upon receipt by the party notified. Infonnation 
for the delivery of notice (until a change in such information is delivered as provided in this 
Section 13) shall be as follows: 

If to the City: 

With a copy to: 

If to the Underwriters: 

City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida 
7 North Dixie Highway 
Lake Worth Beach, Florida 33460 
Attention: Director of Finance 
Telephone: (561) 586-1654 

City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida 
7 North Dixie Highway 
Lake Worth Beach, Florida 33460 
Attention: City Attorney 
Telephone: (561) 586-1659 

Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC 
2825 University Drive, Suite 400 
Coral Springs, Florida 33065 
Attention: J.W. Howard, Executive Director 
Telephone: (954) 509-3532 

The City and the Underwriters may, by notice given under this Purchase Agreement, 
designate other addresses and telephone numbers to which notices or other communications shall 
be directed. 

-20-



Section 14. Representations and Warranties of the Underwriters. The Representative, 
on behalf of itself and, based solely on representations of the other Underwriter, the other 
Undetwriter, represents and warrants to the City that: 

(a) the Underwriters are duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under 
the laws of the jurisdiction of their respective organization and are duly authorized to transact 
business in the State, 

(b) the Underwriters are duly authorized to authorize the Representative to execute this 
Purchase Agreement, 

(c) the Underwriters have the full power and authority to take all actions required or 
permitted to be taken by them hereunder, and to perform and observe the covenants and 
agreements on their part contained in this Purchase Agreement, 

(d) this Purchase Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by the 
Representative, 

(e) each of the Underwriters represents that it is registered with the Financial Industry 
Regulatory Authority, Inc. ("FINRA") as a broker dealer and the MSRB as a municipal securities 
dealer, or is otherwise registered with the necessary regulatory authorities required for it to serve 
as an Underwriter with respect to the Series 2020 Bonds, and that at all times during the offering 
and sale of the Series 2020 Bonds, the Underwriters will continue to be so registered, and 

(f) to the best knowledge of the Representative, each of the Underwriters is in 
compliance with the rules and regulations of FINRA and the MSRB (to the extent it is regulated 
by FINRA and the MSRB) and any other body which regulates it which would adversely affect 
the transactions contemplated hereby or by the Official Statement or the validity and legality of 
this Purchase Agreement or the Official Statement. 

Section 15. Waiver. Notwithstanding any provtston herein to the contrary, the 
performance of any and all obligations of the Underwriters hereunder and the performance of any 
and all conditions contained herein for the benefit of the Underwriters may be waived by the 
Representative, in its sole discretion, and the approval of each of the Underwriters when required 
hereunder or the determination of its satisfaction as to any document referred to herein shall be 
in writing, signed by an authorized signatory of the Representative. 

Section 16. Entire Agreement; Miscellaneous. This Purchase Agreement constitutes the 
entire agreement between the parties hereto with respect to the matters covered hereby and 
supersedes all prior agreements and understandings between the parties. This Purchase Agreement 
may not be amended, supplemented or modified without the written consent of the City and the 
Representative. None of the officers, directors, employees or agents of the parties to this Purchase 
Agreement shall be charged personally with any liability, or be held liable under any term or 
provision of this Purchase Agreement because of its execution or attempted execution, or because 
of any breach or attempted or alleged breach thereof. The validity, interpretation and performance 

- 21 -



of this Purchase Agreement shall be govemed by the intemallaws of the State, without regard to 
conflict of law principles. 

Section 17. Survival of Warranties. All the representations, warranties and agreements 
of the Underwriters and the City in this Purchase Agreement shall remain operative and in full 
force and effect and shall survive delivery of and payment for the Series 2020 Bonds, regardless 
of any investigation made by or on behalf of the City or the Underwriters. 

Section 18. Severability. If any provision of this Purchase Agreement shall be held or 
deemed to be or shall, in fact, be inoperative or unenforceable as applied in any particular case in 
any jurisdiction or jurisdictions or in all jurisdictions, or in all cases because it conflicts with any 
other provision or provisions hereof or any constitutional or statutory provision or provisions or 
mle of law or public policy, or for any other reason, such circumstance shall not have the effect 
of rendering the provision in question inoperative or unenforceable in any other case or 
circumstance, or of rendering any other provision or provisions herein contained, or portion 
thereof, invalid, inoperative, or unenforceable. The invalidity of any one or more phrases, 
sentences, clauses or sections contained in this Purchase Agreement, shall not affect the remaining 
portions of this Purchase Agreement, or any part thereof. 

Section 19. Headings. The headings of the sections of this Purchase Agreement are 
inserted for convenience of reference only and shall not be deemed to be part of this Purchase 
Agreement nor affect the meaning, construction or effect hereof. 

Section 20. Counterparts. This Purchase Agreement may be executed by any one or 
more of the parties hereto in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an 
original, but all such counterparts shall together constitute one and the same instrument. 

Section 21. Effective Date. This Purchase Agreement shall become effective upon 
acceptance hereof by the City. 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

SIGNATURES TO FOLLOW] 

-22-



SIGNATURE PAGE TO 
BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

$ ___ _ 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA 
CONSOLIDATED UTILITY REVENUE BONDS 

SERIES2020 

Very truly yours, 

MORGAN STANLEY & CO. LLC, 
as Representative on behalf of itself and 
the Underwriters 

By: 
~~~~~~~~~--
J.W. HOWARD, Executive Director 

[SIGNATURES CONTINUED ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 

- 23 -



SIGNATURE PAGE TO 
BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

$-,------c::-==--:-
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA 

CONSOLIDATED UTILITY REVENUE BONDS 
SERIES2020 

Accepted and agreed to as of 
the date first above written. 

(SEAL) 

ATTEST: 

DEBORAH M. ANDREA, CMC, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

NABORS, GIBLIN & NICKERSON, P.A. 

-24-

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, 
FLORIDA 

By: ______________________ __ 
PAM TRIOLO, Mayor 



Maturity 
(October I) 

2021 

2022 

2023 

2024 

2025 

2026 

2027 

2028 

2029 

2030 

2031 
2032 

2033 

2034 

2035 

2036 

2037 

2038 

2039 

2040 

2041 

2042 

2043 

2044 

2045 

2046 

2047 

2048 

2049 

2050 

SCHEDULE I 

$. ___ _ 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA 
CONSOLIDATED UTILITY REVENUE BONDS 

SERIES 2020 

Principal 
Amount 

$ 

Interest 
Rate 

% 

Yield 

% 

Price 



REDEMPTION PROVISIONS 

Optional Redemption 

General. The Series 2020 Bonds maturing on and prior to October 1, __ are not subject 
to optional redemption prior to maturity. The Series 2020 Bonds maturing on and after October 
1, __ are subject to redemption at the option of the City on and after October I, __ in 
whole or in part at any time, in such marmer as shall be determined by the City and within a 
maturity in such manner as determined by the City or at its direction the Paying Agent, at a 
redemption price (plus accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption) equal to the principal 
amount thereof and without premium. 

Mandatory Redemption 

The Series 2020 Bonds maturing on October 1, __ are subject to mandatory sinking 
fund redemption, prior to maturity in part by lot on October 1, __ and each October 1 
thereafter at a redemption price equal to the principal amount thereof being so redeemed and 
accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption, without premium, from Sinking Fund 
Installments in the amounts set forth below: 

Year 

* 

Principal Amount 

$ 

* Final Maturity. 

Schedule I-2 



SCHEDULE II 

$ ____ _ 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA 
CONSOLIDATED UTILITY REVENUE BONDS 

SERIES 2020 

DISCLOSURE STATEMENT 

City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida 
7 North Dixie Highway 
Lake Worth Beach, Florida 33460 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

October __ , 2020 

In connection with the proposed issuance of the above-captioned bonds (the "Series 2020 
Bonds"), Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC (the "Representative"), on behalf of itself and the other 
underwriter listed in paragraph (e) hereof (collectively, the "Underwriters"), has agreed to 
underwrite a public offering of the Series 2020 Bonds, subject to the terms and conditions set forth 
in the Bond Purchase Agreement, dated October __ , 2020, between the City and the 
Representative, on behalf of the Underwriters (the "Purchase Agreement"). All capitalized 
undefined tenns used herein shall have the meaning ascribed to them in the Purchase Agreement. 

The purpose of this letter is to furnish, pursuant to the provisions of Sections 218.385(2), 
(3) and (6), Florida Statutes, as amended, certain information in respect to the arrangement 
contemplated for the underwriting of the Series 2020 Bonds as follows: 

(a) The nature and estimated amount of expenses to be incurred by the Underwriters 
in connection with the issuance of the Series 2020 Bonds are set forth on Exhibit A attached 
hereto. 

(b) There are no "fmders," as that term is defined in Section 218.386, Florida Statutes, 
connected with the issuance of the Series 2020 Bonds. 

(c) The amount of underwriting spread, including the management fee, expected to be 
realized is as follows: 

Schedule II-1 



* 

Average Takedown 

Underwriters' Expenses 

Underwriting Spread* 

Totals may not add due to rounding. 

Per $1,000 

$ 

$== 

Dollar Amount 

$ 

$.== 

(d) No other fee, bonus or other compensation is estimated to be paid by the 
Underwriters in connection with the issuance of the Series 2020 Bonds to any person not regularly 
employed or retained by the Underwriters, except as described in Exhibit A attached hereto. 

(e) The names and addresses of the Underwriters are set forth below: 

Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC 
2825 University Drive, Suite 400 
Coral Springs, Florida 33065 

Raymond James & Associates, Inc. 
880 Carillon Parkway, Third Floor 
St. Petersburg, Florida 33716 

As set forth in the Official Statement, the City is proposing to issue $ of the 
Series 2020 Bonds to provide funds to (i) finance the acquisition, construction and equipping of 
certain improvements and additions to the consolidated electric, water and sewer utility system 
currently owned and operated by the City (the "System"), (ii) [together with other legally available 
funds,] repay certain existing indebtedness incurred for the benefit of the System, (iii) deposit 
[cash I a Reserve Account Letter of Credit I a Reserve Account Insurance Policy) to satisfy the 
Reserve Account Requirement for the Series 2020 Bonds; and (iv) pay the costs of issuance of the 
Series 2020 Bonds [(including the premium for the municipal bond insurance policy and the 
Reserve Account Letter of Credit I Reserve Account Insurance Policy to be obtained in connection 
with the issuance of the Series 2020 Bonds. As set forth in the Official Statement, the Series 2020 
Bonds are expected to be repaid over a period of approximately L_) years. At 
a true interest cost rate of approximately % total interest paid over the life of the 
Series 2020 Bonds will be $ ______ _ 

As set forth in the Official Statement, the Series 2020 Bonds are limited obligations ofthe 
City, payable solely from and secured equally and ratably by a lien on and pledge of the Net 
Revenues of the System and other amounts in the funds and accounts created under the Bond 
Resolution pursuant to which the Series 2020 Bonds are issued, to the extent such amounts 
constitute Pledged Funds under such Bond Resolution. Assuming the true interest cost rate 
provided above, authorizing the Series 2020 Bonds will result in approximately 
$ of Net Revenues of the System not being available to finance the other 
services of the City each year for approximately L_) years. 

Schedule II-2 



SIGNATURE PAGE FOR DISCLOSURE STATEMENT TO 
BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

$___,--,----
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA 

CONSOLIDATED UTILITY REVENUE BONDS 
SERIES 2020 

We understand that the City does not require any further disclosure from the Underwriters 
pursuant to Sections 218.385(2), (3) and (6), Florida Statutes, as amended. 

Very truly yours, 

MORGAN STANLEY & CO. LLC, 
as Representative on behalf of itself and 
the Underwriters 

By:~----------------------
J.W. HOWARD, Executive Director 

Schedule II-3 



EXHIBIT A 
to 

SCHEDULE II 

ESTIMATED EXPENSES TO BE INCURRED BY THE UNDERWRITERS 

Per $1,000 Dollar Amount 

Underwriters' Counsel $ $ 

iPreo Bookrunning Expenses 

iPreo EOE (Gameday) 

iPreo Wire Charge 

CUSIP Fee 

DTC 

Day Loan 

Miscellaneous 

TOTAL $ $ 

Exhibit A to Schedule 11 



EXHIBIT A 

FORM OF ISSUE PRICE CERTIFICATE 

$ ___ _ 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA 
CONSOLIDATED UTILITY REVENUE BONDS 

SERIES 2020 

The undersigned, on behalf of Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC (the "Representative"), on 
behalf of itself and Raymond James & Associates, Inc. (collectively, the "Underwriters") hereby 
certifies as set forth below with respect to the sale and issuance of the above-captioned obligations 
(the "Series 2020 Bonds"). 

1. Sale of the 10% Maturities. As of the date of this Certificate, for each Maturity 
of the I 0% Maturities, the first price at which a Substantial Amount of such Maturity of the 10% 
Maturities was sold to the Public is the respective price listed in Schedule A. 

2. Initial Offering Price of the Undersold Maturities. 

(a) The Underwriters offered the Undersold Maturities to the Public for purchase at the 
respective initial offering prices listed in Schedule A (the "Initial Offering Prices") on or before 
the Sale Date. A copy of the pricing wire or equivalent communication for the Series 2020 Bonds 
is attached to this Certificate as Schedule B. 

(b) As set forth in the Bond Purchase Agreement dated October __ , 2020 between 
the Underwriters and the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida (the "City"), the Underwriters have 
agreed in writing that, for each Maturity of the Undersold Maturities, they would neither offer nor 
sell any of the unsold Series 2020 Bonds of such Maturity to any person at a price that is higher 
than the Initial Offering Price for such Maturity during the Offering Period for such Maturity, nor 
would they permit a related party to do so. Pursuant to such agreement, none of the Underwriters 
have either offered or sold any unsold Series 2020 Bonds in a Maturity of the Undersold 
Maturities at a price that is higher than the Initial Offering Price for that Maturity of the Series 
2020 Bonds during the Offering Period. 

3. Defined Terms. 

(a) "10% Maturities" means those Maturities of the Series 2020 Bonds shown in 
Schedule A hereto as the "1 0% Maturities." 

(b) "Maturity" means Series 2020 Bonds with the same credit and payment terms. 
Series 2020 Bonds with different maturity dates, or Series 2020 Bonds with the same maturity date 
but different stated interest rates, are treated as separate maturities. 



(c) "Offering Period" means, with respect to an Undersold Maturity, the period starting 
on the Sale Date and ending on the earlier of (i) the close of the fifth (5'h) business day after the 
Sale Date (October , 2020), or (ii) the date on which the Underwriters have sold a Substantial 
Amount of such Undersold Maturity to the Public at a price that is no higher than the Initial 
Offering Price for such Undersold Maturity. 

(d) "Public" means any person (including an individnal, trust, estate, partnership, 
association, company, or corporation) other than a Regnlatory Underwriter or a related party to a 
Regulatory Underwriter. The term "related party" for purposes of this Certificate generally means 
any two (2) or more persons who have greater than fifty percent (50%) common ownership, 
directly or indirectly. 

(e) "Regulatory Underwriter" means (i) any person that agrees pursuant to a written 
contract with the City (or with the lead underwriter to form an underwriting syndicate) to 
participate in the initial sale of the Series 2020 Bonds to the Public, and (ii) any person that agrees 
pursuant to a written contract directly or indirectly with a person described in clause (i) of this 
paragraph to participate in the initial sale of the Series 2020 Bonds to the Public (including a 
member of a selling group or a party to a retail distribution agreement participating in the initial 
sale of the Series 2020 Bonds to the Public). 

(f) "Sale Date" means the first day on which there is a binding contract in writing for 
the sale of a Maturity of the Series 2020 Bonds. The Sale Date of the Series 2020 Bonds is 
October , 2020. 

(g) "Substantial Amount" means ten percent (10%). 

(h) "Undersold Maturities" means those Maturities of the Series 2020 Bonds shown in 
Schedule A hereto as the "Undersold Maturities." 

We have performed these calculations with the express understanding and agreement of 
the City and Nabors, Giblin & Nickerson, P.A., as Bond Counsel to the City ("Bond Counsel") 
that, notwithstanding the performance of these calculations and the delivery of this letter, (i) in 
doing so we are not acting as a Municipal Advisor (as defined in Section 15B of the Securities 
Exchange Act); (ii) we do not have a fiduciary duty to the City, and (iii) we are not to be 
construed as a "paid preparer'' of any tax returns of the City, including specifically (but not limited 
to) Form 8038-G. 

In performing the above calculations, we remind you that we are not accountants or 
actuaries, nor are we engaged in the practice of law. Accordingly, while we believe the 
calculations described above to be correct, we do not warrant them to be so, nor do we warrant 
their validity for purposes of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the treasury 
regulations thereunder (collectively, the "Code"). 

The representations set forth in this Certificate are limited to factual matters only. The 
certifications contained herein are not necessarily based on personal knowledge, but may instead 

A-2 



be based on either inquiry deemed adequate by the undersigned or institutional knowledge (or 
both) regarding the matters set forth herein. Nothing in this Certificate represents the 
Representative's interpretation of any laws, including specifically, without limitation, Sections 103 
and 148 of the Code. The Representative understands that the City will rely on the foregoing 
certifications in its certificates as to tax matters, including arbitrage, under the Code, and Bond 
Counsel will rely on the foregoing certifications in rendering its opinion on the exclusion from 
gross income of interest on the Series 2020 Bonds for federal income tax purposes and other 
federal income tax advice it may give to the City relating to the Series 2020 Bonds. Except as 
expressly set forth above, the certifications set forth herein may not be relied upon or used by any 
third party or for any other purpose. 

Dated: November-~' 2020. 

A-3 

MORGAN STANLEY & CO. LLC, 
as Representative on behalf of itself and 
the Underwriters 

By: 
~~~~~~--~~---

J.W. HOWARD, Executive Director 



SCHEDULE A TO ISSUE PRICE CERTIFICATE 

SALE PRICES OF THE SERIES 2020 BONDS 

(Attached) 

A-4 



SCHEDULE B TO ISSUE PRICE CERTIFICATE 

COPY OF THE PRICING WIRE FOR THE SERIES 2020 BONDS 

(Attached) 

A-5 



EXHIBITB 

FORM OF SUPPLEMENTAL OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL 

[To Come] 



EXHIBITC 

FORM OF ISSUER'S COUNSEL OPINION 

[To Come] 



EXHIBITD 

FORM OF OPINION OF DISCLOSURE COUNSEL 

[To Come] 



EXHIBITB 

FORM OF PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT 



NGN Draft No.9 10/19/20 
226.08 

PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT DATED OCTOBER 21,2020 

NEW ISSUE-BOOK-ENTRY ONLY RATINGS: See "RATINGS" herein 

In the opinion of Bond Counsel, assuming continuing compliance by the City with the 
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, interest on the 2020 Bonds is, under existing lmv, 
excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes and is not an item of tax preference for 
purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax. (See "TAX STATUS" herein). 

$ * 
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA 

CONSOLIDATED UTILITY REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2020 

Dated: Date of Delivery Due: October 1, as shown below 

The Consolidated Utility Revenue Bonds, Series 2020 (the "2020 Bonds") are to be issued by 
the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida (the "City"), as fully registered bonds, without coupons, in 
denominations of$5,000 and integral multiples thereof. Interest on the 2020 Bonds will be payable 
April 1, 2021, and semiannually on each April 1 and October 1 thereafter by check or draft ofU.S. 
Bank National Association, registrar and paying agent. 

The 2020 Bonds will be issued in fully registered form, initially registered in the name of 
Cede & Co., as nominee of The Depository Trust Company ("DTC"). Individual purchases will be 
made in book-entry form only in denominations of$5,000 and any integral multiple thereof Actual 
purchasers of the 2020 Bonds (the "Beneficial Owners") will not receive physical delivery of the 
2020 Bonds. Transfer of ownership in the 2020 Bonds will be effected by DTC's book-entry system 
as described herein. As long as Cede & Co. is the Bondholder as nominee of DTC, principal and 
interest payments will be made directly to such Bondholder, which will in tum remit such payments 
to the Participants (as defined herein) for subsequent disbursement to the Beneficial Owners. At the 
request and expense of any holder of $500,000 or more in aggregate principal amount of 2020 
Bonds, interest shall be paid by wire transfer on an interest payment date as described herein. The 
principal of and premium, if any, on the 2020 Bonds will be payable upon presentation and surrender 
thereof at the designated corporate trust office of the Paying Agent. See "DESCRIPTION OF THE 
2020 BONDS," herein. 

The 2020 Bonds are being issued pursuant to Resolution No. 45-2020 of the City Commission of the 
City, adopted October 6, 2020, as supplemented (the "Resolution") for the purpose of (i) financing 
the acquisition, construction and equipping of capital improvements to the City's consolidated 
electric, water and sewer utility system (the "System"), (ii) repaying certain existing indebtedness 
and (iii) paying costs of issuance. 



The 2020 Bonds are payable solely from and secured by a lien upon and pledge of the 
"Pledged Funds", consisting of (1) the Net Revenues of the System, and (2) until applied in 
accordance with the provisions of the Resolution, all moneys, including investments thereof, in the 
funds and accounts established thereunder, except (A) the Rebate Fund, (B) to the extent moneys 
therein shall be required to pay the Operating Expenses of the System in accordance with the tenus 
thereof, and (C) any moneys set aside in a particular subaccount of the Reserve Account if such 
moneys shall be pledged solely for the payment of a Series of Bonds for which it was established in 
accordance with the provisions of the Resolution. The 2020 Bonds shall not constitute a general 
indebtedness or a pledge of the faith or credit of the City, within the meaning of any constitutional or 
statutmy provision, and the City shall never be required to exercise the ad valorem taxing power of 
the City for the payment of the principal of and interest on the 2020 Bonds. The 2020 Bonds will not 
constitute a lien upon the System or any other property of the City, except for the Pledged Funds. 

The City expects to receive a commitment from one or more national municipal bond 
insurers to guarantee the scheduled payment of principal of and interest on all or a portion of 
the 2020 Bonds when due under a financial guaranty insurance policy to be issued 
concurrently with the issuance of the 2020 Bonds. The decision as to which ofthe 2020 Bonds, 
if any, such policy shall apply to will be made by the City at the time ofpricingthe2020 Bonds. 

This cover page contains certain information for quick reference only. It is not a sunnnary of 
the transaction. Investors must read the entire Official Statement to obtain information essential to 
the making of an informed investment decision. 

The 2020 Bonds are offered when, as and if issued and received by the Underwriters, subject 
to the unqualified opinion as to legality by Nabors, Giblin & Nickerson, P.A., Tampa, Florida, Bond 
Counsel. Certain matters will also be passed on by Nabors, Giblin & Nickerson, P.A., Tampa, 
Florida as Disclosure Counsel to the City. Certain other matters will be passed on for the City by 
Torcivia, Donlon & Goddeau, P.A., West Palm Beach, Florida, City Attorney and for the 
Underwriters by the Law Offices of Steve E. Bullock, P.A., Miami, Florida. Davenport & Company 
LLC, Richmond Virginia, is serving as financial advisor to the City. It is expected that the 2020 
Bonds in definitive form will be available for delivery through the Depository Trust Company in 
New York, New York on or about November_, 2020. 

Dated: October_, 2020 

MORGAN STANLEY RAYMOND JAMES 

*Preliminary, subject to change. 



Maturity 
(October 1) 

$ __ 

$ * 
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA 

CONSOLIDATED UTILITY REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2020 

MATURITIES, AMOUNTS, INTEREST RATES, PRICES, YIELDS 
AND INITIAL CUSIP NUMBERS 

Principal 
Amount* 

Interest 
Rate 

Initial CUSIP 
Numberst 

*_% Term Bonds Due October I, 20_ Price __ % Yield Initial CUSJPt: 

*Preliminary, subject to change. 
'[The City and the Underwriters are not responsible for the use of the CUSIP Nmnbers referenced 
herein nor is any representation made by the City or the Underwriters as to their correctness. The 
CUSIP Numbers provided herein are included solely for the convenience of the readers of this 
Official Statement. 



CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA 

City Offices 
7 North Dixie Highway 

Lake Worth Beach, Florida 33460 

City Commissioners 
Pam Triolo, Mayor 

Scott Maxwell 
Omari Hardy 

Andy Amoroso 
Herman Robinson 

City Clerk 
Deborah M. Andrea 

City Manager 
Michael Bomstein 

Counsel to the City 
Torcivia, Donlon & Goddeau, P.A. 

West Palm Beach, Florida 

Bond Counsel and Disclosure Counsel 
Nabors, Giblin & Nickerson, P.A. 

Tampa, Florida 

Financial Advisor 
Davenport & Company LLC 

Richmond, Virginia 



No dealer, broker, salesman or other person has been authorized by the City of Lake Worth 
Beach, Florida (the "City") to make any representations in connection with the 2020 Bonds other 
than as contained in this Official Statement, and if given or made, such other information or 
representations must not be relied upon as having been authorized by the City. This Official 
Statement does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy, nor shall there be 
any sale of the 2020 Bonds by any person in any jurisdiction in which it is unlawful for such person 
to make such offer, solicitation or sale. The information contained in this Official Statement has been 
obtained from the City, The Depository Trust Company and other sources considered to be reliable. 
The information and expressions of opinion stated herein are subject to change, and neither the 
delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale made hereunder shall create, under any 
circumstances, any implication that there has been no change in the matters described herein since 
the date hereof. 

The Underwriters have provided the following sentence for inclusion in this Official 
Statement. The Underwriters have reviewed the information in this Official Statement in accordance 
with, and as pmi of their responsibilities to investors under the federal securities laws as applied to 
the facts and circumstances of this transaction, but the Underwriters do not guarantee the accuracy or 
completeness of such information. 

IN CONNECTION WITH THIS OFFERING, THE UNDERWRITERS MAY 
OVERALLOT OR EFFECT TRANSACTIONS THAT STABILIZE OR MAINTAIN THE 
MARKET PRICE OF SUCH 2020 BONDS AT A LEVEL ABOVE THAT WHICH MIGHT 
OTHERWISE PREVAIL IN THE OPEN MARKET. SUCH STABILIZING, IF COMMENCED, 
MAY BE DISCONTINUED AT ANY TIME. 

All summaries herein of documents and agreements are qualified in their entirety by 
reference to such documents and agreements, and all summaries herein of the 2020 Bonds are 
qualified in their entirety by reference to the form thereof included in the aforesaid documents and 
agreements. 

NO REGISTRATION STATEMENT RELATING TO THE 2020 BONDS HAS BEEN 
FILED WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION (THE "COMMISSION") 
OR WITH ANY STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION. IN MAKING ANY INVESTMENT 
DECISION, INVESTORS MUST RELY ON THEIR OWN EXAMINATIONS OF THE 
SECURITY AND THE TERMS OF THE OFFERING, INCLUDING THE MERITS AND RISKS 
INVOLVED. THE 2020 BONDS HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED OR DISAPPROVED BY THE 
COMMISSION OR ANY STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION OR REGULATORY 
AUTHORITY. THE FOREGOING AUTHORITIES HAVE NOT PAS SED UPON THE 
ACCURACY OR ADEQUACY OF THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT. ANY REPRESENTATION 
TO THE CONTRARY MAY BE A CRIMINAL OFFENSE. 

THE UNDERWRITERS MAY OFFER AND SELL THE 2020 BONDS TO CERTAIN 
DEALERS AND OTHERS AT PRICES LOWER THAN THE PUBLIC OFFERING PRICES 
STATED ON THE INSIDE COVER PAGE OF THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT, AND SUCH 
PUBLIC OFFERING PRICES MAY BE CHANGED FROM TIME TO TIME, AFTER THE 
INITIAL OFFERING TO THE PUBLIC, BY THE UNDERWRITERS. 



The order and placement of materials in this Official Statement, including the Appendices, 
are not to be deemed a dete1mination of relevance, materiality or importance, and this Official 
Statement, including the Appendices, must be considered in its entirety. The captions and headings 
in this Official Statement are for convenience only and in no way define, limit or describe the scope 
or intent, or affect the meaning or construction, of any provisions or sections in this Official 
Statement. The offering of the 2020 Bonds is made only by means of this entire Official Statement. 

References to website addresses presented in this Official Statement are for informational 
purposes only and may be in the form of a hyperlink solely for the reader's convenience. Unless 
specified otherwise, such websites and the information or links contained therein are not 
incorporated into, and are not part of, this Official Statement. 

Certain statements included or incorporated by reference in this Official Statement constitute 
"forward-looking statements." Such statements generally are identifiable by the terminology used, 
such as "plan," "expect," "estimate," "project," "forecast," "budget" or other similar words. The 
achievement of certain results or other expectations contained in such forward-looking statements 
involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause actual results, 
performance or achievements described to be materially different from any future results, 
performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. The City 
does not plan to issue any updates or revisions to those forward-looking statements if or when its 
expectations or events, conditions or circumstances on which such statements are based occur. 

THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT IS BEING PROVIDED TO PROSPECTIVE 
PURCHASERS EITHER IN BOUND PRINTED FORM ("ORIGINAL BOUND FORMAT") OR 
IN ELECTRONIC FORMAT ON THE WEBSITES: WWW.MUNIOS.COM AND 
WWW.EMMA.MSRB.ORG. THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT MAY BE RELIED UPON ONLY 
IF IT IS IN ITS ORIGINAL BOUND FORMAT OR IF IT IS PRINTED IN FULL DIRECTLY 
FROM EITHER OF SUCH WEB SITES. 

THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT SHALL NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN 
THE CITY OR THE UNDERWRITERS AND ANY ONE OR MORE HOLDERS OF THE 2020 
BONDS. 

THIS PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT IS IN A FORM DEEMED FINAL BY 
THE CITY FOR PURPOSES OF RULE 15C2-12 UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT 
OF1934,ASAMENDED,EXCEPTFORCERTAINFINANCIALINFORMATIONPERMITTED 
TO BE OMITTED PURSUANT TO RULE l5c2-12(B)(l). 

THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT INCLUDES THE FRONT PAGE, THE PAGE 
IMMEDIATELY PRECEDING THIS PAGE AND ALL APPENDICES HERETO. 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 
INTRODUCTION .................................................................................................................... 1 
PLAN OF REFUNDING .......................................................................................................... 2 
DESCRIPTION OF THE 2020 BONDS .................................................................................. 3 

General .......................................................................................................................... 3 
Book-Entry Only System .............................................................................................. 3 
No Assurance Regarding DTC Practices ...................................................................... 6 
Exchange and Transfer ................................................................................................. 6 
Optional Redemption .................................................................................................... 7 
Notice and Effect of Redemption ................................................................................. 7 

SECURITY FOR THE BONDS ............................................................................................... 8 
General .......................................................................................................................... 8 
Reserve Account ........................................................................................................... 9 
Rate Covenant ............................................................................................................... 9 
Rate Stabilization Fund ............................................................................................... 10 
Issuance of Additional Bonds ..................................................................................... 11 
Other Covenants of the City ....................................................................................... 13 
Flow of Funds ............................................................................................................. 13 

ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS .............................................................. 17 
DEBT SERVICE SCHEDULE ............................................................................................... 18 
THE SYSTEM ........................................................................................................................ l9 

Consulting Engineer's Report and Financial Feasibility Report ................................. 19 
Administration ............................................................................................................ 19 
The Electric Utility ..................................................................................................... 20 
Historical Energy and Peak Loads .............................................................................. 29 
The Water Utility ........................................................................................................ 40 
The Sewer Utility ........................................................................................................ 47 
~~~ .................................................................................................................. 53 
System Historic Operating Results ............................................................................. 54 

RISK FACTORS .................................................................................................................... 55 
Enforceability of Remedies ......................................................................................... 55 
Climate Change Issues ................................................................................................ 55 
Cybersecurity .............................................................................................................. 56 
Impact ofCOVID-19 .................................................................................................. 57 

HURRICANE IRMA IMPACTS ........................................................................................... 58 
LEGAL MATTERS ................................................................................................................ 58 
TAX MATTERS ..................................................................................................................... 59 
LITIGATION .......................................................................................................................... 61 
DISCLOSURE REQUIRED BY FLORIDA BLUE SKY REGULATIONS ........................ 61 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ................................................................................................ 62 
RATINGS ............................................................................................................................... 62 
FINANCIAL ADVISOR ........................................................................................................ 62 
UNDERWRITING ................................................................................................................. 62 
CONTINGENT FEES ............................................................................................................ 63 



CONTINUING DISCLOSURE .............................................................................................. 63 
ACCURACY AND COMPLETENESS OF OFFICIAL STATEMENT ............................... 64 
AUTHORIZATION OF OFFICIAL STATEMENT .............................................................. 65 

APPENDIX A -- GENERAL INFORMATION CONCERNING THE CITY OF LAKE 
WORTH BEACH 

APPENDIX B -- FORM OF THE RESOLUTION 
APPENDIX C -- FORM OF BOND COUNSEL OPINION 
APPENDIX D -- AUDITED GENERAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE CITY FOR 

THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2019 
APPENDIX E -- FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE 
APPENDIX F -- CONSULTING ENGINEER'S REPORT WITH RESPECT TO THE 

ELECTRIC UTILITY 
APPENDIX G -- FINANCIAL FEASIBILITY REPORT 



OFFICIAL STATEMENT 

relating to 

$ * 
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA 

CONSOLIDATED UTILITY REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2020 

INTRODUCTION 

This introduction is subject in all respects to the more complete information and definitions 
contained or incorporated in this Official Statement and should not be considered to be a complete 
statement of the facts material to making an investment decision. The offering by the City of Lake 
Worth Beach, Florida (the "City") of its $ * City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida 
Consolidated Utility Revenue Bonds, Series 2020 (the "2020 Bonds") to potential investors is made 
only by means of the entire Official Statement, including all appendices attached hereto. The City 
changed its name from "Lake Worth" to "Lake Worth Beach" in 2019. 

The 2020 Bonds are being issued for the purposes of (i) financing the acqulSltiOn, 
constmction and equipping of certain improvements and additions (the "Project," as more fully 
described herein) to the consolidated electric, water and sewer utility system currently owned and 
operated by the City (the "System"), (ii) repaying certain existing indebtedness and (iii) paying the 
costs of issuance of the 2020 Bonds. 

The 2020 Bonds are being issued pursuant to Chapter 166, Part II, Florida Statutes, the City 
Charter, the Constitution of the State of Florida, and Resolution No. 45-2020, adopted by the City 
Commission of the City on October 6, 2020, as amended and supplemented from time to time (the 
"Resolution"). All capitalized undefined terms used herein shall have the meaning asclibed thereto 
in the Resolution. See "APPENDIX B --FORM OF THE RESOLUTION." 

The 2020 Bonds and the interest thereon are payable solely from and secured by a lien upon 
and pledge of the "Pledged Funds", consisting of (1) the Net Revenues ofthe System and (2) until 
applied in accordance with the provisions of the Resolution, all moneys, including investments 
thereof, in the funds and accounts established thereunder, except (A) the Rebate Fund, (B) to the 
extent moneys therein shall be required to pay the Operating Expenses of the System in accordance 
with the terms thereof, and (C) any moneys set aside in a particular subaccount of the Reserve 
Account if such moneys shall be pledged solely for the payment of a Series of Bonds for which it 
was established in accordance with the provisions of the Resolution. The 2020 Bonds and any 
Additional Bonds hereafter issued pursuant to the Resolution are referred to herein collectively as 
the "Bonds." See "SECURITY FOR THE BONDS", herein. This Official Statement speaks only as 
of its date and the information contained herein is subject to change. All documents of the City 
referred to herein, including copies of the audited financial statements of the City, may be obtained 
from Deborah M. Andrea, City Clerk, 7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth Beach, Florida 33460. 

*Preliminary, subject to change. 1 



PLAN OF REFUNDING 

A portion of the net proceeds ofthe 2020 Bonds will be applied, together with certain other 
available funds, to refund and redeem the City's Utility System Refunding Revenue Bond, Series 
2013 (the "Refunded 2013 Bond") and the City's obligations under a Master Lease-Purchase 
Agreement dated September 27, 2015 (the "Refunded Lease-Purchase Obligation" and, collectively 
with the Refunded 2013 Bond, the "Refunded Indebtedness). [Such funds will either be held 
uninvested or applied to the purchase of obligations of the United States of America (the "Federal 
Securities"), as more fully defined in the Resolution, the maturing principal of and interest on which 
when due, together with any amounts remaining uninvested, will provide moneys sufficient to pay 
when due the principal of and interest on the Refunded 2013 Bond and Refunded Lease-Purchase 
Obligation, respectively, upon the redemption thereof as described below. 

The City will enter into separate irrevocable escrow deposit agreements (the "Escrow 
Agreements") with U.S. Bank National Association, as escrow agent (the "Escrow Agent") relating 
to the refunding of the Refunded 2013 Bond and the Refunded Lease-Purchase Obligation. Pursuant 
to the terms of the Escrow Agreements, the City will deposit with the Escrow Agent a portion of the 
proceeds of the 2020 Bonds, together with certain other available funds. Such funds, other than 
uninvested moneys, will be applied to purchase the Federal Securities. The Federal Securities and 
uninvested moneys will be deposited in separate escrow funds (the "Escrow Accounts") created 
under the Escrow Agreements. The Refunded 2013 Bond will be irrevocably called for redemption 
on , __ ,on which date the proceeds of the Federal Securities and the uninvested moneys 
held under the Escrow Agreement with respect thereto will be applied to pay the principal of and 
interest due on the Refunded 2013 Bond to the date of redemption. The Refunded Lease-Purchase 
Obligation will be prepaid on [December 17, 2020]. 

In the opinion of Bond Counsel, in reliance on the covenants, agreements and other 
obligations of the City under the resolution authorizing the same, the Refunded 2013 Bond will be 
discharged and extinguished upon the issuance of the 2020 Bonds by the City, the deposit of 
sufficient proceeds of the 2020 Bonds with the Escrow Agent, and the deposit and purchase of 
United States Obligations under the Escrow Agreement with respect thereto for the payment of all of 
the principal of and interest on the Refunded 2013 Bond to the date of redemption. 

Moneys held by the Escrow Agent will not be used to pay debt service on the 2020 Bonds. 

The accuracy of (a) the arithmetical computations of the adequacy of the maturing principal 
and interest of the United States Obligations held pursuant to the Escrow Agreement related to the 
Refunded 2013 Bond, together with initial cash balances, to pay when due or upon earlier 
redemption, the principal of, redemption premium, if any, and interest on the Refunded 2013 Bond, 
and (b) the mathematical computations supporting the conclusion that the 2020 Bonds are not 
"arbitrage bonds" under the Code, will be verified by as verification agent (the 
"Verification Agent"). Such verifications will be based upon certain public information supplied to 
the Verification Agent by or on behalf of the City.] 

2 



DESCRIPTION OF THE 2020 BONDS 

General 

The 2020 Bonds will be dated their date of delivery and will mature in the years, and in the 
amounts and bear interest at the rates and be payable on the dates set forth on the cover page hereof. 
The 2020 Bonds will be issued in fully registered form, initially registered in the name of Cede & 
Co., as nominee of DTC. Individual purchases will be made in book-entry form only in 
denominations of $5,000 and any integral multiple thereof. Beneficial Owners will not receive 
physical delivery of the 2020 Bonds. Transfer of ownership in the 2020 Bonds will be effected by 
DTC's book-entry system, as described herein. As long as Cede & Co. is the Registered Holder as 
nominee ofDTC, principal and interest payments will be made directly to such Registered Holder 
which will in turn remit such payments to the Participants (as hereinafter defined) for subsequent 
disbursement to the Beneficial Owners. 

Interest on the 2020 Bonds will be payable commencing April!, 2021 and semiannually on 
each April1 and October 1 thereafter (each an "Interest Date") and will be payable by check or draft 
drawn on the Paying Agent mailed to the Registered Holder, as shown on the registration books of 
the City maintained by the Bond Registrar on the fifteenth day of the month prior to each Interest 
Date, whether or not such day is a Business Day, or, at the option of the Paying Agent, and at the 
request and expense of the Registered Holder, by bank wire transfer for the acconnt of such 
Registered Holder. The principal of and premium, if any, on the 2020 Bonds is payable at maturity 
or redemption to the Registered Holder at the designated corporate trust office of the Paying Agent. 

Book-Entry Only System 

The information provided immediately below concerning DTC and the Book-Entry Only 
System has been obtained from DTC and is not guaranteed as to accuracy or completeness by, and 
is not to be construed as a representation by, the Underwriters, the City or the Paying Agent. 

Unless the book-entry system described herein is terminated, DTC will act as securities 
depository for the 2020 Bonds. The 2020 Bonds will be issued as fully-registered securities 
registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC's partnership nominee) or such other name as may be 
requested by an authorized representative of DTC. One or more fully-registered bond certificates 
will be issued for the 2020 Bonds, and will be deposited with the Paying Agent on behalf ofDTC. 
Individual purchases of beneficial interests in the 2020 Bonds will be made in increments of$5,000 
or integral multiples thereof. 

DTC and its Participants. DTC, the world's largest securities depository, is a limited-purpose 
trust company organized under the New York Banking Law, a "banking organization" within the 
meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve System, a "clearing 
corporation" within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, and a "clearing 
agency" registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17 A of the Securities Exchange Act of 
1934, as amended. DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million issues ofU.S. and 
non-U.S. equity issues, corporate and municipal debt issues, and money market instruments (from 
over 100 countries) that DTC's participants ("Direct Participants") deposit with DTC. DTC also 

3 



facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct Patiicipants of sales and other secuntles 
transactions in deposited securities, through electronic computerized book -entry transfers and 
pledges between Direct Participants' accounts. This eliminates the need for physical movement of 
securities certificates. Direct Patiicipants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and 
dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain other organizations. DTC is a 
wholly-owned subsidimy of The Depository Trust & Cleming Corporation ("DTCC"). DTCC is the 
holding company for DTC, National Securities Clearing Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing 
Corporation, all of which are registered clearing agencies. DTCC is owned by the users of its 
regulated subsidimies. Access to the DTC system is also available to others, such as both U.S. and 
non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and clearing corporations that clear 
through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Pmiicipant, either directly or indirectly 
("Indirect Patiicipants"). DTC has a Standmd & Poor's Rating of AA+. The DTC rules applicable 
to its Direct and Indirect Participants me on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission. 
More information about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com. The contents of such website do not 
constitute a pati of this Official Statement. 

Purchases. Purchases of the 2020 Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through 
Direct Participants, which will receive a credit for the 2020 Bonds on DTC's records. The ownership 
interest of each actual purchaser of each 2020 Bond ("Beneficial Owner") is in tum to be recorded 
on the Direct and Indirect Patiicipants' records. Beneficial Owners will not receive written 
confirmation from DTC of their purchases. Beneficial Owners me, however, expected to receive 
written confirmations providing details of the transactions, as well as periodic statements of their 
holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participants through which the Beneficial Owner entered into 
the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the 2020 Bonds me to be accomplished by 
entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners. 
Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their ownership interests in the 2020 
Bonds, except in the event that use of the book -entry system for the 2020 Bonds is discontinued. 

Transfers. To facilitate subsequent transfers, all2020 Bonds deposited by Direct Pmicipants 
with DTC me registered in the na111e ofDTC's pmnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other nmne 
as may be requested by an authorized representative ofDTC. The deposit of the 2020 Bonds with 
DTC and their registration in the na111e of Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee do not effect any 
change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the 2020 
Bonds; DTC's records reflect only the identity of the Direct Pmicipants to whose accounts such 
2020 Bonds are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners. The Direct and Indirect 
Patiicipants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their 
customers. 

Notices. Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Pmicipants, by 
Direct Participants to Indirect Patiicipants, and by Direct Patiicipants and Indirect Patiicipants to 
Beneficial Owners will be governed by mrangements among them, subject to any statutory or 
regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Beneficial Owners of the 2020 Bonds 
may wish to take ce1iain steps to augment the transmission to them of notices of significant events 
with respect to the 2020 Bonds, such as redemptions, tenders, defaults, and proposed a111endments to 
the bond documents. For exa111ple, Beneficial Owners of the 2020 Bonds may wish to ascertain that 
the nominee holding the 2020 Bonds for their benefit has agreed to obtain and transmit notices to 

4 



Beneficial Owners. In the altemative, Beneficial Owners may wish to provide their names and 
addresses to the Paying Agent and request that copies of notices be provided directly to them. 

Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC. Ifless than all of the 2020 Bonds within an issue 
are being redeemed, DTC's practice is to dete1mine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct 
Participant in such issue to be redeemed. 

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect 
to the 2020 Bonds unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC's procedures. 
Under its usual procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the issuer as soon as possible after the 
record date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.'s consenting or voting rights to those Direct 
Participants to whose accounts the 2020 Bonds are credited on the record date (identified in a listing 
attached to the Omnibus Proxy). 

NEITHER THE CITY NOR THE PAYING AGENT WILL HAVE ANY 
RESPONSIBILITY OR OBLIGATION TO SUCH PARTICIPANTS OR THE PERSONS FOR 
WHOM THEY ACT AS NOMINEES WITH RESPECT TO THE PAYMENTS TO OR THE 
PROVIDINGOFNOTICEFOR THEDTCPARTICIPANTS, THEINDIRECTPARTICIPANTS 
OR THE BENEFICIAL OWNERS OF THE 2020 BONDS. THE CITY CANNOT PROVIDE ANY 
ASSURANCE THAT DTC, DIRECT PARTICIPANTS OR OTHERS WILL DISTRIBUTE 
PAYMENTS OF PRINCIPAL OF, PREMIUM, IF ANY, OR INTEREST ON THE 2020 BONDS 
PAID TO DTC OR ITS NOMINEE, AS THE REGISTERED HOLDER, OR ANY NOTICES TO 
THE BENEFICIAL OWNERS OR THAT THEY WILL DO SO ON A TIMELY BASIS, OR 
THAT DTC WILL ACT IN THE MANNER DESCRIBED IN THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT. 

Payments. Payments on the 2020 Bonds will be made to Cede & Co., or such other nominee 
as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. DTC's practice is to credit Direct 
Participants' accounts upon DTC's receipt of funds and corresponding detail information from the 
Paying Agent on the relevant payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on 
DTC's records. Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be govemed by standing 
instructions and customary practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of customers 
in bearer form or registered in "street name," and will be the responsibility of such Participant and 
not ofDTC, the Paying Agent or the City, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may 
be in effect from time to time. Payment to Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may be requested 
by an authorized representative ofDTC) is the responsibility of the Paying Agent, disbursement of 
such payments to Direct Participants will be the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such 
payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants. 

Discontinuance ofBook-Entry-Only System. DTC may discontinue providing its services as 
depository with respect to the 2020 Bonds at any time by giving reasonable notice to the City or the 
Paying Agent. Under such circumstances, in the event that a successor depository is not obtained, 
certificated 2020 Bonds are required to be printed and delivered to the holders of record. 

The City may decide to discontinue use of the system ofbook-entry-only transfers through 
DTC (or a successor securities depository) with respect to the 2020 Bonds. Under current industry 
practices, however, DTC would notify its Direct or Indirect Participants of the City's decision but 

5 



will only withdraw beneficial interests from a 2020 Bond at the request of any Direct or Indirect 
Participant. In that event, certificates for the 2020 Bonds will be printed and delivered. 

No Assurance Regarding DTC Practices 

So long as Cede & Co. is the Registered Holder of the 2020 Bonds as nominee ofDTC, 
references herein to the holders or Registered Holders of the 2020 Bonds will mean Cede & Co. and 
will not mean the Beneficial Owners of the 2020 Bonds. 

None of the City, the Paying Agent or the Underwriters will have any responsibility or 
obligation to the Participants, DTC or the persons for whom they act with respect to (i) the accuracy 
of any records maintained by DTC or by any Direct or Indirect Participant ofDTC, (ii) payments or 
the providing of notice to the Direct Participants, the Indirect Participants or the Beneficial Owners, 
(iii) the selection by DTC or by any Direct or Indirect Participant of any Beneficial Owner to receive 
payment in the event of a partial redemption of the 2020 Bonds or (iv) any other action taken by 
DTC or its partnership nominee as owner of the 2020 Bonds. 

Exchange and Transfer 

The following provisions shall only be applicable ifDTC's book-entry system a/registration 
is discontinued. 

Each 2020 Bond shall be transferable only upon the books of the City, at the office of the 
Registrar, under such reasonable regulations as the City may prescribe, by the Holder thereof in 
person or by his attorney duly authorized in writing upon surrender thereof together with a written 
instrument of transfer satisfactory to the Registrar duly executed and guaranteed by the Holder or his 
duly authorized attorney. Upon the transfer of any such Bond, the City shall issue, and cause to be 
authenticated, in the name of the transferee a new Bond or Bonds of the same aggregate principal 
amount and Series and maturity as the surrendered Bond. 

For every such exchange or transfer of Bonds, the City or the Registrar may make a charge 
sufficient to reimburse it for any tax, fee, expense or other governmental charge required to be paid 
with respect to such exchange or transfer, but no other charge shall be made to any owner of Bonds 
for the privilege of exchanging or registering the transfer of Bonds under the provisions of the 
Resolution. The City and the Registrar shall not be obligated to make any such exchange or transfer 
of Bonds of any Series during the 15 days next preceding an Interest Date on the Bonds of such 
Series (other than Capital Appreciation Bonds and Variable Rate Bonds), or, in the case of any 
proposed redemption of Bonds of such Series, then, for the Bonds subject to redemption, during the 
15 days next preceding the date of the first mailing of notice of such redemption and continuing until 
such redemption date. 

6 



Optional Redemption 

The 2020 Bonds maturing on and prior to October 1, __ are not subject to optional 
redemption prior to their respective dates of maturity. The 2020 Bonds maturing on and after 
October 1, __ are subject to redemption at the option of the City on and after October 1, __ in 
whole or in part at any time, in such marmer as shall be determined by the City and within a maturity 
as determined by the City or at its direction the Paying Agent, at a redemption price (plus accrued 
interest to the date fixed for redemption) equal to the principal amount thereof and without premium. 

Mandatory Redemption 

The 2020 Bonds maturing on October 1, __ are subject to mandatory sinking fund 
redemption prior to maturity, in part by lot on October 1, __ and each October 1 thereafter at a 
redemption price equal to the principal amount thereof being so redeemed and accrued interest 
thereon to the date fixed for redemption, without premium, from Sinking Fund Installments in the 
amounts set forth below: 

Year Sinking Fnnd Installment 

*Maturity 

Notice and Effect of Redemption 

Notice of any redemption of Bonds, which shall specify the Bond or Bonds (or portions 
thereof) to be redeemed and the date and place for redemption, shall be given by the Registrar on 
behalf of the City, and (A) shall be filed with the Paying Agents of such Bonds, (B) shall be mailed 
first class, postage prepaid, not less than 30 days nor more than 45 days prior to the redemption date 
to all Holders of Bonds to be redeemed at their addresses as they appear on the registration books 
kept by the Registrar as of the date of mailing of such notice, and (C) shall be mailed, certified mail, 
postage prepaid, at least 3 5 days prior to the redemption date to the registered securities depositories 
and one or more nationally recognized municipal bond information services as hereinafter provided 
in the Resolution. Failure to mail such notice to such depositories or services or the Holders of the 
Bonds to be redeemed, or any defect therein, shall not affect the proceedings for redemption of 
Bonds as to which no such failure or defect has occurred. Failure of any Holder to receive any 
notice mailed as provided in the Resolution shall not affect the proceedings for redemption of such 
Holder's Bonds. 

Each notice of redemption shall state: (1) the CUSIP numbers and any other distinguishing 
number or letter of all Bonds being redeemed, (2) the original issue date of such Bonds, (3) the 
maturity date and rate of interest borne by each Bond being redeemed, ( 4) the redemption date, ( 5) 
the Redemption Price, (6) the date on which such notice is mailed, (7) ifless than all Outstanding 
Bonds are to be redeemed, the certificate number (and, in the case of a partial redemption of any 
Bond, the principal amount) of each Bond to be redeemed, (8) that on such redemption date there 

7 



shall become due and payable upon each Bond to be redeemed the Redemption Price thereof, or the 
Redemption Price of the specified portions of the principal thereof in the case of Bonds to be 
redeemed in part only, together with interest accrued thereon to the redemption date, and that from 
and after such date interest thereon shall cease to accrue and be payable, (9) that the Bonds to be 
redeemed, whether as a whole or in part, are to be surrendered for payment of the Redemption Price 
at the designated office of the Registrar at an address specified, (I 0) the name and telephone number 
of a person designated by the Registrar to be responsible for such redemption, ( 11) unless sufficient 
funds have been set aside by the City for such purpose prior to the mailing of the notice of 
redemption, that such redemption is conditioned upon the deposit of sufficient funds for such 
purpose on or prior to the date set for redemption, and (12) any other conditions that must be 
satisfied prior to such redemption. 

SECURITY FOR THE BONDS 

General 

The principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the 2020 Bonds will be payable solely 
from and secured by a first lien upon and a pledge of the "Pledged Funds", consisting of (1) the Net 
Revenues of the System, and (2) until applied in accordance with the provisions of the Resolution, 
all moneys, including investments thereof, in the funds and accounts established thereunder, except 
(A) the Rebate Fund, (B) to the extent moneys therein shall be required to pay the Operating 
Expenses of the System in accordance with the terms thereof, and (C) any moneys set aside in a 
particular subaccount of the Reserve Account if such moneys shall be pledged solely for the payment 
of a Series of Bonds for which it was established in accordance with the provisions of the Resolution 
(collectively, the "Pledged Funds"). 

"Gross Revenues" is defined in the Resolution to mean all income and moneys received by 
the City from the rates, fees, rentals, charges and other income to be made and collected by the City 
for the use of the products, services and facilities to be provided by the System, or otherwise 
received by the City or accruing to the City in the management and operation of the System, 
calculated in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles applicable to public utility 
systems similar to the System, including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, (I) 
proceeds from use and occupancy insurance on the System, (2) Investment Earnings, and (3) 
Operating Government Grants. "Gross Revenues" shall not include (A) Capital Government Grants, 
(B) proceeds of Bonds or other City debt, (C) moneys deposited to the Rate Stabilization Fund from 
the Utility Reserve Fund, (D) Connection Fees, (E) proceeds of Special Assessments, and (F) any 
gain resulting from the valuation of investment securities or Hedge Agreements at market value and 
any other gain that does not require or result in the receipt of cash. 

"Net Revenues" is defined in the Resolution to mean the Gross Revenues of the System less 
Operating Expenses. 

"Operating Expenses" shall mean the City's expenses for operation, maintenance and repairs 
with respect to the System and shall include, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, 
administration and other indirect expenses of the City related and apportioned to the System, 
payments for the purchase of materials essential to or used in the operation of the System, including 

8 



bulk purchases of water, sewage or electric services, fees for the management of the System or any 
portion thereof, accounting, legal and engineering expenses, ordinary and current rentals of 
equipment or other property, refunds of moneys lawfully due to others, payments to others for 
disposal of sewage or other wastes, payments to pension, retirement, health and hospitalization 
funds, and any other expenses required to be paid for or with respect to proper operation or 
maintenance of the System, including appropriate reserves therefor, all to the extent properly 
attributable to the System in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles applicable to 
public utility systems similar to the System, and disbursements for the expenses, liabilities and 
compensation of any Paying Agent or Registrar under the Resolution, but does not include any costs 
or expenses in respect of original construction or improvement other than expenditures necessary to 
prevent an interruption or continuance of an interruption of service or of Gross Revenues or minor 
capital expenditures necessary for the proper and economical operation or maintenance of the 
System, or any payments in lieu of taxes or franchise fees made to the City's general fund, or any 
provision for interest, depreciation, amortization or similar charges, any non-cash charges, or any 
loss resulting from the valuation of investment securities or Hedge Agreements at market value and 
any other loss that does not require or result in the expenditure of cash. 

The City is not obligated to pay the 2020 Bonds or the interest thereon except from the 
Pledged Funds, and neither the full faith and credit nor the taxing power of the City is pledged for 
the payment of the 2020 Bonds. The 2020 Bonds shall not constitute a lien upon the System, or any 
part thereof, or any other property of the City, nor shall they constitute a general indebtedness of the 
City within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory provisions or limitations. No Registered 
Holder shall ever have the right to compel the exercise of the ad valorem taxing power of the City 
for the payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the 2020 Bonds, which shall be 
payable solely from the Pledged Funds. 

Reserve Account 

The Resolution requires the City to maintain a Reserve Account equal to the Reserve 
Requirement, which is defined in the Resolution to mean, as of any date of calculation, the lesser of 
(i) Maximum A1mual Debt Service for all Outstanding Bonds secured thereby, (ii) 125% of the 
average Annual Debt Service for all Outstanding Bonds secured thereby, or (iii) the maximum 
amount of Bond proceeds which may be deposited to the Reserve Account without subjecting the 
same to yield restriction under the Code, or causing interest on any of the Bonds secured thereby 
(other than Taxable Bonds) to be included in gross income for purposes of federal income taxation 
or otherwise violating applicable provisions of the Code; provided, however, the City may establish 
by Supplemental Resolution a different Reserve Account Requirement with respect to any particular 
Series of Bonds pursuant to the Resolution, which Reserve Account Requirement may be $0.00. 
The City intends to fund the Reserve Requirement for a separate subaccount of the Reserve Account 
applicable to the 2020 Bonds either with 2020 Bond proceeds or a Reserve Account Insurance 
Policy, such determination to be made at the time of pricing. 

Rate Covenant 

In the Resolution, the City has covenanted to at all times fix, establish, maintain and collect 
such rates, fees and charges for the product, services and facilities of the System, and revise the same 

9 



from time to time, whenever necessary, so as always to provide (A) Net Revenues in each Fiscal 
Year (excluding from the computation of Operating Expenses for any Fiscal Year any amount 
received from any source other than Gross Revenues and applied to the payment of Operating 
Expenses in such Fiscal Year) equal to at least (1) 120% of the Annual Debt Service becoming due 
in such Fiscal Year, plus (2) 105% of debt service in such Fiscal Year on all Subordinated 
Indebtedness, plus (3) 100% of (i) any amounts required by the terms of the Resolution to be 
deposited in the Reserve Account or with any issuer of a Reserve Account Letter of Credit or 
Reserve Account Insurance Policy in such Fiscal Year to pay Policy Costs, and (ii) all required 
deposits during such Fiscal Year to the Renewal and Replacement Fund. 

Such rates, fees or other charges shall not be reduced so as to be insufficient to provide 
adequate Net Revenues for the purposes provided therefor by the Resolution. 

If, in any Fiscal Year, the City shall fail to comply with the requirements described above, it 
shall promptly cause the Rate Consultant to review its rates, fees, charges, income, Gross Revenues, 
Operating Expenses, and methods of operation and to make written recommendations in a timely 
manner as to the methods by which the City may seek to comply with the requirements desc1ibed 
above. The City is required to forthwith commence to implement such recommendations to the 
extent required so as to cause it to thereafter comply with said requirements. So long as the City 
implements such recommendations within 120 days of the receipt thereof, the City's failure to 
comply with the foregoing requirements shall not be considered an Event of Default under the 
Resolution, so long as the Gross Revenues, together with moneys in the Funds and Accounts created 
under the Resolution and available for the purposes described therein, are sufficient to pay in cash 
the Operating Expenses and Annual Debt Service for such Fiscal Year. 

Anything in the Resolution to the contrary notwithstanding, if the City shall fail to comply 
with the recommendations of the Rate Consultant described in the Resolution, the registered owners 
of not less than ten percent (1 0%) in principal amount of all Bonds then Outstanding may institute 
and prosecute an action or proceeding in any court or before any board or commission having 
jurisdiction to compel the City to comply with the recommendations and the requirements of the 
Resolution. So long as the issuer of a Bond Insurance Policy or Credit Facility issued for the benefit 
of any Outstanding Bonds shall not be in default in its payments obligations under such Bond 
Insurance Policy or Credit Facility, the Insurer or Credit Bank, as applicable, shall be deemed to be 
the registered owner of all Bonds covered by the applicable Bond Insurance Policy or Credit Facility 
for purposes of this paragraph. 

Rate Stabilization Fund 

The Resolution establishes a Rate Stabilization Fund, into which the City may transfer such 
moneys which are on deposit in the Utility Reserve Fund as it deems appropriate; provided, 
however, that on or prior to each principal and interest payment date for the Bonds (in no event 
earlier than the 25th day of the month next preceding such payment date), moneys in the Rate 
Stabilization Fund shall be applied for the payment into the Interest Account, the Principal Account 
and the Term Bonds Redemption Account when the moneys therein are insufficient to pay the 
principal of and interest on the Bonds coming due, but only to the extent moneys transferred from 
the Utility Reserve Fund and Renewal and Replacement Fund for such purposes pursuant to the 

10 



Resolution, together with moneys available in the Reserve Account for such purpose, shall be 
inadequate to fully provide for such insufficiency. 

Issuance of Additional Bonds 

No Additional Bonds, payable on a parity with the Bonds then Outstanding pursuant to the 
Resolution, shall be issued except upon the conditions and in the manner provided in the Resolution. 
The City may issue one or more Series of Additional Bonds for any one or more of the following 
purposes: (i) financing or refinancing the Cost of a Project, or the completion thereof, or (ii) 
refunding any or all Outstanding Bonds, any Subordinated Indebtedness of the City, or any other 
indebtedness of the City that it may lawfully refund with proceeds of Bonds. 

No such Additional Bonds shall be issued unless the following conditions are complied with: 

(A) Except in the case of Additional Bonds issued for the purpose of refunding 
Outstanding Bonds, the City shall certifY that it is current in all deposits into the various funds and 
accounts established by the Resolution and all payments theretofore required to have been deposited 
or made by it under the provisions of the Resolution, including a certification that all due and 
payable Policy Costs have been deposited or made, and the City is in compliance with the covenants 
and agreements of the Resolution, or if not in compliance, that the issuance of such Additional 
Bonds will create such compliance. 

(B) An independent certified public accountant or the Rate Consultant shall certifY to the 
City that the amount of the Net Revenues (excluding Investment Earnings with respect to the 
Construction Fund) received by the City during the immediately preceding Fiscal Year or any 12 
consecutive months selected by the City of the 24 months immediately preceding the issuance of 
said Additional Bonds, adjusted as hereinafter provided, were equal to at least (1) 120% of the 
Maximum Annual Debt Service of the Outstanding Bonds and the Additional Bonds then proposed 
to be issued, plus (2) 105% of any debt service during such 12-month period on Subordinated 
Indebtedness, plus (3) 100% of (a) any amounts required by the terms of the Resolution to be 
deposited in the Reserve Account or with any issuer of a Reserve Account Letter of Credit or 
Reserve Account Insurance Policy to pay any Policy Costs, and (b) all required deposits to the 
Renewal and Replacement Fund during such 12-month period. 

(C) The Net Revenues calculated pursuant to the foregoing may be adjusted upon the 
written advice of the Rate Consultant, at the option of the City, as follows: 

(1) If the City, prior to the issuance of the proposed Additional Bonds, shall have 
increased the rates, fees or other charges for the product, services or facilities of the System, the Net 
Revenues for the 12 consecutive months shall be adjusted to show the Net Revenues which would 
have been derived from the System in such 12 consecutive months as if such increased rates, fees or 
other charges for the product, services or facilities of the System had been in effect during all of such 
12 consecutive months. 

(2) If the City shall have acquired or has contracted to acquire any privately or 
publicly owned existing utility system that will become part of the System, the cost of which shall be 

11 



paid fi·om all or part of the proceeds of the issuance of the proposed Additional Bonds, then the Net 
Revenues derived from the System during the 12 consecutive months shall be increased by adding to 
the Net Revenues for said 12 consecutive months the Net Revenues which would have been derived 
from said existing utility system as if such existing utility system had been a part of the System 
during such 12 consecutive months. For the purposes of this paragraph, the Net Revenues derived 
from said existing utility system during such 12 consecutive months shall be adjusted to determine 
such Net Revenues by deducting the cost of operation and maintenance of said existing utility 
system from the gross revenues of said system. Such Net Revenues shall take into account any 
increase in rates imposed on customers of such utility system on or prior to the acquisition thereof by 
the City. 

(3) If the City, in connection with the issuance of Additional Bonds, shall enter 
into a contract (with a duration not less than the final maturity of such Additional Bonds) with any 
public or private entity whereby the City agrees to furnish services in connection with any utility 
system, then the Net Revenues of the System during the 12 consecutive months shall be increased by 
the least amount which said public or private entity shall guarantee to pay in any one year for the 
furnishing of said services by the City, after deducting therefrom the proportion of operating 
expenses and repair, renewal and replacement cost attributable in such year to such services. 

( 4) In the event the City shall be constructing or acquiring additions, extensions 
or improvements to the System from the proceeds of such Additional Bonds and shall have 
established fees, rates or charges to be charged and collected from users of such facilities when 
service is rendered, such Net Revenues for the 12 consecutive months may be adjusted by adding 
thereto 100% of the Net Revenues estimated by the Rate Consultant to be derived during the first 12 
months of operation after completion of the construction or acquisition of said additions, extensions 
and improvements from the customers of the facilities to be financed by Additional Bonds, together 
with other funds on hand or lawfully obtained for such purpose; provided, such customers must 
represent existing occupied structures that will be added to the System upon completion of the 
proposed additions, extensions or improvements. 

( 5) If the City shall add new customers subsequent to the commencement of the 
12 consecutive months, the Rate Consultant may adjust the Net Revenues to reflect the Net 
Revenues that would have been received by the City if such customers had been in place for the 
entire 12 consecutive months. 

(6) The Net Revenues shall be adjusted for any period the System or any portion 
thereof was not owned by the City to reflect government ownership ofthe System or such portion. 

(D) In the event any Additional Bonds are issued for the purpose of refunding any Bonds 
then Outstanding, the conditions described above shall not apply, provided that the issuance of such 
Additional Bonds shall result in a reduction of Debt Service. The conditions described above shall 
apply to Additional Bonds issued to refund Subordinated Indebtedness and to Additional Bonds 
issued for refunding purposes which cannot meet the conditions of this paragraph. 

(E) In connection with the issuance of any Series of Additional Bonds, the City shall 
receive an opinion of the City Attorney of the City or Bond Counsel that the issuance of such 

12 



Additional Bonds has been duly authorized and that all legal requirements constituting a condition 
precedent to the delivery of such Additional Bonds have been fulfilled. 

The Resolution provides that the initial purchasers of Additional Bonds shall be deemed to 
have consented in writing to any amendments to the Resolution that are to become effective on or 
after the issuance of such Additional Bonds in accordance with the Resolution if the proposed 
amendments are reasonably disclosed in the offering documentation prepared and distributed in 
connection with the issuance of such Additional Bonds and the related Supplemental Resolution 
provides that such initial purchasers have so consented through their purchase. 

As set forth in the Financial Feasibility Report attached hereto as APPENDIX G, the City 
anticipates issuing an estimated $61 million in Additional Bonds to fund improvements to the 
System over the next five years. 

Other Covenants ofthe City 

In addition to the covenants set forth above, the City has covenanted in the Resolution to 
operate and maintain the System in good condition and in an efficient and economical manner; to 
keep books and records of the System, separate and apart from all other books, records and accounts 
of the City; to at least once a year cause the books, records and accounts of the System to be properly 
audited by a recognized firm of certified public accountants; not to sell, lease or encumber or in any 
manner dispose of the System except within the parameters set forth in the Resolution; to make 
adequate provision for insurance with respect to the System; to not provide free or unmetered 
service; to provide for mandatory connection to the water and sewer portions of the System, to the 
extent pe1mitted by law; to diligently enforce collections; to not permit any competing system; to 
retain a Consulting Engineer, and to have an inspection of the System at least once every two Fiscal 
Years. See "APPENDIX B --FORM OF THE RESOLUTION," for a more complete description of 
the foregoing covenants. 

Flow of Funds 

The City is required by the Resolution to deposit promptly, as received, all Gross Revenues 
into the Revenue Fund. 

Moneys in the Revenue Fund shall first be used each montli to deposit in the Operation and 
Maintenance Fund such sums as are necessary to pay Operating Expenses for the ensuing month; 
provided the City may transfer moneys from the Revenue Fund to the Operation and Maintenance 
Fund at any time to pay Operating Expenses to the extent there is a deficiency in the Operation and 
Maintenance Fund for such purpose. Amounts in the Operation and Maintenance Fund shall be paid 
out from time to time by the City for Operating Expenses, including any expenses relating to the 
purchase or redemption of Term Bonds as provided in the Resolution. 

Any deposits remaining in the Revenue Fund after the aforementioned transfers to the 
Operation and Maintenance Fund shall be disposed of by the City on or before the 25th day of each 
month, commencing in the month immediately following the delivery of any of the Bonds to the 
purchasers thereof, or such later date as provided in the Resolution, in the following manner and in 
the following order of priority: 

l3 



Interest Account. The City shall deposit or credit to the Interest Account the sum which, 
together with the balance in said Account, shall equal the interest on all Bonds Outstanding (except 
as to Capital Appreciation Bonds) accrued and unpaid and to accrue to the end of the then current 
calendar month. 

Principal Account. Commencing in the month which is one year prior to the first principal 
payment date, the City shall next deposit into the Principal Account the sum which, together with the 
balance in said Account, shall equal the principal amounts on all Bonds Outstanding accrued and 
unpaid and that portion of the principal next due which would have accrued on such Bonds during 
the then cunent calendar month if such principal amounts were deemed to accrue monthly (assuming 
that a year consists of 12 equivalent calendar months having 30 days each) except for the Sinking 
Fund Installments to be deposited as described below, in equal amounts from the next preceding 
principal payment due date, or, ifthere be no such preceding payment due date, from a date no later 
than one year preceding the due date of such principal amount. 

Term Bonds Redemption Account. Commencing in the month which is one year prior to the 
first Sinking Fund Installment due date, there shall be deposited to the Term Bonds Redemption 
Account the sum which, together with the balance in such Account, shall equal the Sinking Fund 
Installments on all Bonds Outstanding accrued and unpaid and that p01iion of the Sinking Fund 
Installments of all Bonds Outstanding next due which would have accrued on such Bonds during the 
then cunent calendar month if such Sinking Fund Installments were deemed to accrue monthly 
(assuming that a year consists of 12 equivalent calendar months having 30 days each) in equal 
amounts from the next preceding Sinking Fund Installment due date, or, if there is no such preceding 
Sinking Fund Installment due date, from a date not later than one year preceding the due date of such 
Sinking Fund Installment. 

Reserve Account. There shall next be deposited to the Reserve Account an amount which 
would enable the City to restore the funds on deposit in the Reserve Account to an amount equal to 
the Reserve Account Requirement applicable thereto. Amounts on deposit in the Reserve Account 
shall be used to pay principal of and interest on the Bonds when amounts on deposit in the Interest 
Account, Principal Account and Term Bonds Redemption Account are insufficient thereof. The 
Resolution provides the ability of the City to establish separate subaccounts within the Reserve 
Account to secure a single series of Bonds, and the City has established a Series 2020 Account 
securing the 2020 Bonds. See "SECURITY FOR THE BONDS- Reserve Account," herein. The 
Resolution also permits the City to meet the Reserve Requirement by deposit therein of a Reserve 
Account Insurance Policy or Reservice Account Letter of Credit. See "APPENDIX B --FORM OF 
THE RESOLUTION", herein. 

Renewal and Replacement Fund. There shall be deposited to the Renewal and Replacement 
Fund monthly such sums as shall be sufficient to pay 1/12 of the Renewal and Replacement Fund 
Requirement until the amount accumulated in such Fund is equal to the Renewal and Replacement 
Fund Requirement, taking into account the market value of investments in such Fund; provided, 
however, that (a) such Renewal and Replacement Fund Requirement may be increased or decreased 
as the Consulting Engineers shall certify to the City is necessary for the pmposes of the Renewal and 
Replacement Fund, and (b) in the event that the Consulting Engineers shall certify that the Renewal 

14 



and Replacement Fund Requirement is excessive for the purposes of the Renewal and Replacement 
Fund, such excess amount as may be on deposit therein may be transferred by the City from the 
Renewal and Replacement Fund for deposit into the Utility Reserve Fund. The moneys in the 
Renewal and Replacement Fund shall be applied by the City for the purpose of paying the cost of 
major extensions, improvements or additions to, or the replacement or renewal of capital assets of, 
the System, or extraordinary repairs of the System; provided, however, that on or prior to each 
principal and interest payment date for the Bonds (in no event earlier than the 25th day of the month 
next preceding such payment date), moneys in the Renewal and Replacement Fund shall be applied 
for the payment into the Interest Account, the Principal Account, and the Te1m Bonds Redemption 
Account when the moneys therein are insufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds 
coming due, but only to the extent moneys transferred from the Utility Reserve Fund for such 
purpose, together with moneys available in the Reserve Account for such purpose, shall be 
inadequate to fully provide for such insufficiency. The Resolution defines Renewal and Replacement 
Requirement as, on the date of calculation, an amount of money equal to (1) five percent of the 
Gross Revenues received by the City in the immediately preceding Fiscal Year, or (2) such greater or 
lesser amount as may be certified to the City by the Consulting Engineers as an amount appropriate 
for the purposes of the Resolution. The Renewal and Replacement Requirement is expected to be 
fully funded at the time of issuance of the 2020 Bonds. 

Subordinated Indebtedness. Gross Revenues in the Revenue Fund shall next be applied by 
the City for the payment of any accrued debt service on Subordinated Indebtedness incurred by the 
City in connection with the System and in accordance with the proceedings authorizing such 
Subordinated Indebtedness. 

Sinking Fund. There shall be deposited to the Interest Account, the Principal Account and 
the Term Bonds Redemption Account, in that order, sufficient moneys such that the amounts on 
deposit therein shall equal, respectively, the interest, principal and Sinking Fund Installment next 
coming due on the Bonds Outstanding; provided, however, no deposit need be made to the Principal 
Account or Term Bonds Redemption Account until a date one year preceding the due date of such 
principal amount or Sinking Fund Installment. 

Utility Reserve Fund. The balance of any Gross Revenues remaining in said Revenue Fund 
shall be deposited in the Utility Reserve Fund and applied to the payment, on or prior to each 
principal and interest payment date for the Bonds (in no event earlier than the 25th day of the month 
next preceding such payment date), into the Interest Account, the Principal Account and the Term 
Bonds Redemption Account when the moneys therein shall be insufficient to pay the principal of and 
interest on the Bonds coming due. Moneys not required to meet such a deficiency shall be deposited 
to the Reserve Account to make up any deficiency therein, and thereafter to the Rebate Fund to the 
extent moneys are required to be deposited therein. Thereafter, moneys in the Utility Reserve Fund 
may be applied for (a) the purchase or redemption of Bonds, (b) payment of Subordinated 
Indebtedness, (c) payment of other obligations incurred with respect to the System, (d) deposit to the 
Rate Stabilization Fund, (e) improvements, renewals and replacements to the System or (f) any 
lawful purpose of the City, up to a maximum amount with respect to clause (f) of 10% of the Gross 
Revenues of the System for such Fiscal Year. 

15 



Existing Indebtedness 

The City's only existing indebtedness secured by Net Revenues of the System consists of the 
Refunded 20 l3 Bond described above and certain Subordinate Indebtedness consisting of State 
Department of Environmental Protection ("DEP") Revolving Fund loans secured by water and sewer 
utility revenues, in the aggregate principal amount of $14,415,802 (and for which approval for 
another $3,019,951 has been received from DEP). As described above, the City has also entered into 
the Refunded Lease-Purchase Obligation, pursuant to which the City leases certain equipment and is 
required to appropriate legally available non-ad valorem revenues to make lease payments. Since the 
majority of such equipment is System-related, such payments have historically been made from 
System Net Revenues, although Net Revenues are not pledged to secure such payment. Both the 
Refunded 2013 Bond and Refunded Lease-Purchase Obligation will be prepaid in full fi"om amounts 
derived from proceeds of the 2020 Bonds. See "PLAN OF REFUNDING" herein. 

(REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK) 

16 



ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS 

The proceeds to be received from the sale of the 2020 Bonds shall be applied, together with 
certain other moneys, as follows: 

SOURCES OF FUNDS: 

Principal Amount of2020 Bonds 
Net Reoffering Discount/Premium 
Debt Service Fund Transfers< I) 

TOTALSOURCESOFFUNDS 

$ 

$ 

USES OF FUNDS: 

(I) 

(2) 

Deposit to Construction Fund 
Deposit to Escrow Agreements 
Costs oflssuance<2l 

TOTAL USES OF FUNDS 

$ 

$ 

Represents amounts held to pay debt service on the Refunded Indebtedness. 
Includes underwriting discount, legal and financial advisory fees and expenses, and various 
other costs of issuance. 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

17 



DEBT SERVICE SCHEDULE 

The following table sets forth the debt service schedule for the 2020 Bonds. 

Date 
(October I) 

2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 
2027 
2028 
2029 
2030 
2031 
2032 
2033 
2034 
2035 
2036 
2037 
2038 
2039 
2040 
2041 

Total 

Principal Interest Total 

(REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK) 

18 



THE SYSTEM 

The City of Lake Worth Beach owns and operates the System, consisting of the City's 
electric production and distribution, water and wastewater enterprise operations. The following 
sections describe each component (subsystem) of the System. 

Consulting Engineer's Report and Financial Feasibility Report 

Stantec, the City's Consulting Engineer, has prepared an engineer's report (the "Consulting 
Engineer's Report") in connection with the electric portion of the System (see "APPEND IX F -
CONSULTING ENGINEER'S REPORT WITH RESPECT TO THE ELECTRIC UTILITY", 
herein) and a financial feasibility report (the "Financial Feasibility Report") in connection with the 
issuance of the 2020 Bonds (see "APPENDIX G --FINANCIAL FEASIBILITY REPORT", herein). 

Administration 

Michael Bornstein, City Manager of the City, has been politically and professionally 
involved in local government in Palm Beach County for over 25 years, starting as a County 
Commission aide in the late 1980's and then part of the County public affairs staff working on the 
legislative agenda. He was hired to head up the redevelopment efforts in the Town of Lantana as the 
Development Services Director in 1998 and was later selected to replace the outgoing Town 
Manager in 1999, where he served 12 years. In 2012 he was selected as the City Manager for the 
City of Lake Worth Beach and views his efforts in terms of a significant 'turn around' corporation. 
He has served on numerous advisory committees and boards over the years, including the City of 
West Palm Beach Audit Committee, the Solid Waste Authority Citizens Advisory Committee, the 
Palm Beach County Fire Rescue Advisory Committee and most recently was one of the League of 
Cities representatives on the Ethics Commission and Inspector General Ordinance Drafting 
Committee. He is a past president of the Palm Beach City Manager's Association. 

Ed Libe1iy has served as the Electric Utility Director for the City since August 2017. In this 
role he leads all aspects of the electric utility's operations and business activities, including energy 
procurement and resource planning, power generation operations, transmission and distribution 
operations, materials management, revenue protection, and management of the City's customer 
service operations. Mr. Liberty also serves on the boards of the Florida Municipal Power Agency, 
the Florida Municipal Electric Association and Florida Gas Utility as the City's representative. Prior 
to joining the City, he was employed by Public Service Electric & Gas ("PSE&G") ofNewark, New 
Jersey as Director of Utility Operations Services for the period of2012 to 2017. Mr. Liberty had 
previously worked for PSE&G in various roles for sixteen years in the utility and non-utility electric 
generation and energy services business. Experience included multiple rotational assignments at both 
the field and corporate level across varied business units. His experience included roles in power 
plant operations and maintenance, owner's representation on joint-owned power plant assets, 
engineering, business planning, industrial customer retention, marketing and sales. From 2005 to 
2012 Mr. Liberty served as Vice President of Dome-Tech, Inc. and a member of the company's 
executive committee. Dome-Tech was an energy consulting company providing industrial, large 
commercial, healthcare, higher education and public entities nationwide with assistance in 
improving energy efficiency and managing energy cost. During his tenure at Dome-Tech, the 

19 



company was acquired by United Technologies Corporation, where he worked until returning to 
PSE&G in 2012. From 1997 to 2005 Mr. Liberty worked for NUI Corporation, a natural gas utility 
holding company with operations in various states in the eastern U.S., including Florida. In this role 
he led the company's efforts to grow industrial customer sales and margins, the delivery of energy 
services and the expansion of natural gas distribution/transmission/storage infrastructure to serve 
markets in New Jersey, Florida, Maryland, Nmih Carolina, Pennsylvania and New York. He was 
the developer of natural gas pipeline infrastructure projects in support of the corporation's energy 
hub strategy; projects included pipeline and natural gas storage assets. Mr. Liberty holds a Bachelor 
of Science degree in Mechanical Engineering from Newark College of Engineering at New Jersey 
Institute of Technology. 

Brian Shields oversees the day to day operations of the City's water and sewer utilities and its 
stom1water utility, and is responsible for ongoing capital improvements, including renewal and 
replacement of the City's water treatment plant and replacement of the City's water distribution 
system. Mr. Shields obtained his Bachelor of Science Degree in Water Resources Engineering fi·om 
the Pennsylvania State University and his Masters Degree in Public Administration from Florida 
Atlantic University. The first decade of his career was spent as a consulting engineer in the New 
York City Metropolitan area involved in numerous civil/water utility projects, from study through 
design and construction administration. Upon relocation to south Florida, he was a senior project 
manager/client services manager for a large international consulting firm, where he oversaw a 
multitude of large water utility projects for clients on the southeast coast of Florida, from V ero 
Beach to Key West. In this role he was also contracted to be the Utility Director/City Engineer for 
the Cities of Weston and Lauderhill in Broward County. For the public sector, Mr. Shields became 
the Deputy Utility Director for Palm Beach County and spent a decade in charge of overall master 
planning/engineering/capital improvements. 

Bruce Miller has been finance director of the City since 2018. Previously he has served as 
finance director of the Cities of Annapolis, Maryland, Providence, Rhode Island, and several other 
municipalities in the northeast. Mr. Miller has a Bachelor of Science Degree in Accounting from the 
University of Baltimore, and is responsible for all accounting, budgeting and capital planning 
functions of the City. He's a member of the Govermnent Finance Officers Association and has held 
numerous leadership position in municipal finance organizations. 

The Electric Utility 

Service Area. The City's electric service area encompasses approximately 12 square miles, 
with nearly equal areas inside and outside the City limits. Approximately 75% of customers are 
within the City limits, with the remainder in the Village of Palm Springs municipal area (in which 
the City has a non-exclusive franchise to provide service through 2033) and portions of the Palm 
Beach County unincorporated area. The only neighboring utility is Florida Power & Light Company 
("FPL"), an investor-owned utility, and the City and FPL have entered into a Territorial Agreement 
and Contract for Interchange Service, dated as of March 6, 1972, which sets forth their respective 
service areas. See "APPENDIXF --CONSULTING ENGINEER'S REPORT WITH RESPECT TO 
THE ELECTRIC UTILITY" for a visual depiction of the City's electric service area. 

20 



Transmission and Distribution. The electric utility has a single 138KV radial transmission 
interconnection to the FPL Quantum-Hypoluxo and Cedar-Hypoluxo circuits, both located at the 
City's Hypoluxo switching station. The City's transmission system is comprised of 6.25-circuit 
miles of overhead 13 8KV line beginning at the Hypoluxo switching station. The City's transmission 
system provides service to two City-owned transmission substations (Main and Canal) where voltage 
is further reduced to 26KV and 4KV for distribution purposes, as well as providing transmission 
system access for the City-owned power plant and associated generation assets. The City utilizes 
26KV as both a sub-transmission and distribution voltage with a system that is largely radial in 
design, with further transfmmation to 4KV at various substations located throughout the electric 
utility's service territory. As described below under the subheadings "-Generation" and "-Capital 
Improvement Plan", in that the loss of the FPL transmission interconnection poses risk to City 
ratepayers since the City's St. Lucie and Stanton energy as well as other power supplies would be 
prevented from serving the load in the City, a portion of the Project to be financed with proceeds of 
the 2020 Bonds consists of the construction of a second 13 8KV interconnection to the FPL network . 
transmission system to improve reliability. In addition, also as described below, large portions of the 
City's distribution system are dated, and a large part of the electric utility capital improvement plan 
is to harden and improve such facilities so as to greatly improve system resilience and reliability. 

FPL, the owner-operator of the electric transmission system serving large portions of the 
state of Florida, has requested that the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission ("FERC") approve 
its request to increase its transmission rates in recognition of completed and planned system 
improvements. The City's electric utility, represented by the Florida Municipal Power Agency 
("FMP A") and together with numerous other municipal and cooperative utilities statewide, are 
currently in settlement negotiations with FPL and FERC staff. Related matters also being discussed 
include the City's request for the second point of interconnection described above to the FPL 
transmission system at the City's Canal Road switching station. Discussions are proceeding with 
FPL on the second interconnection, which if funded in part by FPL instead of the City would result 
in additional current dollars being available for other electric utility capital projects. (See "-Capital 
Improvement Plan" below.) A conceptual settlement of the rate case satisfactory to all parties 
(subject to final FERC approval) is expected by year-end 2020, with definitive agreements to follow. 

The electric system is monitored and controlled via a supervisory control and data acquisition 
("SCAD A") system connected through FCC licensed radio frequency, with sharing of critical data 
with FPL and the Orlando Utilities Commission ("OUC") via leased telephone lines. System 
operators certified by the Nmih American Electric Reliability Corporation ("NERC") monitor, 
control and coordinate operations of the system at the City's Energy Control Center. 

Generation. The Lake Worth Beach electric generation capacity consists of sole ownership 
of its on-site generation units as well as its ownership interests in the FMP A nuclear St. Lucie 
Project and coal-fired Stanton I Project, and the FMPA Stanton II Project (where the City's 
ownership interest has been assigned to the Kissimmee Utility Authority ("KUA")). The City also 
has solar energy generating capacity through its ownership of a solar photovoltaic power plant atop a 
closed City-owned landfill, and participation in the FMP A's Municipal Solar I and Solar II Projects 
described below. The City is also a holder of a small amount of seasonal firm transportation 
capacity on the Florida Gas Transmission ("FGT") pipeline and a party to a gas transportation 
contract with Florida Public Utilities for dedicated sole use of a high pressure pipeline connecting 

21 



the City power plant to FGT. 

St. Lucie Power Sales and Project Contracts. 

Entitlement and Facility Description. The St. Lucie Unit #2 power plant, located on 
Hutchinson Island in St. Lucie County, Florida, is partly owned by FMPA and is operated by 
FPL. As a participant in the FMPA St. Lucie Project, the City's entitlement totals 22.2 
megawatts (MW). In addition to the ownership ofFMP A in St. Lucie Unit #2, the other co
owners of undivided ownership interests are FPL (85.104%) and OUC (6.089%). St. Lucie 
Unit #2 is a 984 MW pressurized water nuclear generating unit that is part of the two-unit St. 
Lucie nuclear generating station ofFPL located on Hutchinson Island. The City is one of 14 
members of FMP A that currently participate in the FMP A St. Lucie Project. 

Key Contract Terms. Unless terminated pursuant to its terms, the contracts related to 
the FMP A St. Lucie Project will continue until the later of (i) the date the principal of, 
premium and interest on all related bonds have been paid or funds set aside for payment 
thereof, (ii) the date Unit #2 is decommissioned or finally disposed of, or (iii) the date all 
obligations ofFMP A under its participation agreement with FPL have been paid. The City's 
entitlement share is equal to 24.87% ofFMP A's 8.806% entitlement in St. Lucie Unit #2, and 
its share of the transmission services referenced therein. 

Stanton I and II Power Sales and Project Support Contracts. 

Entitlement and Facility Description. The City is a participant in the FMP A projects 
related to the Stanton coal units I and II located in Orlando, Florida, owned and operated by 
OUC. The City's share ofFMPA's Stanton I entitlement totals 11.2 MW. The City's share of 
FMPA's Stanton II entitlement was assigned on July 26, 1995 to KUA, with the City 
retaining rights of first refusal should KUA ever try to sell the former Lake Worth share. 

Key Contract Tenns. Unless terminated pnrsuant to its terms, the Stanton I and 
Stanton II contracts will continue until the later of (i) the date the principal of, premium and 
interest on all related bonds have been paid or funds set aside for payment thereof, or (ii) the 
date the respective unit is decommissioned or finally disposed of, or (iii) the date all 
obligations ofFMP A under its participation agreement with OUC have been paid. The City 
has a 16.26% entitlement share ofFMPA's 14.8193% entitlement in Stanton I and rights of 
first refusal on KUA's 8.2443% share ofFMPA's 15.9962% share of Stanton II. 

FMPA Solar Projects Participation. 

The City is committed to a path to significantly lowering its carbon footprint through the use 
of high efficiency electric generation resources and renewable resources. To that end, the City 
installed a 1. 71 MW -AC solar photovoltaic power plant on a closed City-owned landfill and 
connected to a City 26 KV electric distribution circuit, with power production having begun in late 
2017. 

22 



The City has also entered into the power sales agreement referenced above that provides it 
with a 10 MW-AC share of the FMPA Solm- Project I, beginning in 2023. The FMPA Solm- Project I 
is anticipated to operate over a period of 20 years, and holds a power purchase agreement with 
Pointsett Solru-, LLC, a unit of Florida Renewable Partners and NextEra Florida Renewables, LLC, 
which intends to construct a 74.5 MW-AC solm- photovoltaic power plant at a site in Osceola 
County, Florida which is interconnected to the Duke Energy transmission system. Pricing for power 
from the project has been publicly disclosed to be under $40 per MWh with zero escalation, 
delivered to the Duke h1msmission system. Exact pricing remains a NextEra trade secret. The City is 
also a party to an Energy Exchange Agreement with the FMP A ARP that enables the City to 
exchange its energy entitlements as a FMPA Solar Project(s) participant on the Duke transmission 
system with like amounts of electric energy delivered on the FPL transmission system, thereby 
allowing the City to avoid transmission chm-ges on the Duke transmission system. 

Additionally, the City has entered into a power sales contract with the FMP A Solar Project II. 
FMP A Solm- Project II is anticipated to begin operation in 2023 and operate over a period of 20 
years. The City has committed to participate in the FMPA Solm- Project II at an m-nount 26.55 MW. 
The FMP A Solm- Project II will hold a power purchase agreement with FL Solru-, LLC, a unit of 
Origis Energy, who intends to construct two 7 4.5 MW-AC solm- photovoltaic power plants at sites in 
north-central Florida. Pricing for power from the project has been publicly disclosed to be under $28 
per MWh. Exact pricing remains a FL Solar, LLC trade secret. As with the FMPA Solm- I project 
described above, the City is also a pm-ty to an Energy Exchange Agreement with the FMP A ARP 
that enables the City to exchange its energy entitlements as a FMPA Solar Project(s) participant on 
the Duke transmission system with like m-nounts of electric energy delivered on the FPL 
transmission system, thereby allowing the City to avoid transmission chru-ges on the Duke 
transmission system. 

The City intends to continue to explore additional sources of electric generation entitlements 
as may be in its strategic interests. Efforts currently underway include the exploration of options 
discussed below in regm-d to the existing power plant, additional solm- photovoltaic systems directly 
connected to the City electric distribution system, the utilization of battery energy storage, and the 
importation of electric energy from ocean current energy projects powered by the Gulf Stream 
cunent. 

The City's elech·ic utility anticipates that beginning in 2024, greater than 50% of its energy 
supply will come from carbon-free resources, comprised of nuclear and solar energy. Furthermore, 
the City electric utility anticipates that the efforts to maximize the use of carbon-free resources will 
allow it to reduce its em-bon emissions by more than 50% compared to 2005 levels. 

Orlando Utilities Commission Contract. The City and OUC have entered into an Agreement 
for Base, Intermediate and Peaking Purchase and Sale of Electric Energy and Capacity ("the OUC 
Agreement") expiring December 31, 2022 with extension rights to December 31, 2025. Under this 
agreement OUC schedules and dispatches energy to the City to supplement energy supplied from the 
City's generation entitlements and schedules and dispatches the City's units in the Florida Municipal 
Power Pool ("FMPP"). The OUC Agreement, which was entered into via a competitive process in 
which the City received several proposals, cunently provides for approximately 52% of the City's 
electric capacity. The City expects, at the culmination of said agreement, to undertake another 

23 



competitive process, if necessary, to either extend or enter into new agreements for wholesale 
electric supply, and expects to have multiple options again to choose from. 

City Power Plant Facilities. The City's power plant located at 117 College Street, Lake 
Worth Beach, Florida, is wholly owned by the City, and houses nine of the City's 10 generating 
units with a total capacity of90.3 MWs on a 20-acre site. The names "College Street" and "T.G. 
Smith Power Plant" are used interchangeably and refer to the same City power plant located at 117 
College Street. The City also wholly owns and operates a tenth unit, the 1. 7 MW solar photovoltaic 
generation unit installed atop a closed City-owned landfill in 2017 and within the City limits. 

The units installed at the College Street power plant range in size from 2.0 to 26.0 MW and 
offer load following capability. In addition to providing peaking capacity to the Florida electric 
system via the FMPP, these units are dispatched by the FMPP when economic circumstances dictate 
or when the FPL transmission system experiences congestion constraints. 

The capacity of each unit is: GT-1: 26.0 MW, GT-2: 20.0 MW, S-3: 25.0 MW, S-5: 10.0 
MW and M-1 through M-5: 2.0 MWs each. GT -2 is capable of simple cycle operation but typically 
run in combined cycle with S-5 and are collectively referred to as the Lake Worth CC unit. Waste 
heat from the GT-2 combustion turbine is directed to a heat recovery steam generator, where 
sufficient steam is produced to operate the S-5 steam turbine. The City's units (other than the "M" 
units) are dispatched using economic dispatch and reliability criteria by the FMPP. 

The City's power plant's "M" units are designated as emergency units and provide black start 
capability on diesel fuel, enabling all of the City's units to be brought on line during periods of 
transmission grid or tie line outages to supply the City electric utility's needs. The City electric 
utility is capable of operating independent of the grid in "island mode" during low or medium load 
periods of the year for tie line maintenance. The City's power plant is operated by a workforce of 
City employees. Most of these employees are members of the International BrotherhoodofElectrical 
Workers. 

The unit heat rate, start up, minimum run times and allowable hours are shown in the table 
below. 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

24 



Heat Rate, Start Up and Minimum Run Times 

Heat Rate at Average Allowable 
Full Load Natural Start Up Times Operating 

Unit Gas Btu/kwh (HHV) (Cold Start) Hours Hours 

GT-1 15,092 1 NA 

GT-2 14,441 2 NA 

S-3 12,537 6 NA 

GT-2/S-5 10,583 5 NA 

M-1 10,500 1 * 
M-2 10,500 1 * 
M-3 10,500 1 * 
M-4 10,500 1 * 
M-5 10,500 1 * 

* 100 hours per year for testing and maintenance. No limitation for 
emergency operations. Non-emergency situations are limited to 50 hours 
[per year, however those 50 hours are counted towards the 100 hour 
imitation. Per Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations. 

Source: City of Lake Worth Beach. 

(REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK) 

25 



All the generators are air cooled except S-3, which utilizes hydrogen as the cooling medium. 
GT-2 has dual fuel capability (in both simple cycle and combined cycle) which provides enhanced 
reliability for the electric utility system, the ability to arbitrage between natural gas and oil prices, 
and has provided economic benefits when the natural gas transportation system is at peak level 
tlu·ough the avoidance of capacity overage penalties. The primary and backup fuel for each unit is 
listed below the table below. 

Power Plant Primary and Back Up Fnel Types 

Unit Primary Fnel Type Back Up Fnel TyiJe 
GT-1 Diesel ---
GT-2 Natural Gas Diesel 
S-3 Natural Gas ---

GT-2/S-5 Natural Gas Diesel 
LWS-1 Solar ---
Ml-M5 Diesel ---

Source: City of Lake Worth Beach. 

The boiler and generator manufacturers and age of plant are listed in the table below. GT -2 
underwent a major overhaul in January of 2018. The unit received all new compressor blades 
(rotating and stationary) as well as a new set of 1st stage turbine buckets. Borescope reports from 
2016 indicate GT-1 is in good condition. The S-3 generating unit continues to operate and is 
functioning well. The S-5 generating unit which runs in combined cycle with the GT -2 has been 
routinely maintained and inspected to meet industry standards. The Ml through M5 units are also in 
good operating condition and provide emergency generation when called upon. The City's units are 
typically called upon to run by FMPP in the spring and fall, when generating units in the FMPP 
and/or FMP A projects in which the City is a participant are being maintained or experience 
unplanned outages, for grid support and/or spinning reserve. 

The City's College Street power plant site has a large concrete foundation that was originally 
built in the early 2000's by a merchant electric wholesale power producer for a 165 MW combined 
cycle plant that was never completed. A dedicated natural gas pipeline owned by Florida Public 
Utilities (a unit of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation) transports natural gas from the FGT line to the 
City's power plant and has the capability of transporting at least 4,070 Mcf per hour to the 
redelivery point at a minimum pressure of 450 p.s.i.g. This pipeline's unused capacity could be 
utilized for service to a new generating unit at this site. 

The City is a holder of 7,542 Dekatherrns (Dth) per day of seasonal firm gas transportation 
service (also referred to as "capacity") on FGT's natural gas pipeline system. This capacity was 
obtained by the City decades ago as a means of ensuring the ability to deliver natural gas fuel to the 
City's power plant during periods of highest demand on the FGT system (May through October 
annually). The City's need for this capacity to support the current power plant units has decreased 
substantially over the years since it was first contracted for, driven largely by the installation of far 
more efficient and lower priced sources of electricity in the Florida marketplace and to which the 
City has availed itself of via the competitive procurement process. Hence, the City does not 

26 



contemplate needing its firm gas transportation capacity to operate the current power plant but for 
extenuating circumstances, which in turn makes it possible to sell natural gas bundled with its firm 
gas capacity for a limited period. The recently effectuated energy supply agreement with OUC 
(effective January I, 20 19) enabled the City to take over the management of its own capacity on the 
FGT system to extract the maximum value from this asset. 

The City utilizes the services of the Florida Gas Utility ("FGU") to manage its capacity on 
the FGT system. FGU is a public body corporate and politic joint action agency formed under the 
Florida Interlocal Cooperation Act, and has been under contract with the City since July 26, 1995 via 
a Gas Services Agreement approved by the City Commission. FGU cunently has 23 members, 
consisting of a municipal joint action agency, one combination gas distribution and electric 
generation utilities, six electric generating utilities, and sixteen gas distribution systems. 

Utilizing the services ofFGU, the City executed a transaction to sell capacity and natural gas 
to Peninsula Energy Services Company ("PESCO"). PESCO has subsequently sold its natural gas 
marketing operations to Gas South, LLC. The terms of the agreement remain unchanged. Under the 
terms of the transaction, the City may tern1inate the sale no earlier than December 31, 2021 upon 365 
days' written notice if the City proceeds with a capital project requiring delivery of natural gas to the 
City. This clause is intended to retain the City's ability to schedule deliveries of7,542 Dth per day 
of natural gas on a firm basis during the months of May through October annually should it elect to 
build a new unit at the power plant. 

Generator Boiler and Turbine Manufacturers and Age of Plant 

In-Service 
Unit Boiler Turbine Date Age 
GT-1 -~-- 26 MW Westinghouse 

251B Gas Turbine 1976 42 
GT-2 20 MW GE MS5001P 

Steam Turbine 1978 40 
S-3 Riley 25 MW Westinghouse 

Stoker Steam Turbine 1967 51 
dual fuel 

S-5 10 MW GE Steam Turbine 1978 49 
Solar 1 --- -------- 2017 2 

M1-M5 --- General Motor EMD 567D 
reciprocating engines 1965 53 

Source: City of Lake Worth Beach. 

There are eight fuel tanks at the facility with a combined working capacity of 182,700 
gallons of#2 fuel oil. Four tanks are protected by cathodes and four are horizontal. 

As described above, the City has only one 138 KV tie line from the FPL Hypoluxo 
Substation to the City power plant. The loss of the FPL transmission interconnection poses risk to 
City ratepayers since the City's St. Lucie and Stanton energy as well as other power supplies would 
be prevented from serving the load the City load. Cunently, the only back-up to the transmission tie 

27 



is the City's local generation at the College Street power plant and the Solar field. The capacity of 
the existing FPL transmission tie is approximately 230 MV A 

The City's electric utility staff continually maintains its owned generation assets in a state of 
readiness for operation, performs required operational and environmental emissions testing, trains 
and drills operators to maintain proficiency, and reports daily on unit availability. 

Several new generating resources have been evaluated for the College Street power plant site. 
An analysis by an engineering consulting firm on behalf of the City has been conducted to determine 
least cost options for meeting the electric utility's load obligations. The analysis concluded that 
installing new generating units that would be owned by the City were not economic when compared 
to wholesale electric and capacity purchases under forecasted market conditions as of2018. The 
City's electric utility leadership monitors market conditions on an on-going basis to identifY changes 
that could signal a favorable climate for investing in new self-owned generation and/or battery 
energy storage devices, none of which appear economic for the City's portfolio at this time. It is 
likely that some of the steam generation facilities will be retired upon completion of the additional 
tie-line project financed in part with the 2020 Bonds. 

Customer-Owned Renewable Generation (Net Metering). The City allows for customers to 
interconnect to the City's electric utility distribution system in conformance with Section 366.91, 
Florida Statutes. Customers who choose to participate in the program are required to execute an 
interconnection agreement with the City. Customer-owned systems are limited in size by three 
factors: a) the system shall not be greater than 10 KW-AC in size, b) the system size shall be no 
greater than the capacity of the service line connecting the customer's facility to the electric 
distribution system, and c) the system shall not produce more energy than the customer's prior 
annual use. Program participation in total is limited to no more than 1.5% of the electric utility's 
system peak demand. 

Prior to October 1, 2019, all customers with such systems who were net exporters of electric 
energy to the City's electric distribution system cumulatively for their billing month were 
compensated for their net exports in the form of a monthly credit on their City utility bill for the 
subsequent month at a rate equal to their retail electric rate. For the purposes of this discussion a net 
exporting customer is considered to be a customer whose system produced more energy than they 
imported from the City's electric utility. Effective October 1, 2019, the City changed its policy on 
calculating payments to customers for net exported energy to be based on their annual net export 
balance multiplied by the City's electric utility's avoided wholesale energy rate. Additionally, 
effective October 1, 2019, all customers participating in the program were required to pay an electric 
bill of no less than the minimum monthly bill applicable to all City electric utility customers. 

As of September 30,2020, customer-owned renewable generation systems connected to the 
City's electric utility total128 systems with an estimated total combined rating ofl,l37.9 KW-AC. 
An additional 11 customer-owned renewable generation systems are in the permitting process with 
an estimated combined rating of 100.4 KW-AC. Total energy delivered from customer-owned 
renewable generation systems to the City's electric utility for calendar year 2019 (as of December 
19, 2019) equaled 632,53 7 KWh. The annual net calculation for all net-metered customers has not 
yet been calculated. 

28 



FY 

2013 

2014 

2015 

2016 

2017 

2018 

2019 

2020 

To date all customer-owned renewable generation systems are comprised of solar 
photovoltaic systems. 

Load Obligations Overview. Load obligations consist of all-requirements service for the 
approximately 27,000 customers of the City's electric utility. The tables below provide a summary 
of energy consumption and monthly peak loads and of the City customers for the past eight Fiscal 
Years. 

Historical Energy and Peak Loads 

Monthly Net Energy for Load (MWh) 

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept 

37,770 26,728 30,194 30,049 27,263 28,396 34,923 36,973 42,394 42,491 46,953 40,539 

40,878 33,337 32,815 30,449 29,999 31,631 35,884 41,130 43,331 44,655 47,833 42,262 

39,399 30,502 30,740 30,011 26,548 35,724 39,288 42.259 45,612 46,745 47,879 44,248 

41,329 38,588 36,631 29,377 27,947 34,453 36,021 41,332 45,563 52,218 50,545 44,541 

40,195 32,417 35,209 31,245 20,728 32,485 37,014 44,162 44,341 50,408 49,908 41,579 

41,724 34,451 32,355 30,346 32,292 30,812 39,257 41,931 43,140 48,193 50,558 47,354 

44,405 35,813 31,380 29,535 30,830 33,186 37,983 43,190 45,465 49,737 46,492 45,563 

45,228 33,139 31,859 30,805 30,705 36,403 38,303 39,229 46,004 49,179 50,738 46,493 

Source: City of Lake Worth Beach. 

Monthly Non-Coincident Peak Demand (MW) 

Peak 
FY Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Month 

2013 81.2 59.4 69.0 65.1 66.2 65.7 76.7 78.0 85.5 85.3 87.4 86.4 87.4 

2014 82.2 74.3 66.1 64.8 69.4 65.0 81.7 81.0 85.2 92.1 86.7 82.1 92.1 

2015 77.2 73.3 64.3 67.3 64.4 71.7 88.7 87.0 90.3 89.0 91.1 92.6 92.6 

2016 85.3 82.5 72.3 75.5 64.4 75.9 78.7 83.2 91.8 96.3 95.9 89.9 96.3 

2017 86.8 69.7 75.7 69.0 71.4 72.4 83.5 92.0 93.3 95.4 96.4 93.4 96.4 

2018 87.3 74.3 70.7 64.3 71.8 75.8 78.1 81.8 94.0 94.6 94.3 94.2 94.6 

2019 89.2 78.3 75.9 66.5 74.1 75.6 81.4 86.3 97.2 95.3 90.5 94.1 97.2 

2020 88.2 81.1 69.7 68.2 74.2 81.7 85.5 85.0 96.1 95.9 96.7 95.3 96.7 

Source: City of Lake Worth Beach. 

(REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK) 

29 

Total 

424,673 

454,204 

458,955 

478,545 

468,691 

472,413 

473,580 

478,085 



As described above, slightly more than 50% of the City's energy is currently provided 
through the OUC Agreement, which became effective January 1, 2019. The actual amount received 
for calendar year 2019 is shown in the following table. 

Exhibit 1 
Sources of Energy (Calendar 2019) 

Supplier MWh Percent of Total 
ouc 270,032 55.0% 
Stanton 47,503 9.7% 
St. Lucie 163,498 33.3% 
LW Solar 1 3,049 0.6% 
Tom Smith Power Plant 6,444 1.3% 

Total 490,526 

Source: City of Lake W mih Beach. 

On a monthly and certainly hourly basis, these numbers vary significantly based upon unit 
availability, and to a much lesser extent the economic dispatch of City-owned units. The following 
table shows the maximum and minimum monthly percentage of energy provided under the external 
energy sources over the calendar year 2019. 

Sources of Purchased Energy (Max/Min) 

Maximum Minimum 
Monthly Monthly 

Supplier Percent Percent 
ouc 70.6 27.9 
Stanton 15.9 0.0 
St. Lucie 56.6 18.4 

Source: City of Lake Worth Beach. 

(REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK) 

30 



The City expects its load to increase 0.75% per year through 2025. The tables belowprovide 
its current estimate for the peak and energy forecast, demand and non-coincident peak demand, and 
monthly forecasted net energy for load. 

Peak and Energy Summary Forecast 

Maximum Total 
Fiscal Peak Energy 
Year MW MWH 
2021 98.2 522,122 
2022 98.7 548,228 
2023 99.2 575,639 
2024 99.7 604,421 
2025 100.2 634,642 

Source: City of Lake Worth Beach. 

Customers. The table set forth below sets forth the average nwnber of retail meters and billed 
usage in the City over the last five Fiscal Years, as well as a projection for Fiscal Year 2020: 

Electric Utility Average Number of Retail Meters & Annual Billed Usage(ll 

Fiscal Monthly 
Year Billed Usage per 

Ending Annual Usage Annual Meter Annual 
Sept30 Meters Change (kWh) Change (kWh) Change 
2015 26,646 430,345,000 1,345,863 
2016 26,879 0.87% 434,758,000 1.03% 1,347,907 
2017 27,192 1.17 428,747,000 (1.38) 1,313,962 
2018 27,233 0.15 433,186,000 1.04 1,325,551 
2019 27,361 0.47 436,202,715 0.70 1,328,542 
2020(2) 27,479 0.43 437,504,240 0.30 1,326,801 

0.62% 0.33% 

Source: City of Lake Worth Beach- Utility Monthly Report. 
(I) Reflects residential, commercial, and commercial demand meters. 
(Z) Projected customer billings based upon asswnptions developed with staff. 

(REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK) 

31 



The following table lists the ten largest retail customers of the electric utility for Fiscal Year 
2019, which in total represents approximately 6.78% of total retail sales revenues. 

Electric Utility's 10 Largest Retail Customers 
For Fiscal Year 2019 

Rank 
(kWh's) 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 
10 

Customer Name 
Palm Beach State College 
Palm Beach County School (High School) 
Palm Beach State College 
Select Specialty Hospital 
Wal-Mart 
Lake Worth Utilities (RO Water Treatment Plant) 
Lake Worth Community Middle School 
El Bodegon #4 ( 4481 Lake Worth Rd) 
Publix Supermarket 
Lake Worth Towers 

Source: Consulting Engineer's Report. 

Usage 
(kWh's) 

7,425,600 
4,489,800 
4,478,400 
4,034,400 
3,236,400 
3,256,800 
2,944,500 
2,490,000 
2,290,800 
2,059,200 

Rates. The City's current electric rates are shown in the following table: 

Fiscal Year 2020 Electric Schedule of Rates 

Electric Rates by Customer Class: 
Fixed Monthly Charges: 
Customer Charge (Fixed Charge) 

Energy Charges (Usage Rate): 
Base Energy Charge (Fist 1,000 kWh's) 
Base Energy Charge (2: 1,000 kWh's) 
Fuel Surcharge (Fist 1,000 kWh's) 
Fuel Surcharge (2: 1,000 kWh's) 
Capacity Charge 
Demand Charge 

Residential 

$10.53 

$0.05148 
0.07880 
0.03578 
0.39000 
0.01020 

Source: City of Lake Worth Beach - Utility Monthly Report. 

Commercial 

$16.66 

0.07040 
0.07040 
0.03900 
0.03900 
0.01020 

Revenues 
$647,315 

522,993 
455,648 
404,577 
325,875 
332,190 
344,762 
253,570 
233,845 
217,017 

Commercial 
Demand 

$120.00 

0.03550 
0.03550 
0.02890 
0.02890 
0.01020 

$14.48000 

Unlike the water and sewer utilities, the electric utility does not currently charge a surcharge 
on customers residing outside the city limits. The Financial Feasibility Report prepared by Stantec 
Consulting Services, Inc. (see "APPENDIX G --FINANCIAL FEASIBILITY REPORT" attached 
hereto) recommends annual electric rate increases of2.25% beginning in Fiscal Year 2024. 

32 



The following table shows a comparison of typical monthly electric utility bills: 

Comparison of Approximate Typical Monthly Bills of Selected Florida Utilities(ll 

Lake Worth Beach (City of) 
Duke Energy Florida with Franchise FeeC2l 

Florida Power & Light Company with Franchise FeeC2l 
Fort Pierce (City of) 
Gainesville (City of) 
Jacksonville Electric Authority 
Lakeland (City of) 
Orlando Utilities Commission 
Tampa Electric Company with Franchise FeeC2l 

Residential 
Electric Service 

1 000 kWh 
$107.99 

128.64 
94.02 

103.84 
123.13 
108.50 
92.77 

109.50 
126.84 

Source: City of Lake Worth Beach and FMEA Florida Electric Bill Comparisons. 
(!) Bills include fuel adjustments but do not include franchise fees or utility taxes unless otherwise 

noted, based on 1,000KWH. Bills are based on rates in effect as of August 2020. 
C2l Amounts shown include a 6% typical fi'anchise fee. Due to fuel adjustment and other one-time 

credits, differences between bills may be exaggerated from what would otherwise be a normal 
differential. For example, FPL' s monthly bills decreased due in part to a lump-sum credit in the 
summer of2020. 

Rate Regulation. The PSC has jurisdiction over municipal electric utilities to prescribe 
uniform systems and classification of accounts, to prescribe and enforce safety standards for 
transmission and distribution facilities, to require electric power conservation and reliability, to 
regulate electric impact fees, to establish rules and regulations regarding cogeneration, to approve 
territorial agreements, to settle territorial disputes, to prescribe rate structures, and to prescribe and 
require the periodic filing of reports and other data. Pursuant to the rules of the PSC, rate structure is 
defined as" ... the classification system used in justifYing different rates and, more specifically, ... 
the rate relationship between various customer classes, as well as the rate relationship between 
members of a customer class." However, the PSC and the Florida Supreme Court have determined 
that the PSC, other than its rate structure jurisdiction, does not have jurisdiction over municipal 
electric utility rates. 

Capital Improvement Plan. The City has developed an electric utility capital investment plan 
("CIP") comprised largely of a series of reliability improvement projects and activities of 
significantly improving system reliability, hardening its electric transmission and distribution 
systems to withstand storm force winds, providing for adequate electric delivery infrastructure to 
support increased residential and commercial development, decreased operating costs, and 
supporting future demand for new uses of electricity such as vehicle charging stations. The projects 
are primarily comprised of a transmission project (a second 138 kV tie line to the FPL transmission 
system), and multiple distribution projects (replacement of substations and upgrades of circuits) as 
well as the construction of a new electric utility operations center. Approximately 22% of the funds 

33 



being raised me intended to be invested in transmission projects, with the remaining 78% dedicated 
lmgely to distribution system projects. 

With much of the City's electric distribution system at or above 50 yems of age, the system 
has experienced declined reliability and pockets of diminished ability to reliably support customer 
growth, as would be normally expected of aging infrastructure. In addition to the benefits of 
improved reliability to hardening of the electric system, paTticularly the installation of a second tie 
line to the FPL transmission system serving the region, the electric CIP will allow the City to begin 
the process of retiring aged electric generation units and lead to a net reduction in operating costs. 
As described above, the City's electric supply needs are now met largely by electric imports sourced 
statewide from a combination of City-owned generation entitlements in FMPA projects and 
purchases from OUC. For the most recent calendaT year, upwards of97.5% of the City's electric 
supply needs were met with imports, with the remaining 2.5% coming from the City's solar (installed 
in 20 17) and fossil fueled units on-site. The City's on-site fossil fueled units were installed in the 
1960s and 1970s and serve lmgely in a capacity role and as reliability devices in the event of a 
failure of the single City-owned transmission tie line to the FPL transmission system serving the 
region. The fixed costs associated with maintaining operational readiness of these units, as well as 
their vaTiable operating costs, are significantly above mmket costs for like amounts of capacity and 
energy. 

The table below setting forth the 5-yem electric utility CIP includes the following: 

Service 
Electric 
Electric 
Electric 
Electric 
Electric 

Project Name 
Palm Beach lO'h Ave 
Electric Sys Ops Center (Cat 5 Level) 
FDOT & PBC 6th AveS. Improvements 
Oracle- Cloud Based Softwme Solution 
System Hmdening & Reliability 
Improvement (SHRIP) 

Total Electric 

Source: Financial Feasibility Report. 

Amount 
$365,000 

420,000 
460,000 
690,000 

42,609,000 
$44,544,000 

Transfers to the General Fund. The City annually transfers to its General Fund amounts from 
its electric enterprise fund. A portion of such amounts aTe equivalent to what the City deems it would 
otherwise charge as a franchise fee if the provider of such service was a private provider rather than 
the City, and these amounts are listed as "Transfers In" to the General Fund in the City's financial 
statements; a sepmate amount related to direct and indirect costs of the City attributable to such 
enterprise operations is treated as part of "Chmges for Services". The City does not have a set 
formula for such transfers, and each year's amount is paTt of the budget process of the City; 
however, City management has expressed a desire to reduce the transfer portion not attributable to 
direct and indirect costs closer to 8% of revenues from its current level of approximately 10.8% of 
revenues. As described above, the Resolution limits the amount of excess System Net Revenues that 
may transferred to the General Fund for any lawful purpose (including such franchise fee amounts, 
but not Chmges for Services) to a maximum of 10% of Gross Revenues per Fiscal Year. There is no 
legal obligation of the City to transfer any amount from the enterprise funds to the General Fund. 

34 



The table set forth below shows historical electric utility transfers (including the "franchise fee" and 
transfers in connection with the City's Park of Commerce that are not expected to continue in Fiscal 
Years 2020 onward due to capital improvements made thereto, but not including Charges for 
Services that are treated as an Operating Expense) for the past five Fiscal Years: 

Fiscal Year 
2016 
2017 
2018 
2019 

2020 (unaudited) 

Electric Transfer 
$4,240,980 

4,375,453 
5,163,700 
5,699,741 
4,536,491 

Projections of future transfers are included as part of the Financial Feasibility Report attached 
hereto as APPENDIX G. 

Factors Affecting the Electric Utilitv Industry. 

General. The electric utility industry in Florida has been, or in the future may be, affected by 
a number of factors that could have an impact on the financial condition of a utility such as the City's 
electric utility. These factors likely would affect individual utilities in different ways. Such factors 
include, among others: (i) effects of compliance with rapidly changing enviromnental, licensing and 
regulatory requirements, including but not limited to climate change, (ii) regulatory changes and 
changes that result from the development and enforcement of a national or state energy policy, (iii) 
the uncertainty of access to low cost capital for replacement of aging fixed assets, (iv) mandatory 
reliability standards, (v) increases in operating costs, and (vi) availability and cost of fuel supply. 
These factors and others are discussed in more detail below in relation to how they affect the City. 

Electric utility operations are subject to federal, state, regional and local environmental 
standards and procedures that change from time to time. Compliance with the new requirements may 
result in increased costs to the electric utility. The City cannot predict at this time whether any 
additional laws or regulations will be enacted which will affect the operation of the electric utility, 
and if such laws or regulations are enacted, what impacts on the electric utility might result from 
such actions. 

FERC Transmission Initiatives. In February 2007, FERC issued Order No. 890 reforming 
portions of Order No. 888 and Order No. 889. Order No. 890 reforms include: (i) greater consistency 
and transparency in available transmission capacity calculations; (ii) open, coordinated and 
transparent planning; (iii) reforms of energy imbalance penalties; (iv) reform of rollover rights 
policy; (v) clarification of tariff ambiguities; and (vi) increased transparency and customer access to 
information. FERC reaffirmed several of the core elements of the Order No. 888 in Order No. 890, 
including: (i) the comparability requirement wherein third party users of the transmission system 
must receive service in a manner comparable to the transmission owner's use of the system; (ii) the 
continuance of protections for native load customers' transmission service rights; and (iii) FERC's 
approach to reciprocity for non-jurisdictional transmission owners, which includes the City. A 
public utility may refuse to provide open access transmission service to a non-public utility if the 
non-public utility refuses to reciprocate. 

35 



Mandatory Reliability Standards. NERC, acting in its role as the PERC-certified Electric 
Reliability Organization ("ERO"), has adopted reliability and cyber security standards that the City 
is subject to with its electric utility operations. These standards became effective starting in June 
2007 and continue to evolve over time. FERC has approved NERC's compliance and monitoring 
programs that identifY the seven regional entities that monitor, assess and enforce the compliance 
standards. As of July 1, 2019, the City falls under the Southeastern Reliability Corporation(" SERC") 
region. Prior to July I, 2019, the City fell under the Florida Reliability Coordinating Council 
("FRCC"). The ERO has delegated certain authority to SERC to propose and enforce reliability 
standards within the FRCC region, which includes the City. The issuance of these orders enables the 
PERC-approved reliability standards to be enforceable, and SERC is authorized under federal law to 
order corrective measures and to levy financial penalties of up to $1,000,000 per day per violation. 

The City has continued its quality assurance program to comply with all mandatory reliability 
standards for the bulk-power system. The City is subject to on-site compliance audits every three 
years, since it is a registered "Generator Owner", "Generator Operator", and "Transmission Owner". 
The FRCC completed a compliance audit of the City in February 2017 that included fourteen (14) 
applicable NERC reliability standards with twenty-five (25) individual requirements. This scope 
was greatly reduced over previous audits due to the introduction of the Inherent Risk Assessment 
process. During the audit, the audit team notified the City of zero (0) Areas of Concern, zero (0) 
Recommendations, and six (6) potential noncompliance issues ("PNC"). The City corrected and 
closed out all open mitigation plans associated with the PNCs. The City agreed to enter into a 
Settlement Agreement with FRCC to avoid extended litigation and to pursue a complete and final 
resolution of the six (6) requirement violations. The City agreed that this Settlement Agreement is in 
the best interest of the parties and in the best interest of bulk-power system reliability. Between 
August 30, 2019 and November 14, 2019, SERC conducted a spot-check ofNEC Standard PER-
005-2 which resulted in zero (0) areas of concern, zero (0) recommendations, and zero (0) potential 
non-compliances. 

NERC also maintains a host of reliability standards associated with Critical Infrastructure 
Protection. The first set of requirements became mandatory and enforceable for the City on July I, 
2016, with successive sets of requirements following in subsequent years. A new slate of such 
standards became effective July l, 2016, and additional requirements applicable to low impact assets 
became effective on January l, 2020. The City was dete1mined to have only Low Impact BES 
Cyber Systems. The City has not yet been audited on the most recent set of Critical Infrastructure 
Protection requirements but has worked closely with the FRCC, SERC, and consultants to prepare its 
demonstration of compliance. The City maintains standards of cyber security as a matter of internal 
procedure, and has prepared for future applicability of the Critical Infrastructure Protection 
standards. 

Environmental. The City's electric utility is subject to several environmental laws, 
regulations, and permitting requirements by a variety of entities at the federal, state, and local levels. 
Generally, environmental regulations have the potential to substantially increase the City's system 
costs, by requiring alterations in the operation of any forthcoming new facilities. Due to the 
constantly changing nature of these regulations, there is no assurance that the City's facilities will 
remain subject to the regulations currently in effect, will always be in compliance with future 

36 



regulations or that the City will always be able to obtain or maintain all required permits. An 
inability to comply with environmental standards or deadlines could result in fines and/or legal 
action as well as reduced operating levels or complete shutdown of individual electric generating 
units or facilities out of compliance. Furthermore, clean air laws and compliance with 
environmental standards or deadlines may substantially increase capital and operating costs. The 
electric utility's substations date back to the late 1960s and are presumed to have utilized oil-filled 
equipment throughout their life as a City of Lake Worth Beach or former Lake Worth Utility 
Authority-owned asset. The City's electric utility will perform environmental smveys as early as 
possible and prior to any construction at the plant site. Remediation requirements and activities as 
may be identified dming the smvey process will be undertaken as required, as will any remediation 
requirements that may be discovered during construction activities. 

The City believes itself to have been, and currently is, in compliance with all of its standing 
environmental permits. 

Florida Legislative Acts. Dming the 2020 legislative session, a number of bills were filed 
that would have potentially impacted the electric industry in Florida, several of which are described 
below. 

• A bill was filed in the House (HB653) that would have eliminated the ability for 
municipal electric utilities to transfer funds to the general government for use in 
general government operations. No companion bill was filed in the Senate and the 
House bill died in committee. 

• While not a legislative action, a citizen petition initiative seeking to have a 
constitutional amendment before the voters in 2020 that would have amended the 
Florida Constitution to make it a right to select one's own electric provider was 
conducted in 2019. See "-Constitutional Amendments", below. 

Constitutional Amendments. In Florida, changes to the State Constitution may be proposed 
by a citizen initiative, and, if a requisite number of signatmes supporting the same are received in a 
timely fashion, placed on the general election ballot. If at least 60% of those voting on said proposal 
approve it, the same shall become a part ofFlorida' s Constitution and enforceable as law. In the past 
several years, a number of measmes have been proposed, and in some cases approved, that have 
changed Florida's Constitution. Two recent proposals relating to the electric utility industry are 
referenced below. 

In August 2016, Amendment 4, a pro-solar tax abatement measme was approved by 73% of 
Florida voters. The amendment was implemented by the State Legislatme through section 193.624, 
Florida Statutes. Once enacted, renewable energy equipment such as solar panels and windmills 
became exempt from state tangible property taxes. Further, property appraisers cannot consider 
equipment when calculating a property's assessed value. Tax exemptions begin in 2018 and last 20 
years. The amendment extends these exemptions, which homeowners have enjoyed since 2013, to 
businesses. 

37 



A separate solar amendment initiative, proposing that energy customers would have the right 
to choose from multiple providers, or by producing electricity themselves, received the required 
number of signatures to appear on the 2020 ballot, but the ballot language was rejected by the 
Florida Supreme Court. 

No assurance can be given that such constitutional amendment or future amendments will not 
be proposed and passed which could adversely affect the electric utility industry. 

(REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK) 

38 



Historical Revenues and Expenses of the Electric Utility. The following table sets fmih the 
gross revenues and costs of operation and maintenance of the electric utility for Fiscal Years 20 16 
through 2019, with projections for Fiscal Year 2020. 

Historical Electric Utility Revenues and Expenses (in OOOs)* 

Fiscal Year Ended 2020 
Se[!tem ber 30l1l 2016 2017 2018 2019 {Unaudited} 

Operating Revenues 
Charges for Servicesl2l $57,011,403 $55,850,044 $54,280,835 $55,128,532 $60,881,153 
Total Operating Revenues $57,011,403 $55,850,044 $54,280,835 $55,128,532 $60,881,153 

Operating Expenses 
Cost of Services $41,908,125 $47,491,790 $50,222,213 $45,179,726 $46,124,298 
General and Administrative 2,915,792 3,112,061 3,535,360 3,438,205 3,246,529 
Depreciation 1,783,107 1,819,728 1,706,914 1,923,968 1,923,968 
Total Operating Expenses $46,607,024 $52,423,579 $55,464,487 $50,541,899 $51,294,795 

Total Operating Income (Loss) $10,404,379 $3,426,465 $(1, 183,652) $4,586,633 $9,586,358 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 
Investment Income $150,334 $141,414 $258,287 $413,374 $171,866 
Interest and Fiscal Charges (668,511) (I ,498,448) (1,027,599) (925,612) (873,714) 
Other 716,124 597,405 601,955 540 035 476,144 
Total Nonoperating Revenues 

(Expenses) $197,947 $(759,629) $(167,357) $27,797 $(225,704) 

Income (Loss) Before Contributions 
and Transfers $10,602,326 $2,666,836 $(! ,351 ,009)(3) $4,614,430 $9,360,654 

Transfers and Contributions 
Connection Fees ${ 4,240,980) $( 4,375,453) $(5,163,700) $(5,699,741) $(4,536,491) 
Transfers Out $6,361,346 $(1,708,617) $6,514,709) $(1,085,311) $4,824,163 

Change in Net Position 

Net Position, Beginning of Year $20,589,778 $26,951,124 $25,517,933 $19,902,797 $18,817,486 
Net Position, End of Year $26,951,124 $25,242,507 $19,003,224 $18,817,486 $23,641,649 

Source: Financial Feasibility Report. 
Cll Note that historical operating results through September 30, 2019, including the net position at 

beginning of year and end of year, are based upon audited infonnation from the City's 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports ("CAFR") for Fiscal Years 2016 through 2019. Fiscal 
Year 2020 figures were derived based upon City staffs adopted budget and staffs projections as 
of July 2020 and are unaudited. See also "RISK FACTORS- Impact of COVID-19" for 
additional information on Fiscal Year 2020. 

(Z) Charges for services includes items such as electric sales, capacity charges, fuel smcharges, 
service charges, penalties/late fees, etc. 

(J) Revenues were down in Fiscal Year 2018 due to rate decreases designed to maintain relative rate 
parity with FPL, while expenses were up due to repair costs related to the City's GT2 gas tmbine 
unit compressors that were classified as operating costs. 

39 



The Water Utility 

Description. The City's water utility provides potable drinking water throughout the City's 
serv1ce area. 

Service Area. The City's water service area includes all residents within the City limits, as 
well as the Town of Lake Clarke Shores and a portion of the unincorporated area of Palm Beach 
County generally between Congress Avenue and Interstate 95, from 1 O'h A venue south to Hypoluxo 
Road, where the City provides water through a 168-mile watermain piping system to customers, 
including the maintenance of 1,100 fire hydrants. Automated metering is used for meter reading and 
billing. 

Water Supply and Treatment. The City maintains two water treatment facilities at the same 
plant site: (1) a lime softening plant built in 1957 designed to treat a maximum capacity of 12.9 
million gallons per day ("MOD") and supplied by 11 production wells 100-300 feet deep tapping the 
East Coast Surficial Aquifer and Biscayne Aquifer, which wells are located within an approximately 
half-mile radius of the plant, and (2) a reverse osmosis plant built in 2011 designed to treat an 
average of 4.5MGD and expandable to 10.35MGD. The brackish (high salinity) raw water for the 
reverse osmosis plant is supplied from three production wells approximately 1,000 feet deep tapping 
the Florida Aquifer within a half-mile radius of the plant. 

The conventional lime softening plant provides a little over half the treated water produced. 
The process includes rapid mix with flocculation and sedimentation basins, filtration, chemical 
addition and disinfection. The reverse osmosis plant converts high-salt ground water to high-quality 
drinking water, and is currently composed of three membrane trains each rated at 1.15MGD, with 
the possibility of adding another three trains. In addition, each train is expandable by 15% capacity 
by the addition of six pressure vessels on top of the membrane train frame. 

Water Storage; Transmission/Distribution System. The City maintains two booster stations 
in the north and south ends of the distribution system, plus 4.6 million gallons ("MG") of storage at 
the water treatment plant site, consisting of a 1.8MG clearwell used for disinfection contact time, a 
l.OMG clearwell, a 1.5MG ground storage tank and a 0.3MG elevated storage tank. The City has 
approximately 168 miles of potable distribution mains, from 30-inches to 2 inches in diameter. 

(REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK) 

40 



Historic Water Demands. Set forth below is historic water usage for the past five Fiscal 
Years: 

Fiscal 
Year 

2015 

2016 

2017 

2018 
2019 

Per Capita 
Demand 
(GPCD) 

86.1 

92.3 

93.2 

99.2 

90.8 

Water Utility Usage 

Annual Average 
Demand (MGD) 

4.2 

4.5 

4.6 

4.9 

4.5 

Unaccounted for Total Demand 
Water (MGD) (MGD) 

0.4 4.6 

0.8 5.3 

0.5 5.1 

0.3 5.2 

0.8 5.3 

Customers. Set forth below are the top ten customers of the water utility for Fiscal Year 
2019: 

Customer 
Palm Beach State College 
City of Lake Worth Beach Cemetary 
Town of Lake Clarke Shores 
Lantana Silver Springs LLC 
Meridian Pk Village Partnership 
Palm Beach County 
Avante at Lake Worth Inc. 
Riverstone Communities, LLC 
Hillhaven/Meridian/713 5 
Lake Worth Towers LLC 

Source: City of Lake Worth Beach. 

Top Ten Water Customers 

Customer 
Type 

College 
Government 

Bulk 
Commercial 
Government 
Government 
Multi-Family 
Multi-Family 
Multi-Family 
Multi-Family 

Consumption 
(100 Gal) 
15,903.24 
10,884.00 
26,559.25 
4,714,792 
8,617,333 
5,281,083 

3,622.50 
5,732,417.00 
6,384,667.00 
3,986,083.00 

(I) Represents approximately 6.3% of total Fiscal Year 2019 water utility revenues. 

(REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK) 

41 

Revenue< I) 

$229,928.98 
154,311.17 
131,990.63 
110,519.52 
72,374.45 
59,872.33 
54,250.83 
52,219.26 
51,036.42 
39,831.98 



User Rates and Charges. 

Set forth below are the City's existing water rates. For customers outside the City's 
municipal limits, a 25% surcharge is added to each bill. 

Existing Water Rates 
Monthly Readiness-To-Serve Charge 

Meter Size 
5/8 X%" 

I" 
1 Yz" 
2" 
3" 
4" 
6" 
8" 

Water 
(All Cnstomers) 

$15.83 
39.61 
79.19 

126.73 
253.47 
396.02 
792.06 

1,230.06 

Usage Charge 

The table below shows the block usage rates (in hundreds of gallons) for general service or 
non-residential. 

Block I Block 4 Block 5 
$0.341 $1.244 $1.561 

Meter Size Mi Max Min Max 

5/8" X 3/4" 1 200 I 
I 1, I 500 1 

11-1/2" I I 1,000 I 
2" I I 1,600 I 
3" I 1 3,200 I 
4" I 1,000 I 5,000 I 
6" I 2,000 I 10,000 I 

8" 1 4,000 I I 12,000 I 

(REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK) 

42 



The table below shows the block usage rates (in hundreds of gallons) for residential service. 

Water Use Per 
Meter Per Month 

Blocks 
Block 1 $0.341 
Block 2 $0.525 
Block 3 $0.711 
Block 4 $1.244 
Block 5 $1.561 

Somce: City of Lake Worth Beach. 

Single-Unit Accounts 
Minimum Maximum 

I 40 
41 80 
81 120 

121 200 
201 

Multi-Unit Accounts 
Minimum Maximum 

I 20 
21 40 
41 60 
61 100 

The Financial Feasibility Report for the System (see "APPENDIX G -- FINANCIAL 
FEASIBILITY REPORT" attached hereto) recommends aruma! water rate increases of 3.75% 
commencing in Fiscal Year 2022. 

The table below provides a comparison of water rates of other area providers: 

Comparison of Water Rates 
(based on usage of 4,000 gallons per month) 

Provider 
Lake Worth Beach 
Golf 
Highland Beach 
Jupiter 
Lantana 
Manalapan 
Tequesta 
West Palm Beach 

Rate 
$33.54 

39.09 
25.80 
27.45 
25.68 
52.21 
34.03 
32.92 

Source: South Florida Water Management District 2019 Annual Utility Rate Survey. 

Capital Improvement Program. 

The City is approaching the last year of a six-year, $14.8 million program to replace over 17 
miles of2-inch corroded galvanized watermain piping with larger 4-inch and 6-inch pipe designed 
for long-term use. The City's water utility has obtained State Revolving Loans from DEP to fmance 
this project, which is expected to be complete by 2022 and to provide better water quality to 
approximately 12,000 customers. 

(REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK) 

43 



The table below set forth the City's 5-year water capital improvement program, which 
includes the following: 

2020 Bond 
Service Project Name FY 2020 FY2021 Total 
Water Well #17 New Conshuction- Design $662,000 $662,000 
Water Raw WM Well16-17-18 & Connect to 

Repump Generator 170,000 $170,000 340,000 
Water Flash Miser Structural Modification 500,000 500,000 
Water Neighborhood Roads: District 1 974,400 324,800 1,299,200 
Water Neighborhood Roads: District 2 190,251 190,251 
Water 1601 N Dixie Incentive Project 250,000 250,000 
Water lO'h Ave N West of Boutwell WM Upsizing 100,000 100,000 
Water Park of Commerce- Phase lB 190,000 190,000 
Water Fuel Management System 100,000 100,000 
Water Watermain Replacement NRP Projects 167,370 167,370 
Water Clearwell Structural Improvements, Transf 

Pump 925,000 200,000 1,125,000 
Water S Booster Repairs - N booster 1,156,419 1,156,419 

Total Water $5,027,819 $1,052,421 $6,080,240 

Transfers to the General Fund. The City annually transfers to its General Fund amounts fiom 
its water enterprise fund. A portion of such amounts are equivalent to what the City deems it would 
otherwise charge as a franchise fee if the provider of such service was a private provider rather than 
the City, and these amounts are listed as "Transfers In" to the General Fund in the City's financial 
statements; a separate amount related to direct and indirect costs of the City attributable to such 
enterprise operations is treated as part of "Charges for Services". The City does not have a set 
formula for such transfers, and each year's amount is part of the budget process of the City; 
however, City management has expressed a desire to reduce the transfer portion not attributable to 
direct and indirect costs closer to 8% of revenues from its current level of approximately 10.8% of 
revenues. As described above, the Resolution limits the amount of excess System Net Revenues that 
may transferred to the General Fund for any lawful purpose (including such franchise fee amounts 
but excluding Charges for Services) to a maximum of 10% of Gross Revenues per Fiscal Year. 
There is no legal obligation of the City to transfer any amount from the enterprise funds to the 
General Fund. The table set forth below shows historical water utility transfers (including such 
"franchise fees" and transfers in connection with the City's Park of Commerce that are not expected 
to continue in Fiscal Years 2020 onward due to capital improvements made thereto, but excluding 
Charges for Services, which are treated as an Operating Expense) for the past five Fiscal Years: 

Fiscal Year 
2016 
2017 
2018 
2019 

2020 (unaudited) 

44 

Water Transfers 
$1,104,859 

1,350,899 
1,812,509 
2,309,728 
1,489,728 



Projections of future transfers are included as part of the Financial Feasibility Report attached 
hereto as APPENDIX G. 

Government Regulation. 

1. Federal. All water supply systems in the United States which provide water to at least 
15 service connections or 25 individuals are subject to the provisions of, and to regulation by the 
federal Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA") under the Safe Drinking Water Act (the 
"SDW A"). The EPA has promulgated nationwide drinking water regulations which specifY the 
maximum level of harmful contaminants allowed in drinking water and which govern the 
construction, operation and maintenance of water supply systems as required by SDW A. 

2. State. Under the terms of the SDW A, a state has primary enforcement responsibility 
for public water systems if the EPA determines that the state's drinking water regulations are at least 
as stringent as the federal drinking water regulations. Florida has adopted all of the primary and 
secondary regulations promulgated by the EPA pursuant to the SDW A as part of its drinking water 
program. Consequently, regulation of the water utility is primmily under the jurisdiction of the State 
of Florida. The City's water supply permit from the South Florida Water Management District 
expires in 2032, and allows withdrawal of up to 11.25MGD from the surficial and Florida aquifer 
systems. The City's water utility has consistently met all DEP requirements, and the City is not 
under any administrative discipline and has not entered into any consent order. 

(REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK) 

45 



Historical Revenues and Expenses of the Water Utility. The following table sets forth the 
gross revenues and costs of operation and maintenance of the water utility for Fiscal Years 2016 
through 2019, with projections for Fiscal Year 2020. 

Historical Water Utility Revenues and Expenses (in OOOs)* 

Fiscal Year Ended 
September 30i1l 

Operating Revenues 
Charges for Services 
Total Operating Revenues 

Operating Expenses 
Cost of Services 
General and Adminish·ative 
Depreciation 
Total Operating Expenses 

Total Operating Income (Loss) 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 
Investment Income 
Interest and Fiscal Charges 
Other 
Total Nonoperating Revenues 

(Expenses) 

Income (Loss) Before Contributions and 
Transfers 

Transfers and Contributions 
Connection Fees 
Transfers Out 

Change in Net Position 

Net Position, Beginning of Year 
Net Position, End of Year 

Source: Financial Feasibility Report. 

2016 2017 2018 

$13,960,788 $14,652,277 $13,990,442 
$13,960,788 $14,652,277 $13,990,442 

$5,888,867 $6,608,563 $6,592,717 
859,841 859,841 1,208,080 

2,473,149 2,577,418 2,687,464 
$9,221,857 $10,045,822 $10,488,261 

$4,738,931 $4,606,455 $3,502,181 

$179,716 $116,373 $142,044 
(833,101) (I ,218,930) (954,155) 
(10,160) (21,096) 150,202 

$(663,545) $(1,123,653) $(661,909) 

$4,075,386 $3,482,802 $2,840,272 

$216,003 $392,160 $291,037 
(1,104,889) (1,350,899) (I ,812,509) 

$3,186,500 $2,525,063 $1,318,800 

$47,157,815 $50,344,315 $52,760,505 
$50,344,315 $52,869,378 $54,079,305 

2020 
2019 (unaudited) 

$15,121,045 $15,687,025 
$15,121,045 $15,687,025 

$7,110,873 $8,632,968 
1,241,160 1,357,920 
2,989,142 3,093,821 

$11,341,175 $13,084,709 

$3,779,870 $2,602,316 

$252,449 $95,094 
(889,905) (853,100) 

46,428 27,220 

$(591,028) $(730,787) 

$3,188,842 $1,871,529 

$705,944 $137,578 
(2,309,728) (1,489,728) 

$1,585,058 $519,379 

$54,079,305 $55,664,363 
$55,664,363 $56,183,742 

(1) Note that historical operating results through September 30, 2019, including the net position at 
beginning of year and end of year, are based upon audited information from the City's CAFRs 
for Fiscal Years 2016 through 2019. Fiscal Year 2020 figures were derived based upon City 
staffs adopted budget and staffs projections as of July 2020 and are unaudited. See also "RISK 
FACTORS- Impact ofCOVID-19" for additional information on Fiscal Year 2020. 

46 



The Sewer Utility 

Description. The City's wastewater utility provides wastewater treatment services 
throughout the City's service area, which encompasses generally the same service area as the City 
water utility, although with small variations outside the City limits, by means of a 125-mile gravity 
and pressure pipe system and 125 miles of sewer lines, with 33 City-owned and maintained 
wastewater pump stations and several private pump stations. The City also owns and maintains a 
regional master pump station that collects wastewater from the City and surrounding areas and sends 
it the ECR facility described below for treatment, which master pump station has an average daily 
flow rate of approximately 6.5MGD but pumping capacity of20.3MGD. 

Wastewater Treatment Facilities. In 1992, the City entered into an interlocal agreement (as 
amended, the "ECR Interlocal Agreement"), with Palm Beach County and the Cities of Riviera 
Beach and West Palm Beach and the Town of Palm Beach, for the operation and maintenance of the 
East Central Regional Wastewater Facility (the "ECR"). The ECR was created to receive, treat and 
dispose of sewage generated for 30 years, with a renewable term of 30 additional years. The ECR 
Interlocal Agreement provides for a governing board (the "ECR Board") comprised of one 
representative for each member, including the City, to administer the ECR. The ECR Interlocal 
Agreement may not be amended except by written agreement of members holding a cumulative 
capacity allocation of 100%. The City of West Palm Beach manages the ECR on behalf of the ECR 
Board. 

As described above, a regional master pump station collects wastewater from the City and the 
Cities of Manalapan, Atlantis, South Palm Beach, and Lantana, where is it pumped via a 14.1 mile 
force main owned by the City and Palm Beach County to the ECR. The ECR Board establishes a 
series of wastewater flow charges each year to pass on to member entities so that the ECR is self
sustaining. The ECR Board also calculates an annual renewal and replacement fund contribution. 
The ECR has entered into a series ofloans to fund various capital projects. As of fiscal year 2019, 
the balance due on such loans totaled approximately $163 million, of which the City's share was 
approximately $26 million. ECR reclaimed water is pumped to the FPL West County Energy Center 
for cooling water. Payments to ECR by the City are considered Operating Expenses ofthe System. 

Historical Flows. Set forth below are historical average wastewater flows for the sewer utility 
for Fiscal Years 2015 through 2019: 

Historical Average Wastewater Flows 

Fiscal Year 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 
3,203,789 3,249,118 3,048,238 3,236,826 3,129,929 

Source: City ofLal(e Worth Beach. 

47 



Customers. Set forth below are the top ten customers of the System for Fiscal Year 2019: 

Top Ten Wastewater Customers 

Gallons Per 
Year 

Customer Name and Ranking (1,000 gals} Total Revenues(!) 
Lantana Silver Springs LLC 113,155 $77,659.92 

Meridian Pk Village P1tsh 103,408 61,153.12 

Riverstone Communities, LLC 68,789 49,353.16 

Hillhaven/Meridian/713 5 76,616 43,027.54 

Cap Utilities LLC 56,680 37,997.09 

Lake Worth Towers 47,833 34,110.91 

Palm Beach County 63,373 29,225.63 

Meridian Pk Village Prtsh 57,386 27,016.39 

Holiday II Mobile Home 66,515 25,924.92 

Avante at Lake Worth Inc 43,470 19,076.25 

Source: City of Lake Worth Beach. 
(I) Represents approximately 5.2% of the Fiscal Year 2019 wastewater utility revenues. 

User Rates and Charges. 

Set forth below are the City's existing sewer rates: 

Meter Size 

5/8 X 3/4" 

1" 

1 l!z11 

2" 

3" 

4" 

6" 

8" 

Existing Sewer Rates 

Monthly Readiness-To-Serve Charge 

(Commercial/Industrial} 

$15.66 

31.54 

58.02 

89.79 

174.50 

269.79 

534.53 

793.51 

48 

(Residential (I)} 

$16.66 



Usage Charge 

A volume charge of $0.474 per hundred gallons is charged for usage. 

Source: City of Lake Worth Beach. 
(t) Each single-family residential unit is charged $10.59 per ERU. Each residential unit in a 

multifamily complex or mobile home park is charged an equivalent to 66% of one (1) ERU. 

The Financial Feasibility Report for the System (see "APPENDIX G -- FINANCIAL 
FEASIBILITY REPORT" attached hereto) recommends a rate increase of7.5% in Fiscal Year 2021 
and annual wastewater rate increases of 3.25% commencing in Fiscal Year 2022. The City has 
adopted the recommended increase for Fiscal Year 2021. 

The table below provides a comparison of sewer rates of other area providers: 

Comparison of Sewer Rates 
(based on usage of 4,000 gallons per month) 

Provider 
Lake Wmih Beach 
Golf 
Delray Beach 
Palm Springs 
Lantana 
Manalapan 
Seacoast Utility Authority 
West Palm Beach 

Rate 
$30.10 

31.02 
31.61 
39.85 
32.51 
78.34 
30.79 
28.84 

Source: South Florida Water Management District 2019 Annual Utility Rate Survey. 

Capital Improvement Program. 

The City's 5-year capital improvement program includes the following: 

Service Project Name FY2020 FY2021 
Sewer Lift Station 14 Improvement $336,000 
Sewer Lift Station # 13 electrical $350,000 186,000 
Sewer Lift Station # 19 rehab/replace 150,000 
Sewer Global Manhole Lining 150,000 
Sewer Park of Commerce Phase 2 22,000 91,000 
Sewer Lake Bass Canal Aerial Forcemain 

Relocation 50,000 
Total Sewer $572,000 $763,000 

49 

Total 
$336,000 

536,000 
150,000 
150,000 
113,000 

50,000 
$1,335,000 



Transfers to the General Fund. The City annually transfers to its General Fund amounts from 
its wastewater enterprise fund. A portion of such amounts are equivalent to what the City deems it 
would otherwise charge as a fi·anchise fee if the provider of such service was a private provider 
rather than the City, and these amounts are listed as "Transfers In" to the General Fund in the City's 
financial statements; a separate amount related to direct and indirect costs of the City attributable to 
such enterprise operations is treated as part of "Charges for Services". The City does not have a set 
formula for such transfers, and each year's amount is part of the budget process of the City; 
however, City management has expressed a desire to reduce the transfer portion not attributable to 
direct and indirect costs closer to 8% of revenues from its current level of approximately 10.8% of 
revenues. As described above, the Resolution limits the amount of excess System Net Revenues that 
may transferred to the General Fund for any lawful purpose (including such franchise fee amounts 
but excluding Charges for Services) to a maximum of 10% of Gross Revenues per Fiscal Year. 
There is no legal obligation of the City to transfer any amount from the enterprise funds to the 
General Fund. The table set forth below shows historical wastewater utility transfers (including such 
"franchise fees" and transfers in connection with the City's Park of Commerce that are not expected 
to continue in Fiscal Years 2020 onward due to capital improvements made thereto, but excluding 
Charges for Services, which are h·eated as an Operating Expense) for the past five Fiscal Years: 

Fiscal Year 
2016 
2017 
2018 
2019 

2020 (unaudited) 

Wastewater Transfer 
$613,767 

613,767 
1,305,810 

704,870 
608,870 

Projections of future transfers are included as part of the Financial Feasibility Report attached 
hereto as APPENDIX G. 

Govermnent Regulation. 

Federal. The provisions of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, the Clean Water Act of 
1977 (the "Clean Water Act"), the Marine Protection, Research and Sanctuaries Act of 1972 
("MPRSA") and related regulations affect the wastewater system. Federal enforcement of these 
statutes is entrusted to EPA. 

Under the Clean Water Act, EPA administers an extensive program of federal capital 
construction grants (the "Construction Grants Program") and oversees compliance with regulations 
and guidelines it has promulgated concerning (i) wastewater treatment plant construction, operation, 
maintenance, upgrading and rehabilitation, (ii) introduction of toxins and other pollutants into 
wastewater treatment facilities and (iii) pollutant discharges from all point sources. 

The Clean Water Act also directs the EPA to address the problem of discharges of toxins and 
other substances that must be met by specific industries ("Categorical Standards") and has directed 
that publicly-owned treatment facilities establish and enforce industrial pretreatment programs. 

50 



The EPA pursuant to the Clean Water Act has indicated its intent to establish numeric criteria 
for certain nutrients (specifically, phosphorous and nitrogen) for both flowing waters and marine 
waters in Florida. The City is uncertain at this time of whether the proposed limits will be lower 
than that currently achieved by advanced wastewater treatment processes in places in Florida, which 
could necessitate mandatory upgrades to meet the new criteria. The City is likewise unable to 
predict at this time whether and when new, more stringent criteria will be imposed and what impact, 
financial and otherwise, the same might have on the City and the sewer utility. 

State. State regulations establish various standards with which the sewer utility must comply 
in operating the sewer utility. The regulations set forth (i) criteria and standards for the DEP in 
granting permits to construct or modify domestic wastewater facilities, including specific guidelines 
for the design and construction of gravity wastewater systems and collection and transmission 
systems; (ii) criteria for the discharge of domestic wastewater effluent to certain wetlands; and (iii) 
standards for treating wastewater before discharge into disposal systems, surface waters, spray 
irrigation, ocean outfalls or underground geological formations. 

In addition to the water effluent limitations set forth above, all activities of the sewer utility 
and all discharges from the sewer utility and the City's stormwater utility must also meet certain 
water quality-based effluent limitations. The regulations prohibit the DEP from issuing a permit for 
a discharge to the waters of the State unless the DEP has established an effluent limit for those 
pollutants in the discharge that are present in quantities or concentrations that can reasonably be 
expected to cause or contribute to a violation of the water quality standards for the State's public 
water supply. 

In addition, the regulations require owners of wastewater treatment plants to provide monthly 
reports concerning the composition, concentration and treatment of the wastewater from the 
treatment plants. The regulations set forth a schedule of required sampling of effluent discharge for 
the following: flow, ph-chlorine residual, biochemical oxygen demand, suspended solids and fecal 
coliform. Failure to maintain records of such sampling and to correct such failure shall subject the 
wastewater treatment plant to revocation of its permit. 

Through the City's legislative tracking, it is cognizant of upcoming changes to the 
regulations regarding lead and copper, in that the City practices corrosion control, is fully compliant 
with existing regulations and to its knowledge have few, if any, lead service lines in its service 
territory. 

The ECR plant operates under a permit issued by FDEP which expires in 2021. Renewal of 
the permit is in process, and is expected to be received. 

The City's sewer collection and treatment utility has consistently met EPA and DEP 
requirements, and the City is not operating under any administrative or consent decree. 

(REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK) 

51 



Historical Revenues and Expenses of the Sewer Utility. The following table sets forth the 
gross revenues and costs of operation and maintenance of the sewer utility for Fiscal Years 2016 
through 2019, with projections for Fiscal Year 2020 as described below. 

Historical Sewer Utility Revenues and Expenses (in OOOs)* 

Fiscal Year Ended 2020 
Se[>tember 30l'l 2016 2017 2018 2019 (unaudited) 

Operating Revenues 
Charges for Services $7,694,524 $7,183,903 $7,083,494 $7,770,255 $8,920,097 
Total Operating Revenues $7,694,524 $7,183,903 $7,083,494 $7,770,255 $8,920,097 

Operating Expenses 
Cost of Services $5,494,063 $5,904,731 $6,977,569 $7,029,771 $7,964,252 
General aud Administrative 599,772 599,772 981,075 899,780 952,723 
Depreciation 695,330 750,525 873,844 846,904 932,981 
Total Operating Expenses $6,789,165 $7,255,028 $8,832,488 $8,776,455 $9,849,956 

Total Operating Income (Loss) $905,360 $(71,125) $(1,748,994) $(1,006,200) $(929,859) 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 
Investment Income $89,754 $30,876 $38,749 $72,441 $17,854 
Interest aud Fiscal Charges 
Other 7,116 102,133 198,434 6,728 
Total Nonoperating Revenues 

(Expenses) $89,754 $37,992 $140,882 $270,875 $24,582 

Income (Loss) Before Contributions and 
Transfers $995,114 $(33,133) $(1,608,112) $(735,325) $(905,277) 

Transfers and Contributions 
Connection Fees $153,488 $246,226 $180,134 $201,549 $49,660 
Transfers Out (613,767) (613,767) (1,305,810) (704,870) (608,870) 

Change in Net Position $534,835 $(400,674) $(2,733,788) $(1,238,646) $(1,464,487) 

Net Position, Beginning of Year $19,523,991 $20,058,826 $19,629,705 $16,895,917 $15,657,271 
Net Position, End of Year $20,058,826 $19,658,152 $16,895,917 $15,657,271 $14,192,784 

Source: Financial Feasibility Report. 
(!) Note that historical operating results through September 30, 2019, including the net position at 

beginning of year and end of year, are based upon audited information from the City's CAFRs 
for Fiscal Years 2016 through 2019. Fiscal Year 2020 figures were derived based upon City 
staffs adopted budget and staffs projections as of July 2020, and are unaudited. See also "RISK 
FACTORS- Impact of COVID-19" for additional information on Fiscal Year 2020. 

52 



The Project 

Proceeds of the 2020 Bonds will be used to finance approximately $52 million of water, 
sewer, and electric system projects, including projects appropriated in prior years, which are 
currently under construction, and are expected to be completed over the next one to three years. As 
described above, these improvements include the construction of the additional transmission line tie
in and system hardening described above for the electric utility, transmission line, storage and 
transfer pump improvements for the water utility, and lift station and other improvements for the 
sewer utility. See "APPENDIX G --FINANCIAL FEASIBILITY REPORT" for a more detailed 
description of the Project. Consistent with prior funding practices, it is likely that even though funds 
for these projects will be identified and appropriated in subsequent budget years, actual expenditures 
and project construction will be spread out over a longer time period. 

(REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK) 

53 



System Historic Operating Results 

The historical revenues and expenses of the System for Fiscal Years 2016 through 2019, wth 
projections for Fiscal Year 2020, are summarized below. The debt service requirements and 
coverage tests are based on the rate covenant contained in the Resolution. 

Historical System Revenues and Expenses(!) 

Fiscal Year Ending Sep_!~_f!I_ber 30(1) 

Operating Revenues 
Charges for Services 

Total Operating Revenues 

Operating Expenses 
Cost of Services 
General and Administrative 
Depreciation 

Total Operating Expenses 

Total Operating Income (Loss) 

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 
Investment Income 
Interest and Fiscal Charges 
Other 

Total Non-Operating Revenues 
(Expenses) 

Income (Loss) Before Contributions 
and Transfers 

Transfers and Contributions 
Connection Fees 
Transfers Out 

Change in Net Position 

Net Position, Beginning of Year 
Net Position, End of Year 

2016 

$78,666,716 
$78,666,716 

$53,291,055 
4,375,405 
4,951,586 

$62,618,046 

$16,048,670 

$419,804 
(1,501,612) 

705,964 
$(375,844) 

$15,672,826 

$369,491 
(5,959,636) 

$10,082,681 

$87,650,507 
$97,733,188 

Determination of Income Available for Debt Service 

Adjustments: 
Depreciation 
Interest and Fiscal Charges 
Transfers Out 
Connection Fees 

$4,951,586 
1,501,612 
5,959,636 
(369,491) 

2017 

$77,686,224 
$77,686,224 

$60,005,084 
4,571,674 
5,147,671 

$69,724,429 

$7,961,795 

$288,663 
(2,717,378) 

583,425 
$(1 ,845,290) 

$6,116,505 

$639,386 
(6,340,119) 

$415,772 

$97,733,188 
$98,148,960 

$5,147,671 
2,717,378 
6,340,119 
(639,386) 

Net Revenues Available for Debt $22,126,024 $13,981,554 
Service 

Source: Financial Feasibility Report. 

2018 

$75,354,771 
$75,354,771 

$63,792,499 
5,724,515 
5,268,222 

$74,785,236(') 

$569,535 

$439,080 
(1,981,754) 

854,290 
$(688,384) 

$(118,849) 

$471,171 
(8,282,019) 

$(7,929,697) 

$98,148,960 
$90,219,263 

$5,268,222 
1,981,754 
8,282,019 
(471,171) 

2020 
2019 (unaudited) 

$78,019,832 $85,488,275 
$78,019,832 $85,488,275 

$59,320,370 
5,579,145 
5,760,014 

$70,659,529 

$7,360,303 

$738,624 
(1,815,517) 

784,897 
$(292,356) 

$7,067,947 

$907,493 
(8,714,339) 

$(738,899) 

$62,721 ,3 00 
5,557,390 
5,950,770 

$74,229,460 

$11,258,815 

$284,814 
(1,726,815) 

510,093 
$(931,908) 

$! 0,326,906 

$187,238 
(6,635,089) 

$3,879,056 

$90,219,263 $89,480,364 
$89,480,364 $93,359,420 

$5,760,014 
1,815,517 
8,714,339 
(907,493) 

$5,950,770 
1,726,815 
6,635,089 
(187,238) 

$7,131,127 $14,643,478 $18,004,491 

(I) Historical operating results through September 30, 2019 are as reported in each of the City's 
CAFRs for each respective Fiscal Year. Fiscal Year 2020 figures were derived based upon 
the City staffs adopted budget and staffs projections as of July 2020 and are unaudited. See 

54 



also "RISK FACTORS- Impact of COVID-19" for additional information on Fiscal Year 
2020. 

(
2

) As described under the heading "--Historical Revenues and Expenses of the Electric Utility" 
above, the City attributes the decrease in Net Revenues in Fiscal year 2018 to a reduction in 
electric rates and increased costs due to repairs at its GT2 gas turbine unit. 

Projections of revenues and expenses for the ensuing five Fiscal Years are included as part of 
the Financial Feasibility Report attached hereto as APPENDIX G. 

RISK FACTORS 

The future financial condition of the System could be affected adversely by, among other 
things, legislation, environmental and other regulatory actions as set forth above, changes in demand 
for services, economic conditions, demographic changes, acts of God (such as hurricanes, as the 
System lies in a hurricane-prone area) and litigation. In addition to those items listed above, some of 
the possible changes in the future may include, but not be limited to, the fact that the City's 
consolidated utility facilities are subject to regulation and control by numerous federal, state and 
local governmental agencies. Neither the City nor its consultants can predict future policies such 
agencies may adopt. Future changes could result in the City having to discontinue operations at 
certain facilities or to make unanticipated and significant capital expenditures, and could generate 
substantial litigation. 

Enforceability of Remedies 

The remedies available to the owners of the 2020 Bonds upon an event of default under the 
Resolution are in many respects dependent upon judicial actions which are often subject to discretion 
and delay. Under existing constitutional and statutory law and judicial decisions, including 
specifically the federal bankruptcy code, the remedies specified by the Resolution and the 2020 
Bonds may not be readily available or may be limited. The various legal opinions to be delivered 
concurrently with the delivery of the 2020 Bonds (including Bond Counsel's approving opinion) will 
be qualified, as to the enforceability of the remedies provided in the various legal instruments, by 
limitations imposed by bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency or other similar laws affecting the 
rights of creditors enacted before or after such delivery. See "APPENDIX B --FORM OF THE 
RESOLUTION" attached hereto for a description of events of default and remedies. 

Climate Change Issues 

Numerous scientific studies on climate change show that, among other effects on the global 
ecosystem, sea levels will rise, extreme temperatures will become more common, and extreme 
weather events will become more frequent as a result of increasing global temperatures. Sea levels 
are expected to continue to rise in the future due to the increasing temperature of the oceans causing 
thermal expansion and growing ocean volume from glaciers and ice caps melting into the ocean. 
Most of Florida is at risk of substantial flood damage over time, affecting private development and 
public infrastructure, including roads, utilities, emergency services, schools, and parks. Likewise, 
Florida is hurricane-prone, and the City has suffered damage from past hurricanes. As a result, the 
City could lose considerable tax revenues and many residents, businesses, and govermnental 

55 



operations could be displaced, and the City could be required to mitigate these effects at a potentially 
material cost. The City is unable to predict whether sea level rise or other impacts of climate change 
or flooding from a major storm will occur, when they may occur, and if any such events occur, 
whether they will have a material adverse effect on the business operations or financial condition of 
the City or the System. Additionally, climate change concerns have led, and may continue to lead, to 
new laws and regulations at the federal and state levels (including but not limited to air, water, 
hazardous substances and waste regulations) that could have a material adverse effect on the 
operations of the City and the System. In response to these concerns, the City is a member of the 
"Coastal Resiliency Partnership", which consists of Palm Beach County and ten of its coastal 
municipalities. The "CRP" was formed pursuant to a state program to provide assistance and funding 
to coastal communities dealing with flooding, erosion and other climate change-related issues. Over 
thirty local representatives from the member communities meet regularly to discuss sustainability 
planning and preparedness and to craft principles for use within the CRP. 

Cybersecurity 

Computer networks and systems used for data transmission and collection are vital to the 
efficient operations of the City. City systems provide support to departmental operations and 
constituent services by collecting and storing sensitive data, including intellectual property, security 
infonnation, proprietary business process information, information applying to suppliers and 
business partners, and personally identifiable information of customers, constituents and employees. 
The secure processing, maintenance and transmission of this infornmtion is critical to department 
operations and the provision of citizen services. Increasingly, governmental entities are being 
targeted by cyberattacks (including, but not limited to, hacking, viruses, mal ware and other attacks 
on computers and other sensitive digital networks and systems) seeking to obtain confidential data or 
disrupt critical services. A rapidly changing cyber risk landscape may introduce new vulnerabilities 
and avenues that attackers/hackers can exploit in attempts to cause breaches or service disruptions. 
Employee error and/or malfeasance may also contribute to data loss or other system disruptions. 
Additionally, the City's computer networks and systems routinely interface and rely on third party 
systems that are also subject to the risks previously described. Any such breach could compromise 
networks and the confidentiality, integrity and availability of systems and the information stored 
there. In 2019, a vendor-maintained utility billing platform of the City was compromised via internal 
application vulnerability, whereupon the City immediately took the servers offline and rebuilt the 
same from scratch with the appropriate patches released from the vendor, with no signs of data 
exfiltration. The potential disruptions, access, modification, disclosure or destruction in general of 
data could result in interruption of the efficiency of City commerce, initiation of legal claims or 
proceedings, liability under laws that protect the privacy of personal information, regulatory 
penalties, disruptions in operations and the services provided, and the loss of confidence in City 
operations. 

The City's Information Technology Department has made significant network upgrades, and 
will continue to do so, to combat cyber security threats and to provide the City with an utmost 
secured network. The City's IT network has multiple layers of protection in place which include next 
generation fire walls, software defined network access, application white listing software, end point 
protection software, network traffic monitoring services, alerts and notifications, multifactor 
authentication, automated policy enforcement, advanced security analytics, patch management for 

56 



servers and end points, state of the art backup system on premises and in the cloud, and restricted 
physical access to the City's critical IT infrastmcture to IT authorized personnel only. In addition, 
the City has partnered with U.S. Department of Homeland Security MS-ISAC to provide network 
monitoring and external vulnerability scan services. Lastly, the Infornmtion Technology Department 
provides internal cybersecurity training to City users in an effort to create awareness and reduce 
security vulnerabilities. 

However, no assurances can be given that any cyberattacks, if successful, will not have a 
material adverse effect on the operations of the City. 

Impact of COVID-19 

The COVID-19 pandemic, along with various govemmental measures taken to protect public 
health in light of the pandemic, has had an adverse impact on global financial markets and 
economies, including financial markets and economic conditions in the United States. The impact of 
the COVID-19 pandemic on the U.S. economy is expected to be broad-based and to negatively affect 
national, state and local economies. 

In response to such expectations, President Trump on March 13, 2020, declared a "national 
emergency," which, among other effects, allows the executive branch to disburse disaster relief 
funds to address the COVID-19 pandemic and related economic dislocation. On March 25, 2020, 
President Tmmp declared the State of Florida a disaster area because of the spread ofCOVID-19. In 
addition, Govemor DeSantis signed various executive orders that, among other effects, (i) closed all 
public and private schools serving pre-kindergarten through 12th grade students through the 
remainder of the spring semester, (ii) closed all bars and restaurants to dine-in customers through 
May 2020, and (iii) instructed residents to stay at home except for essential travel. The restrictions in 
(ii) and (iii) above were lifted in June 2020, although the limitation on bars selling alcohol for indoor 
consumption was reinstated effective June 25, 2020 and lifted again in September 2020. The 
finances of City and Palm Beach County residents are likely to be adversely affected by the 
continued spread of COVID-19, the various governmental actions in response thereto and changes in 
the behavior of businesses and people, which all could affect the ability to pay their taxes and utility 
bills. 

The City and other governmental entities have taken a number of steps locally with respect to 
COVID-19. The City closed all of its recreational facilities, and City Commission meetings have 
been held digitally. Similar to all local governments, the City's finances are being impacted by the 
pandemic. Due to COVID-19's impacts beginning in mid-March and the unknown length of the 
public health crisis, as well as the duration of measures to mitigate the pandemic, the City is unable 
to accurately project the total economic impact of the COVID-19 pandemic upon the City's 
operations. These measures are expected to adversely impact the City's revenues for Fiscal Year 
2020, with unknown impacts for Fiscal Year 2021. The City's unaudited numbers for Fiscal Year 
2020 show an estimated 4.6% decline in its General Fund revenues, as state sales tax revenues 
(which fund the local government sales tax and a portion of state revenue sharing distributed to 
Florida local governments and form a part of the City's non-ad valorem revenues) were diminished 
significantly in Fiscal Year 2020. 

57 



The City instituted a moratorium on utility shutoffs commencing in March 2020 and ended 
this in September 2020. During that period, approximately 750 customers were eligible to be 
disconnected but were not, with a total of approximately $1.3 million in arrears. Such amounts 
continue to be owed and are not waived or forgiven, although the City has offered payment plans to 
delinquent customers. The City's unaudited total electric utility net revenues through August 2020 
are an estimated 5% above budget, as electric utility operating expenses during the period have 
declined by approximately 8% (due in part to lower fuel costs and a delay in financing capital 
projects) while gross revenues have decreased approximately 2%. The City's water utility net 
revenues through August 2020 are an estimated 7% above budget, partly due to the shutdown and to 
a drier than usual spring, and due to water operating expenses being down approximately 12% due to 
a delay in financing capital projects. Sewer utility net revenues through August 2020 are 
approximately 10% below budget, reflecting declines in both gross revenues and operating expenses. 

A new wave of the virus could produce more negative impacts, and could adversely impact 
ratings on the Series 2020 Bonds. Please refer to "RATINGS," herein. 

HURRICANE IRMA IMP ACTS 

On September 10-11, 20 17, Hurricane Irma swept through Florida and caused a significant 
amount of damage within the State, with the center of the storm making landfall twice, once as a 
Category 4 storm with 130 mph sustained winds in the Florida Keys and once as a Category 3 storm 
with 115 mph sustained winds near the City of Marco Island. While the center of the storm did not 
pass near the City, it suffered approximately $4 million in damages from the storm, which was paid 
by the City's self-insurance fund. The City expects to be reimbursed for a portion of this amount by 
FEMA. 

LEGAL MATTERS 

Certain legal matters in connection with the issuance of the 2020 Bonds are subject to an 
approving legal opinion ofNabors, Giblin & Nickerson, P.A., Tampa, Florida, Bond Counsel, whose 
approving opinion (a form of which is attached hereto as "APPENDIX C -- FORM OF BOND 
COUNSEL OPINION") will be available at the time of delivery of the 2020 Bonds. The actual legal 
opinion to be delivered may vary from that text if necessary to reflect facts and law on the date of 
delivery. The opinion will speak only as of its date, and subsequent distribution of it by recirculation 
of the Official Statement or otherwise shall create no implication that, subsequent to the date of the 
opinion, Bond Counsel has reviewed or expresses any opinion concerning any of the matters 
referenced in the opinion. Certain legal matters will be passed on for the City by Torcivia, Donlon 
& Goddeau, P.A., West Palm Beach, Florida, City Attorney and for the Underwriters by the Law 
Offices of Steve E. Bullock, P.A., Miami, Florida. Nabors, Giblin & Nickerson, P.A., Tampa, 
Florida, has also acted as disclosure counsel to the City in connection with the issuance of the 2020 
Bonds. 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK] 

58 



TAX MATTERS 

Opinion of Bond Counsel 

In the opinion of the Bond Counsel (see APPENDIX C), the interest on the 2020 Bonds is 
excludable from gross income and is not a specific item of tax preference for federal income tax 
purposes under existing statutes, regulations, rulings and court decisions and the Intemal Revenue 
Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"). Failure by the City to comply subsequent to the issuance of 
the 2020 Bonds with certain requirements of the Code regarding the use, expenditure and investment 
of bond proceeds and the timely payment of certain investment earnings to the Treasury of the 
United States may cause interest on the 2020 Bonds to become includable in gross income for 
federal income tax purposes retroactive to their date of issue. The City has covenanted in the 
Resolution to comply with all provisions of the Code necessary to, among other things, maintain the 
exclusion from gross income of interest on the 2020 Bonds for purposes of federal income taxation. 
In rendering its opinion, Bond Counsel has assumed continuing compliance with such covenants. 

Internal Revenue Code of 1986 

The Code contains a number of provisions that apply to the 2020 Bonds, including, among 
other things, restrictions relating to the use or investment of the proceeds of the 2020 Bonds and the 
payments of certain arbitrage eamings in excess of the "yield" on the 2020 Bonds to the Treasury of 
the United States. Noncompliance with such provisions may result in interest on the 2020 Bonds 
being included in gross income for federal income tax purposes retroactive to their date of issue. 

[Premium Bonds] 

The difference between the principal amount of the 2020 Bonds maturing_ (the "Premium 
Bonds") and the initial offering price to the public (excluding bond houses, brokers or similar 
persons or organizations acting in the capacity of underwriter or wholesalers) at which price a 
substantial amount of such Premium Bonds of the same maturity was sold constitutes to an initial 
purchaser amortizable bond premium which is not deductible from gross income for federal income 
tax purposes. The amount of amortizable bond premium for a taxable year is detennined actuarially 
on a constant interest rate basis over the term of each Premium Bond. For purposes of detennining 
gain or loss on the sale or other disposition of a Premium Bond, an initial purchaser who acquires 
such obligation in the initial offering to the public at the initial offering price is required to decrease 
such purchaser's adjusted basis in such Premium Bond annually by the amount of amortizable bond 
premium for the taxable year. The amortization of bond premium may be taken into account as a 
reduction in the amount of tax-exempt income for purposes of determining various other tax 
consequences of owning such Premium Bonds. Owners of the Premium Bonds are advised that they 
should consult with their own advisors with respect to the state and local tax consequences of 
owning such Premium Bonds.] 

[Discount Bonds] 

Under the Code, the difference between the principal amount of the 2020 Bonds which are 
not Premium Bonds (the "Discount Bonds"), and the initial offering price to the public, excluding 

59 



bond houses and brokers, at which price a substantial amount of the Discount Bonds of the same 
maturity was sold, constitutes "original issue discount". Original issue discount on the Discount 
Bonds represents interest which is not includable in gross income. A portion of such interest that 
accrues to the owner of such Bonds in a year, as described below, is, however, included in the 
calculation of a corporate taxpayer's alternative minimum tax and environmental tax and may result 
in other collateral federal tax consequences although the owner may not have received cash in such 
year. Original issue discount on such Discount Bonds will accrue actuarially over the tern1 of a 
Discount Bond at a constant interest rate. A purchaser who acquires Discount Bonds at an issue price 
equal to the initial offering price thereof as set forth on the cover page of this Official Statement will 
be treated as receiving an amount of interest excluded from gross income for federal income tax 
purposes equal to the original issue discount accruing during the period such purchaser holds such 
Discount Bonds and will increase its adjusted basis in such Discount Bonds by the amount of such 
accruing discount for purposes of determining taxable gain or loss on the sale or the disposition of 
such Discount Bonds. The federal income tax consequences of the purchase, ownership and 
redemption, sale or price may be determined according to rules which differ from those described 
above. Holders of Discount Bonds should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the 
consequences of owning Discount Bonds, including the effect of such ownership under applicable 
state and local laws.] 

Collateral Tax Consequences 

Except as described above, Bond Counsel will express no opinion regarding the federal 
income tax consequences resulting from the ownership of, receipt or accrual of interest on, or 
disposition of, the 2020 Bonds. Prospective purchasers of the 2020 Bonds should be aware that the 
ownership of the 2020 Bonds may result in other collateral federal tax consequences. For example, 
ownership of the 2020 Bonds may result in collateral tax consequences to various types of 
corporations relating to (1) denial of interest deduction to purchase or carry such 2020 Bonds, (2) the 
branch profits tax, and (3) the inclusion of interest on the 2020 Bonds in passive income for certain 
Subchapter S corporations. In addition, the interest on the 2020 Bonds may be included in gross 
income by recipients of certain Social Security and Railroad Retirement benefits. 

PURCHASE, OWNERSHIP, SALE OR DISPOSITION OF THE 2020 BONDS AND THE 
RECEIPT OR ACCRUAL OF THE INTEREST THEREON MAY HAVE ADVERSE FEDERAL 
TAX CONSEQUENCES FOR CERTAIN INDIVIDUAL AND CORPORATE BONDHOLDERS, 
INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE CONSEQUENCES REFERRED TO ABOVE. 
PROSPECTIVE BONDHOLDERS SHOULD CONSULT WITH THEIR TAX SPECIALISTS FOR 
INFORMATION IN THAT REGARD. 

Other Tax Matters. Interest on the 2020 Bonds may be subject to state or local income 
taxation under applicable state or local laws in other jurisdictions. Purchasers of the 2020 Bonds 
should consult their tax advisors as to the income tax status of interest on the 2020 Bonds in their 
particular state or local jurisdictions. 

During recent years, legislative proposals have been introduced in Congress, and in some 
cases enacted, that altered certain federal tax consequences resulting from the ownership of 
obligations that are similar to the 2020 Bonds. In some cases these proposals have contained 

60 



provisions that altered these consequences on a retroactive basis. Such alteration of federal tax 
consequences may have affected the market value of obligations similar to the 2020 Bonds. From 
time to time, legislative proposals are pending which could have an effect on both the federal tax 
consequences resulting from ownership of the 2020 Bonds and their market value. No assurance can 
be given that additional legislative proposals will not be introduced or enacted that would or might 
apply to, or have an adverse effect upon, the 2020 Bonds. For example, proposals have been 
discussed in connection with deficit spending reduction, job creation and other tax refmm effmts that 
could significantly reduce the benefit of, or otherwise affect the exclusion from gross income of, 
interest on obligations such as the 2020 Bonds. The further introduction or enactment of one or more 
of such proposals could affect the market price or marketability of the 2020 Bonds. 

LITIGATION 

There is no suit, action or proceeding of any nature now pending or threatened to restrain or 
to enjoin the issuance, sale, execution or delivery of the 2020 Bonds, or in any way contesting or 
affecting the validity of the 2020 Bonds or any proceedings of the City Commission of the City 
taken with respect to the issuance or sale thereof or the pledge or application of any moneys, 
revenues or security provided for the payment of the 2020 Bonds, or the existence or powers of the 
City with respect to the 2020 Bonds, the security therefor, or the System. 

The City is engaged from time to time in litigation typical to Florida municipalities, for 
which it retains insurance and to which it has defenses, including claims for which it is a nominal 
patty. In addition, the City is appealing a determination by and has filed litigation against the Federal 
Emergency Management Agency ("FEMA") in connection with FEMA's decision to deobligate 
approximately $4 million in disaster assistance funding stemming from hurricanes occurring in 2004 
and 2005. City staff filed administrative appeals with FEMA Region IV to reverse the deobligation 
decision, which appeals were denied. The City then filed second appeals with FEMA Headquarters 
in Washington, D. C. and is awaiting a decision. The State of Florida Division of Emergency 
Management supports the City's positions in the appeals, although there is a likelihood that a portion 
of the deobligated monies will need to be repaid. 

DISCLOSURE REQUIRED BY FLORIDA BLUE SKY REGULATIONS 

Pursuant to Section 517.051, Florida Statutes, as a:tnended by Chapter 87-316, Laws of 
Florida, no person may directly or indirectly offer or sell securities of the City except by an offering 
circular containing full and fair disclosure of all defaults as to principal or interest on its obligations 
since December 31, 1975, as provided by rule of the Florida Department of Banking and Finance 
(the "Department"). Pursuant to Rule 3E-400.003, Florida Administrative Code, the Department has 
required the disclosure of the a:tnounts and types of defaults, any legal proceedings resulting from 
such defaults, whether a trustee or receiver has been appointed over the assets of the City, and 
certain additional financial information, unless the City believes in good faith that such information 
would not be considered material by a reasonable investor. The City is not and has not been in 
default on any bond issued since December 31, 197 5 which would be considered material by a 
reasonable investor. Although the City is not aware of any other defaults, it is not undertaking an 
independent review of bonds or other debt obligations for which it served only as a conduit issuer. 
Because the source of payment of any such defaulted bonds would be separate and distinct from the 

61 



source of payment for the 2020 Bonds and would not be an obligation of the City other than to the 
extent the City receives funds from the party borrowing the proceeds of such bonds, any default on 
such bonds is not considered a material fact with respect to the 2020 Bonds. 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The annual financial statements of the City, for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2019, 
and report thereon of Keefe McCullough, CP As are included in APPENDIX D attached hereto. The 
2020 Bonds are payable solely from and secured by a lien upon and pledge of the Pledged Funds. 
The financial statements attached hereto as APPENDIX D are presented for general informational 
purposes only. 

RATINGS 

[S&P Global Ratings, a business unit of Standard & Poor's Financial Services LLC ("S&P") 
is expected to assign its municipal bond rating of"_" to the 2020 Bonds, based upon the delivery of 
the standard municipal bond insurance policy of __ insuring the same.] In addition, S&P and 
Moody's Investors Service have assigned their underlying municipal bond ratings of" __ "'-:--:
outlook) and" __ " outlook) respectively, to the 2020 Bonds. The ratings reflect only the 
views of said rating agencies, and an explanation of the ratings may be obtained only from said 
rating agencies. There is no assurance that such ratings will continue for any given period of time or 
that they will not be lowered or withdrawn entirely by the rating agencies, or any of them, if in their 
judgment, circumstances so warrant. A downward change in or withdrawal of any of such ratings 
may have an adverse effect on the market price of the 2020 Bonds. 

FINANCIAL ADVISOR 

The City has retained Davenport & Company LLC, Richmond, Virginia (the "Financial 
Advisor"), in connection with the preparation and issuance of the 2020 Bonds. The Financial 
Advisor is not obligated to, and has not undertaken to, make an independent verification or to 
assume responsibility for the accuracy, completeness, or fairness of the information contained in this 
Official Statement. 

UNDERWRITING 

The 2020 Bonds are being purchased by Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC and Raymond James & 
Associates, Inc. (collectively, the "Underwriters") at an aggregate purchase price of$ __ ---:: 
(which includes net original issue [discount] [premium] of$ and Underwriters' discount of 
$ . The Underwriters' obligations are subject to certain conditions precedent, and they will 
be obligated to purchase all of the 2020 Bonds if any 2020 Bonds are purchased. The 2020 Bonds 
may be offered and sold to certain dealers (including dealers depositing such 2020 Bonds into 
investment trusts) at prices lower than such public offering prices, and such public offering prices 
may be changed, from time to time, by the Underwriters. 

The Underwriters have reviewed the information in this Official Statement in accordance 
with and, as part oftheir responsibilities to investors under the federal securities laws as applied to 

62 



the facts and circumstances of this transaction, but the Underwriters do not guarantee the accuracy or 
completeness of such information. 

The Underwriters have provided the following information for inclusion in this Official 
Statement: The Underwriters and their respective affiliates are full service financial institutions 
engaged in various activities, that may include securities trading, commercial and investment 
banking, municipal advisory, brokerage and asset management. In the ordinary course of business, 
the Underwriters and their respective affiliates may actively trade debt and if applicable equity 
securities (or related derivative securities) and provide financial instruments (which may include 
bank loans, credit support or interest rate swaps) and the Underwriters and their affiliates may 
engage in transactions for their own accounts involving the securities and instruments made the 
subject of this securities offer or other offer of the City. The Underwriters and their respective 
affiliates may also communicate independent investment recommendations, market color or trading 
ideas and publish independent research views in respect of this securities offer or other offers of the 
City. The Underwriters do not make a market in credit default swaps with respect to municipal 
securities at this time but may do so in the future. 

Morgan Stanley, a parent company of Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC, an underwriter of the 
2020 Bonds, has entered into a retail distribution arrangement with its affiliate Morgan Stanley 
Smith Barney LLC. As part of the distribution arrangement, Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC may 
distribute municipal securities to retail investors tln·ough the financial advisor network of Morgan 
Stanley Smith Barney LLC. As part of this arrangement, Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC may 
compensate Morgan Stanley Smith Barney LLC for its selling efforts with respect to the 2020 
Bonds. 

CONTINGENT FEES 

The City has retained Bond Counsel, Disclosure Counsel and the Financial Advisor with 
respect to the authorization, sale, execution and delivery of the 2020 Bonds. Payment of all or a 
portion of the fees of such professionals relating to the issuance of the 2020 Bonds and 
compensation to the Underwriters in the form of a purchase price discount are each contingent upon 
the issuance of the 2020 Bonds. 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE 

The City has covenanted for the benefit of the 2020 Bondholders to provide certain financial 
information and operating data relating to the City and the 2020 Bonds in each year (the "Annual 
Report"), and to provide notices of the occurrence of certain enumerated material events. Such 
covenant shall only apply so long as the 2020 Bonds remain outstanding under the Resolution. The 
covenant shall also cease upon the termination of the continuing disclosure requirements of S.E.C. 
Rule 15c2-12(b )(5) (the "Rule") by legislative, judicial or administrative action. The Annual Report 
will be filed by the City with the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board ("MSRB") through its 
"EMMA" system, as well as any state information depository that is subsequently established in the 
State ofFlorida ("SID"). The notices of material events will be filed by the City with the MSRB and 
with any SID. The specific nature of the information to be contained in the Annual Report and the 
notices of material events are described in "APPENDIX E -- FORM OF CONTINUING 

63 



DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE," which shall be executed by the City at the time of issuance of the 
2020 Bonds. These covenants have been made in order to assist the Underwriters in complying with 
the Rule. 

With respect to the 2020 Bonds, no party other than the City is obligated to provide, nor is 
expected to provide, any continuing disclosure information with respect to the aforementioned Rule. 
The City has complied with its existing continuing disclosure obligations over the past five years and 
fully anticipates satisfying all future obligations in connection therewith. 

ACCURACY AND COMPLETENESS OF OFFICIAL STATEMENT 

The references, excerpts, and summaries of all documents, statutes, and information 
concerning the City and certain reports and statistical data referred to herein do not purport to be 
complete, comprehensive and definitive, and each such summary and reference is qualified in its 
entirety by reference to each such document for full and complete statements of all matters of fact 
relating to the 2020 Bonds, the security for the payment of the 2020 Bonds and the rights and 
obligations of the owners thereof and to each such statute, report or instrument. 

Any statements made in this Official Statement involving matters of opinion or of estimates, 
whether or not so expressly stated, are set forth as such and not as representations of fact, and no 
representation is made that any of the estimates will be realized. Neither this Official Statement nor 
any statement that may have been made verbally or in writing is to be construed as a contract with 
the owners of the 2020 Bonds. 

The appendices attached hereto are integral parts of this Official Statement and must be read 
in their entirety together with all foregoing statements. 

(REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK) 

64 



AUTHORIZATION OF OFFICIAL STATEMENT 

This Official Statement, and its execution and delivery, has been duly authorized and 
approved by the City Commission of the City. Concu!Tently with the delive1y of the 2020 Bonds, 
the undersigned will furnish their certificate to the effect that, to the best of their knowledge, this 
Official Statement did not as of its date, and does not as of the date of delive1y of the 2020 Bonds, 
contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact that should be included 
herein for the purposes for which this Official Statement is to be used, or which is necessary in order 
to make the statements contained herein, in the light of the circumstances in which they were made, 
not misleading. 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Nabors, Giblin & Nickerson, P .A. 

65 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, 
FLORIDA 

By: ___________ _ 

Mayor 

By:_--,--_________ _ 
City Manager 



APPENDIX A 

GENERAL INFORMATION CONCERNING 
THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 

THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION CONCERNING THE CITY IS INCLUDED 
ONLY FOR THE PURPOSE OF PROVIDING GENERAL BACKGROUND 
INFORMATION. THE INFORMATION HAS BEEN COMPILED ON BEHALF OF THE 
CITY, AND SUCH COMPILATION INVOLVED ORAL AND WRITTEN 
COMMUNICATION WITHVARIOUIS SOURCES. THE INFORMATION INDICATED IS 
SUBJECT TO CHANGE, ALTHOUGH EFFORTS HAVE BEEN MADE TO UPDATE 
INFORMATION WHERE PRACTICABLE. 

General Information and Location 

The City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida (the "City"), was incorporated as a municipality 
under the laws of the State of Florida in 1913. The City is part of the Gold Coast of South Florida 
and is located in Palm Beach County. The City borders West Palm Beach on its northem boundary 
and the City of Lantana to its south. The Intracoastal Waterway and Atlantic Ocean are to the east 
and various municipalities and unincorporated county areas are to the west. The City is primarily a 
residential community of approximately 7 square miles with a population of approximately 38,000. 
The median age has declined over the past two decades from 50 years to 40 years. Tourism, retail 
and construction are the main industries supporting the local economy. The qumier-mile, 
municipally-owned beach complex, which has an ocean fishing pier, an Olympic-sized swimming 
pool and ocean front shops and restaurants, makes this area a popular attraction for residents and 
tourists alike. 

Government 

The City Commission is comprised of five members who serve overlapping three-year terms 
and are elected on a nonpmiisan basis by residents of the City. The Mayor is elected at-large to 
serve a three-year term as the presiding officer at City Commission meetings and as the official head 
of the City for legislative and ceremonial purposes. The City Commission is responsible for passing 
ordinances and other policy directives for the operation of the City. 

The current Mayor and Commission and the years in which their terms expire are listed 
below: 

Official 

Pmn Triolo, Mayor 
Andy Amoroso, Vice Mayor 
Scott Maxwell, Vice Mayor Pro Tern 
Omari Hardy, Commissioner 
Herman Robinson, Commissioner 

A-1 

Beginning Tenn 

March 2018 
March 2018 
March 2018 
March 2019 
March 2019 

Term Expires 

March2021 
March2021 
March 2021 

November 2020 
March2022 



Administration 

The administration of the City is conducted by the City Manager, who serves as the Chief 
Executive Officer. The City Manager, who is appointed by the Commission, provides leadership in 
administration of policies and objectives formulated by the Commission. 

City Employees 

The City currently has approximately 308 full-time employees in nine operating departments. 

Population 

The population of the City, according to the 2010 Census, was 34,910. The resident 
population of the City for the last five (5) years is estimated as follows: 

Year 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 
2019 

Source: City of Lake Worth Beach. 

Economic Data 

Population 
37,145 
37,674 
37,803 
37,946 
38,267 
38,484 

Unemployment Rate (as of October 2019) 

Palm Beach County 
Florida 
U.S. 

Civilian 
Labor Force 

745,652 
10,465,200 

164,364,000 

Employment 
723,165 

10,134,600 
158,510,000 

Unemployment 
22,487 

330,600 
5,855,000 

Unemployment 
Rate(%) 

3.0% 
3.2 
3.6 

Source: Florida Agency for Workforce Innovation, Labor Market Statistics, Local Area 
Unemployment Statistics Program, as reported at www.labormarketinfo.com. 

PENSION AND OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

The City contributes to three single-employer retirement systems covering substantially all 
full-time employees other than police officers and firefighters. As described below, the General 
Employees' Retirement System, the Police Officers' Relief and Retirement System and the 
Firefighters' Pension Trust Fund (collectively, the "Pension Trust Funds") are defined benefit 
pension plans. Each plan issues a publicly available financial report that includes the applicable 
financial statements and required supplementary information for the plan. 

A-2 



See "APPENDIX B --AUDITED GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF 
THE CITY FOR THE FISCAL YEAREND ED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019," for additional information 
regarding the Pension Trust Funds and the City's compliance with other post employment benefits 
("OPEB") requirements. 

Net Pension Liability of the City 

The City transferred its police functions to the Palm Beach County Sheriffs Office and its 
fire operations to Palm Beach County effective October 1, 2009. At that time, the pension plan witb 
respect to police officers and firefighters became closed to new members. All City employees other 
than police officers and firefighters continue to participate in the City's pension plan. The City's net 
pension liability was determined based on a measurement date of September 30, 2018. 

(REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK) 

A-3 



The components of the net pension liability of the City at September 30,2019, were as 

follows: 

Police Officers' 
General Employees' Relief and Firefighters' Pension 
Retirement System Retirement System Trust Fund 

Total pension liability $108,063,294 $52,206,957 $66,114,854 
P Jan fiduciary net position ---'-(7'-"22, Oc:.9_:c1"', 1c=2cc.9 ),__ ___ (>=3-=2"",3-=2"-'8 ''-'-4::.:8 8'-") ___ _,('-'4"-'7 '"'12~22, 4-'-'0"-'6:L) __ 

Net pension liability $35,972,165 

Plan fiduciary net position 
as a percentage of the total 
pension liability 

Changes in Net Pension Liability: 
General Employees' 
Retirement System: 

Balance, as of September 30,2017, 
Measurement Date 

Changes for the year: 
Service cost 
Interest 
Benefit Changes 

66.71% 

Differences between expected and 
actual experience 

Contributions - Employer 
Contributions - Employee 
Net investment income 
Changes of assumptions 
Benefit payments 
Adminish·ative expenses 

Net changes 

Balances, as of September 30,2018, 
Measurement Date 

A-4 

$19,878,469 $18,992,448 

61.92% 71.27% 

Increase (Decrease) 
Total 

Pension 
Liability 

a) 

Plan Net Pension 
Fiduciary Liability 

Net Position (a)-(b) 
b) 

$105,045,230 $70,340,708 $34,704,522 

1,276,370 
7,622,289 
2,327,011 

217,106 

957,440 
(9,382,152) 

3,018,064 

3,987,293 
1,124,419 
6,162,213 

(9,382,152) 
(141,352) 

1,750,421 

1,276,370 
7,622,289 
2,327,011 

217,106 
(3,987 ,293) 
(1 '124,419) 
(6,162,213) 

957,440 

141,352 

1,267,733 

$108,063,294 $72,091,129 $35,972,165 



Police Officers' Relief and 
Retirement System: 

Balance, as of September 30, 2017, 
Measurement Date 

Changes for the year: 
Service cost 
Interest 
Differences between expected and 

actual experience 
Changes of assumptions 
Contributions - Employer and State 
Contributions- Employee 
Net investment income 
Benefit payments 
Other (additions to share plan accounts) 
Administrative expenses 

Net changes 

Balances, as of September 30, 2018, 
Measurement Date 

Increase (Decrease 2 
Total Plan Net Pension 

Pension Fiduciary Liability 
Liability Net Position (a)-(b) 

a b 

$50,643,890 $30,722,155 $19,921,735 

193,882 193,882 
3,661,397 3,661,397 

434,141 434,141 
656,642 656,642 

3,119,402 (3,119,402) 
68,521 (68,521) 

2,189,338 (2,189,338) 
(3,678,987) (3,678,987) 

295,992 295,992 
(91,9412 91,941 

1,563,067 1,606,333 ( 43,2662 

$52,206,957 $32,328,488 $19,878,469 

(REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK) 

A-5 



Firefighters' Pension Trust Fund: 

Balance, as of September 30, 2017, 
Measurement Date 

Changes for the year: 
Service cost 
Interest 
Differences between expected and 

actual experience 
Contributions - Employer and State 
Contributions - Employee 
Net investment income 
Changes of assumptions 
Benefit payments 
Rollover 
Administrative expenses 

Net changes 

Balances, as of September 30,2018, 
Measurement Date 

Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) 

Increase (Decrease) 
Total 

Pension 
Liability 

a 

Plan Net Pension 
Fiduciary Liability 

Net Position (a)-(b) 
(b 

$65,953,233 $44,263,693 $21,689,540 

260,076 
4,749,735 

(544,886) 

613,640 
(5,341,813) 

424,869 

161,621 

2,794,091 
84,971 

4,981,565 

(5,341,813) 
424,869 
(84,970) 

2,858,713 

285,547 
4,762,802 

(322,397) 
(2,811,277) 

(105,985) 
(2,748,904) 

185,206 

84,970 

(2,697,092) 

$66,114,854 $47,122,406 $18,992,448 

Plan Description and Funding Policy. Employees who retire from the City and their 
dependents are eligible to continue to participate ("single employer plan") in the City's health 
insurance plan currently offered through the City at the "blended" employee group rate, which is 
determined annually by the City. The benefits of the Plan conform to Florida law, which are the 
legal authority for the Plan. 

The following table provides a summary of the number of participants in the plan as of the 
measurement date: 

Inactive plan members or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 
Inactive plan members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 
Active plan members 

Total plan members 

A-6 

436 

326 

762 



Currently, the City's OPEB benefits are unfunded. This plan is not accounted for in a trust 
fund. To date, the City has followed a pay as you go funding policy; therefore, only those amounts 
necessary to provide for the City's reporting of current year benefit costs and expenses have been 
contributed from the General Fund. Contribution rates are determined by the City. The Plan does 
not issue a stand-alone financial report and it is not included in the report of a public employee 
retirement system or a report of another entity. 

Funded Status and Funding Progress. The funded status of the plan as of October 1, 2018, 
the most recent actuarial valuation date, was as follows: 

Actuarial accrued liability 
Actuarial value of assets 
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) 
Funded ratio 
Covered payroll 
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 

$1,916,498 

$1,916,498 
0.0% 

$19,192,059 
10.97% 

(REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK) 

A-7 



PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS 
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA 

FISCAL YEAR 2019 

Employer 
Palm Beach State College 
City of Lake Worth Beach 
Lake Worth High School 
American Medical Response 
Highland Elementary School 
Publix (214 N. Dixie Hwy.) 
Barton Elementary School 
Publix (1910 Lake Worth Rd.) 
North Grade Elementary School 
Lake W01th Middle School 

Source: City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida. 

Principal Taxpayers 

Number of 
Employees 

1,148 
307 
270 
213 
168 
148 
131 
122 

91 
74 

The following table lists the ten principal taxpayers within the City, the 2019 taxable 
valuation and the percent of total assessed valuation for such taxpayers. 

PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS 

Top Ten Principal Taxpayers 
SL Boutwell Business Center II LLC 
Lake Worth Village, LLC 
Oakwood Apartments 160 Units, LLC 
Village at Lake Osborne, LLC 
GSG Investments 
Palm Beach Mobile Home Park, LLC 
Cubesmart LP 
Akers Robert L SR Trust 
1910 IO'h A venue, LLC 
Cubesmart LP 

Source: City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida. 

A-8 

Taxable Value 
$24,873,640 

21,836,215 
20,851,057 
12,380,165 
11,278,768 
10,892,991 
10,553,880 
9,422,267 
9,100,000 
9,086,232 

Percentage of 
Assessed Valuation 

1.2% 
l.1 
l.O 
0.6 
0.6 
0.5 
0.5 
0.5 
0.5 
0.5 
7.0% 



PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA 

Collections in 
Fiscal Total Tax Current Tax Percent Subsequent Total Taxes Percent of 
Year Levy Collections of Levy Years Collected Levy 
2010 $7,965,615 $7,434,810 93.34% $194,286 $7,629,096 95.78% 
2011 6,096,193 5,841,442 95.82 178,523 6,019,965 98.75 
2012 5,752,832 5,728,138 99.57 13,946 5,742,084 99.81 
2013 6,028,316 5,429,614 90.07 67,717 5,497,331 91.19 
2014 6,584,941 5,694,788 86.48 38,369 5,733,157 87.06 
2015 6,668,511 6,277,985 94.14 5,404 6,277,985 94.14 
2016 7,225,095 6,951,573 96.21 6,951,573 96.21 
2017 8,101,969 7,796,543 96.23 7,796,543 96.23 
2018 9,006,434 8,660,007 96.15 8,660,077 96.15 
2019 12,033,164 11,616,102 96.53 11,616,102 96.53 

Source: City of Lake Worth Beach, Finance Department and Palm Beach County Tax Collector's 
Office. 

ASSESSED VALUE TAXABLE PROPERTY 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA 
(OOO's) 

Total Net 
Fiscal Residential Commercial Railroad Assessed Total Direct 
Year Prorerty Prorerty ProiJer!y Value Tax Rate 
2010 $1,436,762 $57,667 $4,224 $1,498,653 8.76 
2011 1,053,076 53,324 3,735 1,110,135 8.49 
2012 990,200 52,992 3,825 1,047,017 8.95 
2013 1,041,527 51,276 4,350 1,097,153 8.95 
2014 1,143,415 49,839 4,763 1,198,017 8.95 
2015 1,260,658 51,353 5,148 1,317,159 8.95 
2016 1,415,323 51,077 5,596 1,471,996 8.95 
2017 1,584,396 43,122 5,781 1,633,299 9.70 
2018 1,758,006 49,116 5,924 1,813,046 9.70 
2019 1,933,683 57,977 7,795 1,999,455 10.06 

Source: City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida, Finance Department. 

A-9 



COMPUTATION OF DIRECT 
AND OVERLAPPING DEBT 

PAID WITH PROPERTY TAXES 
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA 

Applicable to 
City of Lake 
Worth Beach 

Debt 
Governmental Unit: Outstanding Percentage 

Overlapping: 
Palm Beach County $61,115,000 1.05% 
Palm Beach School Board 9,381,000 1.05% 

Subtotal $70,496,000 

Direct Debt: 
City of Lake Worth Beach $38,839,704 100% 

Total Direct and Overlapping Debt $109,335,704 

Amount 

$641,708 
98,501 

$740,208 

$38,839,704 

$39,579,912 

Source: Palm Beach County Finance Department and the Palm Beach County Property 
Appraiser's Office. 

A-10 



APPENDIXB 

FORM OF THE RESOLUTION 

B-1 



APPENDIXC 

FORM OF BOND COUNSEL OPINION 

C-1 



APPENDIXD 

AUDITED GENERAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE CITY FOR THE 
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 

D-1 



APPENDIXE 

FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE 

This Continuing Disclosure Certificate (the "Disclosure Certificate") is executed and 
delivered by the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida (the "Issuer") in connection with the issuance of 
its $ Consolidated Utility Revenue Bonds, Series 2020 (the "Bonds"). The Bonds are 
being issued pursuant to Resolution No. 45-2020, adopted by the City Commission of the City of 
Lake Worth Beach, Florida on October 6, 2020, as amended and supplemented from time to time, 
particularly as supplemented by Resolution No. , adopted by the City Commission of the City 
of Lake Worth Beach, Florida on October 20, 2020 (collectively, the "Resolution"), and other 
applicable provisions oflaw. 

SECTION I. PURPOSE OF THE DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE. This Disclosure 
Certificate is being executed and delivered by the Issuer for the benefit of the holder and Beneficial 
Owners of the Bonds and in order to assist the Participating Underwriter in complying with the 
continuing disclosure requirements of Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15c2-12. 

SECTION 2. DEFINITIONS. In addition to the definitions set forth in the Resolution 
which apply to any capitalized term used in this Disclosure Certificate, unless otherwise defined in 
this Section, the following capitalized terms shall have the following meanings: 

"Annual Report" shall mean any Annual Report provided by the Issuer pursuant to, and as 
described in, Sections 3 and 4 of this Disclosure Certificate. 

"Beneficial Owner" shall mean any person which (a) has the power, directly or indirectly, to 
vote or consent with respect to, or to dispose of ownership of, any Bonds (including persons holding 
Bonds through nominees, depositories or other intermediaries), or (b) is treated as the owner of any 
Bonds for federal income tax purposes. 

"Dissemination Agent" shall mean the Issuer, or any Dissemination Agent designated in 
writing by the Issuer and which has filed with the Issuer a written acceptance of such designation. 

"Event of Bankruptcy" shall be considered to have occurred when any of the following 
occur: the appointment of a receiver, fiscal agent or similar officer for an Obligated Person in a 
proceeding under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or in any other proceeding under state or federal law in 
which a court or govermuental authority has assumed jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets 
or business of the Obligated Person, or if such jurisdiction has been assumed by leaving the existing 
govermuental body and officials or officers in possession but subject to the supervision and orders of 
a court or govermuental authority, or the entry of an order confirming a plan of reorganization, 
arrangement or liquidation by a court or govermuental authority having supervision or jurisdiction 
over substantially all of the assets or business of the Obligated Person. 

E-1 



"Listed Events" shall mean any of the events listed in Section 5(a) of this Disclosure 
Certificate. 

"Obligated Person" shall mean any person, including the Issuer, who is either generally or 
through an enterprise, fund, or account of such person committed by contract or other arrangement to 
support payment of all, or part of the obligations on the Bonds (other than providers of municipal 
bond insurance, letters of credit, or other liquidity facilities). 

"Participating Underwriter" shall mean, collectively, the original underwriters of the Bonds 
required to comply with the Rule in connection with offering of the Bonds. 

"Repository" shall mean each entity authorized and approved by the Securities and Exchange 
Commission from time to time to act as a repository for purposes of complying with the Rule. The 
Repositories currently approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission may be found by 
visiting the Securities and Exchange Commission's website at 
http:/fwww.sec.gov/info/municipal/nrmsir.htm. As of the date hereof, the Repository recognized by 
the Securities and Exchange Connnission for such purpose is the Municipal Securities Rulemaking 
Board, which cunently accepts continuing disclosure submissions through its Electronic Municipal 
Market Access ("EMMA") web portal at "http://emma.msrb.org." 

"Rule" shall mean the continuing disclosure requirements of Rule 15c2-12 adopted by the 
Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as the same may 
be amended from time to time. 

"State" shall mean the State of Florida. 

SECTION 3. PROVISION OF ANNUAL REPORTS. 

(a) The Issuer shall, or shall cause the Dissemination Agent to, by not later than June 
30th following the end of the prior fiscal year, beginning with the fiscal year ending September 30, 
2020 with respect to the report for the 2019-2020 fiscal year, provide to any Repository in electronic 
format as prescribed by such Repository an Annual Report which is consistent with the requirements 
of Section 4 of this Disclosure Certificate. The Annual Report may be submitted as a single 
document or as separate documents comprising a package, and may cross-reference other 
information as provided in Section 4 of this Disclosure Certificate; provided that the audited 
financial statements of the Issuer may be submitted separately from the balance of the Annual Report 
and later than the date required above for the filing of the Annual Report if they are not available by 
that date; provided, further, in such event unaudited financial statements are required to be delivered 
as part of the Annual Report in accordance with Section 4(a) below. If the Issuer's fiscal year 
changes, it shall give notice of such change in the same manner as for a Listed Event under Section 
5(a). 

(b) Not later than fifteen (15) Business Days prior to the date set forth in (a) above, the 
Issuer shall provide the Annual Report to the Dissemination Agent (if other than the Issuer). If the 
Issuer is unable to provide to any Repository an Annual Report as required in subsection (a), the 

E-2 



Issuer shall send a notice to and Repository, in electronic format as prescribed by such Repository, in 
substantially the form attached as Exhibit A. 

(c) The Dissemination Agent shall: 

(i) determine each year prior to the date for providing the Annual Report the 
name and address of any Repository; 

(ii) if the Dissemination Agent is other than the Issuer, file a report with the Issuer 
certifying that the Annual Report has been provided pursuant to this Disclosure Certificate, 
stating the date it was provided and listing any Repository to which it was provided; and 

(iii) if the Dissemination Agent is other than the Issuer, the Dissemination Agent 
shall send a notice to any Repository, in electronic format as prescribed by such Repository, 
in substantially the form attached as Exhibit A if the Issuer is unable to provide an Annual 
Report to any Repository as required in subsection (a). 

SECTION 4. CONTENT OF ANNUAL REPORTS. The Issuer's Annual Report shall 
contain or include by reference the following: 

(a) the audited financial statements of the Issuer for the prior fiscal year, prepared in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles as promulgated to apply to govermnental 
entities from time to time by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. If the Issuer's audited 
financial statements are not available by the time the Annual Report is required to be filed pursuant 
to Section 3(a), the Annual Repmi shall contain unaudited financial statements in a format similar to 
the financial statements contained in the final Official Statement dated November_, 2020 (the 
"Official Statement"), and the audited financial statements shall be filed in the same manner as the 
Annual Repmi when they become available; and 

(b) updates of the historical financial and operating data set forth in the Official 
Statement under the captions: 

(i) Historical Energy and Peak Loads 
(ii) Monthly Non-Coincident Peak Demand 
(iii) Sources of Energy 
(iv) Monthly Net Energy Load 
(v) Electric Utility Average Number of Retail Meters & Annual Billed Usage 
(vi) Electric Utility's l 0 Largest Retail Customers 
(vii) Electric Utility- Transfers to the General Fund 
(viii) Historical Electric Utility Revenues and Expenses 
(ix) Water Utility Usage 
(x) Top Ten Water Customers 
(xi) Water Utility- Transfers to the General Fund 
(xii) Historical Water Utility Revenues and Expenses 
(xiii) Historical Average Wastewater Flows 
(xiv) Top Ten Wastewater Customers 

E-3 



(xv) Sewer Utility- Transfers to the General Fund 
(xvi) Historical Sewer Utility Revenues and Expenses 
(xvii) Historical System Revenues and Expenses 

The information provided under Section 4(b) may be included by specific reference to 
documents, including official statements of debt issues of the Issuer or related public entities, which 
are available to the public on the Repositmy's Internet Web site or filed with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission. 

The Issuer reserves the right to modify from time to time the specific types of information 
provided in its Annual Report or the format of the presentation of such infonnation, to the extent 
necessary or appropriate in the judgment of the Issuer; provided that the Issuer agrees that any such 
modification will be done in a manner consistent with the Rule. 

SECTION 5. REPORTING OF SIGNIFICANT EVENTS. 

(a) Pursuant to the provisions of this Section 5, the Issuer shall give, or cause to be 
given, notice of the occurrence of any of the following events with respect to the Bonds. Such notice 
shall be given in a timely manner not in excess often (1 0) business days after the occurrence of the 
event, with the exception of the event described in number 17 below, which notice shall be given in 
a timely manner: 

1. principal and interest payment delinquencies; 

2. non-payment related defaults, if material; 

3. unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties; 

4. unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties; 

5. substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perfonn; 

6. adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed or 
final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Fmm 5701 TEB) or other material 
notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of the Bonds, or other material events 
affecting the tax status of the Bonds; 

7. modifications to rights ofthe holders of the Bonds, if material; 

8. Bond calls, if material, and tender offers; 

9. defeasances; 

10. release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds, if material; 

11. ratings changes; 

E-4 



12. an Event of Bankruptcy or similar event of an Obligated Person; 

13. the consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving an Obligated 
Person or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Obligated Person, other than in the 
ordinary course ofbusiness, the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake such an action or the 
termination of a definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other than pursuant to its tetms, if 
material; 

14. appointment of a successor or additional Paying Agent or the change of name of a 
Paying Agent, if material; 

15. incurrence of a financial obligation of an Obligated Person, if material, or agreement 
to covenants, events of default, remedies, priority rights, or other similar tenns of a financial 
obligation of the Obligated Person, any of which affect holders of the Bonds, if material (for 
purposes of the foregoing and paragraph (xvi) below, "financial obligation" means a (a) debt 
obligation; (b) derivative instrument entered into in connection with, or pledged as security or a 
source of payment for, an existing or planned debt obligation; or (c) a guarantee of (a) or (b)); 

16. default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or other 
similar events under the terms of a financial obligation of the Obligated Person, any of which reflect 
financial difficulties; and 

17. notice of any failure on the part of the Issuer to meet the requirements of Section 3 
hereof. 

(b) The notice required to be given in paragraph 5(a) above shall be filed with any 
Repository, in electronic format as prescribed by such Repository. 

SECTION 6. IDENTIFYING INFORMATION. In accordance with the Ru1e, all disclosure 
filings submitted pursuant to this Disclosure Certificate to any Repository must be accompanied by 
identifYing information as prescribed by the Repository. Such information may include, but not be 
limited to: 

(a) the category of information being provided; 

(b) the period covered by any annual financial information, financial statement or other 
financial information or operation data; 

(c) the issues or specific securities to which such documents are related (including 
CUSIPs, issuer name, state, issue description/securities name, dated date, maturity date, and/or 
coupon rate); 

(d) the name of any Obligated Person other than the Issuer; 

(e) the name and date of the document being submitted; and 

E-5 



(f) contact information for the submitter. 

SECTION 7. TERMINATION OF REPORTING OBLIGATION. The Issuer's obligations 
under this Disclosure Certificate shall terminate upon the legal defeasance, prior redemption or 
payment in full of all of the Bonds or if the Rule is repealed or no longer in effect. If such 
termination occurs prior to the final maturity of the Bonds, the Issuer shall give notice of such 
termination in the same manner as for a Listed Event under Section 5. 

SECTION 8. DISSEMINATION AGENT. The Issuer may, from time to time, appoint or 
engage a Dissemination Agent to assist it in carrying out its obligations under this Disclosure 
Certificate, and may discharge any such Dissemination Agent, with or without appointing a 
successor Dissemination Agent. The Dissemination Agent shall not be responsible in any manner 
for the content of any notice or report prepared by the Issuer pursuant to this Disclosure Certificate. 
The initial Dissemination Agent shall be Digital Assurance Certificate. 

SECTION 9. AMENDMENT; WAIVER. Notwithstanding any other provision of this 
Disclosure Certificate, the Issuer may amend this Disclosure Certificate, and any provision of this 
Disclosure Certificate may be waived, provided that the following conditions are satisfied: 

(a) If the amendment or waiver relates to the provisions of Sections 3(a), 4, or 5(a), it 
may only be made in com1ection with a change in circumstances that arises from a change in legal 
requirements, change in law, or change in the identity, nature or status of the Issuer, or the type of 
business conducted; 

(b) The undertaking, as amended or talcing into account such waiver, would, in the 
opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel, have complied with the requirements of the Rule at 
the time of the original issuance of the Bonds, after taking into account any amendments or 
interpretations of the Rule, as well as any change in circumstances; and 

(c) The amendment or waiver either (i) is approved by the holders or Beneficial Owners 
of the Bonds in the same manner as provided in the Resolution for amendments to the Resolution 
with the consent of holders or Beneficial Owners, or (ii) does not, in the opinion of nationally 
recognized bond counsel, materially impair the interests of the holders or Beneficial Owners of the 
Bonds. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Issuer shall have the right to adopt amendments to this 
Disclosure Certificate necessary to comply with modifications to and interpretations of the 
provisions of the Rule as announced by the Securities and Exchange Commission from time to time. 

In the event of any amendment or waiver of a provision of this Disclosure Certificate, the 
Issuer shall describe such amendment in the next Annual Report, and shall include, as applicable, a 
narrative explanation of the reason for the amendment or waiver and its impact on the type (or in the 
case of a change of accounting principles, on the presentation) of financial information or operating 
data being presented by the Issuer. In addition, if the amendment relates to the accounting principles 
to be followed in preparing financial statements, (i) notice of such change shall be given in the same 
manner as for a Listed Event under Section 5(a), and (ii) the Annual Report for the year in which the 

E-6 



change is made should present a comparison (in narrative fo1m and also, if feasible, in quantitative 
form) between the financial statements as prepared on the basis of the new accounting principles and 
those prepared on the basis of the former accounting principles. 

SECTION 10. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION. Nothing in this Disclosure Certificate 
shall be deemed to prevent the Issuer from disseminating any other information, using the means of 
dissemination set fmih in this Disclosure Certificate or any other means of connnunication, or 
including any other information in any Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event, in 
addition to that which is required by this Disclosure Certificate. If the Issuer chooses to include any 
information in any Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event in addition to that which 
is specifically required by this Disclosure Certificate, the Issuer shall have no obligation under this 
Certificate to update such information or include it in any future Annual Report or notice of 
occurrence of a Listed Event. 

SECTION 11. DEFAULT. The continuing disclosure obligations of the Issuer set forth 
herein constitute a contract with the holders of the Bonds. In the event of a failure of the Issuer to 
comply with any provision of this Disclosure Certificate, any holder or Beneficial Owner of the 
Bonds may take such actions as may be necessary and appropriate, including seeking mandamus or 
specific performance by court order, to cause the Issuer to comply with its obligations under this 
Disclosure Cetiificate; provided, however, the sole remedy under this Disclosure Certificate in the 
event of any failure of the Issuer to comply with the provisions of this Disclosure Certificate shall 
be an action to compel performance. A default under this Disclosure Certificate shall not be deemed 
an Event of Default under the Resolution. 

SECTION 12. DUTIES, IMMUNITIES AND LIABILITIES OF DISSEMINATION 
AGENT. The Dissemination Agent shall have only such duties as are specifically set forth in this 
Disclosure Certificate, and the Issuer agrees to indemnifY and save the Dissemination Agent, its 
officers, directors, employees and agents, harmless against loss, expense and liabilities which it may 
incur arising out of or in the exercise or performance of its powers and duties hereunder, including 
the costs and expenses (including attorneys fees) of defending against any claim of liability, but 
excluding liabilities due to the Dissemination Agent's negligence or willful misconduct. The 
obligations of the Issuer under this Section shall survive resignation or removal of the Dissemination 
Agent and payment of the Bonds. 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank] 

E-7 



SECTION 13. BENEFICIARIES. This Disclosure Cetiificate shall inure solely to the 
benefit of the Issuer, the Dissemination Agent, the Participating Underwriter and Holders and 
Beneficial Owners from time to time of the Bonds, and shall create no rights in any other person or 
entity. 

Dated as November_, 2020 

(SEAL) 

ATTEST: 

By: _________ _ 
City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Nabors, Giblin & Nickerson, P.A. 

E-8 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, 
FLORIDA 

By: _________ _ 
Mayor 



EXHIBIT A 

NOTICE OF FAILURE TO FILE ANNUAL REPORT 

Name ofissuer: City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida 

Name of Bond Issue: Consolidated Utility Revenue Bonds, Series 2020 

Date ofissuance: November '2020 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Issuer has not provided an Annual Report with 
respect to the above-named Bonds as required by Section 3 and 4(b) of the Continuing Disclosure 
Certificate dated as ofNovember _, 2020. The Issuer anticipates that the Annual Report will be 
filed by _______________ , 

Dated: 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA 

By: ___________ _ 
Name: ____________ _ 
Title: _____________ _ 

E-9 



APPENDIXF 

CONSULTING ENGINEER'S REPORT WITH RESPECT 
TO THE ELECTRIC UTILITY 

F-1 



APPENDIXG 

FINANCIAL FEASIBILITY REPORT 

G-1 



EXHIBITC 

FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE 



CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE 

This Continuing Disclosure Certificate (the "Disclosure Certificate") is executed and 
delivered by the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida (the "Issuer") in connection with the issuance 
of its $ Consolidated Utility Revenue Bonds, Series 2020 (the "Bonds"). The Bonds 
are being issued pursuant to Resolution No. 45-2020, adopted by the City Commission of the City 
of Lake Worth Beach, Florida on October 6, 2020, as amended and supplemented from time to 
time, particularly as supplemented by Resolution No. , adopted by the City Commission of 
the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida on October 20, 2020 (collectively, the "Resolution"), and 
other applicable provisions of law. 

SECTION I. PURPOSE OF THE DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE. This Disclosure 
Certificate is being executed and delivered by the Issuer for the benefit of the holder and Beneficial 
Owners of the Bonds and in order to assist the Participating Underwriter in complying with the 
continuing disclosure requirements of Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15c2-12. 

SECTION 2. DEFINITIONS. In addition to the definitions set forth in the Resolution 
which apply to any capitalized tenn used in this Disclosure Certificate, unless otherwise defined 
in this Section, the following capitalized terms shall have the following meanings: 

"Annual Report" shall mean any Annual Report provided by the Issuer pursuant to, and as 
described in, Sections 3 and 4 of this Disclosure Certificate. 

"Beneficial Owner" shall mean any person which (a) has the power, directly or indirectly, 
to vote or consent with respect to, or to dispose of ownership of, any Bonds (including persons 
holding Bonds through nominees, depositories or other intermediaries), or (b) is treated as the 
owner of any Bonds for federal income tax purposes. 

"Dissemination Agent" shall mean the Issuer, or any Dissemination Agent designated in 
writing by the Issuer and which has filed with the Issuer a written acceptance of such designation. 

"Event of Bankruptcy" shall be considered to have occurred when any of the following 
occur: the appointment of a receiver, fiscal agent or similar officer for an Obligated Person in a 
proceeding under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or in any other proceeding under state or federal law 
in which a court or govemmental authority has assumed jurisdiction over substantially all of the 
assets or business of the Obligated Person, or if such jurisdiction has been assumed by leaving the 
existing governmental body and officials or officers in possession but subject to the supervision 
and orders of a court or governmental authority, or the entry of an order confirming a plan of 
reorganization, arrangement or liquidation by a court or governmental authority having 
supervision or jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the Obligated Person. 

"Listed Events" shall mean any of the events listed in Section 5(a) of this Disclosure 
Certificate. 

"Obligated Person" shall mean any person, including the Issuer, who is either generally or 
through an enterprise, fund, or account of such person committed by contract or other arrangement 
to support payment of all, or part of the obligations on the Bonds (other than providers of municipal 
bond insurance, letters of credit, or other liquidity facilities). 



"Participating Underwriter" shall mean, collectively, the original underwriters of the Bonds 
required to comply with the Rule in connection with offering of the Bonds. 

"Repository" shall mean each entity authorized and approved by the Securities and 
Exchange Commission from time to time to act as a repository for purposes of complying with the 
Rule. The Repositories cun-ently approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission may be 
found by visiting the Securities and Exchange Commission's website at 
http:/fwww.sec.gov/info/municipal/mmsir.htm. As of the date hereof, the Repository recognized 
by the Securities and Exchange Commission for such purpose is the Municipal Securities 
Rulemaking Board, which currently accepts continuing disclosure submissions through its 
Electronic Municipal Market Access ("EMMA") web portal at "http://emma.msrb.org." 

"Rule" shall mean the continuing disclosure requirements of Rule 15c2-12 adopted by the 
Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as the same may 
be amended from time to time. 

"State" shall mean the State of Florida. 

SECTION 3. PROVISION OF ANNUAL REPORTS. 

(a) The Issuer shall, or shall cause the Dissemination Agent to, by not later than June 
30th following the end of the prior fiscal year, beginning with the fiscal year ending September 
30, 2020 with respect to the report for the 2019-2020 fiscal year, provide to any Repository in 
electronic format as prescribed by such Repositmy an Ammal Report which is consistent with the 
requirements of Section 4 of this Disclosure Certificate. The Annual Report may be submitted as 
a single document or as separate documents comprising a package, and may cross-reference other 
information as provided in Section 4 of this Disclosure Certificate; provided that the audited 
financial statements of the Issuer may be submitted separately from the balance of the Annual 
Report and later than the date required above for the filing of the Annual Report if they are not 
available by that date; provided, further, in such event unaudited financial statements are required 
to be delivered as part of the Annual Report in accordance with Section 4(a) below. Ifthe Issuer's 
fiscal year changes, it shall give notice of such change in the same manner as for a Listed Event 
under Section S(a). 

(b) Not later than fifteen (15) Business Days prior to the date set forth in (a) above, 
the Issuer shall provide the Annual Report to the Dissemination Agent (if other than the Issuer). 
If the Issuer is unable to provide to any Repository an Annual Report as required in subsection (a), 
the Issuer shall send a notice to and Repository, in electronic format as prescribed by such 
Repository, in substantially the form attached as Exhibit A. 

(c) The Dissemination Agent shall: 

(i) determine each year prior to the date for providing the Annual Report the 
name and address of any Repository; 

2 



(ii) if the Dissemination Agent is other than the Issuer, file a report with the 
Issuer certifying that the Annual Report has been provided pursuant to this Disclosure 
Cetiificate, stating the date it was provided and listing any Repository to which it was 
provided; and 

(iii) if the Dissemination Agent is other than the Issuer, the Dissemination Agent 
shall send a notice to any Repository, in electronic format as prescribed by such Repository, 
in substantially the form attached as Exhibit A if the Issuer is unable to provide an Annual 
Report to any Repository as required in subsection (a). 

SECTION 4. CONTENT OF ANNUAL REPORTS. The Issuer's Annual Report shall 
contain or include by reference the following: 

(a) the audited financial statements of the Issuer for the prior fiscal year, prepared in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles as promulgated to apply to 
governmental entities from time to time by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. If the 
Issuer's audited financial statements are not available by the time the Annual Report is required to 
be filed pursuant to Section 3(a), the Annual Report shall contain unaudited financial statements 
in a format similar to the financial statements contained in the final Official Statement dated 
November_, 2020 (the "Official Statement"), and the audited financial statements shall be filed 
in the same manner as the Annual Report when they become available; and 

(b) updates of the historical financial and operating data set forth in the Official 
Statement under the captions: 

(i) Historical Energy and Peak Loads 
(ii) Monthly Non-Coincident Peak Demand 
(iii) Sources of Energy 
(iv) Monthly Net Energy Load 
(v) Electric Utility Average Number of Retail Meters & Annual Billed Usage 
(vi) Electric Utility's 10 Largest Retail Customers 
(vii) Electric Utility- Transfers to the General Fund 
(viii) Historical Electric Utility Revenues and Expenses 
(ix) Water Utility Usage 
(x) Top Ten Water Customers 
(xi) Water Utility- Transfers to the General Fund 
(xii) Historical Water Utility Revenues and Expenses 
(xiii) Historical Average Wastewater Flows 
(xiv) Top Ten Wastewater Customers 
(xv) Sewer Utility- Transfers to the General Fund 
(xvi) Historical Sewer Utility Revenues and Expenses 
(xvii) Historical System Revenues and Expenses 

The information provided under Section 4(b) may be included by specific reference to 
documents, including official statements of debt issues of the Issuer or related public entities, 
which are available to the public on the Repository's Internet Web site or filed with the Securities 
and Exchange Commission. 

3 



The Issuer reserves the right to modifY from time to time the specific types of information 
provided in its Annual Report or the fonnat of the presentation of such information, to the extent 
necessary or appropriate in the judgment of the Issuer; provided that the Issuer agrees that any 
such modification will be done in a manner consistent with the Rule. 

SECTION 5. REPORTING OF SIGNIFICANT EVENTS. 

(a) Pursuant to the provisions of this Section 5, the Issuer shall give, or cause to be 
given, notice of the occurrence of any of the following events with respect to the Bonds. Such 
notice shall be given in a timely manner not in excess often (10) business days after the occunence 
of the event, with the exception of the event described in number 17 below, which notice shall be 
given in a timely manner: 

1. principal and interest payment delinquencies; 

2. non-payment related defaults, if material; 

3. unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties; 

4. unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties; 

5. substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perfonn; 

6. adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed or 
final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701 TEB) or other 
material notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of the Bonds, or other material 
events affecting the tax status of the Bonds; 

7. modifications to rights of the holders of the Bonds, if material; 

8. Bond calls, if material, and tender offers; 

9. defeasances; 

l 0. release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds, if 
material; 

ll. ratings changes; 

12. an Event of Bankruptcy or similar event of an Obligated Person; 

13. the consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving an Obligated 
Person or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Obligated Person, other than in the 
ordinary course of business, the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake such an action or 
the termination of a definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other than pursuant to its 
terms, if material; 

4 



14. appointment of a successor or additional Paying Agent or the change of name of a 
Paying Agent, if material; 

15. incunence of a financial obligation of an Obligated Person, if material, or 
agreement to covenants, events of default, remedies, priority rights, or other similar terms of a 
financial obligation of the Obligated Person, any of which affect holders of the Bonds, if material 
(for purposes of the foregoing and paragraph (xvi) below, "financial obligation" means a (a) debt 
obligation; (b) derivative instrument entered into in connection with, or pledged as security or a 
source of payment for, an existing or planned debt obligation; or (c) a guarantee of (a) or (b)); 

16. default, event of acceleration, te1mination event, modification of terms, or other 
similar events under the terms of a financial obligation of the Obligated Person, any of which 
reflect financial difficulties; and 

17. notice of any failure on the part of the Issuer to meet the requirements of Section 3 
hereof. 

(b) The notice required to be given in paragraph 5(a) above shall be filed with any 
Repository, in electronic format as prescribed by such Repository. 

SECTION 6. IDENTIFYING INFORMATION. In accordance with the Rnle, all 
disclosure filings submitted pursuant to this Disclosure Certificate to any Repository must be 
accompanied by identifYing information as prescribed by the Repositmy. Such information may 
include, but not be limited to: 

(a) the category of information being provided; 

(b) the period covered by any annual financial information, financial statement or other 
financial information or operation data; 

(c) the issues or specific securities to which such documents are related (including 
CUSIPs, issuer name, state, issue description/securities name, dated date, maturity date, and/or 
coupon rate); 

(d) the name of any Obligated Person other than the Issuer; 

(e) the name and date of the document being submitted; and 

(f) contact information for the submitter. 

SECTION 7. TERMINATION OF REPORTING OBLIGATION. The Issuer's obligations 
under this Disclosure Certificate shall terminate upon the legal defeasance, prior redemption or 
payment in full of all of the Bonds or if the Rule is repealed or no longer in effect. If such 
termination occurs prior to the final maturity of the Bonds, the Issuer shall give notice of such 
termination in the same manner as for a Listed Event under Section 5. 

5 



SECTION 8. DISSEMINATION AGENT. The Issuer may, from time to time, appoint 
or engage a Dissemination Agent to assist it in carrying out its obligations under this Disclosure 
Certificate, and may discharge any such Dissemination Agent, with or without appointing a 
successor Dissemination Agent. The Dissemination Agent shall not be responsible in any manner 
for the content of any notice or report prepared by the Issuer pursuant to this Disclosure Certificate. 
The initial Dissemination Agent shall be Digital Assurance Certificate. 

SECTION 9. AMENDMENT; WAIVER. Notwithstanding any other provision of this 
Disclosure Certificate, the Issuer may amend this Disclosure Certificate, and any provision of this 
Disclosure Certificate may be waived, provided that the following conditions are satisfied: 

(a) If the amendment or waiver relates to the provisions of Sections 3(a), 4, or 5(a), it 
may only be made in connection with a change in circumstances that arises from a change in legal 
requirements, change in law, or change in the identity, nature or status of the Issuer, or the type of 
business conducted; 

(b) The nndetiaking, as amended or taking into account such waiver, would, in the 
opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel, have complied with the requirements of the Rule 
at the time of the original issuance of the Bonds, after taking into account any amendments or 
interpretations of the Rule, as well as any change in circumstances; and 

(c) The amendment or waiver either (i) is approved by the holders or Beneficial 
Owners of the Bonds in the same manner as provided in the Resolution for amendments to the 
Resolution with the consent of holders or Beneficial Owners, or (ii) does not, in the opinion of 
nationally recognized bond counsel, materially impair the interests of the holders or Beneficial 
Owners of the Bonds. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Issuer shall have the right to adopt amendments to this 
Disclosure Certificate necessary to comply with modifications to and interpretations of the 
provisions of the Rule as announced by the Securities and Exchange Commission from time to 
time. 

In the event of any amendment or waiver of a provision of this Disclosure Certificate, the 
Issuer shall describe such amendment in the next Annual Report, and shall include, as applicable, 
a narrative explanation of the reason for the amendment or waiver and its impact on the type (or 
in the case of a change of accounting principles, on the presentation) of financial information or 
operating data being presented by the Issuer. In addition, if the amendment relates to the 
accounting principles to be followed in preparing financial statements, (i) notice of such change 
shall be given in the same manner as for a Listed Event under Section 5(a), and (ii) the Annual 
Report for the year in which the change is made should present a comparison (in narrative form 
and also, if feasible, in quantitative form) between the financial statements as prepared on the basis 
of the new accounting principles and those prepared on the basis of the former accounting 
principles. 

6 



SECTION 10. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION. Nothing in this Disclosure Certificate 
shall be deemed to prevent the Issuer from disseminating any other information, using the means 
of dissemination set forth in this Disclosure Certificate or any other means of communication, or 
including any other information in any Annual Report or notice of occunence of a Listed Event, 
in addition to that which is required by this Disclosure Certificate. If the Issuer chooses to include 
any information in any Annual Report or notice of occunence of a Listed Event in addition to that 
which is specifically required by this Disclosure Certificate, the Issuer shall have no obligation 
under this Certificate to update such infmmation or include it in any future Annual Report or notice 
of occunence of a Listed Event. 

SECTION 11. DEFAULT. The continuing disclosure obligations of the Issuer set forth 
herein constitute a contract with the holders of the Bonds. In the event of a failure of the Issuer to 
comply with any provision of this Disclosure Certificate, any holder or Beneficial Owner of the 
Bonds may take such actions as may be necessary and appropriate, including seeking mandamus 
or specific perfmmance by conrt order, to cause the Issuer to comply with its obligations under 
this Disclosure Certificate; provided, however, the sole remedy under this Disclosure Certificate 
in the event of any failure of the Issuer to comply with the provisions of this Disclosure Certificate 
shall be an action to compel performance. A default under this Disclosure Certificate shall not be 
deemed an Event of Default under the Resolution. 

SECTION 12. DUTIES, IMMUNITIES AND LIABILITIES OF DISSEMINATION 
AGENT. The Dissemination Agent shall have only such duties as are specifically set forth in this 
Disclosure Certificate, and the Issuer agrees to indenmifY and save the Dissemination Agent, its 
officers, directors, employees and agents, harmless against loss, expense and liabilities which it 
may incur arising out of or in the exercise or performance of its powers and duties hereunder, 
including the costs and expenses (including attorneys fees) of defending against any claim of 
liability, but excluding liabilities due to the Dissemination Agent's negligence or willful 
misconduct. The obligations of the Issuer under this Section shall survive resignation or removal 
of the Dissemination Agent and payment of the Bonds. 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

7 



SECTION 13. BENEFICIARIES. This Disclosure Certificate shall inure solely to the 
benefit of the Issuer, the Dissemination Agent, the Participating Underwriter and Holders and 
Beneficial Owners from time to time of the Bonds, and shall create no rights in any other person 
or entity. 

Dated as November_, 2020 

(SEAL) 

ATTEST: 

By: _________ _ 
City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Nabors, Giblin & Nickerson, P.A. 

8 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, 
FLORIDA 

By:_~-------~ 
Mayor 



EXHIBIT A 

NOTICE OF FAILURE TO FILE ANNUAL REPORT 

Name oflssuer: City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida 

Name of Bond Issue: Consolidated Utility Revenue Bonds, Series 2020 

Date oflssuance: November_, 2020 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Issuer has not provided an Armual Repmt with 
respect to the above-named Bonds as required by Section 3 and 4(b) of the Continuing Disclosure 
Certificate dated as ofNovember _, 2020. The Issuer anticipates that the Armual Report will be 
filed by ______________ _ 

Dated: 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA 

By: ____________ _ 
Name: ____________ _ 
Title: _____________ _ 

A-1 



EXHIBITD 

FORM OF INSURANCE AGREEMENT 



INSURANCE AGREEMENT 

NON Draft No.2 10/19/20 
226.08 

THIS INSURANCE AGREEMENT, dated November_, 2020 (the "Agreement"), by 
and between the CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORlDA (the "Issuer") and 
_________________ (the "Bond Insurer" or" __ "). 

In consideration of the issuance by the Bond Insurer of its Municipal Bond Insurance 
Policy Nos. and (collectively, the "Policy") with respect to the Issuer's 
Consolidated Utility Revenue Bonds, Series 2020 (the "Bonds") issued under the Issuer's 
Resolution No. 45-2020, adopted October 6, 2020 (the "Original Resolution"), as amended and 
supplemented by its Resolution No. _-2020, adopted October 20, 2020 (collectively with the 
Original Resolution, the "Resolution") and the Issuer's payment to the Bond Insurer of the 
insurance premium for the Policy, the Bond Insurer and the Issuer hereby covenant and agree as 
follows: 

1. Notice and Other Information to be given to . The Issuer will provide 
=-:--:--with all notices and other information it is obligated to provide (i) under its Continuing 
Disclosure Certificate and (ii) to the holders of the Bonds or the Paying Agent under the 
Resolution. 

The notice address of 1s: ----.,---:-----c-,.- ----c=---=----c--
-:-----c--' Attention: Surveillance, Re: Policy Nos. 

____ and , Telephone: L__) , Telecopier: L__) , Email: 
-:-:--:------:--:--· In each case in which notice or other communication refers to an event of 
default or a claim on the Policy, then a copy of such notice or other communication shall also be 
sent to the attention of the General Counsel at the same address and at or at 
Telecopier: L__) and shall be marked to indicate "URGENT MATERIAL 
ENCLOSED." 

2. Amendments, Supplements and Consents. 

a. Amendments. Wherever any Security Document requires the consent or approval 
of holders of the Bonds, __ 's consent shall also be required. In addition, any 
amendment, supplement or modification to the Security Documents that adversely 
affect the rights or interests of __ shall be subject to the prior written consent of 

b. Consent of __ Upon Default. Anything in any Security Docmnent to the 
contrary notwithstanding, upon the occurrence and continuance of a default or an 
event of default, __ shall be deemed to be the sole holder of the Bonds for all 
purposes and shall be entitled to control and direct the enforcement of all rights 
and remedies granted to the holders of the Bonds, the Paying Agent or any trustee 
(a "Trustee") for the benefit of such holders under any Security Document. The 
Trustee may not waive any default or event of default or accelerate the Bonds 

1 



without 's written consent. 

c. Trustee. No removal, resignation or termination of any Trustee shall take effect 
until a successor, acceptable to __ , shall be qualified and appointed. 

3. as Third Partv Beneficiary. __ is explicitly recognized as and shall be 
deemed to be a third party beneficimy of the Security Documents and may enforce any right, 
remedy or claim conferred, given or granted thereunder. 

4. Policy Payments. 

a. In the event that principal and/or interest due on the Bonds shall be paid 
by __ pursuant to the Policy, the Bonds shall remain outstanding for all 
purposes, not be defeased or otherwise satisfied and not be considered 
paid by the Issuer, all covenants, agreements and other obligations of the 
Issuer to the registered owners shall continue to exist and shall run to the 
benefit of __ , and __ shall be subrogated to the rights of such 
registered owners, including, without limitation, any rights that such 
owners may have in respect of securities law violations arising from the 
offer and sale of the Bonds. 

b. Irrespective of whether any such assignment is executed and delivered, the 
Issuer and the Paying Agent agree for the benefit of __ that: 

1. They recognize that to the extent __ makes payments directly or 
indirectly (e.g., by paying through the Paying Agent), on account 
of principal of or interest on the Bonds, __ will be subrogated to 
the rights of such holders to receive the mnount of such principal 
and interest from the Issuer, with interest thereon, as provided and 
solely form the sources stated in the Security Documents and the 
Bonds; and 

n. They will accordingly pay to __ the mnount of such principal 
and interest, with interest thereon, but only from the sources and in 
the mmmer provided in the Security Documents and the Bonds for 
the payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds to holders, 
and will otherwise treat __ as the owner of such rights to the 
mnount of such principal and interest. 

c. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrmy, the Issuer agrees to pay 
to __ , solely from Pledged Funds (as defined in the Resolution) (i) a 
sum equal to the total of all mnounts paid by __ under the Policy (" __ 
Policy Payment"); and (ii) interest on such __ Policy Payments from the 
date paid by __ until payment thereof in full by the Issuer, payable to 
__ at the Late Payment Rate per annum (collectively, " __ 
Reimbursement Amounts") compounded semi-mmually. Notwithstanding 
anything to the contrary, __ Reimbursement Amounts shall be, and the 

2 



Issuer hereby covenants and agrees that the __ Reimbursements 
Amounts are, payable from and secured by the Issuer's Pledged Funds on 
the same basis as with respect to payment of debt service due on the 
Bonds. 

5. Additional Payments. The Issuer agrees unconditionally that it will pay or 
reimburse __ on demand solely from Pledged Funds as described above, any and all 
reasonable charges, fees, costs, losses, liabilities and expenses that __ may pay or incur, 
including, but not limited to, fees and expenses of __ 's agents, attorneys, accountants, 
consultants, appraisers and auditors and reasonable costs of investigations, in connection with the 
administration (including waives and consents, if any), enforcement, defense, exercise or 
preservation of any rights and remedies in respect of the Security Documents ("Administrative 
Costs"). For purposes of the foregoing, costs and expenses shall include a reasonable allocation 
of compensation and overhead attributable to the time of employees of __ spent in cmmection 
with the actions described in the preceding sentence. The Issuer agrees that failure to pay any 
Administrative Costs on a timely basis will result in the accrual of interest on the unpaid amount 
at the Late Payment Rate, compounded semi-annually, from the date that payment is first due to 
__ until the date __ is paid in full. 

6. Special Provisions for Insurer Default: If an Insurer Default shall occur and be 
continuing, then, notwithstanding anything in paragraph 2 above to the contrary, (l) if at any 
time prior to or following an Insurer Default, __ has made payment under the Policy, to the 
extent of such payment __ shall be treated like any other holder of the Bonds for all purposes, 
including giving of consents, and (2) if __ has not made any payment under the policy, __ 
shall have no further consent rights until the particular Insurer Default is no longer continuing or 
__ makes a payment under the Policy, in which event, the foregoing clause (1) shall control. 
For purposes of this paragraph (6), "Insurer Default" means: (A) __ has failed to make any 
payment under the Policy when due and owing in accordance with its terms; or (B) __ shall (i) 
voluntarily commence any proceeding or file any petition seeking relief under the United States 
Bankruptcy Code or any other Federal, state or foreign bankruptcy, insolvency or similar law, 
(ii) consent to the institution of or fail to controvert in a timely and appropriate manner, any such 
proceeding or the filing of any such petition, (iii) apply for or consent to the appointment of a 
receiver, trustee, custodian, sequestrator or similar official for such party or for a substantial part 
of its property, (iv) file an answer admitting the material allegations of a petition filed against it 
in any such proceeding, (v) make a general assignment of the benefit of creditors, or (vi) take 
action for the purpose of effecting any of the foregoing; or (C) any state or federal agency or 
instrumentality shall order the suspension of payments on the Policy or shall obtain an order or 
grant approval for the rehabilitation, liquidation, conservation or dissolution of __ (including 
without limitation under the New York Insurance Law). 

7. Definitions. All capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein have the meanings 
set forth in the Resolution. In addition: 

" " shall mean _________ , or any successor thereto. 

"Late Payment Rate" means the lesser of (a) the greater of (i) the per annum rate of 

3 



interest, publicly announced from time to time by JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., at its principal 
office in the City of New York, New York, as its prime or base lending rate ("Prime Rate") (any 
change in such Prime Rate to be effective on the date such change is announced by JPMorgan 
Chase Bank, N.A.) plus 3%, and (ii) the then applicable highest rate of interest on the Bonds and 
(b) the maximum rate permissible under applicable usury or similar laws limiting interest rates. 
In the event JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., ceases to announce its Prime Rate, the Prime Rate 
shall be the prime or base lending rate of such other bank, banking association or trust company 
as __ , in its sole and absolute discretion, shall designate. Interest at the Late Payment Rate on 
any amount owing to __ shall be computed on the basis of the actual number of days elapsed in 
a year of 360 days. 

"Policy" shall mean the Municipal Bond Insurance Policy issued by __ that guarantees 
the scheduled payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds when due. 

"Security Documents" shall mean the Resolution, the Bonds and any additional or 
supplemental document executed in connection with the Bonds. 

4 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be duly 
executed in their respective names as of the date first written above. 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, 
FLORIDA 

By: __________ _ 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Clerk 

Approved as to form: 

Nabors, Giblin & Nickerson, P.A., 
Bond Counsel 

By: ____________ _ 
Title: Authorized Officer 

S-1 



EXHIBITE 

FORM OF CUSTODY AGREEMENT 



CUSTODY AGREEMENT 

DRAFT2 
226-08 

10/19/20 

This custody agreement (the "Agreement") dated as ofNovember _, 2020 (the "Effective Date"), is between 
U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, a national banking association organized under the laws of the United 
States of America, as Custodian ("Custodian") and the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida ("City") a municipal 
corporation organized under the laws of the State of Florida. 

The parties hereby agree as follows: 

1. Appointment and Acceptance. 

1.1 City hereby appoints Custodian to provide custody services in connection with securities, casb and 
other property delivered from time to time to Custodian hereunder by, or at the direction of, City, and income, 
distributions and payments received by Custodian with respect thereto (collectively the "Assets"); and Custodian 
hereby agrees to hold the Assets in a custody account established in the name of City (the "Account"), upon the terms 
and conditions set forth below. 

1.2 All references contained herein to actions, directions and responsibilities (other than the obligations 
set forth in Sections 12 and 14) of City shall include, apply to and be binding upon City's agents, including any 
investment manager or advisor, appointed and authorized by City to direct Custodian or otherwise take actions on 
behalf of City in connection with Custodian's services and responsibilities hereunder. City shall provide written notice 
to Custodian of the identity of all such appointed agents and the scope of their authority to act or direct Custodian 
hereunder. 

1.3 In the event that City requires Custodian to establish one or more sub-accounts within the Account 
under this Agreement("Sub-Accounts 11

), Custodian shall open such accounts pursuant to Custodian's account opening 
procedures in effect at the time. The term "Account" as used in this Agreement shall refer to one or all of the Sub
Accounts, as the context of this Agreement shall require. The City specifically directs the establishment of separate 
112020 Construction Fund 11 and nPrior Bond Proceeds Fund" Sub-Accounts. 

I .4 Custodian shall have no duties or responsibilities except those specifically set forth herein and shall 
not be liable except for failure to perform the duties and obligations set forth herein. No implied duties, 
responsibilities, representations, warranties, covenants or obligations shall be read into this Agreement against 
Custodian. 

2. Asset Delivery, Transfer, Custody and Safekeeping. 

2.1 City will from time to time deliver, or cause to be delivered, Assets to Custodian. Custodian shall 
receive and accept such Assets for the Account upon Appropriate Instructions (defined in Section 11. I) from City. 
Custodian shall keep records of all transactions involving the Account and Assets belonging to the Account. Custodian 
shall not have any responsibility or liability for any assets of City that are not delivered to and received by Custodian. 

2.2 Upon receipt of Appropriate Instructions, Custodian shall return Assets to City, or deliver Assets to 
such location or third party as Appropriate Instructions may indicate, provided that in com1ection therewith it is the 
sole responsibility of City to provide any transfer documentation as may be required by the applicable Depository 
(defmed in Section 3.3) or third-party recipient. Custodian shall have no power or authority to assign, hypothecate, 
pledge or otherwise dispose of any Assets, except as provided herein or pursuant to Appropriate Instructions. 

2.3 As part of the services for which Custodian charges its basic fee hereunder, Custodian shall furnish 
City with monthly Account statements reflecting all Asset transactions in the Account during the reporting period and 
ending Asset holdings. 

2.3.1 If City wishes Custodian to report on Assets that are not in control of Custodian, City shall 
execute Custodian's CLIENT CONTROL ADDENDUM, which shall be provided to City upon request. 

2.3.2 Custodian is not an investment manager of the Assets. The Account statements described 
above (including their timing and form) will serve as the sole written notification to City of any securities 
transaction effected by Custodian for the Accoilllt unless City requests that Custodian provide written 
notification of such transactions pursuant to I2 CFR l2.4(a) or I2 CFR I2.4(b) at no additional cost to City. 

1 !0.!4.2020 



2.4 Custodian shall forward to City, or City's designated agent identified in Section 17.4 (or as identified 
in a separate written designation by City that is received by Custodian) all information it receives with respect to any 
of the Assets concerning redemption rights that are exercisable at City's option, tender or exchange offers, all proxy 
material it receives with respect to securities included among the Assets and all other special matters or shareholder 
rights. This Section 2.4 is subject to the following exceptions: 

2.4. I Exception: If Custodian receives a class action litigation proof of claim in respect to any 
of the Assets, Custodian shall file such claim on behalf of City. 

2.4.2 Exception: Custodian will not forward so-called "mini-tenders" to City or its designated 
agent. Mini-tenders are tender offers for a small amount of the outstanding securities of a "target" City, 
generally with an offer price at or below market value. For equity issues, unless a tender offer is made for 
5% or greater of the outstanding securities, and is subject to Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") 
review, the tender offer will not be forwarded by Custodian. 

2.4.3 Exception: No tender offer will be forwarded by Custodian for a debt issue if, (i) it is not 
registered with the SEC, (ii) it has a "frrst received, first buy" basis with no withdrawal privilege and includes 
a guarantee of delivery clause, or (iii) the offer includes the statement that "the purchase price includes all 
accrued interest on the note and has been determined in the sole discretion of the buyer and may be more 
than or less than the fair market value of the notes" or similar language. 

2.5 Absent Custodian's receipt of specific investment directions to the contrary from City, Custodian is 
hereby authorized and directed by City to hold funds in the investment indicated on Schedule A hereto. If applicable, 
City acknowledges receipt of a current copy of the prospectus for the investment authorized in Schedule A prior to 
providing such direction. 

3. Powers of Custodian. In the performance of its duties hereunder, Custodian shall have the following powers: 

3. I To register any of the Assets in the name of City or in Custodian's name or in the name of a nominee 
of Custodian or in the name of Custodian's agent bank or to hold any of the Assets in unregistered form or in such 
fmm as will pass title by delivery, provided that such Assets shall at all times be recorded in the Account as belonging 
to City. In consideration of Custodian's registration of any securities or other property in the name of Custodian or 
its nominee or agent, City agrees to pay on demand to Custodian or to Custodian's nominee or agent the amount of 
any loss or liability, claimed or assetied against Custodian or Custodian's nominee or agent by reason of such 
registration. 

3.2 To make, execute, acknowledge and deliver any and all documents of transfer and conveyance and 
any or all other instruments that may be necessary or appropriate to carry out the duties described and powers granted 
herein. 

3.3 To maintain qualifYing Assets in any registered clearing agency such as the Depository Trust City 
or in a Federal Reserve Bank (collectively a "Depository"), and to permit such deposited Assets to be registered in the 
name of Custodian, Custodian's agent or nominee or Depository, on the records of a Depository and to employ and 
use securities depositories, clearing agencies, clearance systems, sub-custodians or agents located outside the United 
States in connection with transactions involving foreign securities. 

3.4 To employ agents and to delegate duties to them as it sees fit and to employ or consult with experts, 
advisors and legal connsel (who may be employed by City) and shall be fully protected in relying on infonnation and 
advice received from such agents, experts, advisors, and legal counsel. 

3.5 To perform any and all other ministerial acts deemed by Custodian necessary or appropriate to the 
proper discharge of its duties hereunder. 

3.6 To hold uninvested cash awaiting investment or distribution and to deposit the same, with or without 
interest, in the commercial or savings departments of Custodian. 

4. Purchases. Upon the receipt of Appropriate Instructions from City, Custodian shall purchase securities for City on 
a contractual settlement basis. City's legal obligation to pay for such purchases arises immediately upon Custodian's 
receipt of such Appropriate Instructions. City hereby covenants and agrees that (i) it shall not instruct Custodian to 

2 



sell any Asset until such Asset has been fully paid for by City, and (ii) City shall not engage in any practice whereby 
City relies on the proceeds from the sale of an Asset to pay for the earlier purchase of the same Asset. 

5. Sales. Upon receipt of Appropriate Instructions from City, Custodian will deliver Assets held by it as Custodian 
hereunder and sold by or for City against payment to Custodian of the amount specified in such Appropriate 
Instructions in accordance with the then current securities industry practices and in fonn satisfactory to Custodian. 
Custodian will not hold physical securities in the account. 

6. Settlements. 

6. I Custodian shall provide City with settlement of all purchases and sales of Assets in accordance with 
Custodian's then prevailing settlement policies, provided that Custodian has timely received all funds and other 
information necessary to complete the transaction. 

6.2 To avoid a deficiency in the Account, City covenants and agrees that (i) it shall not initiate any trade 
without sufficient Assets to settle such trade, and (ii) City shall not notify a separate financial institution that it intends 
to settle purchases out of the Account without sufficient Assets to do so. 

6.3 Custodian shall not be liable or responsible for or on account of any act, omission, default, or 
insolvency of any broker, bank, trust City, person, or other agent designated by City to purchase or sell securities for 
the Account. 

6.4 Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, (i) if Custodian has advanced funds on behalf of City for 
the purchase or settlement of Assets, any deposit of such Assets into the Account shall be provisional, subject to 
reversal if Custodian does not receive Full Payment (defmed below) for such Assets, (ii) Custodian shall retain all 
interest, ownership and title to Assets for which Custodian has not received Full Payment, including the right to 
dispose of the Assets, until Custodian has been paid in full for any such Assets, and (iii) nothing in this Agreement 
shall constitute a waiver of any of Custodian's rights as a securities intetmediary under Uniform Commercial Code 
§9-206 as in effect in the Jurisdiction (defined in Section 17.8). For the purposes of this Agreement, the term "Full 
Payment" with respect to any Asset shall mean Custodian's receipt of payment in full, in immediately available funds, 
in an amount equal to the purchase and settlement cost of that Asset. 

7. COrporate Actions. In cmmection with any mandatory conversion of Assets pursuant to their terms, 
reorganization, recapitalization, redemption in kind, consolidation or other exchange transaction that does not require 
or pmmit approval by the owner of the affected Assets, Custodian will tender or exchange securities held for other 
securities, for other securities and cash, or for cash alone. 

8. Collections. 

8.1 Custodian shall collect all income, principal and other distributions due and payable on Assets held 
either by Custodian or a Depository but shall be under no obligation or duty to take action to effect collection of any 
amount if the Assets upon which such payment is due are in default, or if payment is refused after due demand and 
presentation. If Custodian receives notice of default or refusal to pay from an issuer or transfer agent, Custodian shall 
so advise City. 

8.2 Collections of monies in foreign currency, to the extent possible, are to be converted into United 
States dollars at customary rates through customary banking channels, including Custodian's own banking facilities, 
and in accordance with Custodian's prevailing policies for foreign funds repatriation. Custodian shall have no 
responsibility for risks, expenses or fluctuating exchange rates affecting collections or conversions related to foreign 
assets. 

9. No Discretionary Authority; Standard of Care. 

9.1 City and Custodian acknowledge that Custodian is not a fiduciary with respect to any Asset or City 
and the duties of Custodian hereunder do not include discretionary authority, control or responsibility with respect to 
the management or disposition of any Asset; or authority or responsibility to render investment advice with respect to 
any Asset. In addition, it is agreed that: 

9.1.1 Custodian shall have no duty to make any evaluation or to advise anyone of the suitability 
or propriety of action or proposed action of City in any particular transaction involving an Asset or the 
suitability or propriety of retaining any particular investment as an Asset. Custodian shall have no duty or 
authority to review, question, approve or make inquiries as to any investment instructions given pursuant 

3 



hereto. Custodian shall be under no duty or obligation to review the securities or other property held in the 
Account with respect to prudence or diversification. 

9.1.2 Custodian shall not be liable for any loss or diminution of Assets by reason of investment 
experience or for its actions taken in reliance upon a direction or other instruction from City or City's agent. 

9. 1.3 Custodian shall have no duty or responsibility to monitor or otherwise investigate the 
actions or omissions of City. 

9. 1.4 Custodian shall have no responsibility for the accuracy of Asset valuations quoted by 
outside services or sources. 

9.1 .5 Custodian shall only be responsible for the performance of such duties as are expressly set 
forth in this Agreement and no implied duties or obligations shall be read into this Agreement against 
Custodian. Custodian's sole responsibility shall be for the safekeeping of the Assets in accordance with 
Custodian's customary practices and disbursement thereof in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 
The Custodian shall have no liability under and no duty to inquire as to the provisions of any agreement 
other than this Agreement, including without limitation any other agreement between any or all of the parties 
hereto or any other persons even though reference thereto may be made herein. In no event shall Custodian 
be liable for indirect, special, or consequential or punitive damages or penalties (including, but not limited 
to lost profits), even if the Custodian has been advised of the likelihood of such damages or penalty and 
regardless of the form of action damages. 

9. I .6 Custodian shall not be liable for a failure to take an action required under this Agreement 
in the event and to the extent that the taking of the action is prevented or delayed by war, revolutions, 
tenorism, insurrection, riot, civil commotion, acts of God, epidemic, accident, fire, explosion, stoppage of 
labor, strikes or other differences with employees, communication line failures, computer viruses, attacks or 
intrusions, laws, regulations, orders or other acts of any governmental authority or any other cause 
whatsoever beyond its control; nor shall any such failure or delay give City the right to terminate this 
Agreement, except as provided in Section 15 of this Agreement. 

9.1.7 Custodian shall not be liable for any action taken or omitted by it in good faith except to 
the extent that a comt of competent jurisdiction dete1mines that the Custodian's gross negligence or willful 
misconduct in connection with a material breach of this Agreement was the sole cause of any loss to City. 

9.2 Custodian may consult legal counsel selected by it in the event of any dispute or question as to the 
construction of any of the provisions hereof or of any other agreement or of its duties hereunder, or relating to any 
dispute involving any party hereto, and shall incur no liability and shall be fully indemnified from any liability 
whatsoever in acting in accordance with the advice of such counsel. 

10. Books, Records and Accounts. Custodian will make and maintain proper books of account and complete records 
of all Assets and transactions in the Account maintained by Custodian hereunder on behalf of City. Custodian will 
preserve for the periods prescribed by applicable federal statute or regulation all records required by such statutes or 
regulations to be so maintained. 

11. Instructions and Directions. 

11.1 The following shall constitute appropriate instructions ("Appropriate Instructions") if delivered in 
compliance with the requirements of Section 11.3 hereof: written instructions including a letter, memorandum, or 
other means of written communication, which Custodian believes is (i) given by any person whose name is listed on 
the most recent certificate delivered by City to Custodian which lists those persons authorized to give orders, and 
instructions in the name of and on behalf of City ("Authorized Persons Certificate") or (ii) given by any other person 
duly authorized by City to give instmctions or directions to Custodian hereunder or who Custodian believes to be so 
authorized (for example an investment adviser or other agent designated by City). 

11.2 [reserved] 

11.3 All notices, approvals, consents, requests, and other communications hereunder shall be in writing 
(provided that each such communication to Custodian must be in the form of a document that is signed manually or 
by way of a DocuSign digital signature or electronic copy of either manually signed by City) and shall be delivered 
(i) by personal delivery, or (ii) by national overnight comier service, or (iii) by certified or registered mail, return 

4 



receipt requested. Notice shall be effective upon receipt. Such notices shall be sent the applicable party or pmties at 
tbe address specified below: 

lfto City, at: 

with a copy to: 

If to Custodian, at: 

City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida 
ATTN: Finance Director 
7 Nmth Dixie Highway 
Lake Worth Beach, FL 33460 
Telephone: 561/586-1641 

City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida 
ATTN: City Attorney 
7 North Dixie Highway 
Lake Worth Beach, FL 33460 
Telephone: 561/586-1659 

U.S. Bank National Association, as Custodian 
ATTN: Global Corporate Trust Services 
Address: _____ _ 
Telephone: 

and to: 

U.S. Bank National Association 
ATTN: 
Trust Finance Management 

Telephone: 

or to such other address as each party may designate for itself by like notice and unless otherwise provided herein 
shall be deemed to have been given on the date received. 

11.4 In the event that Custodian is directed to deliver Assets to any person other than City, Appropriate 
Instructions must include and City shall supply to Custodian appropriate transfer instructions. 

11.5 Custodian may conclusively rely and shall be fully protected in acting or refraining from acting 
upon any direction, instruction, resolution, ce1iificate, statement, instrument, opinion, report, notice, request, consent, 
order, approval or other paper or document believed by it to be genuine and to have been signed or presented by the 
proper pmty or parties. 

11.6 In the event Asset transfer instructions, address changes or change in contact information are given 
(other than in writing at the time of execution of this Agreement), whether in writing, by facsimile or otherwise, the 
Custodian is authorized but shall be under no duty to seek confirmation of such instructions by telephone call-back to 
the person or persons designated on Schedule B hereto, and the Custodian may rely upon the confirmation of anyone 
purporting to be the person or persons so designated. The persons and telephone numbers for call-backs may be 
changed only in writing actually received and acknowledged by Custodian and shall be effective only after Custodian 
has a reasonable opportunity to act on such changes. If the Custodian is unable to contact any of the designated 
representatives identified in Schedule B, the Custodian is hereby authorized but shall be under no duty to seek 
confirmation of such instructions by telephone call-back to any one or more of City's executive officers ("Executive 
Officers"), as the case may be, which shall include the titles of Mayor, City Manager and Finance Director, as the 
Custodian may select. Such Executive Officer shall deliver to the Custodian a fully executed incumbency certificate, 
and the Custodian may rely upon the confmnation of anyone purporting to be any such officer. City agrees that the 
Custodian may at its option record any telephone calls made pursuant to this Section. The Custodian in any funds or 
Assets transfer may rely solely upon any account numbers or similar identifYing numbers provided by City to identifY 
(a) the beneficiary, (b) the beneficimy's bank, or (c) an intermediary bank. The Custodian may apply any of the Assets 
for any payment or transfer order it executes using any such identifYing number, even when its use may result in a 
person other than the beneficiary being paid, or the transfer of Assets to a bank other than the beneficiary's bank or an 
intermediary bank designated. City acknowledges that these optional security procedures are commercially 
reasonable. 

5 



12. Compensation, Security. 

12.1 City shall, upon demand, (a) reimburse Custodian for costs incurred by it hereunder, and (b) pay to 
Custodian fees for its services under this Agreement as set fm1h in Custodian's then current applicable fee schedule 
or such other fee arrangement as Custodian and City may otherwise agree in writing. 

12.2 If any advance of funds is made by Custodian on behalf of City to purchase, or to make payment on 
or against delivery of securities or there shall arise for whatever reason an overdraft in the Account, or if City is for 
any other reason indebted to Custodian, including, but not limited to, any advance of immediately available funds to 
City with respect to payments to be received by Custodian in next-day funds (which City acknowledges City is liable 
to repay if Custodian does not receive final payment), City agrees to repay Custodian on demand the amount of the 
advance, overdraft or other indebtedness and accrued interest at a rate per annum (based on a 360-day year for the 
actual number of days involved) equal to the Federal Funds rate in effect at the time. 

12.3 In the event of an advance of funds by Custodian, or if any overdraft is created by Account 
transactions, or if City is otherwise in default of any obligation to Custodian, Custodian may directly charge the 
Account and deduct such payment therefrom. 

12.4 In the event that a compensation or indemnity payment due Custodian is past due by more than 30 
days, such amount may be charged to the Account and Custodian may deduct such payment therefrom. 

12.5 To secure such payment obligations as are set forth under this Section 12 or Section 14, City does 
hereby grant to Custodian a first security interest in, lien upon and rights of sale and setoff against and deduction from 
all Assets up to the amount of any deficiency or other indebtedness to Custodian. 

12.6 None of the provisions of this Agreement shall require Custodian to expend or risk its own funds or 
otherwise to incur any liability, financial or otherwise, in the performance of any of its duties hereunder, or in the 
exercise of any of its rights or powers hereunder. 

13. City Responsibility. City shall be responsible for the review of all reports, accountings and other statements 
provided by Custodian, and shall within 90 days following receipt thereof notifY Custodian of any mistakes, defects 
or irregularities contained or identified therein, after which time all such matters shall be conclusively deemed ratified, 
approved and correct and shall not provide any basis for claim or liability against Custodian. 

14. Indemnification. 

14.1 City hereby agrees, to the extent pennitted by law, and solely from legally available non-ad valorem 
funds, to fully and promptly indemnifY Custodian and its affiliates, officers, directors, employees and agents (each, a 
"Indemnified Partv") and hold each Indemnified Party hannless from and against any cost, losses, claims (whether 
asserted by City or any other person or entity), liabilities, fines, penalties, damages and expenses (including reasonable 
fees of attorneys and other professionals) (collectively, "Liabilities") arising out of: 

14.1.1 Custodian's actions or omissions hereunder; provided, however, that no Indemnified Party 
shall have the right to be indemnified hereunder for any Liabilities finally determined by a 
court of competent jurisdiction, subject to no further appeal, to have been directly caused 
solely by the gross negligence or willful misconduct of such Indemnified Party in 
connection with Custodian's material breach of this Agreement; or 

14.1.2 Custodian's action taken or omitted hereunder or upon any direction, instruction, 
information, order, indenture, stock certificate, power of attorney, assignment, affidavit or 
other instrument delivered hereunder to Custodian and believed by Custodian to be genuine 
or to bear the signature of a person or persons authorized by City to sign, countersign or 
execute the same. 

14.2 City further agrees to indemnifY and hold harmless, subject to the limitations of Section 14.1 above, 
each Indemnified Party for costs and expenses incurred by such Indemnified Party in enforcing City's obligations to 
Custodian under this Agreement. 

14.3 The obligations of this Section 14 and Section 12 shall survive the termination of this Agreement 
and Custodian's removal or resignation. 

15. Termination. 

6 



15.1 This Agreement will remain in effect until terminated by either party giving written notice thirty 
days in advance of the termination date. 

15.2 Upon termination of this Agreement, Custodian shall follow such reasonable City instructions 
concerning the transfer of Assets, provided that: 

15.2.1 Custodian shall have no liability for the costs of shipping and insurance associated 
therewith; and 

15.2.2 Custodian shall not be required to make any delivery or payment until (a) full payment 
shall have been made by City of all liabilities constituting a charge on or against Custodian, and (b) full 
payment shall have been made to Custodian of all its compensation, costs, including special termination 
costs, if any, and expenses hereunder; and 

15.2.3 Custodian shall have been reimbursed for any advances of monies or securities made 
hereunder to City. If any Assets remain in the Account after tennination, Custodian shall require further 
transfer instructions regarding delivety of Assets to City or a successor custodian. If a successor custodian 
is not appointed by City within 30 days after tennination, City acknowledges and agrees that Custodian may 
petition a court of competent jurisdiction regarding such appointment and charge the Account for fees and 
expenses involved therein. 

15.3 Upon termination of this Agreement, all obligations of the parties to each other hereunder shall 
cease, except that all payment and indemnification provisions herein shall survive with respect to any Liabilities 
arising from events prior to, or in connection with, such termination. 

I 6. Binding Obligations. City and Custodian each hereby represent and warrant that this Agreement constitutes its 
legal, valid and binding obligation enforceable in accordance with the terms hereof; subject, as to enforcement of 
remedies, to applicable bankrnptcy and insolvency laws, and to general principles of equity. 

17. General Provisions. 

17 .I. Tax Responsibilitv. Custodian shall have no responsibility for the tax consequences of this 
Agreement and City shall consult with independent counsel concerning any and all tax matters. City shall provide 
Custodian Form W-9 and an original Form W-8, as applicable, for each payee, together with any other documentation 
and information requested by Custodian in connection with Custodian's reporting obligations under this Agreement. 
If such tax documentation is not so provided, Custodian is authorized to withhold taxes as required by the Internal 
Revenue Code and related regulations .. Except as otherwise agreed by Custodian in writing, Custodian has no tax 
reporting or withholding obligation except to the IRS with respect to IRS Form I 099-B reporting on payments of gross 
proceeds under Internal Revenue Code Section 6045 and IRS Form I 099 and IRS Form I 042-S reporting with respect 
to investment income earned on the Escrow Funds, if any. Custodian shall have no responsibility for Form I099-
MISC reporting with respect to disbursements that Custodian makes in an administrative or ministerial function to 
vendors or other service providers and shall have no tax reporting or withholding duties with respect to the Foreign 
Investment in Real Property Tax Act. 

17.3 Shareholder Communications Act Authorization. The Shareholder Communications Act of 1985, 
as amended, requires Custodian to make an effort to pe1mit direct communications between a City that issues securities 
and the shareholder that exercises shareholder rights with respect to those securities. Unless City specifically directs 
Custodian in writing not to release City's name, address and security position to requesting companies, Custodian is 
required by law to disclose City's name and address to such companies. City hereby responds to the following question 
[the absence of a response will mean "Yes"]: 

Does City authorize Custodian to provide its name, address and security position to requesting companies 
whose stock is owned in this Account? 0 Yes I 0 No 

17.4 City's Agent- Shareholder Rights. Should City require that a designated agent for the Account, 
such as an investment advisor, be responsible for proxy voting and other special matters and shareholder rights as 
specified in Section 2.4 above, City shall provide the name and address of that agent below. Such agent shall be 
removed upon Custodian's receipt of a written removal fi·om City. City may designate more than one agent to be 
responsible for separate sub-Accounts or investment accounts under this Agreement by providing a clear, written 
designation to that effect to Custodian. Custodian has no authority or responsibility with regard to proxy voting or any 

7 



similar special matters. Therefore, Custodian may not be designated below unless Custodian has separately agreed in 
writing to act as investment advisor for the Account. 

Designated Agent: 
Address: 
Telephone Number: 

17.5 Publicity. Neither party will (a) use the other party's proprietary indicia, trademarks, service marks, 
trade names, logos, symbols, or brand names, or (b) otherwise refer to or identify the other party in adve1tising, 
publicity releases, or promotional or marketing publications, or correspondence to third parties without, in each case, 
securing the prior written consent of the other party. 

17.6 Complete Agreement; Modification. This Agreement contains a complete statement of all the 
anangements between the parties with respect to its subject matter, supersedes all existing agreements, both oral and 
written, between the parties concerning the subject, and cannot be amended or modified in any manner except by a 
written agreement executed by both parties. 

17.7 Governing Law; Venue. This Agreement shall be subject to, governed by, and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Minnesota (the "Jurisdiction") applicable to agreements made and to be 
performed in the Jurisdiction, without regard to the Jurisdiction's conflict of laws rules. All legal actions or other 
proceedings directly or indirectly relating to this Agreement shall be brought in federal court (when available, or state 
court when federal court is not available) sitting in the Jurisdiction. By execution of this Agreement, the parties submit 
to the courts of the Jurisdiction. To the extent that Custodian or City may be entitled to claim, for itself or its assets, 
immunity from suit, execution, attachment (whether before or after judgment) or other legal process, each hereby 
irrevocably agrees not to claim, and hereby waives, such immunity. 

17.8 Assigmnent. No pa.Iiy may assign any of its rights hereunder without the consent of the other pa.Iiy. 

17.9 Separability. If any provision of this Agreement is invalid or unenforceable, the balance of the 
Agreement shall remain in effect, and if any provision is inapplicable to any person or circumstances, it shall 
nevertheless remain applicable to all other persons and circumstances. 

17.10 No Agency or Third-partv Rights. In performing its services hereunder, Custodian is acting solely 
on behalf of City. No agency, contractual or service relationship shall be deemed to be established hereby between 
Custodian and any other person or entity. Nothing in this Agreement, express or implied, is intended to or shall confer 
upon any other person other than City, Custodian and the Indemnified Parties any right, benefit or remedy of any 
nature whatsoever under or by reason of this Agreement. 

17.11 Counterparts and Duplicates. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each 
of which shall be considered an original, but all of which together shall constitute the same instrument. This 
Agreement and any administrative form under the Agreement may be proved either by a signed original or by a 
reproduced copy thereof (including, not by way of limitation, a microfiche copy or an electronic file copy). 

17.12 Legal Actions affecting Account. If Custodian is served with a subpoena, restraining order, writ of 
attachment or execution, levy, garnishment, search warrant or similar order relating to the Account, (a "Legal Action") 
Custodiau will comply with that Legal Action and shall be protected, indemnified, and held harmless therefrom. City 
will reimburse Custodian for all fees and expenses Custodian incurs in responding to any Legal Action affecting the 
Assets or the Account (including but not limited to the fees of attorneys and other professionals). If any portion of the 
Assets is at any time attached, garnished or levied upon under any court order, or in case the payment, assignment, 
transfer, conveyance or delivery of any such property shall be stayed or enjoined by any court order, or in case any 
order, judgment or decree shall be made or entered by any court affecting such property or any part thereof, then and 
in any such event, the Custodian is authorized, in its sole discretion, to rely upon and comply with any such order, 
writ, judgment or decree which it is advised by legal counsel selected by it is binding upon it without the need for 
appeal or other action; and if the Custodian complies with any such order, writ, judgment or decree, it shall not be 
liable to any of the parties hereto or to any other person or entity by reason of such compliance even though such 
order, writ, judgment or decree may be subsequently reversed, modified, annulled, set aside or vacated. 

17.13 Abandoned Property. Any Assets remaining unclaimed or abandoned by City for a period of time 
as is set forth in the applicable state's abandoned property, escheat, or similar law shall be delivered to the proper 
public official pursuant to law and Custodian shall be held harmless therefrom. This Section shall survive the 
tennination of the Agreement. 

8 



17.14 Waiver ofJury TriaL Each ofthe parties hereby iJTevocably waive all right to a trial by jury in any 
action, proceeding, claim, or counterclaim (whether based on contract, tort or otherwise) directly or indirectly arising 
out of or relating to this Agreement. 

17.15 Brokerage Confirmations. The pm1ies acknowledge that to the extent regulations of the Comptroller 
of CutTency or other applicable regulatmy entity grant a right to receive brokerage confmnations of security 
transactions of the escrow, City waives receipt of such confi1mations, to the extent permitted by law. The Custodian 
shall finnish a statement of security transactions on its regular monthly reports. 

17.16 Identifying Information. To help the government fight the funding of terrorism and money 
laundering activities, Federal law requires all fmancial institutions to obtain, verify, and record information that 
identifies each person who opens an account. For a non-individual person such as a business entity, a charity, a Trust, 
or other legal entity, Custodian asks for documentation to verify its formation and existence as a legal entity. Custodian 
may also ask to see financial statements, licenses, and identification and authorization documents from individuals 
claiming authority to represent the entity or other relevant documentation. 

[signature page follows] 

9 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by their duly 
authorized representative effective as of the Effective Date. 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA (City) 

By:.~---------------------

Title: Ma or 

Approved as to Form: 

Nabors, Giblin & Nickerson, P.A. 

10 

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as 
Custodian 

By: 

Title:.~~~~~~~~~-~~~-



SCHEDULE A 

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION 
Investment Authorization Form 

DESCRIPTION AND TERMS 

The U.S. Bank Money Market Deposit Account is a U.S. Bank National Association ("U.S. Bank") interest
bearing money market deposit account designed to meet the needs of U.S. Bank's Corporate Trust Services Escrow 
Group and other corporate trust customers of U.S. Bank. Selection of this investment includes authorization to place 
funds on deposit and invest with U.S. Bank. 

U.S. Bank uses the daily balance method to calculate interest on this account (actual/365 or 366). This 
method applies a daily periodic rate to the principal balance in the account each day. Interest is accrued daily and 
credited monthly to the account. Interest rates are determined at U.S. Bank's discretion, and may be tiered by City 
deposit amount. 

The owner of the account is U.S. Bank as agent for its corporate trust customers. U.S. Bank's corporate trust 
department performs all account deposits and withdrawals. Deposit accounts are FDIC Insured per depositor, as 
determined under FDIC Regulations, up to applicable FDIC limits. 

Automatic Authorization 

In the absence of specific written direction to the contrary, U.S. Bank is hereby directed to invest and reinvest proceeds 
and other available moneys in the U.S. Bank Money Market Deposit Account. The City confrrms that the U.S. Bank 
Money Market Deposit Account is a permitted investment under the operative documents and this authorization is the 
permanent direction for investment of the moneys until notified in writing of alternate instructions. 

11 



SCHEDULER 

Each of the following person(s) is authorized to execute documents and direct Custodian as to all matters, 
including Asset transfers, address changes and contact information changes on City's behalf: 

Pam Triolo _Mayor 
Name Specimen signature 

Michael Bernstein Ci!v Manager 
Name Specimen signature 

Bruce Miller Finance Director 
Name Specimen signature 

(Note: if only one person is identified above, please add the following language) 
The following person not listed above is authorized for call-back confirmations: 

Name Telephone Number 

12 

561/586-1600 
Telephone No. 

561/586-1689 
Telephone No 

561/586-1641 
Telephone No 



EXHIBITF 

FORM OF ESCROW DEPOSIT AGREEMENT 



ESCROW DEPOSIT AGREEMENT 

NGN Draft No.2 10/19/2020 
226.08 

ESCROW DEPOSIT AGREEMENT (the "Agreement"), dated as of November 1, 2020, 
by and between the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida (the "Issuer") and U.S. Bank National 
Association (the "Escrow Agent"), a national banking association having its designated corporate 
trust office in Fort Lauderdale, Florida, as escrow agent hereunder. 

WHEREAS, the Issuer has heretofore issued its [Utility System Refunding Revenue Bond, 
Series 2013] in the original aggregate principal amotmt of$ __ (the "Refunded Bond") pursuant 
to Resolution No. 27-2013, adopted April16, 2013 (the "Refunded Bond Resolution"); and 

WHEREAS, the Issuer desires to provide payment of the Refunded Bond as set forth on 
Schedule A attached hereto through the issuance of its Consolidated Utility Revenue Bonds, Series 
2020A (the "2020A Bonds") and discharge and satisfy the pledges, liens and other obligations of 
the Issuer with respect to the Refunded Bond under the Refunded Bond Resolution; and 

WHEREAS, the deposit of cash funds into an Escrow Fund (herein defined) to be invested 
and held by the Escrow Agent, and the discharge and satisfaction of the pledges, liens and other 
obligations of the Issuer under the Refunded Bond Resolution in regard to the Refunded Bond 
shall occur as a simultaneous transaction; and 

WHEREAS, this Agreement is intended to effectuate such simultaneous transaction; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the mutual covenants 
hereinafter set forth, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

I. The Issuer represents that the recitals stated above are true and conect and 
incorporated herein. 

2. Receipt of the Resolution is hereby acknowledged by the Escrow Agent. The 
Escrow Agent also acknowledges receipt of the verification report of --:cc-cc-:----:----

dated , 2020 (the "Verification Report"). The applicable and necessary 
provisions of the Resolution are incorporated herein by reference. Reference herein to or citation 
herein of any provisions of the Resolution shall be deemed to incorporate the same as a part hereof 
in the same marmer and with the same effect as if the same were fully set forth herein. 

3. The Issuer by this writing exercises its option to have the pledges, liens and 
obligations to the holder of the Refunded Bond defeased, discharged and satisfied. 

4. There is hereby created and established with the Escrow Agent a special, segregated 
and inevocable escrow fund designated the "Lake Worth Beach, Florida Utility System Refunding 

1 



Revenue Bond, Series 2013 Escrow Deposit Fund" (the "Escrow Fund"). The Escrow Fund shall 
be held in the custody of the Escrow Agent as an escrow fund for the benefit of the holders of the 
Refunded Bond, separate and apart from other funds and accounts of the Issuer and the Escrow 
Agent. The Escrow Agent hereby accepts the Escrow Fund and acknowledges the receipt of and 
deposit to the credit of the Escrow Fund of the sum of [$ in immediately available fimds, 
of which the Issuer represents $ constitutes proceeds of the 2020A Bonds and $ __ _ 
constitutes amounts held by the Issuer for the benefit of the Refimded Bond . For purposes of this 
Agreement, the Escrow Fund shall consist of a single fund with no sub-accounts. 

5. The Escrow Agent shall, concunently with the Issuer's deposit, use such amount to 
purchase on behalf of and for the account of the Issuer, certain direct non-callable obligations of 
the United States of America (the "Initial Escrow Secmities"), in the aggregate principal or par 
amount of [$ ], which are described in Schedule A hereto, and the Escrow Agent will 
deposit such obligations in the Escrow Fund. The remaining [$ __j (the "Cash Deposit") shall 
be held as cash in the Escrow Fund. Any securities which shall be on deposit in the Escrow Fund, 
including the Initial Escrow Securities, shall herein be refened to as the "Escrow Securities." 

6. In reliance upon the Verification Report, the Issuer represents and warrants that the 
interest on and the principal amounts successively maturing on the Escrow Securities in 
accordance with their terms (without consideration of any reinvestment of such maturing principal 
and interest) are sufficient such that moneys will be available to the Escrow Agent in amounts 
sufficient and at the times required to pay the amounts of principal of, redemption premium, if 
any, and interest due and to become due on the Refunded Bond as described in Schedule B attached 
hereto. If the Escrow Securities shall be insufficient to make such redemption payments, the Issuer 
shall timely deposit to the Escrow Fund, solely from legally available funds of the Issuer, such 
additional amounts as may be required to pay the Refunded Bond as described in Schedule B 
hereto. Notice of any insufficiency shall be given by the Escrow Agent to the Issuer as promptly 
as possible, but the Escrow Agent shall in no manner be responsible for the Issuer's failme to make 
such deposits. 

7. The deposit of the Escrow Secmities in the Escrow Fund shall constitute an 
inevocable deposit of federal securities in trust solely for the payment of the principal of, 
redemption premium, if any, and interest on the Refunded Bond at such times and amounts as set 
forth in Schedule B hereto, and subject to the provisions of Section 9 and Section 17 hereof, the 
principal of and interest earnings on such Escrow Securities and the Cash Deposit shall be used 
solely for such purposes. 

8. The Escrow Agent shall pay the registered owner of the Refimded Bond from the 
moneys on deposit in the Escrow Fund an amount sufficient to pay scheduled principal of and 
interest on and to redeem the Refimded Bond prior to its scheduled maturity date as contemplated 
in Schedule B attached hereto. The Escrow Secmities shall be used to pay the principal of, 
redemption premium, if any, and interest on the Refunded Bond as the same become due and the 
Refunded Bond is redeemed. The liability of the Escrow Agent for the payment of the principal 
of, redemption premium, if any, and interest on the Refimded Bond pursuant to this Agreement 

2 



shall be limited to the application of the Escrow Securities and the Cash Deposit and the interest 
earnings thereon available for such purposes in the Escrow Fund. 

9. Moneys deposited in the Escrow Fund shall be invested only in the Escrow 
Securities listed in Schedule A hereto and, except as provided in Section 5 hereof and in this 
Section 9, neither the Issuer nor the Escrow Agent shall otherwise invest or reinvest any moneys 
in the Escrow Fund. 

Except as provided in Section 5 hereof and in this Section 9, the Escrow Agent may not 
sell or otherwise dispose of any or all of the Escrow Securities in the Escrow Fund and reinvest 
the proceeds thereof in other securities nor may it substitute securities for any of the Escrow 
Securities, except upon written direction of the Issuer and where, prior to any such reinvestment 
or substitution, the Escrow Agent has received from the Issuer the following: 

(a) a written verification report by an independent certified public accountant or firm 
of independent certified public accountants, of recognized standing, appointed by 
the Issuer, addressed to the Issuer and the Escrow Agent, stating that after such 
reinvestment or substitution the principal amount of Escrow Securities, together 
with the interest therein, will be sufficient to pay the Refunded Bond as described 
in Schedule B hereto; and 

(b) a written opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect that such investment does not 
violate any provision of Florida law or of the Resolution and will not adversely 
affect the tax-exempt status of the Refunded Bonds; 

provided, that the Escrow Agent shall not release any Escrow Securities then held 
in the Escrow Fund for such sale, transfer, exchange, redemption or other 
disposition until the Escrow Agent shall be in possession of the proceeds thereof or 
the substituted securities. 

In the event the above-referenced verification concludes that there are surplus moneys in 
the Escrow Fund, such surplus moneys shall be released to the Issuer upon its written 
direction. The Escrow Fund shall continue in effect until the date upon which the Escrow Agent 
makes the final payment to the paying agent for the Refunded Bond in an amount sufficient to pay 
the Refunded Bond as described in Schedule B hereto, whereupon the Escrow Agent shall sell 
upon written direction from the Issuer or redeem any Escrow Securities remaining in the Escrow 
Fund, and shall remit to the Issuer the proceeds thereof, together with all other money, if any, then 
remaining in the Escrow Fund. 

10. The Issuer has been advised by counsel that, concurrently with the deposit of the 
Initial Escrow Securities and the Cash Deposit set forth in Section 5 hereof, the Refunded Bond 
are hereby deemed to have been paid and discharged within the meaning and with the effect 
expressed in the Resolution. The Escrow Agent shall provide the required notice of redemption 
of the Refunded Bond, substantially in the form attached hereto as Schedule C, in the manner 

3 



provided in the Resolution. The Refunded Bond shall be redeemed on ____ at a redemption 
price of I 00% of par, plus accrued interest. 

II. Concurrently with the deposit of the Escrow Securities set forth in Section 5 hereof, 
the Refunded Bond shall be deemed to have been paid within the meaning and with the effect 
expressed in the Resolution. Within ten (10) days of the deposit of moneys into the Escrow Fund, 
the Escrow Agent, on behalf of the Issuer, shall cause notice to be given to the registered owner 
of the Refunded Bond of said defeasance, in compliance with Section II 02 of the Master 
Resolution. 

12. The Escrow Fund hereby created shall be in-evocable and the holders of the 
Refunded Bond shall have an express lien on all amounts on deposit in the Escrow Fund pursuant 
to the terms hereof until paid out, used and applied in accordance with this Agreement and the 
Resolution. Neither the Issuer nor the Escrow Agent shall cause nor permit any other lien or 
interest whatsoever to be imposed upon the Escrow Fund. 

13. This Agreement is made for the benefit of the Issuer and the holders from time to 
time of the Refunded Bond and it shall not be repealed, revoked, altered or amended or 
supplemented in whole or in part without the written consent of such holders of the Refunded Bond 
and the written consent of the Escrow Agent; provided, however, that the Issuer and the Escrow 
Agent may, without the consent of, or notice to, such holder, enter into such agreements 
supplemental to this Agreement as shall not adversely affect the rights of such holder and as shall 
not be inconsistent with the terms and provisions of this Agreement, for any one or more of the 
following purposes: 

(a) to cure any ambiguity or formal defect or omission in this Agreement; 

(b) to grant, or confer upon, the Escrow Agent for the benefit of the holder of the 
Refunded Bond, any additional rights, remedies, powers or authority that may 
lawfully be granted to, or confen-ed upon, such holder or the Escrow Agent; and 

(c) to subject to this Agreement additional funds, securities or properties. 

The Escrow Agent shall be entitled to rely exclusively upon an unqualified opinion of Bond 
Counsel with respect to compliance with this Section 13, including the extent, if any, to which any 
change, modification or addition affects the rights of the holder of the Refunded Bond, or that any 
instrument executed hereunder complies with the conditions and provisions of this Section 13. 

14. In consideration of the services rendered by the Escrow Agent under this 
Agreement, the Issuer agrees to and shall pay to the Escrow Agent a one-time fee of$ __ , and 
promptly on receipt of an invoice to pay all reasonable, customary and ordinmy expenses, charges, 
attorneys' fees, costs and expenses and other disbursements incun-ed by it in connection with 
publication of notices of redemption and appointment of a successor Escrow Agent hereunder. 
Additionally, should the Escrow Agent perform any extraordinary services not contemplated 

4 



hereunder, it shall be entitled to extraordinary fees and reimbursement of any out of pocket and 
extraordinary costs and expenses, including, but not limited to, attorneys' fees, costs and expenses 
made in connection with such extraordinary services. The Escrow Agent shall have no lien 
whatsoever upon any amount in said Escrow Fund for the payment of such proper fees and 
expenses. The Issuer hereby assumes liability for, and hereby agrees (whether or not any of the 
tt·ansactions contemplated hereby are consummated), to the extent permitted by law, and solely 
from the Trust Estate under the Resolution, to indemnity, protect, save and keep harmless the 
Escrow Agent and its respective successors, assigns, agents and servants, from and against any 
and all liabilities, obligations, losses, damages, penalties, claims, actions, suits, costs, expenses 
and disbursements (including reasonable legal fees and disbursements), which may be imposed 
on, incurred by, or asserted against, at any time, the Escrow Agent (whether or not also indemnified 
against the same by the Issuer or any other person under any other agreement or instrument) and 
in any way relating to or arising out of the execution and delivery of this Agreement, the 
establishment of the Escrow Fund established hereunder, the acceptance of the funds and securities 
deposited hereunder, and any payment, transfer or other application of funds or securities by the 
Escrow Agent in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement; provided, however, that the 
Issuer shall not be required to indemnity the Escrow Agent against its own gross negligence or 
willful misconduct. In no event shall the Issuer be liable to any person by reason of the transactions 
contemplated hereby other than to the Escrow Agent as set forth in this Section. The indemnities 
contained in this Section shall survive the termination of this Agreement or the sooner resignation 
or removal of the Escrow Agent. 

The Escrow Agent undertakes to perfmm only such duties as are expressly set forth herein. 
The duties and responsibilities of the Escrow Agent hereunder shall be determined solely by the 
express provisions of this Agreement, and no further duties or responsibilities shall be implied. 
The Escrow Agent shall not have any liability under, nor duty to inquire into the tenns and 
provisions of, any agreement or instructions, other than as outlined in the Agreement. The Escrow 
Agent shall conclusively rely and shall be fully protected in acting or refraining from acting upon 
any written notice, instruction or request furnished to it hereunder and believed by it to be genuine 
and to have been signed or presented by the proper party or parties. The Escrow Agent shall be 
under no duty to inquire into or investigate the validity, accuracy or content of any such document. 
The Escrow Agent in its capacity as Escrow Agent hereunder shall not have any liability for any 
loss sustained as a result of any investment made pursuant to this Agreement or as a result of any 
directed liquidation of any investment prior to its mattuity. The Escrow Agent shall have no duty 
to solicit any payments that may be due it hereunder. The Escrow Agent shall not incur any 
liability for following the instructions herein contained or expressly provided for, or written 
instructions given by the parties hereto. In the administration of this Escrow Agreement and the 
Escrow Fund hereunder, the Escrow Agent may execute any of its powers and perform its duties 
hereunder directly or through agents or attorneys, and may consult with counsel, accountants and 
other skilled persons to be selected and retained by it. The Escrow Agent shall not be liable for 
anything done, suffered or omitted in good faith by it in accordance with the advice or opinion of 
any such counsel, accountants or other skilled persons. Any payment obligation of the Escrow 
Agent shall be paid from, and is limited to funds available, established and maintained hereunder 
and the Escrow Agent shall not be required to expend its own funds for the performance of its 

5 



duties under this Agreement. The Escrow Agent shall not be liable for any action taken or 
neglected to be taken in performing or attempting to perform its obligations hereunder other than 
for its negligence or willful misconduct. Anything in this Agreement to the contrary 
notwithstanding, in no event shall the Escrow Agent be liable for special, indirect or consequential 
loss or damage of any kind whatsoever (including but not limited to lost profits), even if the Escrow 
Agent has been advised of such loss or damage and regardless of the form of action. The Escrow 
Agent shall not be responsible or liable for any failure or delay in the performance of its obligations 
under this Agreement arising out of or caused, directly or indirectly, by circumstances beyond its 
reasonable control, including, without limitation, acts of God; eatihquakes; fire; flood; hurricanes 
or other storms; wars; tenorism; similar military disturbances; sabotage; epidemic; pandemic; 
riots; intenuptions; loss or malfunctions of utilities, computer (hardware or software) or 
communications services; accidents; labor disputes; acts of civil or military authority or 
governmental action; it being understood that the Escrow Agent shall use commercially reasonable 
efforts which are consistent with accepted practices in the banking industry to resume performance 
as soon as reasonably practicable under the circumstances. 

The Escrow Agent may act without liability, upon any written notice, request, waiver, 
opinion, consent, certificate, receipt, authorization, power of attorney, or other instrument or 
document which the Escrow Agent in good faith believes to be genuine and to be what it purports 
to be and the Escrow Agent shall be under no duty to mal(e an investigation or inquiry as to matters 
contained in any such instrument or document. 

15. On or before December I, 20_, the Escrow Agent shall forward, in writing, to 
the Issuer, a statement in detail of the deposit and withdrawal of money from the Escrow Fund, 
since the date of this Agreement. 

16. The Escrow Agent, at the time acting hereunder, may at any time resign and be 
discharged from the duties and obligations hereby created by giving not less than twenty (20) days' 
written notice to the Issuer and mailing notice thereof, specifying the date when such resignation 
will take effect to the holder of the Refunded Bond then outstanding, but no such resignation shall 
take effect unless a successor Escrow Agent shall have been appointed by the holder of the 
Refunded Bond then outstanding or by the Issuer as hereinafter provided and such successor 
Escrow Agent shall have accepted such appointment, in which event such resignation shall take 
effect immediately upon the appointment and acceptance of a successor Escrow Agent. 

The Escrow Agent may be replaced at any time upon thirty (30) days' notice by an 
instrument or concunent instruments in writing, delivered to the Escrow Agent and signed by the 
Issuer or the holder of the Refunded Bond then outstanding. Such instrument shall provide for the 
appointment of a successor Escrow Agent, which appointment shall occur simultaneously with the 
removal of the Escrow Agent. 

In the event the Escrow Agent hereunder shall resign or be removed, or be dissolved, or 
shall be in the course of dissolution or liquidation, or otherwise become incapable of acting 
hereunder, or in case the Escrow Agent shall be taken under the control of any public officer or 

6 



officers, or of a receiver appointed by a court, a successor may be appointed by the holder of the 
Refunded Bond then outstanding by an instrument or concurrent instruments in writing, signed by 
such holder, or by its attorneys in fact, duly authorized in writing; provided, nevertheless, that in 
any such event, the Issuer shall appoint a temporary Escrow Agent to fill such vacancy until a 
successor Escrow Agent shall be appointed by the holder of the Refunded Bond then outstanding 
in the mauner above provided, and any such temporary Escrow Agent so appointed by the Issuer 
shall immediately and without further act be superseded by the Escrow Agent so appointed by 
such holder. The Issuer shall mail notice of any such appointment made by it at the times and in 
the mauner described in the first paragraph of this Section 16. 

In the event that no appointment of a successor Escrow Agent or a tempormy successor 
Escrow Agent shall have been made by such holder or the Issuer pursuant to the foregoing 
provisions of this Section 16 within twenty (20) days after written notice of resignation of the 
Escrow Agent has been given to the Issuer, the holder of the Refunded Bond or any retiring Escrow 
Agent may apply to any court of competent jurisdiction for the appointment of a successor Escrow 
Agent, and such court may thereupon, after such notice, if any, as it shall deem proper, appoint a 
successor Escrow Agent. 

No successor Escrow Agent shall be appointed unless such successor Escrow Agent shall 
be a corporation with trust powers organized under the banking laws of the United States or any 
State, and shall have at the time of appointment capital and surplus of not less than $20,000,000. 

In the event of replacement or resignation of the Escrow Agent, the Escrow Agent shall 
have no further liability hereunder and the Issuer shall pay any applicable termination fees and 
expenses and indemnify and hold harmless the Escrow Agent from any such liability, including 
costs or expenses (including legal fees, costs and expenses) incurred by Escrow Agent or its 
counsel. 

Every successor Escrow Agent appointed hereunder shall execute, acknowledge and 
deliver to its predecessor and to the Issuer an instrument in writing accepting such appointment 
hereunder and thereupon such successor Escrow Agent, without any further act, deed or 
conveyance, shall become fully vested with all the rights, immunities, powers, duties and 
obligations of its predecessor; but such predecessor shall nevertheless, on the written request of 
such successor Escrow Agent or the Issuer execute and deliver an instrument transferring to such 
successor Escrow Agent all the estates, properties, rights, and powers of such predecessor 
hereunder; and every predecessor Escrow Agent shall deliver all securities and moneys held by it 
to its successor; provided, however, that before any such delivery is required to be made, all fees, 
advances and expenses of the retiring or removed Escrow Agent shall be paid in full. Should any 
transfer, assignment or instrument in writing from the Issuer be required by any successor Escrow 
Agent for more fully and certainly vesting in such successor Escrow Agent the estates, rights, 
powers and duties hereby vested or intended to be vested in the predecessor Escrow Agent, any 
such transfer, assignment and instruments in writing shall, on request, be executed, acknowledged 
and delivered by the Issuer. 

7 



Any corporation into which the Escrow Agent, or any successor to it in the escrow created 
by this Agreement, may be merged or conve1ied or with which it or any successor to it may be 
consolidated, or any corporation resulting from any merger, conversion, consolidation or tax-free 
reorganization to which the Escrow Agent or any successor to it shall be a party shall be the 
successor Escrow Agent under this Agreement without the execution or filing of any paper or any 
other act on the part of any of the parties hereto, anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding. 

17. Except as otherwise provided herein, this Agreement shall terminate when all 
transfers and payments required to be made by the Escrow Agent under the provisions hereof shall 
have been made. Upon such termination, all moneys remaining in the Escrow Fund shall be 
released to the Issuer for deposit to the Revenue Fund under the Resolution. 

18. The Issuer acknowledges that to the extent the regulations of the Comptroller of the 
Cunency or other applicable regulatory entity grant the Issuer the right to receive individual 
confirmations of security transactions at no additional cost, as they occur, the Issuer specifically 
waives receipt of such confirmations to the extent permitted by law. The Escrow Agent will furnish 
the Issuer monthly cash transaction statements that include detail for all investment transactions 
made by the Escrow Agent hereunder. 

19. This Agreement shall be governed by the applicable laws of the State of Florida, 
with regard to conflict of law principles. 

20. If any one or more of the covenants or agreements provided in this Agreement on 
the part of the Issuer or the Escrow Agent to be performed should be determined by a court of 
competent jurisdiction to be contrary to law, such covenant or agreement shall be deemed and 
construed to be severable from the remaining covenants and agreements herein contained and shall 
in no way affect the validity of the remaining provisions of this Agreement. 

21. This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, all or any of which shall 
be regarded for all purposes as one original and shall constitute and be but one and the same 
instrunient. The transactions described herein may be conducted and related documents may be 
sent and stored by electronic means. 

22. Any notice, authorization, request or demand required or permitted to be given in 
accordance with the terms of this Agreement shall be in writing and sent by registered or certified 
mail addressed to: 

U.S. Bank National Association 
500 West Cypress Creek Road, Suite 460 
Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33309 
Attention: Corporate Trust 

8 



City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida 
7 North Dixie Highway 
Lake Worth Beach, Florida 33460 
Attention: Mayor 

with a copy to: 

City of Lake Worth Beach 
Attn: City Attomey 
7 N. Dixie Highway 
Lake Worth Beach, FL 33460 

9 



SIGNATURE PAGE OF THE ISSUER FOR 
ESCROW DEPOSIT AGREEMENT 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Escrow 
Deposit Agreement to be executed by their duly authorized officers or agents and appointed 
officials and, in the case of the Issuer, its seal to be hereunder affixed and attested as of the date 
first above written. 

LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION 

Pam Triolo, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Deborah M. Andrea, CMC, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Nabors, Giblin & Nickerson, P .A. 

10 



SIGNATURE PAGE OF THE ESCROW AGENT FOR 
ESCROW DEPOSIT AGREEMENT 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Escrow 
Deposit Agreement to be executed by their duly authorized officers and appointed officials and, in 
the case of the Issuer, its seal to be hereunder affixed and attested as of the date first above written. 

U.S. BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as 
Escrow Agent 

By: ____________________________ ___ 

Title: Authorized Officer 

11 



Maturity Date 

INITIAL ESCROW SECURITIES 

~ 
SLGS 
SLGS 

Interest Rate 

A-1 

SCHEDULE A 

Par Amount 



REFUNDED BOND 

Date Principal Interest 

B-1 

Principal 
Redeemed 

SCHEDULEB 

Total 



SCHEDULEC 

NOTICE OF REDEMPTION 

City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida 
Utility System Refunding Revenue Bond, Series 2013 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN on behalf of the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida (the 
"County") pursuant to that certain Resolution No. 27-2013, adopted April 16, 2013 (the 
"Resolution"), that the County's outstanding Utility System Refunding Revenue Bond, Series 2013 
(the "Refunded Bond"), which was originally issued on April_, 2013, shall be redeemed, prior 
to its stated maturity, on (the "Redemption Date"), at a redemption price equal to 
100% of the principal amount thereof, together with interest accrued thereon to the Redemption 
Date. 

Payment of the Redemption Price of such Refunded Bond shall become due and payable 
on the Redemption Date and shall be paid by wire transfer of U.S. Bank, National Association, as 
escrow agent. Interest on such Refunded Bond will cease to accrue from and after the Redemption 
Date. 

Dated: -------

C-1 

U.S. BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, 
as Escrow Agent 

By: ____________ _ 



EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

AGENDA DATE: November 17, 2020 DEPARTMENT: Community Sustainability 

TITLE: 

Ordinance No. 2020-15 – First Reading - amending Chapter 23 “Land Development 
Regulations” regarding changes to commercial vehicle parking, open air operations, temporary 
banner signage for new construction, landscaping requirements and artificial turf  

 
SUMMARY: 

Consideration of Ordinance 2020-15 amending Chapter 23 “Land Development Regulations” of 
the City's Code of Ordinances as follows   

1. Article 1- Section 23.1-12 – Definitions (commercial vehicles) 
2. Article 4- Section 23.4-15 - Cemeteries/mausoleums/columbariums 
3. Article 4 - Section 23.4-19 - Outdoor storage and open-air operations 
4. Article 4 - Section 23.4-22 - Parking, storing or keeping of commercial vehicles in non-

residential districts 
5. Article 5 - Section 23.5-1 – Signs (temporary banner signage) 
6. Article 6 - Section 23.6-1 – Landscape Regulations 
7. Article 6 - Section 23.6-1 – Landscape Regulations (artificial turf) – Staff is recommending 

that the artificial turf section be removed from the ordinance and discussed at a City 
Commission workshop on December 1, 2020.  

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

Ordinance 2020-15 provides for a series of updates, clarifications, corrections and additions to 
the City’s Land Development Regulations (LDRs).  Back at its workshop on March 3, 2020, Staff 
presented a series of priorities for the LDRs to the Commission.  The subject LDR amendments 
address a second series of prioritized items identified at the March meeting as summarized 
below.  Commissioner Robinson separately requested that staff draft regulations related to 
permit artificial turf for discussion by the City Commission. The draft text amendments are 
located in Exhibit G of Ordinance 2020-15 and summarized below.  

• Landscape Regulations (Artificial Turf):  The proposed amendments would allow for 
artificial turf within the City subject to the requirements related to location, quality and 
installation. If approved by the City Commission, staff is recommending that this item would 
be pulled from Ordinance 2020-15 and discussed at a public workshop on December 1, 
2020 based on public received at the PZB, HRPB and Tree Board October meetings. 

• Commercial Vehicles: The proposed amendments provide clarity and with regards to the 
regulation of commercial vehicles on non-residential properties. 

• Cemeteries/mausoleums/columbariums: The proposed amendments provide additional 
use and site development requirements for cemeteries, mausoleums, and columbariums 

• Open Air Operations:  The proposed amendments will amend the outdoor storage section 
to specifically address open air operation, including outdoor display. 



 

• Temporary Signage:   The proposed amendments provide additional banner style signage 
related to the opening of a newly constructed building or substantially renovate building. 

• Landscape Regulations:  The proposed amendments provide clarity for when permits are 
requirements and related to installation requirements for ground cover and inorganic mulch. 

At the October meetings, the Planning & Zoning Board (PZB) and Historic Resources 
Preservation Board (HRPB) both recommended unanimously for the City Commission to 
approve the proposed amendments excluding the artificial turf changes in Exhibit G.  The HRPB 
voted to not recommend approval of the artificial turf changes. However, if approved by the City 
Commission, the HRPB requested that all applications for artificial turf within the historic districts 
require a Certificate of Appropriateness prior to the issuance of a landscape permit for artificial 
turf. This requested change by the HRPB is reflected in the attached ordinance. The PZB 
declined to make a formal motion on artificial turf at its meeting citing the need for additional 
public discussion. The Tree Board requested to discuss the artificial turf changes in Exhibit G 
although review of land development regulations is outside of their board authority. At their 
October 28th meeting, the Tree Board recommended that the City Commission not allow artificial 
turf based on concerns identified in two (2) public comment letters and a letter to the editor in 
the Lake Worth Herald, which members requested be forwarded to the City Commission. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Ordinance No. 2020-15 on first reading excluding/including 
Exhibit G related to artificial turf and schedule the second reading and public hearing for 
December 1, 2020. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Ordinance 2020-15 
PZB/HRPB Staff Report 
Tree Board - Public Comment Letters & Lake Worth Herald Letter to the Editor (are available 
upon request from the City Clerk’s office) 
 



2020-15 1 

 2 
ORDINANCE 2020-15 - AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LAKE 3 

WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 23 “LAND 4 
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS, BY AMENDING ARTICLE 1 5 
“GENERAL PROVISIONS,” DIVISION 2, “DEFINITIONS,” SECTION 6 
23.1-12 - DEFINITIONS; ARTICLE 4, “DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS” - 7 
SECTION 23.4-15 - CEMETERIES/MAUSOLEUMS/COLUMBARIUMS.; 8 

ARTICLE 4, “DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS” SECTION 23.4-19 -9 
OUTDOOR STORAGE; ARTICLE 4, “DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS” 10 
NEW SECTION 23.4-22 - PARKING, STORING OR KEEPING OF 11 
COMMERCIAL VEHICLES IN NON-RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS; 12 
ARTICLE 4 “DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS” SECTION 23.5-1(12) 13 

TEMPORARY SIGNS; ARTICLE 6 “ENVIRONMENTAL 14 
REGULATIONS”, SECTION 23.6-1 LANDSCAPE REGULATIONS; 15 

ARTICLE 6 “ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATIONS”, AND CREATING A 16 
NEW SECTION 23.6-1(K)(15) “ARTIFICIAL TURF” OF THE CITY’S 17 
CODE OF ORDINANCES; AND PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, THE 18 
REPEAL OF LAWS IN CONFLICT, CODIFICATION, AND AN EFFECTIVE 19 

DATE. 20 
  21 

 22 
WHEREAS, as provided in Section 2(b), Article VIII of the Constitution of the State 23 

of Florida, and Section 166.021(1), Florida Statutes, the City of Lake Worth Beach (the 24 

“City”), a municipal corporation, enjoys all governmental, corporate, and proprietary 25 
powers necessary to conduct municipal government, perform municipal functions, and 26 

render municipal services, and may exercise any power for municipal purposes, except 27 

as expressly prohibited by law; and  28 

 29 
WHEREAS, as provided in Section 166.021(3), Florida Statutes, the governing 30 

body of each municipality in the state has the power to enact legislation concerning any 31 

subject matter upon which the state legislature may act, except when expressly prohibited 32 
by law; and  33 

 34 
WHEREAS, the City wishes to amend Chapter 23, Division 2 “Definitions,” Section 35 

23.1-12, by adding definitions to provide clarity for commercial vehicle parking and 36 

storage; and 37 
 38 
WHEREAS, the City wishes to amend Chapter 23, Article 4 “Development 39 

Standards,” Section 23.4-15 – Cemeteries / mausoleums / columbariums to update and 40 

augment use standards; and 41 
 42 
WHEREAS, the City wishes to amend Chapter 23, Article 4 “Development 43 

Standards,” Sec. 23.4-19 - Outdoor storage, to provide clarity on permitted outdoor 44 
displays; and 45 

 46 
WHEREAS, the City wishes to amend Chapter 23, Article 4 “Development 47 

Standards,” to add a new section, Section 23.4-22. - Parking, storing or keeping of 48 
commercial vehicles in non-residential districts, to provide clarity for commercial vehicle 49 
parking and storage; and 50 



Pg. 2, Ord. 2020-15 

 

WHEREAS, the City wishes to amend Chapter 23, Article 5 “Supplemental 51 

Regulations,” Section 23.5-1 – Signs, to allow for additional signage for newly constructed 52 
and substantially renovated buildings; and 53 

 54 
WHEREAS, the City wishes to amend Chapter 23, Article 6 “Environmental 55 

Regulations,” Sec. 23.6-1 - Landscape regulations, to clarify requirements; and 56 
 57 
WHEREAS, the City wishes to amend Chapter 23, Article 6 “Environmental 58 

Regulations,” Sec. 23.6-1. - Landscape regulations, to allow for artificial turf with 59 
requirements related to location, quality and installation; and 60 

 61 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Board, in its capacity as the local planning 62 

agency, considered the proposed amendments at a duly advertised public hearing; and 63 

 64 
WHEREAS, the Historic Resources Preservation Board, in its capacity as the local 65 

planning agency, considered the proposed amendments at a duly advertised public 66 

hearing; and 67 
 68 

WHEREAS, the City Commission has reviewed the proposed amendments and 69 
has determined that it is in the best interest of the public health, safety, and general 70 
welfare of the City to adopt this ordinance. 71 

 72 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 73 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, that: 74 

 75 

Section 1: The foregoing “WHEREAS” clauses are ratified and confirmed as 76 
being true and correct and are made a specific part of this Ordinance as if set forth herein.  77 

 78 

Section 2: Chapter 23 “Administration,” Division 2 “Definitions,” Section 23.1 -79 
12, related to commercial vehicle parking and storage of the City’s Code of Ordinances, 80 

is hereby amended by adding the words shown in underlined type and deleting the words 81 
struck through as indicated in Exhibit A. 82 

 83 
Section 3: Chapter 23 Land Development Regulations,” Article 4 “Development 84 

Standards,” Section 23.4-15, related to use standards for cemeteries, mausoleums, and 85 
columbariums is hereby amended by adding the words shown in underlined type and 86 
deleting the words struck through as indicated in Exhibit B. 87 

 88 
Section 4: Chapter 23 Land Development Regulations,” Article 4 “Development 89 

Standards,” Section 23.4-19, related to outdoor storage and open air display is hereby 90 
amended by adding the words shown in underlined type and deleting the words struck 91 

through as indicated in Exhibit C. 92 
 93 
Section 5: Chapter 23 Land Development Regulations,” Article 4 “Development 94 

Standards,” New Section 23.4-22 related to commercial vehicle parking and storage is 95 
hereby amended by adding the words shown in underlined type and deleting the words 96 
struck through as indicated in Exhibit D. 97 
 98 



Pg.3, Ord. 2020-15 

Section 6: Chapter 23 “Land Development Regulations,” Article 5 99 
“Supplemental Regulations,” Section 23.5-1, related to temporary signage are hereby 100 

amended by adding the words shown in underlined type and deleting the words struck 101 
through as indicated in Exhibit E.  102 

 103 
Section 7: Chapter 23 “Land Development Regulations,” Article 6 104 

“Environmental Regulations,” Sec. 23.6-1, related to landscape requirements are hereby 105 
amended by adding the words shown in underlined type and deleting the words struck 106 
through as indicated in Exhibit F. 107 

 108 
Section 8: Chapter 23 “Land Development Regulations,” Article 6 109 

“Environmental Regulations,” Sec. 23.6-1, related to artificial turf landscape requirements 110 
are hereby amended by adding the words shown in underlined type and deleting the 111 
words struck through as indicated in Exhibit G. 112 

 113 
Section 9: Severability.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or 114 

portion of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of 115 

competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and 116 

independent provision, and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining 117 
portions thereof.  118 

 119 

Section 10:  Repeal of Laws in Conflict.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in 120 
conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 121 

 122 
Section 11: Codification.  The sections of the ordinance may be made a part of 123 

the City Code of Laws and ordinances and may be re-numbered or re-lettered to 124 

accomplish such, and the word “ordinance” may be changed to “section”, “division”, or 125 

any other appropriate word. 126 
 127 
Section 12: Effective Date.  This ordinance shall become effective 10 days after 128 

passage. 129 
  130 



Pg. 4, Ord. 2020-15 

 

 131 

The passage of this ordinance on first reading was moved by 132 
______________________, seconded by ________________________, and upon 133 
being put to a vote, the vote was as follows: 134 

  135 

Mayor Pam Triolo      136 
 Vice Mayor Andy Amoroso      137 
 Commissioner Scott Maxwell    138 
 Commissioner Omari Hardy  139 

Commissioner Herman Robinson  140 

   141 
 The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on first reading on the 142 
_______ day of ____________________, 2020. 143 

 144 
 145 

The passage of this ordinance on second reading was moved by 146 

_________________, seconded by ________________, and upon being put to a vote, 147 
the vote was as follows: 148 

  149 
Mayor Pam Triolo      150 

 Vice Mayor Andy Amoroso      151 

 Commissioner Scott Maxwell    152 
 Commissioner Omari Hardy  153 

Commissioner Herman Robinson     154 

 155 

 156 
The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on the _______ day of 157 

_____________________, 2020. 158 

 159 
LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION 160 

 161 
 162 

By: __________________________ 163 
             Pam Triolo, Mayor 164 

 165 
ATTEST:                     166 
 167 

 168 
____________________________ 169 
Deborah Andrea, CMC, City Clerk 170 
  171 



Pg.5, Ord. 2020-15 

EXHIBIT A 172 
 173 

Chapter 23 174 
 175 

CODE OF ORDINANCES ARTICLE 1 “GENERAL PROVISIONS” 176 
 177 
DIVISION 2. – DEFINITIONS 178 

*** 179 
Sec. 23.1 -12. Definitions. 180 

*** 181 
Commercial Business or Service Vehicles: Vehicles no larger than a Class 3 vehicle as 182 

defined by the Federal Highway Administration with a curb weight of less than 8,000 lbs 183 
that a reasonable person would associate with commercial activity, or includes the display 184 
of a business name, logo, address, telephone number, or business license number.  185 

Commercial business or service vehicles includes but is not limited to: small delivery 186 
vans, fleet vehicle parking, and light duty pick-up trucks or vehicles that meet the size and 187 
weight requirements without openly visible and unconcealed equipment.  188 

 189 

*** 190 
Commercial vehicle: Any "truck," "truck tractor," "pole trailer," "semi-trailer," "truck trailer" 191 
and "passenger bus" as defined in the appropriate, duly enacted statutes of the State of 192 

Florida providing the regulation, registration, licensing and recording of ownership of 193 
motor vehicles in the State of Florida. A vehicle that is defined herein as either a 194 

Commercial Business or Service Vehicle, or a Medium and Heavy Duty Commercial 195 
Vehicle or Construction Vehicle. 196 
 197 

*** 198 

 199 
Medium and Heavy Duty Commercial Vehicles or Construction Vehicles: Vehicles that 200 
include any construction vehicle or equipment, other motor vehicles classified by the 201 

Federal Highway Administration as a Class 3 or greater with a curb weight more than 202 
8,000 lbs, towed trailers regardless of size and weight, vehicles with an openly visible or 203 

an unconcealed load of equipment, cargo, tools, construction materials, mounted 204 

accessories that a reasonable person would associate with commercial activity. Such 205 
may vehicles may include the display of a business name, logo, address, telephone 206 

number, or business license number. Medium and Heavy Duty Vehicles or Construction 207 
Vehicles includes but is not limited to: commercial trailers (e.g. landscape trailers), tow 208 
trucks, service trucks, rental trucks, tracker trailers and construction vehicles or 209 

equipment, such as a bulldozer, backhoe, and vehicles with blades attached for plowing 210 
or grading.  211 
 212 

*** 213 

 214 
  215 



Pg. 6, Ord. 2020-15 

 

 216 

EXHIBIT B 217 
 218 
 219 

Chapter 23 220 

 221 
LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS ARTICLE 4 “DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS” 222 

*** 223 

Section 23.4-15. - Cemeteries/mausoleums/columbariums. 224 
 225 

A.  Cemeteries/mausoleums/columbariums shall comply with the following: 226 
(1) These uses shall comply with the underlying restrictions of the zoning district in which 227 

they are located. No variances with regard to height, setback, lot coverage or FAR 228 

shall be granted. 229 
(2) The minimum parcel size shall be 2.5 acres. 230 
(3) When located adjacent to residential single-family uses, a minimum twenty (20) feet 231 

of landscaped buffer shall be provided, which shall include native shade trees at a 232 
minimum of twenty-five (25) feet on center. 233 

(4) Access to site shall be directly from a primary street. 234 
(5) Facilities shall not be located within a radius of one thousand (1,000) feet of existing 235 

assisted living center/facility/nursing home or retirement home. 236 

(6) Facilities shall be provided with a perimeter fence or wall six (6) feet in height. Fences 237 
and walls abutting a right-of-way shall be setback a minimum of thirty (30) inches to 238 
provide a landscape area along the right-of-way.  239 

(7) Facilities shall have visitation hours of 8 am to sunset. 240 

(8) Facilities shall provide guest parking of at least twenty-five (25) spaces. 241 
 242 
  243 



Pg.7, Ord. 2020-15 

EXHIBIT C 244 
 245 

Chapter 23 246 
 247 

LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS ARTICLE 4 “DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS” 248 
 249 

Sec. 23.4-19. - Outdoor storage. and open-air operations. 250 
 251 
A. Outdoor storage. 252 

*** 253 
B. Open air operations. 254 

a) The following shall be allowed to be displayed only in front of the business to 255 
which the items belong:  256 
1. Up to three (3) items, which must be new or in excellent condition.  257 

2. Flowers or foliage maintained per City Code.  258 
3. Used and new clothing stores may display one (1) freestanding vertical 259 

clothing pole with a maximum of three (3) items of clothing.  260 

4. One (1) Propone tank display case if less than ten percent (10%) of the 261 

bay or building width that the associated business occupies and if 262 
completely screened from abutting properties and rights-of-way. 263 

4. No item can obstruct entry or exit from any store or property or in any other 264 

way be hazardous to pedestrians or motorists. All items must be placed 265 
entirely on private property and may not be located in required parking 266 

areas or landscaped areas. 267 
5. No item may impede pedestrian access to the public sidewalk and/or 268 

restrict ADA accessibility. 269 

6. One (1) sandwich board meeting the requirements of the City’s sign code 270 

may be displayed in front of businesses facing a City major thoroughfare 271 
and cannot impede pedestrian access or ADA accessibility.  272 

b) The following shall be allowed by first obtaining an administrative use permit 273 

on behalf of each individual business for a sales event no more than four (4) 274 
times a year for a duration of no more than three (3) days:  275 

1. Art or craft demonstrations.  276 

2. Outdoor sales of items.  277 
3. Guest art or craft or artist related items.  278 

c) The following items shall not be displayed outside of any store or business at 279 
any time:  280 

1. Upholstered furniture or bedding.  281 

2. Electrical appliances.  282 
3. Horizontal racks of clothing.  283 
4. Vehicles (except in authorized and licensed lots) or parts thereof.  284 
5. Any items which are in disrepair, rusty, mold or mildew damaged, 285 

soiled or sandy, any item having chipped or peeling paint, any item 286 
having protruding bolts or nails.  287 

d) The appropriate regulatory advisory board shall review and make 288 
recommendations to the appropriateness of granting a variance from the 289 
open-air operations rules.  290 

*** 291 
292 



Pg. 8, Ord. 2020-15 

 

EXHIBIT D 293 

 294 
 295 

Chapter 23 296 
 297 

LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS ARTICLE 4 “DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS” 298 
 299 

*** 300 
[NEW SECTION] 301 
Section 23.4-22. - Parking, storing or keeping of commercial vehicles in non-302 

residential districts 303 
a) Medium or Heavy Duty Commercial Vehicles or Construction Vehicles. 304 

 305 

1) Exclusions 306 
A.  This section shall not apply to any vehicle in this category that is parked or 307 

stopped upon a public right-of-way as a result of an emergency due to a 308 

malfunction of the vehicle beyond the control of its owner; in the case of such 309 
emergency, the owner will be permitted to make necessary repairs or arrange 310 

for its removal, but such incapacitated vehicle shall not be permitted upon such 311 
public right-of-way for more than twenty-four (24) hours.  312 

B. This section shall not apply to the temporary parking of any vehicle in this 313 

category or construction equipment on any privately-owned real property 314 
within a residential district where construction for which a current and valid 315 
permit has been issued by the city is underway on the property. Nothing in this 316 

subsection is intended to require a permit where none is otherwise required.  317 

C. This section shall not apply to deliveries by tradesmen, or the use of vehicles 318 
in this category in making service calls. 319 

 320 

2) General conditions.  321 
A. Outdoor parking, storage or keeping of commercial vehicles in this category 322 

shall be permitted only in the I-POC industrial district on impervious approved 323 
surfaces. The outdoor parking, storage or keeping of these vehicles shall be 324 
considered an outdoor storage use and the requirements in Section 23.4-19- 325 
Outdoor Storage shall apply. 326 

B. No major vehicle repair work may be conducted on the premises unless the 327 
owner of the business maintains an active business license for automotive 328 
service and repair.  329 

D. Restriction on size. There shall be no restriction on size other than the 330 
requirement that the vehicle shall not extend onto or over public property or 331 
abutting private properties.  332 

F. Screening requirements. All commercial vehicles in this category shall be 333 

effectively screened from all public rights-of-way and any adjacent property 334 
that is zoned for residential or mixed use. 335 

 336 
b) Commercial Business or Service Vehicles. 337 
 338 

1) Exclusions 339 



Pg.9, Ord. 2020-15 

A. This section shall not apply to any vehicle in this category that is parked or 340 
stopped upon a public right-of-way as a result of an emergency due to a 341 

malfunction of the vehicle beyond the control of its owner; in the case of such 342 
emergency, the owner will be permitted to make necessary repairs or arrange 343 

for its removal, but such incapacitated vehicle shall not be permitted upon such 344 
public right-of-way for more than twenty-four (24) hours.  345 

B. This section shall not apply to the temporary parking of any commercial vehicle 346 
in this category on any privately-owned real property within a residential district 347 
where construction for which a current and valid permit has been issued by 348 

the city is underway on the property. Nothing in this subsection is intended to 349 
require a permit where none is otherwise required.  350 

C. This section shall not apply to deliveries by tradesmen, or the use of vehicles 351 
in this category in making service calls.  352 

 353 

2) General Conditions 354 
A. Commercial business or service vehicles, excluding all towed trailers 355 

regardless of size and weight, may be parked in mixed-use districts in 356 

designated parking spaces on the same property as an associated business 357 

with an active business license. Site plan approval is required. Commercial 358 
business or service vehicle parking shall be depicted on the site plan and 359 
shall not exceed twenty-five percent (25%) of required parking.  Garage 360 

parking of these vehicles is permitted on the first two floors of a parking 361 
garage. 362 

B. The Development Review Official or applicable board shall be authorized to 363 
allow for businesses to exceed the maximum commercial vehicle parking 364 
limitation of twenty-five percent (25%) through the site plan approval process 365 

on existing non-conforming properties, provided that the applicant can 366 

demonstrate off-street parking in front of the business accommodates 367 
customer and employee parking and provides a parking plan that designates 368 
commercial business or service vehicle parking and employee parking.  369 

C.  No major vehicle repair work may be conducted on the premises unless the 370 
owner of the business maintains an active business license for automotive 371 

service and repair.  372 

F. Screening requirements. All commercial vehicles in this category shall be 373 
effectively screened from all public rights-of-way and any adjacent property 374 

that is zoned residential or mixed use whenever feasible. 375 
 376 

 377 
  378 



Pg. 10, Ord. 2020-15 

 

 379 

EXHIBIT E 380 
 381 

Chapter 23 382 
 383 

LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS ARTICLE 5 “SUPPLEMENTAL 384 
REGULATIONS” 385 

 386 
Sec. 23.5-1. - Signs. 387 

 388 
*** 389 

12.Temporary signs. 390 

  *** 391 

C. Non-residential zoning districts and mixed use zoning districts. 392 

*** 393 
(vi) Banners shall be permitted as follows: 394 

i. No more than two (2) banners are permitted on a property at any one time 395 

and may not remain for more than fifteen (15) days. 396 
ii. Banners shall be securely fastened. 397 
iii. Banners shall not be attached to utility poles or landscaping. 398 

iv. Banners may not be displayed more than two times per year. 399 
v. Banners related to the leasing and sale of units or bays in newly 400 

constructed buildings or in fully renovated buildings including 401 
improvements to one hundred percent (100%) of structure/s interior 402 
areas shall not exceed three percent (3%) of the building façade facing 403 

a right-of-way in total or 36 sf, whatever is greater, and shall be limited 404 

to two (2) banners per street frontage. These banners shall require a 405 
temporary sign permit that shall expire within six (6) months unless an 406 
extension of up to an additional six (6) months is granted by the 407 

development review official. 408 

 409 

  410 



Pg.11, Ord. 2020-15 

EXHIBIT F 411 
 412 

 413 
Chapter 23 414 

 415 
LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS ARTICLE 6 “ENVIRONMENTAL 416 

REGULATIONS” 417 
 418 

Sec. 23.6-1. - Landscape regulations. 419 
*** 420 

 421 

(g)  Permit required.  422 

(1)  A landscape permit, including a landscape plan, shall be required for the 423 

following: 424 

a. Aall new construction projects or the expansion or renovation of any existing 425 
development when the expansion or renovation of the existing development is 426 

equal to fifty (50) percent of the assessed value of the improvements according 427 
to the property appraiser, or  428 

b. Wwhen the total square footage of a structure is expanded by fifty (50) percent 429 

or greater. In such cases the entire site shall be upgraded to present landscape 430 
standards.    431 

c.  For improvements associated with a minor site plan amendment, major site plan 432 
amendment, conditional use permit, planned unit development amendment, 433 
administrative use permit or for the conversation of residential use to commercial 434 

use.  435 

*** 436 
(k)  Landscape design standards. The following are the minimum standards for the 437 

design and installation of all landscaping within the City of Lake Worth Beach: 438 

 439 
*** 440 

   (10) Ground covers. Living ground covers and native grasses used in lieu of turf or 441 

sod, in whole or part, shall be planted at such spacing to present a finished 442 
appearance and reasonably complete coverage within six (6) months. based on 443 

the expected mature spread. Ground covers that have an expected mature spread 444 
of 24 inches or less must be planted 12 inches apart. If the expected mature spread 445 
is greater than 24 inches the groundcovers must be planted 18 inches apart. 446 

Groundcovers shall not be planted in straight rows; the planting must be staggered 447 
to ensure even coverage.   All ground cover areas must be kept free from weeds. 448 

*** 449 
 450 

(13)  Inorganic Mulches.  Inorganic mulches such as Gravel, river rock, shell, 451 

Chattahoochee pebbles or similar material shall be treated as a semi-pervious 452 
surface. The quantity of inorganic mulch to be incorporated into a project shall be 453 
limited by the maximum percentage of impervious surface for the subject property 454 
within the applicable zoning district. Rubber products such as crumb rubber or 455 



Pg. 12, Ord. 2020-15 

 

chipped tires are prohibited except for stabilized applications installed to achieve 456 

or maintain ADA compliance. 457 

(13) (14) Vegetable and fruit gardens. Vegetable and fruit gardens are allowed 458 

so long as the minimum landscape requirements for the site are met.  459 
  460 



Pg.13, Ord. 2020-15 

 461 
EXHIBIT G 462 

 463 
Chapter 23 464 

 465 
 466 

LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS ARTICLE 6 “ENVIRONMENTAL 467 
REGULATIONS” 468 

 469 

Sec. 23.6-1. - Landscape regulations. 470 
*** 471 

(k)  Landscape design standards. The following are the minimum standards for the 472 

design and installation of all landscaping within the City of Lake Worth Beach: 473 
 474 

*** 475 
 476 
(15) Artificial turf. 477 

a.  All installation of artificial turf shall require a landscape permit. The use and 478 

location of artificial turf shall be limited to the following:  479 

(1) Single family and duplex properties in the rear yard only and not visible from 480 
the right of way.  481 

(2) Between parking strips in the front yard of non-conforming properties 482 
previously constructed with off-street parking utilizing sixty percent (60%) or 483 

more of the width of the front yard. This application of artificial turf shall be 484 
approved by the Development Review Official or applicable review board, 485 

which shall review the proposed application for consistency with the City’s 486 
land development regulations, visual appropriateness, enhanced site design 487 

and appearance, and improved drainage.   488 

(3) On roof top terraces. 489 

(4) As part of a planned development in a recreation or amenity area.  490 

b.  In all areas of installation, artificial turf shall be treated as a semi-pervious 491 
surface. The quantity of artificial turf to be incorporated into a project shall be 492 
limited by the maximum percentage of impervious surface for the subject 493 

property within the applicable zoning district.   494 

c.  Artificial turf shall not be installed:  495 

(1) as part of any landscape buffer or landscape area required by this article;  496 

(2) within permanent drainage features (e.g., ponds, swales); or  497 

(3)  in any public right of way.    498 

d.  Minimum material standards. All artificial turf shall comply with each of the 499 
following minimum standards:  500 

(1)  Artificial turf shall consist of green lifelike individual blades of grass that 501 
emulate natural turf in look and color and shall have a minimum pile height of 502 
one- and one-half inches and shall have a minimum tufted weight of 80 503 
ounces per square yard. 504 



Pg. 14, Ord. 2020-15 

 

(2)  Artificial turf installations shall have a minimum permeability of 30 inches per 505 

hour per square yard.  506 

(3)  All artificial turf shall have a minimum ten-year manufacturer's warranty that 507 
protects against color fading and a decrease in pile height.  508 

(4)  Artificial turf shall be lead free and be partially or wholly manufactured from 509 

recyclable materials. 510 

(5)  All materials must include test documentation which declares that the artificial 511 
turf yarn and backing materials are disposable under normal conditions, at 512 
any U.S. landfill station (Total Content Leach Protocol (TCLP) test). 513 
Documentation must also be provided that identifies all components that are 514 

recyclable and all components that consist of recycled material.  515 

(6)  The use of indoor or outdoor plastic or nylon carpeting as a replacement for 516 

artificial turf or natural turf shall be prohibited.  517 

(7) The artificial turf system shall utilize organic plant-derived and other natural 518 
infill components, including, but not limited to, cork, coconut, corn husk, rice 519 
husk, and sand. The use of crumb rubber and other synthetic materials shall 520 

be prohibited in all applications except for sports fields. 521 

(8) Artificial Turf shall not be treated as a fill in material, but rather as a planned 522 

element of the site or yard outside of required landscape areas and buffers 523 

e.   Installation, maintenance and repair.  524 

(1)  All artificial turf shall, at a minimum, be installed according to the 525 

manufacturer's specifications.  526 

(2)  All artificial turf installations shall be anchored to ensure that the turf will 527 
withstand the effects of wind.  528 

(3)  All seams shall be secured and edges shall be trimmed to fit against all 529 

regular and irregular edges to resemble a natural look.  530 

(4)  If artificial turf is planned to be installed immediately adjacent to a seawall, 531 
the artificial turf shall be pinned or staked behind the seawall. No artificial 532 
turf or installation mechanism shall be attached directly to or placed on a 533 

seawall or seawall cap.  534 

(5) All artificial turf shall be installed over a subgrade prepared to provide 535 
positive drainage and an evenly graded mass of compacted, porous 536 

crushed rock aggregate material. Base comprising of sand only is not 537 
permitted. Proper drainage shall be provided for all Artificial Turf 538 
installations to prevent runoff or pooling of water. 539 

(6)  Artificial turf shall be visually level, with the grain pointing in a single 540 

direction.  541 

(7)  An appropriate solid barrier device (e.g., concrete mow strip, bender board 542 
or other barrier with a minimum of 38” thickness) is required to separate 543 
artificial turf from soil and live vegetation and to prevent intrusion of living 544 
plant material. 545 



Pg.15, Ord. 2020-15 

(8)  Artificial turf shall not be installed directly against the trunk of trees and/or 546 
palms. A 3-foot mulch bed measured from the base of the tree or palm must 547 

be maintained around all tress and or palms.  Precautions for installation 548 
around existing trees shall be monitored and may be restricted to ensure 549 

tree roots are not damaged with the installation of the base material and 550 
that the overall health of the tree will not be compromised.  551 

(9)  All artificial turf shall be maintained in a green fadeless condition and shall 552 
be maintained free of dirt, mud, stains, weeds, debris, tears, holes, and 553 
impressions. Maintenance shall include, but not be limited to cleaning, 554 

brushing, debris removal; repairing of depressions and ruts to maintain a 555 
visually-level surface; elimination of any odors, flat or matted areas, weeds, 556 
and invasive roots; and all edges of the artificial turf shall not be loose and 557 
must be maintained with appropriate edging or stakes. 558 

(10)  There shall be no parking on artificial turf. 559 

(11) Artificial turf shall not be visible from public rights-of-way except where it is 560 
installed between parking strips or approved as part of a planned 561 

development. 562 

(12)  All other landscape requirements must be meet. 563 

(13)  Applicants shall provide an owner affidavit agreeing to perpetually maintain 564 
the artificial turf system in good working order to ensure that there is 565 
continued permeability. If the artificial turf falls into disrepair with fading or 566 

holes or loose areas. The replacement and/or repairs shall be done with like 567 
for like materials from the same manufacturer and done so in a manner that 568 

results in a repair that blends in with the existing artificial turf.  569 

f.  A landscape permit shall be obtained from the City prior to the installation of any 570 

artificial turf. The permit application shall include the following material 571 
specifications and plans.  572 

(1)  A landscape plan showing the area of synthetic turf, area of living plant 573 
material, and separation between these areas;  574 

(2) A dimensioned cross section of proposed materials and installation details, 575 

including subgrade, drainage, base or leveling layer, and infill;  576 

(3)  Edge material and detail for seams;  577 

(4) Material description and specifications, including manufacturer,  578 

(5)  Installer (with contact information), and warranty information.  579 

(6)  A sample of the artificial turf proposed that meets these standards.  580 

(7)  Product specifications that demonstrate compliance the requirements for 581 
artificial turf in this article and the ability to be warrantied in the United States 582 

of America.  583 

(8)  The plan shall demonstrate conformance with the City’s landscape 584 
requirements.  585 

g. A Certificate of Appropriateness shall be obtained from the HRPB prior to the 586 
installation of any artificial turf in a historic district. 587 



Pg. 16, Ord. 2020-15 

 

h. Inspections.  An in-progress inspection shall be required to ensure that the 588 

appropriate base material has been installed in accordance to the 589 
manufactures’ specifications. A final inspection shall also be required. 590 



 
City Of Lake Worth 

Department for Community Sustainability 

Planning, Zoning and Historic Preservation Division 

1900 Second Avenue North · Lake Worth · Florida 33461· Phone: 561-586-1687  
  

 

DATE:  October 1, 2020  
 
TO:  Members of the Planning & Zoning and Historic Resources Preservation Boards 
 
FROM:  William Waters, Director Community Sustainability 
 
MEETING:  October 7, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: PZHP 20-03100007: Consideration of an ordinance to Chapter 23 “Land Development Regulations” 

regarding changes to commercial vehicle parking, open air operations, temporary banner signage 
for new construction, landscaping requirements and artificial turf (Ordinance 20-15). 

 
 

 
BACKGROUND/ PROPOSAL: 
 
On March 5, 2020, the City Commission held a workshop on the prioritization of amendments to the City’s Land 
Development Regulations (LDR) that were previously identified by staff and the Commission.  The subject LDR 
amendments address a second series of prioritized items identified at the March meeting.  These include changes 
related to open air operations, signage and parking.  Per commissioner request, requirements related to artificial 
turf were drafted for discussion and review. The proposed amendments to the Land Development Regulations have 
been reviewed by staff for consistency with the City’s Comprehensive Plan.  A summary of each component in the 
draft ordinance is also provided. 
 
The proposed LDR amendments for Chapter 23 will modify the following sections of the City’s Code of 
Ordinances: 

 Article 1- Section 23.1-12 – Definitions 

 Article 4- Section 23.4-15 - Cemeteries/mausoleums/columbariums 

 Article 4 - Section 23.4-19 - Outdoor storage and open-air operations 

 Article 4 - Section 23.4-22 - Parking, storing or keeping of commercial vehicles in non-residential districts 

 Article 5 - Section 23.5-1 - Signs 

 Article 6 - Section 23.6-1 – Landscape Regulations 

 Article 6 - Section 23.6-1 – Landscape Regulations (Artificial Turf) 
 

  



 
There also are a few changes to Chapter 2 of the Code of Ordinances related to development fees. 
 
Definitions: The proposed amendments provide clarity and with regards to the regulation of commercial vehicles 
on non-residential properties. 
 
Cemeteries/mausoleums/columbariums:  The proposed amendments provide additional use and site 
development requirements for cemeteries, mausoleums, and columbariums 
 
Open Air Operation:  The proposed amendments will amend the outdoor storage section to specifically address 
open air operation, including outdoor display. 
 
Temporary Signage:   The proposed amendments provide additional banner style signage related to the opening 
of a newly constructed building or substantially renovate building. 
 
Landscape Regulations:  The proposed amendments provide clarity for when permits are requirements and related 
to installation requirements for ground cover and inorganic mulch. 
 
Landscape Regulations (Artificial Turf):  The proposed amendments would allow for artificial turf within the City 
subject to the requirements related to location, quality and installation. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends that the Planning and Zoning Board and Historic Resources Preservation Board recommend that 
the City Commission adopt Ordinance 2020-XX: PZB / HRPB Project Number 20-03100007. 
 
POTENTIAL MOTION: 
 
I move to RECOMMEND/NOT RECOMMEND TO THE CITY COMMISSION TO ADOPT the proposed LDR text 
amendments included in PZB / HRPB Project Number 20-03100007.  (Ordinance 2020-15). 
 
Attachments 

A. Draft Ordinance 2020-15 



EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

AGENDA DATE: November 17, 2020 DEPARTMENT: Community Sustainability 

TITLE: 

Ordinance No. 2020-17 – First Reading - Approve the establishment of a mixed-use urban 
planned development for Village Flats 

 
SUMMARY: 

Ordinance No. 2020-17 provides for the establishment of a mixed-use urban planned 
development including a major site plan, a conditional use, and sustainable bonus incentive for 
Village Flats, which includes 41 residential units. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

Village Flats is a two-phase, forty-one (41) unit multi-family project being proposed by InHabit 
Property Group, which is located on several vacant lots totaling 1.1 acres between Lake and 
Lucerne Avenues and between North F and North C Streets as depicted in Exhibit A of the 
ordinance.  Phase 1 of the project will be located on 8 lots totaling 0.64 acres adjacent to North 
E Street between Lake and Lucerne Avenues and will consist of two buildings containing a total 
of 30 one-bedroom and two-bedroom units, including 5 live/work units. Phase 1 will also include 
a pocket park to be located at the southeastern corner of the site. Phase 2 will be located at two 
sites totaling 0.46 acres at 1310 Lake Avenue and 1401 Lucerne Avenue respectively. The 
parcel at 1310 Lake Avenue will consistent of six (6) one-bedroom units, while 1401 Lucerne 
Avenue will consistent of five (5) three-bedroom live/work units. Phase 2 will require subsequent 
site plan amendment review once the development plans are finalized, which will require either 
administrative review or review by the Planning & Zoning Board (PZB) as applicable.  

This project is the result of RFP 01-1819, initiated by the Lake Worth Beach Community 
Redevelopment Agency (CRA) for affordable, market-rate housing to be located on CRA-owned 
property.  The project was subsequently submitted for review by Community Sustainability staff 
and the City’s Site Plan Review Team (SPRT).  On October 7, 2020, the PZB reviewed the 
project and unanimously recommended the project be approved by the City Commission with 
conditions outlined in Exhibit C of the ordinance.  The applicant submitted revised plans on 
October 20, 2020, to address minor comments raised by the PZB, including additional signage 
detail.  The revised plans were reviewed by staff for consistency with PZB comments and are 
included in the development plans attachment. 

If approved, the City’s official zoning map will be amended to reflect the establishment of the 
mixed-use urban planned development.   

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Ordinance No. 2020-17 on first reading and to schedule the public 
hearing and second reading on December 1, 2020. 



 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Ordinance 2020-17 
PZB Staff Report 
Development Plans  
Supplemental Supporting Documents 
 



 

2020-17 1 
 2 

ORDINANCE NO. 2020-17 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COMMISSION 3 

OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE 4 
OFFICIAL ZONING MAP BY APPROVING THE CREATION OF A MIXED 5 
USE URBAN PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, LOCATED AT 6 
1216, 1220, 1230, & 1310 LAKE AVENUE, AND 1207, 1209, 1211, 1213, 7 
1215, & 1401 LUCERNE AVENUE CONSISTING OF APPROXIMATELY 8 

1.1 ACRES AS MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT A, 9 
THAT IS LOCATED WITHIN THE MIXED USE – EAST (MU-E) ZONING 10 
DISTRICT WITH A FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION OF MIXED USE 11 
– EAST (MU-E) THAT INCLUDES THE SPECIFIC DEVELOPMENT 12 

STANDARDS DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT B; APPROVING A 13 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT; APPROVING DENSITY AND HEIGHT 14 
BONUS INCENTIVES THORUGH THE CITY’S SUSTAINABLE BONUS 15 

INCENTIVE PROGRAM; APPROVING A MAJOR SITE PLAN FOR THE 16 

CONSTRUCTION OF A MIXED USE URBAN PLANNED DEVELOPMENT 17 
CONSISTING OF 41 RESIDENTIAL UNITS INCLUDING 10 LIVE/WORK 18 
UNITS; PROVIDED FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS AND AN 19 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 20 
 21 

WHEREAS, the City Commission of the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida, 22 
pursuant to the authority granted in Chapters 163 and 166, Florida Statutes, and the Land 23 
Development Regulations, as adopted by the City of Lake Worth Beach, is authorized 24 

and empowered to consider petitions relating to zoning and land development orders; 25 
and 26 

 27 
WHEREAS, Chapter 23, Article 3, Division 6. – Planned Development of City of 28 

Lake Worth Beach’s Land Development Regulations allows for the creation of planned 29 
development districts to incentivize innovative development through the utilization of 30 
incentive programs and flexible dimensional and use requirements that are defined within 31 

and occur in conformity with an approved master development plan; and  32 
 33 

WHEREAS, InHabit Property Group (the Applicant), has petitioned the City of Lake 34 
Worth Beach (the City) for creation of a Mixed Use Urban Planned Development District 35 
to allow for the approval of a mixed use development on a site located at 1216, 1220, 36 

1230, & 1310 Lake Avenue, and 1207, 1209, 1211, 1213, 1215, & 1401 Lucerne Avenue 37 

(PCNs 38-43-44-21-15-505-0120; 38-43-44-21-15-505-0130; 38-43-44-21-15-505-0160; 38 
38-43-44-21-15-504-0130; 38-43-44-21-15-503-0050; 38-43-44-21-15-505-0010; 38-43-39 
44-21-15-505-0020; 38-43-44-21-15-505-0030; 38-43-44-21-15-505-0040; 38-43-44-21-40 

15-505-00500) as further described in Exhibit A (the Property) within the MU-E Zoning 41 
District and the MU-E Future Land Use designation, and if approved, shall constitute an 42 
amendment to the City’s official zoning map; and 43 

 44 
WHEREAS, the Applicant requests use of the City’s Sustainable Bonus Incentive 45 

Program to allow for additional height and density to be considered in conjunction with 46 



Pg. 2, Ord. 2020-17 

the Applicant’s request for approval for a major site plan for the construction of a mixed 47 
use urban planned development currently known as “Village Flats” that will contain 41 48 
dwelling units, inclusive of 10 live/work units, to be constructed on this site; 49 

 50 
WHEREAS, on October 7, 2020, the Lake Worth Beach Planning and Zoning 51 

Board (P&Z Board) considered the subject application for a Mixed Use Urban Planned 52 
Development District, Major Site Plan, Conditional Use Permit, and Sustainable Bonus 53 
Incentive Program and recommended that the City Commission approve the creation of 54 

this mixed use urban planned development district; and 55 
 56 
WHEREAS, the City Commission has considered all of the testimony and evidence 57 

and has determined that the Mixed Use Urban Planned Development District, Major Site 58 

Plan, Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program, and Conditional Use Permit, including the 59 
development regulations and conditions, meets the requirements of the Land 60 
Development Regulations, Section 23.3.25. 61 

 62 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 63 
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, that: 64 
 65 

Section 1.   Recitals.  The foregoing recitals are true and correct and are hereby 66 
affirmed and ratified. 67 

 68 
Section 2.   The Mixed Use Urban Planned Development District located within the MU-69 
E Zoning District with a future land use designation of MU-E, as described more 70 

particularly in Exhibit A, is hereby approved. This approval includes the approval of the 71 
following elements to be known as the Master Development Plan: (a) Mixed Use Urban 72 

Planned Development (b) Major Site Plan (c) Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program (d) 73 
Conditional Use Permit; (e) district development standards (Exhibit B) (f) conditions of 74 

approval (Exhibit C); (g) required plans including the site plan, architectural plan, 75 
landscape plan, and civil & drainage plans dated 9/21/2020; (h) supplemental supporting 76 
documents, as well as all agreements, provisions and/or covenants which shall govern 77 

the use, maintenance, and continued protection of the mixed use urban planned 78 
development and any of its common areas or facilities. The Applicant is bound to all 79 

elements and requirements of the Master Development Plan.  80 
 81 
Section 3.   The City’s zoning maps shall be updated to reflect the changes to the 82 

property described in Exhibit A. 83 

 84 
Section 4.   Repeal of Laws in Conflict.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict 85 
herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 86 

 87 
Section 5.   Severability.  If any provision of this ordinance or the application thereof is 88 
held invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the invalidity shall not affect other 89 
provisions of the ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or 90 
application, and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared severable. 91 
 92 



Pg. 3, Ord. 2020-17 

 

 
 

Section 6.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days after 93 
its final passage. 94 
 95 

The passage of this ordinance on first reading was moved by _____________, 96 
seconded by ____________ and upon being put to a vote, the vote was as follows: 97 

 98 

Mayor Pam Triolo 99 

Vice Mayor Andy Amoroso 100 

Commissioner Scott Maxwell 101 

Commissioner Herman Robinson 102 

 103 
The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on first reading on the 104 

20th day of October, 2020. 105 
 106 
 107 

The passage of this ordinance on second reading was moved by 108 
_________________, seconded by ________________, and upon being put to a vote, 109 

the vote was as follows: 110 

 111 

Mayor Pam Triolo 112 

Vice Mayor Andy Amoroso 113 

Commissioner Scott Maxwell 114 

Commissioner Herman 115 

 116 

 117 
The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on the _______ day of 118 

_____________________, 2020. 119 
 120 

LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION 121 

By: __________________________ 122 
Pam Triolo, Mayor 123 

ATTEST: 124 
 125 
 126 

________________________ 127 

Deborah M. Andrea, City Clerk   128 
  129 



Pg. 4, Ord. 2020-17 

Exhibit A 
 

DEPARTMENT FOR COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY, PLANNING, ZONING AND HISTORIC PRESERVATION DIVISION 

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION FOR PZB CASE No. 20-01000001 
 

The subject site encompasses 1216, 1220, 1230, & 1310 Lake Avenue, and 1207, 1209, 1211, 1213, 1215, & 1401 Lucerne Avenue. 

The site is comprised of select properties located between Lake & Lucerne Avenues, between North C & North F Street and is 

Mixed-Use East (MU-E). The subject properties PCNs are 38-43-44-21-15-505-0120, 38-43-44-21-15-505-0130, 38-43-44-21-15-

505-0160, 38-43-44-21-15-504-0130, 38-43-44-21-15-503-0050, 38-43-44-21-15-505-0010, 38-43-44-21-15-505-0020, 38-43-44-

21-15-505-0030, 38-43-44-21-15-505-0040, and 38-43-44-21-15-505-0050. A zoning map of the subject site is provided below. 
 

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION:  

Applicant 
Corey O’Gorman and Jeff Costello of PLACE Planning & Design on behalf of Timothy Carey of InHabit 

Property Group 

Owner Lake Worth Beach Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA) 

General Location Multiple sites located between Lake & Lucerne Avenues, between North C & North F Streets. 

Existing PCN 

Numbers 

38-43-44-21-15-505-0120; 38-43-44-21-15-505-0130; 38-43-44-21-15-505-0160; 38-43-44-21-15-504-

0130; 38-43-44-21-15-503-0050; 38-43-44-21-15-505-0010; 38-43-44-21-15-505-0020; 38-43-44-21-

15-505-0030; 38-43-44-21-15-505-0040; 38-43-44-21-15-505-0050 

Legal Description 

Town of Lake Worth Lots 1-5, 12-13, & 16, Block E 

Town of Lake Worth Lots 13 & 14 (Less N 5ft Alley R/W) Block D 

Town of Lake Worth Lots 5-8 (Less S 5ft Alley R/W) Block C 

Existing Land Use Vacant Lots 

Existing Zoning Mixed-Use East (MU-E) 

Proposed Zoning Mixed Use Urban Planned Development 

Future Land Use 

Designation 
Mixed-Use East (MU-E) 

 

 



Pg. 5, Ord. 2020-17 

 

 
 

Exhibit B 
 

DEPARTMENT FOR COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY, PLANNING, ZONING AND HISTORIC PRESERVATION DIVISION 

DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS FOR PZB CASE No. 20-01000001 

 

Development Standard 
Base Zoning 

District 

Mixed Use Urban 

Planned 

Development  
with Sustainable Bonus 

Incentive Program (SBIP)   

Phase 1 

Provided 

Phase 2 

Provided 

(approximate) 

Lot Size (min) 

In square feet (sf) 
6,500 sf 0.5 acres 47,950 sf (1.1 acres) 

Lot Width (min) 25’ 100’ 175’ 70’ + 140’ 

Setbacks 

Front (min) 10’  10’ 10’ 10’ & 20’ 

Rear (min) 10’ 10’ 10’ 41’ & 43’ 

Street Side 

(min) 
10’ 10’ 10’ N/A 

Interior 

Side (min) 
0’ 0’ 0’ 11.5’ & 5’/10’ 

Impermeable Surface 

Coverage (maximum) 
75% 75% 72.4% 62.4% 

Structure Coverage 

(max) 
65% 65% 29.7% 27.9% 

Living Area 

(minimum) 

One 

bedroom 

units 

600 sf 600 sf 

Unit 1 (5): 715-723 

sf  

Unit 3 (12): 686 sf 

Unit 4 (6): 710 sf 

Building 3 Unit (6): 

700 sf 

Two 

bedroom 

units 

750 sf 750 sf 
Unit 2 (7): 982-1041 

sf 
None 

Three 

bedroom 

units 

900 sf 900 sf None 
Building 4 Unit (5): 

1,550 sf 

Parking 
Phase 1: 47 / Phase 2: 24 / Office: 3 

Total: 56 (74 – 25% mixed-use credit) 

49 (36 spaces on-

site, 13 on street) 
29 

Density (max) 
30 du/acre (33 

units) 

37.5 du/acre (41.25 

units) 
37.27 du/acre (41 units) 

Building Height (max) 30 feet (2 stories) 
56.25 feet (5 

stories) 

Building 1: 48.67’ 

Building 2: 35.5’ 

Buildings 3 & 4: 

Not to exceed 

LDRs 

Floor Area Ratio (FAR) 

(max) 
1.5 1.94 .82 .64 



Pg. 6, Ord. 2020-17 

Exhibit C 
 

DEPARTMENT FOR COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY, PLANNING, ZONING AND HISTORIC PRESERVATION DIVISION 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR PZB CASE No. 20-01000001 

Planning:  

1. Phase 1 & 2 Conditions: 
i. Prior to the issuance of a building permit for Phase 1, provide a TPS Letter from the Palm Beach County Traffic 

Division. The TPS letter may be for only Phase 1 or both Phase 1 & 2.  Should the TPS Letter only be for Phase 1, 
a second TPS letter shall be applied for prior to Site Plan approval for Phase 2, and said letter shall be submitted 
prior to the issuance of a building permit. 

ii. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, designate 3 parking spaces as electric vehicle parking and outfit each 
parking space with electric vehicle charging equipment as outlined in LDR Section 23.4-10. 

iii. Exterior lighting shall be shielded and in conformance with the Major Thoroughfare Design Guidelines.  Exterior 
LED lighting shall have a warm color temperature (<3000K). 

iv. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, a color scheme more characteristic with the aesthetic of Lake Worth 
Beach shall be approved by the Development Review Official. 

v. Prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy, all fences shall comply with Section 23.4-4. 
2. Phase 1 Conditions: 

i. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, push back the north wall of Building 2 so that it lies 5’ south of the 
existing gravity sewer running east/west through the site. 

ii. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, screen the recycling area from all rights-of-way. 
iii. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, submit a signage plan that provides consistent signage theme, sizing 

and materials. 
3. Phase 2 Conditions: 

i. Phase 2 shall obtain final site plan approval through a Site Plan amendment process to be approved 
administratively by staff or by the Planning & Zoning Board as applicable. 

ii. An application for final site plan approval for Phase 2 shall be required no later than one (1) year of the planned 
development approval with an administrative extension of up to six (6) months if approved by the City’s 
Development Review Official. 

iii. Phase 2 shall be restricted to 11 units total.  Should additional units be sought through the city’s Transfer of 
Development Rights program, the site plan shall be amended through a Major Site Plan amendment process. 

iv. Aside from waivers granted through the Planned Development, Phase 2 shall be designed in accordance and 
comply with Chapter 23 of the city’s Land Development Regulations. 

v. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, submit a signage plan that provides consistent signage theme, sizing 
and materials. 

 



Pg. 7, Ord. 2020-17 

 

 
 

Public Works:  

1. The issuance of any permits shall comply with all provisions of the Lake Worth Beach Municipal Code and all other 
applicable standards including but not limited to the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT), Manual on 
Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD), and City of Lake Worth Public Works Construction Standards and Policy 
and Procedure Manual 

2. Prior to performing work in the right of way, the applicant shall apply for and receive issuance of a “Right of 
Way/Utility Permit” application  

3. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the following shall be completed: 
i. the applicant shall contact the Lake Worth Drainage (LWDD) District’s Engineering Department and obtain any 

required permit(s), if necessary, and furnish to the City.   
ii. the applicant shall contact the South Florida Water Management District’s (SFWMD) Engineering Department 

and obtain any required permit(s), if necessary, 
iii. the applicant shall submit an Erosion Control plan and indicate the BMP’s and NPDES compliance practices. 

4. Prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy, the following shall be completed: 
i. all conditions of approval shall have been satisfied under jurisdiction of the Department of Public Works, 

ii. the applicant shall construct new Type F curb/Valley gutter and a new 5-foot wide sidewalk along the east 
side of North E Street from the south property line to the north property line in compliance with the Public 
Works Department’s specifications and Policy and Procedure Manual, 

iii. the applicant shall construct a 1” mill and overlay for the entire lane on the east side of North E Street from 
Lake Ave to Lucerne Ave; current proposed design has a partial lane mill and overlay,  

iv. the Applicant shall ensure the entire surrounding off-site infrastructure inclusive of the roadway, sidewalk, 
curbing, stormwater system piping and structures, valve boxes, manholes, landscaping, striping, signage, and 
other improvements are in the same condition as prior to construction, 

v. the applicant shall fine grade and sod all disturbed areas with bahia sod, 
vi. the applicant shall broom sweep all areas of the affected right of way and remove of all silt and debris collected 

as a result of construction activity, 
vii. the applicant shall restore the right of way to a like or better condition.  Any damages to pavement, curbing, 

striping, sidewalks or other areas shall be restored in kind. 

 

Utilities Water & Sewer: 

1. Provide the Utilities Department unimpeded access to utilities within the easement.   
2. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the following shall be completed: 

a. adjust and expand the east/west utility easement such that there is an easement that exists 4 feet north of 
the existing watermain (and encompasses the electric) and continues to 5 feet south of the existing gravity 
sewer. 
the MEP shall verify the 2-inch service size for 24 residential units, and 1-inch service size for 16 residential 

units, is adequate to meet the demand. 



 
  

  

 

 

 

 

DATE:   October 1, 2020   
 
TO:   Members of the Planning and Zoning Board 
 
FROM:   Andrew Meyer, Senior Community Planner 
 
THRU:  William Waters, AIA, NCARB, LEED, AP BD+C, ID, SEED, Director for Community Sustainability  
 
MEETING:  October 7, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: PZB Project Number 20-01000001: Consideration of a mixed-use urban planned development, major 
site plan with sustainable bonus, and conditional use permit to construct a two-phase multi-family development with 
live-work units, generally known as “Village Flats”, and located at 1216, 1220, 1230, & 1310 Lake Avenue, and 1207, 
1209, 1211, 1213, 1215, & 1401 Lucerne Avenue pursuant to the City of Lake Worth Beach Land Development 
Regulations (LDR’s). The subject properties are located in the Mixed-Use – East (MU-E) zoning district. PCN #s 38-43-44-
21-15-505-0120; 38-43-44-21-15-505-0130; 38-43-44-21-15-505-0160; 38-43-44-21-15-504-0130; 38-43-44-21-15-503-
0050; 38-43-44-21-15-505-0010; 38-43-44-21-15-505-0020; 38-43-44-21-15-505-0030; 38-43-44-21-15-505-0040; 38-43-
44-21-15-505-0050. 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:  
The Applicant, Corey O’Gorman and Jeff Costello of PLACE Planning & Design on behalf of Timothy Carey of InHabit 

Property Group, is requesting approval of Village Flats, a project consisting of the following: 

 

1.) Mixed Use Urban Planned Development to construct a two-phased live/work and multifamily residential 

development. (page 8) 

2.) Major Site Plan for the development of new live/work and multifamily residential buildings in excess of 7,500 

square feet.   (page 10) 

3.) Sustainable Bonus Program Incentive to meet the requirements of a Mixed Use Urban Planned Development 

and gain an increase in overall density to 37.5 units per acre, and an increase in height to four stories and 48.67 

ft. (page 14) 

4.) Conditional Use Permit to establish a mixed-use master plan greater than 7,500 square feet inclusive of 

townhomes and live/work units. (page 15) 

 

Village Flats is proposed as a response for a Request for Proposal (RFP) issued by the Lake Worth Beach CRA, and is 

currently sponsored by the CRA.  Village Flats consists of two phases; Phase 1 will be located across the properties 

located at 1216, 1220, & 1230 Lake Avenue, and 1207, 1209, 1211, 1213, & 1215 Lucerne Avenue, while Phase 2 will be 

located across the properties located at 1310 Lake Avenue and 1401 Lucerne Avenue.  Phases 1 and 2 together is 

classified as a large lot of approximately 47,950 square feet, or 1.1 acres. 

 

Phase 1 is located between Lake and Lucerne Avenues, on the west side of North E Street, and is currently a collection of 

vacant lots. Phase 1 consists of two buildings – a four-story, 24-unit (of which five are live-work) multi-family residential 

building (Building 1) and a three-story, six-unit multi-family building (Building 2).  Building 1 is located along the entire 

north side of Phase 1, facing Lucerne Avenue.  Building 2 is located to the south west of Building 1, facing North E Street.  

 

DEPARTMENT FOR COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY 
Planning Zoning Historic Preservation Division 

1900 2ND Avenue North 
Lake Worth Beach, FL 33461 

561-586-1687 



PZB No. 20-01000001 

P a g e  | 2 
 

Phase 2 is located at 1310 Lake Avenue and 1401 Lucerne Avenue; both sites are currently vacant lots. 1310 Lake 

Avenue is proposed to contain a three-story, six-unit multifamily residential building (Building 3), and 1401 Lucerne 

Avenue is proposed to contain five, two-story live-work townhouses (Building 4).  The design of Phase 2 has not yet been 

finalized.  The recommendation of approval has been conditioned to require staff review and approval of a site plan 

amendment prior to the issuance of a building permit. 

 

Based on the site plan package, the following unit types will be proposed:  

• Phase 1: 

o Building 1: 

▪ Unit 1 (5 units) – live/work, one bed, one bath, totaling at 715-723 square feet per unit 

▪ Unit 2 (7 units) – two bed, two bath, totaling at 982-1041 square feet per unit  

▪ Unit 3 (12 units) – one bed, one bath, totaling at 686 square feet per unit 

o Building 2: 

▪ Unit 4 (6 units) – one bed, one baths, totaling at 710 square feet per unit 

• Phase 2: 

o Building 3: 

▪ 6 Units – one bed, one baths, totaling 700 square feet per unit 

o Building 4: 

▪ 5 Units – live/work, three bed, one or two baths, totaling 1,550 square feet per unit 

 

All units in Buildings 1 and 2 above the first floor are accompanied with a +/- 55 square foot balcony. The Applicant 

states that the development will include additional features such as a pocket park, which includes a trellis, dog walk, 

benches, and a landscaped seating area in the southeast corner of Phase 1.  

 

Staff Recommendation:  

Staff has reviewed the documentation and materials provided, applying the applicable guidelines and standards found in 

the City of Lake Worth Zoning Code, Comprehensive Plan, and Strategic Plan. The proposed development meets the 

criteria of the Comprehensive Plan and LDRs. Staff recommends that the Board recommend approval of the Mixed Use 

Urban Planned Development, Major Site Plan, Conditional Use Permit, and Sustainable Bonus Program Incentive as 

conditioned on pages 19-20 to the City Commission.  

 
PROPERTY DESCRIPTION:  
 

Applicant 
Corey O’Gorman and Jeff Costello of PLACE Planning & Design on behalf 
of Timothy Carey of InHabit Property Group 

Owner Lake Worth Beach Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA) 

General Location 
Multiple sites located between Lake & Lucerne Avenues, between North 
C & North F Streets.  

Existing PCN Numbers 

38-43-44-21-15-505-0120; 38-43-44-21-15-505-0130; 38-43-44-21-15-
505-0160; 38-43-44-21-15-504-0130; 38-43-44-21-15-503-0050; 38-43-
44-21-15-505-0010; 38-43-44-21-15-505-0020; 38-43-44-21-15-505-
0030; 38-43-44-21-15-505-0040; 38-43-44-21-15-505-0050 

Existing Land Use Vacant Lots 

Zoning Mixed-Use East (MU-E) 

Future Land Use Designation Mixed-Use East (MU-E) 

 



PZB No. 20-01000001 

P a g e  | 3 
 

ZONING MAP:  

 

BACKGROUND: 
 

The project site is comprised of 10 vacant parcels generally located between Lake and Lucerne Avenue, between North C 

and North F Street.  The collection of lots were purchased and assembled by the Lake Worth Beach Community 

Redevelopment Agency over several years.  Collectively, they were offered through a competitive Request for Proposal 

process to private developers for redevelopment. 

Below is a timeline summary of the properties’ histories based on Palm Beach Property Appraiser’s records and City 

records: 

• 1216 Lake Avenue  

o Existing 3,500 square foot (35’ x 100’) lot  

o 1939 – A single-family residence was constructed on the property  

o July 30, 2018 – The single-family residence was demolished. The site is currently vacant.  

o September 24, 2020 – There are no active business licenses at this site 

o September 24, 2020 – There are no active code cases at this site 

• 1220 Lake Avenue  

o Existing 3,500 square foot (35’ x 100’) lot  

o 1939 – A single-family residence was constructed on the property  

o November 21, 2006 – The single-family residence was demolished.  



PZB No. 20-01000001 

P a g e  | 4 
 

o October 18, 2012 – A building permit was issued to construct a new single-family residence. 

o November 2012- September 2020 – All existing buildings were demolished. The site is currently vacant.  

o September 24, 2020 – There are no active business licenses at this site 

o September 24, 2020 – There are no active code cases at this site 

• 1230 Lake Avenue 

o Existing 3,500 square foot (35’ x 100’) lot  

o 1939 – A single-family residence was constructed on the property  

o July 30, 2018 – The single-family residence was demolished. The site is currently vacant.  

o September 24, 2020 – There are no active business licenses at this site 

o September 24, 2020 – There are no active code cases at this site 

• 1310 Lake Avenue 

o Existing 7,000 square foot (70’ x 100’) lot  

o 1952 – A multi-family residence was constructed on the property  

o November 4, 2013 – The multi-family residence was demolished. The site is currently vacant.  

o September 24, 2020 – There are no active business licenses at this site 

o September 24, 2020 – There are no active code cases at this site 

• 1207 Lucerne Avenue 

o Existing 3,500 square foot (35’ x 100’) lot  

o 1956 – A single-family residence was constructed on the property  

o July 30, 2018 – The single-family residence was demolished. The site is currently vacant.  

o September 24, 2020 – There are no active business licenses at this site 

o September 24, 2020 – There are no active code cases at this site 

• 1209 Lucerne Avenue 

o Existing 3,500 square foot (35’ x 100’) lot  

o 1956 – A multi-family residence was constructed on the property  

o August 27, 2012 – The multi-family residence was demolished. The site is currently vacant.  

o September 24, 2020 – There are no active business licenses at this site 

o September 24, 2020 – There are no active code cases at this site 

• 1211 Lucerne Avenue 

o Existing 3,500 square foot (35’ x 100’) lot  

o 1956 – A multi-family residence was constructed on the property  

o July 30, 2018 – The multi-family residence was demolished. The site is currently vacant.  

o September 24, 2020 – There are no active business licenses at this site 

o September 24, 2020 – There are no active code cases at this site 

• 1213 Lucerne Avenue 

o Existing 3,500 square foot (35’ x 100’) lot  

o 1950 – A single-family residence was constructed on the property  

o July 30, 2018 – The single-family residence was demolished. The site is currently vacant.  

o September 24, 2020 – There are no active business licenses at this site 

o September 24, 2020 – There are no active code cases at this site 

• 1215 Lucerne Avenue 

o Existing 3,500 square foot (35’ x 100’) lot  

o 1956 – A multi-family residence was constructed on the property  

o July 27, 2012 – The multi-family residence was demolished. The site is currently vacant.  

o September 24, 2020 – There are no active business licenses at this site 

o September 24, 2020 – There are no active code cases at this site 

• 1401 Lucerne Avenue 



PZB No. 20-01000001 

P a g e  | 5 
 

o Existing 14,000 square foot (140’ x 100’) lot  

o 1956 – A mixed use, multi-family building was constructed on the property  

o 2004 – Plato Loco held a business license at the location for a take-out restaurant 

o 2000 – 2015 – Lois Vanderwoude Trust held a business license at the location to rent out multi-family 

units  

o July 2, 2014 – The mixed use, multi-family building was demolished. The site is currently vacant.  

o September 24, 2020 – There are no active business licenses at this site 

o September 24, 2020 – There are no active code cases at this site 

 

ANALYSIS:  

 
Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan 
Both Phase 1 and Phase 2 have a Future Land Use (FLU) designation of Mixed-Use East (MU-E). Per Policy 1.1.1.5, the 
MU-E FLU is established to provide for a mixture of residential, office, service and commercial retail uses within specific 
areas east of I-95, near or adjacent to the central commercial core and major thoroughfares of the City.  The proposed 
development provides multi-family and live-work units within one of the central commercial cores of the city.  
Therefore, it is consistent with the intent of the MU-E FLU.  Furthermore, Objective 1.2.2 states that the City shall 
facilitate a compact, sustainable urban development pattern that provides opportunities to more efficiently use and 
develop infrastructure, land and other resources and services, and to reduce dependence on the automobile. This can 
be accomplished by concentrating more intensive growth within the City’s mixed-use development areas. The proposed 
development is a mixed use urban planned development that utilizes the City’s Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program, 
which grants the development additional height, density, and floor area ratio over what is permitted by right.  Thus, this 
project is consistent with Objective 1.2.2.  
 
The City’s Strategic Plan focuses on fostering safer neighborhoods, encouraging community pride, building a vibrant and 
diverse economy, planning for the future, and enhancing the natural, historic, and cultural environment of the City. 
Pillars II.A, II.B, and II.E of the Strategic Plan state that the City shall diversify housing options, continue crime reduction 
and prevention in achieving a safe, livable and friendly community, and deliver sustainable indoor-outdoor leisure 
opportunities. The Applicant also is providing a pocket park which includes a trellis, dog walk, benches, and a landscaped 
seating area in the southeast corner of Phase 1.  In addition, Pillars I.A and I.B of the City’s Strategic Plan represent a 
commitment to economic development, of which this project brings.  Therefore, the project inclusive of Phases 1 and 2 
is consistent with Pillars I.A, I.B, II.A, II.B, and II.E of the City’s Strategic Plan. Pillars II.C, II.D, and II.F are not applicable to 
this project. 
 
Based on the analysis above, the proposed development is consistent with the goals, objectives, and polices of the City 
of Lake Worth Beach’s Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan. 
 
Consistency with the City’s Land Development Regulations 
Per Section 23.3-25, planned developments are intended to encourage innovative land planning and development 
techniques through incentives to create more desirable and attractive development within the City. The Department of 
Community Sustainability is tasked in the Code to review planned development applications in accordance with the 
City’s LDRs, to assess compliance with the findings for granting planned developments (analyzed in the following 
sections) and to provide a recommendation for whether the application should be approved, approved with conditions, 
or denied. 
 
Mixed-Use East (MU-E): Per LDR Section 23.3-13(a), the MU-E zoning district is intended to promote the establishment 
and expansion of a broad range of office, commercial, hotel/motel and medium-density multiple-family residential 
development as well as to facilitate redevelopment within these areas that achieves a mix of residential and professional 
office land uses.  The MU-E district is also intended to create a place of common vision and physical predictability for all 



PZB No. 20-01000001 

P a g e  | 6 
 

new construction, renovations, and redevelopment. The proposed mixed use urban planned development provides a 
mixture of residential and live/work uses. As such, the proposal is consistent with the intent of the MU-E district.  
 
The table below shows the proposed site features and its compliance with the Code, factoring in the Sustainable Bonus 
incentives, Planned Development incentives, and the Comprehensive Plan maximums:  
 

Development Standard 
Base Zoning 

District 

Mixed Use Urban 
Planned 

Development  
with Sustainable Bonus 

Incentive Program (SBIP)   

Phase 1 
Provided 

Phase 2 
Provided 

(approximate) 

Lot Size (min) 
In square feet (sf) 

6,500 sf 0.5 acres 47,950 sf (1.1 acres) 

Lot Width (min) 25’ 100’ 175’ 70’ + 140’ 

Setbacks 

Front (min) 10’  10’ 10’ 10’ & 20’ 

Rear (min) 10’ 10’ 10’ 41’ & 43’ 

Street Side 
(min) 

10’ 10’ 10’ N/A 

Interior 
Side (min) 

0’ 0’ 0’ 11.5’ & 5’/10’ 

Impermeable Surface 
Coverage (maximum) 

75% 75% 72.4% 62.4% 

Structure Coverage 
(max) 

65% 65% 29.7% 27.9% 

Living Area 
(minimum) 

One 
bedroom 

units 
600 sf 600 sf 

Unit 1 (5): 715-723 
sf  

Unit 3 (12): 686 sf 
Unit 4 (6): 710 sf 

Building 3 Unit (6): 
700 sf 

Two 
bedroom 

units 
750 sf 750 sf 

Unit 2 (7): 982-1041 
sf 

None 

Three 
bedroom 

units 
900 sf 900 sf None 

Building 4 Unit (5): 
1,550 sf 

Parking 
Phase 1: 47 / Phase 2: 24 / Office: 3 

Total: 56 (74 – 25% mixed-use credit) 

49 (36 spaces on-

site, 13 on street) 
29 

Density (max) 
30 du/acre (33 

units) 
37.5 du/acre (41.25 

units) 
37.27 du/acre (41 units) 

Building Height (max) 30 feet (2 stories) 
56.25 feet (5 

stories) 
Building 1: 48.67’ 
Building 2: 35.5’ 

Buildings 3 & 4: 
Not to exceed 

LDRs 

Floor Area Ratio (FAR) 
(max) 

1.5 1.94 .82 .64 

 
Density: The proposed development complies with the City’s LDRs and Comprehensive Plan. The project proposes a 
total of 41 units between Phases 1 & 2.  As shown in the table above, the base density in the MU-E zoning district is 
currently a maximum of 30 dwelling units per acre. Per Policy 1.2.3.4 of the City’s Comprehensive Plan, a mixed use 
urban planned development may obtain bonus density, intensity (FAR), and height over the base line as outlined in 
Table 1 of the Comprehensive Plan. Therefore, the maximum allowed density for this project is 37.5 dwelling units per 
acre which equates to 41.25 units. 



PZB No. 20-01000001 

P a g e  | 7 
 

 
Impermeable Surface Coverage: Because this project is a planned development, the maximum impermeable surface 
requirement for a small lot is applicable in lieu of the large lot maximum. Therefore, the maximum impermeable surface 
is 75%.  Phase 1 proposes a total structure coverage of 72.4%, and Phase 2 is estimated to have a lot coverage of 
approximately 62%, with both Phases 1 and 2 having a combined lot coverage of approximately 68.3%.  Therefore, the 
project is compliant with the maximum impermeable surface criterion. 
 
Structure Coverage: Phase 1 proposes a total structure coverage of 29.7%, and Phase 2 proposes a total structure 
coverage of approximately 27.9%, with Both Phases 1 & 2 having a combined total structure coverage of 28.9%.  The 
maximum permitted coverage for all structures is 55%; as such, the project is compliant with the maximum structure 
coverage criterion.  
 
Setbacks: The project as proposed does not meet the minimum required setbacks for all stories above the second story, 
and does not meet the minimum required setbacks for balconies of the base zoning district, MU-E. As part of the mixed-
use planned development application, the Applicant is seeking to modify the required minimum setbacks for all stories 
above the second story and the minimum required setbacks for balconies, and has provided a justification for the 
waivers in Attachment C.  Planned developments may establish alternate site land development requirements as per 
Section 23.3-25(a)(1). 
 
Per LDR Section 23.3-13(d)(3)(D)&(E), the minimum setback for all stories above the second story is between 8 to 12 
feet. The Applicant states that due to site constraints of the lots, the building cannot be setback the additional distance 
on the 2nd and 3rd floors without impacting the number and size of the dwelling units and the project in general.  
 
In addition, per LDR Sections 23.3-13(d)(3)(A)(1), 23.3-13(d)(3)(B), and 23.3-13(d)(3)(c)(2), the minimum setback from all 
property lines adjacent to streets is 10’.  The land development regulations do not make provisions for balconies 
extending into the setback, therefore balconies are typically held to the 10’ setback regulation.  As such, the applicant is 
also requesting that the City Commission waive Sections 23.3-13(d)(3)(A)(1), 23.3-13(d)(3)(B), and 23.3-13(d)(3)(c)(2) to 
permit balconies to extend into the front setback by 3 feet.  The applicant states that balconies are typically permitted to 
encroach into required setbacks, and that the inclusion of balconies on the façade creates visual interest provides 
coverage and weather protection for the units below, and promotes neighborhood safety by providing the ability to 
have additional eyes on the street. 
 
In summary, the Applicant is requesting the following setback waivers: 
 
Phase 1:  

• Building 1 
o to allow the third and fourth stories to be setback 10’ from the north property line, adjacent to Lucerne 

Avenue, the west property line, adjacent to North E Street, and the east property line, adjacent to 1205 
Lucerne Avenue. 

o to allow the balconies to extend 3’ into the setback located along the north property line, adjacent to 
Lucerne Avenue. 

• Building 2 
o to allow the third story to be setback 10’ from the west property line, adjacent to North E Street, and 

south property line, adjacent to Lake Avenue. 
o to allow the balconies to extend 3’ into the setback located along the west property line, adjacent to 

North E Street 
 
Phase 2: 

• Building 3 



PZB No. 20-01000001 

P a g e  | 8 
 

o to allow the third story to be setback no less than 10 feet from the south property line, adjacent to Lake 
Avenue. 

 
Parking: The proposed development exceeds the minimum parking requirements in the City’s LDRs.  In total, after 
receiving a mixed-use credit of 25% of 74 parking spaces, 56 parking spaces are required for a project of this size, and 
the applicant is proposing 78 parking spaces.  In addition, each phase by itself meets the minimum parking requirements 
in the City’s LDRs.  Forty-eight (48) parking spaces are required of Phase 1, while Phase 1 contains a total of 49 spaces, 
met through a combination of 36 on-site spaces, 12 on-street spaces, and 4 bicycle spaces (which count as 1 vehicular 
space).  Twenty-six (26) spaces are required by Phase 2, and the applicant is proposing 29 spaces.   
 
Section 23.4-10(g) requires mixed-use projects exceeding 25 parking spaces to designate 4% of the total minimum 
required off-street parking spaces as electric vehicle charging spaces.  As such, the project as proposed will be required 
to provide a total of 3 electric vehicle charging spaces, each with operable Level 2 charging equipment.  A condition of 
approval has been added to reflect this requirement. 
 
Landscaping: Overall, the development proposal complies with the City’s landscape regulations. The project proposes 

Dahoon Holly and Cabbage Palmetto along Lake and Lucerne Avenues, and North E Street.  In addition, the project 

proposes Southern Live Oak, Orange Geiger Tree, Silver Buttonwood, and Wax Myrtle within the proposed pocket park. 

 
Signage: This application does not include a master sign program.  The applicant has stated that any proposed signage 
during the building permitting phase will comply with LDR Section 23.5-1.  The submittal of a signage plan that provides 
consistent signage theme, sizing and materials prior to the issuance of a building permit for signage is a staff 
recommended condition of approval. 
 
Walls/Fences: The site plan proposes a 3.5’ high wood fence along Lucerne Avenue to provide separation of space, yet 
still allow permeability and visibility between the live/work units and the street.  This fence, as well as the remainder of 
the walls and fences on the site are in accordance with LDR Section 23.4-4. 
 
Lighting and Security: The application’s photometric plan complies with the City’s exterior lighting code, Section 23.4-3, 
Exterior Lighting.  In attempt to reduce the crime potential at this location, the applicant is proposing to install a security 
gate that will provide limited access to the buildings.  Additionally, the application states that the project will be 
consistent with Crime Prevention Through Environmental Design Principles (CPTED) to reinforce the privacy and safety 
of the residents. 
 
Major Thoroughfare Design Guidelines: The project has been reviewed and found to be compliant with the City’s Major 
Thoroughfare Design Guidelines. The aforementioned presence of the 3.5 foot high fence, along with the presence of 
trees, large windows, and balconies help create a sense of place and create a space of high visibility.  The orientation of 
the buildings toward the major thoroughfares, and the siting of parking in the interior of the site, isolates the vehicular 
circulation from pedestrian circulation, enhancing walkability and safety of the major thoroughfares.  
 
Townhomes: Per Section 23.4-13(3)(c)(11), townhomes are required be reviewed against specific use criteria (Page 
18).  One specific use criterion requires townhome structures to be no longer than 120’ in length.  Currently, the 
application proposes a townhome structure as part of Phase 2, Building 4 which is 125’ in length, or 5’ longer than what 
the criteria allows.  Staff is recommending support of a waiver to allow for the proposed configuration.  With the 
proposed waiver, the townhomes are consistent with the specific use criteria for townhomes.  

 
Mixed Use Urban Planned Development:  
The intent of this section is to encourage, through incentives, the use of innovative land planning and development 
techniques to create more desirable and attractive development in the City. Incentives include but are not limited to:  
 



PZB No. 20-01000001 

P a g e  | 9 
 

1. Relaxing or waiving of height, setback, lot dimensions, and lot area requirements;  
2. Allowing an increase in density or a decrease in minimum living area per dwelling unit; and 
3. Permitting uses or a mixture of uses not normally permitted in the underlying zoning district. 

 
The proposed project is a mixed use urban planned development, comprised of a majority of residential units, with 
ground floor units that provide for a live/work dwelling that help activate the adjacent thoroughfares and contribute to 
a range of diverse housing options. The sections of the Code the Applicant is requesting a waiver from as part of the 
mixed use urban planned development are outlined under the “Consistency with the City’s LDR Requirements” analysis 
section above. The criteria below are requirements of all mixed use urban planned developments.  
 
Section 23.3-25(e) – Mixed Use Urban Planned Development District 
 
1. Location. Urban planned developments may be located in any mixed-use district, such as Mixed Use — East, Mixed 
Use — West, Mixed Use — Dixie Highway, Mixed Use — Federal Highway, Transit Oriented Development — East, and 
Downtown with the exception of the neighborhood commercial district. Industrial planned developments are not 
allowed as a mixed use urban planned development.  
 
Staff Analysis: The subject site is located in the Mixed Use – East zoning district. Meets Criterion. 
 
2. Minimum area required. The minimum area required for an urban planned development district shall be one-half (.5) 
acres. 
 
Staff Analysis: Phases 1 & 2 combined are 47,950 square feet in total, or approximately or 1.1 acres, which is over the 
required minimum area.  Meets Criterion. 
 
3. Permitted uses within a mixed use urban development are shown in Article 3 of these LDRs. An urban planned 
development may be residential alone or may be any mixture of residential, retail, commercial, office, personal services, 
institutional, and cultural and artisanal arts or other uses specifically listed with the use tables of section 23.3-6 for the 
districts where the planned development is to be located. 
 
Staff Analysis: Phases 1 & 2 will consist of a total of 41 units, of which 10 are live/work.  Phase 1 will consist two 
buildings containing 30 units total, with five units designated as live/work, while Phase 2 will consist of two buildings 
containing 11 units, with five units also designated as live/work.  This combination of strictly residential and live/work 
units is consistent with this criterion.  Meets Criterion. 
 
4. Required setbacks. Required setbacks shall be as provided in these LDRs for the zoning district in which the planned 
development is to be located. 
 
Staff Analysis: The project as proposed does not meet the minimum required setbacks for all stories above the second 
story, and does not meet the minimum required setbacks for balconies of the base zoning district, MU-E. As part of the 
mixed-use planned development application, the Applicant is seeking to modify these setback regulations and has 
provided justification for the waiver in Attachment C. 
 
5. Parking and loading space requirements. Parking and loading spaces shall be provided pursuant to Article 4 of these 
LDRs. 
 
Staff Analysis: Parking is being provided within Phases 1 & 2 in accordance with Section 23.4-10 of these land 
development regulations, with the exception of 23.4-10(g) outlined under the “Consistency with the City’s LDR 
Requirements” analysis section above.  Meets Criterion. 
 

https://library.municode.com/fl/lake_worth_beach/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH23LADERE_ART4DEST


PZB No. 20-01000001 

P a g e  | 10 
 

6. Landscaping/buffering. Landscaping and buffering shall be provided as required by section 23.6-1. 
 
Staff Analysis: The required landscaping and buffering is being provided along all sides of the project, and conforms to 
Section 23.6-1.  Meets Criterion. 
 
7. Illumination. Any source of illumination located within a commercial or industrial planned development district shall 
not exceed one (1) foot candle at or beyond the boundaries of such development. 
 
Staff Analysis: The applicant has provided a photometric plan for Phase 1 only.  This project is conditioned that no 
lighting measurement shall exceed 1 foot candle at or beyond the boundaries of such development for both Phases 1 & 
2, and that shielded and architecturally appropriate fixtures be submitted to staff prior to the issuance of a building 
permit.   
 
8. Outdoor storage. All outdoor storage facilities are prohibited in any mixed use urban planned development district. 
 
Staff Analysis: No outdoor storage facilities are proposed as part of this development application.  Meets Criterion. 
 
9. Sustainability. All mixed use urban planned development districts shall include provisions for sustainability features 
such as those listed in section 23.2-33, City of Lake Worth Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program. 
 
Staff Analysis: The applicant has provided a schedule of sustainability features to be counted toward its Sustainable 
Bonus Incentive Program.  The schedule has been reviewed against the Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program and meets 
the criteria.  Staff analysis of the Sustainable Bonus application can be found on page 14.  Meets Criterion. 
 
Master Development Plan (Major Site Plan): 
A master site plan is required in conjunction with a mixed use urban planned development. The review criteria below 
are intended to promote safety and minimize negative impacts of development on its neighbors by establishing 
qualitative requirements for the arrangements of buildings, structures, parking areas, landscaping and other site 
improvements.  
 
Section 23.2-31(c): Qualitative Development Standards 
 
1. Harmonious and efficient organization. All elements of the site plan shall be harmoniously and efficiently organized in 
relation to topography, the size and type of plot, the character of adjoining property and the type and size of buildings. 
The site shall be developed so as to not impede the normal and orderly development or improvement of surrounding 
property for uses permitted in these LDRs. 
 
Staff Analysis: The application states that the site plan will be harmonious and complementary to the surrounding area 
and has been designed to promote safety and designed to promote walkability and enhance the major thoroughfares.  
The live/work units have been located on the ground floor of the residential buildings, and the buildings are pushed 
toward the street in accordance with the Major Thoroughfare Design Guidelines.  The most intense use of the parking is 
located in the center of the site and away from the pedestrian circulation of Lake and Lucerne Avenues.  Meets 
Criterion. 
 
2. Preservation of natural conditions. The natural (refer to landscape code, Article 6 of these LDRs) landscape shall be 
preserved in its natural state, insofar as practical, by minimizing tree and soil removal and by such other site planning 
approaches as are appropriate. Terrain and vegetation shall not be disturbed in a manner likely to significantly increase 
either wind or water erosion within or adjacent to a development site. Natural detention areas and other means of 
natural vegetative filtration of stormwater runoff shall be used to minimize ground and surface water pollution, 
particularly adjacent to major waterbodies as specified in Part II, Chapter 12, Health and Sanitation, Article VIII, Fertilizer 

https://library.municode.com/fl/lake_worth_beach/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH23LADERE_ART6ENRE_S23.6-1LARE
https://library.municode.com/fl/lake_worth_beach/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH23LADERE_ART6ENRE
https://library.municode.com/fl/lake_worth_beach/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH12HESA


PZB No. 20-01000001 

P a g e  | 11 
 

Friendly Use Regulations. Fertilizer/pesticide conditions may be attached to development adjacent to waterbodies. 
Marinas shall be permitted only in water with a mean low tide depth of four (4) feet or more. 
 
Staff Analysis: This section is not applicable.  The lots as they exist today are completely vacant, with only sodded 
ground cover in Phase 1, and a few trees in Phase 2.  The applicant states that the proposed landscaping will be an 
environmental and aesthetic improvement to the site.  Staff has reviewed the landscape plan and finds the landscaping 
proposed meets the landscape code and exceeds the landscaping and natural conditions currently present on the site.  
Criterion Not Applicable.  
 
3. Screening and buffering. Fences, walls or vegetative screening shall be provided where needed and practical to 
protect residents and users from undesirable views, lighting, noise, odors or other adverse off-site effects, and to 
protect residents and users of off-site development from on-site adverse effects. This section may be interpreted to 
require screening and buffering in addition to that specifically required by other sections of these LDRs, but not less. 
 
Staff Analysis:  The application states that on-site parking has been placed in the center of the site, screening it from 
Lake Avenue, Lucerne Avenue, and E Street.  The applicant also proposes a 3.5’ high decorative wood fence along the 
perimeter of the site, providing semi-private spaces for residents while also maintaining permeability for visitors to the 
live/work spaces.  Staff finds that the screening for Phase 1 is sufficient, and any screening as part of Phase 2 will meet 
the requirements of the city’s LDRs.  Meets Criterion  
 
4. Enhancement of residential privacy. The site plan shall provide reasonable, visual and acoustical privacy for all 
dwelling units located therein and adjacent thereto. Fences, walks, barriers and vegetation shall be arranged for the 
protection and enhancement of property and to enhance the privacy of the occupants. 
 
Staff Analysis: The application states that the parking will be secured with an automatic gate.  Staff finds that the 3.5’ 
high fence separating the ground floor residences from the right-of-way enhances residential privacy while maintaining 
visibility of live/work units from the space as well as conforming to the Major Thoroughfare Design Guidelines. Meets 
Criterion. 
 
5. Emergency access. Structures and other site features shall be so arranged as to permit emergency vehicle access by 
some practical means to all sides of all buildings. 
 
Staff Analysis: The application states that emergency vehicles will access the development by using the existing 
roadways that are adjacent to the site as well as the interior parking lot.  Both buildings on the Phase 1 site are oriented 
toward the street and have multiple points of access directly from the right of way.  Preliminary plans for Phase 2 show 
similar access to the site for emergency vehicles.  Meets Criterion. 
 
6. Access to public ways. All buildings, dwelling units and other facilities shall have safe and convenient access to a public 
street, walkway or other area dedicated to common use; curb cuts close to railroad crossings shall be avoided. 
 
Staff Analysis: As stated above, both buildings are oriented toward the street and have direct access to public streets 
and walkways.  The live/work units front Lucerne Avenue and each have their own access to the right-of-way.  The 
vehicular access to the site is in the rear of the site and is shielded from the major thoroughfares by the buildings.  In 
addition, the proposed pocket park has direct access to Lake Avenue.  Phase 2 will also have access to public ways 
through the major thoroughfares as well as alleys.  Meets Criterion. 
 
7. Pedestrian circulation. There shall be provided a pedestrian circulation system which is insulated as completely as 
reasonably possible from the vehicular circulation system. 
 



PZB No. 20-01000001 

P a g e  | 12 
 

Staff Analysis: The application states that the pedestrian circulation system is appropriate for this urban infill site with 
sidewalks along the streets.  Staff finds that the location of the vehicular parking area at the center of the site allows for 
the separation from the pedestrian circulation internally on the site and shields the vehicular portion from the 
pedestrian-oriented major thoroughfares.  Phase 2 will be required to be designed to allow for protected pedestrian 
circulation to and from the sites from the major thoroughfares.  Meets Criterion. 
 
8. Design of ingress and egress drives. The location, size and numbers of ingress and egress drives to the site will be 
arranged to minimize the negative impacts on public and private ways and on adjacent private property. Merging and 
turnout lanes traffic dividers shall be provided where they would significantly improve safety for vehicles and 
pedestrians. 
 
Staff Analysis: Phase 1 will have one ingress and egress off of North E Street.  The location of this ingress/egress point 
minimizes conflict with pedestrian circulation along Lake and Lucerne Avenues, and is located furthest away from 
adjacent properties.  Phase 2 currently proposes ingress and egress off of the alleyways, which also minimizes conflict 
with pedestrian circulation along Lake and Lucerne Avenues.  Meets Criterion. 
 
9. Coordination of on-site circulation with off-site circulation. The arrangement of public or common ways for vehicular 
and pedestrian circulation shall be coordinated with the pattern of existing or planned streets and pedestrian or bicycle 
pathways in the area. Minor streets shall not be connected to major streets in such a way as to facilitate improper 
utilization. 
 
Staff Analysis: The application states that vehicular and pedestrian circulation will be coordinated with the existing 
pattern.  Aside from the interior parking lot, no on-site circulation will exist, and therefore this criterion does not apply.  
Meets Criterion.  
 
10. Design of on-site public right-of-way. On-site public street and rights-of-way shall be designed for maximum 
efficiency. They shall occupy no more land than is required to provide access, nor shall they unnecessarily fragment 
development into small blocks. Large developments containing extensive public rights-of-way shall have said rights-of-
way arranged in a hierarchy with local streets providing direct access to parcels and other streets providing no or limited 
direct access to parcels. 
 
Staff Analysis:  No on-site right-of-way is being proposed, therefore this criterion does not apply.  Meets Criterion.  
 
11. Off-street parking, loading and vehicular circulation areas. Off-street parking, loading and vehicular circulation areas 
shall be located, designed and screened to minimize the impact of noise, glare and odor on adjacent property. 
 
Staff Analysis: As stated earlier in this staff report, the parking area for Phase 1 is located at the interior of the site.  The 
location of parking in this area results in the surrounding buildings screening the parking area from rights of way and a 
proposed fence will minimize impacts on adjacent properties.  Phase 2 appears to propose parking in the rear of the 
sites, also screening the parking through the use of buildings fronting the major thoroughfares.  Meets Criterion. 
 
12. Refuse and service areas. Refuse and service areas shall be located, designed and screened to minimize the impact of 
noise, glare and odor on adjacent property. 
 
Staff Analysis: The application states that the refuse will be accessed from North E Street to eliminate the need for 
garbage trucks to circulate through the parking lot.  This location is far from adjacent property lines, and is screened 
through the use of opaque fences/gates and landscaping.  Phase 2 refuse areas will be reviewed by staff for consistency 
and compliance with the city’s LDRs. Meets Criterion. 
 



PZB No. 20-01000001 

P a g e  | 13 
 

13. Protection of property values. The elements of the site plan shall be arranged so as to have minimum negative 
impact on the property values of adjoining property. 
 
Staff Analysis: The application states that the development will have a positive impact on the property values of 
adjoining properties and the surrounding area.  The project sites currently exist as vacant lots.  The project will provide 
residential and live/work units downtown which will increase the number of available customers for local businesses, 
and increase the diversity of housing options within the city.  This increase of customers can increase the desirability of 
downtown properties, which has the potential to increase property values.  Meets Criterion. 
 
14. Transitional development. Where the property being developed is located on the edge of the zoning district, the site 
plan shall be designed to provide for a harmonious transition between districts. Building exteriors shall complement 
other buildings in the vicinity in size, scale, mass, bulk, rhythm of openings and character. Consideration shall be given to 
a harmonious transition in height and design style so that the change in zoning districts is not accentuated. Additional 
consideration shall be given to complementary setbacks between the existing and proposed development. 
 
Staff Analysis: The application states that this criterion is not applicable as the site is not located in a transitional area at 
the edge of a zoning district. However, the project was designed to be complementary to and harmonious with the 
surrounding area.  The project is located within the middle of the Mixed-Use East zoning district.  As such, this criterion 
does not apply.  Criterion Not Applicable. 
 
15. Consideration of future development. In finding whether or not the above standards are met, the review authority 
shall consider likely future development as well as existing development. 
 
Staff Analysis: Phase 2 of the project, located immediately west of Phase 1, will be finalized at a later date.  The project 
has been conditioned to require Phase 2 to receive administrative site plan approval prior to the issuance of a building 
permit.  Overall, the project meets the intent of the Land Development Regulations and Comprehensive Plan.  Meets 
Criterion. 
 
Section 23.2-31(l): Community Appearance Criteria 
 
1. The plan for the proposed structure or project is in conformity with good taste, good design, and in general 
contributes to the image of the city as a place of beauty, spaciousness, harmony, taste, fitness, broad vistas and high 
quality. 
 
Staff Analysis:  The design of the project reflects modern architectural styles generally associated with good taste and 
design.  The units have balconies and large windows, and the pocket park provides an area of leisure for residents.  The 
project currently provides a saturated color scheme that is atypical for Lake Worth Beach.  The project has been 
conditioned to provide a less garish color palette more complementary to the aesthetic of Lake Worth Beach and South 
Florida.  Meets Criterion. 
 
2. The proposed structure or project is not, in its exterior design and appearance, of inferior quality such as to cause the 
nature of the local environment or evolving environment to materially depreciate in appearance and value. 
 
Staff Analysis: The project provides for a mix of materials that are neutral and generally compatible with the local 
environment.  The applicant states that the project will be Florida Green Building Certified, and that the project will 
cause an appreciation in terms of appearance and value.  Meets Criterion. 
 
3. The proposed structure or project is in harmony with the proposed developments in the general area, with code 
requirements pertaining to site plan, signage and landscaping, and the comprehensive plan for the city, and with the 
criteria set forth herein. 



PZB No. 20-01000001 

P a g e  | 14 
 

 
Staff Analysis: The project uses a modern design aesthetic which is appropriate with other projects which have been 
approved in the surrounding area.  Meets Criterion. 
 
4. The proposed structure or project is in compliance with this section and 23.2-29, as applicable. 
 
Staff Analysis: The project’s compliance with the community appearance and conditional use criteria is detailed within 
this staff report.  Meets Criterion. 
 
Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program:  
The City of Lake Worth Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program (SBIP) is intended to implement Objective 1.2.3 of the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan which states the City shall establish incentives to help support the creation of a compact, 
sustainable, community-oriented development by implementing a Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program. The Program 
offers the opportunity to attain an option for increased height and/or FAR in exchange for the incorporation of 
sustainable design features, community-based improvements and overall design excellence as part of a development 
proposal. 
 
As mentioned, the proposed development complies with the City’s LDRs and Comprehensive Plan. The base density in 
the MU-E zoning district is currently a maximum of 30 dwelling units per acre. Per Policy 1.2.3.4 of the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan, a mixed use urban planned development may obtain a 25% bonus on density, intensity (FAR), and 
height over the base line as outlined in Table 1 of the Comprehensive Plan.  Therefore, the maximum allowed density for 
this project is 37.5 dwelling units per acre which equates to 41.25 total units and the maximum allowed height is 56.25’ 
with bonus. The subject application is for 41 total units and 48.67’ in height. 
 
Based on the calculation of the additional height and density proposed as part of the SBIP with a Planned Development, 
the Applicant is asking for a total bonus height of 18.67 ft, two bonus stories, and 8 additional units. The total square 
footage of bonus area under Sustainable Bonus is 14,396 square feet (two stories in Building 1, one story in Building 2, 
and one story in Building 3), which results in a value of required improvements for the Sustainable Bonus allowance of 
$71,980 ($5 per square foot).  In addition, a Planned Development utilizing the Sustainable Bonus Program is allowed a 
25% increase in height and density.  Eight (8) units, for a total of 41 units, are proposed above the calculated base 
density of 33 units, and an additional 3.66 feet are proposed above the maximum building height (45ft) for a total height 
of 48.67 ft.  The total square footage of bonus height and density under Planned Development is 5,248, and results in a 
value of required improvements for the Planned Development allowance of $26,240 ($10 per square foot, calculated as 
an additional $5 per square foot on top of that portion of square footage already calculated under Sustainable Bonus 
above).   
 
As such, the combined total value of required improvements to meet the requirements of the Sustainable Bonus and 
Planned Development is $98,220.  Below is the Applicant’s schedule of improvements to meet and exceed the 
requirements of the Sustainable Bonus and Planned Development.  
 

Improvement Detail (type of amenity) Valuation Amount Calculation Details 

Florida Green Building Certification $49,110 50% of $98,220 

Courtyard Garden/Pocket Park 
(Building Amenity) 

$40,000 
Includes sod, large trees, pavers, plants, 
pergola, benches, and tables. 

Building 2 West Façade Mural (Public 
Art/Character and Aesthetic Excellence) 

$20,000  

Bike Racks (Bicycle Mobility Systems) $5,000  

Total Value of Improvements/Design 
Excellence Required: $98,220 

Total Value of Improvements/Design Excellence Provided: $114,110 

 

https://library.municode.com/fl/lake_worth_beach/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH23LADERE_ART2AD_DIV3PE_S23.2-29COUSPE


PZB No. 20-01000001 

P a g e  | 15 
 

Section 23.2-33(c)(2): Review/decision 
(a) Is the award calculated correctly, consistent with the square footage and height requested and the value of the 
features and improvements included in the development proposal? 
 
Staff Analysis: The development proposal is consistent with the increase in height and density requested. The Applicant 
is asking for a total bonus height of two stories or 18.67 feet, which includes the additional 15 feet requested as part of 
the SBIP and 3.67 feet granted under the Planned Development program. The total square footage of bonus area is 
14,396 square feet.  Therefore, the total value of required improvements is $98,220 ($5 per square foot for bonus height 
of 14,396 square feet, and $10 ($5 extra on top of $5 already applied) for bonus density of eight units. The Applicant will 
be providing community-based improvements and design excellence equivalent to $114,110, which exceeds the 
requirements of the Sustainable Bonus and Planned Development program. Meets Criterion. 
 
(b) Do the proposed on-site features or improvements adequately provide sustainable project enhancements beyond 

those otherwise required by these LDRs for the development proposal that are attainable and reasonable in the context 

of the proposed project?  

 
Staff Analysis: The proposed on-site features and improvements provide enhancements that exceed the base 
requirements of the LDRs. The project will have Florida Green Building certification, a courtyard garden/pocket park, 
public art, and bicycle racks.  Meets Criterion.  
 

(c) Do the proposed off-site improvements meet the priorities of the City for community sustainability?  
 
Staff Analysis: The project is not including off-site improvements toward the SBIP credit.  Meets Criterion 
 
(d) Do the proposed features, improvements or fees-in-lieu meet the intent of the SBIP? 
 
Staff Analysis: As identified by the criteria above, the proposed features and improvements incorporated into the 
development proposal are beyond the base requirements of the LDRs, providing additional building amenities and an 
increase in character and aesthetic improvement beyond what is required by the LDRs. Thus, the proposed development 
meets the intent of the SBIP. Meets Criterion. 
 
 
Conditional Use Permit: 
Conditional uses are those uses that are generally compatible with the other uses permitted in a district, but that 
require individual review of their location, design, structure, configuration, density and intensity of use, and may 
require the imposition of conditions pertinent thereto in order to ensure the appropriateness and compatibility of the 
use at a particular location and to prevent or minimize potential adverse impacts to the surrounding area.  The 
project proposal includes a conditional use request to construct a mixed-use master plan consisting of 36 multi-family 
units and five townhouse units, 10 of which are live/work units.  Conditional uses are required to be reviewed against 
the criteria in Section 23.2-29(d) and Section 23.2-29(e). The required analysis is provided below. 
 
Section 23.2-29(d): General findings relating to harmony with LDRs and protection of public interest 

The proposed project is consistent with the general findings relating to harmony with the LDRs and protection of public 
interest, as follows: 

 

1. The conditional use exactly as proposed at the location where proposed will be in harmony with the uses which, 
under these LDRs and the future land use element, are most likely to occur in the immediate area where located.  
 
Staff Analysis: The site contains a base zoning designation of MU-E and is surrounded by MU-E zoned property to the 
north, east, south, and west.  Based on the intent of the MU-E zoning district, uses most likely to occur in this district are 



PZB No. 20-01000001 

P a g e  | 16 
 

office, commercial, hotel/motel, and medium-density multiple-family residential development.  The subject proposal is 

consistent with the types of uses anticipated to occur within the MU-E district.  Therefore, the proposed mixed-use 
planned development is compatible and harmonious with the existing and anticipated surrounding uses.  Meets 
Criterion. 

 
2. The conditional use exactly as proposed at the location where proposed will be in harmony with existing uses in the 
immediate area where located. 
 
Staff Analysis: The existing uses in the surrounding area are as follows: 
 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning District Current Use 

North  
(across Lucerne Ave) 

MU-E MU-E 
Mixture of multi-family residences (Urban 

Arts Lofts), commercial, and vacant property 

South 
(adjacent and across Lake Ave) 

MU-E MU-E 
Mixture of single-family residences, multi-

family residences, and commercial, property 

East 
(adjacent and across South D St) 

MU-E MU-E 
Mixture of single-family residences, multi-

family residences, and commercial, property 

West 
(adjacent and across South E St) 

MU-E MU-E 
Mixture of single-family residences, multi-

family residences, and commercial, property 

 
Per the Palm Beach County Property Appraiser, the subject site is surrounded by a mixture of single-family residences, 
multi-family residences, commercial, and vacant property.  The mixed-use development is in harmony with the existing 
mixture of uses in the immediate area.  Meets Criterion. 
 
3. The conditional use exactly as proposed will not result in substantially less public benefit or greater harm than would 
result from use of the Property for some use permitted by right or some other conditional use permitted on the 
Property. 
 

Staff Analysis: The approval of this conditional use will provide urban infill development that is consistent with the 

intent of the MU-E zoning district and future land use category.  As such, the proposal is not anticipated to result in less 

public benefit than other permitted or conditional uses.  Meets Criterion. 

 
4. The conditional use exactly as proposed will not result in more intensive development in advance of when such 
development is approved by the future land use element of the comprehensive plan. 
 
Staff Analysis: The proposed mixed use urban planned development is utilizing the City’s SBIP and mixed-use planned 
development bonuses.  These programs are intended to promote a compact, urban development that facilitates a live, 
work, play environment.  The project is consistent with the goals, objectives, and polices of the City of Lake Worth 
Beach’s Comprehensive Plan and will not result in a more intensive development than what the Plan anticipates.  Meets 
Criterion. 

 
Section 23.2-29(e): Specific standards for all conditional uses 

1. The proposed conditional use will not generate traffic volumes or movements, which will result in a significant 
adverse impact or reduce the level of service provided on any street to a level lower than would result from a 
development permitted by right. 
 
Staff Analysis: Based on Palm Beach County’s 8th Edition Trip Generation Table, the construction of 36 mid-rise 

apartments and five townhomes is anticipated to generate approximately 17 peak PM trips.  While staff finds that the 



PZB No. 20-01000001 

P a g e  | 17 
 

proposed conditional use will not generate traffic volumes that will result in adverse impacts, a Traffic Performance 

Standards (TPS) Letter from the Palm Beach County Traffic Division is required prior to the issuance of a building permit 

to ensure that the proposed development meets the TPS of Palm Beach County.  Meets Criterion. 

 
2. The proposed conditional use will not result in a significantly greater amount of through traffic on local streets than 
would result from a development permitted by right and is appropriately located with respect to collector and arterial 
streets. 
 
Staff Analysis: The MU-E zoning district allows for a variety of multi-family, commercial, and office uses that have the 
potential to produce an equal or greater amount of through traffic than the proposed use.  Therefore, the traffic 
generated from the proposed mixed-use development will not be significantly greater than that of adjacent uses and 
other anticipated uses in this area.  Meets Criterion. 
 
3. The proposed conditional use will not produce significant air pollution emissions, to a level compatible with that 
which would result from a development permitted by right. 
 
Staff Analysis: The mixed-use project is not anticipated to produce significant air pollution emissions that are greater 

than that of a development permitted by right.  The proposed use of townhomes and the nonresidential space 

associated with the 10 live/work units do not pose a pollution hazard to the nearby properties.  Meets Criterion. 

 
4. The proposed conditional use will be so located in relation to the thoroughfare system that neither extension nor 
enlargement nor any other alteration of that system in a manner resulting in higher net public cost or earlier incursion of 
public cost than would result from development permitted by right. 
 
Staff Analysis: The project is not anticipated to cause a higher net public cost or earlier incursion of public cost than 
what would result from a development permitted by right.  Meets Criterion. 
 
5. The proposed conditional use will be so located in relation to water lines, sanitary sewers, storm sewers, surface 
drainage systems and other utility systems that neither extension nor enlargement nor any other alteration of such 
systems in a manner resulting in higher net public cost or earlier incursion of public cost than would result from 
development permitted by right. 
 
Staff Analysis: The multi-family apartments and townhomes will be utilizing the existing City utility lines.  No adverse 
impact to infrastructure or public utilities is anticipated to occur as a result of this request.  Meets Criterion. 
 
6. The proposed conditional use will not place a demand on municipal police or fire protection service beyond the 
capacity of those services.  
 
Staff Analysis: The proposed development is not anticipated to place a demand on municipal police or fire protection 
service beyond the capacity of those services.  In attempt to reduce the crime potential at this location, the application 
proposes a security gate that will restrict access to the buildings.  Additionally, the application states that the project will 
be consistent with Crime Prevention Through Environmental Design Principles (CPTED) to reinforce the privacy and 
safety of the residents.  Meets Criterion. 
 
7. The proposed conditional use will not generate significant noise, or will appropriately mitigate anticipated noise to a 
level compatible with that which would result from a development permitted by right. Any proposed use must meet all 
the requirements and stipulations set forth in section 15.24, Noise control. 
 
Staff Analysis: Unreasonable noise, which is defined in Section 15.24-1, is prohibited in the City when: 

• Equal to or greater than 65 dba between 11:00 p.m. and 8:00 a.m., Sunday through Thursday 



PZB No. 20-01000001 

P a g e  | 18 
 

• Greater than 85 dba between 8:00 a.m. and 11:00 p.m., Sunday through Thursday 

• Equal to or greater than 65 dba between 12:00 a.m. and 8:00 a.m., Friday through Saturday 

• Equal to or greater than 85 dba between 8:00 a.m. and 12:00 a.m., Friday through Saturday 

 
Based on the uses being proposed, the mixed-use project is anticipated to generate noise levels that are compliant with 
Section 15.24. Meets Criterion.    
 
8. The proposed conditional use will not generate light or glare which encroaches onto any adjacent property in excess 
of that allowed in Section 23.4-3, Exterior lighting. 
 

Staff Analysis: The proposed mixed-use project will not generate light or glare that would negatively impact the 
surrounding properties.  Based on the photometric plan submitted, the proposed development complies with LDR 
Section 23.4-3, Exterior Lighting.  Meets Criterion. 
 
Section 23.4-13(3)(c)(11): Specific use criteria for townhomes 

The Code requires all townhomes to comply with the specific use criteria for all townhomes outlined in Section 23.4 -
13(3)(c)(11).  The required analysis for the five townhouse units in Phase 2 of the proposed mixed use urban planned 
development is detailed below: 

 

1. Front setback shall be ten (10) feet, with an open porch permitted in a minimum of five (5) feet of setback . 

 

Staff Analysis: The proposed townhomes are located 20 feet from the front property line along Lucerne Avenue and 
include a porch/patio area about 13 feet from the front property line.  Meets Criterion.  

 

2. Distance between townhouse structures shall be twenty (20) feet; however, distance between double-stacked 
townhouse structures shall be thirty (30) feet. 

 

Staff Analysis: The application proposes one five-unit townhouse structure at 1401 Lucerne Avenue.  Therefore, the 
distance requirement between townhouse structures is not applicable to this application.  Criterion Not Applicable. 

 

3. Rear setback shall be twenty (20) feet with ten (10) feet for accessory structures. 

 

Staff Analysis: The proposed five-unit townhouse structure at 1401 Lucerne Avenue is set back approximately 43 feet from 
the rear property line.  Meets Criterion. 

 

4. Townhouse structures shall not exceed one hundred twenty (120) feet in overall length or six (6) units. 

 

Staff Analysis: The proposed five-unit townhouse structure is approximately 125 linear feet and does not exceed six units.  
Staff recommends a waiver from this requirement as the townhouse structure is proposed to stand alone and the addition 
of 5 feet would not materially go against the intent of the regulation.  Meets Criterion. 

 

5. The maximum number of attached townhouse units within a townhouse building fronting on Federal Highway shall be  
four units, unless a planned development district is approved. 

 

Staff Analysis:  This criterion is not applicable as the proposed project does not front Federal Highway.  Criterion Not 
Applicable. 

 

6. No front door access from alleys when abutting single family residential use or district. 

https://library.municode.com/HTML/10091/level3/PTIICOOR_CH23LADERE_ART4DEST.html#PTIICOOR_CH23LADERE_ART4DEST_S23.4-10OREPA


PZB No. 20-01000001 

P a g e  | 19 
 

 

Staff Analysis: The subject property proposing the five townhouse units, 1401 Lucerne Avenue, does not abut single family 
residential uses.  Further, the site plan does not propose front door access from the alleyway.  Meets Criterion.   

 

7. For all stories above the second story, both the front façade and rear façade must be setback an additional distance 
beyond the minimum, except three-story townhouses not higher than thirty-five (35) feet shall meet the minimum front 
and rear setback requirements. 

 

Staff Analysis: The proposed townhouse structure is not currently proposed to exceed two stories.  Therefore, this criterion 
does not apply.  Criterion not applicable. 

 
Public Support/Opposition: 
 

Staff has not received any letters of support or opposition. 
 
CONCLUSION: 

The proposed request for a Mixed Use Urban Planned Development, Major Site Plan, Conditional Use Permit, and 
Sustainable Bonus Program Incentive is consistent with the purpose, intent and requirements of the Comprehensive 
Plan, underlying zoning district, and surrounding areas, subject to compliance with staff’s proposed conditions of 
approval. Therefore, staff recommends that the Board recommend approval of the proposed request with the 
conditions below:  

 

Planning:  
1. Phase 1 & 2 Conditions: 

a. Prior to the issuance of a building permit for Phase 1, provide a TPS Letter from the Palm Beach County 
Traffic Division. The TPS letter may be for only Phase 1 or both Phase 1 & 2.  Should the TPS Letter only 
be for Phase 1, a second TPS letter shall be applied for prior to Site Plan approval for Phase 2, and said 
letter shall be submitted prior to the issuance of a building permit. 

b. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, designate 3 parking spaces as electric vehicle parking and 
outfit each parking space with electric vehicle charging equipment as outlined in LDR Section 23.4-10. 

c. Exterior lighting shall be shielded and in conformance with the Major Thoroughfare Design Guidelines.  
Exterior LED lighting shall have a warm color temperature (<3000K). 

d. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, a color scheme more characteristic with the aesthetic of Lake 
Worth Beach shall be approved by the Development Review Official. 

e. Prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy, all fences shall comply with Section 23.4-4. 
2. Phase 1 Conditions: 

a. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, push back the north wall of Building 2 so that it lies 5’ south of 
the existing gravity sewer running east/west through the site. 

b. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, screen the recycling area from all rights-of-way. 
c. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, submit a signage plan that provides consistent signage theme, 

sizing and materials. 
3. Phase 2 Conditions: 

a. Phase 2 shall obtain final site plan approval through a Site Plan amendment process to be approved 
administratively by staff or by the Planning & Zoning Board as applicable. 

b. Phase 2 shall be restricted to 11 units total.  Should additional units be sought through the city’s 
Transfer of Development Rights program, the site plan shall be amended through a Major Site Plan 
amendment process. 

c. Aside from waivers granted through the Planned Development, Phase 2 shall be designed in accordance 
and comply with Chapter 23 of the city’s Land Development Regulations. 



PZB No. 20-01000001 

P a g e  | 20 
 

d. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, submit a signage plan that provides consistent signage theme, 
sizing and materials. 

 

Public Works:  
1. The issuance of any permits shall comply with all provisions of the Lake Worth Municipal Code and all other 

applicable standards including but not limited to the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT), Manual on 
Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD), and City of Lake Worth Public Works Construction Standards and 
Policy and Procedure Manual 

2. Prior to performing work in the right of way, the applicant shall apply for and receive issuance of a “Right of 
Way/Utility Permit” application  

3. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the following shall be completed: 
a. the applicant shall contact the Lake Worth Drainage (LWDD) District’s Engineering Department and 

obtain any required permit(s), if necessary, and furnish to the City.   
b. the applicant shall contact the South Florida Water Management District’s (SFWMD) Engineering 

Department and obtain any required permit(s), if necessary, 
c. the applicant shall submit an Erosion Control plan and indicate the BMP’s and NPDES compliance 

practices. 
4. Prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy, the following shall be completed: 

a. all conditions of approval shall have been satisfied under jurisdiction of the Department of Public Works, 
b. the applicant shall construct new Type F curb/Valley gutter and a new 5-foot wide sidewalk along the 

east side of North E Street from the south property line to the north property line in compliance with 
the Public Works Department’s specifications and Policy and Procedure Manual, 

c. the applicant shall construct a 1” mill and overlay for the entire lane on the east side of North E Street 
from Lake Ave to Lucerne Ave; current proposed design has a partial lane mill and overlay,  

d. the Applicant shall ensure the entire surrounding off-site infrastructure inclusive of the roadway, 
sidewalk, curbing, stormwater system piping and structures, valve boxes, manholes, landscaping, 
striping, signage, and other improvements are in the same condition as prior to construction, 

e. the applicant shall fine grade and sod all disturbed areas with bahia sod, 
f. the applicant shall broom sweep all areas of the affected right of way and remove of all silt and debris 

collected as a result of construction activity, 
g. the applicant shall restore the right of way to a like or better condition.  Any damages to pavement, 

curbing, striping, sidewalks or other areas shall be restored in kind. 

 

Utilities Water & Sewer: 

1. Provide the Utilities Department unimpeded access to utilities within the easement.   
2. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the following shall be completed: 

a. adjust and expand the east/west utility easement such that there is an easement that exists 4 feet north 
of the existing watermain (and encompasses the electric) and continues to 5 feet south of the existing 
gravity sewer. 

b. the MEP shall verify the 2-inch service size for 24 residential units, and 1-inch service size for 16 
residential units, is adequate to meet the demand.  

 

Board Actions:  
I MOVE TO RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF PZB PROJECT NUMBER 20-01000001 with staff recommended conditions for a 
Mixed Use Urban Planned Development, Major Site Plan, Conditional Use Permit, and Sustainable Bonus Program 
Incentive to construct a two-phase multi-family development with live-work units generally known as “Village Flats” 
located at the subject site. The project meets the applicable criteria based on the data and analysis in the staff report. 
 



PZB No. 20-01000001 

P a g e  | 21 
 

I MOVE TO RECOMMEND DENIAL OF PZB PROJECT NUMBER 20-01000001 for a Mixed Use Urban Planned Development, 
Major Site Plan, Conditional Use Permit, and Sustainable Bonus Program Incentive to construct a two-phase multi-family 
development with live-work units generally known as “Village Flats” located at the subject site. The project does not 
meet the applicable criteria for the following reasons [Board member please state reasons.] 
 
Consequent Action:  
The Planning & Zoning Board will be making a recommendation to the City Commission on the Mixed Use Urban Planned 
Development, Major Site Plan, Conditional Use Permit, and Sustainable Bonus Program Incentive. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  

A. Site Plan Package 
B. Supplemental Supporting Documents 
C. Waiver Requests 

 
 



N

S

EW

2
8

5
 B

a
n

ya
n

 B
lv

d
  
 

W
e

st
 P

a
lm

 B
e

a
ch

 F
lo

ri
d

a
 3

3
4

0
1

 

A
 r

 c
 h

 i
 t

 e
 c

 t
 u

 r
 e

 •
I 
n
 t

 e
 r

 i
 o

 r
  
 D

 e
 s

 i
 g

 n

Revisions:

THESE DRAWINGS ARE FOR THE 
EXCLUSIVE USE OF SPINA OROURKE + 

PARTNERS, INC. AND MAY NOT BE 
DUPLICATED, REPRODUCED OR USED IN 
ANY MANNER WITHOUT THE EXPRESS 

WRITTEN CONSENT OF SPINA OROURKE 
+ PARTNERS, INC. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

5
6
1
.6

8
4
.6

8
4
4
  
•

F
ax

 5
6
1
.6

8
4
.5

5
9
4

sp
in

ao
ro

u
rk

e
.c

o
m

F
L 

Li
c 

#
 A

A
2
6

0
0

2
3
9

9

K
e

it
h

 M
. 

S
p

in
a

 #
 A

R
1
3

4
1
9

 

9
/2

1
/2

0
2
0
 1

:2
5
:1

5
 P

M
B

IM
 3

6
0
:/

/V
ill

ag
e
 F

la
ts

/V
IL

LA
G

E
_F

LA
T

S
_2

0
2
0
.r

vt

C
O

V
E

R
 S

H
E

E
T

Project no:  19125
Date:  (07-31-20)
Drawn by:  Author
Project Manager: Checker

V
IL

L
A

G
E

 F
L
A

T
S

La
k
e
 &

 L
u
ce

rn
e

La
k
e
 W

o
rt

h
 B

e
ac

h
, 

F
L 

3
3
4

6
0

S
IT

E
 P

LA
N

 A
P

P
LI

C
A

T
IO

N

VILLAGE FLATS
Lake & Lucerne
Lake Worth Beach, FL 33460

SITE PLAN SUBMITTAL

CVR.

SITE PLAN SUBMITTAL (07-31-20)

THOMAS ENGINEERING
Civil Engineer and 

Lanscape Architecture
6300 NW 31ST AVENUE

FORT LAUDERDALE, FL 33309
954.202.7000

PLACE PLANNING AND 
DESIGN

Land Planner
700 US HIGHWAY ONE, SUITE C
NORTH PALM BEACH, FL 33408

561.863.2722

PLANNING SOLUTIONS
Land Planner

981 delray lakes drive
delray BEACH, FL 33444

561.863.2722

INHABIT PROPERTY GROUP
Developer

2200 Butts Road, Suite 300
boca raton, FL 33431

SITE PLAN RE-SUBMITTAL (09-21-20)



N

S

EW

2
8

5
 B

a
n

ya
n

 B
lv

d
  
 

W
e

st
 P

a
lm

 B
e

a
ch

 F
lo

ri
d

a
 3

3
4

0
1

 

A
 r

 c
 h

 i
 t

 e
 c

 t
 u

 r
 e

 •
I 
n
 t

 e
 r

 i
 o

 r
  
 D

 e
 s

 i
 g

 n

Revisions:

THESE DRAWINGS ARE FOR THE 
EXCLUSIVE USE OF SPINA OROURKE + 

PARTNERS, INC. AND MAY NOT BE 
DUPLICATED, REPRODUCED OR USED IN 
ANY MANNER WITHOUT THE EXPRESS 

WRITTEN CONSENT OF SPINA OROURKE 
+ PARTNERS, INC. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

5
6
1
.6

8
4
.6

8
4
4
  
•

F
ax

 5
6
1
.6

8
4
.5

5
9
4

sp
in

ao
ro

u
rk

e
.c

o
m

F
L 

Li
c 

#
 A

A
2
6

0
0

2
3
9

9

K
e

it
h

 M
. 

S
p

in
a

 #
 A

R
1
3

4
1
9

 

9
/2

1
/2

0
2
0
 1

:2
5
:1

3
 P

M
B

IM
 3

6
0
:/

/V
ill

ag
e
 F

la
ts

/V
IL

LA
G

E
_F

LA
T

S
_2

0
2
0
.r

vt

A
E

R
IA

L
 L

O
C

A
T

IO
N

 M
A

P

Project no:  19125
Date:  (07-31-20)

Project Manager: Checker

V
IL

L
A

G
E

 F
L
A

T
S

La
k
e
 &

 L
u
ce

rn
e

La
k
e
 W

o
rt

h
 B

e
ac

h
, 

F
L 

3
3
4

6
0

S
IT

E
 P

LA
N

 A
P

P
LI

C
A

T
IO

N

SITE PLAN SUBMITTAL

CSP-1.



N

S

EW

2
8

5
 B

a
n

ya
n

 B
lv

d
  
 

W
e

st
 P

a
lm

 B
e

a
ch

 F
lo

ri
d

a
 3

3
4

0
1

 

A
 r

 c
 h

 i
 t

 e
 c

 t
 u

 r
 e

 •
I 
n
 t

 e
 r

 i
 o

 r
  
 D

 e
 s

 i
 g

 n

Revisions:

THESE DRAWINGS ARE FOR THE 
EXCLUSIVE USE OF SPINA OROURKE + 

PARTNERS, INC. AND MAY NOT BE 
DUPLICATED, REPRODUCED OR USED IN 
ANY MANNER WITHOUT THE EXPRESS 

WRITTEN CONSENT OF SPINA OROURKE 
+ PARTNERS, INC. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

5
6
1
.6

8
4
.6

8
4
4
  
•

F
ax

 5
6
1
.6

8
4
.5

5
9
4

sp
in

ao
ro

u
rk

e
.c

o
m

F
L 

Li
c 

#
 A

A
2
6

0
0

2
3
9

9

K
e

it
h

 M
. 

S
p

in
a

 #
 A

R
1
3

4
1
9

 

9
/2

1
/2

0
2
0
 1

:2
5
:1

4
 P

M
B

IM
 3

6
0
:/

/V
ill

ag
e
 F

la
ts

/V
IL

LA
G

E
_F

LA
T

S
_2

0
2
0
.r

vt

M
A

S
T

E
R

 R
E

N
D

E
R

E
D

 S
IT

E
 P

L
A

N

Project no:  19125
Date:  (07-31-20)
Drawn by:  Author
Project Manager: Checker

V
IL

L
A

G
E

 F
L
A

T
S

La
k
e
 &

 L
u
ce

rn
e

La
k
e
 W

o
rt

h
 B

e
ac

h
, 

F
L 

3
3
4

6
0

S
IT

E
 P

LA
N

 A
P

P
LI

C
A

T
IO

N

SITE PLAN SUBMITTAL

CSP-2.



N

S

EW

2
8

5
 B

a
n

ya
n

 B
lv

d
  
 

W
e

st
 P

a
lm

 B
e

a
ch

 F
lo

ri
d

a
 3

3
4

0
1

 

A
 r

 c
 h

 i
 t

 e
 c

 t
 u

 r
 e

 •
I 
n
 t

 e
 r

 i
 o

 r
  
 D

 e
 s

 i
 g

 n

Revisions:

THESE DRAWINGS ARE FOR THE 
EXCLUSIVE USE OF SPINA OROURKE + 

PARTNERS, INC. AND MAY NOT BE 
DUPLICATED, REPRODUCED OR USED IN 
ANY MANNER WITHOUT THE EXPRESS 

WRITTEN CONSENT OF SPINA OROURKE 
+ PARTNERS, INC. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

5
6
1
.6

8
4
.6

8
4
4
  
•

F
ax

 5
6
1
.6

8
4
.5

5
9
4

sp
in

ao
ro

u
rk

e
.c

o
m

F
L 

Li
c 

#
 A

A
2
6

0
0

2
3
9

9

K
e

it
h

 M
. 

S
p

in
a

 #
 A

R
1
3

4
1
9

 

9
/2

1
/2

0
2
0
 1

:2
5
:1

4
 P

M
B

IM
 3

6
0
:/

/V
ill

ag
e
 F

la
ts

/V
IL

LA
G

E
_F

LA
T

S
_2

0
2
0
.r

vt

P
H

A
S

E
 1

 R
E

N
D

E
R

E
D

 S
IT

E
 P

L
A

N

Project no:  19125
Date:  (07-31-20)
Drawn by:  Author
Project Manager: Checker

V
IL

L
A

G
E

 F
L
A

T
S

La
k
e
 &

 L
u
ce

rn
e

La
k
e
 W

o
rt

h
 B

e
ac

h
, 

F
L 

3
3
4

6
0

S
IT

E
 P

LA
N

 A
P

P
LI

C
A

T
IO

N

SITE PLAN SUBMITTAL

CSP-3.



BUILDING 1
PHASE 1
24 UNITS
4 STORYS

36 off street PARKING SPACES
(INCLUDES 2 ACCESSIBLE)

BUILDING 2
PHASE 1
6 UNITS
3 STORYS

BUILDING 3
PHASE 2
6 UNITS
3 STORYS

BUILDING 4
PHASE 2
5 UNITS
2 STORYS

existing sidewalk

existing sidewalk

lake avenue

n
o
r
t
h
 '
e
' 
s
t
r
e
e
t

lucerne avenue

n
o
r
t
h
 '
D
' 
s
t
r
e
e
t

140'-0"

9
5
'-
0
"

70'-0"

9
5
'-
0
"

existing alley existing alley

35'-0" 70'-0" 70'-0"

40'-0"

2
0
'-
0
"

5'-0"

10'-0"

10
'-
0
"

11'-5" 11'-5"

10
'-
0
"

10'-0"

1"

2
0
0
'-
0
"

10
'-
5
"

10
'-
0
"

5'-4"
47'-3"

7 off street parking spaces

14 off street parking spaces

see enlarged plan of
phase 1 sheet a.1.1.1

see enlarged plan of 
phase 2 sheet a.2.1.1

see enlarged 
plan of phase 2 
sheet a.2.1.1

13
'-
0
"

10
'-
0
"

25'-0"

REFER TO CIVIL DRAWINGS FOR EXACT FIRE HYDRANT LOCATIONS 

LEGEND

overhangS

landscape

vehicular circulation arrows

pedestrian circulation arrows

N

S

EW

2
8

5
 B

a
n

ya
n

 B
lv

d
  
 

W
e

st
 P

a
lm

 B
e

a
ch

 F
lo

ri
d

a
 3

3
4

0
1

 

A
 r

 c
 h

 i
 t

 e
 c

 t
 u

 r
 e

 •
I 
n
 t

 e
 r

 i
 o

 r
  
 D

 e
 s

 i
 g

 n

Revisions:

THESE DRAWINGS ARE FOR THE 
EXCLUSIVE USE OF SPINA OROURKE + 

PARTNERS, INC. AND MAY NOT BE 
DUPLICATED, REPRODUCED OR USED IN 
ANY MANNER WITHOUT THE EXPRESS 

WRITTEN CONSENT OF SPINA OROURKE 
+ PARTNERS, INC. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

5
6
1
.6

8
4
.6

8
4
4
  
•

F
ax

 5
6
1
.6

8
4
.5

5
9
4

sp
in

ao
ro

u
rk

e
.c

o
m

F
L 

Li
c 

#
 A

A
2
6

0
0

2
3
9

9

K
e

it
h

 M
. 

S
p

in
a

 #
 A

R
1
3

4
1
9

 

9
/2

1
/2

0
2
0
 1

:2
5
:1

3
 P

M
B

IM
 3

6
0
:/

/V
ill

ag
e
 F

la
ts

/V
IL

LA
G

E
_F

LA
T

S
_2

0
2
0
.r

vt

O
V

E
R

A
L

L
 S

IT
E

 P
L

A
N

 -
P

H
A

S
IN

G
 P

L
A

N

Project no:  19125
Date:  (07-31-20)
Drawn by:  Author
Project Manager: Checker

V
IL

L
A

G
E

 F
L
A

T
S

La
k
e
 &

 L
u
ce

rn
e

La
k
e
 W

o
rt

h
 B

e
ac

h
, 

F
L 

3
3
4

6
0

S
IT

E
 P

LA
N

 A
P

P
LI

C
A

T
IO

N

SITE PLAN SUBMITTAL

AS-1.

Scale:  3/64" = 1'-0"AS-1.

OVERALL SITE  / PHASING PLAN1



BUILDING 2

BUILDING 1

1 BR.

36 PARKING SPACES
(INCLUDES 2 ACCESSIBLE)

2

4

6

sod

gate

gate

POCKET PARK

benches

recycling

transformer

transformer

existing sidewalk

existing sidewalk

this area n.i.c.

bikes

vehicle gate

lake avenue

n
o
r
t
h
 '
e
' 
s
t
r
e
e
t

lucerne avenue

MECH.

ELEV.

PATIO PATIO PATIO PATIO PATIO

open trellis

10
'-
0
"

5'-4"

4'-11"

5'-4"

10'-0"

10
'-
0
"

175'-0"

35'-0" 70'-0"70'-0"

10
0
'-
0
"

2
0
0
'-
0
"

1"

10
'-
0
"

10'-1"

3
'-
10

"

5'-0"

1 BR. 1 BR. 1 BR. 1 BR.

1 BR.

1 BR.

see landscape 
drawings for 
landscape screen

25'-0"

24'-0"

2
1'
-3

"

gate gate gate gate gate

'village flats' lake worth beach florida 

phase 1 PROPERTY: Site 1: 1207, 1209, 1211, 1213, 1215 & LUCERNE AVENUE.
1216, 1220 & 1230 LAKE AVENUE.
8 LOTS 100’ X 35’ EACH. 28,000 S.F.

phase 2 property: Site 2: LOTS 5, 6, 7 & 8 95’ x 35’ EACH (1401 Lucerne) :13,300 S.F. 
Site 3: LOTS 13 & 14 95’ x 35’ EACH (1310 Lake): 6650 S.F.

TOTAL AREA: 28,000 S.F. + 19, 950 S.F. = 47,950 = 1.10078 ACRES 

CURRENT ZONING DESIGNATION: MU-E – Mixed Use East - Lake & Lucerne Avenues
proposed use: multi-family residential

SETBACKS:

front (Lake & Lucerne): 
required: 10’ Minimum 22’ Maximum provided: 10' 

Rear: 
required: NA provided: n.a.

Side: 
required: 10’ On Street and 0 ft. on interior Lot.
provided: 10’ On Street and 0 ft. on interior Lot.

(Additional Setback above 3rd story not provided)

proposed AREA of STRUCTURES phase 1: 25,884 S.F.
proposed area of structures phase 2: 12,802 s.f.

F.A.R.:
ALLOWED: 1.40 FAR
PROPOSED: .92 FAR (phase 1)

.64 far (phase 2)

.81 far (phase 1 & 2)

HEIGHT:
ALLOWED: 30 ft. Max.  (45 ft. With increase of additional 15’ per Sustainable Bonus Incentive.)
PROVIDED: 45 ft. max.

DENSITY:
ALLOWED: 30 du/Acre with increase of 25% = 41.2 units
PROVIDED in phase 1: 30 Dwelling Units
provided in phase 2: 11 Dwelling Units 

PARKING phase 1:
REQUIRED:
Studio & 1 Bedroom: 1.5 REQUIRED / unit required
2 Bedroom: 1.75 SPACES/ UNIT REQUIRED
TOTAL phase 1 REQUIRED: 47 spaces

PROVIDED: 36 Spaces (on site)
+ 12 Parallel on street
+ 4 Bikes = 1 space

TOTAL phase 1 parking: 49 Spaces

parking phase 2:
Required: 24 spaces
provided: 29 spaces

IMPERMEABLE SURFACE:
ALLOWED: PROPOSED:

phase 1: 65% MAX. 53.4.% *
phase 2: 65% MAX. 65%
*phase 1 utilizes semi-pervious pavers w/ area calculated at 50%

lot coverage:
allowed: proposed:

phase 1: 55% 29%
phase 2: 55% 28%

open space PROVIDED:
PHASE 1: 9,432 S.F.
PHASE 2: 10,160 S.F.

PROJECT DATA

UNIT TABULATION

phase 1

BUILDING 1 (24 UNITS)
1ST FLOOR: (5) 1 BEDROOM UNITS: 4314 g.S.F.
2ND FLOOR: (5) 2 BEDROOM UNITS: 5618 g.S.F.
3RD FLOOR: (6) 1 BEDROOM UNITS + (1)  2 BEDROOM UNIT: 5618 g.S.F.
4TH FLOOR: (6) 1 BEDROOM UNITS + (1)  2 BEDROOM UNIT: 5618 g.S.F.

total area building 1: 21,168 g.s.f.

BUILDING 2 (6 UNITS)
1ST FLOOR: (2) 1 BEDROOM UNITS 1572 S.F.
2ND FLOOR: (2) 1 BEDROOM UNITS 1572 S.F.
3RD FLOOR: (2) 1 BEDROOM UNITS 1572 S.F.

total area building 2: 4716 s.f.

total area BUILDING 1 & 2: 25,884 s.f.

30 units in phase 1 

phase 2

BUILDING 3 (6 UNITS)
1ST FLOOR: (2) 1 BEDROOM UNITS 1684 g.S.F.
2ND FLOOR: (2) 1 BEDROOM UNITS 1684 g.S.F.
3rd floor: (2) 1 bedroom units 1684 g.s.f.
total area building 3: 5052 g.s.f.

BUILDING 4 (5 UNITS)
(5) 2 story townhouses: 1,550 g.s.f./ unit
total area building 4: 7,750 g.s.f.

total area BUILDING 3 & 4: 12,802 s.f.

11 units in phase 2

total area phase 1 & 2: 38,686 s.f.

total units phase 1 & 2: 41

UNIT AREAS

BUILDING 1 - PHASE 1
UNIT # TYPE MIN. AREA REQUIRED AREA PROPOSED
1 1 BEDROOM 600 S.F. 715 - 723 G.S.F.
2 2 BEDROOM 750  S.F. 982-1041 G.S.F
3 1 BEDROOM 600 S.F. 686 G.S.F.

BUILDING 2 - PHASE 1
UNIT #
4 1 BEDROOM 600 S.F. 710 G.S.F.

BUILDING 3 - PHASE 2
6 UNITS 1 BEDROOM 600 S.F. 700 GSF

BUILDING 4 - PHASE 2
5 units 3 bedroom 900 s.f. 1,550 gsf

N

S

EW

2
8

5
 B

a
n

ya
n

 B
lv

d
  
 

W
e

st
 P

a
lm

 B
e

a
ch

 F
lo

ri
d

a
 3

3
4

0
1

 

A
 r

 c
 h

 i
 t

 e
 c

 t
 u

 r
 e

 •
I 
n
 t

 e
 r

 i
 o

 r
  
 D

 e
 s

 i
 g

 n

Revisions:

THESE DRAWINGS ARE FOR THE 
EXCLUSIVE USE OF SPINA OROURKE + 

PARTNERS, INC. AND MAY NOT BE 
DUPLICATED, REPRODUCED OR USED IN 
ANY MANNER WITHOUT THE EXPRESS 

WRITTEN CONSENT OF SPINA OROURKE 
+ PARTNERS, INC. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

5
6
1
.6

8
4
.6

8
4
4
  
•

F
ax

 5
6
1
.6

8
4
.5

5
9
4

sp
in

ao
ro

u
rk

e
.c

o
m

F
L 

Li
c 

#
 A

A
2
6

0
0

2
3
9

9

K
e

it
h

 M
. 

S
p

in
a

 #
 A

R
1
3

4
1
9

 

9
/2

1
/2

0
2
0
 1

:2
4
:4

7
 P

M
B

IM
 3

6
0
:/

/V
ill

ag
e
 F

la
ts

/V
IL

LA
G

E
_F

LA
T

S
_2

0
2
0
.r

vt

G
R

O
U

N
D

 F
L

O
O

R
 P

L
A

N
 -

P
H

A
S

E
 1

Project no:  19125
Date:  (07-31-20)
Drawn by:  Author
Project Manager: Checker

V
IL

L
A

G
E

 F
L
A

T
S

La
k
e
 &

 L
u
ce

rn
e

La
k
e
 W

o
rt

h
 B

e
ac

h
, 

F
L 

3
3
4

6
0

S
IT

E
 P

LA
N

 A
P

P
LI

C
A

T
IO

N

SITE PLAN SUBMITTAL

A1.1.1.
Scale:  1/16" = 1'-0"A1.1.1.

GROUND FLOOR PLAN - PHASE 11



BUILDING 2
LEVEL 2 
(2) 1 
BEDROOM 
UNITS

BUILDING 1
LEVEL 2 
(5) 2 BEDROOM 
UNITS

2 BR.

elev.

2 BR. 2 BR. 2 BR. 2 BR.

2 BR.

2 BR.

this area n.i.c.

N

S

EW

2
8

5
 B

a
n

ya
n

 B
lv

d
  
 

W
e

st
 P

a
lm

 B
e

a
ch

 F
lo

ri
d

a
 3

3
4

0
1

 

A
 r

 c
 h

 i
 t

 e
 c

 t
 u

 r
 e

 •
I 
n
 t

 e
 r

 i
 o

 r
  
 D

 e
 s

 i
 g

 n

Revisions:

THESE DRAWINGS ARE FOR THE 
EXCLUSIVE USE OF SPINA OROURKE + 

PARTNERS, INC. AND MAY NOT BE 
DUPLICATED, REPRODUCED OR USED IN 
ANY MANNER WITHOUT THE EXPRESS 

WRITTEN CONSENT OF SPINA OROURKE 
+ PARTNERS, INC. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

5
6
1
.6

8
4
.6

8
4
4
  
•

F
ax

 5
6
1
.6

8
4
.5

5
9
4

sp
in

ao
ro

u
rk

e
.c

o
m

F
L 

Li
c 

#
 A

A
2
6

0
0

2
3
9

9

K
e

it
h

 M
. 

S
p

in
a

 #
 A

R
1
3

4
1
9

 

9
/2

1
/2

0
2
0
 1

:2
4
:4

9
 P

M
B

IM
 3

6
0
:/

/V
ill

ag
e
 F

la
ts

/V
IL

LA
G

E
_F

LA
T

S
_2

0
2
0
.r

vt

S
E

C
O

N
D

 F
L

O
O

R
 P

L
A

N
 -

P
H

A
S

E
 1

Project no:  19125
Date:  (07-31-20)
Drawn by:  Author
Project Manager: Checker

V
IL

L
A

G
E

 F
L
A

T
S

La
k
e
 &

 L
u
ce

rn
e

La
k
e
 W

o
rt

h
 B

e
ac

h
, 

F
L 

3
3
4

6
0

S
IT

E
 P

LA
N

 A
P

P
LI

C
A

T
IO

N

SITE PLAN SUBMITTAL

A1.1.2.

Scale:  1/16" = 1'-0"A1.1.2.

SECOND FLOOR PLAN - PHASE 11



699 s.f.687 s.f.1031 s.f.687 s.f.687 s.f. 687 s.f.640 s.f. 699 s.f.687 s.f.1031 s.f.687 s.f.687 s.f. 687 s.f.640 s.f. 699 s.f.687 s.f.1031 s.f.687 s.f.687 s.f. 687 s.f.640 s.f.

BUILDING 2
LEVEL 3 
(2) 1 BEDROOM 
UNITS

BUILDING 1
LEVEL 3 
(6) 1 BEDROOM UNITS
(1)  2 BEDROOM UNIT

610 s.f.

610 s.f.

elev.

N

S

EW

2
8

5
 B

a
n

ya
n

 B
lv

d
  
 

W
e

st
 P

a
lm

 B
e

a
ch

 F
lo

ri
d

a
 3

3
4

0
1

 

A
 r

 c
 h

 i
 t

 e
 c

 t
 u

 r
 e

 •
I 
n
 t

 e
 r

 i
 o

 r
  
 D

 e
 s

 i
 g

 n

Revisions:

THESE DRAWINGS ARE FOR THE 
EXCLUSIVE USE OF SPINA OROURKE + 

PARTNERS, INC. AND MAY NOT BE 
DUPLICATED, REPRODUCED OR USED IN 
ANY MANNER WITHOUT THE EXPRESS 

WRITTEN CONSENT OF SPINA OROURKE 
+ PARTNERS, INC. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

5
6
1
.6

8
4
.6

8
4
4
  
•

F
ax

 5
6
1
.6

8
4
.5

5
9
4

sp
in

ao
ro

u
rk

e
.c

o
m

F
L 

Li
c 

#
 A

A
2
6

0
0

2
3
9

9

K
e

it
h

 M
. 

S
p

in
a

 #
 A

R
1
3

4
1
9

 

9
/2

1
/2

0
2
0
 1

:2
4
:5

1
 P

M
B

IM
 3

6
0
:/

/V
ill

ag
e
 F

la
ts

/V
IL

LA
G

E
_F

LA
T

S
_2

0
2
0
.r

vt

T
H

IR
D

 F
L

O
O

R
 P

L
A

N
 -

  
P

H
A

S
E

 1

Project no:  19125
Date:  (07-31-20)
Drawn by:  Author
Project Manager: Checker

V
IL

L
A

G
E

 F
L
A

T
S

La
k
e
 &

 L
u
ce

rn
e

La
k
e
 W

o
rt

h
 B

e
ac

h
, 

F
L 

3
3
4

6
0

S
IT

E
 P

LA
N

 A
P

P
LI

C
A

T
IO

N

SITE PLAN SUBMITTAL

A1.1.3.
Scale:  1/16" = 1'-0"A1.1.3.

THIRD FLOOR PLAN -  PHASE 11



BUILDING 2

699 s.f.687 s.f.1031 s.f.687 s.f.687 s.f. 687 s.f.640 s.f.

roof

BUILDING 1
LEVEL 4 
(6) 1 BEDROOM UNITS
(1)  2 BEDROOM UNIT

elev.

2
A4B1.0

A3.0.0.
1

A3.0.0.
3

A3.0.0.
4

A3.0.0.
5

A3.0.0.
6

N

S

EW

2
8

5
 B

a
n

ya
n

 B
lv

d
  
 

W
e

st
 P

a
lm

 B
e

a
ch

 F
lo

ri
d

a
 3

3
4

0
1

 

A
 r

 c
 h

 i
 t

 e
 c

 t
 u

 r
 e

 •
I 
n
 t

 e
 r

 i
 o

 r
  
 D

 e
 s

 i
 g

 n

Revisions:

THESE DRAWINGS ARE FOR THE 
EXCLUSIVE USE OF SPINA OROURKE + 

PARTNERS, INC. AND MAY NOT BE 
DUPLICATED, REPRODUCED OR USED IN 
ANY MANNER WITHOUT THE EXPRESS 

WRITTEN CONSENT OF SPINA OROURKE 
+ PARTNERS, INC. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

5
6
1
.6

8
4
.6

8
4
4
  
•

F
ax

 5
6
1
.6

8
4
.5

5
9
4

sp
in

ao
ro

u
rk

e
.c

o
m

F
L 

Li
c 

#
 A

A
2
6

0
0

2
3
9

9

K
e

it
h

 M
. 

S
p

in
a

 #
 A

R
1
3

4
1
9

 

9
/2

1
/2

0
2
0
 1

:2
4
:5

3
 P

M
B

IM
 3

6
0
:/

/V
ill

ag
e
 F

la
ts

/V
IL

LA
G

E
_F

LA
T

S
_2

0
2
0
.r

vt

F
O

U
R

T
H

 F
L

O
O

R
 P

L
A

N
 -

P
H

A
S

E
 1

Project no:  19125
Date:  (07-31-20)
Drawn by:  Author
Project Manager: Checker

V
IL

L
A

G
E

 F
L
A

T
S

La
k
e
 &

 L
u
ce

rn
e

La
k
e
 W

o
rt

h
 B

e
ac

h
, 

F
L 

3
3
4

6
0

S
IT

E
 P

LA
N

 A
P

P
LI

C
A

T
IO

N

SITE PLAN SUBMITTAL

A1.1.4.

Scale:  1/16" = 1'-0"A1.1.4.

FOURTH FLOOR PLAN - PHASE 11



BUILDING 2
6 UNITS
3 STORYS

BUILDING 1:
24 UNITS
4 STORYS

fence

existing sidewalk

existing 
sidewalk

fence

adjacent 
propoerty 
n.i.c.

lucerne avenue

lake avenue

automatic 
opening 
gate

n
o
r
t
h
 '
e
' 
s
t
r
e
e
t

PROP. 10'W. UTILITY EASEMENT for 
exist. o.h. power lines and 
underground sewer TO BE CONFIRMED
W/ CIVIL ENGR.

10
'-
0
"

existing sidewalk landscaped area

patio

landscaped 
area

landscaped 
area

ROOF

ROOF

ROOF 
HATCH

ROOF 
HATCH

25'-0"

N

S

EW

2
8

5
 B

a
n

ya
n

 B
lv

d
  
 

W
e

st
 P

a
lm

 B
e

a
ch

 F
lo

ri
d

a
 3

3
4

0
1

 

A
 r

 c
 h

 i
 t

 e
 c

 t
 u

 r
 e

 •
I 
n
 t

 e
 r

 i
 o

 r
  
 D

 e
 s

 i
 g

 n

Revisions:

THESE DRAWINGS ARE FOR THE 
EXCLUSIVE USE OF SPINA OROURKE + 

PARTNERS, INC. AND MAY NOT BE 
DUPLICATED, REPRODUCED OR USED IN 
ANY MANNER WITHOUT THE EXPRESS 

WRITTEN CONSENT OF SPINA OROURKE 
+ PARTNERS, INC. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

5
6
1
.6

8
4
.6

8
4
4
  
•

F
ax

 5
6
1
.6

8
4
.5

5
9
4

sp
in

ao
ro

u
rk

e
.c

o
m

F
L 

Li
c 

#
 A

A
2
6

0
0

2
3
9

9

K
e

it
h

 M
. 

S
p

in
a

 #
 A

R
1
3

4
1
9

 

9
/2

1
/2

0
2
0
 1

:2
4
:5

5
 P

M
B

IM
 3

6
0
:/

/V
ill

ag
e
 F

la
ts

/V
IL

LA
G

E
_F

LA
T

S
_2

0
2
0
.r

vt

R
O

O
F

 P
L

A
N

 P
H

A
S

E
 1

Project no:  19125
Date:  (07-31-20)
Drawn by:  Author
Project Manager: Checker

V
IL

L
A

G
E

 F
L
A

T
S

La
k
e
 &

 L
u
ce

rn
e

La
k
e
 W

o
rt

h
 B

e
ac

h
, 

F
L 

3
3
4

6
0

S
IT

E
 P

LA
N

 A
P

P
LI

C
A

T
IO

N

SITE PLAN SUBMITTAL

A1.1.5.
Scale:  1/16" = 1'-0"A1.1.5.

ROOF PLAN - PHASE 11



phase 2 - BUILDING 4
5 UNITS
2 stories
3 bedrooms / unit
1550 g.s.f. / unit
14 parking spaces off street
6 parking spaces parallel on street
total parking: 20 spaces
GROUND FLOOR BUILDING COVERAGE: 3,875 SF
TOTAL BUILDING AREA: 7,750 GSF

lake avenue

lucerne avenue

n
o
r
t
h
 '
D
' 
s
t
r
e
e
t

140'-0"
9
5
'-
0
"

70'-0"
9
5
'-
0
"

existing alley existing alley

2
0
'-
0
"

3
1'
-0

"

6'-0"
6'-0"

10'-0"
10

'-
0
"

10
'-
0
"

35'-0" 35'-0" 35'-0" 35'-0" 40'-0" 35'-0"

35'-0" 35'-0" 35'-0" 35'-0"

5'-0" 125'-0"
18

'-
0
"

16
'-
0
" patio

sidewalk

13
'-
0
"

13
'-
0
"

3
1'
-8

"
10

'-
0
"

18
'-
0
"

10
'-
0
"

9
5
'-
0
"

8'-6"

trash & recycle

11'-4" 11'-5"

phase 2 - BUILDING 3
(6) 1 bedroom UNITS
3 stories
700 g.s.f. / unit
7 parking spaces off street
2 parking spaces parallel on streeT
total parking: 9 spaces
1684 GROUND FLOOR BUILDING COVERAGE 
5052 G.S.F. TOTAL INCLUDING NON-AC STAIR

47'-3"

patio patio

2 parking

4 parking

7 parking 7 parking

7 parking

UTILITIES

l.

24'-10"OFFICELIVING /
STUDIO

UTILITY

patio

N

S

EW

2
8

5
 B

a
n

ya
n

 B
lv

d
  
 

W
e

st
 P

a
lm

 B
e

a
ch

 F
lo

ri
d

a
 3

3
4

0
1

 

A
 r

 c
 h

 i
 t

 e
 c

 t
 u

 r
 e

 •
I 
n
 t

 e
 r

 i
 o

 r
  
 D

 e
 s

 i
 g

 n

Revisions:

THESE DRAWINGS ARE FOR THE 
EXCLUSIVE USE OF SPINA OROURKE + 

PARTNERS, INC. AND MAY NOT BE 
DUPLICATED, REPRODUCED OR USED IN 
ANY MANNER WITHOUT THE EXPRESS 

WRITTEN CONSENT OF SPINA OROURKE 
+ PARTNERS, INC. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

5
6
1
.6

8
4
.6

8
4
4
  
•

F
ax

 5
6
1
.6

8
4
.5

5
9
4

sp
in

ao
ro

u
rk

e
.c

o
m

F
L 

Li
c 

#
 A

A
2
6

0
0

2
3
9

9

K
e

it
h

 M
. 

S
p

in
a

 #
 A

R
1
3

4
1
9

 

9
/2

1
/2

0
2
0
 1

:2
4
:5

5
 P

M
B

IM
 3

6
0
:/

/V
ill

ag
e
 F

la
ts

/V
IL

LA
G

E
_F

LA
T

S
_2

0
2
0
.r

vt

G
R

O
U

N
D

 F
L

O
O

R
 P

L
A

N
 -

P
H

A
S

E
 2

Project no:  19125
Date:  (07-31-20)
Drawn by:  Author
Project Manager: Checker

V
IL

L
A

G
E

 F
L
A

T
S

La
k
e
 &

 L
u
ce

rn
e

La
k
e
 W

o
rt

h
 B

e
ac

h
, 

F
L 

3
3
4

6
0

S
IT

E
 P

LA
N

 A
P

P
LI

C
A

T
IO

N

SITE PLAN SUBMITTAL

A2.1.1.
Scale:  1/16" = 1'-0"A2.1.1.

GROUND FLOOR PLAN - PHASE 21



LEVEL 1
0'-0"

LEVEL 2
10'-8"

LEVEL 3
21'-4"

LEVEL 4
32'-0"

ROOF
42'-8"

F

A

CA

B

H

A

A

A

G

A A

B B

A C A H A C

B

A C

D

C

E

C

F

C

6
'-
0
"

10
'-
8
"

10
'-
8
"

10
'-
8
"

10
'-
8
"

4
8
'-
8
"

PARAPET
48'-8"

LEVEL 1
0'-0"

LEVEL 2
10'-8"

LEVEL 3
21'-4"

LEVEL 4
32'-0"

ROOF
42'-8"

F

A C A

A CA A CEC C E

I

A

G

3
5
'-
5
"

4
7'
-7

"

PARAPET
48'-8"

6
'-
0
"

10
'-
8
"

10
'-
8
"

10
'-
8
"

10
'-
8
"

4
8
'-
8
"

LEVEL 1
0'-0"

LEVEL 2
10'-8"

LEVEL 3
21'-4"

LEVEL 4
32'-0"

ROOF
42'-8"

A

B

B A A F A A CB A

A

PARAPET
48'-8"

6
'-
0
"

10
'-
8
"

10
'-
8
"

10
'-
8
"

10
'-
8
"

4
8
'-
8
"

LEVEL 1
0'-0"

LEVEL 2
10'-8"

LEVEL 3
21'-4"

LEVEL 4
32'-0"

ROOF
42'-8"

C

A C

G

AA

CA A A

E

A

4
8
'-
7"

6
'-
0
"

3
5
'-
6
"

3
'-
6
"

PARAPET
48'-8"

6
'-
0
"

10
'-
8
"

10
'-
8
"

10
'-
8
"

10
'-
8
"

4
8
'-
8
"

LEVEL 1
0'-0"

LEVEL 2
10'-8"

LEVEL 3
21'-4"

ROOF.
32'-0"

adjacet property
not in project

F

A C

E
I

B

G

9
'-
4
"

3
'-
0
"

3
5
'-
6
"

LEVEL 1
0'-0"

LEVEL 2
10'-8"

LEVEL 3
21'-4"

ROOF.
32'-0"

F

A

G

A C

A

3
'-
6
"

3
5
'-
6
"

10
'-
8
"

10
'-
8
"

10
'-
8
"

3
2
'-
0
"

A FINISH: SMOOTH STUCCO, COLOR: HIGH REFLECTIVE WHITE SW7757

B FINISH: SMOOTH STUCCO, COLOR: 'MOONLIT ORCHID' SW 9153

C FINISH: SMOOTH STUCCO WITH REVEAL PATTERN, COLOR: 'FLEUR
DE SEL' SW7666

D FINISH: ANODIZED ALUM, COLOR: GRAY (DOOR/WINDOW FRAME)

E FINISH: LAMINATED GLASS, LT GREY TINT

F FINISH: ALUM RAILINGS, COLOR: GRAY

G FINISH: WOOD FENCE, COLOR: NATURAL WOOD - PRESSURE
TREATED

H FINISH: SMOOTH STUCCO, YELLOW COLOR

MATERIAL NOTES

I FINISH: ALUMINUM TRELLIS STRUCTURE PAINTED GREY

N

S

EW

2
8

5
 B

a
n

ya
n

 B
lv

d
  
 

W
e

st
 P

a
lm

 B
e

a
ch

 F
lo

ri
d

a
 3

3
4

0
1

 

A
 r

 c
 h

 i
 t

 e
 c

 t
 u

 r
 e

 •
I 
n
 t

 e
 r

 i
 o

 r
  
 D

 e
 s

 i
 g

 n

Revisions:

THESE DRAWINGS ARE FOR THE 
EXCLUSIVE USE OF SPINA OROURKE + 

PARTNERS, INC. AND MAY NOT BE 
DUPLICATED, REPRODUCED OR USED IN 
ANY MANNER WITHOUT THE EXPRESS 

WRITTEN CONSENT OF SPINA OROURKE 
+ PARTNERS, INC. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

5
6
1
.6

8
4
.6

8
4
4
  
•

F
ax

 5
6
1
.6

8
4
.5

5
9
4

sp
in

ao
ro

u
rk

e
.c

o
m

F
L 

Li
c 

#
 A

A
2
6

0
0

2
3
9

9

K
e

it
h

 M
. 

S
p

in
a

 #
 A

R
1
3

4
1
9

 

9
/2

1
/2

0
2
0
 1

:2
5
:0

9
 P

M
B

IM
 3

6
0
:/

/V
ill

ag
e
 F

la
ts

/V
IL

LA
G

E
_F

LA
T

S
_2

0
2
0
.r

vt

E
L

E
V

A
T

IO
N

S

Project no:  19125
Date:  (07-31-20)
Drawn by:  Author
Project Manager: Checker

V
IL

L
A

G
E

 F
L
A

T
S

La
k
e
 &

 L
u
ce

rn
e

La
k
e
 W

o
rt

h
 B

e
ac

h
, 

F
L 

3
3
4

6
0

S
IT

E
 P

LA
N

 A
P

P
LI

C
A

T
IO

N

SITE PLAN SUBMITTAL

A3.0.0.

Scale:  1/16" = 1'-0"A3.0.0.

NORTH ELEVATION - BUILDING 1 LUCERNE AVENUE1

Scale:  1/16" = 1'-0"A3.0.0.

EAST ELEVATION - BUILDING 1 & 22

Scale:  1/16" = 1'-0"A3.0.0.

SOUTH ELEVATION - BUILDING 13

Scale:  1/16" = 1'-0"A3.0.0.

WEST ELEVATION - BUILDING A4

Scale:  1/16" = 1'-0"A3.0.0.

Z_BUILDING B-SOUTH ELEVATION Copy 15

Scale:  1/16" = 1'-0"A3.0.0.

Z_BUILDING B- NORTH ELEVATION Copy 16



STUDY
BEDROO
MLIVING

KITCHEN
BATH

W/D

CLOS.

UTIL.

CLOSET

PATIO

unit 1 - 715 
g.s.f.

1
A4A1.0

01

BALCONY

BEDROOM

CLOS.

BEDROOM

CLOS.

BATH

BATH
kitchen

utility

w/d

living

3
'-
6
"

CLOS.

unit 2 - 1027 
S.F.

1
A4A1.0

BALCONY

LIVING

KITCHEN

A/C

BATH

clos.

bedroom

W/
D

CLOS.

UNIT 3 - 686 G.S.F.

1
A4A1.0

bath

bEDROO
M

LIVING

A/C

W/D

KITCHEN

BALCONY

DN.

10

UP

UNIT 4 -
580 G.S.F.

CLOSET

2
A4B1.0

1
A4B1.0

N

S

EW

2
8

5
 B

a
n

ya
n

 B
lv

d
  
 

W
e

st
 P

a
lm

 B
e

a
ch

 F
lo

ri
d

a
 3

3
4

0
1

 

A
 r

 c
 h

 i
 t

 e
 c

 t
 u

 r
 e

 •
I 
n
 t

 e
 r

 i
 o

 r
  
 D

 e
 s

 i
 g

 n

Revisions:

THESE DRAWINGS ARE FOR THE 
EXCLUSIVE USE OF SPINA OROURKE + 

PARTNERS, INC. AND MAY NOT BE 
DUPLICATED, REPRODUCED OR USED IN 
ANY MANNER WITHOUT THE EXPRESS 

WRITTEN CONSENT OF SPINA OROURKE 
+ PARTNERS, INC. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

5
6
1
.6

8
4
.6

8
4
4
  
•

F
ax

 5
6
1
.6

8
4
.5

5
9
4

sp
in

ao
ro

u
rk

e
.c

o
m

F
L 

Li
c 

#
 A

A
2
6

0
0

2
3
9

9

K
e

it
h

 M
. 

S
p

in
a

 #
 A

R
1
3

4
1
9

 

9
/2

1
/2

0
2
0
 1

:2
5
:1

2
 P

M
B

IM
 3

6
0
:/

/V
ill

ag
e
 F

la
ts

/V
IL

LA
G

E
_F

LA
T

S
_2

0
2
0
.r

vt

U
N

IT
S

 P
L

A
N

S

Project no:  19125
Date:  (07-31-20)
Drawn by:  Author
Project Manager: Checker

V
IL

L
A

G
E

 F
L
A

T
S

La
k
e
 &

 L
u
ce

rn
e

La
k
e
 W

o
rt

h
 B

e
ac

h
, 

F
L 

3
3
4

6
0

S
IT

E
 P

LA
N

 A
P

P
LI

C
A

T
IO

N

SITE PLAN SUBMITTAL

A9.0.1.

Scale:  3/16" = 1'-0"A9.0.1.

UNIT PLANS - UNIT 1 - BUILDING 1 - FIRST FLOOR1

Scale:  3/16" = 1'-0"A9.0.1.

UNIT PLANS - UNIT 2 - SECOND FLOOR - BUILDING 12

Scale:  3/16" = 1'-0"A9.0.1.

UNIT PLANS - UNIT 3 - THIRD FLOOR - BUILDING 13

Scale:  3/16" = 1'-0"A9.0.1.

UNIT PLANS - UNIT 4 - BUILDING 24



2
8

5
 B

a
n

ya
n

 B
lv

d
  
 

W
e

st
 P

a
lm

 B
e

a
ch

 F
lo

ri
d

a
 3

3
4

0
1

 

A
 r

 c
 h

 i
 t

 e
 c

 t
 u

 r
 e

 •
I 
n
 t

 e
 r

 i
 o

 r
  
 D

 e
 s

 i
 g

 n

Revisions:

THESE DRAWINGS ARE FOR THE 
EXCLUSIVE USE OF SPINA OROURKE + 

PARTNERS, INC. AND MAY NOT BE 
DUPLICATED, REPRODUCED OR USED IN 
ANY MANNER WITHOUT THE EXPRESS 

WRITTEN CONSENT OF SPINA OROURKE 
+ PARTNERS, INC. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

5
6
1
.6

8
4
.6

8
4
4
  
•

F
ax

 5
6
1
.6

8
4
.5

5
9
4

sp
in

ao
ro

u
rk

e
.c

o
m

F
L 

Li
c 

#
 A

A
2
6

0
0
2

3
9

9

K
e

it
h

 M
. 

S
p

in
a

 #
 A

R
1
3

4
1
9

 

8
/1

2
/2

0
2
0
 9

:5
8
:4

5
 A

M
C

:\
U

se
rs

\E
d

\D
o

cu
m

e
n
ts

\L
W

 R
E

S
1
9
1
2
5
_6

_E
d

_L
e
b

la
n
c_

E
d

_L
e
b

la
n
c_

E
d

_L
e
b

la
n
c.

rv
t

R
E

N
D

E
R

IN
G

 1

Project no:  Project Number
Date:  (07-31-20)
Drawn by:  Author
Project Manager: Checker

V
IL

L
A

G
E

 F
L
A

T
S

La
k
e
 &

 L
u
ce

rn
e

La
k
e
 W

o
rt

h
 B

e
ac

h
, 

F
L 

3
3
4
6

0

S
IT

E
 P

LA
N

 A
P

P
LI

C
A

T
IO

N

SITE PLAN APPLICATION

R-1

VIEW LOOKING SOUTHEAST ON LUCERNE AVENUE



2
8

5
 B

a
n

ya
n

 B
lv

d
  
 

W
e

st
 P

a
lm

 B
e

a
ch

 F
lo

ri
d

a
 3

3
4

0
1

 

A
 r

 c
 h

 i
 t

 e
 c

 t
 u

 r
 e

 •
I 
n
 t

 e
 r

 i
 o

 r
  
 D

 e
 s

 i
 g

 n

Revisions:

THESE DRAWINGS ARE FOR THE 
EXCLUSIVE USE OF SPINA OROURKE + 

PARTNERS, INC. AND MAY NOT BE 
DUPLICATED, REPRODUCED OR USED IN 
ANY MANNER WITHOUT THE EXPRESS 

WRITTEN CONSENT OF SPINA OROURKE 
+ PARTNERS, INC. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

5
6
1
.6

8
4
.6

8
4
4
  
•

F
ax

 5
6
1
.6

8
4
.5

5
9
4

sp
in

ao
ro

u
rk

e
.c

o
m

F
L 

Li
c 

#
 A

A
2
6

0
0
2

3
9

9

K
e

it
h

 M
. 

S
p

in
a

 #
 A

R
1
3

4
1
9

 

8
/1

2
/2

0
2
0
 9

:5
7
:3

6
 A

M
C

:\
U

se
rs

\E
d

\D
o

cu
m

e
n
ts

\L
W

 R
E

S
1
9
1
2
5
_6

_E
d

_L
e
b

la
n
c_

E
d

_L
e
b

la
n
c_

E
d

_L
e
b

la
n
c.

rv
t

R
E

N
D

E
R

IN
G

 A
L

T
E

R
N

A
T

E

Project no:  Project Number
Date:  (07-31-20)
Drawn by:  Author
Project Manager: Checker

V
IL

L
A

G
E

 F
L
A

T
S

La
k
e
 &

 L
u
ce

rn
e

La
k
e
 W

o
rt

h
 B

e
ac

h
, 

F
L 

3
3
4
6

0

S
IT

E
 P

LA
N

 A
P

P
LI

C
A

T
IO

N

SITE PLAN APPLICATION

R-1A

VIEW LOOKING SOUTHEAST ON LUCERNE AVENUE



MTL-1

C
O

LO
R

 A
N

D
 M

A
TE

R
IA

L 
B

O
A

R
D

28
5 

B
an

ya
n 

B
lv

d
   

W
es

t 
Pa

lm
 B

ea
ch

 F
lo

ri
d

a 
33

40
1 

A
 r

 c
 h

 i 
t 

e 
c 

t 
u 

r 
e 

•
I n

 t
 e

 r
 i 

o 
r 

  D
 e

 s
 i 

g
 n

Revisions:

THESE DRAWINGS ARE FOR THE 
EXCLUSIVE USE OF SPINA OROURKE + 

PARTNERS, INC. AND MAY NOT BE 
DUPLICATED, REPRODUCED OR USED IN 
ANY MANNER WITHOUT THE EXPRESS 

WRITTEN CONSENT OF SPINA OROURKE 
+ PARTNERS, INC. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

56
1.

68
4.

68
44

  •
Fa

x 
56

1.
68

4.
55

94
sp

in
ao

ro
ur

ke
.c

om
FL

 L
ic

 #
 A

A
26

00
23

99

K
e

it
h 

M
. S

p
in

a 
# 

A
R1

34
19

 

8/
12

/2
02

0 
9:

35
:2

1 
A

M
C

:\
U

se
rs

\E
d

\D
oc

um
en

ts
\L

W
 R

E
S

19
12

5_
6_

E
d

_L
eb

la
nc

_E
d_

Le
b

la
nc

_E
d

_L
eb

la
nc

.r
vt

Project no:  Project Number
Date:  (07-31-20)
Drawn by:  Author
Project Manager: Checker

V
IL

LA
G

E
 F

LA
TS

La
ke

 &
 L

uc
er

ne
La

ke
 W

or
th

 B
ea

ch
, F

L 
33

46
0

SI
TE

 P
LA

N
 A

PP
LI

C
A

TI
O

N



2
8

5
 B

a
n

ya
n

 B
lv

d
  
 

W
e

st
 P

a
lm

 B
e

a
ch

 F
lo

ri
d

a
 3

3
4

0
1

 

A
 r

 c
 h

 i
 t

 e
 c

 t
 u

 r
 e

 •
I 
n
 t

 e
 r

 i
 o

 r
  
 D

 e
 s

 i
 g

 n

Revisions:

THESE DRAWINGS ARE FOR THE 
EXCLUSIVE USE OF SPINA OROURKE + 

PARTNERS, INC. AND MAY NOT BE 
DUPLICATED, REPRODUCED OR USED IN 
ANY MANNER WITHOUT THE EXPRESS 

WRITTEN CONSENT OF SPINA OROURKE 
+ PARTNERS, INC. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

5
6
1
.6

8
4
.6

8
4
4
  
•

F
ax

 5
6
1
.6

8
4
.5

5
9
4

sp
in

ao
ro

u
rk

e
.c

o
m

F
L 

Li
c 

#
 A

A
2
6

0
0

2
3
9

9

K
e

it
h

 M
. 

S
p

in
a

 #
 A

R
1
3

4
1
9

 

9
/2

1
/2

0
2
0
 1

:2
5
:2

0
 P

M
B

IM
 3

6
0
:/

/V
ill

ag
e
 F

la
ts

/V
IL

LA
G

E
_F

LA
T

S
_2

0
2
0
.r

vt

R
E

N
D

E
R

IN
G

 2

Project no:  19125
Date:  (07-31-20)
Drawn by:  MR
Project Manager: CS, EL

V
IL

L
A

G
E

 F
L
A

T
S

La
k
e
 &

 L
u
ce

rn
e

La
k
e
 W

o
rt

h
 B

e
ac

h
, 

F
L 

3
3
4

6
0

S
IT

E
 P

LA
N

 A
P

P
LI

C
A

T
IO

N

SITE PLAN SUBMITTAL

R-2.

VIEW LOOKING NORTHEAST ON LAKE AVENUE & NORTH 'E' STREET





W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

SL
SL

SL
SL

SL

W

W

W

WW

F
F

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D

D

D

D

E

E

E

E

EE

LUCERNE AVENUE

LAKE AVENUE

N
. E

 S
T

R
E

E
T

N
. F

 S
T

R
E

E
T

S0
1°

25
'3

0"
W

   
   

10
0.

00
'

S0
1°

25
'3

0"
W

   
 1

00
.0

0'

S0
1°

25
'3

0"
W

 1
00

.0
0'

S88°37'44"E   175.00'

S88°36'45"E

35.00'

S0
1°

25
'3

0"
W

95
.0

0'

S88°37'44"E

S88°36'45"E 70.00'

S0
1°

25
'3

0"
W

 1
00

.0
0'

S88°37'14"E   70.00'

S0
1°

25
'3

0"
W

   
 1

00
.0

0'

S0
1°

25
'3

0"
W

   
   

 1
00

.0
0'

35.00'

S88°37'14"E 

S0
1°

25
'3

0"
W

95
.0

0'

H Y D

T

T

PR
OP

. R
ES

IDE
NT

IAL
 BU

ILD
ING

FF
E 1

6.5
0 N

AV
D

PROP. RESIDENTIAL BUILDING
FFE 16.50 NAVD

1

2

3

4

EXISTING SMALL PALMS
TO BE REMOVED

20' FP&L LANDSCAPE SETBACK

30' FP&L LANDSCAPE SETBACK

30' FP&L LANDSCAPE SETBACK

20' FP&L LANDSCAPE SETBACK

HAC
61

DUR
20

DUR
74

1� 20


0 2051020

TREE DISPOSITION
PLAN

L-1.0

G
:\
IN
H
A
B
IT
 
LA

K
E
 
W
O
R
T
H
 
B
E
A
C
H
\
2
0
2
0
\
F
2
0
0
0
5
3
 
-
 
LU

C
E
R
N
E
 
A
V
E
 
&
 
N
O
R
T
H
 
E
 
S
T
R
E
E
T
, 
LA

K
E
 
W
O
R
T
H
\
D
W
G
\
2
0
2
0
-
0
9
-
16
 
-
 
S
IT
E
 
P
LA

N
\
LA

N
D
S
C
A
P
E
\
F
2
0
0
0
5
3
 
LA

N
D
S
C
A
P
E
-
-
-
-
-
>
LA

Y
O
U
T
: 
L-

1.
0

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

PROJECT No.:
DRAWN BY:
CHECKED BY:

CAD I.D.:

REVISIONS:

PROJECT:

FOR

F200053 LANDSCAPE

6300 NW 31ST AVENUE
FORT LAUDERDALE, FL 33309

PH: (954) 202-7000
FX: (954) 202-7070

www.ThomasEngineeringGroup.com

KNOW WHAT'S BELOW
ALWAYS CALL 811
BEFORE YOU DIG

IW
s IasW. IW
s Iree. IW
s Whe Oaw.

www.caOOsunshine.com

DATE:

C
IV

IL
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

S 
- P

R
O

JE
C

T
 M

A
N

A
G

E
R

S 
- L

A
N

D
 P

L
A

N
N

IN
G

 - 
L

A
N

D
SC

A
P

E
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

15
02

 W
. F

LE
TC

H
ER

 A
VE

.
SU

IT
E 

10
1

TA
M

PA
, F

L 
33

61
2

P:
 8

13
-3

79
-4

10
0

12
5 

W
 IN

D
IA

N
TO

W
N

 R
D

.
SU

IT
E 

20
6

JU
PI

TE
R

, F
L 

33
45

8
P:

 5
61

-2
03

-7
50

3

63
00

 N
W

 3
1S

T 
AV

EN
U

E
FT

. L
AU

D
ER

D
AL

E,
 F

L 
33

30
9

P:
 9

54
-2

02
-7

00
0

FLORIDA BUSINESS CERT. OF AUTH. No. 27528
SepWemEer 21, 2020

9ILLA*E
)LATS

IN+A%IT LA.E 
:ORT+ %EA&+� LL&

LA.E :ORT+ %EA&+� )L

F200053
JFV

MTK
07-24-2020

SITE 3LAN SUB0ITTAL

REGISTERED LANDSCA3E ARCHITECT
FLORIDA LICENSE No. 6666871

0ICHAEL D� GROSSWIRTH

THE SEAL APPEARING ON THIS DOCUMENT WAS AUTHORIZED BY MICHAEL D. GROSSWIRTH, LA6666871 ON 2020-09-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
ATTENNA

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESIDENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ONE STY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESIDENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.F.=16.83

AutoCAD SHX Text
ONE STY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESIDENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ONE STY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.5' CONC. SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE "F"/VALLEY C&G

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE "F"/

AutoCAD SHX Text
VALLEY C&G

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' WOODEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
ONE STY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.M.H.  RIM=15.05'  UNABLE TO OBTAIN INVERT DUE TO WATER OBSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.B.  RIM=14.63' E.INV.=11.33'(15" CP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.B.  RIM=14.93'  N.W. INV.=10.58'(15" CP) W.INV.=10.58')15" CP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.M.H.  RIM=15.19'  N.INV.=10.51'(15" CP) S.INV.=6.71'(36" CP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.M.H.  RIM=15.48'  N.INV.=10.82'(6" CP) S.INV.=10.85'(15" CP) E.INV.=10.92'(18" CP) W.INV.=10.88'(18" CP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST. CLEAN-OUT (BROKEN)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 8" CLAY SANITARY MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 8

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 15

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 16

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK "D"

AutoCAD SHX Text
35.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15 N E ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 11

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 7

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 9

AutoCAD SHX Text
35.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 14

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 10

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT A

AutoCAD SHX Text
URBAN ARTS LOFTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P.B. 116, PG. 72

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.B.C.R.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
35.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
#1230

AutoCAD SHX Text
#1228

AutoCAD SHX Text
#1224

AutoCAD SHX Text
#1212

AutoCAD SHX Text
VACANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.M.H.  RIM=15.82'  S.INV.=9.19' (UNABLE TO OBTAIN SIZE AND MATERIAL DUE TO OBSTRUCTION)

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.M.H.  RIM=15.67'  N.INV.=6.50'(36" CP) S.INV.=6.51'(36" CP) W.INV.=8.52'(24" CP) E.INV.=UNABLE TO OBTAIN INVERT DUE TO OBSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.B.  RIM=15.51' S.INV.=11.50'(12" CP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.M.H.  RIM=14.45'  W.INV.=11.65'(8" CLAY) N.INV.=11.60'(8" CLAY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 36" RCP STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 15" RCP STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 15" RCP STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 15" RCP STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 15" RCP STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 4" CIP WATER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 12" CIP WATER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 12" CIP WATER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 24" RCP STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 12" RCP STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMENT:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Printed on Monday, September 21, 2020, 3:20 PM by Max KaplanMonday, September 21, 2020, 3:20 PM by Max Kaplan, 3:20 PM by Max Kaplan3:20 PM by Max Kaplan by Max KaplanMax Kaplan

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE INFORMATION, DESIGN AND CONTENT OF THIS PLAN ARE PROPRIETARY AND SHALL NOT BE COPIED OR USED FOR ANY PURPOSE WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN AUTHORIZATION FROM THOMAS ENGINEERING GROUP, LLC. ONLY APPROVED, SIGNED AND SEALED PLANS SHALL BE UTILIZED FOR CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES  c  2015 THOMAS ENGINEERING GROUP, LLC. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
8. WATERING:  All plant material shall be watered in at time of planting in accordance with standard nursery practices.  In addition, Contractor will continue watering of plant material until substantial completion and as needed thereafter for a period of 2 months. 9. No plant material will be accepted showing evidence of cable, chain marks, equipment scars, or otherwise damaged. 10. Plant material will not be accepted when the ball of earth surrounding its roots has been cracked, broken or otherwise damaged. 11. Root-prune all trees a minimum of (8) weeks prior to planting. 12. Tree protection barricades shall be provided by Landscape Contractor around existing trees that may be impacted by the proposed construction.  Prior to any construction a tree protection barricade inspection shall be conducted by the landscape architect, owner or governing municipality.  Refer to Landscape detail for tree preservation barricade fencing.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1. Contractor is responsible for determining all utility locations and installing facilities so as to not conflict.  All damage to existing utilities or improvements caused by Contractor shall be repaired at no additional cost to the Owner. 2. Contractor to notify "Sunshine State One Call of Florida, Inc." at 1-800-432-4770 Two Full Business Days prior to digging for underground utility locations. 3. Contractor shall be responsible for providing final grading of all associated planting areas. 4. After final grade, area to be raked to 6" depth and all rock and foreign inorganic materials removed and disposed of properly off-site. 5. All planting holes to be hand dug except where machine dug holes will not adversely affect or damage utilities or improvements (see note 8).  6. No plunging of any tree or palm will be accepted.  All plants to be planted at the nursery grade or slightly higher. 7. Contractor shall stake & guy all trees and palms at time of planting as per the appropriate detail.  Contractor is responsible for the maintenance and/or repair of all staking and guying during warranty period and removal & disposal of staking after establishment period. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%uGENERAL NOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO ENTRY OR STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENCROACHMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIPLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO DRIP LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARRICADE FENCING DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE PRESERVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
AT DRIP LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"x4" MIN. WOOD POST

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIGH VISIBILITY MESH.

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF ORANGE "TENSOR"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' HT. BARRICADE FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' HT.



W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

SL
SL

SL
SL

SL

W

W

W

WW

F
F

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D

D

D

D

E

E

E

E

EE

LUCERNE AVENUE

LAKE AVENUE

N
. E

 S
T

R
E

E
T

N
. F

 S
T

R
E

E
T

S0
1°

25
'3

0"
W

   
   

10
0.

00
'

S0
1°

25
'3

0"
W

   
 1

00
.0

0'

S0
1°

25
'3

0"
W

 1
00

.0
0'

S88°37'44"E   175.00'

S88°36'45"E

35.00'

S0
1°

25
'3

0"
W

95
.0

0'

S88°37'44"E

S88°36'45"E 70.00'

S0
1°

25
'3

0"
W

 1
00

.0
0'

S88°37'14"E   70.00'

S0
1°

25
'3

0"
W

   
 1

00
.0

0'

S0
1°

25
'3

0"
W

   
   

 1
00

.0
0'

35.00'

S88°37'14"E 

S0
1°

25
'3

0"
W

95
.0

0'

H Y D

T

T

PR
OP

. R
ES

IDE
NT

IAL
 BU

ILD
ING

FF
E 1

6.5
0 N

AV
D

PROP. RESIDENTIAL BUILDING
FFE 16.50 NAVD

1

4

20' FP&L LANDSCAPE SETBACK

30' FP&L LANDSCAPE SETBACK

30' FP&L LANDSCAPE SETBACK

20' FP&L LANDSCAPE SETBACK

POD
43

NEB
30

SP
3

TRA
7

COT
10

IC
2

ILX
62

TRA
14

NEB
59

SP
6

TRA
16

SP
6

NEB
60

TRA
16

ILX
51

IC
3

NEB
67

SP
3

TRA
18

IVC
11

LM
2

SP
3

CES
3

CS
1

VIB
8

CAP
13

MC
1

SP
3

IVC
17

LM
3

IVC
23

CNR
1

CE-S
2

SP
3

CHH
14

SP
3

CHH
181

CE-S
3

MC
3

CE-S
1

QV
3

CE-S
1

MC
3

CS
2DR

1
CE-S

7

TRA
30

QV
4

SOD

SODSOD

muOch

SOD

SOD

SOD SOD

SOD

SODSODCHH
59

HAC
61

LM
7

SP
3

CES
5

VIB
41

DUR
20

DRM
2

CAM
14

DUR
74

SOD

SOD

muOch
CES

7

20
 [ 20
 VISIBILITY
TRIANGLE

20
 [ 20
 VISIBILITY
TRIANGLE

10
 [ 10
 VISIBILITY
TRIANGLE

VIB
32

1� 20


0 2051020

LANDSCAPE PLAN

L-2.0

G
:\
IN
H
A
B
IT
 
LA

K
E
 
W
O
R
T
H
 
B
E
A
C
H
\
2
0
2
0
\
F
2
0
0
0
5
3
 
-
 
LU

C
E
R
N
E
 
A
V
E
 
&
 
N
O
R
T
H
 
E
 
S
T
R
E
E
T
, 
LA

K
E
 
W
O
R
T
H
\
D
W
G
\
2
0
2
0
-
0
9
-
16
 
-
 
S
IT
E
 
P
LA

N
\
LA

N
D
S
C
A
P
E
\
F
2
0
0
0
5
3
 
LA

N
D
S
C
A
P
E
-
-
-
-
-
>
LA

Y
O
U
T
: 
L-

2
.0

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

PROJECT No.:
DRAWN BY:
CHECKED BY:

CAD I.D.:

REVISIONS:

PROJECT:

FOR

F200053 LANDSCAPE

6300 NW 31ST AVENUE
FORT LAUDERDALE, FL 33309

PH: (954) 202-7000
FX: (954) 202-7070

www.ThomasEngineeringGroup.com

KNOW WHAT'S BELOW
ALWAYS CALL 811
BEFORE YOU DIG

IW
s IasW. IW
s Iree. IW
s Whe Oaw.

www.caOOsunshine.com

DATE:

C
IV

IL
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

S 
- P

R
O

JE
C

T
 M

A
N

A
G

E
R

S 
- L

A
N

D
 P

L
A

N
N

IN
G

 - 
L

A
N

D
SC

A
P

E
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

15
02

 W
. F

LE
TC

H
ER

 A
VE

.
SU

IT
E 

10
1

TA
M

PA
, F

L 
33

61
2

P:
 8

13
-3

79
-4

10
0

12
5 

W
 IN

D
IA

N
TO

W
N

 R
D

.
SU

IT
E 

20
6

JU
PI

TE
R

, F
L 

33
45

8
P:

 5
61

-2
03

-7
50

3

63
00

 N
W

 3
1S

T 
AV

EN
U

E
FT

. L
AU

D
ER

D
AL

E,
 F

L 
33

30
9

P:
 9

54
-2

02
-7

00
0

FLORIDA BUSINESS CERT. OF AUTH. No. 27528
SepWemEer 21, 2020

9,LLA*E
)LA7S

,N+A%,7 LA.E 
:257+ %EAC+� LLC

LA.E :257+ %EAC+� )L

F200053
JFV

MTK
07-24-2020

SITE 3LAN SUB0ITTAL

REGISTERED LANDSCA3E ARCHITECT
FLORIDA LICENSE No. 6666871

0ICHAEL D� GROSSWIRTH

THE SEAL APPEARING ON THIS DOCUMENT WAS AUTHORIZED BY MICHAEL D. GROSSWIRTH, LA6666871 ON 2020-09-21

ALL EXISTING TREES TO REMAIN SHALL
BE STRUCTURALLY PRUNED AND
TRIMMED UNDER THE SUPERVISION OF
AN ISA CERTIFIED ARBORIST.

ALL NUISANCE, EXOTIC
VEGETATION SHALL BE
ERADICATED 	 REMOVED
FROM THE ENTIRE SITE

ALL TREES TO REMAIN MUST BE
PROTECTED BY TREE
PROTECTION BARRICADES
MEETING THE MINIMUM
STANDARDS. PROTECTIVE
BARRICADES SHALL REMAIN IN
PLACE UNTIL LAND ALTERATION
AND CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES
ARE COMPLETED.

DURING LAND ALTERATION AND CONSTRUCTION
ACTIVITIES, IT SHALL BE UNLAWFUL TO REMOVE
VEGETATION BY GRUBBING OR TO PLACE SOIL
DEPOSITS, DEBRIS, SOLVENTS, CONSTRUCTION
MATERIAL, MACHINERY OR OTHER EQUIPMENT
OF ANY KIND WITHIN THE DRIPLINE OF A TREE
TO REMAIN ON THE SITE UNLESS OTHERWISE
APPROVED BY THE CITY

ALL TRIMMING UNDERTAKEN ON
A TREE PROTECTED BY THE
PROVISIONS OF THE LAND
DEVELOPMENT CODE SHALL BE
PRUNED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
THE AMERICAN NATIONAL
STANDARDS INSTITUTE (ANSI)
A-300 PRUNING STANDARDS

ALL LANDSCAPED AREAS TO BE FULLY COVERED BY AUTOMATIC
IRRIGATION SYSTEM AS PER CITY CODES AND REQUIREMENTS.
SEE SEPARATE IRRIGATION PLANS FOR FURTHER INFORMATION.

ALL COMPACTED SOIL, ROAD ROCK AND
EXCESS DEBRIS SHALL BE REMOVED AND
A 24� LAYER OF SOIL FAVORABLE TO TREE
AND SHRUB GROWTH AND SUSTAINABILITY
EXISTS OVER ALL PLANTING AREAS.  SOIL
COMPOSITION SHOULD CONTAIN 2-4� OR
ORGANIC MATTER WITH REMOVAL OF ANY
LARGE ROCKS OR DEBRIS, LARGER THAN
A LEMON.

ANY PERVIOUS AREA TO REMAIN
THAT IS DISTURBED BY
CONSTRUCTION 	 IS NOT NOTED
ON THE LANDSCAPE PLAN TO
HAVE SHRUBS OR
GROUNDCOVER SHALL BE
SODDED

SEE SHEET L-2.1 FOR PLANT SCHEDULES, CODE
CHART, 	 TREE MITIGATION REQUIREMENTS

PRIOR TO THE ISSUANCE OF A CERTIFICATE OF
OCCUPANCY, THE APPLICANT SHALL FINE GRADE
AND SOD ALL DISTURBED AREAS WITH BAHIA SOD

ALL MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT, BACKFLOW
PREVENTERS, DUMPSTER ENCLOSURES, A�C
UNITS, ETC., SHALL BE SCREENED A MIN. OF 6�
ABOVE THE TOP OF THE EQUIPMENT IN
ADDITION TO THE MINIMUM LANDSCAPE
REQUIREMENTS (INCLUDING THOSE VISIBLE
FROM PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS).

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
ATTENNA

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESIDENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ONE STY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESIDENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.F.=16.83

AutoCAD SHX Text
ONE STY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESIDENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ONE STY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE "F"/VALLEY C&G

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE "F"/

AutoCAD SHX Text
VALLEY C&G

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' WOODEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
ONE STY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.M.H.  RIM=15.05'  UNABLE TO OBTAIN INVERT DUE TO WATER OBSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.B.  RIM=14.63' E.INV.=11.33'(15" CP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.B.  RIM=14.93'  N.W. INV.=10.58'(15" CP) W.INV.=10.58')15" CP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.M.H.  RIM=15.19'  N.INV.=10.51'(15" CP) S.INV.=6.71'(36" CP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.M.H.  RIM=15.48'  N.INV.=10.82'(6" CP) S.INV.=10.85'(15" CP) E.INV.=10.92'(18" CP) W.INV.=10.88'(18" CP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 8" CLAY SANITARY MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 8

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 15

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 16

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK "D"

AutoCAD SHX Text
35.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15 N E ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 11

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 7

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 9

AutoCAD SHX Text
35.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 14

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 10

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT A

AutoCAD SHX Text
URBAN ARTS LOFTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P.B. 116, PG. 72

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.B.C.R.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
35.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
#1230

AutoCAD SHX Text
#1228

AutoCAD SHX Text
#1224

AutoCAD SHX Text
#1212

AutoCAD SHX Text
VACANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.M.H.  RIM=15.82'  S.INV.=9.19' (UNABLE TO OBTAIN SIZE AND MATERIAL DUE TO OBSTRUCTION)

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.M.H.  RIM=15.67'  N.INV.=6.50'(36" CP) S.INV.=6.51'(36" CP) W.INV.=8.52'(24" CP) E.INV.=UNABLE TO OBTAIN INVERT DUE TO OBSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.B.  RIM=15.51' S.INV.=11.50'(12" CP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.M.H.  RIM=14.45'  W.INV.=11.65'(8" CLAY) N.INV.=11.60'(8" CLAY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 36" RCP STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 15" RCP STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 15" RCP STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 15" RCP STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 15" RCP STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 4" CIP WATER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 12" CIP WATER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 12" CIP WATER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 24" RCP STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 12" RCP STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMENT:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Printed on Monday, September 21, 2020, 3:20 PM by Max KaplanMonday, September 21, 2020, 3:20 PM by Max Kaplan, 3:20 PM by Max Kaplan3:20 PM by Max Kaplan by Max KaplanMax Kaplan

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE INFORMATION, DESIGN AND CONTENT OF THIS PLAN ARE PROPRIETARY AND SHALL NOT BE COPIED OR USED FOR ANY PURPOSE WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN AUTHORIZATION FROM THOMAS ENGINEERING GROUP, LLC. ONLY APPROVED, SIGNED AND SEALED PLANS SHALL BE UTILIZED FOR CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES  c  2015 THOMAS ENGINEERING GROUP, LLC. 



TREES CODE QTY COMMON NAME BOTANICAL NAME SPECIFICATIONS CAL/DBH HEIGHT SPREAD NATIVE XERIC REMARKS
CE-S 14 Silver Button Wood Conocarpus erectus sericeus 45 gal 3" Cal 12` Ht 3-4` Yes High 6` CT

CS 3 Orange Geiger Tree Cordia sebestena 45 gal 3" Cal 12` Ht 3-4` Yes High 5` CT

DR 1 Royal Poinciana Delonix regia 45 gal 3" Cal 12` Ht 3-4` No Medium

IC 5 Dahoon Holly Ilex cassine 45 gal 3" Cal 12` Ht 3-4` Yes High 6` CT

LM 12 Muskogee Crape Myrtle Lagerstroemia indica `Muskogee` 45 gal 3" Cal 12` Ht 3-4` No High 5` CT; Standard

MC 7 Wax Myrtle Myrica cerifera 25 gal multi-trunk, 3" Min. 8-10` Ht 3-4` Yes High 4` CT; MULTI

QV 7 Southern Live Oak Quercus virginiana 45 gal 3" Cal 12` Ht 4-5` Yes High 6` CT

PALM TREES CODE QTY COMMON NAME BOTANICAL NAME SPECIFICATIONS CAL/DBH HEIGHT SPREAD NATIVE XERIC REMARKS
SP 33 Cabbage Palmetto Sabal palmetto B & B 10-18` c.t. 10` Yes High Hurricane cut; Counted @3:1

RELOCATED TREES CODE QTY COMMON NAME BOTANICAL NAME SPECIFICATIONS CAL/DBH HEIGHT SPREAD NATIVE XERIC REMARKS
CNR 1 Coconut Palm Cocos nucifera NA As Noted on Sheet L-1.0 No Medium RELOCATED PALM #2

SHRUBS CODE QTY COMMON NAME BOTANICAL NAME SPECIFICATIONS SPACING HEIGHT SPREAD NATIVE XERIC REMARKS
CAP 13 Jamaica Caper Capparis cynophallophora 15 gal As Shown 4-5` Ht 2-3` Yes High

CES 15 Silver Button Wood Conocarpus erectus sericeus NA 30" 30" 24" Yes High full to base

CHH 254 Red Tip Cocoplum Chrysobalanus icaco `Red Tip` NA 30" 30" 24" Yes High Full to base; Maintain at 3` ht. Min
up to 5-6` ht. Max.; Verify
Maximum Ht. w/ Owner

COT 10 Black Magic Ti Plant Cordyline terminalis `Black Magic` 7 gal As Shown 30" 24" No Medium 3 ppp

DRM 2 Red Edged Dracaena Dracaena marginata 10 gal As Shown 5-6` Ht 2-3` No High 5 canes min.

POD 43 Shrubby Yew Podocarpus macrophyllus maki NA 24" 36" 24" No Medium full to base

VIB 81 Walter`s Viburnum Viburnum obovatujm - 24" 24" 18-24" Yes High Full to base

SHRUB AREAS CODE QTY COMMON NAME BOTANICAL NAME SPECIFICATIONS SPACING HEIGHT SPREAD NATIVE XERIC REMARKS
DUR 94 Sky Flower Duranta repens `Dwarf Golden` n/a 24" 14-16" 16-18" Yes High Full

HAC 61 Dwarf Fire Bush Hamelia patens `compacta` n/a 24" 18-24" 18-24" Yes High Full to base

NEB 216 Boston Fern Nephrolepis exaltata `Bostoniensis` n/a 24" 18" 18" Yes High

GROUND COVERS CODE QTY COMMON NAME BOTANICAL NAME SPECIFICATIONS SPACING HEIGHT SPREAD NATIVE XERIC REMARKS
CAM 14 Dwarf Natal Plum Carissa macrocarpa n/a 18" 14-16" 14-16" No Medium

ILX 113 Dwarf Schillings Holly Ilex vomitoria `Schillings Dwarf` n/a 18" 14-16" 14-16" Yes High

IVC 51 Southern Blue Flag Iris Iris virginica `Contraband Girl` n/a 12" 14-16" 10-12" No Medium

TRA 101 Asian Jasmine Trachelospermum asiaticum n/a 12" 16" 18" No Medium Dwarf; Full to base

PLANT SCHEDULE

PLANT SCHEDULE,
NOTES & DETAILS

L-2.1

G
:\
IN
H
A
B
IT
 
LA

K
E
 
W
O
R
T
H
 
B
E
A
C
H
\
2
0
2
0
\
F
2
0
0
0
5
3
 
-
 
LU

C
E
R
N
E
 
A
V
E
 
&
 
N
O
R
T
H
 
E
 
S
T
R
E
E
T
, 
LA

K
E
 
W
O
R
T
H
\
D
W
G
\
2
0
2
0
-
0
9
-
16
 
-
 
S
IT
E
 
P
LA

N
\
LA

N
D
S
C
A
P
E
\
F
2
0
0
0
5
3
 
LA

N
D
S
C
A
P
E
-
-
-
-
-
>
LA

Y
O
U
T
: 
L-

2
.1

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

PROJECT No.:
DRAWN BY:
CHECKED BY:

CAD I.D.:

REVISIONS:

PROJECT:

FOR

F200053 LANDSCAPE

6300 NW 31ST AVENUE
FORT LAUDERDALE, FL 33309

PH: (954) 202-7000
FX: (954) 202-7070

www.ThomasEngineeringGroup.com

KNOW WHAT'S BELOW
ALWAYS CALL 811
BEFORE YOU DIG

It's fast. It's free. It's the law.

www.callsunshine.com

DATE:

C
IV

IL
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

S 
- P

R
O

JE
C

T
 M

A
N

A
G

E
R

S 
- L

A
N

D
 P

L
A

N
N

IN
G

 - 
L

A
N

D
SC

A
P

E
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

15
02

 W
. F

LE
TC

H
ER

 A
VE

.
SU

IT
E 

10
1

TA
M

PA
, F

L 
33

61
2

P:
 8

13
-3

79
-4

10
0

12
5 

W
 IN

D
IA

N
TO

W
N

 R
D

.
SU

IT
E 

20
6

JU
PI

TE
R

, F
L 

33
45

8
P:

 5
61

-2
03

-7
50

3

63
00

 N
W

 3
1S

T 
AV

EN
U

E
FT

. L
AU

D
ER

D
AL

E,
 F

L 
33

30
9

P:
 9

54
-2

02
-7

00
0

FLORIDA BUSINESS CERT. OF AUTH. No. 27528
September 21, 2020

9ILLA*E
)LATS

INHA%IT LA.E 
:O5TH %EACH, LLC

LA.E :O5TH %EACH, )L

F200053
JFV

MTK
07-24-2020

SITE 3LAN SUB0ITTAL

REGISTERED LANDSCA3E ARCHITECT
FLORIDA LICENSE No. 6666871

0ICHAEL D� GROSSWIRTH

THE SEAL APPEARING ON THIS DOCUMENT WAS AUTHORI=ED BY MICHAEL D. GROSSWIRTH, LA6666871 ON 2020-09-21

5'-0"
Minimum From

Edge of Rootball

6"
3'

-6
" D

ep
th

3'-0"
3'-0"CL

5'
-0

"
M

in

"Bio-Barrier" Is Manufactured By:
"Reemay, Inc." - 70 Old Hickory Blvd. - P.O.Box 511
Old Hickory, TN 37138 - Phone: 1-800-25-ROOTS

Applicable Use of Root Barriers:

If a Canopy Tree and/ or Palm Is To Be Installed
Within Less Than (10') Ten Feet Separation From A
Water Main (or Service) and/ or Sewer Main (or
Service).  The Landscape Contractor Shall Install a
Root Barrier Parallel To The Utility As Required and
as per This Detail.  The Contractor Shall Maintain A
(5') Five Feet Minimum Horizontal Distance From
Outside Edge of Rootball To The Utility or any Paved
or Concrete Surface.

The Landscape Contractor Shall Verify The Existing
Locations of The Applicable Water Utilities, In The
Field, Prior To Any Tree Installations Requiring A
Root Barrier.

Suggested Installation Method:

Dig A Vertical Trench Between The Root Source of
The Tree and The Surface and/ or Utility Line To Be
Protected.  The Trench Must Be At Least 6'-0" In
Length (Centered On Tree) and Must Be at Least
4'-0" In Depth Parallel To The Applicable Surface,
Service and/ or Utility.  Note: For New Tree
installations, Trench May Be Dug At The Same Time
as The Hole For The Applicable Tree and/ or Palm.

Using Impervious Gloves, Roll Out "Bio-Barrier" and
Trim To Fit The Specific Application. Insert The
Barrier Vertically Into The Trench, With The Top
Edge of The Barrier (6") Six Inches Below The Soil
Surface.

Tamp Backfill Firmly Into Trench With 'Bio-Barrier"
Contained, Eliminating Air Pockets or Soil Voids
Accordingly.  Dissolve The Coating and Activate The
Product By Saturating The Backfill and 'Bio-Barrier"
With Water.  After Completed, Smooth The Soil
Surface To Finish Grade, Allowing Excess Material
For Soil Setting.

Section 

Plan

*OR APPROVED EQUAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMENT:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Printed on Monday, September 21, 2020, 2:59 PM by Max KaplanMonday, September 21, 2020, 2:59 PM by Max Kaplan, 2:59 PM by Max Kaplan2:59 PM by Max Kaplan by Max KaplanMax Kaplan

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE INFORMATION, DESIGN AND CONTENT OF THIS PLAN ARE PROPRIETARY AND SHALL NOT BE COPIED OR USED FOR ANY PURPOSE WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN AUTHORIZATION FROM THOMAS ENGINEERING GROUP, LLC. ONLY APPROVED, SIGNED AND SEALED PLANS SHALL BE UTILIZED FOR CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES  c  2015 THOMAS ENGINEERING GROUP, LLC. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Water Utility Line

AutoCAD SHX Text
Note: The Root Barrier May Be Required To Wrap Around The Tree Where Deemed Appropiate.

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Bio-Barrier" (TM.) or (Similar) Root Barrier Control System

AutoCAD SHX Text
Barrier

AutoCAD SHX Text
Water/ Sewer Service Line or Egde of Pavement

AutoCAD SHX Text
Canopy  Tree or Palm

AutoCAD SHX Text
Walkway or Drive Isle

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPICAL ROOT BARRIER APPLICATION DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2" cal. and under)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SMALL TREE PLANTING DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BELOW GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAKES 18"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROTECT TREE WITH BURLAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
MULCH, 1" DEEP ON ROOT ZONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" BASIN FOR WATERING.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRUNE DAMAGED OR DEAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO PLANTING AS DIRECTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD IMMEDIATELY PRIOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
DO NOT CUT LEADER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET ROOTBALL ON UNDISTURBED SOIL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNTIE BURLAP FROM BASE OF TRUNK.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACKFILL WITH PLANTING SOIL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRIM AS NECESSARY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ABOVE SURROUNDING FINISH GRADE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET CROWN OF ROOT BALL 0'-2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2x BALL DIA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MULCH, 3" DEEP

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"x4"X8'-0" STAKE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLUORESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORANGE MARKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
ON BRACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NYLON STRAPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" WIDE MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(3 PER TREE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANT MATERIAL SHALL NOT BE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRUNED PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AFTER PLANTS HAVE BEEN INSTALLED,

AutoCAD SHX Text
EACH PLANT SHALL BE PRUNED 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR UNIFORMITY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MULCH, 3" DEEP

AutoCAD SHX Text
2x BALL DIA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET CROWN OF ROOT BALL 0'-1"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ABOVE SURROUNDING FINISH GRADE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACKFILL WITH PLANTING SOIL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET ROOTBALL ON UNDISTURBED SOIL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" BASIN FOR WATERING.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MULCH, 1" DEEP ON ROOT ZONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHRUB PLANTING DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIGARED SABAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PALM PLANTING DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MULCH, 1" DEEP ON ROOT ZONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORANGE MARKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2"x2' FLUORESCENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" BASIN FOR WATERING.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AT EQUAL SPACING

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"x4" WOOD BRACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HURRICANE CUT FRONDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET ROOTBALL ON UNDISTURBED SOIL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNTIE BURLAP FROM BASE OF TRUNK.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACKFILL WITH PLANTING SOIL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL CONDITIONS SUCH AS SAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"x4"x12" FOOT STAKE, FOR SOFT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRIM AS NECESSARY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ABOVE SURROUNDING FINISH GRADE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET CROWN OF ROOT BALL 0'-2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2x BALL DIA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MULCH, 3" DEEP

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/3 TRUNK

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"x4"x12" WOOD BATTENS

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL STRAPS SECURING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN 5 LAYERS BURLAP 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(3 PER TREE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
BURIED 3 FT. BELOW GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOE NAIL BRACES TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"X4" WOOD BATTENS

AutoCAD SHX Text
(3 PER TREE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" WIDE MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NYLON STRAPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ON BRACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORANGE MARKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLUORESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
(3 PER TREE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"x4"X8'-0" STAKES

AutoCAD SHX Text
MULCH, 3" DEEP

AutoCAD SHX Text
2x BALL DIA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET CROWN OF ROOT BALL 0'-2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ABOVE SURROUNDING FINISH GRADE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRIM AS NECESSARY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACKFILL WITH PLANTING SOIL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNTIE BURLAP FROM BASE OF TRUNK.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET ROOTBALL ON UNDISTURBED SOIL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DO NOT CUT LEADER

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD IMMEDIATELY PRIOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO PLANTING AS DIRECTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRUNE DAMAGED OR DEAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" BASIN FOR WATERING.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MULCH, 1" DEEP ON ROOT ZONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2" cal. and under) PLANTING DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
MULTI- TRUNK AND SMALL TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROTECT TREE WITH BURLAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAKES 18"

AutoCAD SHX Text
BELOW GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2" cal. and over)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LARGE TREE PLANTING DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MULCH, 1" DEEP ON ROOT ZONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORANGE MARKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2"x2' FLUORESCENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" BASIN FOR WATERING.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRUNE DAMAGED OR DEAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
AT EQUAL SPACING (3 PER TREE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" WIDE MIN. NYLON STRAPING

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO PLANTING AS DIRECTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD IMMEDIATELY PRIOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
DO NOT CUT LEADER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET ROOTBALL ON UNDISTURBED SOIL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNTIE BURLAP FROM BASE OF TRUNK.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACKFILL WITH PLANTING SOIL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" MIN BELOW FINISH GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"x2"x2' STAKE. TOP TO BE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRIM AS NECESSARY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ABOVE SURROUNDING FINISH GRADE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET CROWN OF ROOT BALL 0'-2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2x BALL DIA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MULCH, 3" DEEP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROTECT TREE WITH BURLAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"X4" WOOD BATTENS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOE NAIL BRACES TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
BURIED 3 FT. BELOW GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(3 PER TREE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN 5 LAYERS BURLAP 

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL STRAPS SECURING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"x4"x12" WOOD BATTENS

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/3 TRUNK

AutoCAD SHX Text
MULCH, 3" DEEP

AutoCAD SHX Text
2x BALL DIA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET CROWN OF ROOT BALL 0'-2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ABOVE SURROUNDING FINISH GRADE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRIM AS NECESSARY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"x4"x12" FOOT STAKE, FOR SOFT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL CONDITIONS SUCH AS SAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACKFILL WITH PLANTING SOIL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNTIE BURLAP FROM BASE OF TRUNK.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET ROOTBALL ON UNDISTURBED SOIL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNTIE FRONDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"x4" WOOD BRACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AT EQUAL SPACING

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" BASIN FOR WATERING.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2"x2' FLUORESCENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORANGE MARKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
MULCH, 1" DEEP ON ROOT ZONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LARGE PALM PLANTING DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHRUB / GROUNDCOVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPECIFICATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACCORDING TO 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPACING VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANT LIST

AutoCAD SHX Text
(SEE SPEC.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS SPECIFIED

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPACE PLANTS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS SPECIFIED

AutoCAD SHX Text
EQUAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EQUAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EQUAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EQUAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACKFILL MIX

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPACING / PLANTING DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MULCH, 3" DEEP



LANDSCAPE GENERAL
NOTES

L-2.2

G
:\
IN
H
A
B
IT
 
LA

K
E
 
W
O
R
T
H
 
B
E
A
C
H
\
2
0
2
0
\
F
2
0
0
0
5
3
 
-
 
LU

C
E
R
N
E
 
A
V
E
 
&
 
N
O
R
T
H
 
E
 
S
T
R
E
E
T
, 
LA

K
E
 
W
O
R
T
H
\
D
W
G
\
2
0
2
0
-
0
9
-
16
 
-
 
S
IT
E
 
P
LA

N
\
LA

N
D
S
C
A
P
E
\
F
2
0
0
0
5
3
 
LA

N
D
S
C
A
P
E
-
-
-
-
-
>
LA

Y
O
U
T
: 
L-

2
.2

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

PROJECT No.:
DRAWN BY:
CHECKED BY:

CAD I.D.:

REVISIONS:

PROJECT:

FOR

F200053 LANDSCAPE

6300 NW 31ST AVENUE
FORT LAUDERDALE, FL 33309

PH: (954) 202-7000
FX: (954) 202-7070

www.ThomasEngineeringGroup.com

KNOW WHAT'S BELOW
ALWAYS CALL 811
BEFORE YOU DIG

IW
s IasW. IW
s Iree. IW
s Whe Oaw.

www.caOOsunshine.com

DATE:

C
IV

IL
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

S 
- P

R
O

JE
C

T
 M

A
N

A
G

E
R

S 
- L

A
N

D
 P

L
A

N
N

IN
G

 - 
L

A
N

D
SC

A
P

E
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

15
02

 W
. F

LE
TC

H
ER

 A
VE

.
SU

IT
E 

10
1

TA
M

PA
, F

L 
33

61
2

P:
 8

13
-3

79
-4

10
0

12
5 

W
 IN

D
IA

N
TO

W
N

 R
D

.
SU

IT
E 

20
6

JU
PI

TE
R

, F
L 

33
45

8
P:

 5
61

-2
03

-7
50

3

63
00

 N
W

 3
1S

T 
AV

EN
U

E
FT

. L
AU

D
ER

D
AL

E,
 F

L 
33

30
9

P:
 9

54
-2

02
-7

00
0

FLORIDA BUSINESS CERT. OF AUTH. No. 27528
SepWemEer 21, 2020

9,LLAGE
)LATS

,N+A%,T LA.E 
:ORT+ %EAC+� LLC

LA.E :ORT+ %EAC+� )L

F200053
JFV

MTK
07-24-2020

SITE 3LAN SUB0ITTAL

REGISTERED LANDSCA3E ARCHITECT
FLORIDA LICENSE No. 6666871

0ICHAEL D� GROSSWIRTH

THE SEAL APPEARING ON THIS DOCUMENT WAS AUTHORIZED BY MICHAEL D. GROSSWIRTH, LA6666871 ON 2020-09-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMENT:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Printed on Monday, September 21, 2020, 3:00 PM by Max KaplanMonday, September 21, 2020, 3:00 PM by Max Kaplan, 3:00 PM by Max Kaplan3:00 PM by Max Kaplan by Max KaplanMax Kaplan

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE INFORMATION, DESIGN AND CONTENT OF THIS PLAN ARE PROPRIETARY AND SHALL NOT BE COPIED OR USED FOR ANY PURPOSE WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN AUTHORIZATION FROM THOMAS ENGINEERING GROUP, LLC. ONLY APPROVED, SIGNED AND SEALED PLANS SHALL BE UTILIZED FOR CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES  c  2015 THOMAS ENGINEERING GROUP, LLC. 



T

T

PR
OP

. R
ES

IDE
NT

IAL
 BU

ILD
ING

FF
E 1

6.5
0 N

AV
D

PROP. RESIDENTIAL BUILDING
FFE 16.50 NAVD

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

SL
SL

SL
SL

SL

W

W

W

WW

F
F

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D

D

D

D

E

E

E

E

EE

LUCERNE AVENUE

LAKE AVENUE

N
. E

 S
T

R
E

E
T

N
. F

 S
T

R
E

E
T

H Y D

16.5016.50
16.50 16.50

16.50

16.50
16.50

16.50

16.5016.5016.50

16.50

16.45

16.25

16.45
15.95 16.50

16.00

16.35
15.85

15.25

16.20

15.90

15.90

16.10

16.40
15.90

16.40
15.90

15.05

15.05

16.25

16.15

16.15

16.15

16.00

15.85
15.30 15.60

15.15 15.54
15.04

15.90
15.40

16.00
15.60

15.60

15.05

15.50

15.70

15.35
15.50

15.30
16.10

16.00

15.50

15.85

15.55

15.67

16.45

16.10

PROP. 68 LF 15" HDPE W/ 40 LF
4' D x 4' W EXFIL. TRENCH

:

:

No.
3

PROP. C-4
CATCH BASIN
RIM EL. 15.00
I.E. (N) PRB 8.00

:

:

:

:

No.
2

PROP. C-4
CATCH BASIN
RIM EL. 16.00
I.E. (S) 8.00
I.E. (W) PRB 11.00
I.E. (N) 12.00

:

:

:

:

No.
1

PROP. C-4
CATCH BASIN
RIM EL. 15.20
I.E. (E) PRB 11.00
I.E. (N) 12.00
I.E. (SW) 8.90

PROP. 61 LF 15" HDPE

15.10

15.00

15.00 15.00

15.00

15.1515.15

15.1515.15

16.40
16.05

16.40
15.95

16.40
15.85

16.40
15.90

16.40
16.00

16.50
16.00

16.00
15.50

16.40

PROP. VALLEY
GUTTER (TYP.)

15.00

15.34
14.96

15.41
15.03

PROP. CURB RAMP
TYPE CR-G  (TYP.)

PROP. CURB
RAMP TYPE
CR-G  (TYP.)

PROP. ADA RAMP  (TYP.)

PROP. 5' WIDE CONCRETE SIDEWALK
PER CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH

PUBLIC WORKS STANDARDS (TYP.)

PROP. TYPE 'F' CURB &
GUTTER (TYP.)

 MILL/OVERLAY ASPHALT AREA
1" MINIMUM TO CENTERLINE OF

ROADWAY PER CITY OF LAKE
WORTH BEACH PUBLIC WORKS

STANDARDS. RESTORE
PAVEMENT SECTION OVER

WATER MAIN INSTALLATION AS
REQUIRED (TYP.)

PROP. CONCRETE
SIDEWALK (TYP.)

15.90

15.9015.90

15.90
15.60

15.90

15.60

15.50

16.30
15.80

15.90
15.90 15.90

15.90
15.90

PROP. 6" C/O
I.E. 11.00

PROP. 6" PVC ROOF
DRAIN @ 1% SLOPE MIN.

PROP. 6"
PVC ROOF

DRAIN @ 1%
SLOPE MIN.

PROP. 6"
PVC ROOF

DRAIN @ 1%
SLOPE MIN.

PROP. 6" C/O
I.E. 9.50

PROP. 6" C/O
I.E. 12.30PROP. 6" C/O

I.E. 12.30

PROP. TYPE 'F' CURB
& GUTTER (TYP.)

LIMITS OF PROP. CURB & SIDEWALK.
MATCH EXIST. ELEVATIONS (TYP.)

16.50

16.50

15.60

15.90

16.40
16.00

16.00
15.60

16.40
16.00

16.00
15.60

16.40
15.40

16.40
15.40

15.63
15.25

LIMITS OF PROP. CURB & SIDEWALK.
MATCH EXIST. ELEVATIONS (TYP.)

15.81
15.43

15.48
15.10

15.00

14.98

15.33
14.95

15.40

PROP. TYPE 'F'
CURB & GUTTER
(TYP.)

PROP. 5' WIDE CONCRETE SIDEWALKPER CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH
PUBLIC WORKS STANDARDS (TYP.)

1"= 20'

0 2051020

PRELIMINARY PAVING,
GRADING & DRAINAGE

PLAN

C-01ELEVATIONS SHOWN HEREON ARE IN FEET AND BASED ON THE NORTH AMERICAN
VERTICAL DATUM OF 1988 (NAVD 88)

DATUM NOTE:

PROPOSED
 ASPHALT

PAVEMENT

PROPOSED
CONCRETE

HATCH LEGEND

SL

W

E

SANITARY SEWER
LATERAL

UNDERGROUND
WATER LINE

UNDERGROUND
ELECTRIC LINE

OVERHEAD
WIRE

UNDERGROUND
TELEPHONE LINE

UNDERGROUND
CABLE LINE

STORM
SEWER

SANITARY
SEWER MAIN

HYDRANT

SANITARY
MANHOLE

STORM
MANHOLE

S

CATCH
BASIN

GRADE SPOT
SHOT

PAVING, GRADING & DRAINAGE LEGEND

STORM SEWER
EXFILTRATION TRENCH

EXISTING PROPOSED

UNDERGROUND
ROOF DRAIN LINE

D

G
:\
IN
H
A
B
IT
 
LA
K
E
 
W
O
R
TH

 
B
E
A
C
H
\
2
0
2
0
\
F2
0
0
0
5
3
 
-
 
LU
C
E
R
N
E
 
A
V
E
 
&
 
N
O
R
TH

 
E
 
S
TR

E
E
T,
 
LA
K
E
 
W
O
R
TH

\
D
W
G
\
2
0
2
0
-
0
9
-
16
 
-
 
S
IT
E
 
P
LA
N
\
F2
0
0
0
5
3
 
P
G
D
-
-
-
-
-
>
LA
Y
O
U
T:
 
P
G
D

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

PROJECT No.:
DRAWN BY:
CHECKED BY:

CAD I.D.:

REVISIONS:

PROJECT:

FOR

F200053 PGD

6300 NW 31ST AVENUE
FORT LAUDERDALE, FL 33309

PH: (954) 202-7000
FX: (954) 202-7070

www.ThomasEngineeringGroup.com

KNOW WHAT'S BELOW
ALWAYS CALL 811
BEFORE YOU DIG

It's fast. It's free. It's the law.

www.callsunshine.com

DATE:

C
IV

IL
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

S 
- P

R
O

JE
C

T
 M

A
N

A
G

E
R

S 
- L

A
N

D
 P

L
A

N
N

IN
G

 - 
L

A
N

D
SC

A
P

E
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

15
02

 W
. F

LE
TC

H
ER

 A
VE

.
SU

IT
E 

10
1

TA
M

PA
, F

L 
33

61
2

P:
 8

13
-3

79
-4

10
0

12
5 

W
 IN

D
IA

N
TO

W
N

 R
D

.
SU

IT
E 

20
6

JU
PI

TE
R

, F
L 

33
45

8
P:

 5
61

-2
03

-7
50

3

63
00

 N
W

 3
1S

T 
AV

EN
U

E
FT

. L
AU

D
ER

D
AL

E,
 F

L 
33

30
9

P:
 9

54
-2

02
-7

00
0

FLORIDA BUSINESS CERT. OF AUTH. No. 27528
September 21, 2020

VILLAGE
FLATS

INHABIT LAKE 
WORTH BEACH, LLC

LAKE WORTH BEACH, FL

F200053
JFV

MTK
07-24-2020

SITE PLAN SUBMITTAL

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER
FLORIDA LICENSE No. 83366

MAXWELL T. KAPLAN

EXISTING
CONCRETE

PROPOSED
 ASPHALT

MILL &
RESURFACE

CONSTRUCTION NOTES:
1. CONTRACTOR TO SAW-CUT AT ALL LOCATIONS OF REMOVAL OF EXISTING CONC. SIDEWALK, CONC. CURB AND

ASPHALT UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. ALL BASE AND SUB-BASE MATERIAL SHALL BE REMOVED WITHIN THE
PROPOSED LANDSCAPED AREA.

2. CONTRACTOR TO MATCH EXIST. GRADES AND TO CONSTRUCT A SMOOTH TRANSITION FROM EXISTING FACILITIES
TO PROPOSED.

3. CONTRACTOR TO REMOVE ALL CONSTRUCTION DEBRIS FROM CONSTRUCTION SITE AND DISPOSE PER LOCAL
ORDINANCES.

4. CONTRACTOR TO ENSURE ALL CONSTRUCTION IS IN ACCORDANCE WITH CITY DESIGN STANDARDS.

5. CONTRACTOR TO SOD ALL DISTURBED AREAS, SODDING INCLUDES MAINTAINING SLOPE AND SOD UNTIL
COMPLETION AND ACCEPTANCE OF THE TOTAL PROJECT OR  GROWTH IS ESTABLISHED WHICHEVER COMES LAST.

6. ALL EXISTING TRAFFIC SIGNS DISTURBED DURING CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE REINSTALLED WHERE APPLICABLE
BY THE CONTRACTOR.

7. THESE PLANS REFLECT CONDITIONS KNOWN DURING PLAN DEVELOPMENT. IN THE EVENT THAT ACTUAL PHYSICAL
CONDITIONS PREVENT THE APPLICATION OF THESE STANDARDS OR THE PROGRESSION OF THE WORK, THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY THE ENGINEER PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION OF AFFECTED AREA.

8. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROTECT ALL EXISTING STRUCTURES, STORM DRAINS, UTILITIES, AND OTHER
FACILITIES TO REMAIN AND SHALL REPAIR ANY DAMAGES DUE TO HIS/HER CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES AT NO
ADDITIONAL COST TO THE OWNER.

9.     NOTIFY SUNSHINE STATE ONE CALL (1-800-432-4770) OR (811) PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.

10.   PROJECT BASED ON DESIGN SURVEY PREPARED BY OTHERS.

11.   THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOT ENCROACH ONTO PRIVATE PROPERTY WITHOUT EASEMENTS NECESSARY FOR
COMPLETION OF THE WORK.

12.   THE EXISTING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN ARE PER ABOVE GROUND SURVEY DATA AND UTILITY AS-BUILT
DATA. THIS INFORMATION DOES NOT WARRANT EXACT SIZE AND LOCATION OF THE UTILITIES. ALSO, THERE MAY
BE ADDITIONAL UTILITIES WITHIN THE LIMITS OF CONSTRUCTION THAT MAY BE AFFECTED. CONTRACTOR SHALL
BE RESPONSIBLE FOR MAINTAINING AND PROTECTING EXISTING UTILITIES DURING THE COURSE OF 
CONSTRUCTION.

13.   PLEASE SEE MEP PLANS FOR CONTINUATION OF ROOF LEADERS.

14.   2.0% MAXIMUM SLOPE ON HANDICAP SPACES AND ADA ACCESS WAYS.

15.   ALL SIDEWALKS SHOULD HAVE A MAXIMUM CROSS SLOPE OF 2.0%.

16.   EXISTING COVER MUST BE MAINTAINED ON ALL WATER AND SANITARY LINES.

17.   EXISTING SEWER MUST REMAIN FREE FROM CONSTRUCTION DEBRIS AND FLOW MUST BE MAINTAINED.

18.   NO STRUCTURES SHALL BE ALLOWED IN UTILITY EASEMENT.

19. PRB = POLLUTION RETARDANT BAFFLE

20. ELEVATIONS ARE BASED ON NORTH AMERICAN VERTICAL DATUM OF 1988.

21.   ALL CONSTRUCTION AND RESTORATION WORK WITHIN THE R/W SHALL COMPLY WITH THE LATEST EDITION OF
THE FDOT STANDARD INDEX AND THE FDOT STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR ROAD AND BRIDGE 
CONSTRUCTION.

22. ANY DAMAGE TO PBC-TRAFFIC ITS FACILITIES CAUSED BY CONSTRUCTION OF THIS PROJECT MUST BE REPAIRED
OR REPLACED TO ORIGINAL OR BETTER CONDITION BY THE

CONTRACTOR AT NO COST TO PALM BEACH COUNTY.  PALM BEACH COUNTY RESERVES THE RIGHT
TO DETERMINE IF DAMAGED PBC FACILITIES WILL BE BE REPAIRED OR REPLACED.

23. MINIMUM FINISHED FLOOR ELEVATION = 16.50' NAVD. FEMA FLOOD ZONE X, REPRESENTS AREAS OUTSIDE OF 
THE 500-YEAR FLOOD PLAIN WITH LESS THAN 0-2% ANNUAL PROBABILITY OF FLOODING

15.25

PRIOR TO THE ISSUANCE OF A CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY, THE APPLICANT SHALL ENSURE THE ENTIRE SURROUNDING OFF-SITE
INFRASTRUCTURE INCLUSIVE OF THE ROADWAY, SIDEWALK, CURBING, STORMWATER SYSTEM PIPING AND STRUCTURES, VALVE BOXES,
MANHOLES, LANDSCAPING, STRIPING, SIGNAGE, AND OTHER IMPROVEMENTS ARE IN THE SAME CONDITION AS PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.
THE APPLICANT SHALL RESTORE THE RIGHT OF WAY TO A LIKE OR BETTER CONDITION. ANY DAMAGES TO PAVEMENT, CURBING,
STRIPING, SIDEWALKS OR OTHER AREAS SHALL BE RESTORED IN KIND

NOTE:

PROPOSED
PERVIOUS

PAVER BRICKS

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
ATTENNA

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.55

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.15

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.43

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.51

AutoCAD SHX Text
19.85

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.41

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.20

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.84

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.84

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.72

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.54

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.28

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.13

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.08

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.66

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.24

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.86

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.45

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.44

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.08

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.38

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.10

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.66

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.76

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.15

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.78

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.81

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.87

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.94

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.71

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.26

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.32

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.73

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.45

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.45

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.97

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.42

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.45

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.18

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.33

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.64

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.40

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.72

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.60

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.61

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.71

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.80

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.15

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.10

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.26

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.32

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.54

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.96

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.07

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.61

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.86

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.73

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.12

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.27

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.82

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.85

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.39

AutoCAD SHX Text
S88%%D36'45"E 105.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESIDENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ONE STY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESIDENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.F.=16.83

AutoCAD SHX Text
ONE STY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESIDENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ONE STY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' CONC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=15.73

AutoCAD SHX Text
8' CONC.       SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=15.46'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
40' PUBLIC R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE "F"/VALLEY C&G

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE "F"/

AutoCAD SHX Text
VALLEY C&G

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.54

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' WOODEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
ONE STY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.42

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.58

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.95

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.95

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.80

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.93

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.95

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.09

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.24

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.69

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.77

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.43

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.41

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.57

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.74

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.84

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.73

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.83

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.84

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.76

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.66

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.82

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.82

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.82

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.82

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.86

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.94

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.80

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.61

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.73

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.09

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.10

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.53

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.61

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.87

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.71

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.58

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.47

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.44

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.73

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.91

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.17

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.09

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.M.H.  RIM=15.05'  UNABLE TO OBTAIN INVERT DUE TO WATER OBSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.B.  RIM=14.63' E.INV.=11.33'(15" CP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.B.  RIM=14.93'  N.W. INV.=10.58'(15" CP) W.INV.=10.58')15" CP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.M.H.  RIM=15.19'  N.INV.=10.51'(15" CP) S.INV.=6.71'(36" CP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.M.H.  RIM=15.48'  N.INV.=10.82'(6" CP) S.INV.=10.85'(15" CP) E.INV.=10.92'(18" CP) W.INV.=10.88'(18" CP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
40' PUBLIC R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 8" CLAY SANITARY MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 8

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 15

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 16

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK "D"

AutoCAD SHX Text
35.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15 N E ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 11

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 7

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 9

AutoCAD SHX Text
35.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 14

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 10

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT A

AutoCAD SHX Text
URBAN ARTS LOFTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P.B. 116, PG. 72

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.B.C.R.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
35.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
#1230

AutoCAD SHX Text
#1228

AutoCAD SHX Text
#1224

AutoCAD SHX Text
#1212

AutoCAD SHX Text
VACANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.M.H.  RIM=15.82'  S.INV.=9.19' (UNABLE TO OBTAIN SIZE AND MATERIAL DUE TO OBSTRUCTION)

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.M.H.  RIM=15.67'  N.INV.=6.50'(36" CP) S.INV.=6.51'(36" CP) W.INV.=8.52'(24" CP) E.INV.=UNABLE TO OBTAIN INVERT DUE TO OBSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.B.  RIM=15.51' S.INV.=11.50'(12" CP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.M.H.  RIM=14.45'  W.INV.=11.65'(8" CLAY) N.INV.=11.60'(8" CLAY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 36" RCP STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 15" RCP STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 15" RCP STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 15" RCP STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 15" RCP STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 4" CIP WATER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 12" CIP WATER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 12" CIP WATER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 24" RCP STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 12" RCP STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
XX.XX

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMENT:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Printed on Monday, September 21, 2020, 3:35 PM by Max KaplanMonday, September 21, 2020, 3:35 PM by Max Kaplan, 3:35 PM by Max Kaplan3:35 PM by Max Kaplan by Max KaplanMax Kaplan

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE INFORMATION, DESIGN AND CONTENT OF THIS PLAN ARE PROPRIETARY AND SHALL NOT BE COPIED OR USED FOR ANY PURPOSE WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN AUTHORIZATION FROM THOMAS ENGINEERING GROUP, LLC. ONLY APPROVED, SIGNED AND SEALED PLANS SHALL BE UTILIZED FOR CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES  c  2015 THOMAS ENGINEERING GROUP, LLC. 



 

 

 

 

 

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT REPORT 

 
 

for 

 

Village Flats 

 
 

SEC of Lucerne Avenue & North E Street,  
Lake Worth Beach, FL 

 
 

 

Prepared by: 
 

 
 

6300 NW 31st Avenue 
Ft Lauderdale, FL 33309 

954-202-7000 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

________________________________________________ 

Maxwell Kaplan, P.E. 
Florida Professional Engineer License No. 83366 

 
 

September 21, 2020 



 

 

 
Introduction 

The site is generally located at the southeast corner of Lucerne Avenue and North E Street in the 

city of Lake Worth Beach. The existing site is currently vacant. This project proposes to construct 

two multi-story residential buildings with a total building footprint of 5,733 sq. ft. The site area is 

approximately 0.643 acres or 28,000 sq. ft. A detailed breakdown of the proposed land use is 

provided in Table 1 below. 

 

            Table 1-Land Use Breakdown 

 Square feet Acres 

Buildings 5,774 0.133 

Paved/Garage Area  14,743 0.338 

Pervious  7,483 0.172 

Total Area 28,000 0.643 

 

The proposed drainage system to serve the development consists of catch basins, HDPE pipe and 

roof drains, and 40 linear feet of exfiltration trench. Runoff will be maintained on-site and there is 

no proposed off-site discharge.  

 

Water Quality 

Calculations have been prepared to determine the required volume for water quality treatment for 

the proposed development. Based on the results of the calculations, 2.5-inches of runoff over the 

total impervious site area results in a larger volume than 1-inch of runoff over the entire site; 

therefore, 2.5-inches over the impervious area controls. The water quality volume required was 

calculated to be 0.09 ac.-ft.  

 

The project proposed to utilize exfiltration trench for water quality treatment. A “k” value of 1.70 

x 10-3 cfs/ft2/ft-head average was used for the design of the exfiltration trench as obtained from 

the geotechnical investigation prepared by GFA International. A total of 11 linear feet of trench is 

required to meet the project’s water quality requirements. The project design proposes 40 linear 

feet of trench which will provide 0.36 ac.-ft. of volume. Detailed calculations are included in 

Appendix A. 

 



 

 

Water Quantity 

The water table elevation at the site is approximately 8.50 NAVD per geotechnical investigation 

findings provided by GFA International. The proposed drainage system for the development 

consists of a network of catch basins, drainage pipes and exfiltration trench designed to retain the 

25-year 3-day storm event onsite. 

 

A Stage-Storage zero discharge analysis has been prepared to determine the peak storm staging 

for the 100-year 3-day, 25-year 3-day, 5-year 1-hour and 3-year 1-hour storm events to determine 

the minimum elevations for the proposed finished floor, perimeter berm, and pavement areas. 

Table 2 below shows the resulting peak stages for each storm event. 

 

Table 2 - Flood Routing Results –Proposed Peak Stage Elevations 

 Post-Development Provided 

3-Year 1-Hour 8.89 NAVD ---- 

5-Year 1-Hour (Min. Pavement) 9.05 NAVD 15.00 NAVD 

25-Year 3-Day (Min. Berm) 15.88 NAVD 15.90 NAVD 

100-Year 3-Day (Min. F.F.E.) 16.46 NAVD 16.50 NAVD 

 

The finished floor elevations of the buildings have been set at 16.50 NAVD which is above the 

100-year 3-day peak stage and one (1) foot above the average adjacent crown of road elevation. 

The site is located within FEMA Flood Zone X with no Base Flood Elevation.  

 

Conclusion 

Based on the above, the water quality and quantity requirements are met by the proposed design 

and adhere to the design standards for the South Florida Water Management District and City of 

Lake Worth Beach. Therefore, it is recommended the project be approved for construction. 

 
      

 

 

 



Date:
Project:

Project No:

6300 NW 31st Avenue, Fort Lauderdale, FL 33309 Calculated By:
Tel: 954-202-7000 Checked By:
Fax: 954-202-7070

Design Criteria:

Estimated Seasonal High Water Level: 8.50 NAVD

Proposed Acreages  
Lake Areas (AL): 0 sf        or 0.000 ac
Roof Areas (AR): 5,774 sf        or 0.133 ac
Paved and Garage Areas (AP): 14,743 sf        or 0.338 ac
Green Areas (AG): 7,483 sf        or 0.172 ac
Total (AT): 28,000 sf        or 0.643 ac

Compute Required Water Quality Volume:

1) Provide at least 1 inch over the developed project: 
 VPRE  = 1 inch x AT  x 1 ft / 12 inches

= 1  x 0.643  / 12 
= 0.05 ac-ft    or 0.60 ac-in

2) Provide 2.5" over % impervious area:
a) Site Area for water quality pervious/impervious calculation:

AS = AT - (AL + AR)
= 0.643 - ( 0 + 0.133)
= 0.51 ac of site area for water quality pervious/impervious

b) Impervious area for water quality pervious/impervious calculation:
AIMP= AS - AG

= 0.51 - 0.172
= 0.34 ac of impervious area for water quality pervious/impervious

c) Percent of impervious for water quality calculation:
= AIMP / AS x 100%
= 0.338 / 0.51 x 100%
= 66.3% impervious

d) For 2.5" times the percent impervious:
  = 2.5"   x  % impervious area
= 2.5 x 0.663
= 1.66 inches to be treated

e) Compute volume required volume for quality detention
 VPRE  = inches to be treated x ( AT - AL)

= 1.66 x  (0.643 - 0 )  x  1 foot / 12 inches)
= 0.09 ac-ft    or 1.07 ac-in

3) Since the 1.07 ac-in is greater than  the 0.6 ac-in computed for the first inch of runoff
the volume of 1.07 ac-in controls.

9/21/2020
LWB Residential
F200053

PROPOSED DRAINAGE CALCULATIONS

MTK
MT



Date:
Project:

Project No:

K-Value:
Test Hole #

BHP-1 (Based on GFA report)

KAVG

Trench:
Elev. 15.00  (Grade or Weir)

Elev. 13.50  (Top of Trench)

Water Table
Elev. 8.50

Elev. 9.50  (Bottom of Trench)

K  = 1.70E-03 cfs/ft2 - ft head
H2 = 6.50 ft
W  = 4.00 ft
Du = 4.00 ft
Ds = 0.00 ft
H  = Du + Ds = 4.00 ft

1)  Trench Length for Water Quality Requirements:
V  = 1.07 ac-in    or 0.09 ac-ft

L = 9.9 feet

2)  Compute Provided Trench Volume:
L = 40 feet

V = L x (K(H2W + 2H2Du - Du^2 + 2H2Ds) + (1.39 x 10^-4)Wdu)

V = 4.30 ac-in    or 0.36 ac-ft

9/21/2020
LWB Residential
F200053

Proposed Trench Calculations (NAVD)

(cfs/ft2/ft hd)
1.70E-03

1.70E-03

L = V
K(H2W + 2H2Du - Du^2 + 2H2Ds) + (1.39 x 10^-4)WDu



Date:
Project:

Project No:

PROPOSED STAGE\STORAGE AREA CALCULATION - (NAVD)

Total
Site

0.643

8.50 0.00
9.50 0.00

10.50 0.00
11.50 0.00
12.50 0.00
13.50 0.00
14.50 0.00
15.50 0.04
16.50 0.40
17.50 0.91
18.50 1.42
19.50 1.930.00 0.00 0.00 0.000.67 0.99 0.00 0.28 0.00 0.00

16.45

15.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

15.00

Pavement
Area

0.00 0.00

Area 0.262
0.000

0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00
0.00
0.02
0.20
0.46

0.00

0.49 0.00 0.20

0.15 0.00 0.05
0.32 0.00 0.12

0.73

0.00 0.00
0.02 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

(ac.-ft.)
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.000
(ac.-ft.) (ac.-ft.) (ac.-ft.) (ac.-ft.) (ac.-ft.) (ac.-ft.)(ac.-ft.) (ac.-ft.) (ac.-ft.)

0.000 0.000 0.0000.000 0.000 0.000
Area 0.000 Area 0.13

0.000 0.000
0.000 Area Area AreaArea 0.172 Area 0.000 Area 0.077 Area

Building
Area Concrete 16.50 NAVD

Stage

Landscape Sidewalk/

15.30

9/21/2020
LWB Residential
F200053

Prop. 
Grades

16.25 16.50



Date:
Project:

Project No:

DESIGN CRITERIA

NAVD

PROPOSED LAND USE SUMMARY

STAGE\STORAGE AREA CALCULATION (NAVD)

8.50
9.50
10.50
11.50
12.50
13.50
14.50
15.50
16.50
17.50
18.50
19.50

Required Water Quality = acre-ft.

Water Quality Elevation NAVD

0.09

9.09

1.93 0.36 0.00 2.29

9/21/2020
LWB Residential
F200053

Total

October Water Elevation 8.50
FEMA Elevation N/A

 Areas: Square Ft. Acres Percent
Lake 0 0.00 0.0%
Building 5,774 0.133 20.6%
Paved and Sidewalk 14,743 0.338 52.6%
Pervious 7,483 0.172 26.7%
Total Area: 28,000 0.643 100.0%

Stage

Site Exfiltration
Stage-Storage Trench Storage

(previous page) Storage
Area

(ac.-ft.) (ac.-ft.) (ac.-ft.)(ac.-ft.)
0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.15 0.15

0.00
0.00

0.00 0.34 0.34
0.00 0.56 0.56

0.00
0.00

0.00 1.54 1.54
0.00 0.36 0.36

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00 0.36 0.360.00
0.360.04 0.400.00

0.36 1.781.42 0.00

0.40 0.36 0.76
0.91 0.36 1.27



Soil Storage

Land Use Summary:

Average Pervious Grade (Elev.):
Depth to Water Table: ft
Soil Storage at Average Depth (SS): inches

Weighted S value:
  = SS x % Pervious

  = 8.18 x 0.267

  = inches

Rainfalls

From Figure C-9, 100-Year 3-day Storm  = inches

From Figure C-8, 25-Year 3-day Storm = inches

From Figure C-1, 5-Year 1-hour Storm = inches

From LWB Eng, 3-Year 1-hour Storm = inches

Results from Flood Routings (zero discharge analysis)

100-Year 3-Day
Runnoff  (Q) = (P - 0.2S)2 / (P + 0.8S)

= (16.2 -  ( 0.2 x 2.18))^2 / (16.2 + (0.8 x 2.18))
= inches of total runnoff

Runoff Volume = Q * Project Area
= 13.85 x 0.643 = acre-inches = acre-ft.

25-Year 3-Day
Runnoff  (Q) = (P - 0.2S)2 / (P + 0.8S)

= (12.3 -  ( 0.2 x 2.18))^2 / (12.3 + (0.8 x 2.18))
= inches of total runnoff

Runoff Volume = Q * Project Area
= 10.02 x 0.643 = acre-inches = acre-ft.

5-Year 1-Hour
Runnoff  (Q) = (P - 0.2S)2 / (P + 0.8S)

= (3.2 -  ( 0.2 x 2.18))^2 / (3.2 + (0.8 x 2.18))
= inches of total runnoff

Runoff Volume = Q * Project Area
= 1.55 x 0.643 = acre-inches = acre-ft.

3-Year 1-Hour
Runnoff  (Q) = (P - 0.2S)2 / (P + 0.8S)

= (2.6 -  ( 0.2 x 2.18))^2 / (2.6 + (0.8 x 2.18))
= inches of total runnoff

Runoff Volume = Q * Project Area
= 1.08 x  = acre-inches = acre-ft.

Maximum Stage for 100-Year 3-Day Storm (no discharge) NAVD

Maximum Stage for 25-Year 3-Day Storm (no discharge) NAVD

Maximum Stage for 5-Year 1-Hour Storm (no discharge) NAVD

Maximum Stage for 3-Year 1-Hour Storm (no discharge) NAVD

15.88

12.30

0.338 52.6%

3.20

2
3

Lake Areas (AL): 0.000

4.95

p
Water 

Storage 
(inches)

Total (AT): 0.643 100.0%

Compacted Soil Storage per0.0%
Roof Areas (AR):

Acres Percent

4

0.133

2.18

16.20

Green Areas (AG): 0.172 26.7%

SFWMD Vol. IV Page C-III-1

0.45
1.88

1

Depth to 
Water Table 

(feet)

7.13

20.6%

8.18

Paved Areas (AP):

15.63

10.02

6.44 0.54

1.55

1.00 0.08

8.18

2.60

1.08

0.69 0.06

8.89

9.05

13.85

8.91 0.74

16.46



ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCE PERMIT APPLICANT’S HANDBOOK VOLUME II     
Effective: MAY 22, 2016 

 

A-11 
 

Appendix C: Isohyetal Maps 
from SFWMD Technical Memorandum, Frequency Analysis of One and Three Day 

Rainfall Maxima for central and southern Florida, Paul Trimble, October 1990. 
 
 
 

  

jleonor
Callout
PROJECT SITE3.2 INCHES



ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCE PERMIT APPLICANT’S HANDBOOK VOLUME II     

Effective: October 1, 2013 

 

A-18 
 

  

dalvarez
Callout
SITE LOCATION12.3 inches



ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCE PERMIT APPLICANT’S HANDBOOK VOLUME II     

Effective: October 1, 2013 

 

A-19 
 

  

dalvarez
Callout
SITE LOCATION16.2 inches



USGS The National Map: Orthoimagery. Data refreshed April 2020

National Flood Hazard Layer FIRMette

0 500 1,000 1,500 2,000250
Feet

Ü

SEE FIS REPORT FOR DETAILED LEGEND AND INDEX MAP FOR FIRM PANEL LAYOUT

SPECIAL FLOOD
HAZARD AREAS

Without Base Flood Elevation (BFE)
Zone A, V, A99

With BFE or DepthZone AE, AO, AH, VE, AR

Regulatory Floodway

0.2% Annual Chance Flood Hazard, Areas
of 1% annual chance flood with average
depth less than one foot or with drainage
areas of less than one square mileZone X

Future Conditions 1% Annual
Chance Flood HazardZone X

Area with Reduced Flood Risk due to
Levee. See Notes.Zone X

Area with Flood Risk due to LeveeZone D

NO SCREENArea of Minimal Flood HazardZone X

Area of Undetermined Flood HazardZone D

Channel, Culvert, or Storm Sewer

Levee, Dike, or Floodwall

Cross Sections with 1% Annual Chance
17.5 Water Surface Elevation

Coastal Transect

Coastal Transect Baseline
Profile Baseline
Hydrographic Feature

Base Flood Elevation Line (BFE)

Effective LOMRs

Limit of Study
Jurisdiction Boundary

Digital Data Available

No Digital Data Available

Unmapped

This map complies with FEMA's standards for the use of
digital flood maps if it is not void as described below.
The basemap shown complies with FEMA's basemap
accuracy standards

The flood hazard information is derived directly from the
authoritative NFHL web services provided by FEMA. This map
was exported on 9/4/2020 at 1:59 PM  and does not
reflect changes or amendments subsequent to this date and
time. The NFHL and effective information may change or
become superseded by new data over time.

This map image is void if the one or more of the following map
elements do not appear: basemap imagery, flood zone labels,
legend, scale bar, map creation date, community identifiers,
FIRM panel number, and FIRM effective date. Map images for
unmapped and unmodernized areas cannot be used for
regulatory purposes.

Legend

OTHER AREAS OF
FLOOD HAZARD

OTHER AREAS

GENERAL
STRUCTURES

OTHER
FEATURES

MAP PANELS

8

B
20.2

The pin displayed on the map is an approximate
point selected by the user and does not represent
an authoritative property location.

1:6,000

80°3'58"W 26°37'14"N

80°3'21"W 26°36'42"N



T

T

PR
OP

. R
ES

IDE
NT

IAL
 BU

ILD
ING

FF
E 1

6.5
0 N

AV
D

PROP. RESIDENTIAL BUILDING
FFE 16.50 NAVD

LUCERNE AVENUE

LAKE AVENUE

N
. E

 S
T

R
E

E
T

N
. F

 S
T

R
E

E
T

H Y D

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

SL
SL

SL
SL

SL

W

W

W

WW

F
F

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D

D

D

D

E

E

E

E

EE

PROP. 6" PVC SAN.
LATERAL @ 1%
SLOPE MIN. (TYP.)

PROP. 8"X6" WYE
CONNECTION
I.E. 11.94

PROP. 6" C/O W/
CONC. COLLAR (TYP.)
I.E. 12.10

PROP. 6" C/O
I.E. 13.00

PROP. 6" C/O
I.E. 13.00

PROP. 8"X6" WYE CONNECTION
I.E. 12.17

PROP. 4" X 4"
TAPPING
SLEEVE AND
VALVE, 8" X
4" RED., S.P. #2

PROP. 8" X 6" TEE

PROP. 8" X 4" TEE, 4" DIP
FIRE LINE, 4" 90° BEND

PROP. 8" X 6" TEE, 6" G.V., 5
LF 6" DIP, FIRE HYDRANT

PROP. FDC & 4"
DIP FIRE LINE

PROP. FDC &
6"X6" TEE

PROP. 6" DIP FIRE LINE

PROP. 6" G.V.
PROP. 6" DDCV

PROP. 8" 45° BENDS (2)

PROP. 8" 45° BENDS (2)

PROP. 8" DIP
WATER MAIN

PROP. 2" PE
WATER SERVICE

PROP. 8" X 2" TAPPING SADDLE W/ 2" CORP STOP
PROP. 2" PE WATER SERVICE

PROP. 2" WATER
METER & 2" RPZ

PROP. 1" WATER METER & 1" RPZ
PROP. 1" PE

WATER
SERVICE

PROP. 8" DIP WATER MAIN

PROP. 12" X 8"
TAPPING
SLEEVE AND
VALVE, S.P. #1

PROP. 4"
DDCV

PROVIDE 1' MIN. CLEARANCE
ABOVE EXIST. STM PIPE

PROVIDE 1' MIN. CLEARANCE UNDER
EXIST. SAN. SEWER

BOT. EL. 8" SEWER: 12.15
TOP EL. 8" WATER MAIN: 11.15

PROP. (2) 8" 45° VERT. BENDS. TOP
EL. 12.15 (N) / 11.15 (S)

PROP. (2) 45° VERT. BENDS. TOP
EL. 11.15 (N) / 12.15 (S)

PROP. 4" G.V.

PROP. TRANSFORMER

15' U.E.

15
' U

.E.

PROVIDE 1' MIN.
CLEARANCE

UNDER EXIST.
8" SS MAIN

PROP. UTILITY
POLE.
COORDINATE WITH
LAKE WORTH
BEACH UTILITIES

PROP. UPGRADED UTILITY POLE. COORDINATEWITH LAKE WORTH BEACH UTILITIES

PROP.
TRANSFORMER

CONFLICT #1
BOT. EL. EXIST. 4" WM: 11.00
TOP EL. 15" STM: 9.50
CLR.: 1.50'

CONFLICT #2
BOT. EL. EXIST. 8" SS: 11.85
TOP EL. 15" STM: 9.50
CLR.: 2.35'

PROP. 8" X 8" CROSS W/ (2) ISOLATIONVALVES W/ END CAPS ON E/W BRANCHES

PROP. PVC ELEC. CONDUIT (TYP.)

CONNECT ELEC. SERVICES TO EXIST.UTILITY POLE. COORDINATE WITH LAKEWORTH BEACH UTILITIES10'

PROP. 10' WIDE UTILITY EASEMENT

PROP. 10'
WIDE U.E.

10
' U

.E.

CONFLICT #3
BOT. EL. EXIST. 4" WM: 11.00
TOP EL. 6" STM: 9.97
CLR.: 1.03'

CONFLICT #4
BOT. EL. EXIST. 8" SS: 12.07
TOP EL. 6" STM: 10.00
CLR.: 2.07'

PROP. 8" X 1" TAPPING SADDLE W/ 1" CORP STOP

PROP. 1" PE WATER SERVICE

EXIST. FIRE HYDRANT

1"= 20'

0 2051020

PRELIMINARY
UTILITY PLAN

C-02ELEVATIONS SHOWN HEREON ARE IN FEET AND BASED ON THE NORTH AMERICAN
VERTICAL DATUM OF 1988 (NAVD 88)

DATUM NOTE:

PROPOSED NOTETYPICAL NOTE TEXT

UTILITY LEGEND

SANITARY SEWER
LATERAL

UNDERGROUND
WATER LINE

UNDERGROUND
ELECTRIC LINE

UNDERGROUND
GAS LINE

OVERHEAD
WIRE

UNDERGROUND
TELEPHONE LINE

UNDERGROUND
CABLE LINE

STORM
SEWER

SANITARY
SEWER MAIN

HYDRANT

SANITARY
MANHOLE

STORM
MANHOLE

BACKFLOW
PREVENTER

YARD
INLET

CLEAN
OUT

S

WATER
METER

WATER
VALVE

CATCH
BASIN

W F W

SL SL

E TEL E

TEL TEL TEL

C TEL C

UNDERGROUND FIRE
LINE F F F

NOTES
1. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR FIELD VERIFYING ALL EXISTING SITE

IMPROVEMENTS AND UTILITIES.  ALL DISCREPANCIES SHALL BE IDENTIFIED TO  THE
ENGINEER IN WRITING.

2. ALL EXISTING UTILITIES SHALL BE REMOVED BY CONTRACTOR IN ACCORDANCE  WITH
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH AND LOCAL UTILITY COMPANY REQUIREMENTS.

3. ALL DEMOLITION DEBRIS TO BE REMOVED BY CONTRACTOR IN ACCORDANCE WITH
ALL APPLICABLE REGULATIONS.

4. ALL HYDRANTS SHALL FALL WITHIN 4' OF THE CURB.
5. MINIMUM 7.5' CLEARANCE AROUND THE HYDRANT CIRCUMFERENCE.  THE 4 1/2"

CAP SHALL FACE THE ROADWAY.
6. ALL FIRE HYDRANTS SHOULD HAVE BLUE REFLECTIVE MARKERS.
7. WATER SHALL BE ON SITE BEFORE CONSTRUCTION BEGINS.
8. CLEAN OUTS INSTALLED IN ASPHALT MUST BE INSTALLED IN A CITY BOX  MARKED

SEWER.
9. ANY TREES OR SHRUBS PLACED WITHIN WATER, SEWER OR DRAINAGE EASEMENTS

SHALL CONFORM TO THE CITY REQUIREMENTS
10. NO PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS, BUILDINGS OR ANY KIND OF CONSTRUCTION CAN

BE PLACED ON OR WITHIN ANY WATER, SEWER OR DRAINAGE EASEMENTS, UNLESS
APPROVED BY THE CITY ENGINEER.

11. NO PROPOSED STRUCTURES SHALL BE INSTALLED WITHIN A HORIZONTAL DISTANCE
OF 10-FEET FROM ANY EXISTING OR PROPOSED WATER, SEWER OR DRAINAGE
FACILITIES, UNLESS APPROVED BY THE CITY ENGINEER.

12. WATER METER SIZES SHALL BE DESIGNED BY ENGINEER OF RECORD AND SHALL BE
CHECKED AND AUTHORIZED BY CITY UTILITIES DIVISION.

13. ALL NEW CONNECTIONS TO THE EXISTING WATER MAIN SHALL BE CUT-IN.

G
:\
IN
H
A
B
IT
 
LA

K
E
 
W
O
R
T
H
 
B
E
A
C
H
\
2
0
2
0
\
F
2
0
0
0
5
3
 
-
 
LU

C
E
R
N
E
 
A
V
E
 
&
 
N
O
R
T
H
 
E
 
S
T
R
E
E
T
, 
LA

K
E
 
W
O
R
T
H
\
D
W
G
\
2
0
2
0
-
0
9
-
16
 
-
 
S
IT
E
 
P
LA

N
\
F
2
0
0
0
5
3
 
U
T
IL
IT
Y
 
P
LA

N
-
-
-
-
-
>
LA

Y
O
U
T
: 
U
T
IL

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

PROJECT No.:
DRAWN BY:
CHECKED BY:

CAD I.D.:

REVISIONS:

PROJECT:

FOR

F200053 UTILITY PLAN

6300 NW 31ST AVENUE
FORT LAUDERDALE, FL 33309

PH: (954) 202-7000
FX: (954) 202-7070

www.ThomasEnJineerinJGroup.com

KNOW WHAT'S BELOW
ALWAYS CALL 811
BEFORE YOU DIG

It's fast. It's free. It's the law.

www.callsunshine.com

DATE:

C
IV

IL
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

S 
- P

R
O

JE
C

T
 M

A
N

A
G

E
R

S 
- L

A
N

D
 P

L
A

N
N

IN
G

 - 
L

A
N

D
SC

A
P

E
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

15
02

 W
. F

LE
TC

H
ER

 A
VE

.
SU

IT
E 

10
1

TA
M

PA
, F

L 
33

61
2

P:
 8

13
-3

79
-4

10
0

12
5 

W
 IN

D
IA

N
TO

W
N

 R
D

.
SU

IT
E 

20
6

JU
PI

TE
R

, F
L 

33
45

8
P:

 5
61

-2
03

-7
50

3

63
00

 N
W

 3
1S

T 
AV

EN
U

E
FT

. L
AU

D
ER

D
AL

E,
 F

L 
33

30
9

P:
 9

54
-2

02
-7

00
0

FLORIDA BUSINESS CERT. OF AUTH. No. 27528
September 21, 2020

9ILLA*E
)LAT6

IN+A%IT LA.E 
:2RT+ %EAC+� LLC

LA.E :2RT+ %EAC+� )L

F200053
JFV

MTK
07-24-2020

SITE 3LAN SUB0ITTAL

3ROFESSIONAL ENGINEER
FLORIDA LICENSE No. 83366

0A;WELL T� KA3LAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
ATTENNA

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESIDENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ONE STY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESIDENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.F.=16.83

AutoCAD SHX Text
ONE STY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESIDENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ONE STY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE "F"/VALLEY C&G

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE "F"/

AutoCAD SHX Text
VALLEY C&G

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' WOODEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
ONE STY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.M.H.  RIM=15.05'  UNABLE TO OBTAIN INVERT DUE TO WATER OBSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.B.  RIM=14.63' E.INV.=11.33'(15" CP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.B.  RIM=14.93'  N.W. INV.=10.58'(15" CP) W.INV.=10.58')15" CP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.M.H.  RIM=15.19'  N.INV.=10.51'(15" CP) S.INV.=6.71'(36" CP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.M.H.  RIM=15.48'  N.INV.=10.82'(6" CP) S.INV.=10.85'(15" CP) E.INV.=10.92'(18" CP) W.INV.=10.88'(18" CP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 8" CLAY SANITARY MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 8

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 15

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 16

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK "D"

AutoCAD SHX Text
35.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15 N E ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 11

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 7

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 9

AutoCAD SHX Text
35.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 14

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 10

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT A

AutoCAD SHX Text
URBAN ARTS LOFTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
(P.B. 116, PG. 72

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.B.C.R.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
35.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
#1230

AutoCAD SHX Text
#1228

AutoCAD SHX Text
#1224

AutoCAD SHX Text
#1212

AutoCAD SHX Text
VACANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.M.H.  RIM=15.82'  S.INV.=9.19' (UNABLE TO OBTAIN SIZE AND MATERIAL DUE TO OBSTRUCTION)

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.M.H.  RIM=15.67'  N.INV.=6.50'(36" CP) S.INV.=6.51'(36" CP) W.INV.=8.52'(24" CP) E.INV.=UNABLE TO OBTAIN INVERT DUE TO OBSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.B.  RIM=15.51' S.INV.=11.50'(12" CP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.M.H.  RIM=14.45'  W.INV.=11.65'(8" CLAY) N.INV.=11.60'(8" CLAY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 36" RCP STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 15" RCP STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 15" RCP STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 15" RCP STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 15" RCP STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 4" CIP WATER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 12" CIP WATER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 12" CIP WATER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 24" RCP STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 12" RCP STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING NOTE

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
SL

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
OH

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMENT:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Printed on Monday, September 21, 2020, 3:20 PM by Max KaplanMonday, September 21, 2020, 3:20 PM by Max Kaplan, 3:20 PM by Max Kaplan3:20 PM by Max Kaplan by Max KaplanMax Kaplan

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE INFORMATION, DESIGN AND CONTENT OF THIS PLAN ARE PROPRIETARY AND SHALL NOT BE COPIED OR USED FOR ANY PURPOSE WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN AUTHORIZATION FROM THOMAS ENGINEERING GROUP, LLC. ONLY APPROVED, SIGNED AND SEALED PLANS SHALL BE UTILIZED FOR CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES  c  2015 THOMAS ENGINEERING GROUP, LLC. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

October 20, 2020 Resubmission and Revised Plans 
Mailroom 

Sign Plan 

Renderings 



A3A1.2

2

2

3

UP
STAIR 01

A101

ELEC.

A107

MAIL

A108



1ST FL. FIN.
0'-0"

2ND FL. FIN.
10'-8"

48" MAX ADA HEIGHT

36" MIN USPS ACCESS

28" MIN TENANT MAILBOX

15" MIN TENANT PARCEL BOX

3
'-
1 
1/

4
"

1'
-1
 7

/
8
"

1'-1" 7'-11" 1'-1"

1 MAILBOX PER UNIT = 30 MAILBOXES REQUIRED
1:5 PARCEL BOXES PER UNIT = 6 PARCEL BOXES REQUIRED

PROVIDED:
30 MAILBOXES
6 PARCEL BOXES



















Universal Development Application r''

This application is required for ALL applications submitted to the Planning, Zoning and Historic Preservation
Division. lf you have questions regarding this application, please make an appointment with planning staff.

',. Application Type (select all that apply)

a. Site Plan: n Minor E Major I Planned Development I Sustainable Bonus

b. Use: E Administrative tr Conditional

c. Proximity Waiver: n Alcoholic Beverage n Community Residence ! Gaming Establishment

n Adult Use

d. Approvals: ! Variance n Mural n Cert. of Appropriateness n Adjustment

e. Amendments: n Rezoning / Map n Text

f. Other: tr Subdivsion/Plat n Annexation tr Zoning Letter

! ABT Signoff tr
2. Project Information

a. Project Name: Village Flats

b. Project Location / Address: See Exhibit "A"

c. Legal Description: See Exhibit "8"

d. Property Control Number (PCN): 33-43-44- See Exhibit "A"

e. Zoning: Existing: Mixed-Use East Propose6; N/A

f. Future Land Use: Existing: Mixed-Use East Proposs4; N/A

g. Proposed Use: ! Residential; Units 41 n Commercial; S.F. ! lndustrial;-S.F.
h. Total Estimated Projecl6esl' TBD

i. Descriptionofwork: Constructionof 41 residential unitsintwophases. Phasel is30unitsintwo
buildings, and Phase 2is ll units in two buildings

3. Contact Information

a. Project Manager / Contact Person: Corey W. O'Gorman/Jeff Costello

Company: PLACE Planning & Design, Inc. / JC Planning Solutions LLC

Address: 7o0 us Highway one, suite L city' North Palm Beach st: FL Zip: 33408

phone NUmber: 561-801-2461 / 561-573-1486 g_ygilAddreSS: corey@placepnd.com/ jcostello@cplanninssolutions.com

b. Applicant Name (if different from Project Manager): Mr. Timothy J. Carey

Company: InHabit Property Group

Address: 2200 Butts Road, suite 300 _ city: Boca Raton st: FL zip: 33431

phone Number: (561) 488-51 17 E-Mait Address: t1carey227 @gmail.com

c. Owner Name: Ms. Joan Oliva, Executive Director

Company: Lake Worth Beach CRA

Address: 1121 Lucerne Avenue City: Lake Worth Beach St: FL Zip: 33460

phone Number: (561) 493-2550 E-MaitAddress: joliva@lakeworthbeachfl.gov



4. Owner's Consent
Ms Joan Oliv;t, Exeoutrve Director, Lake Wofln Beach CRA

t, f-rvrfi*r 1 certiftes lhat it rs lhe owner of the property located a(

See Exhibit'B expressly consenls to the use of lhe Sub.lect

Property as described in this application and to all conditions that may be agreed to as a parl of the approval of this applic€tion

which may be imposed by the decrsron making board Owner hereby authorr."r, Mr' Corey W O'Gorman, AICP as

agenl, to flle this t Owner at any and all meetings and hearings required for the approval of this application

Owner's Signature Date.

Name/Title of $rCrralorv Oliva, Executive Director, Lake Worth Beach CRA

STATE OF

COUNTY OF

The foregoing instrument was ackrrowledged befor

who rs personally known to me or who produceo a He/st1e did nol take an oath

5. Affidavit of Completeness and Accuracy

Submiilal Dateproiecr Name Lake Worth Residential

STATEMENT or CorttplereruEss ANo AccuRAcy;

I herehy certlfy all properly owners have ftrll knowledge the property they own rs the subject of this application I hereby cenrfy thal
all owners and petitioners have been provided a cornplete copy of all material, attachments and documents submilted to the City of
Lake Worlh relatrng to this application. I furthet certify the staterilenls or inforlnation ntade rn any paper or plans submitted herewrlh
are true and correcl lo the best of my knowledge I understand this opplication. relatecl application materiai and all attachments
become official records of the Plannrrtg, Zoning and Hrstorrc Preservation Division of Lake Worth, Fiorida, and will nol be retulled l

understand that any knowingly false, inaccurate or incomplete information provided by ine will result in the denial, revocation or
administralive withdrawal of lhis appltcation, request, approval or permrt I further acknowledge that additional rnformatron may be
required by Palm Beach Counly to process this application I further acknowledge that any plans that I have prepared or had prepared
comply wi andards. I further consent to the CitV of L
document f this applicatton for any lhtrd party I furlhe
as part of plication

Corey AICP x

(Name - type, stamp, or print clearly)

PLACE Planning & Design
(Name of Firm)

s.rArE or- trjaardq
COUNTY OF

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me lhis day o{

who is r who produced a

(NOTARY SEAL)

any copyrighted
rnay be imposed

700 US Highway One, Suite C, North Palnr Boach, FL 33408

(Address, City, State, Zip)

}o\y - zaz!),.,,Gs.y -CG -**-,

of No{ary P

not take an oath



EXHIBIT “A” 
VILLAGE FLATS 

ADDRESSES & PROPERTY CONTROL NUMBERS 

Addresses Property Control Numbers 

Phase I 

38434421155050050 
38434421155050040 
38434421155050030 
38434421155050020 
38434421155050010 
38434421155050120
38434421155050130
38434421155050160

38434421155030050

1207 Lucerne Avenue - 
1209 Lucerne Avenue - 
1211 Lucerne Avenue - 
1213 Lucerne Avenue - 
1215 Lucerne Avenue - 
1216 Lake Avenue      - 
1220 Lake Avenue      - 
1230 Lake Avenue      - 

Phase II 

1401 Lucerne Avenue  
1310 Lake Avenue      38434421155040130



 EXHIBIT “B” 
VILLAGE FLATS 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 

PHASE I 

LOT 1 THROUGH 5 BLOCK E, THE PALM BEACH FARMS CO., PLAT NO. 2, THE 

TOWNSITE OF LUCERNE (NOW LAKE WORTH), ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF, 

RECORDED IN PI_AT BOOK 2, PAGE 29, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF PALM BEACH 

COUNTY, FLORIDA  

LOT 12 AND 13, BLOCK E, THE PALM BEACH FARMS CO., PLAT NO.2, THE TOWNSITE 

OF LUCERNE (NOW LAKE WORTH), ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF, RECORDED 

IN PLAT BOOK 2, PAGE 29, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF PALM BEACH COUNTY, 

FLORIDA  

LOT 16, BLOCK E, THE PALM BEACH FARMS CO., PLAT NO. 2, THE TOWNSITE OF 

LUCERNE (NOW LAKE WORTH), ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF, RECORDED IN 

PLAT BOOK 2, PAGE 29, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF PALM BEACH COUNTY, 

FLORIDA. 

PHASE II 

LOT 5, BLOCK C, OF THE PALM BEACH FARMS COMPANY PLAT NO. 2, THE TOWNSITE 

OF LUCERNE N/K/A LAKE WORTH, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF, AS 

RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 2, AT PAGES 29 THROUGH 40, INCLUSIVE, OF THE PUBLIC 

RECORDS OF PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA. (LESS THE SOUTH 5 FEET THEREOF)  

LOT 6, LESS THE SOUTH 5 FEET THEREOF; AND THE NORTH 65 FEET OF LOTS 7 AND 

8, BLOCK C, OF THE PALM BEACH FARMS COMPANY PLAT NO.2, THE TOWNSITE OF 

LUCERNE N/K/A LAKE WORTH, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF, AS RECORDED IN 

PLAT BOOK 2, AT PAGES 29 THROUGH 40, INCLUSIVE, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF 

PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA.  

THE NORTH 30 FEET OF THE SOUTH 35 FEET OF LOTS 7 AND 8, BLOCK C, OF 

TOWNSITE OF LUCERNE N/K/A LAKE WORTH, THE PALM BEACH FARMS COMPANY 

PLAT NO.2, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF, AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 2, AT 

PAGE 29 THROUGH 40, INCLUSIVE, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF PALM BEACH 

COUNTY, FLORIDA.  

LOTS 13 AND 14, LESS THE NORTH 5 FEET, BLOCK D, PALM BEACH FARMS COMPANY 

PLAT 2, TOWNSITE OF LUCERNE, (NOW KNOWN AS LAKE WORTH), ACCORDING TO 

THE PLAT THEREOF, AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 2, PAGE 29, PUBLIC RECORDS OF 

PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA.  

SAID LANDS SITUATE IN PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA. 



Sign Posting Agreement
This form is required for all Historic Applications and Public Hearing ltems.

1. Appticant: Corey W. O'Gorman, PLACE Planning & Design, Inc.

2. Property Owner: Lake Worth Beach CRA

3. Gontact phone Number: 561-801-2461

4. Property Location: 1207-1215 Lucerne Ave and 1216.20 & 30 Lake Ave

s. ,. Corey W. O'Gorman
, hereby affirm that I will post the notification sign(s) provided to me

for a minimum of ten calendar days before the scheduled date of the hearing of Planning and Zoning Case

Name/Title of Signatory: Corey O'Gorman, President

STATE oF F \og,\da

couNrY oF ?o\n--Brod" I

who is pelgqnally knownjq lne or who produced a

identification. He/she did not take an oath.

(NOTARY SEAL)

tr i(,j

iriii.tct i cl I
i{ l-l r.s ir: r t c. fr re s r'-.r,; a li o tr D i l, r I r o n
- i613i i trtzon rn,.l'r:',1a ketrvori:lt.org

Name of Notary

















































































EXHIBIT “A” 

VILLAGE FLATS PHASE 2 

PROJECT SUMMARY 

 

Village Flats Phase 2 will consist of the following: 

 

1310 Lake Avenue (Building 3) - 6,650 S.F.:  

• Construction of a 3-story 6-unit residential building containing six 1-bedroom apartment units.  
• Construction of 7 on-site parking spaces (1 ADA accessible parking space) accessible from the alley, and 3 

on-street parking spaces on Lake Avenue (10 total spaces); and, 
• Installation of a bicycle parking area, site lighting, associated landscaping, and a refuse container enclosure 

with accommodations for recyclables accommodations for recyclables. 
 

This building will seek a waiver request so that the third floor 10 foot setback will not apply to this building.  The 

building is already set back 13 feet from the curb, and any additional setback will further constrain this urban infill 

lot.   An additional setback will increase the cost of design and construction, which hampers our ability to provide 

affordable market rate apartments and an economically viable project.  As such, a waiver to the code requirement 

is necessary.   

1401 Lucerne Avenue (Building 4) -13,300 S.F.: 

• Construction of five (5) 2-story mixed-use townhouse units with rear loaded garages off the alley. The 
townhouses will be 3-bedroom, 2-bath units with live/work spaces and a minimum 1-car garage.  

• Each townhouse will be provided with a minimum of 2 parking spaces with 4 on-street spaces on Lucerne 
Avenue and associated parking. Trash will be accommodated via roll-out carts.  

 
Phase 2 will provide 65% impermeable surface, 28% lot coverage, 10,160 s.f. of open space and total of 24 parking 

spaces (17 on-site, 7 on-street). The buildings will be of the Modern or Contemporary architectural style consistent 

with Phase 1 buildings and the Major Thoroughfare Design Guidelines. 

 

With the Phase 2 site plan approval, complete drawings will be submitted for review and approval in compliance 

with the applicable land development regulations. The Sustainable Bonus Incentive associated with Phase 2 only 

applies to Building 3, which will be a 3-story, 6-unit apartment building with parking provided adjacent to the alley. 

The third floor area is approximately 1,684 s.f. and has been factored into the overall calculation associated with the 

master plan approval. As stated above, a waiver to the third floor setback requirement is included with the Waiver 

Request Justification Letter. The elevations, interior finishes and Sustainable Bonus features/improvements will be 

consistent with those provided in Phase 1.   

 



Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program   

6-19 City of Lake Worth Beach / Department for Community Sustainability / Planning, Zoning, & Historic Preservation Division 
Page 1 of 1 1900 2nd Ave N, Lake Worth Beach, FL 33463 / 561-586-1687 / pzoning@lakeworth.org 

 

All development proposals seeking increased height above two stories, or additional FAR, as each may be 
allowed in a zoning district, shall submit this Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program Application. The application 
shall accompany the standard City of Lake Worth Universal Development Application for the development 
proposal. 

Two hard copies and one electronic copy of the following materials are required in order for a Sustainable Bonus 
Incentive Program Application to be deemed complete and sufficient to present to the decision making board. 

The Sustainable Bonus Incentive calculations are based on the gross square footage of the bonus height or 
intensity requested. The additional gross square footage amount is multiplied by $5 per square foot (“Value 
Multiplier”) in order to determine the value of the additional improvements to be provided for the project. 

1. Please indicate whether the development proposal includes bonus height or bonus intensity: 

a. □ Bonus Height 

i. No. of Additional Stories:   (“Bonus Height”) 

ii. Additional Gross Floor Area:   (“Bonus Area”) 

b. □ Bonus Intensity 

i. Additional Floor Area Ratio:   (“Bonus Intensity”) 

ii. Additional Gross Floor Area:   (“Bonus Area”) 

2. Multiply the Bonus Area by the Value Multiplier to determine the value of required improvements. 

a.   square feet × $5 = $  
Bonus Area Value of Required Improvements 

3. Indicate the type and value of the community benefit proposed to qualify for the Bonus Area: 

a. □ On-Site Features and Improvements; Value: $  

b. □ Off-Site Features and Improvements; Value: $  

c. □ Fee In Lieu; Amount: $  

4. Attach to this application a separate sheet with a detailed description of the proposed improvement 

and valuation of the same. 

Building 1 - 2 Stories; Building 2 - 1 story; Building 3 - 1 story

14,396 S.F.-5,248= 9,148 S.F. @ $5 per S.F.

8 Bonus Units = 5,248 S.F.@$10 per S.F.

9,148 45,740

98,220

Corey
Text Box
See attached Project Narrative letter.



Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program 
 
Note:  This calculation addresses the sustainable bonus incentive program for additional 
height and units.  
 

Improvement Detail Valuation Amount Calculation Details 
Florida Green Building 
Certification  

$49,110 $98,220/2 = $49,110. 

Additional Building Amenities – 
Courtyard garden 

$40,000 Includes sod, large trees, pavers, 
plants, pergola, benches and 
tables. 

Other project components 
offering a direct community 
benefit and meeting the intent of 
the comprehensive plan, include 
the following sustainable design 
elements: 
 
1) Character and Aesthetic 

Excellence – Public Art 
 
 

2) Bicycle Mobility Systems – 
Bike Racks 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
$20,000 
 
 
 
$5,000 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Mural on the western side of 
building 2.  Figure based on 
quotes received and previous 
projects.   

TOTAL  $114,110  

 



McMAHON ASSOCIATES, INC. 
2090 Palm Beach Lakes Boulevard, Suite 400 

West Palm Beach, FL 33409 
p 561-840-8650 | f 561-840-8590 

 

PRINCIPALS 
 Joseph J. DeSantis, P.E., PTOE 

John S. DePalma 
Casey A. Moore, P.E. 

Gary R. McNaughton, P.E., PTOE 
Christopher J. Williams, P.E. 

 

ASSOCIATES 
 John J. Mitchell, P.E. 

R. Trent Ebersole, P.E. 
Matthew M. Kozsuch, P.E. 

Maureen Chlebek, P.E., PTOE 
Dean A. Carr, P.E. 

Jason T. Adams, P.E., PTOE 
Christopher K. Bauer, P.E., PTOE 

Mark A. Roth, P.E. 
John R. Wichner, P.E., PTOE 

 

FOUNDER 
Joseph W. McMahon, P.E. 

 

 

  

Engineering | Planning | Design | Technology mcmahonassociates.com 

July 20, 2020 
 
 
VIA E-MAIL 
 
Tim Carey 
InHabit Lake Worth Beach, LLC 
2200 Butts Road, STE 300 
Boca Raton, FL 33431 
 
RE: Lake Worth Residential Traffic Analysis   

McMahon Project No. M20598.01 
 
Dear Mr. Carey: 
 
McMahon Associates, Inc. (McMahon) has completed a traffic analysis associated with the development 
of 11 parcels of land located along Lucerne Avenue and Lake Avenue, in the City of Lake Worth Beach, 
Florida.  The Parcel Control Numbers for the subject parcels include: 38-43-44-21-15-503-0050, 38-43-44-
21-15-504-0130, 38-43-44-21-15-504-0080, 38-43-44-21-15-505-0160, 38-43-44-21-15-505-0130, 38-43-44-21-
15-505-0120, 38-43-44-21-15-505-0050, 38-43-44-21-15-505-0040, 38-43-44-21-15-505-0030, 38-43-44-21-15-
505-0020, and 38-43-44-21-15-505-0010.  The sites are currently vacant lands.  The proposed development, 
with an anticipated buildout year of 2021, includes a total of 42 multi-family dwelling units ranging 
between three (3) and four (4) stories.  Figure 1 graphically depicts the site subject parcels.     
 

Figure 1: Subject Parcels 

 





SITE PHOTOGRAPHS 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

  

AGENDA DATE: November 17, 2020 DEPARTMENT: Community Sustainability 

TITLE: 

Ordinance 2020-18 (PZB 20-01300002) - First Reading - Request for a City-initiated rezoning 
for 118 North A Street, 116 North A Street, 127 North B Street, 121 North B Street, 119 North B 
Street, 113 North B Street, 1500 Lucerne Avenue, and 128 North C Street from either Single 
Family – Two Family Residential (SF-TF-14) or Multi-family Residential 20 (MF-20) to Mixed 
Use – East (MU-E) 

 
SUMMARY: 

Consideration of an ordinance amending the City’s Official Zoning Map to rezone the properties 
as more particularly described in Exhibit A of Ordinance 2020-18 from the Single-family and 
two-family residential (SF-TF-14) or Multi-family residential (MF-20) zoning districts to the Mixed 
Use – East (MU-E) zoning district pursuant to Section 23.2-36 of the City’s Land Development 
Regulations (LDRs). The properties are generally located in an area bounded by North A Street 
to the west, North D Street to the east, Lucerne Avenue to the south, and 2nd Avenue North to 
the north. The proposed City-initiated rezoning was reviewed for consistency with the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan, Strategic Plan and Land Development Regulations (LDRs). 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The existing uses on the subject properties are currently a mixture of single-family residences, 
multi-family residences, and places of worship. Rezoning of the subject sites would allow for 
higher development potential of these properties consistent with other properties located in the 
general area north of Lucerne Avenue and would also reduce non-conformities of some 
structures and uses with the proposed rezoning to MU-E. Staff has determined that the proposed 
rezoning meets the Comprehensive Plan, Strategic Plan, LDRs, and the review criteria for 
rezoning as outlined in LDR Section 23.2-36.  

On September 22, 2020, a letter was mailed to the owners of properties included in the subject 
rezoning. The letter identified the date of the Planning & Zoning Board meeting and offered 
property owners the option to opt out from the City-initiated rezoning prior to adoption. At this 
time, no property owners have selected to opt out of the proposed rezoning. 

At the October 7, 2020 Planning & Zoning Board meeting, the board discussed the subject 
rezoning and recommended unanimously for the City Commission to approve the proposed 
ordinance. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Ordinance No. 2020-18 on first reading and schedule the second 
reading and public hearing for December 1, 2020. 



 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis – N/A 
Ordinance 2020-18 
PZB/HRPB Staff Report 



 

 

2020-18 1 

 2 

ORDINANCE NO. 2020-18 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH 3 

BEACH, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE CITY’S OFFICIAL ZONING 4 

MAP FROM THE ZONING DISTRICTS OF SINGLE FAMILY – 5 

TWO FAMILY RESIDENTIAL (SF-TF-14) AND MULTI-FAMILY 6 

RESIDENTIAL 20 (MF-20) TO MIXED USE – EAST (MU-E) ON 7 

PROPERTIES GENERALLY LOCATED NORTH OF LUCERNE 8 

AVENUE, SOUTH OF 2ND AVENUE NORTH, AND BETWEEN 9 

NORTH A STREET AND NORTH D STREET, AND AS MORE 10 

PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT A; AND PROVIDING 11 

FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 12 

 13 

WHEREAS, the City Commission of the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida, 14 

pursuant to the authority granted in Chapters 163 and 166, Florida Statutes, and the Land 15 

Development Regulations, as adopted by the City of Lake Worth Beach, is authorized 16 

and empowered to consider amending the City’s Official Zoning Map; and 17 

 18 

WHEREAS, this is a City-initiated request for the properties as more particularly 19 

described in Exhibit A for a zoning map amendment to change the zoning districts of the 20 

properties; and 21 

 22 

WHEREAS, City staff has prepared and reviewed an amendment to the City’s 23 

Official Zoning Map to change the zoning districts of the properties described below from 24 

Single Family – Two Family Residential (SF-TF-14) and Multi-family Residential 20 (MF-25 

20) to Mixed Use – East (MU-E), pursuant to the City of Lake Worth Beach Land 26 

Development Regulations and Comprehensive Plan; and  27 

 28 

WHEREAS, on October 7, 2020, the City Planning and Zoning Board, sitting as 29 

the duly constituted Local Planning Agency for the City, recommended approval of the 30 

subject zoning map amendment to the City’s Official Zoning Map; and 31 

 32 

WHEREAS, the City has received public input and participation through hearings 33 

before the Local Planning Agency and the City Commission in accordance with Section 34 

163.3181, Florida Statutes; and 35 

 36 

WHEREAS, the City Commission has considered all of the testimony and evidence 37 

and has determined that rezoning meets the rezoning review criteria of the Land 38 

Development Regulations, Section 23.2-36, and is consistent with the City’s 39 

Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan; and 40 

 41 

WHEREAS, the City Commission has determined that the adoption of this 42 

Ordinance is in the best interest of the citizens and residents of the City of Lake Worth 43 

Beach. 44 

 45 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 46 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, that: 47 



Pg. 2, Ord. 2020-18 

 

 

 48 

Section 1.  The foregoing recitals are hereby affirmed and ratified. 49 

 50 

Section 2.   The properties as particularly described in Exhibit A are hereby rezoned from 51 

Single Family – Two Family Residential (SF-TF-14) and Multi-family Residential 20 (MF-52 

20) to Mixed Use – East (MU-E) on the City’s Official Zoning Map. 53 

 54 

Section 3.   The City’s zoning maps shall be amended and updated to reflect the changes.  55 

 56 

Section 4.   Repeal of Laws in Conflict.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict 57 

herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 58 

 59 

Section 5.   Severability.  If any provision of this ordinance or the application thereof is 60 

held invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the invalidity shall not affect other 61 

provisions of the ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or 62 

application, and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared severable. 63 

 64 

Section 6.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days after 65 

its final passage. 66 

 67 

The passage of this ordinance on first reading was moved by _____________, 68 

seconded by ____________ and upon being put to a vote, the vote was as follows: 69 

 70 

Mayor Pam Triolo 71 

Vice Mayor Andy Amoroso 72 

Commissioner Scott Maxwell 73 

Commissioner Herman Robinson 74 

 75 

The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on first reading on the 76 

17th day of November, 2020. 77 

 78 

The passage of this ordinance on second reading was moved by 79 

_________________, seconded by ________________, and upon being put to a vote, 80 

the vote was as follows: 81 

 82 

Mayor Pam Triolo 83 

Vice Mayor Andy Amoroso 84 

Commissioner Scott Maxwell 85 

Commissioner Herman 86 

 87 

The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on the _______ day of 88 

_____________________, 2020. 89 

 90 

CITY OFLAKE WORTH  BEACH  91 

 92 

 93 



Pg. 3, Ord. 2020-18 

 

 

By: __________________________ 94 

Pam Triolo, Mayor 95 

 96 

ATTEST: 97 

 98 

________________________ 99 

Deborah M. Andrea, City Clerk  100 



Pg. 4, Ord. 2020-18 

 

 

Exhibit A 101 
 102 
Property Location: The subject eight (8) parcels are generally located south of 2nd 103 
Avenue North, east of North A Street, north of Lucerne Avenue and west of North D 104 
Street as depicted in the map below and include the following property control numbers:  105 
38434421150060010, 38434421150040010, 38434421150020090, 106 
38434421150020080, 38434421150020062, 38434421150020050, 107 
38434421150020030, and 38434421150020021. 108 
 109 

 110 



 
City Of Lake Worth 

Department for Community Sustainability 

Planning, Zoning and Historic Preservation Division 

1900 Second Avenue North · Lake Worth · Florida 33461· Phone: 561-586-1687  
  

 

DATE:  October 1, 2020  
 
TO:  Members of the Planning & Zoning  
 
FROM:  William Waters, AIA, NCARB, LEED, AP BD+C, ID SEED, Director for Community Sustainability 
 
MEETING:  October 7, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: PZB Project Number 20-01300002: Request for a City initiated rezoning to rezone 118 North A Street, 

116 North A Street, 127 North B Street, 121 North B Street, 119 North B Street, 113 North B Street, 1500 
Lucerne Avenue, and 128 North C Street from either Single Family – Two Family Residential (SF-TF-14) or 
Multi-family Residential 20 (MF-20) to Mixed Use – East (MU-E) pursuant to Section 23.2-36 of the Land 
Development Regulations (LDRs). PCN#s 38434421150060010, 38434421150040010, 38434421150020090, 
38434421150020080, 38434421150020062, 38434421150020050, 38434421150020030, and 
38434421150020021.   

 
 

 
BACKGROUND/ PROPOSAL: 
The proposed City initiated rezoning would rezone the following properties from Single-family and two-family 
residential (SF-TF-14) or Multi-family residential (MF-20) to the Mixed Use – East (MU-E) zoning district: 118 North 
A Street, 116 North A Street, 127 North B Street, 121 North B Street, 119 North B Street, 113 North B Street, 1500 
Lucerne Avenue, and 128 North C Street. The existing uses on the eight (8) subject properties are currently a 
mixture of single-family residences, multi-family residences, and places of worship. The properties are generally 
located in an area bounded by North A Street to the west, North D Street to the east, Lucerne Avenue to the south, 
and 2nd Avenue North to the north. The Planning and Zoning Board’s decision will be in the form of a 
recommendation to the Lake Worth Beach City Commission, who will then make the final decision regarding the 
rezoning request.   
 
ANALYSIS:  
Based on the analysis below, the proposed rezoning is consistent with the goals, objectives, and polices of the City 
of Lake Worth Beach’s Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan. 
 
Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan 
The subject properties currently have a Future Land Use (FLU) designation of Mixed Use – East (MU-E).  Per Policy 
1.1.1.5, the MU-E land use category is intended to provide for a mixture of residential, office, service, and 
commercial retail uses within specific areas east of I-95, near or adjacent to the central commercial core and major 
thoroughfares of the City.  The implementing zoning districts of the MU-E FLU are Mixed Use – Dixie Highway (MU-
DH), Mixed Use Federal Highway (MU-FH), and MU-E.  The properties’ current zoning district of MF-20 and SF-TF-
14 are not designated implementing zoning districts of the MU-E FLU in the City’s Comprehensive Plan and Land 
Development Regulations (LDRs).  Approval of the rezoning request would bring the properties’ zoning into 
compliance with the MU-E FLU and provide additional opportunities for future redevelopment if desired by the 
property owners.   



 
Additionally, Objective 1.2.1 states that the City shall promote the location of high-quality retail, office and mixed-
use projects in the Downtown Mixed Use (DMU) and MU-E designations as the prime retail and commercial areas 
of the City.  The current properties’ zoning districts have a primary permissible use of residential, but also allow for 
a very limited number of commercial, office, and personal service uses.  Approval of the rezoning request would 
allow for a more substantial variety of commercial, office, and service uses, as outlined in the City’s Use Table (LDR 
Section 23.3-6).  Therefore, if successfully rezoned to MU-E, the properties will have the potential to establish uses 
that are consistent with the Comprehensive Plan’s vision for the MU-E FLU area.   
 
The City’s Strategic Plan focuses on fostering safer neighborhoods, encouraging community pride, building a vibrant 
and diverse economy, planning for the future, and enhancing the natural, historic, and cultural environment of the 
City.  Pillar IV.A, Pillar IV.B, Pillar IV.C, Pillar IV.D, and Pillar IV.E encourages the City to achieve economic 
sustainability, attract investment, influence the supply and expansion of jobs, and ensure facility placement that 
embraces the future.  Approval of the rezoning will result in more diverse development opportunities and create 
more jobs by allowing a wide range of commercial, office, and service uses that activate the downtown corridor.  
Therefore, the rezoning is consistent with Pillar IV.A, Pillar IV.B, Pillar IV.C, Pillar IV.D, and Pillar IV.E.   
 
Consistency with the City’s Land Development Regulations 
Rezoning of the subject sites will allow for higher development potential of these properties.  The table below 
outlines the development standards of the existing SF-TF-14 and MF-20 zoning districts, and the development 
standards of the proposed MU-E zoning district:  
 

Development Standard 
Existing Zoning: SF-TF-

14 Development 
Standards 

Existing Zoning: MF-20 
Development Standards 

Proposed Zoning: MU-E 
Development Standards 

Lot Size (min) 
In square feet (sf) 

5,000 sf 5,000 sf 6,500 sf 

Lot Width (min) 50’ 50’ 
Lake and Lucerne: 25’ 

1st Ave South and 2nd Ave 
N: 50’ 

Density (max)  20 du/acre 30 du/acre 

Height (min) 30’ 30’ (plus 5’ with SBIP) 30’ (plus 5’ with SBIP) 

Setbacks 

Front (min) 20’ 20’ 
Lake and Lucerne: 10’ 

1st Ave South and 2nd Ave 
N: 10’ to 22’ 

Rear (min) 
Lesser of 15’ or 10% of 

lot depth 
Lesser of 15’ or 10% of lot 

depth 

Lesser of 15’ or 10% of lot 
depth when next to a 

residential zoning district; 
10’ in general 

Street Side 
(min) 

10% of lot width 10% of lot width 10’ 

Interior 
Side (min) 

10% of lot width 10% of lot width 0’ 

Living Area (min) 

800 sf 

800 sf for SFR; 400 for 
efficiency; 600 sf for one-
bed, 750 sf for two-bed, 

900 sf for three-bed, 
1,350 sf for four-bed 

800 sf for SFR; 400 for 
efficiency; 600 sf for one-

bed, 750 sf for two-bed, 900 
sf for three-bed, 1,350 sf for 

four-bed 



Development Standard 
Existing Zoning: SF-TF-

14 Development 
Standards 

Existing Zoning: MF-20 
Development Standards 

Proposed Zoning: MU-E 
Development Standards 

Impermeable 
Surface Total 
(max) 

Large Lot 50% 55% 65% 

Med Lot 55% 60% 70% 

Small Lot 60% 65% 75% 

Structure 
Coverage 
(max) 

Large Lot 30% 35% 45% 

Med Lot 35% 40% 50% 

Small Lot 40% 45% 55% 

FAR (max) 

Large Lot 0.45 0.5 (plus 0.5 with SBIP) 0.9 (plus 0.5 with SBIP) 

Med Lot 0.5 0.55 (plus 0.5 with SBIP) 0.95 (plus 0.5 with SBIP) 

Small Lot 0.55 0.6 (plus 0.5 with SBIP) 1.0 (plus 0.5 with SBIP) 

 
Should a non-conformity in use or structure be created as a result of the rezoning, the City’s nonconformities code 
shall apply (LDR Section 23.5-3).  The intent of Section 23.5-3 is to permit the continuation of buildings and 
structures, lots of record, uses of buildings and structures, and uses of land that were lawfully permitted when 
established or commenced, but which do not conform in whole or in part to the current LDRs.  Limitations in this 
section include the provision that should a building be allowed to deteriorate or be destroyed beyond 50% of the 
assessed value, the structure must be brought into conformity with the current LDRs.  However, an exemption to 
the conformity requirement is provided for structures destroyed by a tropical cyclone or other natural disaster, 
which could be reconstructed in conformance with the provisions of this section. 
 

The LDRs also require all rezoning requests without a concurrent Future Land Use Map (FLUM) Amendment be 
analyzed for consistency with the review criteria in Section 23.2-36(3).  Staff’s full analysis of the review criteria is 
located in Attachment C.  The analysis demonstrates that the proposed rezoning complies with the review criteria 
and that the required findings can be made in support of the rezoning.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff has determined that the proposed rezoning meets the criteria of the Comprehensive Plan, LDRs, and the 
review criteria for rezoning as outlined in LDR Section 23.2-36.  Therefore, staff is recommending approval to the 
City Commission to rezone the property at 118 North A Street, 116 North A Street, 127 North B Street, 121 North 
B Street, 119 North B Street, 113 North B Street, 1500 Lucerne Avenue, and 128 North C Street to MU-E.   
 
POTENTIAL MOTION: 
I move to RECOMMEND/NOT RECOMMEND TO THE CITY COMMISSION TO ADOPT the proposed City initiated 
rezoning in PZB / HRPB Project Number PZB Project Number 20-01300002. 
 
Attachments 

A. Map & Site Description 
B. Site History 
C. Section 23.2-36(3) Rezoning Review Criteria 

  



ATTACHMENT A: MAP & PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

General Location 
Bounded by North A Street to the west, North D Street to the East, 
Lucerne Avenue to the south, and 2nd Avenue North to the north 

Properties  118 North A Street – Bryant Park Congregation of Jehovah’s 
Witnesses Inc. 

 116 North A Street – Glenn R Yerger 

 127 North B Street – Michael Harrylal and Maria Thirbenny 

 121 North B Street – Fraeye Investments LLC. 

 119 North B Street – Erik Helsher 

 113 North B Street – Milton Jackson 

 1500 Lucerne Avenue – Lake Worth Towers Inc. 

 128 North C Street – Lake Worth First Church of Nazarene Inc. 

Existing PCN 
Numbers 

38434421150060010, 38434421150040010, 38434421150020090, 
38434421150020080, 38434421150020062, 38434421150020050, 
38434421150020030, and 38434421150020021 

Existing Land Use 
A mixture of single-family residences, multi-family residences, and 
places of worship 

Zoning 
Single Family – Two Family Residential (SF-TF-14) or Multi-family 
Residential 20 (MF-20) 

Future Land Use 
Designation 

Mixed Use – East (MU-E) 

 

 



ATTACHMENT B: SITE HISTORY 
 
The subject sites are comprised of a mixture of single-family residences, multi-family residences, and places of 

worship.  Below is a summarized history of each property based on Palm Beach Property Appraiser’s records and 

City records:  

 118 North A Street  
 1950 – The +/- 2,920 square foot place of worship was constructed at 118 North A Street. 
 September 28, 2020 – There are no active business licenses at this site.  
 September 28, 2020 – There are no active code cases at this site.  

 116 North A Street  
 1949 – The +/- 1,251 single-family residence was constructed at 116 North A Street. 
 September 28, 2020 – There are no active business licenses at this site.  
 September 28, 2020 – There are no active code cases at this site.  

 127 North B Street  
 1955 – The +/- 2,042 square foot multi-family residence was constructed at 127 North B Street.  
 September 28, 2020 – Michael Harrylal has an active business license for the rental of a single-family.  
 September 28, 2020 – Code Compliance records show that this property is due for a Use and Occupancy 

Inspection.   

 121 North B Street  
 1979 – The +/- 6,936 square foot multi-family residence was constructed at 121 North B Street. 
 January 15, 2009 – September 20, 2012 – Benjamin Francois held a business license at 121 North B Street 

for the rental of six units.  
 April 17, 2014 – September 30, 2021 – Fraeye Investments LLC holds an active business license at 121 North 

B Street for the rental of six units. 
 September 28, 2020 – Code Compliance records show that this property is due for a Use and Occupancy 

Inspection.   

 119 North B Street  
 1928 – The +/- 1,360 square foot single-family residence was constructed at 119 North B Street.  
 June 12, 2012 – September 30, 2012 – Erik Helsher, Inc. held a business license at 119 North B Street for a 

home occupation.  
 September 28, 2020 – There are no active business licenses at this site.  
 September 28, 2020 – There are no active code cases at this site.  

 113 North B Street 
 1952 – The +/- 1,085 square foot single-family residence was constructed at 113 North B Street. 
 September 28, 2020 – There are no active business licenses at this site.  
 September 28, 2020 – There are no active code cases at this site.  

 1500 Lucerne Avenue 
 1967 – The +/- 153,106 square foot multi-family tower was constructed at 1500 Lucerne Avenue, known as 

the Lake Worth Towers.  
 December 9, 1999 – September 30, 2021 – Towers Hari Design holds an active business license at 1500 

Lucerne Avenue for a hair salon.  
 July 2, 2012 – September 30, 2020 – Clary’s Corner Café held a business license at 1500 Lucerne Avenue for 

a 49-seat restaurant. 
 July 17, 2014 – September 30, 2021 – Lake Worth Towers, Inc. holds an active business license at 1500 

Lucerne Avenue for a commercial rental and for a Group Home Type III.  
 September, 8, 2020 – September 30, 2021 – GTP Structures II, LLC holds an active business license at 1500 

Lucerne Avenue for a telecommunication operator.  
 September 28, 2020 – Code Compliance records show that this property is due for Use and Occupancy 

Inspections.   



 128 North C Street 
 1949 – The +/- 4,918 square foot place of worship was constructed at 128 North C Street.  
 1950 – A +/- 1,708 square foot residence was constructed in connection with the existing place of worship. 
 1962 – A +/- 9,750 square foot building was constructed in connection with the existing place of worship.  
 1955 – An +/- 800 square foot office building was constructed in connection with the existing place of 

worship.  
 June 27, 2014 – September 30, 2021 – Lake Worth First Church of the Nazarene holds an active business 

license at 128 North C Street for a religious organization. 
 September 2, 2020 – A zoning letter was issued allowing 128 North C Street to be split into two separate 

parcels.  
 September 28, 2020 – Code Compliance records show that this property is due for Use and Occupancy 

Inspections.   
 

  



ATTACHMENT C: CONSISTENCY WITH SECTION 23.2-36(3) 
 
Consistency with Section 23.2-36(3): Review Criteria for the Rezoning of Land 

The land development regulations require all rezoning requests without a concurrent Future Land Use Map (FLUM) 
Amendment be analyzed for consistency with Section 23.2-36(3).  Staff has reviewed the rezoning against this 
section and has determined that the rezoning complies with the following review criteria: 
 
a.  Consistency: Whether the proposed rezoning amendment would be consistent with the purpose and intent 
of the applicable comprehensive plan policies, redevelopment plans, and land development regulations. 
Approvals of a request to rezone to a planned zoning district may include limitations or requirements imposed 
on the master plan in order to maintain such consistency 

 
Staff Analysis: The rezoning request furthers the implementation of the City’s Comprehensive Plan with the 
proposed adoption of a zoning district that is consistent with the Mixed Use – East future land use (FLU) designation 
on the subject sites.  The current zoning districts are not implementing zoning districts of the Mixed Use – East FLU.  
Meets Criterion. 
 
b.  Land use pattern: Whether the proposed rezoning amendment would be contrary to the established land use 
pattern, or would create an isolated zoning district unrelated to adjacent and nearby classifications, or would 
constitute a grant of special privilege to an individual property owner as contrasted with the protection of the 
public welfare. This factor is not intended to exclude rezoning that would result in more desirable and sustainable 
growth for the community. 
 
Staff Analysis: The rezoning request will not be contrary or incompatible to the established land pattern, nor 
will it create an isolated zoning district unrelated to the adjacent and nearby classifications or constitute a grant 
of special privilege to the petitioner as contrasted with the protection of the public welfare.  The proposed zoning 
of MU-E allows for a wide array of commercial, office, and service uses that are consistent with the City’s vision 
for the MU-E FLU area.  Further, the rezoning offers the current property owners with more flexibility for 
redevelopment and higher market potential.  Meets Criterion. 

 
c.  Sustainability: Whether the proposed rezoning would support the integration of a mix of land uses consistent 
with smart growth or sustainability initiatives, with an emphasis on 1) complementary land uses; 2) access to 
alternative modes of transportation; and 3) interconnectivity within the project and between adjacent 
properties. 
 
Staff Analysis: The rezoning request supports the integration of a mix of land uses consistent with smart growth 
and sustainability initiatives.  In particular, approval of the rezoning request could lead to compatible land uses 
that could strengthen and direct development to the existing area.  This is a smart growth principle that will 
allow the City to benefit from a stronger tax base, will increase efficiency of already-developed land, and will 
add to the redevelopment potential in the area.  The uses immediately surrounding the properties are primarily 
single-family residential, multi-family residential, and commercial.  Approval of the rezoning will allow for land 
uses that are complementary to the commercial core area as well as the existing residential uses surrounding 
the properties.  Meets Criterion. 
 
d.  Availability of public services/infrastructure: Requests for rezoning to planned zoning districts shall be subject 
to review pursuant to section 23.5-2. 
 
Staff Analysis: This criterion is only applicable to requests to rezone land to a planned zoning district.  As this 
request seeks approval to rezone the subject properties to the conventional MU-E zoning district, this criterion 

https://library.municode.com/fl/lake_worth_beach/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH23LADERE_ART5SURE_S23.5-2SURE


does not apply.  That being said, all future requests for development will be reviewed to ensure the provision of 
adequate public services and infrastructure necessary to support the subject properties. Further, the availability 
of public services and infrastructure for the adopted future land us map was reviewed previously with the 
adoption of the Comprehensive Plan 2016 EAR based amendments and the subsequent 2018 amendments. 
Criterion not applicable. 

 
e.  Compatibility: The application shall consider the following compatibility factors: 

1. Whether the proposed rezoning would be compatible with the current and future use of adjacent and 
nearby properties, or would negatively affect the property values of adjacent and nearby properties. 

2. Whether the proposed rezoning is of a scale which is reasonably related to the needs of the 
neighborhood and the city as a whole. 

 
Staff Analysis: The existing zoning districts of the subject properties are not consistent with the adopted future 

land use.  Rezoning of the subject sites will increase compatibility with the adoption of a zoning district that is 

intended to implement the vision of the Mixed Use – East FLU designation.  Meets Criterion. 

 
f.  Direct community sustainability and economic development benefits: For rezoning involving rezoning to a 
planned zoning district, the review shall consider the economic benefits of the proposed amendment, 
specifically, whether the proposal would: 

1. Further implementation of the city's economic development (CED) program; 

2. Contribute to the enhancement and diversification of the city's tax base; 

3. Respond to the current market demand or community needs or provide services or retail choices not 
locally available; 

4. Create new employment opportunities for the residents, with pay at or above the county average 
hourly wage; 

5. Represent innovative methods/technologies, especially those promoting sustainability; 

6. Support more efficient and sustainable use of land resources in furtherance of overall community 
health, safety and general welfare; 

7. Be complementary to existing uses, thus fostering synergy effects; and 

8. Alleviate blight/economic obsolescence of the subject area. 

 
Staff Analysis: The rezoning request does not have a concurrent site plan application in review at this time.  As 
such, this criterion is not applicable.  Any future requests for development on this property will be processed 
and subject to review in accordance with the applicable Land Development Regulations. Criterion not 
applicable. 
 
g.  Economic development impact determination for conventional zoning districts: For rezoning involving 
rezoning to a conventional zoning district, the review shall consider whether the proposal would further the 
economic development program, and also determine whether the proposal would: 

1. Represent a potential decrease in the possible intensity of development, given the uses permitted in 
the proposed land use category and/or zoning district; and 

2. Represent a potential decrease in the number of uses with high probable economic development 
benefits. 

 



Staff Analysis: The proposed application would increase the development potential of the subject sites in 

density, intensity and number of uses.  Meets Criterion. 

 
h.  Master plan and site plan compliance with land development regulations: When master plan and site plan 
review are required pursuant to section 2.D.1.e. above, both shall comply with the requirements of the 
respective zoning district regulations of article III and the site development standards of section 23.2-32. 
 
Staff Analysis: The rezoning request does not have a concurrent site plan application in review at this time.  As 
such, this criterion is not applicable.  Any future requests for development on this property will be processed and 
subject to review in accordance with the applicable Land Development Regulations.  Criterion not applicable. 
 

The analysis has shown that the required findings can be made in support of the rezoning.  Therefore, the proposed 
rezoning is consistent with the review criteria for rezoning as outlined in LDR Section 23.2-36.   

 

https://library.municode.com/fl/lake_worth_beach/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH23LADERE_ART2AD_DIV3PE_S23.2-32SIPLSP


EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 
  

AGENDA DATE: November 17, 2020 DEPARTMENT: Electric Utility 

TITLE: 

Seventh Amendment to the existing agreement with Vantage Services Consulting LLC for 
additional consulting services for Fiscal Year 2021 

 
SUMMARY: 

The Seventh Amendment authorizes Vantage Energy Consulting LLC to renew the term for one 
(1) year. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The Electric Utility Department entered into an agreement with Vantage Energy Consulting LLC 
(“Vantage”) to provide consulting services related to the purchase of electric power, 
development of electric supply cost models to support cost tracking, budgeting and fiscal 
modeling, auditing of energy supplier and transmission provider bills, nomination of electric 
energy and capacity purchases, assistance with natural gas pipeline capacity sales, 
development of electric reliability reports, and analysis of natural gas supply pipeline options. 

The purpose of this seventh amendment is to renew the term for one (1) year and set for the 
certain terms and conditions for the provision of additional services by the consultant to the City. 
Vantage has submitted a proposal for services for the new fiscal year sought by the City. The 
Electric Utility has reviewed the consultant’s proposal and concluded the estimate is reasonable 
for the said work. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Seventh Amendment to the existing agreement with Vantage 
Services Consulting LLC for additional consulting services for Fiscal Year 2021 in the amount 
not to exceed $170,880. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 
Seventh Amendment 



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Fiscal Years 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 
 
Capital Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0 
Operating Expenditures $170,800 0 0 0 0 
External Revenues 0 0 0 0 0 
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
In-kind Match  0 0 0 0 0 
 
Net Fiscal Impact $170,800 0 0 0 0 
 
No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 

 

B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Account Number Account 

Description 
Project 
Number 

FY21 
Budget 

Current 
Balance 

Agenda 
Expenditure 

Balance 
 

401-6010-531.31-90 Prof Servc/Other N/A $358,960 298,061 $170,800 $127,261 

 



1 
 

SEVENTH AMENDMENT TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 

 This Seventh Amendment (“Seventh Amendment”) to the Professional Services 

Agreement is made as of the ________________, by and between the City of Lake Worth Beach, 

Florida, a municipal corporation of the State of Florida (“CITY”) and Vantage Energy 

Consulting, LLC, a Florida limited liability company, (“CONSULTANT”). 

 

WHEREAS, the City and CONSULTANT entered a Professional Services Agreement for 

the CONSULTANT’s distinct field of expertise in Florida and beyond (the “Agreement”) on 

November 8, 2017; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Consultant has a distinct field of expertise in Florida and beyond in regard 

to auditing electric services and providing variety of consulting services related to electric utility 

regulatory issues, asset management and procurement; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Agreement has been amended six times to broaden the scope of services 

which CONSULTANT was providing to the CITY; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Fourth, Fifth and Sixth Amendment included specific tasks that 

Consultant provided in the past year and the City wishes to extend the same services for the 

additional year; and  

 

WHEREAS, the CONSULTANT has submitted the new rates for services sought by the 

CITY; and 

 

WHEREAS, the purpose of this Seventh Amendment is to renew the term for one (1) year 

and set forth certain terms and conditions for the provision of additional services by the 

CONSULTANT to the CITY; and 

 

WHEREAS, the CITY’s Electric Utility has reviewed the CONSULTANT’s rates and 

concluded the rates are reasonable; and 

 

WHEREAS, under section 2-112(c)(6) of the CITY’s procurement code, the City 

Commission is authorized to approve an agreement with a consultant with a distinct field of 

expertise without competitive selection; and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein, the 

sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged by each party hereto, the CITY and the 

CONSULTANT agree to amend the Agreement, as follows: 

 

1. Recitals. The above recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein by 

reference. 

 

2. Consultant’s Services. Section 2 of the Agreement, regarding the Consultant’s 

services, is amended to add the additional services as outlined in the Consultant’s 



2 
 

proposal and new rates, and consisting of one page, which is attached hereto as 

Exhibit “1” and incorporated herein. 

 

3. Fees. Section 5 of the Agreement, regarding the Consultant’s fees, is amended to 

allow for the additional services to be provided by the Consultant under this 

Amendment. Said compensation shall not exceed One Hundred Seventy 

Thousand Eight Hundred and Eighty Dollars ($170,880.00). 

 

4. Term of Agreement. Section 4 of the Agreement shall be amended to provide that 

the Agreement expires November 30, 2021.  

 

5. E-Verify. Pursuant to Section 448.095(2), Florida Statutes, beginning on January 

1, 2021, the Contractor shall: 

a. Register with and use the E-Verify system to verify the work authorization 

status of all newly hired employees and require all subcontractors (providing 

services or receiving funding under this Agreement) to register with and use the E-

Verify system to verify the work authorization status of all the subcontractors’ 

newly hired employees; 

b. Secure an affidavit from all subcontractors (providing services or receiving 

funding under this Agreement) stating that the subcontractor does not employ, 

contract with, or subcontract with an “unauthorized alien” as defined in Section 

448.095(1)(k), Florida Statutes; 

c. Maintain copies of all subcontractor affidavits for the duration of this 

Agreement and provide the same to the City upon request; 

d. Comply fully, and ensure all of its subcontractors comply fully, with 

Section 448.095, Florida Statutes;  

e. Be aware that a violation of Section 448.09, Florida Statutes (Unauthorized 

aliens; employment prohibited) shall be grounds for termination of this Agreement; 

and, 

f. Be aware that if the City terminates this Agreement under Section 

448.095(2)(c), Florida Statutes, the Contractor may not be awarded a contract for 

at least 1 year after the date on which the Agreement is terminated and will be liable 

for any additional costs incurred by the City as a result of the termination of the 

Agreement.   

 

6. Entire Agreement. The CITY and the CONSULTANT agree that the Agreement 

and this Fourth Amendment set forth the entire agreement between the parties, and 

that there are no promises or understandings other than those stated herein. None 

of the provisions, terms and conditions contained in this Fourth Amendment may 

be added to, modified, superseded or otherwise altered, except by written 

instrument executed by the parties hereto. All other terms and conditions of the 

Agreement remain in full force and effect. 

 

7. Counterparts. This Fourth Amendment may be simultaneously executed in several 

counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but 



3 
 

one and the same instrument. Either or both parties may sign this Fourth 

Amendment via facsimile or email and such signature is as valid as the original 

signature of such party. 

         
 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS 
 

 

 

  



4 
 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have made and executed this Seventh 

Amendment to the Professional Services Agreement on the day and year first above written. 

      CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA 

ATTEST:                                                                       

                                                          

By: __________________________                By: _____________________________ 

      Deborah M. Andrea, City Clerk                          Pam Triolo, Mayor 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND                     APPROVED FOR FINANCIAL         

LEGAL SUFFICIENCY:                                   SUFFICIENCY 

By: __________________________                  By: ____________________________ 

      Glen J. Torcivia, City Attorney                           Bruce T. Miller, Financial Services Director 

        

   CONSULTANT: Vantage Energy Consulting, LLC 

      By: __________________________________ 

[Corporate Seal]    Print Name: ___________________________ 

      Title: _________________________________ 

 

STATE OF _______________________) 

COUNTY OF _____________________) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ________ day of ________, 2020, by 

__________________, who was physically present, as _________________ (title), of Vantage Energy 

Consulting, LLC, A Corporation, which is authorized to do business in the State of Florida, and who is 

personally known to me or who has produced the following _______________________________ as 

identification. 

Notary Public     ______________________________________ 

      Print Name: ____________________________ 

      My commission expires:__________________  

 

 



5 
 

Exhibit “1” 

(Vantage Rates – 1 page) 

 

 

Proposed LWB Budget

Fiscal 2021

1 Assist with rates and budgeting including

LWB Budgeting Days Hours Rate Days Hours Rate

Actual versus Budget updates 6 48 230$              0.5 4 250$        

Work with external rate consultants 6 48 230$              0 0 250$        

Rate and Financial Projections 6 48 230$              0 0 250$        

Bill Verification 6 48 230$              0 0 250$        

Load Forecasting for Model 3 24 230$              1 8 250$        

Nominations(including Model Update) 1 8 230$              1 8 250$        

2 Customer Solar Energy /Avoided cost 2 16 230$              0 0 250$        

3 Greenhouse and carbon free 2 16 230$              0 0 250$        

4 Maintain All In Cost Model 12 96 230$              3 24 250$        

5 Product Budget Variance Reports

Monthly 12 96 230$              0.5 4 250$        

Quarterly 6 48 230$              1 8 250$        

6 Assist with Ad Hoc Presentations and Reports 20 160 230$              3 24 250$        

Total 82 656 150,880$     10 80 20,000$  

Mark Fowler Budget Walt Drabinski Budget



EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

  

AGENDA DATE: November 17, 2020 DEPARTMENT: Electric Utility  

TITLE: 

Amended and Restated Directive with Gas South, LLC 

 
SUMMARY: 

Amended and Restated Directive will enable Florida Gas Utility (FGU) to release some or all of 
the City’s Florida Gas Transmission (FGT) capacity on a temporary basis to Gas South as an 
alternative to the bundled gas sale for Fiscal Years 2021-2025. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 
Pursuant to the Directive, dated February 22, 2019, the City authorized FGU to sell natural gas, 
bundled with firm FGT transportation capacity, to Peninsula Energy Services Company 
(“PESCO”) on behalf of the City. 
 
On October 15, 2019, the City issued an addendum to the Directive to authorize FGU to consent 
to and execute the assignment of PESCO’s rights and obligations in the Directive to Gas South, 
LLC. 
 
FGU and Gas South desire to modify the structure of the Directive to enable a release of some 
or all of the FGT capacity contemplated therein from FGU to Gas South to be managed under 
an asset management agreement with Gas South. 
 
The modified structure will enable FGU to release some or all of the City’s FGT capacity on a 
temporary basis to Gas South as an alternative to the bundled gas sale. The benefits to the City 
and FGU of incorporating this capacity release element are: 
 

1. Reduce the City’s credit exposure to Gas South 
2. Improve timing of the City’s cash flows from FGU (capacity release credits from FGT 

come ~3 weeks prior to payment of gas supply on bundled sale) 
3. Economics to the City are neutral (no change in expected net benefit). 
4. Reduce FGU’s administrative burden for daily scheduling of gas supply to multiple 

Gas South points. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove the Amended and Restated Directive with Gas South, LLC 
authorizing FGU to release some or all of the City’s FGT capacity on a temporary basis to Gas 
South as an alternative to the bundled gas sale. 



 

FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Fiscal Years 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 
 
Capital Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0 
Operating Expenditures $4,728,326 $4,668,533 $4,668,278 $4,668,406 $4,668,406 
External Revenues $4,942,930 $4,960,648 $4,960,648 $4,960,776 $4,960,776 
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
In-kind Match  0 0 0 0 0 
 
Net Fiscal Impact $214,604 $292,370 $292,370 $292,370 $292,370 
 
No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 

 

B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Account Number Account 

Description 
Fiscal Year FY21 

Budget 
Annual 
Revenue 

Cumulative 
Revenue 
Balance  

401-0000-343-10-21 Capacity 
Revenues 

2021 $0 $214,604 $214,604 

401-0000-343-10-21 Capacity 
Revenues 

2022 $0 $292,370 $313,974 

401-0000-343-10-21 Capacity 
Revenues 

2023 $0 $292,370 $606,344 

401-0000-343-10-21 Capacity 
Revenues 

2024 $0 $292,370 $898,714 

401-0000-343-10-21 Capacity 
Revenues 

2025 $0 $292,370 $1,191,084 

 

ATTACHMENT(S): 

Directive Confirmation 2.22.19 
FGU-Lake Worth Beach Directive Addendum 10.15.2019 
Proposed Amended and Restated Directive 10.21.2020 
FGU – Lake Worth Gas Services Agreement  
Sun Trust Letter of Credit 











 

 
 
 

October 21, 2020 
 

DIRECTIVE CONFIRMATION 
 
To:  Brian King, City of Lake Worth Beach (“Lake Worth Beach”) 

From:  David Wagner, Florida Gas Utility (“FGU”) 

Subject: Amended and Restated Directive to Authorize Remarketing of Capacity (“Amended and Restated 
Directive”) 

WHEREAS, on February 22, 2019, Lake Worth Beach (formerly Lake Worth) issued a directive (the “Directive”) to authorize 
FGU to sell natural gas, bundled with firm FGT transportation capacity to Peninsula Energy Services Company (“PESCO”) on 
behalf of Lake Worth Beach under the terms and conditions contained therein (the “Transaction”); and 

WHEREAS, on October 15, 2019, Lake Worth Beach issued an addendum (the “Addendum”) to the Directive to authorize FGU 
to consent to and execute the assignment of PESCO’s rights and obligations in the Transaction to Gas South, LLC (“Gas South”); 
and 

WHEREAS, FGU and Gas South desire to modify the structure of the Transaction to enable a release of some or all of the FGT 
capacity contemplated therein from FGU to Gas South to be managed under an asset management agreement by Gas South; 

NOW THERFORE, Lake Worth Beach hereby issues this Amended and Restated Directive, which shall supersede and replace 
the Directive and Addendum, for the purpose of authorizing FGU to remarket Lake Worth Beach’s firm gas transportation 
capacity on FGT as described herein. 

This Amended and Restated Directive is given pursuant to the Gas Services Agreement between FGU and Lake Worth Beach, 
dated as of July 26, 1995 (the “Agreement”). Pursuant to Article XI of the Agreement, and to FGU’s Credit Policy A-8 and the 
corresponding Credit Policy Operating Procedures, Lake Worth Beach hereby requests and authorizes FGU to remarket Lake 
Worth Beach’s firm gas transportation capacity on FGT via either capacity release, sale of gas supply bundled with Lake Worth 
Beach’s capacity, or a combination thereof, to Gas South on behalf of Lake Worth Beach under the following terms and 
conditions: 

 

Term: March 1, 2019 through November 30, 2025; provided however that Lake Worth Beach FGU may terminate 
the sale to Gas South, effective no earlier than December 31, 2021, upon 365 days’ prior written notice if 
Lake Worth Beach proceeds with a capital project requiring natural gas delivery to the City of Lake Worth. 

Quantity: 7,542 Dths/day for only the delivery months of May through October each year during the Term 

Delivery Point:  

For quantities remarketed via sale of gas supply bundled with capacity: 

FGT Market Area - Miami LNG Holdings (Loc # 100042), or other FGT points mutually agreed upon by Gas 
South and FGU 

For quantities remarketed via capacity release: 

FGT Market Area – W Lake Worth CTG-FGU (Loc # 78280) 

Minimum Price:  

For quantities remarketed via sale of gas supply bundled with capacity: 

Stated in dollars per dekatherm and equal to Inside FERC Monthly Index for Florida Gas, Zone 3 plus (i) FGT 
variable usage/fuel charges, (ii) the maximum tariff reservation rate for FGT FTS-2, or any successor rate 
schedule (subject to true-up for any rate adjustments ordered by the FERC), and (iii) an adder of $0.155/Dth 
(effective 8/1/2021, the adder will be $0.255/Dth). 

For quantities remarketed via capacity release: 



 
  

 
 

The maximum tariff reservation rate for FGT FTS-2, or any successor rate schedule (subject to true-up for 
any rate adjustments ordered by the FERC) plus an adder of $0.155/Dth (effective 8/1/2021, the adder will 
be $0.255/Dth). 

Credit: To support the sale to Gas South during the Term, Lake Worth Beach agrees and accepts the irrevocable 
letter of credit (the “Letter of Credit”), posted by Gas South in favor of FGU and issued by Sun Trust Bank in 
an amount sufficient to cover (i) two full calendar months of FGU’s contract exposure to Gas South plus (ii) 
six-months of FGT FTS-2 reservation charges for Lake Worth Beach’s FGT capacity, to satisfy the credit 
support requirements of the Transaction. FGU will allocate the security provided by Gas South in 
accordance with the Exhibit A (FGU Credit Allocation) attached to this Amended and Restated Directive. 

Lake Worth Beach acknowledges that any capacity released by FGU pursuant to this Amended and Restated Directive may 
be done so on a non-recallable basis.  Lake Worth Beach will be obligated to pay for the released transportation capacity 
should Gas South fail to make payment to FGT.  

Lake Worth Beach further authorizes FGU to purchase firm natural gas, in quantities and at locations and for terms as 
determined by FGU’s CEO and General Manager, or its designee, as required to effectuate an optimal delivery of any gas 
supply bundled with transportation capacity sold to Gas South under this Amended and Restated Directive. Lake Worth Beach 
acknowledges that the quantities of gas purchased and sold by FGU pursuant to this Amended and Restated Directive will be 
done so under firm contracts and that FGU will be required to take and make delivery of such quantities. Lake Worth Beach 
will be obligated to reimburse FGU for the cost of the purchased gas, regardless of whether FGU is reimbursed under its sale 
contract to Gas South.  Furthermore, Lake Worth Beach understands that any claim for adequate credit assurance that results 
in a margin posting or prepayment of quantities by FGU, an early termination of the purchase and/or sale that results in an 
early termination expense, or any other costs incurred by FGU on Lake Worth Beach’s behalf as a result of Gas South related 
transactions, are the financial responsibility of Lake Worth Beach. 

This Amended and Restated Directive is supplemental to the Agreement and shall not be viewed as an amendment of any 
terms, provisions or requirements contained in the Agreement. 

 
 
 
__________________________________ ____________        
Authorized Signature – Lake Worth Beach Date 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 

Directive Confirmation Exhibit A - FGU Credit Allocation 
 
Per the terms of the transaction confirmation between FGU and Gas South for the FGU sale of natural gas for the period of 
March 1, 2019 through November 30, 2025, Gas South shall be required to securitize FGU’s exposure to Gas South under the 
contract with collateral reasonably satisfactory with FGU, in an amount equal to the sum of (i) the contract exposure for two 
full calendar months, and (ii) six months of FGT FTS-2 reservation charges based on the maximum tariff rate as posted in 
FGT’s tariff for the quantity of 7,542 Dths. For purposes of allocating such security among the FGU members directing the 
sale to Gas South, FGU shall apply the methodology outlined below. 
 
Allocation of Security in the Event of Non-Payment by Gas South  
 

Allocation of Amount (i) above - contract exposure for two months 

Timing of Non-
Payment Lake Worth Beach FMPA 

January $0  2-months of contract exposure 
February $0  2-months of contract exposure 

March $0  2-months of contract exposure 
April $0  2-months of contract exposure 
May 1-month of contract exposure 1-month of contract exposure 
June 2-months of contract exposure $0  
July 2-months of contract exposure $0  

August 2-months of contract exposure $0  
September 2-months of contract exposure $0  

October 2-months of contract exposure $0  
November 1-month of contract exposure 1-month of contract exposure 
December $0  2-months of contract exposure 

 
 
 
Allocation of Security in the Event of Default by Gas South and Early Termination by FGU 
 

Allocation of Amount (ii) above - six months reservation charges 
Lake Worth Beach FMPA 

up to the full amount, depending on actual damages to Lake 
Worth Beach as determined under the NAESB Contract between 

FGU and Gas South 

any amount of security remaining 
after determination of Lake Worth 

Beach damages 

 
 









































IRREVOCABLE STANDBY LETTER OF CREDIT 70004264              
                                                                         
DATE: SEPTEMBER 27, 2019                                                 
                                                                         
APPLICANT:                           BENEFICIARY:                        
GAS SOUTH, LLC                       FLORIDA GAS UTILITY                 
3625 CUMBERLAND BLVD., STE 1500      4619 NW 53RD AVE                    
ATLANTA, GA 30339-6409               GAINESVILLE, FL 32653               
                                                                         
                                                                         
FOR: USD 3,500,000.00 (US DOLLARS THREE MILLION FIVE HUNDRED THOUSAND)   
                                                                         
DATE OF EXPIRATION: 1/31/2020                                            
PLACE OF EXPIRATION: OUR COUNTERS                                        
                                                                         
                                                                         
                                                                         
WE HEREBY ESTABLISH OUR IRREVOCABLE LETTER OF CREDIT NO. 70004264 IN     
YOUR FAVOR FOR ACCOUNT OF THE ABOVE-REFERENCED APPLICANT AVAILABLE BY    
YOUR DRAFTS DRAWN ON US PAYABLE AT SIGHT FOR ANY SUM OF MONEY NOT TO     
EXCEED A TOTAL OF THE AMOUNT REFERENCED ABOVE WHEN ACCOMPANIED BY THIS   
LETTER OF CREDIT AND THE FOLLOWING DOCUMENT:                             
                                                                         
                                                                         
BENEFICIARY'S DATED CERTIFICATE AND SIGHT DRAFT (EXAMPLE ATTACHED HERETO AS 
EXHIBIT 1) PURPORTEDLY SIGNED BY ONE OF ITS OFFICIALS STATING:         
 
"PUNCTUAL PAYMENT WAS NOT MADE WHEN DUE OF COMPANY'S PAYMENT             
OBLIGATIONS ARISING UNDER ANY AGREEMENT WITH BENEFICIARY WITH PAYMENT    
TERMS OF LESS THAN 364 DAYS FOR ANY INDIVIDUAL OBLIGATION/INVOICE, AS      
SUCH AGREEMENT MAY BE AMENDED OR MODIFIED BY AGREEMENT BETWEEN    
BENEFICIARY AND THE APPLICANT FROM TIME TO TIME."                  
                                                                         
IT IS A CONDITION OF THIS LETTER OF CREDIT THAT IT SHALL BE DEEMED       
AUTOMATICALLY EXTENDED WITHOUT AMENDMENT FOR ONE YEAR FROM THE           
EXPIRATION DATE HEREOF, OR ANY FUTURE EXPIRATION DATE, UNLESS AT LEAST   
NINETY (90) DAYS PRIOR TO ANY EXPIRATION DATE WE SEND NOTICE TO YOU BY   
REGISTERED MAIL OR OVERNIGHT COURIER THAT WE ELECT NOT TO CONSIDER THIS  
LETTER OF CREDIT EXTENDED FOR ANY SUCH ADDITIONAL PERIOD. LETTER OF      
CREDIT NON EXTENSION NOTICE SHALL BE SENT TO THE BENEFICIARY AT THE      
ADDRESS AS STATED ABOVE, OR AS AMENDED.                                  
                                                                         
ALL DRAFTS MUST REFERENCE THE NUMBER AND ISSUE DATE OF THIS CREDIT.      
                                                                         
THIS LETTER OF CREDIT IS ISSUED SUBJECT TO THE INTERNATIONAL STANDBY     
PRACTICES 1998 PUBLICATION 590.                                          
                                                                         
WE HEREBY AGREE WITH YOU THAT ALL DRAFTS DRAWN IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE    
TERMS OF THIS LETTER OF CREDIT WILL BE DULY HONORED UPON PRESENTATION    
AND DELIVERY OF THE DOCUMENTS SPECIFIED ABOVE ON OR 
                              Page 1 of 2       70004264                 
                                                                         
                                                                         
                                                                         
  
                                                                         
                                                                         



                                                                         
                                                                         
                                                                         
BEFORE JANUARY 31, 2020 OR ANY AUTOMATICALLY EXTENDED EXPIRY DATE.  
PRESENTATION OF DRAWINGS(S) MAY BE MADE BY OVERNIGHT COURIER OR BY       
FACSIMILE TO OUR FACSIMILE NUMBER 801-567-6205 UNDER TELEPHONIC ADVICE   
TO OUR STANDBY LETTER OF CREDIT DEPARTMENT AT 800-951-7847 OPTION 3. IN  
SUCH CASE, PRESENTATION OF ORIGINAL DOCUMENTS ARE NOT REQUIRED.          

     
                                                                         
ALL DOCUMENTS MAY BE PRESENTED TO:                                    
SUNTRUST BANK    
LETTERS OF CREDIT AND TRADE SERVICES 
245 PEACHTREE CENTER AVENUE, 17TH FLOOR 
MC: GA-ATL-3707 
ATLANTA, GA 30303                        
                                  
                                                                         
  
PLEASE DIRECT ALL INQUIRIES TO:                                          
PHONE: 800-951-7847 OPTION 3.                                            
                                                                         
                                                                         
                                                                         
SINCERELY,                                                               
                                                                         
SUNTRUST BANK                                                            
                                                                         
                                                                         
__________________________                                               
AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE                                                     
                                                                         
                                                                         
***************************************************************          
      PLEASE NOTE THAT THIS DRAFTED DOCUMENT IS NEITHER A                
  PRE-ADVICE NOR AN INDICATION THAT A LETTER OF CREDIT WILL BE           
    ISSUED BY SUNTRUST BANK NOR A COMMITMENT OF ANY TYPE BY              
 SUNTRUST BANK. THIS DRAFTED DOCUMENT IS FOR REVIEW OF POSSIBLE          
   WORDING/STRUCTURE ONLY. ISSUANCE OF A LETTER OF CREDIT BY             
 SUNTRUST BANK IS SUBJECT TO FINAL APPROVAL BY THE APPROPRIATE           
       PARTIES OF THE WORDING/STRUCTURE AND ALL REQUIRED                 
               SUNTRUST BANK INTERNAL APPROVALS.                         
***************************************************************          
                                                                         
                                                                         
                                                                         
                                                                         
                                                                         
                                                                         
                                                                         
                                                                         
                                                                         
                                                                         
                              Page 2 of 2       70004264                 
 



{EXHIBIT 1} 

[FGU LETTERHEAD] 

IRREVOCABLE STANDBY LETTER OF CREDIT NUMBER XXX 

FORM OF BENEFICIARY’S DATED CERTIFICATE AND SIGHT DRAFT 

 

TO: 

SUNTRUST BANK 
LETTERS OF CREDIT AND TRADE SERVICES 
245 PEACHTREE CENTER AVENUE, 17TH FLOOR 
MC: GA-ATL-3707 
ATLANTA, GA 30303                        
AND/OR  
FACSIMILE NUMBER 801-567-6205 UNDER TELEPHONIC ADVICE   
TO OUR STANDBY LETTER OF CREDIT DEPARTMENT AT 800-951-7847 OPTION 3 
 
PUNCTUAL PAYMENT WAS NOT MADE WHEN DUE OF COMPANY'S PAYMENT             
OBLIGATIONS ARISING UNDER ANY AGREEMENT WITH BENEFICIARY WITH PAYMENT    
TERMS OF LESS THAN 364 DAYS FOR ANY INDIVIDUAL OBLIGATION/INVOICE, AS      
SUCH AGREEMENT MAY BE AMENDED OR MODIFIED BY AGREEMENT BETWEEN    
BENEFICIARY AND THE APPLICANT FROM TIME TO TIME. 
 
 
AT SIGHT, PAY TO THE ORDER OF FLORIDA GAS UTILITY, THE SUM OF ___________ 
UNITED STATES DOLLARS ($_________), DRAWN UNDER SUNTRUST BANK IRREVOCABLE 
STANDBY LETTER OF CREDIT NUMBER_____, DATED _________. 
 
SUNTRUST BANK IS HEREBY DIRECTED TO PAY THE PROCEEDS OF THIS SIGNT DRAFT 
SOLELY TO THE FOLLOWING ACCOUNT: RTN#: _______ ACCOUNT#:  _________. 
 
 
NAME:_____________________________ 
 
TILE:_______________________________ 
 
SIGNATURE: __________________________ DATE: _________________ 
 
 
 
                                                                        



EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 
  

AGENDA DATE: November 17, 2020 DEPARTMENT: Electric Utility 

TITLE: 

Work Order No. 5 with The L.E. Myers Co., for Electric Distribution System construction services 

 
SUMMARY: 

This Work Order No. 5 authorizes The L.E. Myers Co., to complete construction services and 
repairs to address issues identified during the Infrared Inspections on the Electrical Distribution 
system in the amount not to exceed $278,407. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 
The City issued a Request for Proposal (RFP 18-206) seeking proposals from qualified 
Electric Utility Contractors to build and construct numerous hardening and reliability 
improvements to the City’s electrical transmission and distribution systems. A total of six 
Electric Utility Contractors were selected by the evaluation committee to complete these 
services. 
 
During peak electrical loading of the summer months of 2020, the City of Lake Worth Beach 
Electric Utility utilized the services of Brady Infrared to conduct Infrared & Thermal Inspections 
on the Electrical System.  Inspections were completed at (11) substations, the 138kV Tie-Line 
and Distribution Feeder Circuits, as a preventative maintenance measure to identify hot-spots 
and potential issues which could result in fault on the system.  
 
The Electric Utility is requesting the services of L.E. Myers to complete remediation work on 
the distribution system to address approximately 133 locations identified as potential issues. 
The work is anticipated to be completed in 35 work days in the amount not exceed $278,407. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Work Order No. 5 to The L.E. Myers Co. to complete repairs on 
the Electrical Distribution system at a cost not to exceed $278,407. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 
L.E Myers Work Order No. 5 



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Fiscal Years 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 
 
Capital Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0 
Operating Expenditures $278,407 0 0 0 0 
External Revenues 0 0 0 0 0 
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
In-kind Match  0 0 0 0 0 
 
Net Fiscal Impact $278,407 0 0 0 0 
 
No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 

 

B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact: Funds have been identified 
in account No. 401-6034-531-31.90. A Budget Amendment and/or Budget Transfer will be 
completed to fund this project in the account identified above and below. 

 
Account Number Account 

Description 
Project 
Number 

FY21 
Budget 

Current 
Balance 

Agenda 
Expenditure 

Balance 
 

401-6034-531-31.90 Prof Serv/ 
Other 

 $100,000 $79,485 -$278,407 -$198,922 

 

















EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 
  

AGENDA DATE: November 17th, 2020 DEPARTMENT: Electric Utility 

TITLE: 

First Amendment to the agreement with Leidos Engineering LLC for additional cost of rate 
design consulting services for Fiscal Year 2021 

 
SUMMARY: 

The First Amendment authorizes Leidos Engineering LLC to renew and extend the term of the 
Agreement to two (2) years with the possibility to extend for additional two (2) one (1) year terms 
under same terms and conditions. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The Electric Utility Department entered into an agreement with Leidos Engineering LLC 
(“Leidos”) to provide consulting services related to Electric Utility rates design study.  

The purpose of this First Amendment is to renew the terms and conditions for the provision of 
additional services by the Consultant to the City. Leidos has submitted a proposal of for services 
for the new fiscal year sought by the City. The Electric Utility has reviewed the consultant’s 
proposal and concluded the estimated cost of services is reasonable.  

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove First Amendment to the existing agreement with Leidos 
Engineering LLC for additional cost of rate study consulting services for the Fiscal Year 2021 in 
the amount not to exceed $45,000. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 
First Amendment 



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Fiscal Years 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 
 
Capital Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0 
Operating Expenditures 45,000 0 0 0 0 
External Revenues 0 0 0 0 0 
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
In-kind Match  0 0 0 0 0 
 
Net Fiscal Impact 45,000 0 0 0 0 
 
No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 

 

B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Account 
Number 

Account 
Description 

Project 
Number 

FY21 
Budget 

Current 
Balance 

Agenda 
Expenditure 

Balance 
 

401-6010-
531-31-90 

Professional 
Services 

 $45,000 $45,000 -$45,000 $0.00 

 



Page 1 of 3 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

(Electrical Utility Cost of Service Study) 

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT (“Amendment”) to the Professional Services Agreement for 

Electrical Utility Cost of Service Study is made as of _______________,  by and between the City of Lake 

Worth Beach, Florida, a municipal corporation of the State of Florida (“CITY”) and Leidos Engineering, 

LLC, a Delaware Limited Liability Company authorized to do business in the State of Florida 

(“CONSULTANT”). 

WHEREAS, the City issued Request for Proposal RFP 20-202 in order to obtain consulting services 

for an Electric Utility Cost of  Service Study and related services (“RFP”); and 

WHEREAS, on March 5, 2020, the CITY awarded the RFP to the CONSULTANT and entered 

into a Professional Services Agreement for Consultant to provide Electric Utility Cost of Service Study to 

the CITY (“Agreement”); and  

WHEREAS, the CITY’s City Manager authorized the Agreement for the first year; and 

WHEREAS, the CITY and the CONSULTANT wish to amend the Agreement to extend the terms 

of the Agreement to align with the RFP’s term of three (3) years with possibility to extend for additional 

two (2) one (1) year terms with all other terms and conditions remaining the same; and, 

WHEREAS, the CITY finds amending the Agreement as set forth herein is in the best interest of 

the CITY and serves a valid public purpose. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein, the sufficiency 

of which is hereby acknowledged by each party hereto, the CITY and the CONSULTANT agree to amend 

the Agreement, as follows: 

1. Recitals. The above recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein by reference.

2. Term of Agreement. The parties agree that the term of the Agreement is hereby extended

for two (2) years. The City Manager may approve the additional two (2), one (1) year terms under the same 

terms and conditions.  

3. Scope of Services.  The parties agree that the CONSULTANT shall perform all services

as specified in the Agreement. 

4. Amount Not To Exceed.  The maximum not to exceed amount for this Agreement is

$45,000.00 (Forty-Five Thousand Dollars) annually. The CITY shall not reimburse the CONSULTANT 

for any additional costs incurred as a direct or indirect result of the CONSULTANT providing the services 

as specified in the Agreement to the CITY. If the CITY needs any additional services from the 

CONSULTANT that are not specified in the Agreement, the CONSULTANT and CITY shall mutually 

agree in writing to such additional services and the cost for the same prior to such additional services being 

provided. 

5. E-Verify. Pursuant to Section 448.095(2), Florida Statutes, beginning on January 1, 2021,

the CONSULTANT shall: 

a. Register with and use the E-Verify system to verify the work authorization status of all

newly hired employees and require all subcontractors (providing services or receiving



Page 2 of 3 

funding under this Agreement) to register with and use the E-Verify system to verify the 

work authorization status of all the subcontractors’ newly hired employees; 

b. Secure an affidavit from all subcontractors (providing services or receiving funding under

this Agreement) stating that the subcontractor does not employ, contract with, or

subcontract with an “unauthorized alien” as defined in Section 448.095(1)(k), Florida

Statutes;

c. Maintain copies of all subcontractor affidavits for the duration of this Agreement and

provide the same to the CITY upon request;

d. Comply fully, and ensure all of its subcontractors comply fully, with Section 448.095,

Florida Statutes;

e. Be aware that a violation of Section 448.09, Florida Statutes (Unauthorized aliens;

employment prohibited) shall be grounds for termination of this Agreement; and,

f. Be aware that if the CITY terminates this Agreement under Section 448.095(2)(c), Florida

Statutes, CONSULTANT may not be awarded a contract for at least 1 year after the date

on which the Agreement is terminated and will be liable for any additional costs incurred

by the CITY as a result of the termination of the Agreement.

6. Entire Agreement. The CITY and the CONSULTANT agree that the Agreement and this

First Amendment set forth the entire agreement between the parties, and that there are no promises or 

understandings other than those stated herein. None of the provisions, terms and conditions contained in 

this First Amendment may be added to, modified, superseded or otherwise altered, except by written 

instrument executed by the parties hereto. All other terms and conditions of the Agreement (except as 

amended herein) remain in full force and effect. 

7. Counterparts. This First Amendment may be simultaneously executed in several

counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the same 

instrument. Either or both parties may sign this First Amendment electronically and send the same via 

facsimile or email and such signature is as valid as the original signature of such party. 

REST OF PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS 



Page 3 of 3 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this First Amendment to 

the Professional Services Agreement for Electric Utility Cost of Service Study on the day and year first 

above written.  

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA 

By:  _________________________________ 

         Pam Triolo, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

By: __________________________  

      Deborah M. Andrea, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND         APPROVED FOR FINANCIAL        

LEGAL SUFFICIENCY:        SUFFICIENCY 

By: __________________________      By: ____________________________ 

      Glen J. Torcivia, City Attorney         Bruce T. Miller, Financial Services Director 

LEIDOS ENGINNERING, LLC D/B/A R.W. BECK 

GROUP INC. 

By:  __________________________________ 

[Corporate Seal] 

Print Name:  ___________________________ 

Title:  _________________________________ 

   ) STATE OF FLORIDA    

COUNTY OF ORANGE)

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 4th day of November, 2020, by 
Carolina Rios, who was physically present, as Sr. Contracts Representative (title), of

LEIDOS ENGINEERING, LLC, D/B/A R.W. BECK GROUP INC. a Florida limited liability 

company, and who is personally known to me or who has produced the following _____N/A________

as identification 

          Notary Public: _______________________ 

Print Name: Kareen M. Ford
My commission expires:    3-11-2023

Carolina Rios

Sr. Contracts Representative

November 4, 2020


	Top
	D.	Presentation to Communications and Electric Utilities
	EU Press Release

	A.	Minutes - 10/20 RM
	102020 RM Minutes

	A.	Proclamation declaring November 2020 as Native American Indian Heritage Month
	Native American Indian Heritage Proclamation

	B.	Proclamation declaring November 2020 as Retinoblastoma Awareness Month
	Retinoblastoma Awareness Proclamation

	C.	R2 Unified Technologies 1st Amendment
	R2 Unified Technologies Service Agreement Renewal Staff Report
	First Amendment

	D.	Microsoft licensing agreement
	Microsoft Enterprise Agreement Renewal Staff Report
	Microsoft Enterprise Agreement FY2021-FY2023
	Microsoft Enterprise Agreement Amendment-M97 - Azure
	Microsoft Enterprise Agreement Signature Form
	Microsoft Enterprise Enrollment (Indirect)
	CDWG Microsoft Enterprise Agreement Renewal Quote

	E.	Purchase Order with Nextran Truck for the Mack Front Load Garbage Truck
	Nextran Truck Staff Report
	Quote

	F.	Purchase Order with Isuzu Truck of Ocala for the purchase of a Mini-Rear Load Garbage Truck
	Isuzu Truck Staff Report
	Quote

	G.	Shannon Chemical Agreement
	Shannon Staff Report
	Shannon Chemical Agreement

	H.	Resolution No. 49-2020  -  Public Meeting - Historic Tax Exemption
	631 Lucerne Ave. Staff Report
	Resolution 49-2020
	Covenant - 631 Lucerne Avenue

	I.	Resolution No. 50-2020 - Public Meeting - Historic Tax Exemption
	910 North M St. Staff Report
	Resolution 50-2020
	Covenant - 910 North M Street

	J.	Resolution No. 51-2020 Budget Amendment for FY2020 Budget
	Budget Amendment FY 2019 - 2020 Staff Report
	Resolution 51-2020
	Memo

	K.	Ratification of agreement with Coast Professional, Inc.
	Coast Professional Staff Report
	Agreement

	L.	Ratification of agreements with CliftonLarsonAllen LLP and Robert Busch
	Financial Consultants Staff Report
	Engagement Letter
	Robert Busch Contract 

	M.	Third Agreement  Extension Request from 14 S East Coast, LLC, for property located at 14 S East Coast Street, Lake Worth Beach, Florida
	14 S East Coast St. Staff Report

	N.	Robert Half International Amendment
	Robert Half Staff Report
	Third Amendment

	O.	Bond reso ratification
	Bond Resolution Ratifications Staff Report
	Bond Resolution 45-2020
	Supp Resolution 47-2020

	A.	Ordinance 2020-15 - First Reading - LDR Amendments
	LDR Amendments (landscaping & signage) Staff Report
	Ordinance 2020-15
	PZB & HRPB Staff Report

	B.	Ordinance 2020-17 - First Reading - Village Flats MUUPD First Reading
	Village Flats Staff Report
	Ordinance 2020-17
	PZB Staff Report
	Development Plans
	Supplemental Supporting Documents

	C.	Ordinance 2020-18 - First Reading - Lucerne Avenue Rezoning
	Rezoning Staff Report
	Ordinance 2020-18
	PZB & HRPB Staff Report

	1)	Seventh Amendment to the existing agreement with Vantage Services Consulting LLC for additional consulting services for Fiscal Year 2021
	Vantage Staff Report
	7th Amendment

	2)	Amended and Restated Directive with Gas South, LLC
	FGU Amendment Staff Report
	Directive Confirmation
	FGU Directive Addendum
	Proposed Amended and Restated Directive
	FGU Agreement
	Sun Trust Letter of Credit

	3)	Work Order No. 5 with The L.E. Myers Co., for Electric Distribution System construction services
	Work Order No.5
	LE Myers Work Order No. 5

	4)	First Amendment to the existing agreement with Leidos Engineering LLC for additional cost of rate design consulting services for Fiscal Year 2021
	Leidos Staff Report
	1st Amendment

	Bottom

